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i?/V
Ibe Handbook lor Soiitlioni Germany, which is now issued

for the twelfth time, is designed to assist the traveller in planning

his tonr and disposing of his time to the best advantage, to render

him as far as possible independent of the services of guides, com-
missionnaires, and hotel-keepers, and to enable him the more thor-

onghly to enjoy and appreciate the objects of interest he meets with

on his tour.

The Handbook is based on the personal observation of the Editor,

and most of the country described has been repeatedly explored by
him with a view to procuring the latest possible information; but, as

many of the data in the Handbook relate to matters which are con-

stantly undergoing alteration, he will highly appreciate any correc-

tions or suggestions with which travellers may favour him. Those
already received, which in many instances have proved most useful,

he gratefully acknowledges. Hotel-bills, with annotations, are speci-

ally useful.

The Handbook is divided into Two Sections (I. "VVurtemberg;

II. Bavaria), each of which may be separately removed from the

volume by cutting the gauze backing visible on opening the book at

the requisite pages. Linen covers for these sections may be obtained

through any bookseller. The Alpine tourist will find the mountainous

districts more fully described in the Handbook to the Eastern Alps.

For Baden, Alsace, Lorraine, and Rhenish Bavaria the traveller is

referred to the Handbook to the Rhine.

The Maps and Plans, on which special care has been bestowed,

> will, it is hoped, render material service to the traveller in plan-

ning his tour.

^ Distances by road and railway are given approximately in <

English miles; but in hilly districts they are often expressed by

^ the time in which they can be accomplished by average walkers,

^\ kilometre is approximately = ^/g English mile; 8 km. = 5 M.
' Heights are given in the text in English feet, on the maps in

metres (1 Engl. ft. = 0.3048 metre = 0.971 Prussian ft.), and the

Populations in accordance with the latest census.

Hotels. The Editor has endeavoured to enumerate, not only

the first-class hotels, but also others of more modest pretensions,

which may be safely selected by the 'voyageur en gar^on' with

little sacrifice of comfort and considerable saving of expenditure.

Hotel-charges, as well as carriage-fares and fees to guides, are

4G2398
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liable to frequt^nt variation, and generally have a strong upward
tendency; but these items, as stated in the Handbook either from
the personal experience of the Editor or from data furnished by
numerous correspondents, will at least aiford the traveller an ap-

proximate idea of his expenditure. The asterisks indicate those

hotels which the Editor has reason to believe to be especially

worthy of commendation in proportion to their charges. At the

same time the Editor does not doubt that equal excellence may
often be found in hotels that are unstarred and even unmentioned.

To hotel-keepers, tradesmen, and others the Editor begs to in-

timate that a character for fair dealing and courtesy towards

travellers is the sole passport to his commendation, and that ad-

vertisements of every kind are strictly excluded from his Hand-
books. Hotel-keepers are also warned against persons representing

themselves as ag-ents for Baedeker's Handbooks.

E. =room; also route.

B. = breakfast.
D. = dinner.

L. = luncheon.
S. = supper.
P. = pension (i.e. board
and lodging),

rfmts. = refreshments.
M. = English mile,

ra. = metre.

Abbreviations.

km. = kilometre.'
kg. = kilogramme,
ft. = English foot.

omn. = omnibus,
carr. = carriage.

ISr. = North, northern,
etc.

S. = South, etc.

E. = East, etc.

W. = West, etc.

ca. = circa, about.
tS = mark.
pf. = pfennig.
K = krone.
h = heller.

PI. = plan.

p. = page.
comp. = compare.
hr. = hour.
min. = minute.

The number of miles prefixed to the name of a place on a railway or
high-road indicates its distance from the starting-point of the route or sub-
route. The number of feet given after the name of a place shows its

height above the sea-level. The letter d, with a date, after the name
of a person, indicates the year of his death.

Asterisks are used as marks of commendation.
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INTRODUCTION.

I. Language. Money. Expenses.
Language. A slight acquaiutance with German is very desir-

able for those who purjjose exploring the remoter districts of

Southern Germany, but tourists who keep to the beaten track will

generally find English or French spoken at the principal hotels and
tourist-resorts. If, however, they are entirely ignorant of the lan-

guage, they will occasionally have to submit to the extortions prac-

tised by porters, cab-drivers, and others of a like class, which even

the data in the Handbook will not always enable them to avoid.

Money. The German mark f<v^j, which is nearly equivalent to

the English shilling, is divided into 100 pfennigs. Bank-notes of

20, 50, 100, and 1000 ^^ are issued by the German Imperial Bank
(Deutsche Reichsbank), and others of 100 and 500 ^i ^ with a

limited circulation, by four other chartered banks. There are be-

sides treasury-bills (Reichskassen-Scheine) of 5 and 10 ,Ji. The
current gold coins are pieces of 10 and 20 marks, the intrinsic value

of which is slightly lower than that of the English half-sovereign and

sovereign (1^. being worth about 20 Ji 43 pf.). The silver coins are

pieces of 5, 3, 2, 1, and */2 mark (50 pf.). In nickel there are coins

of 25, 10, and 5 pfennigs, and in copper there are pieces of 2 and
1 pfennig. — In Austria the monetary unit is the Krone (K) =
100 Heller (h); comp. the money-table before the title-page.

English sovereigns and bank-notes may be exchanged at all

the principal towns, and napoleons are also favourably received

(20 fr. = 16s. = 16 ^/^ 20 pf.). Those who travel with large sums
should carry them in the form of letters of credit or circular notes

of 5/. or 10/. J as their value, if they are lost or stolen, is recov-

erable. The travellers' cheques issued by the American Express
Companies may also be recommended.

Expenses. The expense of a tour in Southern Germany is less

than in most other European countries. The modest pedestrian,

who knows sojncthiug of the language and avoids the beaten track

as much as possible, may succeed in limiting his expenditure to

10-12s. per day. Those, on the other hand, who prefer driving to

walking, choose the dearest hotels, and employ guides and com-
missionnaires, must be prepared to spend 25-306\ daily.

II. Passports. Custom Houses.
Passports are now unnecessary in Germany, except for

students who wish to matriculate at a German university, but they

are frequently useful in proving the identity of the traveller, pro-
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curiug admission to collections, and obtaining delivery of registered

letters. Cyclists and motorists shonld always carry passports.
Passports may be obtained direct from the Passport Department of

the Foreign Office". Whitehall (fee 2s.). or through any of the usual tourist-
agents. — In the United States application for passports should be made
to the Bureau of Citizenship, State Department, Washington, D.C.

Custom House formalities are now almost everywhere lenient.

As a rule, however, articles purchased during the journey and not

destined for personal use should be declared at the frontier.

III. Railways. Omnibuses.

Railways. Eailway travelling in Germany is less expensive

than in most other parts of Europe, and the carriages are generally

clean and comfortable. The second-class carriages, with spring-

seats, are sometimes as good as those of the first class in England.

Smoking is allowed in all the carriages (in first-class compartments
only if all ti^vellers agree), except those 'Ftir Nichtraucher' and the

coupes for ladies. — Xo one is admitted to the platform without

either a railway-ticket or a platform-ticket (Bahnsteig-Karte); the

latter (10 pf.) may be obtained from the automatic macliiues placed

for the purpose at the stations. The average fares for the different

classes by ordinary trains (Personen-Ztige), which often have no first-

class carriages, and by fast trains (Eil-Ziige) are 1- 5 c/.,
^
k, c?., and

2 5 d. per Engl. M. respectively (7, 41. o, and 3 pf. per kilometre), be-

sides a stamp-duty included in the prices of the tickets and varying

from 5 pf. to 8 c/// according to distance and class. By express-trains

(Schnell-Ziige : with three classes), and by the through corridor-trains

(D-Ziige), which sometimes have no third-class carriages, there is.

moreover, an additional tax of 2.5 pf. to 2 tJL There is no reduction

in the fare of return-tickets. The seats in the through corridor-trains

are numbered and reserved, and may be ordered in advance at the

stations of departure (no fee). Each ticket is available for four days

and permits the journey to be broken once without any formality.

No Luggage is allowed free except smaller articles taken by the

passenger into his carriage. The heavier luggage must be booked,

and a ticket procured for it. The charge per 25 kilogrammes (55 lb.)

is 20 pf. up to 50 km. (31 M.), 50 pf. up to 300 km. (186 M.), and
1 c^ beyond 300 km. Trunks should be at the station at least V4 hr,

before the train starts. Luggage once booked, the traveller need not

look after it till he arrives at his final destination, where it will be

kept in safe custody (24 hrs. gratis) until he presents his ticket.

When, however, a frontier has to be crossed, the traveller should.

see his luggage cleared at the custom-house in person. Porters are

entitled to a fee, fixed by tariff, for carrying luggage to or from the

cab. At most staitions there is a left-luggage office for small baggage,

where a charge of 10 pf. per day is made for each package.
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The enormous weight of the trunks used by some travellers not un-
frequently inflicts serious injury on the hotel and railway porters who
handle them. Travellers are therefore urged to place their heavy articles

in the smaller packages and thus minimize the evil as far as possible.

Circular Tour Tickets (Zusammenstellbare Fahrschein-Hefte;

see the Reichs-Kursbuch, § 733) for prolonged tours are not issued

for distances under 600 km. (373 M.); those for distances up to

3000 km. (1864 M.) are valid for 60 days, for 3000-5000 km.

(3109 M.) for 90 days, and beyond that distance for 120 days. The
journey can be broken without formality at any of the stations.

These tickets (books of coupons) must be ordered one day before

the beginning of the journey on special forms to be obtained at the

railway stations or at the city offices. They are available by all

trains, though an extra charge is made for the use of the inter-

national 'Luxus-Ziige' (1st cl. only). Their use is convenient, but

they are no cheaper than ordinary tickets.

In Wurtemberg Season Tickets (Landes-Fahrkarten), valid for

15 days and permitting the holder to travel at will over all the

Wurtemberg state-lines, are issued for 45, 30, or 20 <JC according

to class. Applications for these must be made at least 1 hr. in ad-

vance and be accompanied by an unmounted photograph of the ap-

plicant and a deposit of 3 ^.
Railway Time throughout Germany is that of Central Europe,

which is one hour in advance of Greenwich time.

Time Tables. Information as to the departure of trains, steam-

ers, and omnibuses is most trustworthy when obtained from local

sources. The best German publications of the kind are the •Reichfi-

KurshufJi (21/., «y^; published at Berlin), ^HendscheVs Telegraph'

{2'^J2^; smaller edit. 1^'^zJl)^ both issued eight times a year, and

'Storm's Kurshnch fiirs Reich' (It,//.* four times yearly).

Omnibuses and Motor Omnibuses now ply on all the

chief tourist-routes, almost entirely superseding the old diligences.

They are generally roomy and comfortable, and run in connection

with the chief trains. The Reichs-Kursbuch (see above) mentions only

the most important lines, but there are others which maybe of use

to the tourist. The state motor-omnibuses only accept luggage when
accompanied by the traveller in person.

IV. Motoring and Cycling.

Motor Cars entering Germany are liable to pay a customs-duty,

which varies according to weight and is returned when the car leaves

the country. Members of a recognized automobile club, however,

may deposit the amount of the duty with it, in exchange for a doc-

ument ('triptyque') which exempts them from customs formalities

in Germany. The cars of foreign visitors nust display a special sign

obtainable at the frontier custom-houses (fee 'o -Jl). and tlifir iiwnfi-<
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must take out an official permission (Erlaubnis-Karte ; up to 90 days

50 <Ji). The home-licence and chauffeur's certificate must be counter-

signed by a Grerman consul and should be carried. It is best to

procure from the home authorities an international pass, valid for

one year throughout Europe. This must be revised at the frontier,

and the cars must then display at the back, besides the official plate

of their country, another indicating their nationality (GB for Great

Britain, U 8 for America). Persons under 18 years of age are not

allowed to drive motor-cars or ride motor-cycles. In populous dis-

tricts the speed-limit is 15 km. (9 M.) per hr. The rule of the road is

to keep to the right in meeting and to pass on the left in overtaking.

Cycles accompanied by their owners are admitted into Ger-

many duty-free. On the railways uncrated bicycles are carried as

personal luggage. For distances up to 100 km. (62 M.), however,

the rider may take a bicycle-ticket (Fahrrad-Karte; 20 pf.); he must

then himself take his cycle to and from the baggage-car, and must

also transfer it from One train to the other if carriages are changed

en route. Motor -cycles must pay the luggage -rate. Some of the

busier streets in towns are closed to cyclists. The police have

the right to demand the exhibition of the cyclist's club-ticket or

passport.
Among the bestRoAB Maps are those issued hy Ravenstein<&Liebe7ioiv,

Mittelhach, and L. Ravenstein. The German volume of tlie Continental

Road Book published by the Cyclists' Touring Club will be found useful.

V. Hotels.

The first-class hotels in the principal towns and watering-places

throughout Germany are generally good and somewhat expensive;

but it frequently happens that in old-fashioned hotels of unassum-

ing exterior, particularly in places.off the beaten track, the traveller

finds more real comfort and much' lower charges.

The average charges in the first-class hotels are as follows : room
(including light and attendance) 3-5 Jl, plain breakfast 1-1^/2 <Jii

dinner 3-5 ^6, pension {i.e. board, lodging, and attendance) 7-10 ^L
In some of the most luxurious houses and for extra accommodation

the charges are considerably higher. Pedestrians and travellers of

moderate requirements will find the country inns very reasonable,

5-6s. a day being generally sufficient to include every item. The
prices for rooms given in this Handbook include light and atten-

dance. — Small gratuities are expected by the portier, boots (Haus-

knecht), chambermaid, and head -waiter (Oberkellner). The total

amount of these may be reckoned at about 10 ^/q of the bill.

When the traveller remains for a week or more at a hotel, it

is advisable to call for his account every two or three days, in

order that erroneous insertions may be at once detected. A habit

too often prevails of presenting the bill at the last moment, when
errors or impositions cannot easily bo rectified. Those who intend
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starting early in the morning should therefore ask for their bills

on the previous evening.
Hotel -keepers who wish to commend their houses to British and

American travellers are reminded of the desirability of providing the

bedrooms with large basins, foot-baths, plenty of water, and an adequate
supply of towels. Great care should be taken to ensure that the sanitary
arrangements are in proper order, including a strong flush of water and
proper toilet-paper; and no liouse that is deficient in this respect can
rank as first-class or receive a star of commendation, whatever may be
its excellencies in other departments.

English travellers often impose considerable trouble by ordering

things unknown in Grerman usage; and if ignorance of the language

be added to want of conformity to the customs, misunderstandings

and disputes are apt to ensue. The reader is therefore recommended
to endeavour to adapt his requirements to the habits of the country,

and to acquire if possible such a moderate proficiency in the lan-

guage as to render him intelligible to the servants.

VI. Post, Telegraph, and Telephone Offices.

Postal Rates. Bavarian postage-stamps are not available for

letters posted in other parts of Germany, nor are the ordinary

German stamps available in Bavaria. Ordinary Letters within Ger-

many and Austria-Hungary, 10 pf. for 20 grammes (-/g oz.), 20 pf.

fur 250 gr.; for foreign countries 20 pf. for 20 gr. (for the United

States 10 pf., if sent by direct steamer), each 20 gr. more 10 pf.

Letters by town-post 5 pf. up to 250 gr. (9 oz.). Registered Letters

20 pf. extra. — Post Cards 5 pf., for abroad 10 pf. — Printed

Papers (Drucksachen), up to 50 gr. 3 pf., up to 100 gr. 5 pf., up to

250 gr. 10 pf. ; for abroad 5 pf. per 50 gr. (1^4 oz.).

Post Office Orders (Postanweisungeu) within Germany, not

exceeding 5 ^, 10 pf.; 100 c^, 20 pf.; 200 ^/l, 30 pf.; 400 ^,
40 pf.; 600^^, 50 pf.; 800.^, 60 pf.; for Austria-Hungary, 10 pf.

per 20 ^l (minimum 20 pf.). The charges for post office orders for

foreign countries vary (for the United Kingdom 20 pf. per 20 ^,
for the United States 20 pf. per 40 ^).

Telegrams. The minimum charge' for a telegram to Great
Britain or Ireland is 80 pf., to any other European country 50 pf.,

subject to which conditions telegrams are charged at the following

rates per word: Germany, Austria-Hungary, and Luxemburg 5 pf.;

Belgium, Denmark, Holland, and Switzerland 10 pf. ; France 12 pf.;

Great Britain, Italy, Norway, Roumania, and Sweden 15 pf. ; Greece
30 pf. ; Turkey 45 pf.; other European countries 20«j)f. Telegrams
to the United States cost from 1 t,/^ 5 to 1 1^ 60 pf. per word. —
Telegrams despatched and received .within the same town are

charged 3 pf. per word (minimum 30 pf.). Urgent telegrams,

marked D ('dringend'), taking precedence of all others, pay thrice

the above tariff.

Telephones. The urban service costs 5-20 pf. per 3 niin.,

the inter-urbnn service from 20 pf. to 2 c.^.



WEIGHTS AND MEASURES.



South German Art.

A Historical Sketch by Professor Anton Springer.

It is neither the function nor the intention of the following

sketch to divert the traveller's attention from the beauties of nature

and to direct it instead to the study of art. But the great cities of

Southern G-ermany, whether they be the express object of the travel-

ler's journey or temporary resting-places on his way elsewhere,

cannot fail of themselves to inspire him with some interest in the

art both of the present and of the past; while at numerous other

• points his glance is arrested and his attention excited by ancient or

modern monuments of art. Interest in such things has widened and

deepened to a surprising extent within recent times. A few decades

ago old-fashioned German furniture was ignored, and German build-

ings of the 16th and 17th centuries were for the most part passed

by with a contemptuous shrug. Now the 'G-erman Renaissance' is a

theme of admiration and an object for eager imitation. Then only

a few mediaeval cathedrals received the meed of general admiration

or passed muster as true works of artistic genius, while the over-

whelming majority of mediaeval works remained unknown and un-

regarded. JVoi/; hardly anyone is either wholly indifferent to or wholly

ignorant of the development of art in the middle ages. The culti-

vation of the historic sense has largely affected the aesthetic attitude

in this direction, swelling the aggregate of artistic interest and

bringing the more remote periods within the limits of intelligent

comprehension. It is the object of the following lines to support and

extend this historic sense.

The civilization and art of Southern Germany reach back to a very

early period; they antedate by a thousand years the entrance of the

North German lands into the light of authentic history. Numerous
excavations have yielded traces of an early intercourse with Italy,

carried on to some extent before the Christian era; and not less

numerous traces have been found of the Roman settlements that

were established along the great trade-routes and waterways, though

these Roman discoveries are far inferior both in extent and import-

ance to those in the valley of the Moselle and elsewhere on the left

bank of the Rhine. The Roman remains at Treves appeal to the

imagination of the ordinary traveller, while the Roman remains in

N^oricum and Rhaetia arrest the attention of the archaeologist only.

Christianity early made its way into Southern Germany (St. Severin-

us; 5th cent.), and Frank and Irish missionaries reaped a rich

harvest. Convent after convent was founded; and there is probably

Baedeker's S. Germany. 12th Edit. b
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no other district where monastic establishments were so thickly

planted about the close of the 10th cent, as the banks of the Danube
and at the foot of the Alps. Most of these preserved their celebrity and

their wealth almost down to the nineteenth century, though their im-

portance as art-monuments has in many instances disappeared with

the substitution of new buildings for old ones. No considerable art-

monuments have come down to us even from the Carlovingian

period, which saw the beginning of Ratisbon's importance, except

in the domains of the goldsmith's craft and miniature-painting. The
Reiche Kapelle at Munich contains the finest specimens of the

former, the libraries at Munich and Vienna of the latter.

The unbroken chain of artistic activity begins for us about the

10th century. The art-style which prevailed from the 10th to the

13th cent, is generally known as the Romaxesqtje. Its characteristics

find their most distinct expression in ecclesiastical architecture. The
"

plan of the Romanesque church was suggested by the Roman basilica

of early-Christian times, the essence of which consisted in an oblong

hall, divided into three aisles by two rows of columns. At one end

of the basilica was a semicircular vaulted recess, known as the Apsis

;

at the other end was a fore-court (Atrium), enclosed by a portico.

Occasionally a transept was interposed between the three-aisled nave

and the apse, and thus the whole building gradually assumed the

clearly marked form of a cross. In the course of centuries and in

difl'erent countries this early-Christian nucleus underwent numerous

modifications, some due to the use of new building materials, some

to peculiarities of national customs, but most to the at first slowly

growing improvement in technical skill. It is apparent from the

earliest Romanesque edifices that their builders had difficulty in

rising to the demands of their task, and that they had but scanty

notions of measure and proportion. Romanesque architecture did

not attain an artistic perfection until the 12th century.

It is not difficult to identify a Romanesque building and at the

same time to decide with some certainty whether it belongs to the

earlier or later period (i.e. 11th or 12th cent.). The characteristic

forms of the Romanesque style are everywhere essentially the same.

The round arch is used to unite the interior pillars or columns, to

finish off windows and portals, and to form a continuous frieze on

the exterior wall ; the columns have either cubical capitals or foliage-

capitals modelled on the antique ; the ornamentation is predominantly

either in the geometric style (lozenges, zigzags, chequer-work) or

of conventionalized foliage. In the earlier churches vaulting is used

only for the crypt, the burial vaults, and the apse, while the nave

has a flat roof; but by the 12th cent, we find the vault-principle

triumphant, while the supporting pillars are also more richly arti-

culated. At the foot of the columns appears the base -ornament,

uniting the plinth with the torus of the base.
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Though it is thus easy to recognize the general Romanesque
character of a building, there are no sufficiently distinctive peculi-

arities to diiferentiate the style prevailing in Southern Gfermany from

that prevailing elsewhere. Even when we confine ourselves to nar-

rower limits and inquire whether the Romanesque buildings in

Southern Germany could be classified into Alemannic, Swabian,

Bavarian, and Austrian groups, we arrive at no satisfactory result.

All that we can say is that columns are frequently used to support

the upper walls (this form being known as the columnar basilica)

and that there is a frequent tendency towards a richly decorative

and even fantastic arrangement of the interior fittings. No traveller

in the neighbourhood of the Lake of Constance should omit to visit

the three churches on the island of Reichenau (p. 88); that at Ober-

zell, a small columnar basilica, dates back to the 9th cent., while

the larger church at Mittelzell is probably one of the oldest pillar-

basilicas in the district. The church of the former Benedictine abbey

of Alpirsbach (p. 61) in the Kinzig-Tal, founded in the 11th cent.,

surprises us by its stately proportions and the perspicuous devel-

opment of the ground-plan ; while another Swabian church, that of

Maidhy^onn (p. 20), is an excellent specimen of a large mediaeval con-

ventual edifice. Ratishon I'p. 202) is rich in Romanesque buildings,

including St. Stephans-Kapelle, the Obermiinster, the St. Jakobs-

Kirche, and the church of St. Emmerani. Several of these have

been sadly disfigured by later decorations; and indeed the true

Romanesque nucleus of many churches can only with difficulty be

disentangled from later alterations. The meaning of the fantastic

plastic embellishments on the portal of St. Jakob will probably

excite the curiosity of the ordinary traveller even less than the

sculptures in the spacious crypt of Freisimj Cathedral (p. 232\
which are, at any rate, decorative in their general effect.

The churches mentioned above, some of which lie quite off the

main lines of communication, appeal on the whole mainly to the

professional archaeologist or architect. There is, however, at least

one Romanesque church in Southern Germany which will excite the

warm admiration of the tourist and yield him unqualified delight,

namely Bamberg Cathedral (p. 147). The plan of this church in-

cludes a nave and aisles, an elevated choir at each end with a crypt

below, and a transept between the W. choir and the nave. In com-

parison with other buildings in the same style it takes a pre-em-

inent place by its imposing dimensions, by its spacious, airy, and

harmonious proportions, by the elaborate ornamentation of its portals

(B'iirsten-Tiir), and by the number and variety of its towers. The
occurrence of the pointed arch must not mislead the visitor into the

error of taking it as a sign of the admixture of Gothic elements.

The Gothic style is not characterized by the pointed arch, which
was also used in earlier times, but by its system of buttresses to

b*
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counteract tlie thrust of the vaulting, by its abundant use of ar-

ticulation, and by the rich ornamentation applied to -^all-surfaces

and other non-constructive portions of the building.

The early-Gothic period is but scantily represented in Southern

Germany, and it is not till the second half of the 13th century that

the Gothic Style appears here in a developed and victorious form,

while the building activity of the two following centuries brought

it to a pitch of great perfection. The number of Gothic edifices on

South German soil is very large, and the variety they show is very

remarkable. An imposing series of cathedrals, accompanied by at

least as many parochial city-churches and conventual churches,

extends all the way from Alsace to the borders of Hungary. Frei-

burg Cathedral (see Baedeker's Rhine) may be coupled with Strass-

burg Cathedral as among the finest structures of its class, if not

in unity of style, yet by the completeness of its execution and by
its imposing tower and airy pyramid of perforated masonry. With
the exception of Prague Cathedral, the choir of which shows the

influence of French models, the South German cathedrals testify to

considerable independence on the part of their architects. The
French masters were probably not unknown to these, but they did

not allow themselves to be dominated by foreign ideas. Ratishon
Cathedral (p. 204), begun in 1275 and completed after a long

interval in the 19th cent., shows neither the marked development of

the transept nor the rich elaboration of the choir which were custom-

ary in the cathedrals of AVestern Europe. The transept does not

project beyond the aisles, and the nave and aisles each end in a

separate apse instead of the aisles extending in the form of an

ambulatory round the choir. Another peculiarity in German cath-

edrals is that the nave and aisles are occasionally of the same height

— a peculiarity found nowhere else in cathedral-architecture, the

beginning and early development of which must be attributed to

the architects of Northern France. Thus the choir of the Cathedral

of St. Stephen., at Vienna, a work of the 14th century, has its nave

and aisles of the same height, while the main nave of the church,

of a little later date, is but slightly higher than the aisles and is

united under the same roof with them. Ulni Minster (p. 47)

is only a parish-church, and thus lacks the extensive choir necessary

for the numerous clergy of a cathedral, while it has only one tower

on the fagade; the ambition of the citizens, however, made it one

of the largest and loftiest Gothic churches in Germany.
The number of the notable Gothic churches in Southern Germany

is by no means exhausted by the foregoing list of cathedrals and

minsters. The towns of Swabia were distinguished for their great

activity in building during the later middle ages. In the Frauen-

Kirche Esslingen (p. 42) possesses a masterpiece, which, though of

small dimensions, is rich in ornamentation of every kind, culminat-



SOUTH GERMAN ART. xxi

ing in the graceful open-work tower. Similar small towers of open-

work are found at Bebenhausen near Tubingen, at Thann in Alsace,

and at Maria-Strassengel in Styria. Among the other fine Gothic

churches of Swabia are the minster of Uherdingen on the Lake of

Constance (p. 93), the Kreuz-Kirche at Gmiind (p. 39j, the Georgs-

Kirche at Nordlingen (p. 192j, the Georgs-Kirche at Dinkelshiihl

(p. 193), and the abbey-church of Tiihingen (p. 55). The churches of

Nuremberg (p. 163) form a well-known group; the impression pro-

duced by the choir and richly decorated Braut-Ttir of St. Sebaldus and

by the facade of the Lorenz-Kirche is a very striking one. The small

importance attached to tradition even in the 14th century is il-

lustrated by the way in which the fagade of the Liebfrauen-Kirche

(p. 171) differs from earlier ecclesiastical fronts. In Bavaria our in-

terest is excited mainly by a few hi;ge brick edifices, like the Frauen-

Kirche at Munich (p. 246) and the Martins -Kirche at Landshut
(p. 231), which served as the model of a whole series of churches.

The Gothic style was also sedulously cultivated in Bohemia from
the time of Charles IV. onwards. In Prague there are the Cathedral,

the Teyn-Kirche, and the Synagogue, while the bold vaulting of the

Karlshof Church also excites the interest of the architect. There are

other handsome edifices, some of which recall the earlier cathedral-

style, in such provincial towns asKolin, Kuttenberg, Pilsen, andEger.

Towards Italy the limits of the spread of the Gothic style is

marked by the parish-church of Botzen, towards the E. by the

church of St. Elizabeth at Kaschau. Few of the parochial and mon-
astic churches of the towns are remarkable for their structural forms,

which are generally of great simplicity, while the original ground-

plan is often wholly lost amid alterations and additions. The richness

and artistic merit of the decoration of their individual parts is,

however, perhaps all the more striking on this account. The archi-

tect is thrown into the shade by the sculptor. The mouldings on

the walls, the tracery of the windows, the details of the buttresses,

and the carvings of the doorways are all executed with the most
admirable care and in the richest and most delicate manner, while

the interior of the church is filled with works of art in metal, stone,

and wood.

Sculpture and Painting both find a favourable soil in Southern

Germany in the 15th century. The former, in particular, is indebted

for its solid foundation and its admirable command of technical

skill to its diligent practitioners of the Gothic period. It thus does

not break abruptly with tradition, but gradually fits the new realistic

features into the framework of the old forms. For centuries the

tasks of the sculptor remain the same; he has to chisel tombstones

of stone, to carve altars in wood, and to cast fonts in metal. The
application of metal to monumental works is a comparatively late

introduction; hence in this sphere the deviation from the mediaeval
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style is most striking, while in works of stone and wood sug-

gestions of Grothic art may be traced even in the 16th century. Sculp-

tures in stone and wood continue to be decidedly the most popular

branches of art. Wood-carving was diligently practised from the

earliest times in such Alpine districts as Ammergau, while the wood-

carvers of the great towns of Southern Germany also found ample
employment in the preparation of large altars and choir -stalls.

The sculptures on the altars were usually painted. This poly-

chrome decoration was rendered necessary, partly by the nature of

the material, which possessed no rich colouring of its own, and

partly by the immediate neighbourhood of the pictures, which were

generally added as wings to the carved centre of the altar. Altars

of this kind may be studied either in museums (Bavarian National

Museum at Munich, Germanic Museum at Nuremberg), or in their

original positions at Rothenburg, Blauhenren, Grnund, St. Wolf-
gang, and many other places. A few of their artists are still known
by name. The two most important are Jot^g Syrlin, first heard of

in 1458, the creator of the choir -stalls in Ulm Minster, and Veit

Stoss (ca. 1450-1533), who is known to us by his works in Nurem-
berg, produced almost wholly towards the close of a long life. Ulm,
Nuremherg, and Augsburg are the chief centres of South German
art in the 15th and 16th centuries. But this by no means implies

that the other free towns of the empire neglected the pursuit of art.

On the contrary, local research is constantly adding new names to

the artistic roll of honour. It is, however, only in the three towns

named that we find anything like schools of art or an artistic activity

of more than local interest. The chief painter at Ulm was Bartholo-

mdus Zeithlom, the son-in-law of the venerable Hans Schuhlein or

Schiilin. He flourished in 1484-1517, and his works, which may be

seen in the galleries of Stuttgart and Augsburg and in the Pinakothek

of Munich, are distinguished by the clearness and vigour of their

colouring, though the drawing is hard and the types of his heads

unpleasing and deficient in variety. Of his pictures, as of early-

German paintings in general, it may be asserted that the colouring

is their strongest point, even though lacking in a delicate graduation

of tone. They also succeed better with individual figures and quiet

groups than with dramatic situations, the representation of which
often led to exaggerated eftects and the admixture of coarsely

realistic traits.

The Augsburg school is best represented by Haus Burgkmair
(1473-1531), a master gifted with a fine sense for landscape beauty,

and by Holbein the Elder (ca. 1473-1524). The latter especially,

now that a number of works formerly ascribed to his son have been

accredited to him, ranks among the most interesting of early-German
painters. His professional activity may be traced from the last decade

of the 15th century onwards. For a considerable time his personal
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gifts do not help him to transcend the limits of the prevailing style.

Even his Madonnas and women are lacking in charm; in emotional

scenes, such as the Passion, a tendency to the coarse and common is

apparent. (This early manner of the painter is best studied at the

Augsburg gallery.) It was not till towards the end of his career —
and so far we have not material enough to trace the intermediate

development — that Holbein produced in the Altar of St. Sebastian

(Munich Pinakothek) a work that placed him far above all his contem-
poraries. He has learned to use the new graces borrowed from Italy,

he endues his women's heads with elegance and charm, he models
the nude with surprising accuracy, he exhibits a vigorous realism

restrained within due bounds. With the completion of this work in

1516 he disappears from the scene; and the only later information

that we possess about him is the news of his death, probably at Isen-

heim in Alsace. The works of his son Hans Holbein the Younger
(1497-1543) cannot be effectively studied except at Basle, to which
he migrated at an early age, and in England, where he spent the

latter part of his life. The South Grerman galleries, however, contain

a few fine examples of his talent. Thus at Darmstadt is the Ma-
donna of Burgomaster Meyer, the original of the celebrated picture

at Dresden, and at Vienna are two fine portraits of women.
The picture presented by the old, art-loving city of Nuremberg

is one that takes by storm the fancy of all. Poets and romance-
writers have celebrated the life and activity of the town in trade

and industry, science and art; the popular fancy, always ex-

treme in its love or hate, has indeed exaggerated its importance

as the beau -ideal of a mediaeval city. As a nmtter of fact its

artistic activity began at the close of the mediaeval period, and

it was in the 16th century that it reached its zenith. The Xurem-
berg artists are known far and wide. The names of Michael Wohl-
gemut, Yeit Stoss (p. xxii i, and Adam Krafl"t, and still more those of

Albrecht Diirer and Peter Vischer, are significant even to those who
know nothing more of early-German art. Wohlgemnt (1434-1519;

generally passes as the type of the respectable and conscientious

painter, who practises his art with honest simplicity. Adam Krafft,
the stone-cutter (ca. 1450-1509), whose work may be thoroughly

studied in his native city, also stands to some extent on the foot-

ing of the handicraftsman and follows the tracks of the old tradi-

tion. His religious representations, such as the Schreyer Tomb
on the outside of St. Sebald's, and the Seven Stations on the

way to the Johannis-Kirchhof (six of the originals now in the

Germanic Museum), show the regular 15th century mixture of pic-

torial and plastic elements in the composition, and the usual real-

istic hardness in the individual figures and in the drapery. A few

of the heads only (such as those of the Dead Christ and of the

Virgin in the relief of the Seventh Station) are permeated by a
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finer, personal feeling. He shows himself at his highest degree of

freedom from the traditional limitations in the fresh and true relief

on the Stadtwage and in the three small and lifelike statuettes that

adorn the large late -Gothic 'Sakramentshauscheu" in the Lorenz-

Kirche. Krafft's works are superior to most of the productions of

the other Xuremherg sculptors and their congeners, even to those

of the diligent Tilman Riemenschneider (d. 1531) of Wiirzburg,

whose masterpiece is in Bamberg Cathedral (p. 148). Nuremberg
also possesses at least the masterpiece of Peter Vischer (ca. 1455-

1529), the celebrated bronze-founder (St. Sebald's Monument). The
architectural framework enshrining the silver coffin of the saint

still shows traces of the conflict between Gothic and Renaissance

forms. The small figures of children, Prophets, and Apostles, on

the other hand, are creations of a free play of fancy, aiming not

merely at truth to nature but also at grace and charm or at dignified

and measured seriousness. Peter Yischer was afterwards joined in

his foundry by his sons; but Nuremberg does not afi'ord adequate

examples of his later development or of the ever stronger infusion of

the Italian Renaissance in the native style. The Gansemannchen
of Pancraz Labe/iwolf (14:92-1563) is an almost solitary instance

of the continued lifelike conception of nature coupled with freshness

and naivete. A visit to Nuremberg is still less satisfactory for a full

appreciation of Altrecht Dilre?^ (14:1 1-1528), the greatest of German
painters, though the imagination cannot but be pleasantly stimulated

by lingering on the spot where he lived and worked. In order to form
an adequate judgment of this many-sided master, remarkable alike

for the profundity and the richness of his artistic conceptions, we
must study not only his wood-cuts and engravings, but also his draw-
ings. The best collection of these last is found in the Albertina at

Vienna, a visit to which will intensely interest the serious student

of art. The drawings also afi'ord the only means of uninterruptedly

tracing Diirer's artistic evolution from his early boyish efforts to

the products of his closing years. This cannot be said of his paint-

ings, which are distributed very unequally among the different periods

of his life. It is really only twice in his career that his activity in

painting is so great as to form the main ground of our judgment
of him; the first of these periods was during and immediately after

his second visit to Venice (1505-7), the second was at the end of his

life, after his journey to the Netherlands (1521-2). From the Vene-
tians he borrowed certain details of composition and learned the

secret of his clear, warm, vigorous, and harmonious colouring; in

the evening of his days he reached a complete plastic command
of the pithy power of characterization visible in all his figures.

The South German galleries still contain the most important pro-

ducts of his art. Of his first period Munich possesses the Paum-
gartner Altar, the portrait of himself painted at Venice in 1506
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and unfortunately retouched, and finally his masterpiece, the double

panels known as the Four Temperaments (p. 273), with the heads of

SS. Peter and John, SS.PaulandMark. In this work he has, in allusion

to the religious disorders of his environment, created four permanent

types of Christian character, the corner-stones of the Reform move-

ment; he has wiven pure and lifelike artistic form to the testing and

the defence of truth. Of the numerous Diirer treasures once pre-

served in Nuremberg but few remain. The portrait of Hieronymus
Holzschuher (1526), the most perfect portrait w^e possess from

Dlirer's hand, formerly in the Germanic Museum, is now at Berlin.

The South German galleries afford abundant opportunity for a

study of the painters who were grouped round Diirer and to some
extent influenced by him, such as Hans von Kulmhach (ca. 1476-

1522), Hans ScMiifelein (ca. 1480-1540), Georg Pencz (ca. 1500-

50), Hans Sebald Beham (1500-50., Barthel Beham (1502-40),

Alb.Alfdorferica. 1480-1538), ar\dHans Baldung Grien (d. 1545).

Numerous specimens of these masters will be found in thePinakothek

and the Germanic Museum at Munich, and in the galleries of Donau-

eschingen and Sigmaringen. Those who have not the leisure or the

inclination to study their religious and historical pictures should

at least spare a glance for their efforts in portraiture. In this field

these masters show to the best advantage their fresh and vigorous

observation of nature, unhampered by the prevalent custom of

obscuring the main subject by a multiplicity of detail, or by the

attempt to create ideal forms without the requisite powers.

A revolution in artistic tendencies is already obvious among
the masters last named. The traditional style no longer sufficed.

The knowledge of Italian art, fostered by the custom of paying

visits to Italy w^hich grew up among northern artists towards the end

of the 15th century, broke through the old barriers and encouraged

the imitation of the new models. This Italian influence, however,

did not bring any very desirable fruit to maturity. The German
masters, like those of the Netherlands, remained essentially

Northerners; they studied Italian art but could not assimilate the

Italian nature. Though the Italian painters did homage to the ideal

in their works, they never disguised their nationality. Even their

most idealized creations reveal a direct life which smacks of the soil

and the atmosphere. Foreigners could not inspire their paintings

with this national trait, and thus, in spite of their personal talents,

never advanced beyond the outworks of the Italian style. The race

of artists that flourished in the second half of the 16th century

stamped the Italian manner still more strongly on their works, aided

and abetted in this by the gradual change in the patronage of art.

While the earlier form of art was most at home in middle -class

circles, various princely patrons of art, such as the Emperor Ru-
dolph II. and the Dukes of Bavaria, now step into the foreground.
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"VYood-cuts still remained popular and were widely circulated in the

homes of the people; engravings were chiefly sought as patterns for

the metal-worker and other artistic craftsmen; but painting now
solicited the favour of the art-loving courts. In these Italian art, like

Italian culture generally, was strongly in the ascendant. Italian

artists and Italian works of art began to migrate across the Alps ; and

thus the native artists, already attracted by the forms of the Renais-

sance, received a new inducement to perfect themselves in the schools

of Rome, Florence, and Venice. It would be unjust to eliminate en-

tirely from the lists of northern artists the names of the Dutch and

G-erman masters who followed this course (such as Bartholomdus
Spranger, Christoph Schiuarz, Hans von Aachen, and Johann
Rottenhammer)\ and some of them have produced works of con-

siderable value, especially as regards technical qualities. But it

remains true that, ho"wever great may be our desire to make 'histori-

cal rescues' by emphasizing their merits, it certainly has not yet

gone far enough to induce us to profess unqualified pleasure in the

works of these mannerists. Those who take an interest in the siib-

ject will find innumerable examples of their art in Vienna and in

other Austrian galleries.

The corresponding movement in architecture and the decorative

arts has, on the other hand, become of late astonishingly popular.

Even the layman now shows lively interest in the once unregarded

and despised buildings of the G-ermax Renaissance, and considers

an inspection of them a worthy object for a tour. The name Ger-

man Renaissance of itself indicates the double root from which
the style springs. The German Renaissance could not have come
into being without a knowledge of the architecture which became
predominant in Italy through the revived interest in the antique

in the 15th century. It borrowed from it the columnar orders,

the pilasters, the varieties of cornice, innumerable ornamental
motives, and many other details. It seldom, however, sank to a

slavish imitation of its Italian models, but remained faithful in

many points to its native traditions and tried to combine these

harmoniously with the new forms. It is true that the Gothic tra-

cery, mullions, mouldings, and geometrical patterns had to be given

up, and that the pointed arch lost its importance. In the construc-

tive parts, however, in the articulation and ground-plan old usages

still generally held their ground. The genesis of the German Re-

naissance is also the best explanation of it. Even in the early years

of the 16th century the German painters and engravers had begun
to use the graceful schemes of foliage and branches that were
characteristic of the Renaissance ornamentation of Italy; and a

knowledge of the difi"erent orders of architecture, the rules of which
were sought in Vitruvius, also quickly penetrated to the N. side of

the Alps. The masters of decorative sculpture were the next to
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adapt themselves to the new Italian style, which we meet on tomb-

stones, screens, fountains, and works in wood and metal. Its latest

conquest was in the sphere of architecture, where it at first appears

only in the ornamental parts such as doors, windows, and the arti-

culation of wall-surfaces. If the builder wished the work to be

erected in a pure Italian style, he had to send for, an Italian archi-

tect; and many Italians crossed the Alps and made plans, which

they left to be executed by native workmen. The traces of this

intercourse are distinctly recognizable in the German buildings.

It was in the sphere of the handicraftsman that the new move-

ment and the artistic advance found their greatest strength; no

wonder that the forms here created attained a universal applica-

tion and were adopted also by architecture and the monumental
arts. As a matter of fact we meet numerous suggestions of metal-

work in architectural ornamentation. The lower parts of the shafts

of columns appear as if adorned with mountings of metal; in other

cases hammered ironwork is imitated or the stone is treated as if

it were a soft and elastic material. The lofty gable is a distinct

reminiscence of the medieval house, while the Italian Renaissance

is practically destitute of roof-structures; the richly decorated bal-

cony or oriel is also a northern peculiarity. The manner in which

the Grerman Renaissance came into existence explains the want of

a uniform type or a normal style. It assumes a different character

in each district. The Renaissance in Northern G-ermany, so brilliantly

developed in timber and brick architecture, differs widely from the

Renaissance in Southern Germany, where the greater proximity of

Italy exercised a stronger influence. This is especially marked in

such imposing ecclesiastical edifices as the Michaels -Hofkirche in

Munich (p. 246). These buildings, erected under the influence of

the order of the Jesuits, bear the stamp impressed by the Jesuits

on their buildings in all countries. But the secular buildings also

show the influence of the neighbourhood of Italy and of the Italian

culture predominant in courts and in aristocratic circles generally.

Some buildings are German only through the soil on which they

stand, while in style they belong exclusively to the Italian Renais-

sance; of this number are the Belvedere of Emperor Ferdinand I.

at Prague and the Fugger Bath Rooms at Augshnrcj (p. 199).

The preference for the Italian style is revealed more strongly

in the castles of the noblesse than in the private buildings of the

towns, the free towns of the empire clinging especially to the older

traditions. Southern Germany contains a stately series of chateaux,

which, in giving up the character of castles and assuming that of

palaces, illustrate in the most signal manner the difference between

the Middle Ages and the Renaissance. At the head of these stands

the Otto-Heinrichs'Bau at Heidelberg (see Baedeker's Rhine), the

gem of German castle -architecture, which is remarkable for its



xxviii SOUTH GERMAN ART.

harmonious proportions and articulation and still more for its

rich and well thought-out plastic decoration. When the Friedrichs-
Bau was taken in hand forty -five years later (1601), the native

workmen had already become accustomed to the new style. The
ornamentation of the younger building shows clear traces of its

Grerman origin. Few of the other princely chateaux can compare
with that of Heidelberg. Schloss Tubingen (p. 56) still suggests

the old style of castle-building, while the fresh and somewhat coarse

strength of the Renaissance is most strikingly illustrated in the

portals. In the Old Palace of Stuttgart (p. 6) the most attractive

part is the inner court, with its arcades; but our fancy must lend

the colours for a picture of the fitting-up of the neglected state-rooms.

The constantly increasing power of the Bavarian dukes is mirrored

in the magnificence of their Palace at Munich (p. 254).

It was not always possible to proceed according to a uniform

plan. The castle of Landshut (p. 231), for instance, is wholly

irregular in plan and shows clear traces of the different periods

in which it was built. The decoration of the rooms is mainly

entrusted to the painter, a fact that alone shows the growth of

Italian influence. The same tendency is seen more clearly in the

new palace at Landshut (p. 230), the court of which is articulated

and decorated exactly in the taste of Italian palaces. A building

of great interest is the old palace at Munich, erected by Elector

Maximilian in 1598-1616, planned on an extensive scale, and elabor-

ately adorned with plastic and pictorial ornamentation (the latter

now sadly faded). The group of buildings at Prague is perhaps

the most interesting of the kind on Austrian soil. The new style

established itself in the Bohemian capital at an astonishingly early

date and maintained itself in comparative purity down to the 17th

century. The large loggia on the garden-side of the Wallenstein

Palace is the final link of a chain of building activity extending

across the whole of Bohemia. In order to give an adequate idea of

the German Renaissance, it would be necessary to attempt a full

enumeration of the individual buildings, for not only every district,

but often each monument in each district, shows peculiarities, the

study of which reveals the wealth of Renaissance art.

The lover of the Renaissance is advised not to confine his wander-
ings to the great cities and the chief lines of communication. The
keen eye will discover interesting buildings in almost every parish.

Thus the towns and villages of Tyrol contain many examples of the

Renaissance. A similar remark may be made about many other

buildings, not merely with regard to chateaux and manor-houses but

also, and in a still higher degree, with regard to the residences of

the ordinary citizen. In most cases, indeed, it will be the bare

architecture alone that the connoisseur will have a chance to enjoy;
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Siince house and contribute not a little to its comprehension, have

invariably disappeared — perhaps to satisfy the recent craving of

museums and collectors. The contents of the older industrial mu-
seums were mainly drawn from the treasures of the princely col-

lections that came into vogue in the 16th century. The predominant

objects were works of the goldsmith and furniture of costly woods,

inlaid with ivory and metal. The equipment of the private house

of the Renaissance period was, naturally, much more simple. The
panelling of the walls found a counterpart in the carved cabinets

and coffers; the metal utensils were often made of brass, the general

appearance of which harmonized admirably with the wooden fittings

;

the coarse nature of the pottery was disguised by colour, plastic

ornamentation, and variety of form. Where the original furnishing

is still in place, the eye will easily recognize the perfect harmony
subsisting between the interior fittings and the architectural plan,

and will see how the house has, as it were, grown from within out-

wards. A mere sight of the facades is not enough, especially when
the Renaissance houses occur sporadically among modern edifices.

A better idea is gained from rows of houses, streets, or squares

not yet invaded by the modern builder. Nuremberg formerly stood

unquestionably at the head of all German Renaissance towns. A
number of patrician houses of the 16th and the beginning of the

17th century can, it is true, still be cited; but the general appear-

ance of the town has begun to alter. On the other hand Rothen-
burg ob der Tauher (p. 217), with its Rathaus, towers, fountains,

and well-preserved houses, still presents an almost unimpaired pic-

ture of a German town of the Renaissance period. Here, as in most
of the free towns of the empire, the details of construction and

ornamentation borrowed from the native traditions or directly due

to the national spirit are seen in great force, while the Italian in-

fluence is much slighter than in the case of palaces. It is not till

the 17th century that the Italian style becomes predominant in

municipal architecture, as in the fagade of the Nuremberg Rathaus

and the splendid interior (Goldner Saal) of the Augsburg Rathaus.

Owing, however, to its intercourse with Venice, the Italian style

found comparatively ready acceptance at Augsburg and had, for in-

stance, familiarized the Augsburgers with the fashion of painted

fagades.

The period of the Thirty Years' War sadly interrupted the

evolution of German art and broke off many promising shoots from

the tree of German culture. Some departments of art did not re-

cover for two centuries; the once so popular work of the wood-

carver was forgotten; painting was but scantily cultivated and

sank to a greater depeiidence on foreign models than ever before.

From this calamitous period dates the predominance of the for-

eigner in all matters of taste. The greatest activity took place in
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Southern Germany and Austria, and here are found many and varied

examples of the once despised Baroque Styxe. In Italy a decided

revolution in architecture had taken place towards the close of the

16th century. AVhile the individual Renaissance forms were re-

tained, a new spirit was apparent in their embodiment and com-
bination. The old and genuine Renaissance style seemed too cold

and too simple, and not sufficiently effective. The architectural

members were made coarser and more massive , the straight line

was replaced by curves, the help of light and shade was appealed

to. The fa^'ade assumes a curved form; columns are moved towards
the front and draw the entire entablature with them; gables and
cornices are made to project strongly; the profiles are more ac-

centuated; ornamentation is used to an exaggerated extent, almost
obscuring the constructive elements. This baroque style, which is

at bottom closely akin to the contemporary mannerism and the in-

creased realism in painting and sculpture, soon found acceptance
in Southern Germany. We see it in the numerous churches and con-

vents that were rebuilt with increased magnificence after the close

of the Thirty Years' War; and we likewise see it in all its pomp,
but also with all its weaknesses, in the numerous palaces built be-

tween 1680 and 1740. The Palace of Versailles is imitated in a

few cases only (Schleissheim , Mannheim); the predominant style

is the Italian baroque, especially as it had been developed by Bor-
romini. Excellent examples of the baroque style are found mWilrz-
hurg (Palace, by J. B. Neumann), Munich, and especially at Vienna
and Prague, where the traveller may go through a complete course

in baroque architecture. Among the finest creations of this style

are the interior decorations of the Amalienhyrg near Munich, of the

Schloss at Ansbach, and of the palace at Wlirzburg.
Architecture became practically paralyzed about the middle of

the 18th century in consequence of the wars between Prussia and
Austria. On the other hand an attempt was made, without much
success, to revive the art of painting by the foundation of acad-

emies at Vienna and Stuttgart (Karls-Schule). At the beginning of

the 19th century the young artists of Germany had still to make
the pilgrimage to Rome in order to train their eye and taste and
to enkindle their imagination before the works of classical and old

Italian art. More recent events must be passed over with a word.
In the reign of King Louis I. Munich won a European reputation
as a school of art; and after a period of stagnation about the middle
of last century it has again reached a position of great importance,
Vienna has been specially distinguished for its successes in archi-

tecture and sculpture, while Stuttgart and Darmstadt enjoy a well-

merited renown in the domain of industrial art.
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1. Stuttgart and ;Environs.
Kailway Stations, (l) Haupt-BahnTiof or 2Ia in Station (PI. E, 3;

restaurant), corner of the Schloss-Str. and Friedrich-Str. (being removed
farther X. : comp. PL F. 2). — (2) Nord-Bahnhof (beyond PI. F, 1 ; p. 22),

on the Prag. — (3) West-Bahnhof (p. 17), at the "^^". end of the town. —
^4) Zahnrad-BahnTiof or Mountain Railicay Station (PL D, 7 : p. 16J,

Heusteig-Str. 109, fur Degerloch, Mohringeu, Hohenheiui, Xeuhauseu, and
Vaihingen on the Filder. — Tramways from the Haupt-Bahnhof to the

Zahnrad-Bahnliof and to the West-Bahuliof, see pp. 16, 17.

Hotels. Near the HAUPT-BAnxnor : ^Marquardt (PL a ; E, 3), Schloss-

Str. 4, with an entrance from the jjlatform, R. & B. 41/2-71/2? with bath

9 .# 20 - 16 ,-« 50 pf ., D (1 p.m.) 3 .S. — Boyal ' (PL b ; E, 3), Schloss-Str. 5,

R. 2^l2-i^l2, B. 1. D. 2 Ji,, with large restaurant and garden ; ^Victoria (Pl.g:

E, 3), Friedrich-Str. 28, R. 2i/o-4, B. 1. D. 2-3 ^.- Dierlamm (PL e: E, 3)'

Friedrich-Str. 30. R. from 2, B. 1 ^fC. with garden. — Textor (PL b;

E, 3), Friedrich-Str. 50, R. 1 ^ 80-2 ^50, B. 90 pf., D. 1 ^tC 40-2 Jl 50 pf.,

with garden; Schivabenbrdit (PL s; E, 3), Friedrich-Str. 35, R. 1 cii 80-

2 J^ 50, B. 80 pf.; Central (PL 1; E, 3), corner of Schloss-Str. and See-

Str. ; Weber-Bilflncjer (PL ; E, 3), R. 2-5 J^, B. 80 pf ., Post (PL i ; E, 3).

R. 1 c^ 60-2 Ji .50 pf ., Eurojmischer Hof (Katholischer Verein ; PL n, E 3),

Frank (PL q; E, 3), with garden, these four in the Friedrich-.Str. ; Balm-
hof-Hotel (PL f ; E, 3), Schloss-Str. 7, R. 2-31/.,, B. 1 J/..

Ix THE Middle of the City, not far from the Haupt-Bahnhof : *Silber
(PL d; F, 4), Dorotheeu-Str. 2, R. 2-5, B. 1, D. 1 .« 60 pf.-3^; *Con-
tinental (Pl.t, E 5; hotel garni;, Konig-Str. 84, corner of Tiibinger Str.

;upper floors'. R. from D ^«, B. l\s 20 pf. ; Banh (PL p; D, 5), Sophien-
Str. 35, R. from 2. B. 1 ^4. with garden: Konic] von Wilrttemberg (PL c;

E, 4). Kronprinz-Str. 26, R. Vj^-^ .S, B. SO pf. ; Herzog CTiristoph (Evau-
gelischer Yerein; PL m, E 5), Christoph-Str. 11, R. I'/g-S Ji: Bcrtrand
PL r: E, 4), Calwer Str. 7, with good restaiu-ant.

Pensions. Eiithling, Urban-Str. 31a (PL Ci, 3: 5-6 .U); BunzeU
Olga-Str. 10 (PL G. 4: 41/^-7 JC); Bareiss, Konig-Str.' 14 (PL E, F, 4, 3

J

4-7 ^}; Konig, Kriegsberg-Str. 27 (PL D, 2, 3); Strich-Chapell, Blumen-
Str. 27 (PL Ct, 5; 41/2-51/2-*): Maassen, Alexander-Str. 81 (PL F, 6: 41/.,-

(iJlj: Stiittgarter FroMen-Kii'.b, Alleen-Str. 25 (PL E, 3, 2).

Restaurants. At the hotels; at the Kunst-Gcbdude (p. 5); in the

Hof- Theater (t^. S\, entrance in the Theater-Platz ; Konigin-Olga-Baii
(see below: D. 1 .^ 70-2^20pf.): Stadt-Garten (see p. 4); Friedriclis-
Bau (see below); Wilhelms-Baii (Pl. D, 5; p. 14), corner of Konig-Str. and
Marien-Str., D. 1-2 .4; Eberhard-Bau, Eberhard-Str. 10 (PI. E, 5); Elsdsser
Taverne, Essliuger Str. 31i/o (PI. F, 4, 5^ ; Koppenlwfer, BiicLsen-Str. 21

(PL D, E, 3, 4); Bauhiitte, BUchsen-Str. 53, corner of Schlos.s-Str. (P1.D,3,
;

Michoud, Linden-Str. 5 (PI. D, E, 3, 4; Pilsen beer). — Automatic Festan-
rants: Rotebiihl-Str. la, corner of Marien-Str. (PL D. E, 5); at the Bahu-
hof-Hotel (see above;.

Caf^s-Restaurants. Konigin-Olga-Bau (PI. F, 3; p. 5), with con-
fectionery and ladies' room; Eonigs-Bau (PI. E, 3 ;

p. 5); Friedrichs-
£aM(Pl. "E, 3; 1st floor); ir«7/ie?ms-i?a» i>ee above ; 1st floor); Eberhard-
Bau (see above); MurscTiel, corner of Konig-Str. and Post-Str. (PI. D,
E, 4); Eesidenz-Cafe, Friedrich-Str. 62 (PL E, 4; 1st floor): Reiusburg,
Paulinen-Str. 38 (PL D, 5, 6).

^Wine Rooms. Rathaus-Keller, at the Rathaus (p. 6). D. (12-2.30)

1 .fC 60 pf.-3 .#, good; GilUtzer, Kleine Konig-Str. 7 (PL D, E, 5); Znr
Oberen Stube, Esslinger Str. 10, corner of Wagner-Str. (PI. F, 5), S. 1-

I1/.2 c#; Ztir Schule, Schul-Str. 11 (PL E, 4; 1st floor); /i7??gr. Rotebiihl-
Str. If (PL D, 5: 1st floor).

Beer Gardens. In the city: Hot. Royal, Ti.lJt 60 pf.-2 ^, Dier-
lamm, Textor, Frank, Raiih, see above; Liederhalle-Garten (p.l3), adm.
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Practical Note;^. STUTTGART. l- Route. 3

free except on Tnes. evening, D. 1 cS-1 ^S 80 pf. ; Dinkelacker (PI. D, 6),

Tiibinger Str. 46; Englischer Garten, Lndwigsburger Str. 16 (beyond
PI. G, 1). — On the heights aronnd the citv (often with cafes). To the

E., UMands-Bohe (p. 14); Siinder. Diemershalden-Str. 35 (PI. H, 4). To
the S., Kurhaus Schiller-Eiche, on the tSohiller-Hohe (p. 14). To the W.:
Waldhaus, Jdgerhaiis, Buchenhof, on the Hasenberg (p. 17); Doggen-
burg (p. 14). To the N., Weissenhof (p. 13).

Cabs. Taximeter Cabs: 60 pf. for 800 metres (V2 M.). 10 pf. for

each 400m. more; from 6 to 7 a.m. (7-8 in winter ami from 8 or 9 p.m.
till midnight, 60 pf. for 600m., 10 pf. for each .SOOni. more; after mid-
night, 60 pf. for 400m., 10 pf. for each 200m. more; beyond the city

limits, same rate as for the evening.
Motor Cabs: for 1-2 pers. within the city limits, 80 pf. for 600ni..

10 pf. for each 300m. more: for .'3-4 pers. within, or for 1-2 pers. beyond,
the city limits 80 pf. for 500m., 10 pf. for each 2.o0m.more; for 3-4 pers.

hy day beyond the city limits, or for 1-4 pers. at night, 80 pf. for 100m.,
lOpf.for each 200m. more.

Ordinary Cabs. For drives in the town np to 10 min., 1-2 pers. 60,

3-4 pers. 80 pf.; lO-l.'i min., 80 pf. and 1 JC; 15-20 min., 1 ^,4 and 1 ^S

20 pf., 20-30 min., 1 ^^ 20 and 1 c« 60 pf. ; each 10 min. more, 30 and 40 pf.

Circclar Drives. A brake leaves the Konigs-Bau (PI. E, 3) daily

in summer at 9 a.m. (21/2 hrs.; fare 'S ^M^. Tickets at the hotels, on the

brake, ami at Wildt's (see below).

Tram-ways (fare 10-20 pf
.

; more to the suburbs . Lines 1, 2, 3, 5.

6, 8, 10, 15, 16 pass the Schloss-Platz (PI. E, F. 3, 4). — 1 (yellow .

From Cannstatt (Schmidencr Str.) via Cannstatt Station, Neckar-Str.,
Schloss-Platz, Konig-Str., and Tiibinger Str. to the Schntzenhatis (bevond
PI. A, B. 7). — 2 (blue'. From the BisrnarcK-Eiche via the West-Bahnhof
(beyond PI. A, 6\ Alter Post-Platz. Scliloss-Platz, Hanpt-Bahnhof, and
Central-Friedhof to the Xord-Bahvhof [heyomX PI. F. 1). — 3 red: Rnnd-
Bahnl. From the Schlo.s.<-Flat:: PL E, F, 3, 4) via the Planie. Olga-Str.,

Filder-Str. (PL D. 7 ; Zahnrad-Bahnhuf, see p. 16\ Silberbnrg-Str., Schloss-

Str., and Haupt-Balinhof to the Schtoss-Platz. — 4 (green'. From Gaia-
btirg (beyond PI. H. li via Ostheim, Xeckar-Slr.. Charlotten-Platz. St.Leou-
hards-Platz, Alter Post-Platz, and Seiden-Str. to the HoTderUn-Platz ^F\.

A, 2). — 5 (violet^. From the West-Bahnhof (bevond PI. A, 4) via the

Herder-Str., Moltke-Str. (PL A, i), Haupt-Bahnhof, Schloss-Platz, Char-
lotten-Platz, and Alexander-Str. to the Buhenbad (PL H, 5\ — 6 .white;

Ring-Linie). From the Schicl'ard-Str. (PL B, 7) via the Schwab-Str., Rosen-
berg-Str. (PL A-C, S). Hegel-Platz (PL D, 2. :i\ Haupt-Bahnhof, Schloss-

Platz, Charlotten-Platz, and Hohenheimer Str. to Bopser yV\. F, 6). —
7 (brown). From Bopser (PI. F. 6) via the Wilhelm-Str., Kouig-Str., Lieder-

halle. Hegel-Platz, and Lenzlialde to tlie Doggenburg (PL A, 2; p. 14). —
8 (blacki. From Gablenberg via Ostheim (beyond PL H, 2), Kerner-Plalz.

and Neckar-Str. to the SchJoss-Flatz. — 10 \,white and blue\ From the

Marieyi-Flat'j (PL C, 7) via the Schloss-Platz to the Belfferich-Str. (PI.

B, 1). — 12 (White and greeu^. From Cannntatt Station to Fi nerbach

(p. 22'. -- 13 white and violet . From ( 'a iDista ft Station to Ziiff'eiihaKsen

(p. 22'. — 14 I white and blark). From the Konig-Karls-B/fah'c via tlie

AVilhelma- Theater to Jliinster a. X. — 15 (white and brown\ From
Zuffenhausen (p. 22) via the Nord-Bahnhof (beyond PL F, 1\ Schloss-

Platz, Neckar-Str., Ostheim, Oaisbnrg, and Wangen to Unterti'.rK-keiin

(beyond PL H, 1 : p. 41). — 16 (yellow and blue). From Fetierbach via

the Nord-Bahnhof (beyond PL F, 1), Schloss-Platz, Neckar-Str.. and
Wangen to Iledelflngen (beyond PL H, 1).

From the Bopser-Brunnen (PL F, 6) to Degerloch (p. 16) in '/^ hr.

(25 pf.; return-ticket, available by the mountain-railway also, 30 pf.).

Post & Telegraph Office (Haupt-Fostamt: PL E, 3), Fiirsten-Str. 2.

Inquiry Office of tlie -Verein fiir Frcmden-Yerkehr' at H. Wihit'n
bookshop. Konig-Str. 38. Grosser Bazar (PI. E, 4\

1*
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Theatres. Court Theatres (Grosses and Kleines Hans, p. 9; Pl.F, 3),

closed in July and August; box-office open 10.30-1.30, Sun. 11-1.80; tickets

also at Wildt's (p. 3). — Stitttgarter Schau^pielhans (PI. D, 5), Kleine
Konig-Str. 7-9. for dramas: Boi/al Wilhelma Theatre (p. 16); Besidenz-
Theater (PI. D. 7 ., Heusteig-.Str. 105. — Friedrichs-Bau Theatre (PL E, 3),

Friedrich-8tr. 32, mostly with variety performances.

Concerts. In the Stadt-Garteii (p. 12), daily in summer and Wed.
and Sun. in winter (adm. 50, Thurs. 20 pf

.
; when no concert adm. 20 pf.,

free on Sun. morning; D. 1 ^* 60-2 J(. 50 pf.); Liederhalle- Garten (p. 13);
Wilhelma-Theater-Garten (p. 16) ; Berg Mineral Baths (p. 15), every after-

noon in summer; Leuze's Mineral Baths (p. 15'), at 7 a.m. in summer;
Kursaal at Cannstatt (p. 16).

Baths. Stiittgarter Schicimm-Bad (PI. C, D. 3; p. 13), BiJchsen-
Str. 53V2. "^^'ith two swimming-basins. Turkish baths, etc.; Charlotten-
Bad (PI. a. 4), Charlotten-Str. 15: Johannes-Bad (PLC, 5), Rotebiihl-
Str. 55. — Berg Mineral Baths and Leuze's Mineral Baths, see p. 15. —
River Baths at Berg (p. 15;, Cannstatt (p. 16), and Untertiirkheim (p. 41).

British Minister Resident, Sir Vincent C'orhett (p. 242).— British
Consul, J. H. Harriss Gastrell (vice-consul. E. Schleicher''. Kriegsberg-
Str. 15 (PL D, E, 3, 2: office-hour 11-12). — American Consul, Edicard
Biggins, Goethe-Str. 1 (PL E. 2; 9-12 and 1.30-3 .

English Church (PL F. 5; p. 7). Olga-Str. ; services at 8, 10.30, and
5.30: chaplain. Hiv. Cecil E. ]Veston, Stitzenburg-Str. 19b (PL F, G, 6, .V.

Chief Sights. Antiquities. Collection of (p. 8). open free on week-
days, except Mon.. 11-1 and 2-1 (Nov.-March 2-3); Sun. 11-1(3).

Kunst-GebdHdc (p. 5), open dailj- 9-6; adm. 1. Thur.s. 2 Jl.

Lapklarium (p. 8), open free on Sun., 11-1 : at other times on application
to the keeper of the Collectiun of Anticjuities.

Linden Museum (p. 12), open on week-days 10-12.30 and 2-4, Sun. 11-1

and 2-4; adm. free on Sun., Wed., and Sat.. 20 pf. on Mon., Tues., and
Fri.. 50 pf. on Thurs.
Museum of Art (p. 9), open free on Sun. 11-4; the paintings and engrav-

ings also on week-days, except Mon., 10.30-12.30 and 2-4; the sculptures
uu Wed. and Sat., 10.30 12. .30 and 2-4; adm. at other times on application
to the keeper (1 pers. 1/2; 2-3 pers. 1, 4-6 pers. l'/.^,, more than 6 pers. 2 JC).

National Industrial Museum (p. 13), open free on week-days 10-12.30

and 2-5 (Nov.-March 2-4), Sun. 11-3. — Library, week-days 10-12 and 2-6

(Sat. 2-5), San. 11-1, Fri. (and Tues. in winter) 8-10 p.m.
Natural History Collection (p. 7), open free on week-days 11-12.30 and

2-4, Sun. 11-4 (jSTov.-March 11-3), holidays 11-1 aud 2-4(3); closed on Tues.
Royal Library (p. 7), week-days 11-12 and, except Sat., 3-4 (20 pf.);

reading-room, week-days 9-12, also 2-8 on Mon. and Thurs. and 2-6 on
Tues., Wed., and Fri.

Royal Palace (p. 5), week-days 9-0, Sun. and holidays 11-6, by tickets
(50 pf., Sun. 25 pf.) obtained from the keeper at the entrance opposite
the Old Palace.

r> * r .-,) These are shown in summer (April 15th-0ct. 15th) daily
K03emtein{p.\.>)l g.jg (Sun. and holidays 11-12) and 2-0. Tickets (20 pf.')

Wilhelma (n 15) \ at Wildfs (p. 3) and" at the entrances: also from 8 to
^''

^] 9 a.m. at the 'Stabs-Kanzlei' of the Old Palace (p. 6).

Villa hei Berg (p. 15), open daily from April 15th to Oct. 15th 9-12 and
2-6, Sun. 11-12 and 2-6; tickets (25 pf.) from the custodian.

When Time is Limited (two days). 1st Day: morning, Schloss-Platz
(p. 5), Stifts-Kirche (p. 6), Industrial Museum (p. 13), Linden Museum
(p. 12); afternoon, Konigliche Anlagen (p. 11), Rosenstein (p. 15), Wil-
helma (p. 15). — 2ud Day : morning. Museum of Art (p. 9), Natural History
Collection (p. 7) ; afternoon, Hasenberg (p. 17) ; mountain-railway to Deger-
loch (p. 16). — Spare time may be devoted to the XJhlands-Hohe (p. 14)

and the Villa bei Berg (p. 15). — Excursions to Schloss Hohcnheim and
tlie Solitude (pp. 17, 18). Ludu-igsburg (p. 21), and Marbach (p. 20).
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Stuttgart (820 ft. at the railway station), the capital of Wur-

temberg and head-quarters of the 13th army-corps, with 300,000

inhab. (91,600 in 1871), mainly Protestants, and including a gar-

rison of 4700 men, is beautifully situated in a wide valley, with

its suburbs extending bvyund the Xeckar, surrounded by vine-clad

and wooded hills. Its industries (chemicals, furniture, cardboard,

pianos, and beer) arc chietiy carried on in the suburbs of Cannstatt

ip. 16) and Untertiirkheim (p. 41). Its book-trade is important also.

The name of Stuttgart first occurs in a document of 1229; from 1265

it was the favourite residence of the Counts of Wurtembcrg; and it

became the capital of the country in 1482 under Count Eherhard im
Bart (1159-96), wlio was created Diike of Wurtemberg in 1495. Its deve-

lopment was rapid under Duke Christopher (1550-68), who introduced the

Reformation and founded the civil code of tiie country, but it suffered

severely from tlie Thirty Years' War, the invasions of Louis XIV., and
tlic removal of the royiil residence to Ludwigsburg (p. 21). Its present

importance dates only from the 19th century.

From theHaupt-Bahnhof we proceed to the left along the Schloss-

Str. to the *Schloss-Platz (PL E, F, 3, 4: baud daily. 12-1), which

is adorned with flower-beds and enclosed by stately buildings. On
the X.W. side is the chief station of the tramways (p. 3j. In the

centre of the square rises a Jvhilee Column, 100 ft. high, erected

ill 1841 in honour of the twenty -five years' reign of William I.,

and crowned with a l)r()nze figure of Concord, 13 ft. high. To the

N.W. of the column stands the monument of Dake Christopher

(see above), by Paul Miiller (1889). At the S.W. corner of the

square is a marble bust of Daanecher (1758-1841 ; PI. D), the sculp-

tor, by Curfess (1888).

On the W. side of the Schloss-Platz stands the Ko/tigs-Bau (PL

E, 3), erected by Leins in a classical style in 1857-60 (cafe, see p. 2).

Adjoining it on the S. is the Kronprinzea-Palais (1846-9). — On
the N. side of the square is the Kd)ii[/in-Olga-Bau, erected in 1893-5

(cafe -restaurant, see p. 2). Adjacent is the Kunst- Gebaude
(Tl. F, 3; adni., see p. 4), erected by Th. Fischer in 1913 on the site

of the old Court Theatre, which was burned down in 1902. It con-

tains an exhibition and festival hall, the club-rooms of the IStutt-

garter Kiinstlerbund , and a restaurant; above the twelve -sided

dome is a gilded stag by L. Habich. Behind are the Boyal Stables

(Konigl. Marstall; PL F, 3i and the Theater-Platz ip. 11).

The "Royal Palace Iiesidenz-Schloss: PL F, 3, 4; comp.

p. 7), on the E. side of the square, built in the baroque style in

1746-1807 by Retti, I)e la Guepiere, and Thouret, is tiie most im-

portant secular building erected in Wurtemberg during the 18th

century. It consists of a central block and two wings grouped round

a court of honour; the central block, used only for court functions,

is surmounted by a gilded crown. The hall, the staircase, and the

marble, blue, white, and dining rooms are best Avorth seeing (adm.,

sec p. 4; entrance in the SAV. wing; length of visit 1 hr.).
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The ground and first floors contain large frescoes by Gegenbaur,

executed in 1837-41, chiefly from the history of Count Eberhard im Bart

(p. 5). Numerous pictures aud tapestries (17th cent.)- Also sculptures by
Z)on»ecA:er (Bacchus, Yenus). Ponipeian antiquities, 505 majolica vases of

the 16th cent, (from Faenza and Urbino), etc.

The Old Palace (Al/es ^Schloss : PI. E, F, 4), erected by

A. Tretscli under Duke Cliristoplier in 1553-78, forms au irreguljir

quadrangle, with round towers at three corners. The *Courtyard

(p. xxviiii, surrounded on three sides by triple arcades, contains

a bronze equestrian statue of Count Eberhard im Bart (p. 5), by

Hofer (1859). The Porcelain and Silrer Room, on the E. side of

the court, contains china from Ludwigsburg, Meissen, and Sevres

(presented by Xapoleon I.). In the S.W. corner of the court is the

entrance to the Chapel (adm. Sim., Tues., and Fri. 11-12; 25 pf.),

the vault of Avhich contains royal sarcophagi.

To the E. of the Old Palace is the monument of Emperor
William L, by Rhmann (1898), with an equestrian statue in gilded

bronze. To the ^Y. are the old Kanzlei, now a chemist's shop, with

an elegant corner-tower, and the Prinzen-Baa (PL E, 4\ Behind, in

the Alter Schloss-Platz, rises a bronze statue of Schiller (PI. E, 4),

bv Thorvaldsen (1839). Behind the Old Palace is a bust of the poet

Karl Gerol- (PL G; 1815-90), by Donndorf (1898).

From the Schloss-Platz we proceed S.W. along the Koxig-

Steasse (PL E, 4), the chief business-street. In the Stift-Str., the

first turning on the left, is the old Fapp) House (So. 7), with a

memorial tablet to Goethe and Schiller. Opposite is the Municipal

Savings Banl- (1912 .

The Protestant ^Stifts-Kirche (P1.E,4), with its two towers,

founded in the 12th cent., was rebuilt in the late-Gothic style in

1436-95. The early-Gothic choir dates from 1327-47. Reliefs on

the S. portal (1494) of Christ bearing the Cross and the Apostles.

Interior ("bell at the S. portal; verger. Stift-Str. 7; gratuity). Stained

glass of 1848-51. from drawings by Neher. By the left wall of the choir,

eleven stone figures of Counts of Wurtemberg. dating from 1574. The
chapel to the left of the choir (Url)an-Kapelle) contains the painted stone

monument of Count Wolfgang von Hohenlohe (d. 1575) and sculptures from
the old rood-screen (late 15th cent.). Adjacent, by the stairs to the left

gallery, is an old votive relief in stone, representing Christ (above)

and the Wise and Foolish Virgins (below). By the stairs to the right

gallery is the fine tomb of Dr. Yergenhans (d. 1513). Gothic pulpit in

stone,' of the early 16th cent., with reliefs of the Evangelists, disfigured

by bronzing.

To the S. is the Kirch-Str., leading to the Markt-Platz (PL E, 4),

the centre of old Stuttgart, with old-fashioned houses (Xo. 4 an in-

teresting frame-house) and the Rathatis, completed in a modernized

Gothic stvle in 1905 (open on week-days, except Thurs., 1-3, Sun.

and holidays 11-1, fee 20 pf.; Rathaus-Keller, see p. 2). — A little

to the S., in the Geiss-Str. (Tl. E, 5), is the pretty Havs im

Gluck'Brunnen, by Zeitler (1909).
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Frojii tbe Markt-Platz the Markt-Strassc leads S.E. to the St.

Leonhards-Platz, with the late-Gothic church of St. Leonhard
(PI. F, 5; 1470-74). The WCichter-Brunnen, close by, is by Fremd
(1900). To the S. of the chiircb is the Gustav-Siegle-Hans (PI. F, 5),

built by Th. Fischer in 1912, an institution for popular education,

with a lecture-room. To the E., in tbe Olga-Str., i.s the English
Church (St. Catherine's; PL F, 5), built by Wagner in 1865 in tb<'

Englisli Gothic style (services, see p. 4). The Wilhelms-Platz
(PI. E, 5), not far to the S.E., contains an iron fountain of 1714.

From tbe St. Leonbard-Kirche the Esslinger-Str. leads N. to tbe

Charlotten-Platz. Here begins tbe Xeckar-Strasse, through which
runs tbe tramway to Berg and Cannstatt (p. 15). On the right is

tbe Wilhelms-Palast (PI. F, 4), tbe residence of King William II.

Opposite, at tbe corner of the Planie, are marble busts of Bismarck
and Moltke, by Donndorf (1889).

No. 4, Xcckar-Str., adjoining tbe palace, is tbe State Archives
(PL F, G, 4), with a fine facade. On the middle and upper floors and

in the N. wing of this building is tbe valuable ^Natural History
Collection iKonigliche Naturalien- Sammliing : adm., see p. 4;.

On tlic GruocxD Floor is the Geognostic Collection of Wurtemherg
(guide of 1910, 60 pf.). At the foot of the staircase, extinct deer and
slabs with ichthyosauri. Cabinet on the left of the entrance, Jurassic
saurians and Wurtemherg' minerals. Main gallery : right of the entrance,
plesiosauri, incl. the Thaumatosaurus victor; left of the entrance, a skull
of an ichthyosaurus. The desk-cases contain fossils from the Triassic
and Jurassic periods of Swabia. Also saurians from the Keuper stratum,
incl. labyrinthodoutes (frog-saurians), phytosauri (resembling crocodiles),
twenty-four actosauri (armour-plated lizards), a complete dinosaurus
(plateosaurus), and the oldest known remains of tortoise-shell. From the
diluvial stratum of Steinheim an der Murr (p. 21\ skulls of the bison and
aurochs and the skeleton of a mammoth, 13 ft. liigli. In the elevated part of
the gallery, tertiary fauna from Steinheim im Aalbuch and tusks of diluvial

elephants; to tlie left, on case XXXI, a skeleton of a cave-bear; on the
right wall, slabs with Jurassic pentacrinites. — The Fikst Floor contains
the general Zoological Collection ('guide of 1900, 50 pf.). In the wing to

the right are mammalia ; in the hall to the left are birds (Elliot collection
of Himalayan pheasants), fishes, reptiles, corals, and insects. — The
Secokd Floor, in the wing to the right, contains the Palceoiitologicdl
Collection. Behind are the Zoological unA Botanical Collections of Wurtem-
herg (admirably arranged). The hall on the left is devoted to the general
Mineralogical and Geognostic Collections, an Osteological Collection, and
the general Botanical Collection.

The large building opposite, Avith four wings and three courtyards,

is the so-called Akademie (PI. F, 4), the seat in 1775-94 of the

Karls-Scbule founded by Duke Charles at the Solitude (p. 18 1,

where Schiller received bis education as a student of medicine, and
where he wrote bis 'Robbers' in 1777-8. Tbe old dining-ball, with

ceiling-paintings by Guibal, Hcideloff, and Hetsch, contains the

king's private library. On tbe ground-floor are guard-rooms.
Tbe Royal Library {Kd)iiglichc Landes-Bibliothel- : PL F,

G, 4), Neckar-Str. S, a Renaissance building by Laudauer (1885),
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contains 591,000 vols., 5300 MSS., 8000 Bibles in more than 100

different languages, and 4600 specimens of early printing (adm.,

see p. 4).

The ground-floor of this building is occupied by the *Collection
of Wurtemberg Antiquities (adm., see p. 4; illus. guide of

1908, 1 JC 20 pf.).

West WisG. to the right of the entrance-hall, which contains costumed
figures from the Army Museum. Room A, with Antiquities (cabinets
I-VIII). Cabinet I (left;: Earlier and later stone period; objects from
lake-dwellings. Cabinet II (right; : Bronze and Hallstatt periods : objects
from tumuli on the Swabian Alb. Cabinet III (right): Hallstatt period.
In wall-oases 12 and 13 and in window-case 14 are prehistoric objects
of special interest from the royal tombs at Hundersingcn on the Danube,
Kleinaspergle , and Belle-Remise (near Ludwigsburg; oa. 700-500 B.C.),
some imported from Greece. Cabinet 1\ left): Roman period: window-
case 26, a helmet and bronzes. Cabinet V (right) : La Tcne and Merovingian
periods; ornaments. Cabinet Yl (left; : Alemannian and Frankish period :

ornaments and vessels; in case 32 (left), a helmet from Giiltlingen; to the
right and left of case 30, coffins from Oberflacht. Cabinet VII (right):

Roman objects found atCannstatt; Greek antiquities, antique glass; terra-

cotta figures. Cabinet YIII (right) : Objects from Alexandria ; small marble
head of Alexander the Great (left of the window); small caricature-heads :

elaborate Coptic embroidery; gold ornaments (desk-case J;. Cabinet IX
(left) : Ironwork, etched caskets, locks, weapons. Cabinet X (left) : Weapons
and armour.

Room B contains {ha Ducal Cabinet of Art, specially rich in vessels
of the Renaissance. In case 43 is a painted pack of cards (Upper Rhine;
ca. 1410). Cabinets XI (right) and XII (left) contain Renaissance furniture,
the latter also portraits of the Dukes of Wurtemberg.

East Wikg, to the left of the entrance-hall. Room C, Industrial
Art. Down the centre of the room, cases with uniforms. Cabinet I (left):

Stoves, stove-tiles, and Rhenish stoneware. Cabinet II (right): German
and Italian majolica; German faience. Cabinet III (left): Ludwigsburg
porcelain. Cabinet IV fright j : Rococo room. Cabinet V (leftl: Porcelain
and glass. Cabinet VI iright) : Guild and household utensils i^lTth cent.).

Cabinet VII (left) : Musical and mathematical instruments ; ingenious clock
by Hahn (1767). Cabinet VIII fright) : Gothic furniture. Cabinet IX
(left): Costumes, snuff-buxes, and ornaments. Ca"binet X (right): Objects
in copper, brass, and pewter: fans.

Room D, with Cabinets XI and XII: Ecclesiastical Art: altar from
Herrenberg, by Jerg Ratgeb (1519).

The garden contains a oross-section of the Hallstatt tumulus found
near Jagstfeld and Roman stone monuments.

In the basement is the Lapidarium, a collection of Roman
stone monuments (adm., see p. 4; catalogue of 1902, 20 pf.). — In

the Garden Saloon are the mediceval and modern stone monu-
ments (open on Sun. in summer, 11-1). — The conservator's office

contains the Royal Cabinet of Coins (ca. 30,000).

Behind the library, in the Urban-Str., are the extensive Law
Courts (Justiz-Gebmide; PL &, 4), built by Landauer in 1880,

with a fine vestibule and jury court.

Farther down the Neckar-Str., on the left, at the corner of the

Schlossgarten-Str., are the handsome Court Theatres {Koniy-

liche Hof-Theater : PL F, a, 3; p. 4j, built in 1909-12 by Max
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Littiiiann. On the S. is the 'Grrosses Hans', with 1400 seats, for

grand opera and drama; on thcN". the 'Kleines Haus', with 800 seats,

for Mozart's operas and comedies. Opposite the latter is a statue

of Schiller, by Donndorf ("lOlS). The main faf;ade of the Grosses

Haus faces the Theater -Platz, the S. end of the Konigliche An-

lagen ('p. 11). Around the pond are marble statues, mostly copies

from the antique; on the side nearest tlie palace is a fine group of

Nymphs (PI. F, 3) by Danneckcr.

Leaving the Theater-Platz on the N., we return through the

Schiller-Str. to the Neckar-Str., Xo. 32 in which is the Museum
of Art (Muse urn der Bildenden Kilude : PI. G, 3; adm., see p. 4i,

with picture and sculpture galleries and a collection of engravings.

In the courtyard rises an equestrian statue of King William I.

[d. 18641, by Hofer (1884).

On the ground-floor are Casts (catalogue of 1909, 50 pf.), the left

wing containing copies of ancient, the right Aving copies of modern works.
Room IX, adjoining the entranoe-hall (VII) on the left, contains, by the

right entrance-wall, Danneckcr' s *Bust of Schiller in marble (1810; hair

mutilated by the artist in a fit of mental aberration; Xo. 1).

The upper floor contains the Picture Gallery, with oyer 900 paintings
(catalogue of 1907, I'/o J^).

We first visit the Xorth Wing, containing the Works by Oi.d Masters.
Room A (farthest to the left). Paintings by German masters of

the 15th-lt)th cent, (many freely restored), mainly belonging to the older
Swabian School. Totheleft.il. H. Midtscher, Eatomhrneiit: Qd. Bartli.

Zeitblom, Altar-piece from Hcerbcrg (1497-8); 20-23. Martin Schaffner.
Four wings of an altar-piece from the Church of the Teutonic Order at Ulm :

18a-52. B. Zeitblom (^), Altar-piece from Kilchberg.
Room B (continuing Room A). To the right, 24. 31. Schaffner, Anwyl

Epitaph (six worshippers): above, 3. H. Baldung Grien, Baron von
Morsperg (1525). — 28. Schaiifelein, Susanna and the Elders (fi-ame by B.
Pankok). — 25. M. Schaffner , L. von Freyberg and his wife (frame by
B. Pankok); lb, 2. Amberger, Portraits.

Room C. German and jSTetlierlandish paintings of the 16th century.
To the right, Jacob Cornelisz con Oostrjaan, Winged altar-piece; 111.

Memling (f), Bathsheba. — 5. Lticas Cranach the Elder, Judith.
Room D. German works of the 17th-18th centuries. To the right,

o39. Ang. Kauffviann, Baroness von Bauer.
Room E. Dutch Avorks of the 17t!i century. To the right, 257, 258.

C. Xetscker, Portraits; 250. A. Molenacr, Landscape.
Room F (continuing Room E). To the right, 205. Brekelenkam, Her-

mit praying; 159. Fr. Poiirbus the Younger, Portrait of a man; above,
-08. B. Ciit/p, Bivouac; Pieter Codde, The fugitive.

Room G. Netherlandish School of the 17th century.
Room H (entrance-room), continuing Room G. To the right, 265. Eem-

brandt, St. Paul in prison, an early work (1627): 219. X. Moienaer, Village
festival. — 219. Wybrandt de Gee^t, Family portrait: M. d'Honde-
coeter, 229. Poultry-yard, 230. Poultry. — 217. Everdingen . Mountain
landscape. — Above, 210. J. rau c?c/' J>oes, Large animal-piece; 153. Jor-
daens, Bacchus and C'cros.

Room J. English, French, Spanisli, and Hungarian works. To the
right, 415. English School, George III. and his court on the terrace at

Windsor. To the left, 410a. Beynolds. Portrait of Dr. Leland : Gains-
borough, 395. Queen Charlotte, wife of George III. (ca. 1780), 396. Prince
Octavius of England; above, 409a. Baeburn, Portrait of a man.
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Room K. Italian Masters of the 16th-18th centuries. Section II: 503.

After Leonardo da Vinci, Mona Lisa (an old copy) ; 529. P. Bellotti, Gipsy
woman.

Room L. Venetian School of the 16th-18th centuries. To the right.

Tiepolo, 587. Marriage of Barbarossa (sketch for the ceiling-painting at

Wiirzburg. p. 119), 586. Finding of Moses. — 445. P. Bordonc, Portrait of

a woman.
Room M. A^enetian Masters of the 14tli-16th centuries. To the right,

525. Lor. Lotto (f). Crucifixion. Opposite the entrance, 451. C'arpaccio,
Thomas of Aquinas, the A'irgin, and two saints. On the left wall, 430.

Giov. Bellini, Pieta : above, 452. C'arpaccio, Stoning of St. Stephen.
Room N contains the Bequest of Quees Olga, consisting of water-

colour copies of old masters and also a few original works: 703. BScTcliii,

A'illa by the sea (1877); to the right. 895. Spitzweg, Alchemist; above,
828. Gabriel Max, Study of a head.

Room (reserved for exhibitions and usuallv closed). Marble bust of
King William I.,

by Th . von Wag-
ner: busts in

plaster of King
William 11. and
Queen Charlotte,
by E. Curfess:
portraits of King
William II., by
Huthsteiuerf^o.
777). and King
Charles, hy Zorn
(Xo. 937). The
other pictures
sre copies of Ita-

lian masters.
We return to

Room H and tra-

verse the corri-

dor Z), leaving on
the right the en-
trance to the En-
gravings (p. 11).

The Suuth Wing contains the Modern Palntixos.
Room P (last on the right). Works by WdcMer, Schick (875. Dan-

necker). Neher, Bentele, and Leyhold. of Stuttgart ; S2^^ Makart, Cleopatra.
Room Q,. 713. A. Bruckmann. Justinus Kerner: 839. A. F. Oelcn-

hainz. The poet Schubart ri789).

Room R. 890 b. M. von Schivind. Father Rhine (sketch).
Room T (entrance-room). To the right. 790. P. W. Keller-ReiitUngen,

Augelus; above. 87(5. G. Schick, Dannecker's first wife: 734. Faber du
Faur, Battle of Champigny.

Room U. Opposite the entrance, 793a. L. Knaus, Hessian peasant-
girl; 893. K. Spitzweg, Mountain landscape; 685. I. Zuloaga, Woman
selling tea in the Pyrenees : 738. A. Feuerhach, Portrait of a man ; 806.

W. Leibl, Head of a peasant. — 869a. Samberger, Portrait of himself;
910. F. von Uhde. Last Supper.

Room \. To the right, 725a. /.. Dill. The bridge; 909b. W. Triibner,
Laden troop-horse; 799. C. Landenberger. Farewell. ^— ^. Schuch, 888a.

Still-life. SSSb. Peonies.
Room W. To the right, 722. Fr. Defregger, Wounded sportsman

;

686. A. Achenhach,'D\x\.ch landscape; 725. L. Dill, Venetian canal; 647.

Fr. Courtens. Fishing -boats at dawn. — A. Feuerbach, 738a. 'Nanna',
738b. Water-carrier: 904. Fr. Stuck, Portrait of himself. — 906. H. Thoma,
Upper Rhenish landscape.
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Room X. To the right, 808a. Fr. Lcnbach. Bockliu (1874). — 938.

H. Zilgel, Cows; 910a. F. von Uhde, Jo.seph and Mary; 796b. G. Kuehl.
Interior of the Joliannes-Kirche at Munich. — 830a. A. Menzd. Masked
supper (water-colour); 903a. Fr. Stuck, Crucifixion; Tola. G. von Boch-
mann. Market-day in Esthonia ; 763a. 7?. von Ilauii, Mounted infantry.

Room Y. To the right. 891a. M. Slevogt. Drinking song from 'Don
Juan' (the singer D'Andrade). — 818. H. Pleiier. Moonlight; 930. H. ZiigeJ

.

Autumn. — 909a. W. Triihner, Old woman; 737. A. Feuerhoch. Iphigenia
'1862); 788. L. von Kalckreuth, Gleaner; 805. W. Leibl , Kitchen at

Kutterling. — 752a. C. Grethe, Entering port. — 839c. B. PanTcok, Por-
trait of a woman; Si:3a. J/. Licbcrinann, Almshouse.

The Collection of Engravings (KKj^ferstich-Sammlicng : adm.,
see p. 4). also on the upper floor, contains over 300.000 examples; A.
Dilrer and the Wurtembergers J. G. MiUler (1747-1830) and Fr. Mnller
(1782-1816) are well represented.

To the N. of the museum stands a bronze statue of Prince
Hei'mann of Saxe-Weimar (1825-1901), by K. Donndorf the

Younger (1904). A footpath ascends thence to the left to the Urban-
Platz (PI. Gr, 3), with a statue oi St. Urhan^ the patron-saint of

^vine-gro^yers, by Fremd (1904). In the Urbau-Str., to the S. of the

museum, is the Royal Academy of Art (Akademie der Bildenden

Kllnste; PI. Gr, 3; comi>. p. 13). From the Moser-Str., to the S. of

the Urban-Platz, a flight of steps ascends to the Eugens-Platz (PI.

G, H, 4; 995 ft. \ Avhich is adorned with a fountain (Galatea) by
Rieth and affords a fine view of the town. Below is a bronze bust

of Duke Eugene of Wiirtemberg (d. 1877), by Pelargus. Uhlands-

Hohe. see p. 14.

About 8 min.'s walk beyond the museum the Xeckar-Str. expands
into the Xeckar-Tor (PI. H, 2), an open space embellished with a

water-nymph by Danuecker. To the right, above, is the Romanesque
Friedens-Kirche (PI. H, 2), built by Dollinger in 1893. Farther

on, in the AVera-Str., is the Catholic Niliolaus - Kirche. built by
Pohlhammer in the early-Gothic style (1896).

On the W. side of the Xeckar-Str. are the *Konig'liche An-
lagen, laid out in the English style in 1808. These charming
gardens, with tlieir fine trees, lakes, and sculptures, are over 2 M.
in length, extending from the palace nearly to Cannstatt. The
gardens S. of the Schiller-Str. (PL F, G, 2, 3), are now known as

the Theater-Platz (comp. p. 5). The Schloss -Garten, between
the Schiller-Str. and the ^\'olfram-Str. rPl. G. H, 1), is closed at

sunset. In the round flower-bed of tho main avenue, n^ar the

Schiller-Str., is a marble group of Count Eberhard and the shep-

herd (from Uhland: PI. F, G, 2i, by Paul Mtiller (1881\ To the

right of it is the Roijal Orangery (PI. G, 2, 3\ Farther X.. to

the left, is the monument to King Charles and Queen Olga (PI.

G, 2), by Curfe.ss and Halmhuber (1895); to the right (PI. Cr. 2

are the remains of a Lusthaus. built by Beer in 1580-93 and pulled

down in 1846, and a marble bust of Franz Liszt, by Fremd (1903).

At the end of the avenue is the Abduction of Hylas (PI. G. 1), by
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Hofer (1850). A little farther on, beyond the Wolfram-Str.. are two

Horse Tamers (Vl. G, H. l^ also by Hofer (1848). Cannstatt(p. 16)

may be reached hence in 35 min. via the Konig-Karl-Brlicke. — From
the Horse Tamers an avenue of plane-trees leads N.E. to the ('25 min.)

main entrance of the Rosenstein (p. 15),

From the Schloss-Platz (p. 5) we now enter the X.W. quarter

of the city, and note the fine buildings of the Wilrttemberc/ische

Vereins-JBanlc and the Beichs-Banl-, both in the Friedrich-Str.

(Nos. 48 and 22; PI. E, 3). The Kriegsberg-Str. and Croethe-8tr.

(PI. E, 2) contain handsome buildings also.

The Technical Academy {Techiusche Hochsrhnle : PI. E, 3
;

800 students), to the E., in the Stadt-Garten, was erected in the

Italian Renaissance style by Egle in 1860-65, and enlarged in 1879
and 1900. On the upper story are ten allegorical statues; to the

left and right of these are two representations of Art and Science, by
Th. Bechler. The small garden on the ^. front contains busts of

the sestlieticist F. T. Vischer fp. 22), by Donndorf (1889), and of

the naturalist Robert Mayer (p. 28), by Kopp (1889).

The Stadt-Garten (PL D, E, 3; adm., see p. 4), entered from

the Schelling-Str., is a favourite pleasure-resort, Avith beautiful

gardens. — On the W., at the corner of the Kanzlei-Str. and Schel-

ling-Str., is the Baugeicerk-Schule 'School of Building; PI. D, 3),

by Egle (1870); to the S. are the Wurtemher(j Savinr/s Bank (PI.

D, 3), Kanzlei-Str. 25, built in 1900. and the Wilrttember(jischer
Kredit-Verein (1913).

In the Hegel-Platz, at the corner of the Kanzlei-Str., stands the

Gewerbe-Halle (PI. D, 3), an exhibition-hall containing samples

of exported products. On the X.E. side of the square is a monu-
ment to 11. von Barckhardf, director of the adjoining Katharinen-

Hospital (1911).

On the IST.W. side of the Hegel-Platz rises the Linden Museum
(PI. D, 2, 3; adm., seep. 4), named after its founder, and contain-

ing one of the largest ethnographical collections in Germany. Cen-

tral Africa and Oceania are especially well represented.
Grousd Floor. To the left of the entrance, Asia: Java (immetliately

to the left, a carved wall of a house), Malay archipelago, Japan and
Cliina (old silk costumes, porcelain), India, Assam, Turkestan, and Siberia.
America (pottery and textiles from Peru). Chinese Tibet. In the glass-

roofed court, a Japanese processional carriage, etc. — First Floor.
Oceania: Melanesia (dancers' masks from Xew Pomerania, alarm-drums,
boat inlaid with mother-of-pearl from the Solomon Islands), Australia. Poly-
nesia (woven mats), and Micronesia. — Secokd Floor. Africa: Egypt,
Abyssinia, Arabia, Morocco, Sudan, E. and W. Africa, and Madagas'car.

ISfear this, in the Hoppenlau-Str., is the Hoppenlau-Friedhof
(PI. C, D, 3), with the graves of the sculptor Dannecker (d. 1841)
and the authors Wilhelm Hauff (d. 1827) and Gustav Schwab (d.

1850). — In the Linden-Str. (PL D, 3) is the Crarrison Church, a
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brick edifice in the Romanesque style by DoUinger (1875-9j. — In

the Biichsen-Str., at the corner of the Militiir-Str., is the Lieder-
halle (PI. C, D, 3), the property of a clioral society. The hall was
built by Leins in 1875. The garden (restaurant and concerts, see

pp. 2, 4; contains a bronze bust of Uhland and marble busts of

(lustav Schwab and P"'ranz Schubert. Adjacent, at the corner of

lUichson-Str. and Schloss-Str., is \\\q Staffiiarter Schiriiiim -Bai/

fPl. (', T), 3; p. 4), erected in the Moorish style m 1888-9.

To the E., Kanzlei-Str. 19, is the *National Industrial
Museum (Landes-Gewerhemuseum ; PI. D, E, 3), erected by

Xeckelmann in a baroque style (1890- 96j. The main facade is in

the Kanzlei-Str. Adni., see p. 4; illus. guide of 1913, 50 pf.

(trouxd Floor. In the entrance-hall, to the right and left, industrial
art of E. Asia (Japanese l)ronzes, prints, vases, etc.); in the side-rooms
to the left, varying exliihitions. — Straight on is the Konig-Karl-Halle,
an exhibition -gallery adorned with a frieze by Ferd. Keller and bronze
groups by Hundrieser and Eberlein. — To the riglit and left of the
Konig-Karl-Halle is a collection illustrating changes of taste in the last

lialf-century. Behind the gallery, left to riglit, are safeguards for work-
people, hygienic and tire-saving appliances, machinery, etc.; liere also is

the entrance to the motor room (basement). We next pass through the
X. side-room, with machinery, to the iuteresting section devoted to ab-
errations of taste (faults of material, workmanship, or decoration). —
We return through the corridor to the left, then to the right across the
Ivonig-Karl-Halle, and ascend tlie staircase.

First Floor. In tlie right gallery, clocks. In the N". side-rooms,
musical instruments; to the left, textiles (woven and printed stuff's,

i-iubroidery, lace, garments) and national costumes; also engravings, book-
bindings, ceramics, glass, metal-work, bronzes, pewter, etc. In the S.

side-rooms, furniture, incl. a music -room designed by B. Pankok. In
the left gallery, silver and enamel work.

The museum contains also a collection of patterns (51,000 sheets),

filui-ational appliances, a library (80.000 vols.}, etc.

Opposite the museum is the hall of the Kunstgeiverhe -Verein

.

with varying exhibitions of industrial art (adm. free on week-days
9-12.30 'and 2-6, Sun. ll-l). — At the corner of the Calwer Str.

and Lindeu-Str. is the Standehaus (Diet House ; PI. E, 4), built in

1907-9, witii a large wall-painting by H. Pleuer (A^iew of the

Wiirttemberg, p, 41) in the council-room.

In the late -Gothic Hospital-Kirche (PI. I), 4), erected in^

1471-93 and restored in 1841, is a model of Dannecker's statue

of Christ (p. 209j. The cloisters, restored in 1895 (entr. Innere

Blichsen-Str. 37), contain the tomb of Reuchliii (p. 23).

The Central or Prag Fricdhof, to the X.W. of tlie city, beyond the

Postdorfle (PI. E, F, 1 :' cottages of postal employees, built by" ^Ntorlok)

and the Jj/lrger-Hospltal, contains a (lothic burial-chapel by Beyer and
a crematorium. About V4 hr. higher up. at the N.E. eud of the Feuer-
iiacher Hcide (p. 14), is the Weissrnhof (111.5 ft.), a garden -restaurant
with a pretty view. Close by is tlie new building of the Kunsft/eirerbt-
Schide (1913), and the Academy of Art (p. 11) is to be transferred to

an adjoining site. From Weissenhof to the Doggenburg (p. 14\ ^'4 hr. —
Above the Postdijrfle, 20 min. W., is the view-tower on the Kricgsberg
(PI. D, 1; IIGO ft.^. The tower inav be reached also from the Haupt-
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Bahubof in 35 miii. via the Schloss-Str., See-Str., aud Panorama-Str. ; or

we may take the tramway (No. 2, transferring to No. 10) to the beginning
of the Ohere Birkenwald-Str., whence we ascend to the left in a few min.

;

interestins ascent also from the Lenzhalde (PI. B, 1 ; tramway No. 7) via

the Ednard Pfeiffcr-Str. (PI. C. D, 1). with a fine view.

Beyond the Wilhelms-Bau (PI. I), 5; care -restaurant, see p. 2)

the K5nig-Str. (p. 6) i.s continned by the Marien-Strasse. This

street leads direct to the Silherhurg-Garten (PI. C, D, 6), belong-

ing to the ]Srnsenms-Gesellschaft, the leading club of Stuttgart

(tickets obtained, through a member, at Kauzlei-8tr. 11). In the

grounds below the garden, between the Morike-Str. and Silberburg-

Str., is a marble btist of the poet E. Morike (PI. D, 6; 1804-75),

by RQsch. Opposite, Silbcrburg-8tr. 191, is a Volls-Bihliothek

(Public Library). To the Karls-Hohe, see p. 17. — A little to the

E. of the Silberburg is the Catholic Marien-Kirche (PI. D, 6;,

with two towers, built in the early-Gothic style by Egle (1872-5).

The interior contains mural paintings of the Beuron school (p. 87).

The adjacent PauUnen-Brunnen is by Donndorf (1898). About
12 min. S. is the Markus-Kirche (PI. D, 7), built by Dolmetsch in

1 905-7 ; in the choir is a stone carving of the Crucifixion, by H. Lang.

At the corner of the Silberburg-Str. and Reinsburg-Str. rises

the Stutfgarfer Lehensversicheruncjfi-Bank (PI. C, 5, 6); to the W.,

in the Reinsburg-8tr,, is the Villa Siegle (PI. C, 6), by Gnauth (1872).

At the foot of the Hasenbergsteige (p. 1 7), 2 min. farther, is the pretty

Gansepeter-Brunnen (PI. B, 6;i, by Th. Bausch (1901). — In the

Gutenberg- Str., finely situated on the Feuer-See (PL C, 5), is the

Gothic Johannes-Kirche, built by Leins in 1866-76, with richly

decorated interior (verger, Feuersee-Platz 5b), — In the Bismarck-

Str. are the Olga Sanatorium (PL A, B, 4), the Romanesque
Elisabeth -Kirche (PL A, 5; 1901), and the earlv-Gothic Paulvs-

Kirche (PL A, 5; 1898).

Walks. From the Schloss-Platz we walk to the (20 min.) Engens-Platz
(p. 11), and follow the Kanonenweg, No. 44 in which, 10 min. farther, is

the Restaurant Ulilands-Huhe ; after 250 paces we ascend to the right to

the (1/4 hr.) TJhlands-Hohe (PI. H, 3; 1160 ft.), witli a series of charm-
ing views, the finest from the pavilion at the top. — A similar point
is the Schiller-Hohe, on the Bojpser (PI. F, 7; 1340 ft. ; Kurhaus Schiller-

Eiclie), readied Ijy the Neue Weinsteige (PL E, F, 7), commanding varied
views during its winding ascent from the Olga-Str. to the Bopser-AnJage
(1055 ft.

; V4 hr. from the top). The gardens "contain a bust of FriedricTi
List (p. 53) by Stocker (1905). We may return via the Hobenbeimer Str.

(PI. F, Gr, 6. 5J ; or we may continue through the Bopser-Wold to (50 min.
;

tramway, see p. 3) Degerloch Tp. 16). The Bopser-Wald contains an open-
air theatre, on the spot where Schiller read his -Robbers' to the students
at the Karls-Schule (p. 7). — The Fevierbacher Heide is reached
from the Schloss-Platz via the Schloss-Str., Kanzlei-Str.. and Herdweg
(numerous villas) ; at the corner of the Herdweg aud Rellenberg-Str. is

the pretty Relenherg-Brannen iPl. B, V}. by Kiemlen > 1904 . Farther on,

to the left, 3/4 hr. from the Schloss-Platz, is the Bestaurant Doggenhurg
(PI. A, 2), with a small collection of wild animals; thence to the'Weissen-







Eyivirons. STUTTGART. ^ Rovte. if,

hot", see p. 13. We next take a path to the right, skirting the woods at

first, and ascend to the (20 min.) conspicuous Bismarck Column, on the
highest point of the Heide (1.340 ft.). We may return by the Birken-
wald-Str. and Panorama-Str. (PI. D, E, 1, 2; tramway, see p. 14).

Environs of Stuttgart.

To Cannstatt. The Railway (R. 8; 2J/oM. in G-9 min.; 30,

20, 15 pf., express 80, 70, 40 pf.) passes beneath the Rosensteiu (see

below) by a tunnel 400 yds. long, crosses the Neckar, and reaches

the station of Sfuftgart-Cannstcctt, on the right bank. — Electric

Tkamway (p. 3; 21/2 M. in 20 min.; 15 pf.) from the Schloss-Platz.

— Walkers to Cannstatt via the KOnigliche Anlagcn take about

1 hr.- (comp. p. 12).

Berg (715 ft.), the N.E. suburb of Stuttgart, lies on the left

bank of the Neckar and is frequented as a health-resort. The Bei'y

Mineral Baths ('Berger Urquell"), at the beginning of the town,

possess a swimming-bath and a garden-restaurant (concert, see

p. 4;. On a hill above the town rises the Gothic church, built by

Gaab in 1855. — The Neckar-Insel, an island at Berg, is occupied

by bath-houses. In the centre are mineral springs, including the

Sprudel iLeuze's Mineral Baths, P. 4\o-7ey^; concert, see p. 4).

The Villa bei Berg (880 ft.; adm., see p. 4), on the hill to

the S., built by Leins in the Renaissance style in 1846-53, and sur-

rounded with line gardens and hot-houses, now belongs to the city

of Stuttgart. In the interior are pictures and sculptures (Bust of a

boy, by Luca della Robbia). In the garden are statues of the four

seasons, by Kopf, and bronze busts of Nicholas L, Tsar of Russia,

and his consort, by Ranch.

On the hill to the N. of Berg, in a large park, is the royal country-

lumse of Rosenstein (805 ft.; adm,, see p. 4), built by Salucci in

an archaistic French style in 1824-9. The approach to it begins

opposite the Hotel zuni Schwanen, near the KOnig-Karl-Briicke. In

the interior arc numerous sculptures (by Wagner, Wolf, Hoyer.
Hofer, etc.) and a collection of pictures. The main apartment con-

tains frescoes by Gegenbaur and Dieterich and a frieze by Weit-

brecht, — From the back of the house paths descend through the

grounds to the Wilhelma.
Tlie ^Wilhelma (adm., see p. 4j, a picturesque group of build-

ings in the Moorish style, in the midst of Aveil-kept grounds with

fine magnolias, was erected for King William I. in 1842-53 by Zanth.
The FeHtsaal-Baiv contains a large hall, sumptuously fitted up and

connected by means of colonnades witli two Pavilions (that to tlie right

contains a gallery of Oriental pictures) and with the ]\lain Binldiiui on
the upper terrace. In the centre of the latter is the audience-chamber,
on the right a drawing-room, on the left the king's study. There are also
a bedroom, dressing-room, and bathroom. At tlie back other terraces
rise to the top of the hill, witli a Moorisli Belvedere (generally closed;
commanding a ciiarming view. The lower terraces witlini tlie colonnades
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are embellished with flower-beds, fountaius, and groups of animals in

marble and bronze by Guldensteiu. On the river-side of the garden, at

the corner of the Stuttgarter Str. and Prag-Str.. are a Theatre (p. 4) and
a Restaurant.

Cannstatt. — Plan, see p. 15. — Hotels. Stddtisches Kurhatis
(PI. a), Paulinen-Str. 16. near the Kursaal. for patients. R. 9-31 ^S a week;
Concordia (PI. dj, at the station: Goldener Hahn (PI. i), Konig-Str. 35. —
Pension Lieb, Tanbenheim-Str. 16, near the Kursaal, P. from 5 ^iC.

Restaurants. Kursaal; Pilsener Schmid, Karl-Str. 71. — Wink
Rooms. Osterle, Hall-Str. 30.

Baths at the Stadt-Bad, near the Kursaal, and at tlie 3Iineral-Bad
Schiffmann (PI. 2 , Bad-Str. 31a (also open in winterj.

Visitors' Tax. After fi days 4-6, after 3 weeks 6-12 .g.

Popular Festival, with exhibitions, etc., Sept. 27th-30th.

Cannstatt (720 ft.) was incorporated with Stuttgart in 1905
aud is connected with Berg by the Konig-Karl-Briicke, a bridge

with five arches, 330 yds. long, erected in 1891-3 by Leibbrand.

On the Sulzerrain, 12 min. from the station, to the X.E. of the town,

are saline and chalybeate springs (68° Fahr.). In front of the hand-

someKursaal (VI. 1) is a bronze equestrian statue oiKingWiUiam I.

(d. 1864), by Halbig (1875i. Close by, in the Kursaa'l-Allee, is a

fountain by Kienilen ^1910i. The fine Knr-Parh (adm. free; con-

certs 40, Sun. morning 25 pf., week-day mornings freej contains a

bust of Berthold Auerhach, by Yolz (1909). — In the Uff-Kirch-

hof, a little S. of the Kursaal, is the grave of Ferd. Freiliyrath,

the poet (d. 1876), with a bronze bust by Donndorf (1878).
Tlie Burgholz (1175 ft. ; view-tower ; restaurant), 74 1'l- X.W. of Cann-

statt and V2 !""• E. of Feuerbach station (p. 22), affords a tine view of
Stuttgart and up the valley of the Xeckar.

To Degerloch. Tram^'ays ip. 3): Xo. 3, from the Schloss-

Platz (PI. E, F, 3, 4) to the Zahnrad-Bahnhof, li/, M. in 1,4 hr.

(lOpf.j; via the Bopser to Degerloch, see p. 3. — Mountain Rail-

way (Zahnrad-Bahn) from the Heusteig-Str. (PL D, 7) to Degerloch,

IY4 M. in 12-17 min. (return -ticket 30 pf., available also by the

tramway); trains every 1/, hr. or oftener; views on the left.

Degerloch. — Hotels. Kurhaus; Pension <k Cafe Loffel, P. 41/2-

6V2 --^^ — Restaurasts. all with gardens. Adler (wine); Bitter; Char-
lotten-Hohe : Schv:eizerhaus. WilheJuu-Holie, both with view. — Motor
Omxibus via Echterdingen and Bebenhauseii to Tiibingen. see p. 57.

Degerloch (1540 ft. 1, a suburb of Stuttgart, contains many villas

and is a favourite resort in summer. Splendid view from the tower

(1590 ft.; 20 pf.), 8 min. X.E. of the upper station.

From Degerloch a railway (Filder-Bahn) runs S.W. in 9 min. to (2 M.)
Mohringen, where it divides: W. to Vaihingen (p. 58; 2 M. in 10 min.);
E. to Hohenheim (p. 17: 3 M. in 20 min.): S.E. to fSV-^M.) Neuhausen, via

(5^12'^.) Echterdingen (Hot. zumHirsch) and {6M.) Bernhausen. At Echter-
dingen is a stone commemorating the destruction of a Zeppelin here on
Aug. 5th, 1908. About 1 hr. S. of Bernhausen is the view-tower on the

Uhlberg (1540 ft.: descent to Dettenhansen, see p. .59).
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To the View Tower on the Hasenberg: either by rail-

way (5 M. ill 20 mill.; SO, 40, 25 pf.; to the AVest-Bahnhof (also by

tramway No. 5), then on foot in 17-20 min.; or by tramway No. 2

to the Bismarck-Eiche, and thence in 8 min. Carr.-and-pair from

Stuttgart 6-7 ^/l return.

The railway (views to the left) describes a sharp curve to the

left near the Ceutral-Friedhof (p. 13) and ascends 8.W. towards

the prominent Kriegsherg (p. 13), which it penetrates by a tunnel

630 yds. long. To the left we obtain a view of the town; on the

right, above, is the Bismarck Column (p. 15). The train describes a

wide circle round the town and reaches the West-Balwhof (\2\h ft.

above the sea, 395 ft. above the Haupt-Bahnhofi.

From the station Ave follow the upper road to the right. After

7 min. a finger-post to the left indicates the way to the Bucheuhof

(see below); a short-cut ascends heuce in 8 min. to the Jiigerhaus

("306 steps). About 5 min. farther, near the Bismarck-Eiche (view-

terrace), a footpath ascends to the left to (6 min.) the Jdgerhaus
(restaurant) on the Hasenberg, then to the right to the (2 min.)

*T'7e?r Toiver il475 ft.: 217 steps; adm. 20 pf.i, 120 ft. in height,

erected by Beyer in 1879. The splendid view (indicator) extends as

far as the Wartbergnear Heilbronn and the Melibocus; to the S. the

chain of the Swabiau Alb, with the Rechberg, Hohenstaufeu, Xeutt'en,

Achalm, and Hoheuzolleru. To the S. of the tower is the Waldhaus
(restaurant).

From the Jagerliaus N.W. thiougli the woods to tlie withered
Gais-Eiche, much visited by excur.sioaist.s, i/^ hr. ; W. to the deer-park

(p. 18), '/2 I'v.

The Hasenbergsfeige, a direct path from the Jiigerhaus to Stutt-

gart, descends in 20 min. to the Gansepeter-Brunnen in the Reins-

berg-Str. (p. 14), passing (3 min.; right) a bust of Hanff, by Rosch

(1882 1, on the left the sanatorium of J5/ic7i6'yi/<o/'(restaurant and view),

and on the right the reservoirs of the city waterworks. Fartiier on

it crosses the tunnel (135 yds. long) counecting the Schwab-Str. with

the Karls-Vorstadt (Heslach). -- Or we may ascend, beyond the

tunnel, to the Kcnis-Ho/ie, oi' Reinshurg-Hiigel (1120 ft.; PI. C, 6),

with a fine view and a bust of King Charles I. (d. 1891), and descend

by the Humboldt-8tr. and Morike-Str. to the Silberburg (p. 14).

About 2 hrs.' walk to the S. of Stuttgart (railway from Deger-

loch in 1 o hr. ; comp. p. 16) lies SehlosB Hohenheim (1280 ft.),

built by Duke Charles in 1785, now an agricultural academy,

with a botanical garden (guide 60 pf.) and collections. Fine view

from the balcony and the dome (rfmts.). — Seharnliausen and

Weil, witli their stud -farms, etc., may be visited on the same
day as Hohenheim. Visitors apply to the authorities. Weil(' ._jhr.

W. of Esslingen, p. 43) possesses a royal villa and a race-course.

Baedeker's S. Qermauv. 12th F^dit. 2
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Untertiirklieim, Obertiirkheim, and tlie asceut of the Wiirttem-

berg, see pp. 41, 42.

The Solitude (1630 ft.). ^ hrs. W. of Stuttgart, ou the spur of a

plateau, was built in the rococo style in 1763-7 by De la Guepiere for

Duke Charles, and in 1773-5 was occupied hy the Karls-Schule, where
Schiller received part of his education, before its transference to Stutt-

gart (p. 7). The Schloss is tastefully decorated in the interior and com-
mands an extensive view (best from the dome). — A little to the S. is a

large deer-park, with the Baren-Schlossehen and the Bdreu-See. Deer
fed a1 11 a.m., wild boars at 6 p.m. ; tickets (March-Oct. ; 1-5 pers. 50 pf.'i

at Wildt's (p. .S\ From the deer-park to the Hasenberg , see p. 17. —
From the Solitude to Leonberg ip. 22), li/j hr.

2. From Heidelberg via Bruchsal to
Stuttgart.

69Vi M. Express in 2 hrs. (9 ^S 80. d JC 50 pf., iji); ordinary train

in 3-4 hrs. (8 Ji 80. 5 ..M: 50. 3 ^4 50 pf.). — Yia Meckesheim and Jagst-

feld, see R. 4.

Heidelberg, see Baedeker's Rhine. —
- 8 M. Wiesloch, junction

of a local railway to (12 M.) Meckesheim (p. 31). — bearing

(15 M.) Larigenhrilcken (Hot. Ochse, Bad-Hotel), with sulphur-baths

(Amalien-Bad), we pass on the right Kisslau, once a liunting-lodge

of the Bishops of Speyer, now a penitentiary.

20^2 ^J- Bruchsal iRail. Restaurant; Hot. Keller, Friedrichs-

hof , near the station ; Post), junction of the Basle line (see Baedeker'

s

Rhine), with 15,400 inhab., was in the 18th cent, the residence of

the Bishops of Speyer. Their Schloss, begun in 1720 and completed

in 1731 by Balth. Xeumann (p. 118), has an imposing staircase,

sumptuous apartments in the rococo style (frescoes by Johannes

and Januarius Zick), and an old garden. The Peters-Kirche, by
Neumann (1742-9), contains the episcopal vault.

27\ 2 ^- Gondelsheim , with the old castle-lower and Schloss

of Count Langenstein.

30 M. Bretten (710 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Krone, R. 1 ^l
20 pf.-2i/2 ..Jl, well spoken of), a small town with 5300 inhab., was
the birthplace of Melanchthon (1497-1560; comp. p. 55). the 'Prse-

ceptor G-ermanife'. In the market-place (10 min. from the station,

to the right) is the Melanchthon memorial house (1903), with statues

of reformers, library, medals, etc. (adm. 50 pf.). To the left is a

fountain, with the figure of a knight (1555). Branch-lines to Dur-

lach and Heilbronn, see p. 29. — Beyond Bretten we quit Baden. —
361 , II Manlhronn (890 ft.; rail. Restaurant).

Branch-line in 5 min. to (2 M.) the town of Maulbronn.

Maulbromi (Hot. Post or Kloster, Elfinger wine; Rieger's

Kloster-Brauerei), a town of 1350 inhab.. deserves a visit for its
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famous * Cistercian Abbey (conip. p. xix), one of the best-pre-

seiTed mediceval convents in Germany, founded in 1146 and recently

well restored. The upper story of the lay-hrothers' refectory and
the kitchen, between tlie two refectories, are modern. After 1558

the abbey was occupied by a Protestant school founded l»y Duke
Christopher, of which Kepler p. 206) was a pupil in 1586-9, and
it is now a Protestant theological seminary. The verger lives in-

side the gate, to the right (adm. 50 pf., 2-6 pers. 1 tJi).

•>*
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At the W. end of the abbey-church is the -Paradies (ca. 1'220),

a vestibule 70 ft. long and 25 ft. wide, with late-Romanesque arcade-

windows and cross-vaulting. — The '*Abbey Church, consecrated

in 1178, is a Romanesque basilica with aisles. The late-Gothic

chapels on the S. side were added in 1424. A Romanesque screen

with two doors separates the choir of the monks (Herrenchor; from

that of the lay- brothers (Laienchor), to the W. ; in the latter, in

front of the screen, is an altar with a crucifix 13 ft. high (1473).

The monks" choir contains ninety-two stalls i2nd half of 1.3th cent.)

and, on tlie steps, eight Biblical reliefs; by the X. wall of the

i-ectaugular choir proper is the richly carved throne of the aijbot.

Each of the transepts contains three rectangular chapels.

On the X. side of the church are the * Cloisters ^Kreuzgaug'i,

each walk of w^hich is 125 ft. long (on the inside) and 15 ft. broad.

The S. walk, in the transitional style (ca. 1225), is the richest; the

others, in the Gothic style (14th cent.), are simpler. In front of the

X. walk is a tasteful well-house. Beyond it is the Siunmer or j\Ionks'

Refectory ('Rebeutal'), with seven central columns (ca. 1225). At the

X.W. corner is the Winter or Lay Befectory (ca. 1210), divided

into two parts by seven double columns. Other apartments adjoin

the E. side of the cloisters. Between the Monies' Day Quarters
' Bruderhalle) and the Chapter House ( Kapitel-Saal) is the entrance

to the Parlatorium (late 15th cent.) and the Guest House (early

16th cent.). — In the garden is the modern Esels-Brunnen, re-

ferring to the story of the foundation of the convent. Hence we
obtain the best view of the Faust -Turm, near the E. side of the

church, originally part of the fortifications.

About 3 M. to the X.W. (omu. tluee times daily in 3/^ hr.) lies Knitt-
Ungeu (Hot. Kanne), the traditional birthplace of" Dr. Faust.

Beyond Maulbronn the train passes through a tunnel.

401/2 M. Muhlacker (Rail. Restaurant; Bahuhof- Hotel),

junction for Pforzlieim ('p. 23). The neighbouring village of Diirr-

menz, with a Waldensian colony of 1699, is dominated on the E.

by the ruin of Loffelsteh. — 47 M. Vaihiayen - Staatshahnhof
(810 ft.). Branch-line to (5 M.) Enzweihiuyen viii '^3 M.) Vaihinyen
(Hot. Krone), on the Euz, with a large Schloss. now a penitentiary. —
On the left rises the Stromberg (p. 27;. The train traverses a fer-

tile and hilly district, and crosses the deep valley of the Enz.
551/2 M. Bietigheim (Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Krone), a small

old town. To Heilbronn, see p. 27.
From Bietigheim to Backxasg, 16 M., railway in Wl hr. — 3'^ M.

Belhingen-Heutingsheim, the junction for Ludw"igsburg (p. 22). The
line cros.ses the Xeckar by a viaduct 100 ft. high (fine view). — 71/0 M.
Marbach (740 ft. ; Hot. Post, R. l'/.,-2i/2^. B. 80 pf

.
; Bar), a small

town with 2940 iuhab. on a height on the riglit bank of the Neckar, was
the birthplace of Schiller (b. Nov. lOth. 1759: d. May 9th, 1805). From
tbe station we proceed straight on. then turn to the right after 2 miu.
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b)-- the Rielingsliauser-.Str.. C'haiiotten-Str.. and Schillerhoh-Str. to tlie

(</^ hr.) Schiller-Hohe. gardens containing a bionzc statue of .Srhiller,

by Ran (1876), and tlic fSchillcr itfuseiim of souvenirs, autograj)hs, fur-

niture, etc. (open all day, 30 pf
.

; Sun. from 11 a.m., 20 pf.). Wc now
retrace our steps for 8 liun.. then proceed to the left by the Wildermuth-
Str., the town-gate, and tlic Markt-Str., and. opposite tlic Hotel Bar,
descend to the right, past tiie late-Gothic Ale.rroider-Kirche '.ISth cent.},

to ;7 mill.) the modest house in -which Schiller was born, two rooms of
Avhich are shown. Hence wo regain the station in 7 min. Railway to

Heilbronn. see below. — 10 M. Backnang (p. 35).

From Maubach to Heilbkosx, 21 M.. liglit railway ('Bottwar-Bahn')
in 2'/4 hrs. — 2V2 M. Steinheim an der Murr. v;\\\\ a fine Rathaus of 1680.

In the neiglibouriiig diluvial deposits remains of prehistoric animals liave

been found icomp. p. 7). — We next follow the pleasant Bottivar- TaL
with ScMoss Sckaubeck on the riglit. — 71/2 M. Oberstenfeld (Hot. Ochse),
with an interesting early-Romanesque church (ca. 1200). Aliuut ^/^ hr. S.E.
is the well-preserved castle of Lichtenberg (12th cent.). — S'/j M. Beilstein
(Hot. Post), a prettily situated little town, dominated by the castle-ruin of

Hohoibeilstcin. with a pentagonal keep (adm. 20 pf.). About 1 iir. S-W. is

tlie Wunncnstcin (1285 ft.), with a view-tower. — At (20 M.) Sontheim
'tramway to Heilbronn, sec p. 27) we reach the Neckar valley. — 21 M.
Uellbronn-Sadbahnhof (p. 27 ; tramway to the town).

To the right, near (58^2 ^J-) ^^P^^V: ^'ises a vine-clad hill

crowned by the small fortress of Huhenasperg 1II6O it.; now a

penitentiary), where Duke Charles confined the poet Schubart (p. 40)

ill 1777-87 for composing a satirical epigram on him; fine view

from the tower (10 pf.; restanrant).

61 M. Ludwigsburg. — Hotels. Bahn-Hotcl (PI. a ; A, 3), oppo-

site the station, with garden; Herzog Eberhard (PI. b: A, 2). Solitude-
Str. 1: Wiutteuiberqer Uof {V\. c; A,' 2), Schiller-Str. 8. — Restaurast.
Ratskdlcr, adjoining the Rathaus (PI. B. 2). — Baths. Stadt-Bad (PI.

A, 3). See-Str. — Tramways from the station to the Ludicigshiirgrr
llrilbod (p. 22) and to Ossueil and (7 M."* AJdingcn in the Xeckar valley.

Ludwigsburg (970 ft.), a town with 25,000 inhab. (including a

garrison of 5300 men) and numerous factories, is much visited on

account of its beautiful surroundings. It was founded at the begin-

ning of the 18th cent, by Duke Eberhard Louis (d. 1733) as a rival

of Stuttgart, and was extended by Duke Charles Eugene (d. 1793) and

Kiug Frederick (d. I8I61. The streets arc broad and regular.

In the Wilhelms-Platz (PI. A, 2) is a statue of Schiller, who
lived at Ludwigsburg in 1768-73 and 1793-4. by Hofer (1882). — In

the charming market-place is the Stadt-Kirche (PL B, 2), a baroque

church built by Eetti in 1718-26; opposite is the Catholic Drei-

einigkeits-Kirchc, of 1727. — To the S.. in the Karls-Platz, is the

Protestant Garnison-Kirche (PI. B, 3\ by Thiersch (1903).

The Royal Palace (PI. B, 1; custodian in the annexe on the E.

side), 3 4 M. to the N,E. of the station, a handsome baroque building

containing 452 rooms, was erected by Nette, Frisoni. and others

under Duke Eberhard Louis in 1704-33. The finest interior de-

coration is in the hunting-pavilion at the N.W, corner. The most

interesting objects are the furniture in the apartments of Queen
Mathilde, the French ceiling -paintings of the 18th cent, (good
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examples of perspective), and several o d portraits. Tlie huge cask

in the cellar holds 19,800 gallons. In the gardens surrounding the

palace, to the E., is a small temple containing a bust of the theo-

logian D. F.Strauss (PI. U, 1 ; 1808-74); behind it lies the Einichs-

bury, an artificial ruin erected in memor}- of Count Emich of Wur-

temberg (ca. 1140). — A little to the 8.E. are the Collections of

the Historical Society (PI. C, 1; open free on Sun,, 11-12.30). with

souvenirs of the wstheticist F. T. Vischer {1807-87;.

The N. prolongation of the palace-gardens is the Favorite-Park

(PL B, 1), with the elegant Favorite-Schlosschea (1718), containing

a collection of antlers (adm. 50 pf. for 1-5 pers.; tickets at the Heil-

bronner Tor or from the custodian of the palace). An avenue of

poplars leads hence to (35 niin.) the "^Monrepos (adm. on application

to the steward; rfmts.), a graceful rococo hunting-lodge erected after

1764, with pretty grounds and a boating lake with seven islands, on

one of which is a chapel. We return to the town via Eglosheim and

the royal Villa Marienwahl (PI. A, 1) in ^j^ hr. ; or we may take

the train from (20 min.) Favorite-Park station (see below).

Among the chief attractions of Ludwigsburg are the avenues of

limes and chestnuts leading from the palace to the so-called Salon-

wald (PL C, 4) and on to (40 min.) Kornwestheim (see below). To

the W. of the Salonwald is a Vietv Tower (PL B, 4; 20 pf.).

Xear Hohenecl-, on tlie Neckar, 2 M. to the N.E. of Ludwigs-

burg (beyond PL C, 1 ; tramway;, is the Luclwigsbaryer Heilbad,

with a mineral spring (Kur-Hotel; season May-Oct.).

Raihvay from Ludwigsburg to (3 M.. in 9 miu.) Bcihhifjcn-HeuthiffS-

hc'iia (p. 20), via (l^/^ M.) Favorite-Pa rk (see above}.

63 M. Kornwestheim. Branch-line to Stuttgart-Untertiirkheim,

sec p. 42. — 65\/2 M. Zuffenkaasen (Hot. Harmouie, R. ^1^-2 ^/l,

B. 80 pf.), an industrial town with 12,800 inhabitants.

From Zuffeshadsek to Calw, SQi/., M., raihvay in li/j In. — 21/2 M.
Korntai (Gemeinde-Gastbaus, R. l-li/.^, B. 1/2 < ^- '^Vi'-t^, '^vitb Jerusalem
wine) is the seat of a sect resembling the Moravians, founded in 1819,

with several schools. Branch-line f Strohgau-Bahu') to (131/2M.) Weismch.
— 8i/.> M. Leonbercf (Hot. Hirsch

;
pop. 2920), birthplace of the philosopher

SchelTing (1775-1851), possesses a Gothic church of tlie 11th cent., and is

noted for a fine breed of large dogs. — 16 M. Weilderstadt (Hot. Post.

R. 1 JC 70, B. 80 pf., D. 1 ..« 60-2 .« 20 pf.j, a quaint little town with 1860

inhab., once a free town of the empire, was the birthplace of the astronomer
Kepler (p. 206), a bronze statue of whom adorns the market-place. The
late-Gothic church of St. Peter (end of 15th cent.) contains a late-Eenais-

sancc -Sakramcntshauschen' (p. 170) by G. Milller (1611). — I8V2 M. Schaf-
hausen (1425 ft.). The train ascends in a wide curve and passes through

the Forst Tunnel (760 yds.) to (231/2 M.) Althengstett (1675 ft.). It then

descends rapidly through a second tunnel (to the right, below, lies Hirsau,

p. 21) to the pictiu-esque Nagold valley. — 301/2 M. Calw (p. 21).

66V2 M. Feuerbach (Bahn-Hotel, R. Vj^JC, B. 60 pf.), a manu-

facturing town with 14,200 inhabitants. — We next pass through

the Prag Tunnel. — 6772 M. Stuttgart-Nordbahnhof.
691 ','m. Stuttgart (p. 2).
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3. Prom Stuttgart to Wildbad.
51 M. Railway iu 2-3 lirs. (6 ^W 70 pf.. \^H,,2 JC 60 pf. ; vi^ Calw in

4 hrs., see pp. 22. 21).

From Stuttgart to (29 M.) Milhlacker, see pp. 22-20. Beyond
(311 2]\]; ) Eri'dberg the line enters the Duchy of Baden and follows

the left bank of the Enz.
36I/2 M. Pforzheim. — RaUicau Rrstoicmnt. ~ Hotkls. ^Ruf,

R.2i/..-5.^. Sautter, now, buth opposite tiif .station: *Post, We.stliclie
Karl-Fiicflrich-Str. 37. R. 2-4. B. 1, D. H J^ : Hama-Hotel. Bahnhof-Str. 8,
R. from 2. B. 1 .fi ; OekJert, Bahnliof-Str. 22. R. 1 Jl 70, B. 80 pf. ; Blume.
.Sclilossbei-fr 5. — Restaurants. Rappeii (wine); Eatskeller (heer). —
Post & Teleokaph Office. Luisen-Str. 3. — Baths. Staclt-Bad, corner
of Insel-Str. and Tlieater-fStr.

Tramways throug-h the town and W. to (5-8 inin.) Brotzingen (p. 24).

conuectins: tliere with a local railway to Carlsruhe and Hcrrenalb (see
Bnerlek(;r's Rhine).

Pforzheim (805 ft.), a busy manufacturing town Avith 80,000
inhab., at the confluence of the E/tz, the Nagold. and the Wilrm.
has important factories of gold and silver ware, employiHg 30.000
workmen. Reuchlin (1455-1522; comp. p. 13), the learned friend

of Melanchthon, was born here.

Opposite the station are monuments to Emperor William T. and

Bismarck. To the 8. rises tlie Schloss-Kirche, founded at the

end of the 11th cent., Avith a transitional nave (ca.l220) and a lofty

late-Gothic choir (after 1460 1.

In the Choir (apply at the Haupt-.Steiieramt, close by; fee 50 pf.) are
the Renaissance *Monuments of tlie Margraves of Baden. On the sarco-
phagus in the centre repose figures of Margrave Ernest (d. 1553) and his
wife Ursula (d. 1538). By the wall, in the centre, Charles II. (d. 1577).
the first of his line to embrace the Reformed faitli. with his wives Kuni-
gunde of Brandenburg (d. 1558 ; right) and Countess Palatine Anna (A. 1587 :

left). To the left, next to Anna, are Margraves James (A. 1590) and
Ernest II. (d.ltiOl). The second monument to the right of Kuniguude is

that of Albert Alcibiades of Brandenburg-Bayreuth, celebrated for his
campaigns, who died here (in 1557) under the imperial ban; to the right.
Margrave Bernliard (d. 1553).

On the left of the market-place is the Bathaus, containing a

collection of antiquities (20 pf.). Thence the Deimling-Str. leads S.

to tlie Lihden-Platz, with the Protestant Stadt-Kirche. "We then

follow the Rennfeld-8tr. S.W. past the Saalban (restaurant) to the

Stadt-Garien (adin. 20 pf.). Thence we ascend to the W. through

the Kanal-Str. and the Schwarzwald-Str. to the Wassertarm auf
dem Bod (1055 ft.; view of the townl

In the W. part of the town are an Exhibition of Iiidusti'ial Art,

in the new building near the Kunstgewerbe-Schule, and the Mar-
tins-Kirche, a Romanesque basilica with an interesting pediment.

About 6 M. to the S.E. of Pforzheim, in the pleasant Wi'h'in valley,
lies Tiefenbronn (Hot. Ochge\ a village of 740 inhabitants. The Goth'ie
parish-church contains a high-altar by Hans Schiilin of Ulm (1469; p. 47)
and four other well-preserved altars of the 15th -16th cent., inol. one
with paintings by Lucas Moser (1431).
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From Pforzheim via Weissenstein to the (6 M.) Biichenhronner Hdke
(2005 ft.), with a conspicuous iron view-tower, and thence on to Wildbad,

6V2 hrs. ; this jiath is the beginning of the Hohenweg (p. 26).

From Pforzheim to Horb. 43 M.. railway in 2-3 hrs. — The train

diverges to the left from the Wildbad line at (2 M.) Briitzivgen (see below),
crosses the Enz, penetrates tlie hill between the Enz and the Nagold by
a tunnel 440 yds. long, and enters the beautiful wooded Xagold-Tal.
— 3V2M. Dill-Weissenstein. with a picturesque ruined castle; 1 hr. S.E.

is the Buchenbronncr Hohe (see above). — Beyond a tunnel we enter
Wurtembcrg. — 12 M. Bad LicbenzeU (1115 ft. : Hot. Unteres Bad, Oberes
Bad, Monopol. Adler i visitors' tax 5-8 JC) , with warm springs (72-81°

Fahr.), pleasantly situated. Above rises a ruined castle 'built ca. 1200,
with a keep 130 ft. high. Motor-omn. to Wildbad, see p. 25. — 15 M.
Hirsau (Hot. Kossle, R. VJiJi, B. 70 pf . : Lciwe), with the extensive
ruins of a Benedictine monastery founded ca. 1059, at its zenith in the
12th cent., and destroyed by Melac in 1692. The chief remains are the

nave of the Aurelius-Kirche (1066-71), near the station : the six-storied X.
tower of the basilica of SS. Peter & P»ul (1082-91), on the left bank

;

the large late-Gothic cloisters ^1485-94l: and the facade of a Renaissance
building, from which grows the elm celebrated by Uhland. — 17 M. Calw
(1140 ft.: Rail. Restaurant: Hot. Waldhorn. Adler), a town of 5600 inhab..
witli the interesting Gothic bridge-chapel of St. Nicholas (ca. 1400). To
Zuffcnhausen and Stuttgart, see p. 22. —• The line continues through tlie

Xagold-Tal (tunnels and bridges) to (18'/2 M.) the station of Bad Teinach,
at the union of the Teinach and Xagold. About 21/2 M. up the Teinach
vallev(omn. in 1/2 ^"'- j motor-omn. also iu summer from Liebenzell and
Calw) is the charmingly situated village (1275 ft. : *Bad-Hotel, R. 2-4, B. 1.

D. 3, P. 6-9 JC: Hirsch. R. 1 ^ 80 pf.-3 .M. well spoken of; Kuhler Brun-
nen), with mineral baths and a hydropathic. On the hill above is (1/2 br.)

Zavclstein (1925 ft. : Hot. Lamm, good;, a summer resort with a ruined
castle (fine view from the keep). Motor-omn. to Wildbad, see p. 25. —
2OV2 ^I- Talmiihle (hotel). In the woods near it is the ruined castle of
Waldeck. — 281/.2 M. Wildberg (Hot. Hirsch). a small town on a rock
washed by the Xagold. — 26 M. Emmingcn, 3/^ hr. X.E. of which is the
Kilhlcherg (2060 ft.), with an extensive view of the Swabian Alb. —
28V2 M. Nagold (1395 ft.; Hot. Post, good; Rossle; AValdlust. well
spoken of), a little town of 4000 inhab.. commanded by the ruined castle
of HoheunagoM, which was destroyed during the 'Thirty Years' War.
Light railway thence up the Xagold valley to (91/2 M.) Altensteig (1650 ft.

;

Hot. Grliner Baum). a quaint little townwith 2400 inhab. and a Schloss.
— Our line ascends the Steinach-Tal to (32i/., M.i Giindringen. and
then passes through the Hochdorfer Tunnel. 1 M. long, to (35 M.)
Hochdorf (1675 ft. ; inn), the highest point of the line, with a distant
view of the Swabian Alb. To Hausach, see pp. 59-61. — 38 M. Eutingen,
and thence to (43 M.) Uorh, see p. 61.

From Pforzheim to Dcreach (Carlsruhe), 16M., railway iu 25-50 min.— The line skirts the X. slopes of the Black Forest hills and crosses the
fertile valley of the Pfinz. — 8V2 M. Wilfcrdingen. — lli/.^ M. Grotzingen,
junction for Bretlen and Heilbronn (p. 29). — At (16 M.) Durlach (Hot.
Badischer Hof, Karlsburg), a town of 13,900 inhab., the train reaches the
Baden main line (see Baedeker's Rhine).

The railway to AVildbad ascends the jjleasaut greeu valley of

the Enz. — d8\.^M. Brotzingen (see above). — Xear (40^2^.)
Birl'eiifeld(2^ oM. to the S. of the Biichenbronner Hohe, see above)
we enter AVnrtemberg again.

431 2^1. Neuenbiirg (1065 ft.; Eail. Restaurant; Hot. Bar,

Sonne; pop. 2500), a picturesquely situated little town overlooked
by the Schloss, erected on a wooded hill above the Enz by Duke
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Christopher in 1568 (now offices). Adjacent are the ruins of a

castle (12th-13th cent. i. Motur-omn. several times daily to (13' ^, M.,

in v., hr.) Herrenalb (see Baedeker's RhineK

We cross the Enz, pass through a tunnel under the Schlossberg,

and recross the river, — 48 M. Hofen (Hot. Ochse, R. l''.,-2,

P. 5-6 Jl;. — 49 M. Calmbach (Hot. Sonne, E. IV2 ^/^, good)."

56 M. "Wildbad. — Railway Statics at the lower end of the town,

8 mill.' from tlic Kur-Platz. Omn. from the larger hotels meet the trains.

Hotels (all witli restaurants; in tlie season rooms .should l)e engaged
in advance!. *Kd)iigliches Bad-Hotd (PI. a\ Kui-Platz. connected with
the Grosses Bad-Gebaude, R. Si/o-lO, B. ly:,. D. 31 .,-5, S. 21/2-3. P. 10-18 J(

:

*JI()f. K(Hin2-)p CP\. V}, opposite the Grosses Bad-Gebaude, and '^Kltimpp's
Hot. BeUeiue (PI. c). at the beginning of the Kur-Anlagen. open Mav-Sept..
R. from .3. B. I1/2. D. 41/2-J. «• 2V-m P-- fiom 10 .^ ; ^^Concordia (PI. h), Kerner-
Str.. 5 min. from the Kur-Platz. — *Post (PI. d), Kur-Platz. R. 21/0-6^,
B. 1 JC 20 pf., D. 2-5. P. 7-12 J^ ; Bussischer Hof (PI. e\ Konig-Karl-Str..
near the Kur-Platz, R. 2-5 .«, B. 1 .« 20 pf.. D. S-SV?, P. 61/0-IO .M

:

Pfciff'cr ~t(m Goldenen Lamta (PI. g), Haupt-Str.. near the Kur-Platz.
R. 2i,'.^-3i,o. B. 1, D. 2-21'.,. p. H'/.2-8i/., JC : Graf EbcrTiard, Schmid zfun

Goldenen' OcTisen (PI. f;.' R. I'/o-S Jl, B. 80 pf.. P. 5-8 a, both in the
Kur-Platz: Goldener Lowe (?\. kl. Olga-Str. — In the Haupt-Str., nearer
the station: Goldenrs Boss (PI. i), R. 2-3i/.,. P. 6-7i/., c«; Sonne iPl. l'.

GoJdeiur Stern, Drehinqer. — Xear the station: Zar Eisenbahn (PI. m ;

Srhn-ar,:Hald ^Pl. n) : Knhlcr Branncn. R. 2-->^;o.M, B. 90 pf., P. s-fj^l^Jl:

Weil (.Jewish). — Near the mountain-railway: ^Panorama-Hotel, half-way
up, P. from 6 c^fC; Som merberg-Hotel , near the upper station, R. 3-6, board
"i JC. — Pexsioxs. Villa MonttbeUo (PI. oj, with dependances, P.

7-10 ^(C; etc. Numerou.s hotels garnis and lodgings.

Post Office at the station: bvancli-office in the Kur-Platz. — Cabs.
AVith one horse 1 t,H, per 1/4 hr: to or from the station, with one horse 1.

witli two liorses 2 JC.

Kur-Vekein (inquiry office), Konig-Karl-Str. 178. — Yisitors' Tax
])er week 1, per month 12 ^^i. — Thermal Baths at the Grosses and
Kleines Bad-Gebiiude li/Vti, at the Kiiuig-Karl-Bad i-'l^loJC. — Svvimmixg
Baths, Olga-Str. (60 pf.), with orthopaedic apparatus.

Band plays 8-9 a.m. in tlie Tiiuk-Halle, 6-7 p.m. in the Kur-Platz:
also in the Kur-Anlagen. — Theatre daily, except Thurs., at 7.30 \).m.

Mountain Railway to the top of the Sommerberg (p. 26) in 10 min ;

maximum gradient 52:100; fare up 70, down 50 pf., return l^tC; to the
Panorama-Weg station 35, thence to the top 50 pf. The cars start near
the Russischer Hof (see above).

Motor Omnibcses in summer to GernsbacJi, Herrenalb. and Baden-
Baden, see Baedeker's Bfii)te : via Calmbach and Zavelstein to Bad
Teinach ij). 24), three times daily in summer in 65 min. {2Ji); via Calw
and Hirsau to Licbenr:ell (p. 24).

ExciLisH Church (Holi/ Triniii/), S. of the town; services in summer
at 8.30. 11, and 5.

'

Wildbad {14:1b ft.i, a town of 4000 inhab., with celebrated warm
s])i-ings (20,000 patients yearly), extends for about -',

.. M. along the

narrow valley of the Enz. On the right bank is the Haupt-Str.,

ending at the Kur-Platz; on the left the Konig-Karl-Str., constructed

in 1881. The Kur-Platz contains the Protestant Clinrch (1746),

the Koniijliches Bad-Hotel, and the Grosses Bad- Gebtiude. The
springs (91-100° Fahr.), which rise in the baths themselves, are

radio-active and slightly alkaline, and arc efficacious in tbc treatment
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of gout, rheiunatism, paralysis, etc. Beyond are the Kleines Bad-
GebciKcle ^nd the Kafharinen-Stift, with haths for the poor. Farther

on the Olga-Str.. with the Swimmin;/ Baths, and the Kerner-Str.,

with the Catholic Church, diverge to the left along the hill-side.

— Opposite the Katharinen-Stift a bridge leads to the Trink-Halle,

on the left, and the Koni(j-Karls-Bad (PL KB), built in 1883-92,

Avith warm springs (90' Fahr.) and reading-rooms.

Adjoining the Trink-Halle are the Kur-Ardagen. shady gardens

stretching for "1^ M. on both banks of the stream (trout). Immediately

to the right a colonnade leads to the Kurhans, built in 1910, with

restaurant and terrace. P'arthcr to the right, on the hill-side, is the

Kar-Garten (reserved for subscribers). On the right bank of the

Enz are the Kdmgliches Kar-Theater and the Eiu/lish Chitrch.

The Kur-Promenade ends at the garden-restaurant of Bosenau. —
On the right bank, 20 min. from the Kur-Platz, is the garden-

restaurant of Windhof (liotel-pension).

The Sommerherg (2460 ft.) is ascended by a mountain-railway

(p. 25). At the top are two restaurants, one with a garden. A little

to the left is the Sommerherg-Hotel (p. 25), with a terrace. The
pine -woods on the hill are intersected by footpaths: to the left,

above the hotel, the Heermanns-Weg; to the right the Schneisen-

y^c.^^ or Konigin-Emma-Weg, passing the AVintersport-Hiitte, where

the toboggan-run diverges on the right.

The slopes of the Meisterii, on the E. side of the valley, are

reached from* the Protestant church and afford pleasant walks also.

ExcuKsiONS. From tlic upjier station of the momitaiu-raihvay wc
follow the Heermanns-Weg past the (V2 'n"-) Filnf Bditme , or the
Schneisen-Weg past the Saustall-Hiitte and the riiul' Baunie, to (IVa hr.)

the restaurant GrilnJiiitte. Thence we may return by descending the
valley of the Rollwasserhach past the restaurant Gn'fne Tanne and
along the hill-slopes to the Kur-Anlagen. Or we may go on to the W.
(Hoheuweg. p. 24) from the CTriinhiitte to (3/4 hr.) Ww Horn-See AnA Wild-
See (2980 ft.), and between these lakes to {^U ln'O the hunting-lodge of
Kaltenhronn {2S2Q H.) inn; road to the Kalbermiihle, see below), in

Baden, and (V-, hr.) the view-tower on the £ro/i?o7i (.3250 ft.). Descent via
the Latschlg to Forbach (see BaedeTcer's Rhine), 2 lirs. — From the upper
station we may walk via the Sanstall-Hiitte to the (I1/4 hr.) Soldateu-
Brunnen and the Schirm-Hfitte ; then to the right to (1 hr.) the Eijach-
milhle (1570 ft. ; rfmts.). We may return via the Oberer Eiberg and the
Wlldbader Kopf (2310 ft.), descending thence in zigzags to the railway
station. Or wc may follow fine forest-paths (no inn) from the Eyach-
raiihle via (^V-i hr.) Lehmannshof, the (20 min.) forester's house of Diirr-
cjjch, and the (21/4 hrs.) Teicfelsmuhle to (IV2 tr.) Gernsbach (see Bae-
'ieker's Rhine).

A road ascends the Enz valley past the (.3 M.) Kdlberiniihle, with the
pumping-station of the reservoirs supplying 50 parishes, to (71/2 M.) Enz-
klosterle (Hot. Waldhorn); a pleasanter route to Enzklosterle (5 hrs.) is

from the Olga-Str. up the ISTeuer Steig, then by a marked path via Meistern,
Hiihnerherg, the ruin of FcmtBberg,\i\(\ Aichelberg.
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4. From Stuttgart via Eberbach to Hanau
(Frankfort).

1171/.^ M. Express in 4=74 ''i'**- (1"? 1^- "1 ^f<')'- oidinarv train in 9 hrs.

(15, 9, QJC).

From Stutigart to (14:^^^ M:) Bietigheim. see pp. 22-20. The
line follows the riglit bank of the Eiiz for a sliort way, and crosses

it just before it joins the Necl-ar. — 18\'o M. Besigheim ''Hot.

zuin Balmhof, Waldhorn 1, an antiquated little town with 3250 inhab.,

situated on a narrow ridge between the Enz and the Neckar. The
Protestant parisli-church contains a fine carved altar (early 16th cent.).

Other notable buildings are two handsome Romanesque towers (at

the S.AV. and N.E. ends of the town), the Rathaus (1459i, and the

deanery (1572). — The line now follows the left bank of the Neckar
and beyond (21' ^ M.) Kirchheim passes through a tunnel.

251^ M.Lauffen (565 ft.; Hot. Hirsch ; pop. 4540), with an

imposing bridge over the Neckar (1530), the Gothic church of St.

Regiswindis, and (adjacent) the small chapel of the same saint.

From LAirFtx to Leonbkosx. 121/2 M.. branch-line in 1'/^ hr. — l';2 ^I.

Brac\enlieim (Hot. Krone-Post, E. l-l^i^- B. ^12 JC), a small town witli

IWO inhab. and the Crothic Johannis-Kirclie in the cemetery. About 1 hr.

N. lies the picturesque ruined castle gf Neippercj (960 ft.). — 6 M. F)-ai(Ci>-

simmern-Cleebronn. About 1 hr. S.E. of the station, and 2 M. to the S.

of Cleebronn, rises the Michaelsherg (1295 ft.; view), with the late-

Eomancsque Catholic church of St. Michael. About V-> lir. N.W. of the
station is the old ScMoss Stocksberg. — 8 M. Gilglincjcn - Eibenshnch.
About 3/^ hr. S.. on the wooded slopes of the Htromberg, stands the large
ruined castle of Blankenhovn. — 12V2 M. Leonbronn.

The line now follows the Neckar as far as Eberbach (p. 31).

33 M. Heilbronn. — Railivai/ Restaurant. — 'Kor^i.ti. Eoi/al(V\. f:

A. 4), R. 2V.-J, -B. 1. I>. l'/2-2 c«, Bahuhof-Hvtd , both good;' Ctntml
fPl. g; A, 1), new; Badlscher Ilof (PI. e; A, 4), R. 1 ^ 2(i pf. -2 Ji,

]?. 70 pf., all four at the Haupt-Bahnhof. — Nedcar Hotel (PI. a; B, 4),

on the Neckar. R. & B. 2>/.-^c^.- Folke (PI. b: C, 4). Markt-Platz, R. 2-3,

B. 1, D. 21/2-/6;.

Wine Restaurants. Ratskeller. on tlie ground-floor of the Rathaus.
D. 1 ./K 30 pf. : Holl, Kaiscr-Str. 35 (Pl.B, C, 4) ; Albrecht, Alice 23. —Beer
Restaurants. Kilianshallen, Fleiner-Str. 26 (PI. C, 4, 5); Altdeutschc
Bierstube, Rathaus -Gassc 5 (PI. B, 4); Pilsner Urqiiell, Sulmcr-Str. 33
(PI. C, 4, 3).

Post Offices in the Kaiser-Str. (PI. B. 1) and at the station (PI. A, 4).

Baths. Stadt-Bad (PI. C, 5), with swimming-bath. Wollhaus-Str. 7.

Tramways from the Haupt-Bahnhof to tlie Markt-Platz, Alice, and
liarracks; from the Kaiser-Str. to the AVollhaus-Str. and Ost-Str. ; from
the Siilmer-Tor station (PI. C, 1) to the Siilnier-Str., Siid-Bahnhof (PI. C, 6\
and Sontheim (p. 21); to Grossgartach (p. 29) and I0 Bockingen under
construction.

Heilhi^onn (520 ft.), until 1802 a free imperial city, now an

industrial town with 42,700 inhab., is situated on both banks of the

Neckar. The older and more important part is on the right bank.

The chief manufactures are chemicals, machineiy, and fancy goods,

Wine is largely produced in the neighbourhood. Heilbronn is

connected with Mannheim by chain-towing boats for goods traffic.
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From the station iPl. A. 4) the Bahnhof-Str. leads past a

Bismarcl- Munumoit <P1. B, 4), by Kiemlen '1903. then across

the Xeckar to the old town and 1 12 min.) the Markt-Platz fPl. B, C, 4).

Here rises a monument to Bobert Afayet''(1814,-78), the discoverer

of the law of the conservation of energy. On the N. side is the

*Rathaus, Avith its double flight of steps, a Gothic edifice altered

in the Renaissance style in 1579-82 and restored in 1905. It has a

curious clock by Habrecht (1580j. The steps ascend to the spacious

hall on the first floor, whence we enter the council-chamber (tickets

from the keeper, in the hall, to the left; 20 pf.), where Gotz von

Berlichiugen, immortalized by Goethe, threatened to cure 'headache,

toothache, and every other human malady' with blows from his 'iron

hand'. Letters from Giitz. Gustavus Adolphus. Charles XII., and

Schiller are shown in the Archives, built in 1765-9, behind the Eat-

haus. — The old house at the S.W. corner of the Mar^t-Platz

iPl. B, 4). ouce inhabited by the burgomaster, is pointed out as that

ill which the legendary 'Kathcheu of Heilbroun' was born.

The '-^Kilians-Kirche (PI. 0, 4; open daily, except Sat.. 11-1;

verger, Siilmer-Str. 3) dates from the 13th cent., the late-Gothic choir

and aisles from 1426-80; the aisles of the nave also were rebuilt

after 1450 in the late-Gothic st}1e, while the tower (205 ft. high),

crowned with a statue of a 'Landsknccht' (media-val soldier i. was built

in a singular early-Renaissance style by H. Schweincr in 1513-29.

The church was restored in 1886-95 by Beyer. The choir contains

an altar in carved wood (1498t. painted to resemble stone, and a fine

'Sakramentshauschen' p. 170; ca. 1500). — To the S. of the church

is the Kirch-Brunnen. -A reproduction of the original of 1541.

In the Deutschhof-Str., close by, is the Deaisches Haas, origin-

ally an imperial residence, later a lodge of the Teutonic Order, and

now law-courts fLand-Gcricht ; PI. B, 4). The oldest part is the lowest

story, in the Romanesque style, of the tower of the adjacent Catholic

church, in the picturesque court on the N. side. The facade dates

from 1712. At the X. end of the street, to the left, in the old

slaughter-house of 1600, is the Historical Museum (PI. B, 4; open

on week-days 8-12 and 2-6.30, adm. for 1-5 pers. l^/l; Sun. 11-12,

adm. 20, Xov.-Feb. 50 pf. ; free on Sun. 1-3 from April-Sept.; keeper,

Kirchbronnen-Str. 13;.

To the S. of the Deutsches Hans is the Allerheiligen-Str., leading

to the square Gotzen-Td/rm (PI. B, 5), 100 ft. high, in which Goethe,

contrary to fact, represents Gotz as having died (whereas he was
only imprisoned here for one night in 1519; comp. above and p. 31).

To the E. of the tower we ascend the Rosenberg-Str. to the Allee,

a broad avenue with gardens on the site of the old fortifications.

In it is the Harmonie (PI. C, 4;1877), a club-house with the ex-

hibition of the Kunst-Verein. At the N. end of the Allee is the

Keues Theater (PI. C, 3;, by Th. Fischer (1911). Just short of it
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the Turm-Slr. diverges lo the left to tlie Siilnier-Str., in whicii, on

the left, rises the Gothic Nikolai-Kirche (PI. C, 3). Opposite is the

house occupied by Schiller in the autumn of 1793.

Ou the ^'Wartberg (lOlO ft.: mountaiii-railway projecterl), ^^j^ lir. \.,
are an old watch-tuwer and an inn. Charming view of the Neckar-Tal. —
About '/.^ lir. E. of lleilluunn is the Trapjien-See. with the Inselschlrisschen

rfmts.j. About V2 '"• farther E. (forest-path) is the Jdgerhaus (rfmts.),

to the X. of which are large keujier-saudstone quarries. — From the
Jiigerliaus we maj' walk past the Kopfer Quelle through woods to (^/^ hr.)

the view-tower on the *Sch.weinsberg (122,t ft.; 1'/.^ hr. S.E. of Heil-
bronn), wliir-h affords a fine panorama (indifator), embracing the Alb chain
to the S., the Black Forest and Yosgcs to the S.W., the Haardt and
Donuersberg to the W., the Odenwald and Spessart to the X., and the
Lowenstein liills to the E. — The Gdcilien-Wiese. '/•> 'n'- S.E. of Heilbronii.

presents a busy scene at the vintage-season. — About ^/^ hr. N. of Heil-
broun lies the rock-salt mine of Salzgyand.

From Heilbronu to Seineiihisch-Hall and Hesisental, see K. 5; to Mar-
baek, see p. 21. — .Steamer to Heidelberg twice weekly in summer.

From Heilbronx to Duklach (Carlsruhe), il'/o M., railway (Kraich-
gau-Bahn) in 2-21/4 hrs. — 31/2 M. Grossgartach. — 13 M. Sehwalgern.
with a Schloss and a late-Clothic church (l.oli) containing an altar by
Jerg Ratgeb (1510). — We enter Baden. — 15 M. Eppingen. To Stein?,-

fnrt, see p. 30. — 221/2 M. Flehingen, to the E. of which is Siekingeii,
with the ruined ancestral castle of the Sickingeu familv. — 29 M. Bretten

p. 18). — 40 M. Grotzingen (p. 2-i). — ilt/., M. Darl'ach (p. 24).

Near (36 M.) Necl-arsulm (Hot. Prinz Karl), a pleasant town

of 5200 inhab., with an old castle of the Teutonic Order and cycle

factories, the train returns to the Xeekar. — 38^
.2 M. Kochendorf,

' 2 M. to the N.E., has two castles and a fine Rathans (a timber build-

ing- of 1597). AVe cross the Kocher.

40 M. Jagstfeld (Rail. Restaurant; Briiuniuger's Bad-Hotel,

with terrace on the Neckar), at the mouth of the Jagsf, has salinr

baths. Continuation of the Hanau line, see p. 31.
Branch-line to (l-i'/2 ^1.) Ohrnberg, via (71/2 M.) Nenensiadt am Kocher.

a small town with a venerable lime-tree 42 ft. in circumference. — From
Jagstfeld to Oiterbiirken and WilrzbKrg, see R. 17.

From Jagstfeld via Meckesheim to Heidelberg, 35 M.. rail-

way in 1^,4 lir. The train crosses the Xeckar. — 2 M. Wimpfen
(780 ft.), a Hessian enclave since 1803, consists of Wimpfen im

Ted ('/., hr. W. of Jagstfeld), with the salt-works of Liidwicjshall.

and of the old free town of Wimpfen am Berg (Hot. Mathiklen-Bad,

with a view -terrace over the Neckar; Bad -Hotel Ritter, near the

station, R. 1V2-3, P. 3' '.^-5 ^M), with 3200 inhab., salt-baths, and

[licturesque old houses, towers, and walls.

Wimpfen am Bkrg. From the Hotel Ritter, near the station,

we ascend to the right {W.) through the Stadt -Tor and along the

Untere Haupt-Str. After 4 min. we turn to the right through the

Hohenstaufen-7\jr and reach (2 min.) the Rufer Turm, whence
we obtain a view of the Neckar, Jagst, and Kocher valleys. AVe

retrace our steps and follow the Burg-Gasse straight on to the
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*Imperial Palace of the Holienstaufens, built ca. 1200. Tlie remains

include (besides the Roter and Blauer Turm) part of the ramparts,

the chapel (now a stable, but probably to be restored), the N. wall

of the 'Saalbau' or residence, with its fine dwarf arcades of coupled

columns, and the 'Steinhaus' with its stepped gable. Farther W.
is the Blauer Turm, 180 ft. high. Close by, straight on, lies the

market-place, with the Protestant church and the Mathilden-Bad

(p. 29; to the right, some Avay from the street).

The Protestant Parish Church, with nave and aisles of equal

height and without transepts, has two towers, an early- Gothic

choir, and a late-Gothic nave (end of 15th cent.). The interior

(verger, Salz-Gasse 83) contains, by the E. wall of the N. aisle, the

late-Gothic altar of St. Quirinus (ca. 1500); to the left of the early-

Eenaissance high -altar (1519) is a 'Sakramentshauschen' (p. 170)

executed by Meister Hans in 1451. — Opposite the S.W. angle of

the church is a Calvary of about 1500.

From the market-place we follow the Salz-Gasse "\V., passing

the Adler-Brunnen (1576), and take the Schul-Str. to the left to

the (5 min.) Dominican church, now the Catholic Parish ChurcJi.

rebuilt early in the 18th cent., with Gothic cloisters (13th-15th cent.).

In the interior (sacristan, Schul-Str. 342) are wood -carvings of

1475, rococo choir-stalls (1774), and 15th cent, stone monuments.
"We return to the Mathilden-Bad and follovr a footpath to the

E., above the Neckar, to (6 min.) the station. About half-way we
enjoy a good view of the arcades of the palace (see above).

Wlmpfex im Tal. Leaving the station, we descend to the left

(E.) at the Hotel Ritter, leaving Ludwigshall I'p. 29) on the right,

to (1/4 hr.) the early-Gothic "^Abbey Church of St. Peter, built by

a Paris architect in 1269-80 on the foundations of a twelve-sided

early-Romanesque structure and restored in 1899-1903. It was the

first Gothic church in the Xeckar district. The S. transept is espe-^

cially admirable. In the interior (verger opposite the N.E. corner),

the ground-plan of which is remarkably irregular, the early-Grothic

choir-stalls (1330) should be noticed; the terracotta Pieta in a niche

on the S. side of the choir -screen dates from about 1440, but has

been repainted. The Gothic cloisters on the N. side of the church

date from the early 14th century.
From the Mathilden-Bad (p. 29) a pretty path leads via Heinsheim

to the (IV4 hr.) ruin of Ehrenherg (p. 31), whence it goes ou via Schloss
Ciuttenberg to (IV2 hr.) Guudelsheini (p. 31).

We next traverse a hilly and partly wooded district. — 5V.^M.

Rappenau (Hot. Saline, r! 1^4-2, D. 2, P. 4iyV5 .JC, good), with

salt-baths. — I41/2 M. Steinsfurt. Branch-line to (8 M.) Eppingeii

(p. 29). Xear Weiler, ^ 4 hr. S.W., is the fine Romanesque ruin of

Steiusberg (view from the tower). — 16 M. Sinsheim. near which
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Tureniie defeated the imperial army in 1674. The line follows the

Elsenz-Tal. — 22^/.^M.AfecIcesheim (rail, restaurant), on theElsenz,

junction for Neckarelz (p. 130) and for Wiesloch (p. 18). — 28V2 M.

Neckargemiivd . and thence to (Sb M.) Heidelberg, see p. 131.

CoxTixuATiox OF THE Hanau Lixe. Bcvond Jagstfeld (p. 29)

we cross the Jagst and near (41 \ 2^-) Offenaa, with the salt-springs

of ClemeDshalL we enter the lower part of the charming vine-clad

Neckar-Tal, with iti5 numerous castles. — 43' j ^^- Heinsheim, on

the left bank, with a Schloss. Above it rises the ruin of Ehrenhevfi

(key at the house on the right of the entrance); tlience to the Ma-
thilden-liad or to Gundelsheim, see p. 30. — 45 M. Guadelsheirn

(Hot. AViirttembei'ger Hof) , a small town -with walls and towers.

fSchloss Hornegg, on an ivy-clad rock, is now a sanatorium. Oppo-
site, on a hill on the left bank, is Schloss Guftenherg. -- The train

then penetrates the Michaelsherg by a tunnel 950 yds. long to

(46^2 M.) Hassmersheim (Hot. Anker). On the right, above, rises

the picturesque ruin of Horvherg, with a lofty round tower, once

the seat of Gtitz vou Berlichingen, who died here in 1562 (comp.

p. 28). — 49 M. Hochhaaseri. — We cross the Eh to (50' .> M.)

Neckarelz, junction for Osterburken and Heidelberg (]3. 130).

Beyond (53 M.) Binau we pass through a tunnel 875 yds. long.

— 55 M. Neckargerach (Hot. Krone & Post). On the left bank is

the Minneburg , destroyed in the Thirty Years' War. — 57 31.

Zwingenberg (490 ft.; Hot. Anker, Hot. -Pens. Schifi), with the

picturesque castle of the Grand-Duke of Baden. Ascent of the

Katzenbuckel (see below) through the romantic Wolfs - Schhicht

^

2' 2 hrs. — On the left bank is the ruin oi Stolzeueck (13th cent.).

"63 M. Eberbach (430 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Krone, R.

1 ^l 80 pf.-3 Jl, Leininger Hof, R. 1', 2-2 ^//, both good), an old

town of 6400 inhab., with a restored castle. The Katzenbuckel
(2060 ft.), the highest of the Odenwald hills, with a view-tower,

may be ascended hence in 2 hrs.; descent in l^j^ hr. to Zwingenberg
(see above) or in 1 hr. to Gaimlihle (sec below). The line to Heidel-

berg (p. 130) diverges at Eberbach.
Our line turns to the right into the grassy and wooded valley

of the Itterbach. — From (67 M.) Gaimuhle the Katzenbuckel
(see above) may be ascended in 1^/4 hr. We cross several viaducts.

~ 71 M. Kailbach (Hot. -Pens. Stahlj. Omn. to Amorbach, see

p. 112. — 741/2 M. Schollenbach (935 ft.). Tiie train pierces the

Krdhberg (1800 ft.) by a tunnel 2 M. long and descends to the

Milmliug-Tal. — 77 M. Hetzbach. Branch -line to (3 M.) Beer-

felden, whence the picturesque Gammelsbacher Tal descends to the

Neckar (p. 130). — We cross i\\Q Himbachel Viaduct, 145 ft. high.

82 M. Erbach (720 ft. ; Hot. Odenwald. P. 4-4V . -^^ : Sehiitzeu-

hof), a town with 3200 inhab.. is the principal place on tlie estates
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of Count Erbacb. The Scbloss (ca. 1550; coutaius iuterestiug col-

lections (armour, weapons, etc.). Iw tlie chapel is a stone sarco-

phagus of the 13th or 14th cent., brought from Seligenstadt in

1810, and used at one time as the repository of the remains of

Eginhard (d. 840; see below) and his wife Emma (d. 836).

84 M. Michelstadt (685 ft.; Hot. Friedrich, R. Vj^-2 JC

:

Dr. (ligglberger's Sanatorium), a prettily situated little town of

3600 inhab., with a late-Gothic church (15th cent.) and a quaint

Rathaus (1484). Opposite, on the left bank, is Hieinhach^ near

which is a basilica erected in 8-27 for a convent founded by Egin-

hard (see below), one of the most important relics of the Carlo-

vingian epoch.
From Michelstadt a high-road leads E. to (£1/2 hrs.) Amorbach (p. 112 1.

via (IV2 hr.) the hunting-lodge of Eidbach, in the park of which the

remains of two forts of the Pfahl-Graben (p. 214) have been erected.

From Michelstadt to Milteabevg, see p. 112.

"We next pass Schloss Filrstenau, on the left. The Miimling-

Tal contracts. — 88 M. Konig (Hot. Biichneri, with chalybeate

springs, a Kurhans, and a castle of the Counts of Erbach. — 91^/., M.

Hochsf im Odenivald (520 ft.; Hot. Post), whence a branch-line

continues down the Miimling-Tal to i2{)^U M.) Aschaffenburg (p. 111).

— We then thread a long tunnel to (95 1/0 M.) Wiehelshach-Hen-

hach. — 98 M. Gross- Umstadt. — 105 M. Bahenhauseu. junction

for Aschaffenburg aud Darmstadt (p. 111).

Ill M. Seliyeiistadt, with 4900 inhab., is famous for the Bene-

dictine abbey founded here in 828 by Eginhard (or Einhard), the

biographer of Charlemagne. Portions of an imperial palace (pro-

bably after 1220) are still extant. — We cross the Main to

(II71 o M.) Hanau fp. 107).

5. From Heilbronn via Schwabisch-Hall to

Hessental (Nuremberg),

38 M. Railway in 13/4-2 hrs. (express to Xuremberg in 31/2 hrs.). This
is the shortest route between Nuremberg and Carlsruhe (via Bretten and
Durlach, see p. 29). •

Heilhronn, see p. 27. The train crosses the Neckar. — 2 ]\[.

Heilhronn-Karlstor. Tunnel (975 yds.).

4I/2 M. Weinsberg (640 ft.; Hot. Traube, 4 min. from the

station, R. 1^4-2, D. IV2-2 c^^l ; comp. inset-map, p. 27), a little

town with 3270 inhab., overlooked by the remains of the Weiber-

treu (p. 33). From the station we descend straight on and then as-

cend through the town to the left to the (10 min.) Parish Church, a

Romanesque basilica of ca. 1200 with alternate columns and pillars

and a tower between the nave and the late-Gothic choir. On the

right wall of the choir is a picture of 1650, representing the women
quitting the castle. In front of the church is a monument to John
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(Ecolanqjcidius (1A8'2-15M), the reformer, a native of Weinsberg.

Aboitt 2 mill. E. is the hoiise in which Justinus Kerner (1786-

1862), the poet and spiritualist, lived and died, containing many
souvenirs of him. Near it is a monument with a medallion-portrait.

Ascending to the "W. from the church we reach (10 min.) the

ruined castle of WeiherU'eu ('women's troth'), on a vine-clad hill

(900 ft.). When this castle was captured by Conrad III. in 1140,

he granted the women permission to bear off with them their most

valued treasure. The women, as narrated in Burger's ballad, there-

upon carried out their husbands on their backs. The castle was

destroyed in the Peasants' War (1525).

We next traverse the fertile Weinsberger Tal. — 8 M. Wills-

bach. On a hill to the right {-V-l^ M.; motor-omn. in ^j^ hr.) is the

small town of Lowenstein (1260 ft.; Hot. Sonne), commanded by

the ruined castle of the Lowenstein-Wertheira family. In a narrow

valley at the N.W. foot of the hill lies the Theusser Bad, with

springs containing sulphates of magnesia and lime. About ^/^ hr.

E. is Lichfenstern, formerly a Cistercian nunnery, now a reforma-

tory for children and normal school. — Beyond (10 M.) Eschenau
the train descends into the valley of the Br-ettach.

17 M. Ohringen (770 ft. ; Hot. Wiirttemberger Hof
;
pop. 3800)

is a pleasant town on the Ohm, with a castle of Prince Hohenlohc-

Ohringen, a Renaissance building of the 17th cent. (5 min. S. of the

station). The late-Gothic Abbey Church of SS. Peter and Paul
(1450-91 ; fee to the verger), with its tAVo towers, contains four monu-
ments of the Hohenlohe family; in a side-chapel in the cloisters is

the middle panel of the old high-altar, with five figures carved in

wood (ca. 1500), The Schloss has a fine park.

21M.Neuensteiti (Hot. Krone, Rossle) has a Renaissance Schloss

(1556-9) of the Hohenlohe -Neuenstein family, lately restored. It

contains a collection of antiquities (ivory carvings, goblets, wooden
statues of the 16th-17th cent.).

24 M. Waldenbury (rail, restaurant). The little walled town

of that name (Hot. Adler, Lowe), situated on a spur of a hill ^ ^ hr.

to the right (S.W.), has a handsome Schloss of Prince Hohenlohe-

Waldenburg-Schillingsflirst (fine view). Branch-line to (7^/2 M.)

Ki'uizelsau (Hot. Glocke), a small town in the Kocher-Tal. —
Beyond (26^/2 M.) Kupfer the train descends to (29 M.) Gailen-

Hrcheii and the valley of the Kocher.

34 M. Scliwabisch-Hall. — Railway Restaurant. — Hotels.
Lainin-Post, Xcuc Stv. 7, R. 1V-.-2 .«, B. 80 pf., D. 1 ./K 50-2 J6 20 pf. ;

Adler, Markt-Platz, R. 1 Ji 10-2 ".« 20, B. 80 pf., D. IV2-2V2 '^; ^ur Eiscn-
bahn. — Post & Tklegijaph Office, Schuppach-Str. —• Inquiry Office
of the Verkelirs-Verein at the Rathaus.

Hall or Schwabisch-Hall (885 ft.), a quaint old town with

9320 inhab., first mentioned in a document of 1037 and a free city

Baedeker's S. Germauy. 12th L^dit. 3
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of the empire down to 1802, is picturesquely situated on both banks

of the Kocher. Parts of the old fortifications are still preserved.

The first Heller (Hallerj were coined at Hall early in the 13th cent-

ury. — From the station we descend to the left, passing the Pulver-

Turm, and then follow the Lange Str. to the right, on the left side

of which rises the Gothic Katharinen-Kirclie (14th cent,), con-

taining a fine high -altar (ca. 1460). Farther on we take the Stutt-

garter Str, to the right, cross the Henkers-Briicke (to the left to

the picturesque Weiler Tor)^ and follow the Xeue Str. to (Y4 br.)

the Markt-Platz, The imposing fSt. Michaels-Kirche, on a terrace

on the E. side of the market-place and approached by a flight of

54 steps, was originally Eomanesque (tower and portal*, but was

rebuilt in 1430-56 in the Gothic style; the choir vras completed in

1525, The interior (verger, Pfarr-Gasse 17; fee 30 pf.), contains

a high-altar of about 1460, a 'Sakramentshauschen' (p, 170) of 1447,

another altar of 1509, and other sculptures. The baroque Rathaus
(1732-5), "W. of the church, contains paintings by L. Eetti. Adjoining

it on the S, is the old Franciscan Convent, with fine Renaissance

portals. On the K side of the market-place is the Fisch-Brunnen

(1509), with sculptures (Samson, St, ]\Iichael, and St, George). Above,

to the right, is the Pillory, a modern reproduction (comp. below).

To the S.E, of the market-place are the Crailsheimer Tor and the

iseuer Bau or Buchsenhaus (1521), rising above the town. At
Heilbronner Str, 47, N. of the market-place, is a frame-house of

1605, containing a Collection of Antiquities io])en daily April-Sept.

10-12 and 2-4, 40 pf.;. free on Sun. 11-12 from May 15th to Aug.

15th; guide 20 pf. ; keeper at Xo. 49). On the ground-floor is the

original of the pillory (see above); first floor, prehistoric, Roman,
and Frankish antiquities, guild -insignia; second floor, ceramics

(16th-18th cent,); third floor, room from an old farmhouse and a

synagogue of 1739; also a collection of coins ('shown by request).

Still farther N., by the river, are the Boyal Salt Worhs. About
4 min, S.W. of the market-place are the Saline Baths (hotel), on

an island in the Kocher. To the S,E, of this point, beyond the St.

Urhans-Kapelle in the suburb of Unterlimpurg (second half of

13th cent.), is (20 min,) the ruined castle of Limpurg, celebrated

by Uhland, with a pretty view of the Kocher valley.

The old Benedictine abbey of Komburg (good inn), above Steinbach,
1/4 br. from the Limpurg. was founded in 1075 and is now occupied by
military offices. The walls date from the second half of the 16th cent-

ury. "\Ve enter through three gateways, the third of which is Eomanesque,
The hexagonal Eomanesque building through which we next pass was
perhaps the baptistery. The abbey -church of St. Xicholas, with its

three towers, was rebuilt in the baroque style in 1706-15 on the foundations
of a Eomanesque basilica. It possesses an embossed antependium in

gilded copper, of about lloO, and a richly carved circular *Chandelier
of the same period, 15 ft. in diameter, representing the twelve gates of

Jerusalem the Golden (lowered for inspection for 4:Ji). In the sacristy are

two bronze Eomanesque candelabra. The church is adjoined by cloisters
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(partly Romanesque) and two chapels with fine tombstones. — Opposite
the abbey, to the S., is the old nunnery of Klein-Komburg (now a prison),

with a Romanesque church (first half of 12th cent.)- In the choir are

contemporary paintings in tempera. — Steiubach is 23 min.'s walk from
Hessental (sep below).

Beyond Hall (view of the Konibur^' to the left) the train crosses

the Kocher by a viaduct 135 ft. in height and passes through two

tunnels. — 38 M. Hessental (rail, restaurant), junction for the

Stuttgart, Crailsheiiii, and Nuremberg line (p. 36). The station lies

at the foot of the Einkorn (1675 ft,; Vg hr.), often visited from Hall

(1^/4 hr.), with a ruined church, view-tow^er (20 pf.), and restaurant.

6. From Stuttgart via Backnang and
Crailsheim to Nuremberg.

118'/.; M. Express in 3-4 hrs. (17. 11, 7.^); ordinary train in 7-8 hrs.

(15, 9, 6 JC). — From Stuttgart to Xuremberg via Xordlingen, sec R. 7.

From Stuttgart to (8M.) Waiblingen, see p. 38. The line crosses

the deep Bems-Tal by an iron bridge 150 ft. high. — lO^/gM. Nev-
stadt. — 131/2^1. Winnenden (930 ft.; Hot. Krone), a liftle town,

with Schloss Winnental, formerly a lodge of the Teutonic Order,

now a lunatic asylum. To the right (E.) is the ruined tower oiBUrij.

Pleasant walk via Buoch (p. 38) to the Renis-Tal (to Grunbach
2*/2 hrs.). — 16 M. Nellmershach. To the right, on a spur of tlie

Murrhardter Wald, a part of the Welzheimer Wald (p. 38), appears

Schloss Ehersherg. — IT^/gM. Mauhach. We enter the jMurr-Tal.
191/2 M. Backnang (910 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Post), a

town of 8700 inhab. on the Murr, with tanneries. The parish-church

on the Schlossberg, originally Romanesque, has a late-Gothic choir

with the brasses of Margrave Hermann of Baden and his family

(1515). Of the Michaels -Kirche tlie beautiful early-Gothic choir

(ca. 1250) is the only part extant. The fountain in the market-place

dates from 1587.
From Backnang via Marbach to Bietighchn, see pp. 21, 20.

231/2 M. Opj)enweUer, with an old Schloss. On the height to

the left is the consumptive sanatorium of WUhelmsheim. Below
it is Schloss Reichcnherg. — 251/2 M. Sidzhach an der Murr.
The train crosses the Murr.

29 M. Murrhardt (950 ft.; Hot. Sonne or Post. R. 1-1', 2 ^^

:

Stern), an ancient little town (4200 inhab.) in a fine situation,

once a Benedictine abbey. The parish-church (1434), formerly the

abbey- church, and the late -Romanesque AValderichs-Kapelle (ca.

1220), adjoining its N. tower, will repay a visit. In the old ceme-
tery on the hill is the late-Gothic AValderichs-Kirche. The Roman
castrum lay to the S.E. of the town. The Roman 'limes' (p. 214) from
Welzheim to Mainhardt, crossing the Murr-Tal, passes •

, hr. to llie

E. of Murrhardt. — 32\'. M. Forn^bach,
3*
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Pleasant excursion (road) S. to the (2 hrs.) Ebni-See (1555 ft.), a

pretty forest-lake. About 20 min. S.E., by the Roman 'limes', is Gaus-
mannsiceHer (Kot. zum Ebni-See), a summer resort; thence to Welzheim,
see p. 38.

The train i)asses through the ridge called the 'Schauz' by
a tunnel 940 yds. long, and enters the Rot-Tal near (35^2 ^•)

Fichtenberg. Another tunnel leads to the Kocher-Tal. — SS^/g M.
Gaildorf. Branch-line S.E. through the Kocher-Tal via (IY4M.)
the little town of Gaildorf (Hot. P.ost), with 1770 inhab., three

castles, and interesting tombs (in the parish -church), to (12 M.)

Z ^ntergrontnr/en.

The Kocher is crossed. — View of the Einkorn (p. 35; right) and

Komburg (p. 34; left) shortly before {4:h^l^M..) Hessental (p. 35).

The train enters the Hohenlohe plain. — 49 ]\I. Sulzdorf. Omn.
twice daily to Yellberg (see below), ^'4 hr. E. — oV!^ M. Talheim-
Vellberg. About 25 min. X. is the picturesque little town of Vell-

herg, with a Schloss. —'We cross the Biihler by a viaduct, 150 ft.

in height. — 56 j\I. Eckartshausen.
KircTibcrg (Hot. Wiirttenihergcr Hof), a prettily situated little town

im the Jagst, 51/2 ^f- to the X.E. (motor-omn. in 3/4 lir.), has a Schloss of
Prince Hohenlohe- Ohringeu , v/ith interesting collections. Opposite is

Hornberq, with a Schloss. Motor-omn. from Kii-chberg to (5 M., in ^/^ hr.)

Rut am See (see below).

59 M. Maulach. Pleasant excursion S.W. to the {^/^ hr.) Burg-
berg (1750 ft.; rfmts.), with an earthen rampart and a fine view.

63 M. Crailsheim (1340 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Faber;

Lamm, R. 1 ^7^ 20-1 o/^ 50, B. 70 pf.), a town of 6100 inhab. on the

Jagst. The G-othic Johannis-Kirche contains a high-altar carved in

wood (late 15th cent.), a 'Sakramentshiiuschen' (p. 170) of 1499, and

noteworthy tombs. On the"V\'ilhelms-Hohe, 25 min.N.E., are gardens

and a geological pyramid.
From Crailsheim to Lauda, 43 M., railway in 2-2i/ihrs. — 91/2 M.

Bot am See. Omn. to Rothenburg ob der Tauber.'see p. 221 ; motor-omn. to

Kirchberg, see above.— ISV^M- Blaufelden. Branch-line to (Ti/o^-) Lange7i-
hii7-g, with a Renaissance Schloss of Prince Hohenlohe -Langenburg. —
From (18 M.) Schrozberg (Hot. Lamm, R. I-IV2 '-^, B. 60 pf.) a marked
forest-path leads to (lOVo M.) Rothenburg (p. 217). — 24 M. Niederstetten
riOSO ft. : Hot. Post, R. 1^'^JC, B. 70 pf.), an old town with Schloss Halten-
liergstetten, the residence of Prince Hohenlohe -Bartenstein. — 28 M.
Lniidenbach (Hot. Hirsch), with a fine late-Gothic pilgrimage-church. —
30 M. Weikersheim (755 ft. ; Hot. Krone, R. 1 ^ 20-1 ^S 80 pf. ; Hirsch),
on the Tanber, with a Schloss of Prince Hohenlohe-Laugenburg, a char-

acteristic edifice of 1596 (large banqueting-hail : fee 50 pf .). The neglected
gardens, laid out in 1715-25, contain an orangery in the Italian baroque
style. Railway via (5 M.) Bottingen (p. 216) to (lOi/., M.) Creglinqen
rp! 221\ — 33i'2*^l- MarkeWieim, with productive vineyards. — 36V2M. Bad
Mergentheim (680 ft. : Rail. Restaurant : Hot. Hirsch, in the market-
place. R. l„^25-lc^80, B. 75 pf. ; Deutscher Hof. at the station) is an
old town on the Tauber (pop. 4750). where the Master of the Teutonic
Order resided from 1526 to 1809. The early-Gothic parish-church dates
from 1250-70. The late-Gothic Rathaus (1564) contains a collection of an-

tiquities. In. the Oberer Markt are a Renaissance house with a fine portal

and the Marien-Kirche, with the tomb of Grand-Master Walther von Cron-
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berg, by Hans Viscl)er (1539). The large Schloss, built in the Renaissance

style in 15:25-72, is now partly used as barracks ; its baroque chuvc li

was built in 1730-35 by J. B. Neumann (p. 118). Beyond the park of the

Schloss is the Karlsbad (Kurhaus, R. 2-5, P. from 7 t^, closed Oct.-March;

Hot. Hans Hohenlohe ; visitors' tax 5 JC per week), with springs contain-

ing salt and sulphate of magnesia. Stuppach (p. 126) is 3 M. to the S. of

Mergentheim. — 41 M. Konigshofen (p. 130). — 43 M. LamJa, junction

for Wiirzburg, Heidelberg, and Wertheim (p. 129).

From Crailsheim to Aalex, 23 M., railway in y.yl^l^hr.; 1o I'l/ii,

via Aalen and Heideuheim (p. 40), GS'/.- M. in 2-31/2 hrs. — The liu.-

ascends to the S., on the left bank of the Jagst. — 13 M. Ellwangeu
(1425 ft. ; Hot. Lamm, R. V!.2^^, D. 1 -* 60 pf.), a little town of 4720 inhab..

with a castle on a hill (early 17th cent.), was a small ecclesiastical

principality down to 1802 (collection of antiquities in the Schloss-Kirclie.

20 pf.). The Stifts-Kirche of St. Yeit, founded in 746-764 by Hariolf ami
his brother Erlolf, Bishop of Langres, and rebuilt in 1146-1230, is a

Romanesque basilica with three towers and a crypt. The interior was
adorned with stucco-ornamentation in 1738. The adjoining Jesuit church

(1724-9), now Protestant, contains ceiling-paintings by T. Schcffler. On the

Schonenbei-g (1715 ft.), V2 hr. N.E., is the pilgrimage-church of St. Maria,

erected in 1682 and rebuilt in 1715 in the late- baroque style. — At
(I81/0 M.) Goldshofe we join the Stuttgart and Nordlingen line (p. 41),

which we follow to (23 M.) Aalen (p. 40).

The train cro.sses the Jagst and beyond (67\ oM.) Ellrichshauaen

readies the Bavarian frontier. — 77 M. DomhiiJil (Hot, znrEisen-

bahn), junction for Dinkelsbiihl and Nordlingen (p. 193) and for

Rothenburg (p. 221). — "NVe cross the Alfmuhl. — 85 M. Leufpis-

hausen-Wiedershach. Motor- omn. via the qnaint old town of

Leutershausen, V 2 ^i'- ^^, to Rothenbnrg, see p. 221. A branch-

line from Ansbacii diverges here down the broad valley of the Alt-

iMiihl to (13 M.) Herrieden and (20\ o M.) Bechhofen.

911/0 M. Ansbach (p. 221), junction for the Frankfort and

Munich line. Onr line runs for a short distance through the Rezaf-

Tal, and then turns to the N.E. — 98 IsL WicHesgreuth. Branch-

line to (7^2 ^^O Windshach, with well-preserved mediseval for-

tifications; motor-omn. thence to Roth am Sand, see p. 139.

1021/0 M. Heilsbronn (1345 ft.; Hot. Adler), a village oc-

cupying the site of a famous Cistercian abbey, of which some Ro-

manesque and Grothic remains still survive (^^hr. from the station;

adm. 40 pf.). Next the church is the former refectory (?), now a

Catholic chapel; its florid Romanesque portal has been removed to

the Germanic Musenm at Nuremberg (p. 183). The church, a Roman-
esque basilica with a timber roof, begun before 1132, with a Gothic

choir (1263-80) and aisle (1430-35), was badly restored in 1851 -GO.

The abbey-church was the burial-place of the Franconian line of the

Hohenzollerns from 1297 to 1625 and contains also the ashes of the first

tliree Brandenburg Electors of that house, Frederick I., Frederick II.,

and Albert Achilles. In the W. part of the nave is the monument of the

Electress Anna of Brandenburg (d. 1512), second wife of Albert Achilles ;

on either side steps descend to a spring which rises beneath the churcli.

To the E. are the monuments of the Margraves Joachim Ernest (d. 1625)

and George Frederick (d. 1603), with eight statuettes of Counts of Zollern.

In the X. aisle is the large tombstone of Margrave Frederick (d. 1536) and

402398
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his son George (d. 1543), by Loy Hering (?). In tlie choir, to the left,

are a fine wooden crucifix and a late-G-othic 'Sakramentshauschen' (p. 170;
1515). The church contains also many other memorials of the Burgraves
and Margraves of Zollern and of Franconian knights, in the shape of
frescoes, portraits on wood, canvas, and glass, epitaphs, hatchments, etc.

;

also several v%'ell-preserved altar-jiieces with carvings and paintings of
the Nuremberg school of the 15th-16th centuries.

109^2 ^I- Bossstall, with an old chiircli. — We then cross the

Rednitz to (llo^o M.) Stein an cler Rednitz, with Faber's cele-

brated lead-pencil factory, founded in 1760. — 117 M. ScJnoeinau

.

1181 '^ M. Nuremherg (p. 163).

7. Prom Stuttgart to Nordlingen and
Nureraberg.

13-4 M. Express to (72 M.) Nordlingen in 2 hrs. (10 Ji, % JL 70, 4 ,M,

10 pf.), ordinary train in 3i/.2-4hrs. (9 ^, ft Ji 70, Z Ji 60 pf.); thence to

(62 M.) Nuremberg (Bavarian State Railway), express in 2 hrs., ordinary
train in 3-5 hrs. Express from Stuttgart to Nuremberg via Nordlingen
in 4 hrs. (18 ^4L 80, 12 .^20, 1 JO 70 pf.); via Crailsheim. see R. 6. —
Best views to the right.

From Stuttgart to (21/2 M.) Stiittgart-CannstaU, see p. 15. The
line ascends the hill which separates the valleys of the Neckar and

the Rems. — 6 M. Fellhach (920 ft.; Hot. Traube); IV4 br. S.E. is

the Kernen (p. 42).

8 M. Waiblingen (885 ft.), junction for theMurr-Tal line (p. 35).

The ancient town of that name ('720 ft.; Hot. Post, Adler), with

7000 inhab., lies on the Rems, 2/3 M. to the left (X. E.), below the

station. The imperial Salic line and the succeeding house of Hohen-
staufen derived hence their name of "Waiblinger (corrupted by the

Italians into Grhibellini).

The fertile and picturesque i?ews-TaZ, enclosed by the Schur-
wald on the right and the spurs of the Welzlieimer Wald on the

left, begins here. — 11 M. Endershach. Ascent of the Kernen,

see p. 42. About -"/^ hr. S.E. lies Schnaith, birthplace of the com-
poser Silchner (p. 56). — 13^/2 M. Gninbach (Hot. Hirsch), 2 M.
to the N. of which is Bvoch (1700 ft.; Hot. Krone), with a belvedere

(view of the Swabian Alb). To "Winnenden, see p. 35.

I81/2 M. ^c/ior^c^or/ (840_ft.; Hot. Krone, R. l^j^^l: Lamm),
an old industrial town with 6750 inhab., has a late -Gothic church

with a fine choir of 1501. Branch -line up the Wieslauf-Tal to

(141/2 ^L) Wehheim (1650 ft.; Hot. Lamm, Ebni-See). a small town
of 2000 inhab., an ancient Roman settlement on the 'limes' (p. 39).

Thence to Gausmannsweiler 'p. 36), 1 hr. — Short of (21 M.) TJrhach

we cross the Rems. — 24^2 M. Waldhausen (880 ft.; rail, restau-

rant). To the left, above, is the sanatorium of Elisahefhenherg.

About 1 4 hr. E. of (271/2 M.) Lorch (920 ft.; Hot. Harmonic,

R. 1Y2-2V2^> 2- 70 pf.), on the Marienberg, rises the Benedictine
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monastery of that name (1115 ft.), founded by the Hohenstaufen in

1102, partly destroyed in 1525 during the Peasants' War, and re-

stored in 1884. It contains several tombs of the Hohenstaufen

family, but none of its more distinguished members. In the centre

of the nave is a late-Grothic cenotaph, erected in 1475 to the founder

Duke Frederick of Swabia (d. 1105).
Lorch was the site of a Roman castrum. To the N. of the monastery-

hill the Rhine Limes (boundary) of the Romans joins the Rhsetian limes,
which extends to the E., reaching the Danube near Kelheim (p. 214). —
Ascent of the Hohenstaufen, see p. 68.

Beyond Lorch we obtain a glimpse of the Hohenstaufen (p. 69)

to the right, and afterwards the double-peaked Hohenrechberg (p. 68).

In the valley lies Schirenhof, a Roman castrum„

31^0 jM. Gmiind or Schwabiscli-Gniuiid (1055 ft.; Rail.

Restaurant; Hot. Arohe. near the station, R. lVo-2i;.tcx//, D. 1 cj^ 30-

2 cV/ 50 pf. ; Drei Mohren, R. 1 cV^ 70 pf.-2 ^l, Goldeues Rad, R. 2 ^,
D. 1 ^y^40pf., both in the market-place), with 21,300 inhab., on

the left bank of the JRems, was formerly a free city of the empire

and now possesses many factories of gold and silver ware. It was
the birthplace of the painter Hans Baldung G-rien (b. ca. 1475) and

of the architects Heinrich and Peter (Parler) von G-miind. — From
the station we follow the Bahnhof-Str. straight on; beyond the

Rems, to the right, is the Stadt- Garten, with a fountain (Tiddler

of Gmiind'). Farther on, short of the FUnfknopfiger Turm, we
cross the Waldstetter Bach, follow the promenade to the right, and

at the next bridge turn to the left through the Bocks-G-asse to the

(12 min.) market-place. To the left (W.) is the St. Johannis-Kirche,
a late-Romanesque basilica of the early 13th cent., with a tower

(155 ft. high) and reliefs of animals on the exterior. At the S. end of

the market-place is the Rathaus (1783-5), at the X. end the Hospital
zum Heilige)} Geist (founded in the 13th cent.). A little S. of the

St. Johannis-Kirche is the Catholic HeiliglTeuz-Kirche, a lofty

Gothic church with radiating chapels but no tower, ranking with

the Marien-Kirche at Reutlingen as the chief 14th cent, building in

Lower Swabia. The sculptures on the choir-portals, the baroque

organ (1688), and the rich treasury are noteworthy. To the N. of

the church is a singular belfry, with a tiled roof. To the E. is the

Lion Fountain (1604). About 10 min. S., in the Schiller-Str., is the

new technical school of metal-work, with the municipal Collection

of Antiquities (Sun., 11-2; at other times, gratuity). — About
12 min. W. of the station (to the left, under the railway, and then

up the Stationen-Weg) is the pilgrimage -church of St. Salvator,

with two chapels hewn in the rock. The convent of Gotteszell,

20 min. N.E. of the market-place, is now a prison.
Railway to Giippingen and excursion to the Hohenstaufen, see p. tJT.

38 M. Unterbobingen , with a Roman castrum (now covered

with earth).
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Interestiug excursiou via, (1 Lr.) HeubacJi (1530 ft.; Hot. Rossle) to

tlic (1/2^1.) *E.osenstein (2250 ft.; superb view), with a ruined castle,

an earthen rampart, and (on the E. side of the hill) caves. Thence via
yteinheim to Heidenheira, see below.

Beyond (43 Y2 ^^O Essingen (1585 ft.) the line runs along the

steep slope of tlie Alb, crosses the watershed between the Rems and

Kocher, and descends into the Kocher-Tal.

47 j\L Aalen (1420 ft,; Eail. Restaurant; Hot. Harmonic, at the

station; Bar, E. li/a-S^//, B. 70 pf.), with 11,300 inhab., from 13G0

to 1802 a free imperial town, lies at the point where" the Kocher
quits the Alb, Near the station is a bust of the poet C. F, D.

Schubart (1739-91
; p. 21), who spent his childhood here. The Eat-

haus contains a collection of antiquities and Schubart souvenirs.

Near the cemetery is aEoman castrum (covered). About lV4hr. S.

is the Langert or Aalhdumle (2210 ft.), a view-point with a tower.
From Aalen to Dillingen, 35 M., branch-line in 3 hrs. — The line

ascends the Alb (gradient 1:36) to (3 M.) Unterk'ochen (see below). —
5 M. Waldhausen-GlasMltte, near wliieh. to the W.. is the source of tlie

Weisser Kocher (1690 ft.). — 171/2 M. Neresheim (1645 ft. : Hot. Traube,
R. 1 Ji 20-1 Ji 50, B. 70 pf.\ a small town with 14J0 inhab., is the central

point of the wooded Hcirtsfeld, a part of the Alb (p. 66). It possesses
a Schloss of Prince Thurn and Taxis, wliich was a Benedictine abbey down
to 1806. The abbey-church is a splendid baroque edifice of 1745-92. —
21 M. Kcitzenstein . with a ruined castle. — 22i/., M, Dischingen. with
Schloss Taxis. — 33 M. Lauingen (p. 194). — 35 M. Dillingen {^. 194).

From Aalen to Ulm, 451/2 M., railv\'ay in IV4-2 hrs. — 21/2 M. Unter-
kochen (other station, see above), — 5 M..' Oberkochen. 1/2 hr, S. of which
is the source of the Schwarzer Kocher (1640 ft.) ; 1 hr. W. is the Volk-
inarsberg (24-40 ft.; view-tower). — 8V2 M. Konigsbronn (1645ft.; Hot.
Kossle), with iron-works, where the Brenz, a tributary of the Danube, rises

in the nicturesquc i?/r»A;foji/' (1625 ft.). Then through tlie smiling Brenz-
Tal. — 131/2 M. Heidenheira an der Srens (1620 ft. ; Bahnhof-Hotel, R.
1 JC 20-2 Jt, 50 pf. ; Ochse, R. 1 JC 80-2 c/« 80, B. 80 pf.), an ancient Roman
settlement with a castrum, is now an industrial town with 17,800 inliab.,

commanded by the picturesque half-ruined Schloss Hellenstein (1985 ft.

;

view-tower and collection of antiquities). A road (omn. twice daily in

1 hr.) leads W. to (41/2 M.) Steinlieini (1770 ft.; Hot. Krone), situated in

a later tertiary depression of volcanic origin, whence a picturesque road
runs through the Wen-Tal, passing the Hirschfelsen and a refuge-hut, to

(2 hrs.) Bartliolomtl (Hot. Adler), and thence via the Rosenstein to (I'/.jhr.)

Heubach (see above). — Beyond (151/2 M.) Mergelstetten (1590 ft.) the railway
temporarily quits the Brenz, which makes a wide cux've to the S. round
the Buigen. — 18 M. Eerbrechtingen (1565 ft.; Hot. Hirsch). Road S.E.
to Hlirben (see below; 3 M.). Pleasant walk from the station S."W. to

(i/ahr.) Anhausen, a former Benedictine monastery in the picturesque Brenz-
Tal, and thence downstream to (i/, hr.) Eselsburg, which is ^j., hr. from
Herbrechtingen and 20 min. from Hiirben (sec below). — 21 M. Qlengen
an der Brenz (1530 ft. ; Hot. Rosslei. with 3500 inhab. : the Gothic parish-
church, with its Romanesque "W. portal, was rebuilt in 1653 in the baroque
style. — 23 M. Hermaringen (1500 ft.). The Charlotten-Hohle, near
Hiirhen, 1 hr. "W., may be visited thence: either by road via. Burgberg,
with the picturesquely situated Schloss of Count Karl von Linden, and
the ruin of Kaltenburg : or by footpath via the Gilssenburg. The cave
(560 yds. long) lies in the Hiirbe-Tal, a characteristic Jura valley, 10 min.
S. of the village of Hiirben. It consists of several chambers and has
wonderful stalactites hanging from the roof (adm. from Easter to Nov. 1st,

1-12 pcrs., 6 Jl; electric light). Near the mouth of the cave is a restauranti
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— The train follows the Bienz-Tal to (26 M.) Sontheim-Brenz. Branch-
line to Gundelfingeu , see p. 191. Brenz has a fine late -Romanesque
ihurch. — Then S. W. to (29 M.) Niederstotzinrjen (1485 ft.). — 35>/.2 M.
Langenau (1.51.5 ft.V The Ohere Kirche, rebuilt in 1669 iu the baroque
style, contains a font by Matth. Bciblinger (p. -47 ; ca. 14,7.5}. — 38V2 ^•
Unter-Elchingen, the scene of the Battle of Elchingen (Oct. 14th, 180.5j,

-from which Key acquired his ducal title. — 41 M. Talfingen (1530 ft.i.

The train then skirts the Danube to (451/2 M.) Ulm (p. 46).

48V2 M. Wasseralfirigen (1374 ft.; Hot. zum Schlegel), witli

large iron-works. Above the iron-mine, ^,'2 lir. E., rises tlie Braa-
nenherg (2250 ft.; view; refuge-liut), whence a forest-path leads to

(2 hrs.) Kapfenburg (see below). — The train quits the Kocher-Tal.

51^2 M. Goldshofe (1505 ft.; rail, restaurant), junction for the

Crailsheim line (p. 37). — On a hill to the right before (57 M.)

Lauchheim (1695 ft.) is Schloss Kajjfenbiirg (2035 ft.; V2 l^^"-

from the station), formerly a commandery of the Teutonic Order,

— 59\/o M. Bottingen, V;^ M. to the S. of the village, 1 hr. X.E.

of which is Schloss Hohenhaldern (2060 ft.), belonging to the

Prince of Ottingen-"VYallerstein. Fine panorama from the tower

(1 30 ft. high; gratuity). The line pierces the watershed (1805 ft.) l)o-

tween the Rhine andDanube by cuttings and a tunnel (625yds.\ and

enters the narrow Eqer-Tcd. On the left rises the Ipf (see below).

64 M. Bopfingen ^1535 ft.; Hot. Hecht), with 1660 inhab.,

was an free imperial town from 1274 to 1802. The early-Grothic

St. Blasius-Kirche contains a high-altar by F. Herlin (1472) and

a 'Sakramentshauschen' (p. 170) by H. Boblinger (1510). To the X.

of the station (^ '^ hr.) rises the bare cone of the Ipf (2190 ft.), with

prehistoric ramparts (Hallstatt period) on the summit and the E.

slope. — To the right is the Flochberg (1900 ft.), with a mined
castle. The line enters the Bies (p. 193). — Beyond (69^ . M.)

Pflaumloch VsQ cross the Bavarian frontier.

72' 2 M. Nordlivgen (p. 191). Thence to Nuremberg, see R. 27.

8. Prom Stuttgart to Priedrichshafen.
Comp. the Mdjis, pp. 15, Go'.

123 M. Express in S'/o brs. (17 Ji 50, 11 .^40, 1 JC 20 pf.); ordinarv
train in 6-7 hrs. (15 Ji 50, 9 c^l^ 40, 6 ^ 20 pf.). — To Uhn, SSi/oM., ex-
press in IV2-2 hrs. (8 Ji aO, b Ji 50, 3 c^ 50 pf.); ordinary train in 31/0 lirs.

(7 .« 50, 4c^ 50 pf., 3 Ji).

From Stuttgart to (2^ 2^^-) Stidfgart-Cannsfatt, see p. 15. The
train ascends the bank of the NecJcar as far as Plochingen, travers-

ing one of the most beautiful and fertile districts in Swabia.

5 M. Stuttgart- Untertilrkheim (740 ft. ; Hot. Krone, K. 1 ^//80.

2 ^/ 20, B. 80 pf.), with the works of the Daimler Motor Car Co-

It lies at the foot of the (% hr.) "Wiirttemberg or Roteuberg
(1345 ft.; Hot.-Rest. Luz), where, on the site of the castle of Wirfeu-
berg, the ancestral seat of the princes of Wurtemberg. King Wil-
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liam I. (d. 1864) erected a Greek chapel as a mausoleum for Queen

Catharine (d. 1819) and himself. In the interior (open 9-6, Oct.-

March 9-4; 25 pf.) are marble statues of the Evangelists, the St.

John by Danuecker.
Instead of the steep, stony, and shadeless ascent from UntertUrkheim

we may choose the pleasanter but slightly longer route from Oberturkheim
(see below), either direct or via Unlbach. — A more extensive view iS

obtained from the tower (80 ft. high) on the Kernen (1685 ft.), 40 min.

E. of the Wiirttemberg. Charming walk hence to Esslingen (see below),

IV2 hr. S. ; or we mav descend E. to (1 lir.) Stetten and (1 hr.) Endersbach
station, in the Rems-Tal (p. 38).

Branch-line (4th class only) from UntertUrkheim to (71/2 M.) Korn-
westheim (p. 22).

6M. OhertUrkheim (Hot.Ochse). To the Wiirttemberg, see above.

8V2 ^^- Esslingen. — Hotels. Krone (PI. a; B, 2), Xeckar-Str. 7,

R. 1 c^ 60 pf.-3 JC, B. 1 .^, good, Post (PI. b ; B, 2), Eisenbahn-Str. 1, with
garden. R. 1 ^^ 20-1 ^« 60 pf., Deutsches Haus (PI. c; B, 2), all three near

the station, to the right; Falmscher Ban (PI. d; C, 1, 2), Innere Brucke 2.

— WixE Rooms. Zur Sakristei, Kirch-Str. 3, near St. Dionysius (PI. 6;

C, 1); Mmeum, Markt-Platz 7 (PI. C, 1). — Post & Telegraph Office
(PI. B, 2), near the station. — Tramways (comp. the Plan) through the

town and to Obertiirkheim (see above) and Oberessliugen.

Esslingen (760 ft.), an industrial town of 32,400 inhab., prettily

.situated on the Neckar and overlooked by a ruined castle, was a

free imperial city down to 1802 and is still partly surrounded

by walls, which were built by Emperor Frederick II. in 1216.

Sparkling wine is largely manufactured here. The engineering works

founded here by Kessler in 1846 are the largest in Wurtemberg.

From the station (PI. B, 2) we turn to the right. The ISTeckar-

Str., straight on, passes near the stone Pliensau-Brucke, built in

1286, with a tower -gateway on the town side. We follo-v?- the

Bahuhof-Str. to the left, passing the Schehtor-Turm (PI. 9), to

the (7 min.) Markt-Platz (PI. C, 1). On the S. side is the Protestant

St. Dionysius -Kirche or Stadt-Kirche (PL 6; verger, Markt-

Platz 28),' a flat -roofed basilica in the transitional style with in-

teresting capitals, founded in the 11th cent, and altered in the

14th and 15th. The lectern and 'Sakrameutshauschen' (p. 170) are

by L. Lechler (1486) ; the choir contains also stained glass of the

14th-15th cent, and stalls of 1518. — The New Bathaus (PI. 8),

built in 1746, was once the palace of Count Alexander of Wurtem-
berg, the poet (1801-44). Opposite, to the S., is the Old Rathaus
(PL 7), erected in 1430 and now a school. It has an ingenious

clock of 1589 and a bell-turret (on the K side); on the first floor is a

room with Gothic wood-carvings. — The Catholic St. Paids-Kirche

(PL 5), an early-Gothic edifice of 1233-68, originally belonged to a

Dominican monastery.

The Gothic '^Frauen-Kirche (PL 2; C, 1) was erected in 1324-

1420 and restored in 1884-7 by Egle (sacristan, Untere Beutau-

Str. 9; 20 pf.). Admirable reliefs on the three portals, especially
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the Last Judgment on the tympanum of the S. portal and the St.

George over the W. portal. The three central windows of the choir

contain fine late-Gothic stained glass. Adjoining the organ-loft are

the tombstones of Hans and Matthiius Boblinger (p. 47), two of the

architects of the church. The perforated tower, 245 ft. in height,

was begun by Ulrich Ensinger and completed in 1478; beautiful

view from the top (2.67 steps). Comp. p. xx. — No. 8, Untere Beutau-

Str., has a fine oriel of 1509.

From the New Rathaus we follow the Mittlere Beutau-Str. to

the N. and then the Obere Beutau-Str.. at No. 4 in which we ascend

"Vs^kgner iBetes leipag

the steps of the covered wall to (10 miii.) the remains of the Castle

(PI. C, 1), with the 'Dicker Turm' (restaurant) and fine view.

A little S. of the Old Rathaus lies the Fischbrunnen-Platz (PI. 1
;

C, 1, 2), near which is the Innere Briicke, with the Gothic Nikolaus-
Kapelle (PI. 4), of 1430. Behind it are the Maille gardens. The
Ritter-Str. and the Kiifer-Str. (PI. C, 2) lead straight on to the

(5 min.) Wolfs-Tor (PL 10), on the outside of which are the lions

of the Hohenstaufen, hewn in stone. — To the N. of the Klifer-Str.

is the choir (lately restored) of the early-Gothic Franciscan Church
(St. Georg or Hintere Kirche; PL 3).

About 1/2 hr. W., in the Xeckar-Tal, lies the royal domain of Weil
(p. 17). — The Jdgerhaiis (1475 ft.), 1 hr. E. of Esslingen, is frequented
as a summer resort.

Excursion from Esslingen to (41/2 M.) Denkendorf, a little village
in a pretty situation, with the large late -Romanesque church (early
13th cent.) of a former convent (interesting crypt and vestibule).
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141,2 M. Ploehingen (815 ft.; Rail. Kestauraut, D. 1^ 2-2 ^;
Balinhof-Hotel, R-. 1 ^l 70 pf.-2 c//^), with a fortified churcli, lies

near the confiuence of the Fils and Neckar. On the hill to the N.E.

(V'2 hr.) is a tower affording an extensive view of the Alb. To
Tubingen and Horb, see R. 9; to Oberlenningen, see pp. 69, 70.

The line now follows the Fils (conip. the Map, p. 66). — 23 M.
Uhingen. On a height to the right rises Schlass Filseck (1160 ft.).

— 24 M. Faurndau, formerly a Benedictine monastery, with an

old Romanesque church adorned with sculptures.

26 M. Goppingen (1045 ft.; Hot. zu den Aposteln, R. from 2,

B. 1 ^l, well spoken of, Sand, plain but good, both near the station),

an industrial town with 22,400 inhab., was rebuilt after a fire in

1782. Its mineral water is well known. From the station we follow

the Markt-Str. straight on, cross the market-place, and follow the

Pfarr-Str. to the left to the imposing Schloss. which was built in

1559-68 by Duke Christopher and is now occupied by offices. At
the S.W. corner of the court an artistic staircase ('Traubenstieg')

ascends to the tower. Opposite is the Protestant Stadt-Kirche, by
H. Schickhardt (1617-20). In the N.E. part of the town, in the old

cemetery, is the late- Gothic Oherhofen-Kirche, built in 1436-90

and restored since 1853, with a fine tombstone of 1506.
Railway to Gmiind, sec p. 67.

Excursions. To the Holienstaufen, ou the X.E., see p. 68. — To the
N.W. lies (I1/2 hr.) Adelberg (1550 ft.; Hot. Rossle), a former convent,
with a fine view. — To the S. we mav walk via (6 M.) the sulphur-baths
of Boll (1335 ft.) to the (li,., hr.) Bosler (2610 ft.; p. 69) or (IV2 lir.)

Kornberg (2555 ft.), ^vith the .^o-called Bertahi'rg : via (IV., hr.) Eschen-
bach to the (1 hr.) Fuchseck r2410 ft.); via (li.. hr.'i Scklath to the top
of the (1 hr.) Wasserberg (2430 ft.).

Near (28^/2 M.) Eisliugen we enjoy fine views to the left of the

Hohenstaufen and the Hohenrechberg, with its church (p. 68). To
the right is the long ridge of the Alb. — 31 M. Susseji (1180 ft.).

On the left is the round tower of the ruined Staufeneck (1720 ft.).

Excursions. To iho. Hohenrechherg, on the X.E., see p. 68. — Walk-
ing S. from Siissen station through the village to (1 hr.) the farm of
Griinenberg (rfmts.), we may thence ascend the ('/., hr.) Burren ('Glufen-
kissen". 2275 ft.), follow a "marked path along the slope to the (3/^ hr.)

Spitzenberg (2305 ft.), ascend to the plateau of the 3lichelsberg (2370 ft.),

and thence via the (3/4 hr.) village of Oberbohringen to the (20 min.)
Hausener Felsen, which afford a fine view of the 'G-aisen-Tale' (p. 45).

From the cairn we descend along the verge for 5 min., then follow the
club-path down to (1/2 br.) UberTcingen (p."45).

From Sussex to Weissenstein, 7 M., branch-line in 35 min. — We
ascend the valley of the Lanier, to the E. — 2 M. Donzdorf (1335 ft.

;

Hot. Krone), with a Scbloss and park of Count Rechberg. About 1 hr.

E. is the MesseUtein (2455 ft: view), whence we may walk S. to the
Kuchalb or E. to the Roggen-Tal (p..45). — 7 M. "Weissenstein (1780 ft.

;

Schloss-Brauerei, with rooms) is a small town dominated by the Schloss
of Count Rechberg. Down the Roggen-Tal to Geislingen, see p. 45.

To the left, on a hill, IV4 M. to the K of Gingen station

(p. 45}, is the castle-ruin of Scharfenherg (2020 ft.). Farther on
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is the Kuchalb (see below). — SSYg^^- Giitgen an der Fils(12Sb ft.).

An inscription over tlieN. door of the church pnrjDorts to be of 984
and is, if genuine, the earliest to be found in any church in Germany.

Excursions. To the E. lies the (1 hr.) Kuchalb, a hamlet with an
inn. Thence we may ascend to the (10 luin.) Meierhalde (fine view) and
to the (V4 hr.) hill-spur of the Hohenstein (2300 ft.), with views to the

W. and of the valley. We descend either by a footpath to (V2 hr.) Kuchen
.station (see below ; thence to Geislingcn on foot 2/4 hr.) or to (V2hr.) Gingen,
or via the Kuchalb and the Langen-Tal to (IV2 hr.) Geislingen (see below).
The Kuchalb may also be reached from Gingen in li/2hr., past the Scharfen-
berg (p. 44), by a path leading through fine woods. — Pleasant walk over
the hills from the Kuchalb to the N.. via the farm of ObericeclcersteU, to

the (I'/o hr.) Messelstein (p. 44).

35 M. Kuchen (see above). — 36 M. Altenstadt. To the left is

the Eyh-Tal, to the right the Upper Fils-Tal (see below).

38 M. Geislingen an der Steige (1520 ft. ; Eail. Eestaurant

;

Hot. Sonne, K. 1 cV/ 40 pf.-2 ^l, B. 80 pf., Post, both 10 min. from

the station; Bahnhof-Hotel, new), a town with 8700 inhab. and the

Wurtemberg Metalware Factory, lies at the foot of the Alb. The
late-Gothic Stadt-Kirche (1424-67), a little to the ^\. of the Haupt-

Str., contains choir-stalls carved by Jorg Syrlin the Younger (1512),

a fine carved altar (ca. 1525), and a late-Renaissance pulpit (1621).

Above the town, ^j^^^. E., rises the Oden-Turm (2085ft.; key at the

police -otfice in the Eathaus). Opposite, behind a pavilion, are the

remains of Schloss Helfenstein, destroyed in 1552.
Pleasant excursion N.E., past the pumping-station, either through the

woods in 1 hr., or via Weilcr and the Felscn-Tal in 2 hrs., to Eyhacli
(1525 ft. ; Hot. Adler), with a Schloss of Count Degenfeld. dominated on
the ^\ . by the Hinonelsfelsen (2000 ft.), with a ruin. Thence we may
ascend the romantic Roggen-Tal, watered by the Eyh, the finest point
of which is at the (V2 hr.) lower Roggcn-Milhle. On the hill to the right,

1/2 hr. farther on, is the ruin oi Bavenstein. From (1/2 hr.) TreffelTiauseu

(2020 ft.; Hot. Lamm), with the source of the Eyb, we may walk X. to

(3/^ hr.) Weissenstein (p. 44), or W. to the (IV4 hr.) Messelsfein (p. 44).

From Geislingen to Wiesensteig, 13 M., branch-line in 11/4 hr. —
Bevond (2 M.) Altenstadt the line turns to the W. and follows the Upper
Fils-Tal CGaisen-Tale'). — 31/2 M. Bad Uberkingen (1495 ft.; Bad-
Hotel), with alkaline springs: ^/^ hr. N.W. arc the Hausener Felsen (p. 44).

— 9V2 M. Dit::enbach (1635 ft.), with a mineral spring; '/g hr. S. is the

ruin oi Hiltenbiirg (2360 ft.). — About 40 min. S. of (lO'/., M.) Gosbach
(1705 ft.; Hot. Hirsch) lie the prettily situated villages of Unter- and
Ober-Dracken stein, whence Wiesensteig may be reached direct in 1 hr.

— 13 M. "Wiesensteig (1940 ft. ; Hot. Post, Lamm), a charmingly situated
little town with 1290 inhab., frequented as a summer resort. The Source
of the Fits (2050 ft.) lies 50 min. S.W. ; tlience we may ascend the

Hasen-Tal to (3/^ hr.) the Schertels- Hohle (key at the schoolmaster's in

"Westerheim). To" the Reussenstein (p. 69), IV2 hr.

The line quits the Fils-Tal and ascends the Geislinger Steige j a

wooded limestone hill rich in fossils, to the tableland of the

Swabian Alb (p. 66). The gradient is very considerable (1 : 43),

and a second engine is attached to the train at Geislingen.

Just short of (4IV2 M-) Amstetten (1910 ft.) we reach the water-

shed between the Ehine and the Danubf.
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Branch-lines from Amstetten N.E. to (I2V2 M.) Gerstetien and S.W.
to (12 M.) Laichingen (2540 ft.; Hot. Rad), a weaving village with
3200 inhab., 20 min. S. of which is the Steinifoll (2595 ft.; belvedere),

while 13/^ hr. S., beyond Sontheim, where a guide is procured, is the Sont-
heimcr Hohte, a stalactite cave 200 yds. long (adm. 50 pf.).

Bej'ond (51 M.) Beimerstetteii the line descends to the valley

of the Danube. — We pass close to the Wilhelmshurg, the lofty-

citadel of Ulm, where 30,000 Austrians under General Mack
surrendered to the French after the Battle ofElchingen (p. 41). —
58 V2 M. Ulm (rail, restaurant, D. Vj.^ ^i).

Ulm.
Hotels (all with restaurants). Near the station : *Russischer Hof

(PI. a; A, 2), an old-established house, lately renovated, U. 3-5.^, B.
1 ^^ 20 pf., D. 3 J^, with garden; Mnnster-Hotel (PI. i ; A, 2). with terrace

and wine and beer restaurants. E. 2-10. B. 1, P. from 6Vot-<(; Bahnhof-
Hotel (PI. f; A, 2), R. 2-3 c^^, with garden. — In the town: Baiimstark
(PL d ; B, 3), R. 1 c^ 70-2 JC 50. B. 80 pf., D. 2 .S 40 pf. ; Kaiserhof (PI. g

;

B. 2); Goldner Lowe (PI. e: B. 2), R. 1 Jt 80-2 ^ 50 pf.. B. IJi; Ober-
polUnger (PI. h ; B, 2). — ChriMliches Hospiz, :N"euer Graben 23 (PL B, C. 1).

Beer Restaurants. Saalbau (PI. B , 2) ; Goldener Hecht, 01ga-8tr.,

corner of Xeutor-Str. (PL B. 1): Drei Kanne.n, Hafenbad (PL C, 1. 2 .

with garden. — WixE Rooms. WdgnerJe, Donau-Str. 9 (PL D, 3!. -

Garden Restaurants. Wilhehns-Hohe (PL B, 4), with view, Friedrichsai(
(beyond PL F, 1), with large park, both with military bands in summer. - -

Cafes. TrogJen, Munster-Cafe, both in the Miinster-Platz.

Tramways. From the Miinster-Platz fPl. C. 2) via the Svrlin-Str.

i-PL C, 1), Karl-Str., Olga-Str. (PL E-A, 1, 2), Haupt-Bahuhof (PL A. 2),

and the Miinster-Platz to the Neu-Ubner Bahnhof (PL F, 4). — From the

Olga-Strasse (PL D. E. 1) via the Frauen-Str. (PL D, 1, 2) and the Miinster-
Platz (PL C, 2) to Sbfllngen (beyond PL A, 4: p. 84).

Motor Cabs (at the station). For 800 metres 60 pf., for each 200 m,
more 10 pf.

Post & Telegraph Offices, Bahnhof-Platz (PL A, 2; entr. Uhland-
Str.) and Frauen-Str. (PL D, 2).'— Inquiry Office, Bahnhof-Platz 2.

For a flying visit to the town 3-4 hrs. suffice.

Ulm (1575 ft.), formerly a imperial free city, is a fortified town
with 58,000 inhab., incl. a garrison of 7500 men. Its commerce and

industries are important also. It lies on the left bank of the Danube,
which is here joined by the Blau and the Iller and is navigable for

small vessels. The Danube is the boundary between "V\"urtemberg

and Bavaria, to which Neu- Ulm (p. 49) on the opposite bank belongs.

The towns are connected by two bridges, and a railway-bridge crosses

the river farther up.
Ulm, first mentioned in 854 as the seat of a Carlovingian palace,

was later the capital of the Duciiy of Swabia. It supported the Hoheii-
staufeu during their struggles with the Dukes of Bavaria and was rewarded
with important privileges. Ulm was at its zenith during the 14th and
15th cent., after the guilds had won the upper hand in their quarrels with
the nobles. lu 1530 it adopted the Reformation. Its independence lasted
down to 1803. The cathedral, Rathaus, 'Neuer Ban', and many of the other
public buildings were erected in the 14th-16th cent., and numerous private
mansions, mostly frame-houses, date from the 16'th-17th centuries. The
erection of the cathedral fostered the development of sculpture and paint-
ing, and in the 15th-16th cent. Ulm was the centre of the Swabian school,
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The chief sculptors of Ulin were Jorg Syrlin the Elder (il. 1J=98) and
Jorg Syrlin the Younger (1455-1521); the chief painters Hans Multscher
(ca. 1427-67), Hans Schulin (1440-1502), his son-in-law Barth. Zeitblom
(1455-1517; comp. p. xxii). and Martin Schaffner (d. after 1539). — The
modern fortifications were begun in 1842; down to 1866 Ulm was a fortress

of the German Confederation.

From the station (PI. A, 2) we follow the Bahnhof-Str. and
Hirsch-Str. (PL B, 2) to the (8 min.) Miinster-Phitz. In the Bahnhof-

Str., on the right, is the old lodge of the Teutonic Order (1712-18i,

now military offices. At the beginning of the Hirsch-Str., to the

right, is the Steinerne Briicke, affording a picturesque view of the

old houses on the Blau.

The *Munster (PI. C, 2; Protestant), founded in 1377, built

at intervals down to the beginning of the 16th cent., and restored and

completed in 1844-90, is the largest Gothic church in Germany next

to Cologne Cathedral (comp. p. xx). The massive *Toiver in the centre

of the W. facade, with the magnificent triple porch, was begun by

Ulrich Ensinger (1392-9), the third of the cathedral arhitects, erected

as far as the top of the square portion (230 ft.) by the end of the

loth cent., and completed in 1880-90 by Aug. Beyer by the a^ddition

of the octagon and pyramid from a design left by Matthiius Bobliuger

(1478-94; comp. p. 48), the eighth of the original architects. Being

528 ft. in height, it is the loftiest church -tower in the world
(Cologne Cathedral 515 ft.; Eiffel Tower, in iron, 985 ft.; Wool-
worth Building at Xew York 750 ft.; Washington Obelisk 555 ft.).

The sculptures in the porch should be inspected. The nineteen

large figures represent Mary, the Holy Women, and the Apostles;

ill the tympanum of the main portal are reliefs of the Creation

and the Fall. The cathedral is built of brick for the most part, but

the tower is of stone. Each side of the building has two side-portals,

likewise adorned with tympanum -reliefs: on the S.W. portal, the

Magi and the Life of Mary; 8.E. the Last Judgment; N.W. the

Nativity; X.E. the Passion. — On the roof above is the emblem of

the city, a sparrow with a straw in its beak (p. 48).
Tickets of admission are obtained in the versrer's office, to the right

of the main portal: for the nave 20 pf. ; for the choir, chapels, and
sacristy (with ffuide and incl. a printed description) 1-4 pers. 1 ^/6, each
pcrs. more 25 pf. Organ recital on Sun. 11-11.15 and week-days in summer
11.30-12; adm. free from 11 onwards. Tlie tower may be ascended May-
Sept. 7-6; in Mandi, April, Oct., and Xov. 8-5; Dec. -Feb. 9-3. Adm. as

far as the square portion (230 ft. ; 382 steps ; sufficiently good view)
.50 pf. ; to the platform of the octagon (335 ft. ; 168 steps more) and the
circular gallery (470 ft. ; 204 steps more) 1 JC, incl. adm. to the nave.

The IxTERioR originally consisted of a nave with two aisles,

all of equal breadth, but in 1502-7 the latter were divided by
.slender round pillars and covered with star-vaulting, so as to form
four aisles. There arc no transepts. The building is 135 yds. long

and 52 yds. wide; the nave is 140 ft., the aisles 65 and 69 ft. in

height; total area 6100 sq. yds. (Cologne Cathedral 7375 sq. yds.).
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To the right in the S. aisle, as we enter, is the original of the

sparrow (p. 47). On the walls, here and in other parts of the church,

are coats-of-arms and epitaphs of Swabian families. — We turn imme-
diately to the left into the Vestibule beneath the tower, whence the

best idea of the whole interior is obtained. The large Organ, built in

1856, has 6616 pipes (recitals, see p. 47). — Xave. By the third pillar

on the left is the late-Gothic Pulpit (1469-74), the lofty canopy richly

carved by Jdrg Syrlin the Younger (1510); on the seventh pillar to the

right is an old relief commemorating the foundation of the cathedral.

The statues on the pillars are modern, but the fine consoles are old. The
stained glass in the aisles is modern also. — S. Aisle. In front of the

sacristy (see below), by the easternmost pillar, is the octagonal Hohj
Water Basin, attributed to J. Syrlin the Younger (early 16th cent.); by
the next pillar is the octagonal Font, with busts of prophets, mottoes,

and armorial bearings (1470). — Above the Choir Arch is a large fresco

of the Last Judgment (1471). The crucifix suspended from the arch is a

reproduction, the original having been removed to Wiblingen (p. 49). On
the left is a ^^Sakramentshduschen^ (p. 170), 85 ft. high, beautifully

carved in stone. The choir-screen dates from 1737.

The Choir, which is lower than the nave, has a beautiful five-sided

termination. The "^Choir Stalls, by Joi-g Syrlin the Elder (1469-74), are

among the finest examples of wood-carving in Germany. At the W. end
are three stalls with sibyls ; on the X. side, next the Sakramentshauschen,
is a figure of Syrlin himself, and on the next folding-scat is an old

woman -said to represent his mother: the busts on the N. side in front

embody classical antiquity (Ptolemy, Terence, Cicero, etc.) ; behind, in the

upper row, are 18 half-figures of Apostles and Christian male saints

(SS. Lawrence, George, Damian, etc.), in the lower row 20 half-figures of

Prophets and heroes of the Old'Testament (David, Joshua, etf.) ; on the S.

side, below, are sibyls, with a bust of Syrlin's wife at the "W. end;
behind, in the upper row, are St. Luke, Christian female saints, and
St. Cosmas, in the lower row women of the Old Testament. The orna-

mental detail should not be overlooked. The *High Altar, a masterpiece

by Martin Schaffner (15211 , comprises painted and gilded carvings and
paintings, representing the Kindred of the Virgin and (below) the Last
Supper. Adjacent are tombs of bronze (Heinrich T^'eithart, d. 1500) and
marble. The excellent Stained Glass, by Hans Wild (1480), is at present

under restoration.

The jSTeithakt Chapel, to the left of the high- altar, contains panel
paintings by Zeitblom and his school, M. Schaffner, etc. ; in the vestibule

leading to the ^N". aisle are two modernized carved altars of the 16th cent.

(SS. Sebastian and Barbara) and a copy of Boblinger's design for the

tower (original in the archives). — On the S. of the choir is the Besserer
Chapel, with a good portrait of Eitel Besserer, by Martin Schaffner (1516),

and old stained glass.— In the Sacristy are a portable altar of the late

15th cent., with paintings copied from engravings of M. Schongauer's
'Passion' (1484).

From the tower (adm.. see p. 47) splendid *View of the city and
its environs. In clear weather (usually in spring and autumn only) the

Alps are visible; a signal is hoisted to announce the fact.

To the S.W. of the Miinster-Platz is the Neuer Bau (PI. C, 3),

erected in 1580-91 on the site of an imperial palace, and now
containing government offices; in the court is a fountain with a

figure of St. Hildegarde. — In the Weinhof (PI. C, 3) are a late-Gothic

fountain with a statue of St. Christopher and the Schworhaus, which

contains the municipal archives and library and (second fioor) a small

picture -gallery (open free on Sun. 11-12.30 and Wed. 1.30-3.30).
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In the Markt-Platz rises the handsome Rathaus (V\. C, 3),

erected at the beginning of the 16th cent, in a style showing the

transition from late-Gothic to Renaissance, with paintings on the

fagade retouched in 1905. The Fischkasten, a fine fountain at the

S.E. corner, is by Syrlin the Elder (1482).

To the E. of the Rathaus, beyond a small square witii a pretty

fountain, is the municipal Museum of Art and Antiquities
{Geiuerhe-Museum ; PI. D, 81, Tauben-Gasse 6, which occupies an

old patrician house and contains interesting souvenirs of Ulm. Adin.
50 pf. on Sun. 10.30-1, week-days 9-12 and 2-5 ; at other times 1 ,JC.

In the two courtyards are stoue carvings and works in iron, etc. —
Gro^md Floor. Prehistoric and Roman antiquities, inchiding an ichthyo-
saurus. — First Floor. Altar from Hagnau near Meersburg (1518); town
views and plans; coins; furniture; a 'Wiener Zille', or ship tliat used
to descend the Danube to Vienna and Hungary and was sold there after
discharging its cargo. — Second Floor. Handsome ceilings and doors

;

'tablatures' (early system of notation) of the Meistersinger of Ulm

;

guild-tablets
;
painted terracotta figures by Rommel, representing local

costumes; doll's house of 1748; embroideries and textiles: relief-plaa
of Rotheuburg ob der Tauber.

The Donau-Str. leads to the old bridge (PL D, 3), with a view
of the town from the river-side; to the W. is the Mefzger-Titrin
(PI. C, D, 3), 90 ft. high and fully 41/2 ft. out of the perpendicular.

The new bridge (PL F, 2; commands a pretty view of the town and
cathedral.

The Laiv Courts (Justiz-Gebaude; PL C, 1), in the Olga-Str.,

were built by K. von Sauter in 1898; the jury-court is adorned
with two mural paintings by Fr. Keller. By the Frauen-Tor is the
Catholic Garrison Church (PL D, 1), by Meckel (1901-4). In the

Frauen-Str., to the N. of the Fraueu-Tor and beyond the old cenu'-

tery, is the curious Protestant Garrison Church (bevond PL D, 1,
by Th. Fischer (1910).

Motor-omn. four times daily (30 pf.) from tlie Bahuhofs-Platz (PI. A. i)

to the old Benedictine monastery of Wibliiigcn, S'/., M. to the S. Founded
in 1093 and rebuilt in 1714-60, it now serves as *barracks. The churcli,
one of the most important built in Upper Swabia during the 18th cent.,
has elaborate decoration by Januarius Zick and a large wooden crucifix
from Ulm Cathedral. The library is decorated in tlie^'roeoco style.

From Ulm to Kempten, 54 M., railway in 2-3 hrs. — li/^ M. Xeu-Ulin
(pp. 46, 227). — 71/2 M. Senden. To the right, on the opposite bank of the
Iller, lies Ober-Kirchberg, with a Schloss of Prince Fugger. — As far
as Memmingen the line for the most part follows the^Iller. — 15 M.
Illertissen (1685 ft. ; Hot. Hirsch) is overlooked bv a picturesque Renais-
sance Schloss (ca. 1550; view). — 321/2 M. Memmingen (1965 ft.; Rail.
Restaurant; Hot. Bayrischer Hof, R. Vj.yoJC: Schwarzer Adler), junction
for Herbertingen (p. 85) and for Buchloe (p. 309), is an old town with
12,400 inhab., a free city of the empire down to 1802, and still ])artlv
surrounded by walls. From the station we go straight on to the Maxi"
milian-Str., the chief street of the town. At'(7 min.) the AV. end of the
street, in the Weinmarkt. to the left, stands the Kramer-Zunfthans. still
retaining the Gothic panelled room in which the insurgents' manifesto
in the Peasants' War was drawn up in 1525. StraightW we reach the
Schweizerberg, with the Fuggerhaus (1581-91) oa the right, in which
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Wallenstein received the news of his dismissal in 1630. To the N. is

the Gothic St. Martins - Kirche (adm. 20 pf
.

; sacristan, "Westende 99),

which contains 65 choir-stalls, carved in the richest late-Gothic style by
Stark and Dapratzhaus of Memmiugen (early 16th cent.)- A little to the

E. is the market-place, in the X.E. corner of which is the Bathaus, a
Renaissance edifice of 1589. To the left of it is the Stetcerhaus, with
an arcaded ground-floor of 1195 and upper floor of 1708. On the E. side of

the market-place is the municipal Jlicseum (adm. 50 pf.). In the S.E.
corner of the town, 9 min. from the market-place (via the Kramer-Str.,
Schrannen-Platz, and Hirsch-Gasse), is the Frauen-Kirche, the mural
paintings in which are among the best of their period (15th cent.). About
7M. to the S.E._ is Ottobeuren (p. 309). — 4OV2 M. Gronenhach (2265 ft.:

Hot. Post), dominated by a Sehloss which formerly belonged to General
Pappenheim. Beyond the large glacier-moraine of the Iller a view of

tlie Alps of the Algau is obtained. — 54 M. Kempten (p. 310).

From Ulm to Munich, see R. 31 ; to Aalen, see pp. 41, 40; to Immen-
dingen and Badolfzell, see R. 13.

The Fricdriclisliafeu line ascends the left bank of the Danube
and passes the influx of the Iller. — 65 M. Erhacli, Avith a Sehloss.

We cross the Danube and enter Upper Sicabia, the region to the

W. of the lower Iller, extending S. from the Alb to the Lake of

Constance. The line now runs in a perfectly straight direction as

far as Biberach. — 69^/0 31. Bisstissen-Achstetten, with a Sehloss

and park of Baron Stauffenberg. — 72 M. Laupheim (1650 ft.).

Branch-line to (10 31.) Sclucendi. — 79^
'^ M. Warthmisen, with

a Sehloss of Herr von Konig.

8I1/2 M. Biberach (1750 ft.; Hot. Goldenes Rad, Krone, in the

town; Bahnhof-Hotel, Cloldener Lowe, at the station), with 9300
inhab., once a free town of the empire, has retained its mediaeval

appearance. Remains of the fortifications are still to be seen on

the W. side. From the station we follow the Bahnhof-Str. and the

Ulmer Str. to the left to (6 min.) the Parish Church, originally

G^othic , but rebuilt in the baroque style in 1746. It contains a

large ceiling -painting by Job. Zick (1746), a fine rococo choir-

screen, and stained glass of the early 15th century. A little to the

S., Altes Spital 6, 5re the Municipal Collections (open free on

Sun., 2-4; adm. 50 pf. on Sun., 10-12, and Wed. from March to Oct.,

10-12 und 2-4; at other times 1 ^, two or more 50 pf. each). On
the groimd- floor are collections of art, antiquities, and natural

history; on the first and second floors are the Braith and Mali
il/zise«m, with paintings bequeathed bv the animal-painters A. Braith

(1836-1905) and Chr. Mali (1832-1906), consisting of about 1000
works by these and other artists. In front of the hospital chapel

is a monument to the two painters (1910). — About 5 min. S., in

tlie Sauden-Gasse, is the villa of the poet Chr. M. Wieland, who
was born in 1733 in the neighbouring village of Oberholzheim, and

lived here in 1760-69, It is open to the public and contains a few

souvenirs of the poet. — About Y2 ^'^'- ^^^- of the station is the

'Lindele', a fine point of view on the Lindenberg. Another good
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view is obtained from the Gigelberg (2010 ft.), to the W. of the

town, Y4 hr. from the station.

About 2 M. to the S.E. of Biberach station (omn. 40 pf.) and 20 inin.

from Umracndorf (see below) is the hydropathic of Jordanbad (1770 ft.

;

P. from 41/2 Ji), pleasantly situated in the Riss-Tal, with a chalybeate
spring.

Branch-line from Biberach via Warthausen (p. 50) to (131/2 M.) Ochsoi-r
hatisen, with a Benedictine abbey founded in 1093 (now an agricultural
school and orphanage) and an elaborately decorated baroque church.

The country becomes more attractive, and woods appear on

both sides. — 841/2 ^i- Ummendorf, with a Calvary. — 94 M.
Schussenried (Bahnhof-Hotel), a village with a Premonstratensian

monastery, founded in 1183, now a lunatic asylum. The church,

originally Gothic, but overladen with baroque ornamentation in

1647, contains pictures, painted vaulting, and carved choir-stalls

of the 18th cent.; in the library are allegorical statues by Schwarz-

mann and ceiling-paintings by F. Hermann (1757). Important re-

mains of lake-dwellings have been discovered in the vicinity.

About 1 hr. N.E. lies Steinfuaisen, with an interesting pilgrimage-
churcli built in 1727-33 by Dom. Zimmermann.

Branch-line from Schussenried to (6 M.) Buchau, with an ancient
nunnery (now a Schloss of Prince Taxis); 1/2 ^I. to tlie X. is the Fedcr-See
(620 acres). Railway from Buchau to Riedlingen (p. 85) under construction.

97 M. Aidendorf (1800 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Lowe), junc-

tion for Herbertingen and Memmingen (p. 85), has a Schloss of

Count Konigsegg, with a garden commanding a fine view of the

distant Alps and a well-stocked deer-park.

^Vc now follow the Schussoi to Friedrichshafen. — 107^2 ^-'•

Niederhiegeii , whence a light railway runs to (3 M.) Weingarten

(p. 52). Farther on, the abbey is visible on the left. To the S. the

mountains of Appenzell come in view.

1 101/0 M. Ravensburg (1420 ft.; Bahnhof-Hotel Hildenbrand.

R. or D. 1\'V2\'2 -/^, Kaiserhof, R. 1 J/, 20-2 ^/l 50 pf., both good),

an ancient town with 15,500 inhab., has numerous lofty towers

belonging to the mediaeval fortifications. Its churches, though old,

arc unimportant. From the station we follow the Eisenbahn-Str.

E. to (7 min.) the 'Platz\ to the right in which, nearly opposite, is

the late-Gothic Rathaus (16th cent.). Turning first to the left and

then to the right, past the Gothic Frauen-Kirche, we next reach

the Konzert-Haus (1897), containing a collection of antiquities (adm.

free). From the Rathaus the Markt-Str. leads S.E. to (3 min.) the

Obcr-Tor, near which, to the riglit, is the Mehlsack, a tower 180 ft.

high. From the Ober-Tor we may climb the Yeitsburg iu 10 min.
The Veitsburg (1720 ft.), S.E. of the town, is surmounted by a

view-tower (restaurant), on the site of the ancestral castle of the Guelphs,
which was destroyed in 1617. Extensive view of the Lake of Constance,
the Swiss Alps, and the Vorarlberg. A still finer view-point is Schloss
"Waldburg (2615 ft.), 2 hrs. E. of Ravensburg, the w^ell-preserved an-

cestral castle of the princely family of that name.
From Ravensburg a steam-tramway runs X.E. to (I'/gM.) Baicnfi<rt

Baedeker's S. Germany. 12th Edit. 4
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via (2Va M., in 20 min.) Weingarten (Hot. Konig Wilhelm), a town of

8080 inhab., with an imposing Benedictine abbey with three towers,

founded by the Guelphs in 1053 and now used as barracks. The baroque
church, erected in 1715-22 by Franz Beer, is the chief work of the Vor-
arlberg school. It contains the mausoleum (1852) and monument of the

Guelphs, erected by King George V. of Hanover in 1859. The stucco-

ornamentation by Fr. Schmuzer, the ceiling-frescoes by C. D. Asam, the

choir-stalls (ca. 1720), and the large organ over the vestibule, by Gabler
(1737), are also noteworthy.

117V2M. Meckenbeuren (1390 ft.; Hot. zum Bahnliof).

Electric railway to (3 M.) Tettnang, a small town of 2600 inhab.,

with a busy trade in hops. At the W. end is the large Schloss of the

extinct Counts of Montfort, with fine staircases. The older Schloss is

now the Rathaus. In the neighbourhood are several view-points, with
views of the Lake of Constance and the Alps : the Argenhardter Kapf
(1800 ft. ; 50 min. S.), the BrUnnensweiler Eohe {^U ^r. N.E.), etc.

123 M. Friedrichshafen (p. 94). The train runs backwards

from the Stadt-Bahnhof to the Eafen-Bahnhof.

9. Prom Stuttgart to Tubingen and Horb.
Comp. the Map, p. 66.

641/2 M. Railway in 23/^-4 hrs. Best views to the left.

From Stuttgart to (14^2 M.) Plochingen, see pp. 41-44. To the

right in the valley is Kongen, the Roman Vicus Grinario, with an

excavated castrum. — I872 ^- Unterboihingen, junction for Ober-

lenningen and "Weilheim (p. 69). iSTear the station the Neckar is

crossed by a bridge (rebuilt in 1603; obelisk), from which Duke
Ulrich of Wurtemberg is said to have leaped in 1519 to escape the

troops of the Swabian League. — To the left rise the Teck, Hohen-
ueuffen, and other Alb hills.

22V2M. Niirtingen (935 ft.; Hot. Krone, Scholl, Sonne, all

near the station), a manufacturing town of 7150 inhab., lies on the

right bank of the Neckar. The late-Gothic parish-church contains

a fine Renaissance choir-screen. Branch-line to I^^euffen, see p. 71. —
25 M. Neckartailfingen, 2 M. to the W., with an early-Romanesque
church (12th cent.). — The line quits the Neckar-Tal ; fine view of

the Alb to the left.

307.2 M. Metzingen (1170 ft.; Hot. Sprandel, at the station,

R. 1 c^ 80-2 ^^ 20, B. 80 pf.), a small town with 6350 inhabitants.

Branch-line to Urach, see p. 71.
To Neuffen, see p. 71. — Fine view from the Floriansberg (1715 ft.

;

indicator), 3/^ hr. N.E. ; 3/^ hr. farther E. is the Jusiberg (2175 ft.). Pleas-
ant walk thence along the ridge via the (V2 hr.) Hornle (2320 ft.) to the
(3/4 hr.) Karlslinde (p. 71); thence to the Hohenneuffen (p. 71), I1/2 hr.

Comp. the Maps, pp. 74 and 69.

33V2 M- Sondelfingen. To the left rises the Achalm (p. 54).

36 M. Reutlingen. — Hotels. Kronprins (PI. a; B, 1), at the

station, R. 2-4, B. 1 JC, with beer-garden, good; Schivan (PI. c; B, 2),
. Markt-Platz, R. I1/2-2 ^, B. 70 pf. ; Goldener Ochse {V\. b; B, 2), Markt-
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Platz, R. 1 .^ 80 pf.-2 c^, B. 70 pf., good; Hirsch (PI. d; B, 2), Wilhelm-
Str. 36. — Wine at Autenrieth^s. — Tramway W. to Betzingen (p. 54),

E. to (3 M.) Eningen (p. 73).

Reutlingen (1230 ft.), a free city of the empire down to 1802»

now a town of 29,800 inliab. (incl. Betziugen, p. 54), with weaving
and spinning mills and tanneries, is picturesquely situated on the

Echaz, at the foot of the Achalm (p. 54). The Garten-Tor and
Tubinger Tor, N.E. and AV. of the market-place, are well-preserved

relics of the ancient fortifications, but the ramparts and moats have

been converted into brdad streets.

a:ET\estinjen-

'

In the List-Platz, in front of the station (PI. B, 1), is a statue of

Friedrich List, the political economist, born at Reutlingen in

1789. We follow the Karl-Str. to the right, then the Wilhelm-Str.

to the left. To the right, in the latter, is the Protestant St. Niko-
laus-Kirche (PL B. 1), begun in 1358, the tower of Avhich was
pulled down in 1536; to the left, in the (6 min.) Markt-Platz, is

the Heiliggeist-Kirche or Spital-Kirche (PI. B, 2). The market-

place contains also WiQ Maximilians -Brunnen (PI. 3; B, 2), the

original of which (1570) is in the Spendhaus (p. 54). Farther
on in the Wilhelm-Str., to the left, is the Protestant *Marieii-
Kirche (PI. B, C, 2; verger Wilhelm-Str. 80. entr. Oberamtei-Str.;
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20 pf.}, the most important flamboyant edifice in Swabia, dating

from the 13th-14th cent., with Eomanesque remains. It was burned

in 1726 and restored in 1893-1901. The beautiful tower, 240 ft.

high, was erected in 1494 by Peter von Breisach and Matth. Bob-

linger (p. 47). In the vestibule and sacristy are frescoes of the

early 14th cent., partly restored. The octagonal stone font of 1499,

at the E. end of the S. aisle, is richly sculptured; the reliefs in

the niches represent the Baptism of Christ and the Seven Sacra-

ments. The Holy Sepulchre by the E. wall of the choir (ca. 1480)

is also interesting. — The Marienkirch-Briinnen (PI. 2) has a

figure of Emperor Frederick II., restored in 1903. In the upper
Wilhelni-Str., to the right, is the late-Gothic Linden 'Brunnen
(1544; PL 1, C 3). About 3 min. S.AV. of the Marien-Kirche, reached

by the Oberamtei-Str. and Spendhaus-Str., is the Spendhaas
(PI. B, 3), containing collections of natural history and antiqui-

ties (Sun. 11-12 and 1-3, free; at other times 20 pf.); the objects

found in tumuli are interesting. — To the W. of the inner town
are Lucases Pomological Institute (PI. A, B, 3) and the Bruder-
haus (PI. A, 2), a refuge established by Pastor Werner (d. 1887i.

To the E. is the royal Techniktim filr Texfil- Industrie (beyond

PI. C,2). To the KE., at the corner of the Brunnen-Str. and'^Bis-

marck-Str. , is the modern Romanesque St. Wolfgang -Kirche
(beyond PI. C, 1), by Th. Fischer. — The Panorama -Weg, skirting

the Honau railway-line (E. lid) from the station, affords pretty

views. About ^
^ hr. X.E. of the station are the little sulphur-baths

of Heilhrunnen; V4 hr. W. of the station is the workmen's colony

of Gmindersdorf (beyond PI. A, 1).

AscEKT OF THE AcHALM, footpatli in IV4 lir. (comi). iiie[Map, p. 74j.

From the station we follow the Garten-Str. to the Burg-Platz, and then
the Burg-Str. to the left: after 20 min.. at the foot of the Achalm.the
path ascends under a bridge ; 10 min. farther on we ascend to the right
(straight on) through vineyards to (1/4 hr.) the royal Meierei (rfmts.):
after 7 min. we follow the winding path to the right, or the circular
path straight on, to (20 min.) the summit. The *Achalm (2315 ft.), an
isolated hill, is crowned by a ruined castle, partly of the llth-12th cent.,

the tower of which may be ascended (40 pf. ; key at the dairy). Admirable
view: Rossberg, Schloss Lichtenstein, the Hohenueuffen, Teck, Hoheu-
rechberg, Hohenstaufen, and other peaks of the Alb; the cultivated plain
as far as Stuttgart; the Black Forest from the heights around Triberg
and St. Georgen to Pforzheim

;
picturesque foreground ; below us lies

Rcutlingen, to the E. Eningen, to the S. Pfullingen. — We may descend
to Eningen (p. 73) in 1/2 hr., turning to the left 8 min. below the ruin.

Via the Madchenfels and Holzeltingen to Lichtenstein, see p. 75.

Local Railway from the station in 1 hr., via (2 M.) Betzingen (see
below), to (10 M.) Gonningen (p. 77).

Railway to Lichtenstein and Schelklingen, see p. 74.

37^2 ^- Betzingen, a suburb of Reutlingen (to Gonningen, see

above). — Near {4:0^/2'M^.)Kirchentellinsfurt the line re-enters the

Neckar-Tal. — 43 M. Lustnau (Hot. Ochse). — 441/2 M. Tubingen
(rail, restaurant).
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Tiibingen.

Hotels. Lamm (PI. b; B, 4), in the market-place. E. 2-31/2, B. \ JC:
Traube-Post (VI. a; C, 3J, Wilhelm-Str. 8, E. 2-5 .^, B. 80 pf . : Goldner
Ochse (PI. d; D, 5), Karl-Str. 5, E. 1 c^ 70-2.^ 20, B. 70 pf., D. VI2JC;
Prim Karl (PI. c; C, 3), Hafen-Gasse, E. from 2 Ji, B. 80 pf

. ; Koniu
Karl (PI. e; C, 4), Miihl-Str., E. from 2V2, B. 1 Ji; Kaiser (PI. f ; C, i\
Kirch-Gasse (i. — Evangel iacJies Vereinshaus (PI. g; B, 4), Neckarhakle 2,

E. 1-11/2 ^.
Beer Eestaurants. Ochse, Prim Karl, Konig Karl, see above;

Kommerell, Pfleghof-Str. 1 (PI. C, 4, 3) ; Museum (PI. C, 3), with garden

;

Krone, corner of Karl-Str. and Uhland-Str. (PI. C, 4); Ratsstuhe, behind
the Eathaus ; Neckar-Mullerei, Garten-Str. 2 (PI. D, 4), with garden on
the Neckar; Hanskarle, Kaiser -Str. 2 (PI. C, D, 3). — Wine Eooms.
Forelle, Kronen-Str. 8 (PI. B, 4); Seeger (Eatskeller), Herrenberger Str.

(PI. A, B, 2).

Post & Telegraph Office (PI. C, 3), corner of Hafen-Gasse and
Neue Str. — Batus. Uhlancls-Bad, Karl-Str. 2.

A flying visit to the town, incl. the Schloss and Schiinzlc, takes 21/^ hrs.

Tiibingen (1090 ft.), a town with 19,100 inhab., finely situated

in the Neckar and Ammer valleys and on their slopes, is first men-

tioned in 1078. The university (2000 students) was founded by

Count Eberhard im Bart (p. 5) in 1477. Melanchthon (p. 18) taugli-

hcre in 1512-18, before he was summoned to Wittenberg.

From the station (PI. C, 5) wc cross the 'Worth', with its beau-

tiful avenues, to the bronze statue of Uhland (PL 3; C, 5), by Kietz

(1873). Beyond, by the Xeckar, is an avenue of plane-trees, at the

W. end of which is a memorial of Ottilie Wildermufh (d. 1877;

PI. 4, A 5).

From Uhland's statue we proceed to tlie right to the bridge over

the Neckar (1901-3), on which is a monument to Count Eberhard

(see above). Beyond the bridge (to the right, at the beginning of

the Muhl-Str.) is Uhland's House (PL 6; C, D, 4), in which the poet

lived (1836-62) and died; it now belongs to a students' corps and

is open to the public. In front is the pretty Nynqjhen - Brunneu

(1910). The house in which Uhland was born is in the Neckarhalde

(No. 24; PL 5, B 4).

The streets of the old town are picturesque. The choir of the

late -Gothic Stifts - Kirche (15th cent.; PL C, 4; sacristan near

the S. portal, 20 pf.) contains old stained glass and eleven mon-

uments of Wurtemberg princes with recumbent stone figures, in-

cluding Duke Louis (d. 1593; 1st row), with reliefs by C. Jolin,

Duke Christopher (d. 1 568 ; 2nd row), and Count Eberhard (see above i

and Duke Ulrich (d. 1550; 4th row). The winged altar-piece is ol'

theUlm school (1520; Crucifixion, etc.). The pulpit, font, and

lectern date from the 15th century. The choir -stalls in carved

wood, below the organ, are of the school of Syrlin (early 16th cent.).

— To the S.W. of the Stifts-Kirche is the Alte Aula (PL C, 4), of

1777, with the institute of art- history. — In the Markt-Platz

(PL B, 4) arc a fountain of 1617 and the Rathans. erected in 143.-),

4*
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rebuilt in 1698 and 1872, and enlarged in 1908. — A little to the

S., in an old Augustinian monastery, is the Stift (PL B, 4), a Pro-

testant seminary founded in 1536 hy Duke Ulrich. "The Catholic

seminary, or Wilhelms-Stift (PI. C, 3), occupies the old Collegium

Illustre, founded in 1588 for sons of the nobility. — To the N". of

the Rathaus, 8chniidtor-Str. 4 (PL B, 3), on the second floor, is the

Maiiicipal Picture Gallery (open free on Tues., Wed., and Thurs.

10-12 and 2-4, Sun. 11-1).

In the new Jf. .quarter of the town, in the Wilhelm-Str. and to

the W. of it, lie the University ('Neue Aula'), the Hospitals, and

various other university institutes (PL B-D, 1, 2). The Botanical

Gardens (PL C,D, 2, 3) contain a monument to Holderlin (see below;

PL 1), by Andresen (188 Ij. Behind the university rises an obelisk

with a medallion-portrait of Friedrich Silcher, the song-composer

(1793-1860
;
^1. 2, D 2 ; comp. p. 38j. The Archaeological Institute

(PL D, 2) contains collections of Egyptian antiquities and of G-reek

and Roman vases (open free on Thurs. and Sun., 11-1). Opposite

is the University Library (540,000 vols.), by P. Bonatz (1912).

The Geological and Zoological Institute (PL D, 1) accommodates

the natural history collections of the university (open free on Thurs.

and Sun., 11-1), with valuable fossils of the Triassic and Jurassic

periods (huge saurians) and meteorites. — In the Cemetei^y (PL

B, C, 1) rest Ludwig Uhland (PL 7; p. 55), Friedrich Holderlin

(d. 1843; see above), and Friedrich Silcher (see above).

From the Rathaus (p. 55) we ascend to the left by the Wiener

Gassle and the Burgsteige to Schloss Hohentiibingen (1220 ft.;

PL A, B, 4), situated on a hill commanding the town. It was begun

in 1507 by Duke Ulrich and completed about 1560. The richly

decorated outer portal dates from 1606, the inner portal from 1538

(restored in 1892; comp. p. xxviii). It contains the observatory

(N.E. tower), and various collections are to be housed here later.

The cellars contain an immense cask (18,500 gallons) dating from

1546, dungeons, and a well 160 ft. dee^). Attendant in the second

archway, on the right (20 pL).
Fine view from the Schdnzle (PI. A, 4), reached from the court of the

Schloss by a gate and steps beyond the well ; still finer view from the
Lichtenberger Hohe, with a Bismarck Tower. 20 min. farther to the S.W. —
On the E. of the old town rises the Osterberg (1435 ft. ; beyond PI. D,
3, 4), with numerous villas and houses of the students' corps. At the
top is the (20 min.) Kaiser-Wilhelm-Turm (20 pf.), with a view extending
from the Hohenstaufen to the Plcttenberg and Hornisgrinde. Wc may
descend to Lustnau (p. 54) and return to the town by a fine avenue. —

•

Other points of view: the Eberhards-Hohe (1475ft.; beyond PI. C, D, 1),

1/2 lir. X. of the town, and the Waldhdttser Hd?ie, V4 tr. farther on; the
Steinenberg (1610 ft.), 3/^ hr. N.W. of the town; the Odenburg, V2 ^^^^

8.W. of the Lichtenberger Hohe (see above).
On a hill-spur (1560 ft. ; extensive view) , IV2 hr. W. of Tubingen

(via the Lichtenberger Hohe, see above), lies the celebrated 'Wurinlinger
Kapelle, dating from 1682, with a Romanesque crypt. It was damaged
by an earthcjuakc iu 1911, but restored in 1913.
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About IV2-2 lii-s. N.W. of Tubingen (via Hagelloch) lies the country-
house of Hohenentringen (1675 ft.), with restaurant and view ; 1/2 hr.

S. is Schloss Roseck (restaurant), prettily situated on the hillside. 'We
may descend W. from Holienentringen to (IV4 M.) Entringen station (see
below) or E. through a deer-forest to (SVa M.) Bcbenhausen (see below).

Excursion to Bebkkhausen. Motor-omn. several times daily from
the station or the post office to Eebenhausen (20 min. ; 40 pf.), and thence
via Dettenhausen (p. 59; 1 j(,) and Echterd'mgen (p. 16; 2 JO) to (20 M.)
Degerloch (p. 16; 1^/4 hr. ; 2 .^ 40 pf.). One-iiorse carr. to Kebenhauju'u
and back 5 JC; circular drive to Bcbenhausen and Hohenentringen (seo
above) and back to Tubingen 10-11 JC. Walkers take I1/4 hr., either by
the fine club-path through woods to the E. of the Ebcrhards-Hohe (p. 56*;

red way-marks) or by the path over the hill to the W. of it (blue marks)

;

return via Hohenentringen 3 hrs. — Bebenhausen (1210 ft. ; Hot. Hirscli.
Waldhorn, both unpretending), a village in tlie valley of the G oleicrsbach.
4 M. to the X. of Tiibingen ^road via Lustnau, p. 54), possesses a Avell-

preserved old *Cistercian Abbey, founded ca. 1190, suppressed in 1534,
well restored in 1864-90, and now a royal hunting -lodge. It is one of
the finest niediceval structures in Swabia and, like Maulbronn, one of
the most picturesque convents in Germany. We enter by the Schreib-
Turm on the W. side and turn to the right (bell for the keeper to the
left; open 9-4, April-Sept. 9-6; adm. 50, Sun. 25 pf.). The inner wall
(late 13th cent.) is almost intact. The church, originally a flat-roofed
Romanesque basilica of 1188-1227, was frequently remodelled (last in

1566-8). The octagonal spire was added by Greorg von Salem in 1407-9.

In the E. wall of the rectilineal choir is a large and beautiful traceried
window (1335). To the S. are the late-Gothic cloisters (1471-96), with a
well-house, round which are grouped the conventual buildings. To tlie

E. are the chapter-house (with curious capitals and ceiling-painting.s of
1528), the parlatorium, or audience-room, and a recreation room, all in

the late-Romanesque style. To the S. are the kitchen and the Gothic sum-
mer refectory (1335), with interesting ceiling-paintings, arms, armour, and
goldsmith's work. To the W. are the lay brothers' refectory and the
low late -Gothic winter refectory (after 1470), with a wall-painting of
the expedition of the Cistercian knights of Calatrava against the Moors.
To the S.E. of the conventual buildings is the Fiirstenbau, dating for
the most part from 1532 and containing the royal dwelling-rooms. Close
by, to the S.W., is the abbot's house, now occupied by forestry offices.

From TCbingen to Herrenbercj, 13 M., branch-line in 1 hr. — We
cross the Neckar and pass under the Schlossberg by a tunnel. — l^W^i-
Tiibingen-Westbahnhof. We ascend the Ammer-Tal ; on the left is the
Wurmlinger Kapelle (p. 56) , on the right the slopes of the Schiinbucli

(p. 58). — 6 M. Entringen. To Hohenentringen, see above. — 13 M.
llerrenberg (p. 59).

From Tubingen to ITechingen and Sigmaringen, see R. 12.

511/0 M. Rottenburg (1115 ft.; Hot. Bar, R. 1 =.// 30 pt'.-2 c//,

B. 60 pf., Romischor Kaiser, botli in the market-place), an old town
with 7600 inhab., picturesquely situated on the left bank of the

Neckar, is the seat of the Catholic bishops of Wurtemberg. It is con-

nected by two bridges with the suburb of Ehingen, which contains

the station, the post office, and the ]\[oritr.-Kirche, enlarged in

1320, with 14th cent, tombs. From the station we reach the (5 min.)

market-place by the Bahnhof-Str. and the lower bridge, passing on
the way the Zehntscheuer (tithe barn), containing antiquities found
here in the old Roman station of Sumelocenna (key opposite). In
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the market-place are a reproduction of the fine late-Grothic Fountain
of 1470, and the late-Grothic church of aS'^ Martin (modernized), with

a perforated spire. The episcopal palace to the E., formerly a Jesuit

college, contains the Diocesan Museum (2nd floor; ring; gratuity),

comprising paintings and carvings of the Swabian school (loth and

16th cent.), nearly all of which are spoiled by retouching. To the

W. is the Altes Schloss, now a prison.

On the Altsfadt (1395 ft.). V4 hr- S.W., is a Fraukish castrum ; 1/2 br.

farther S., beyond the village of Welle?-, is the Weilerburg or Aitroten-
hiirg (1820 ft.), with a view-tower (key at Weiler; open on Sun.). — The
Sulchen-Kapelle, 20 min. N.E. of Eottenburg, once the centre of the
Sulich-G-au, is the burial-place of the bishops.

"We cross the Neckar and follow its left bank. Vineyards give

way to pine-forest. — 531/2 M. Bad Niedernau (1180 ft.). The
old baths, with chalybeate and aerated springs (hotel), lie in the

Katzenbach-Tal, on the opposite bank. — We cross the Neckar,

and beyond (5 5^/2 M.) Bieringen the Starzel. To the right, beyond

a tunnel, rises Schloss Weitenhurg, with a view-tower. — 591/2 M.
Eyach (1725 ft.), with mineral water factories. On a pine-clad

hill to the left is the ruin of Frundeck.
From Eyach to Hechixgen, 171/2 M., light railway in IV2 lir- — We

ascend the Eyach-Tal. — 21/2 M. Mtthringen, with a modern Schloss. We
cross the Prussian frontier. — .S1/2 M. Imnan. with a chalvbeate spring. —
7 M. Haigerloch (1395 ft.; Hot. Post), a little town with 1300 inhab...

picturesquelv situated on both sides of the Eyach, and commanded by a

16th cent. Schloss (chapel rebuilt in 1748). — From (8 M.) Stetten, with
salt-works, a road leads S. to Balingen (p. 81; 71/2 ^0 '^ia (IV4 M.)
Oicingen, near which (to the left, on the Grosselfingen road) is the well-

preserved Romanesque Weiler-Kirche, with a modern choir. — The line

descends to the Starzel-Tal. — 131/2 M. Bangendingen, with an old Domi-
nican nunnery, now the Rathaus. — 171/2 M. Hechingen (p. 81).

641/2 M. Horl) (p. 61).

10. Prom Stuttgart via Boblingen to
Schaffhausen.

1221/2 M. Express in 4-5 hrs. (17 .4i 50, 11 ^40, 1 Ji 20 pf.) ; ordinary
train in 10 hrs. (15 JO bQ, 9i JC 40, 6 JC 20 pf.). This is the direct route
from Stuttgart to Zurich (ISli/g M. ; express in 5-53/4 hrs.) and to the
Baden Oberland (see p. 59). — From Stuttgart via Singen to Constance,
129 M., express in 43/^ hrs. (18 JC 30, 11 c^ 90, 7 .^ 50 pf.).

From Stuttgart (Haupt-Bahnhof) to the (5 M.) Westhalmhof
(1215 ft.), see p. 17. Just beyond the station the train penetrates

theHasenberg and ascends (1 : 100) high above the suburb oiHeslach
and the gradually contracting valley. Pretty views to the left. The
line runs through woods and across three deep gorges. — At (91/2 M.)

Vaihingen we reach the Filder, the fertile upland plain to the S.

of Stuttgart (Filder-Bahn, see p. 16); the Swabian Alb rises in the

background. — We now cross the Schonhuch, a fine forest con-

sisting mostly of deciduous trees.
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151/2 M. Bohlwgen (1435 ft.; Hot. Waldhorn or Post; Kurhaus
Waldburg, 20 niin. from the station), an old town with 6000 in-

habitants.
From Boblingen to Dettenhausen, IOV2 M., brancb-line (Schonbuch-

Babn) in 3/^-1 hr. — I1/4 M. Boblingen-Siid. — 8 M. Weil im Schonhuch.
Pleasant walk S. tbrough the Schijnbuch to the Josephsnihe (view) and
(4V-2 M.) Bebenbausen (p. 57). — We descend the Schaich-Tal. — IOV2 M.
Dettenhciusen. Motor- omn. to Tiibingen and to Degerlocb, see p. 57.

About -1 hrs. X.E. is the Uhlberg (p. 16).

25 V2 M- Herrenberg (1415 ft.; Hot. Post, R. iVa-S ^/^s an old

town with 2700 inhab., on the edge of the fertile Gdu. The im-

posing abbey-church (14th-15th cent.) contains good choir-stalls

(1517). The Schlossberg affords a good view to the 8.E. of the

Schonbuch hills and in the distance the Alb. Branch-line to Tu-
bingen, see p. 57.

36 M. Eutiiigen(1550ft.; rail, restaurant), junction for Pforz-

heim (p. 24) and Hausach (see below). Continuation of the Schaff-

hausen line, see p. 61.

From Eutingen to Hausach, 43 M., branch-line in 2 hrs. —
3 M. Hochdorfip. 24). — 15 M. Dornstetten (2065 ft.; Hot. zum
Bahnhof), a small town with 1200 inhab., has partly preserved

town-walls and a late-Crothic church (end of 15th cent.). — Three

lofty viaducts.

18^/2 M. Preudenstadt. — Railway Stations. Haupt-BahnhoT
(PI. C, 2;" 2180 ft. ; restaurant), ^U M. to the E. of the town; Stadt-Bahn-
hof (PI. A, 1), near the town, for the brancb-line to Kloster-Reichenbach.

Hotels (rooms should be engaged beforehand in summer and during
the winter-sports). Near the Haupt-Babnbof : *SchicarzicaJd Hotel (Vl. a.;

C, 2), first-class, in an open situation, with large garden. R. 2-6, with
bath 10-18, B. IV2, D- i, P- 7Vo-12 ^. — In the town: *Fost (PI. b: A,
B, 1), R. 2-3, B. 1. D. 2-3, P. 6-8" c^; Krone (PI. c; A, 1, 2), R. 1 ./i 80 pf.-

2 Ji, B. 1, D. 1 .^ 80 pf.-2 .^. P. 5V2-6V2' oniu. 1/., JC, good; Linde (PI. d;
A, 1), P. from Ay.JC: Herzog Friedrich (PI. e ; B, 2), R. 13/^-3 .tC, B. 80 pf.,

P. 5-7, omn. '/, ./^; Bossle (PI. f; B, 1), R. Vl-^-'i JC, B. 80 pf., P. 5-8.*:,

omn. 30 pf. — To the S.W. of the town: *Bappe)i (PI. g; A, 2), R. from
IV2, D- 2V2, P- from 51/2 -^; ^Kurhaus Waldeck (PI. h; A, 2), with depen-
dance C'hristophsaue, "first-class, R. 21/2-0, with bath 12-15, B. IV4. D-
from 3, P. 8-20, omn. 1 ^/C. — To the S.E., above the town: *KurJiai(S

WaldlKSt (PI. i ; B, 3), R. 21/2-IO, with bath 10-20, B. IV^, D- i'/o. P- 11-18 ^;
*Park-HoieL at the beginning of the Palmenwald, R. 2-3. with bath 5-10,

B. 1, P. 6-8 JC; Kurhaus Palmenwald (PI. k; B, 3), a 'Christian hospice',

R. 21/2-4, P. 51/2-7^, good; Wald- & Kur-IIotel Stoklnger, R. 2-8, P. 6-9 JC,

with cafe-restaurant (p. 61). — Several Pensions and numerous Lodgings
(R. 7-10 Ji per week).

Inquiry Office at the Rathaus. — Visitors' Tax (June Ist-Sept. 15th),

for 5 days 1 JC 20 pf., for longer periods 21/2-6./*.

Carriages at all the hotels. — Motor Omnibcses to Buhstein, Baden-
Baden, and the Kniehis, see Baedeker's Rhine.

Frendenstadt (2395 ft.), a town of 8460 inhab., with cloth,

nail, and knife factories and a trade in timber, is situated on a plateau

sloping gently to the E. and is visited both as a summer resort and
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for winter-sports (10,000 visitors yearly). It was founded in 1599
by Duke Frederick I, for Protestant refugees from Salzburg, and was
rebuilt after a fire in 1632. The plan of the town is peculiar. In

the centre is a large square, partly occupied by gardens and sur-

rounded by arcaded houses, while in and near it are the Rathaics
(PI. A, 1), 'the ScJiool, the Protestant Church (PL A, 2), the Ober-
Amt (District Offices), and the new Post Office (PI. A. 1). The church,
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built in 1601-8, has a unique design, consisting of two naves at

right angles, one for male, the other for female worshippers, while

pulpit and altar are placed at the apex of the angle. At the end of

eachnaveis atower. Thegalleries are embellishedwith stucco-reliefs

of BibJical subjects. The wall-paintings are by Zuberle (restored).

The Romanesque font and reading-desk, the carved choir -stalls

(1488), and the fine 16th cent, crucifix all come from the monastery
of Alpirsbach (p. 61; verger Schul-Str. 323, E. of the church).

Freudenstadt is surrounded on three sides by fine pine-woods,
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intersected by good roads and footpaths. To the S.W., to the left

of the road to the Kniebis, is the Teuchel-Weg (Cafe Klaeger,

20 min.). About 10 min. S.E. is the Palmemvald (PL B, 3), with

beautiful ferns and fir-trees (Cafe Stokinger, 10 min. farther on, at

the other end of the forest). Between these rises the Kienberg

(2620 ft.; 20 min.), with the Herzog Friedrich Tower (PL A, 3;

panorama) and the Cafe-Bestaurant Friedrichshohe.

Branch-line from Freudenstadt to Kloster-Reichenbach, see Baedeker^

s

Rhine. — Good roads lead W. via the Kniebis to (121/2 M.) Griesbach
(one-horse carr. 12, two-horse 18 tS), and S.W. via Zwieselberg to Bad
Rippoldsau (carr. 10 or 18 Ji). See Baedeker^s Rhine.

The train turns to the S. — 22V2 M. Lossburg-Bodt (2150 ft.),

near the source of the Kinzig, the wooded valley of which we no\r

follow.

28 M. Alpirsbach (1425 ft.; Hot. Lowe-Post, B. lV2-2^'2,

P. 4Y2-6 t//^', good; Schwan, Bahnhofs- Hotel), with 1650 inhab.,

trades in timber and manufactures straw-hats. The large Protestant

church, begun in 1098 as a Bomanesque basilica, completed in the

transitional style, and well restored in 1879-82, originally belonged

to a Benedictine monastery founded in 1095 by a Count of ZoUern.

On the portal is a Bomanesque relief of Christ glorified. In the

interior two Bomanesque wooden benches should be noticed. The

Bomanesque cloisters were rebuilt in the Grothic style in 1480-90.

Comp. p. xix. About - '3 M. to the W. of the station is the sana-

torium of Krdheiibad, for neurasthenic patients. — "VTe enter Baden.
— 311/2 M. Schenkenzell (1170 ft. ; Hot. Ochse, Sonne), with a ruined

castle, at the mouth of the Kleine Kinzig. — The train threads a

tunnel, on the hill above which, to the left, are the ruined Schen-

Icenhurg and a hotel.

34 M. Schiltach (1070 ft.; Bahnhof-Hotel; Krone, B. IV2-2,

P. 4i/2-5\/W/; Engel), an old town of 1900 inhab., situated at the

junction of the Schiltach and Kinzig, has a timber trade and cloth-

factories. Above, on the S.E., is a ruined castle (1370 ft.). Branch-

line to (5\'2 ^I-) Schr-amberg, see Baedeker's Rhine. — 40 M.

Wolfach (Hot. Salmen, Krone, Ochse). — 43 M. Hausach (Bahn-

hof-Hotel, Hirsch), see Baedeker's Rhine.

COXTINUATION OF THE SCHAFFHAUSEX LiNE. BcyOnd EutiugCU

(p. 59) we descend the narrow Milhlener Tdlchen, with the ruined

Staujfenberg on the left, thread a tunnel, and cross the Neckar.

411/2 M. Horb (1280 ft.; Bail. Bestaurant; Hot. zum Kaiser;

Lindenhof, with a view of the town), a small town with 2530 in-

hab., in a picturesque situation, has partly preserved town- walls

and the late-G-othic Spital-Kirche. On the hill,

station, is the old Schutte-Turm (view; key at the chemist's).
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Berthold Auerbach (1812-82), the novelist of the Black Forest, was
born and is buried at Nordstetten (Biauerei), which lies about Va hr- S.E.

of the station.

From Horb to Stuttgart via Tubingen and PlocMngen, see R. 9; to

Eiitingen and Pforzheim, see p. 24.

The train for a short way runs on Prussian territory. — 46 M.

NecTcarliausen. We return to the left bank. To the E. above

Fischingen rises the extensive ruin of Wehrstein. — SO^/g M.

Sulz am Keckar (1410 ft.; Hot. Waldhorn, R. l^Vl'A -^^, ^'^11

spoken of; Solbad-Hotel Pfisterwald ; Kurhaus Albeck), with salt

springs. Beyond a tunnel, to the left, lies the rtiin of Albeck: —
Near (56 M.) Aistaig pleasant glimpses of the valley are enjoyed. —
57M. Obenulorf {ro20 ft; Hot. Konig Wilhelm: Post, R. i-2i .,=7/,

good), a little town to the right with 3760 inhabitants. The old

Augustinian monastery is now a rifle-factory. — 61 M. Epfendorf.
— 64 M. Talhausen. The line is carried over four bridges, through

three tunnels, with various ruins to the right and left, and lastly

by a tunnel through the hill on which Rottweil lies. In the valley,

to the right, is a large powder-mill.

68V9 M. Rottweil (1968 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. zum
Wilden kann, R. 1 ^/ 80 pf.-2 c^ 50, B. 80 pf., D. 2 c/^; Park-

Hotel, Bahnhof-Hotel, Lamm), an ancient town with 9650 inhab.,

was a free city of the empire down to 1802. It is finely situated

high above the ISTeckar. Above the station, to the left, is the site

of a large Prankish castrum. — From the station we follow the

Bahnhof-Str. to the right, cross (12 min.) the 'Hoch-Briicke', and

reach the Hochbriicktor-Str. A little way back on the right is

(2 min.) the Kapellen-Kirche, remodelled in 1721-9. The three

portals of its Gothic tower (230 ft.; 14th -15th cent.) are adorned

with sculptures. At the intersection of the Haupt-Str. is the Markt-
Brunnen (30 ft. high), surmounted by the figure of a 'Landsknecht',

or mediaeval soldier (ca. 1550). Descending the Haupt-Str. to the

right and taking the Lorenz-Gasse on the left, we reach (3 min.) the

St. Lorenz-Kapelle, a late -Gothic structure of 1579 (?). The in-

terior (key at the house opposite its S. side; catalogue 20 pf.) con-

tains a collection of mediaeval wood-carvings and pictures; in the

centre is a Roman mosaic pavement (Orpheus). We now return to

theHaupt Str. and ascend it to (6 min.) i\iQ Seinearzer T2/?'m, passing

the Bathaus (1521), adorned with facade-paintings of 1884, and the

Alterturns-Halle, containing Roman relics. A little to the N. is the

Heilige-Kreuz-Kirche, a fine Gothic church of the 13th-16th cen-

turies. About 4 min. W. of the Schwarzer Turm stands the Hoch-
Turm (175 ft. high). — About ^/^ hr. S. of the station is the hamlet

of Altstadt, on the site of a Roman colony (Arae Flaviee). The salt

works and baths of Wilhelmshall lie 10 min. farther on.

The wooded *Lemberg (3330 ft.; shelter -hut), the loftiest summit
of the Swabian Alb, mav be ascended in 3 hrs. from Rottweil; we cross
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the N"eckar by tlie iron foot-bridge above the station, thenvikWelle^idingen
and Wilflingen (a Hohenzollern enclave). The tower (100 ft. high) com-
mands a splendid view of the Alb, the Black Forest, and the Alps. —
The OherlioTienherg (3315 ft.), 3/4 hr. N. of tlie Lemberg. the second highest
summit of the Alb, commands a poor. view. Thence to the Plettenberg,

see pp.82, 81. — From Gosheim (2780 ft.; Hot. Sonne, B;ir) , 1/0 hr. S.

of the Lemberg, fine hill-walk via the Klv]}peneck (3220 ft.) to the (21/2 hrs.)

Dreifaltigkeifsberg (see below).

From Rottweil, to Yillingex, 17 M., railway in 1'/* hr. — 7V-2 M".

Trossingen, 3 M. from the station (electric tramway in 12 min.), with
mouth-organ factories. — 11 M. Schicenyiingen (Hot. RiJssle, Adler), a

town of 15.100 inhab., with a technical school for skilled mechanics.
About .20 min. S. is the Source of the Neckar (2285 ft.) , with small
gardens and baths ; 1/2 hr. W. (visible from the railway) is the Holzle-
konig, a fir-tree 140 ft. high, dating from the 16th century. — The line

traverses a lofty plain, the watershed between the Rhine and Danube,
and then descends the Brigacli-Tal to Villingen (see Baedelcer' s Rhine).

Motor-omn. from Rottweil in 1 hr. to (81/2 M.) Schomberg (p. 82; rail-

way under construction).

The line crosses the Neckar and enters the broad Prim-TaL
To the left we obtain glimpses of the spurs of the Alb. — 72 M,

Neufra. The line ascends gradually and traverses a high-ljnng,

well- cultivated plain, forming part of the Baar (see below). —
74^/2 M. Aldingeii. To the left rises the long ridge of the Heiiberg,

the W. part of the Alb, with the Dreifaltigkeitsberg. To the right

are the Hohenkarpfen and Lupfeu (see below).

771/2 M. Spaichingen (2200 ft.; Hot. Alte Post, H. 1 ^ 80-

2 ^ 50 pf.; Bahnhof-Hotel), a straggling little town with 3100 in-

habitants.

The Dreifaltigkeitsberg (3225 ft.), a spur of the Heuberg (.see

above), with a frequented pilgrimage-church, is ascended from Spaichingen
in 1 hr. ; the tower on the top (20 pf.) commands a magnificent view.
Rfmts. at the sacristan's house (also beds).

Spaichingen is also the starting-point for a visit to tlie Baar, an
undulating and fertile plateau (2300-2600 ft.), partly wooded, which ex-

tends from Rottweil on the N". to Tuttlingen on the S. and is bounded on
the W. by the spurs of the Black Forest and on the E. by the Heuberg
(see above). The following is an attractive excursion (to Tuttlingen
7 hrs.). "We walk S. to (1 hr.) Hansen oh Verena (2645 ft.), beyond wliich

a road to the left leads to the (3/4 hr.) EohenJcarpfen (2980 ft.), "a bare cone
with a ruined castle. Thence we walk S.W. to tlie (IV2 hr.) wooded and
coffin- shaped Lupfen (3200 ft.), with scanty remains of a large castle

and a tower (view of the Black Forest and the Alps), and then descend
S. to (1/2 hr.) Talheim (2475 ft. ; Hot. Lindc), where Max Schnccken-
burger (1819-49), author of the 'Wacht am Rhein'. was born and is buried.
From Talheim we go on past the Konzenherg (2620 ft. ; ruined castle) to

(2V4hrs.) Mohringen (p. 64) or to (3 hrs.) Tuttlingen (see below).

"VVe next descend on the bank of the Fcudenhach to (82^2 ^)
Wurmlingen, with a Schloss (now a school). — The line describes

a curve and crosses the Danube by an iron bridge.

85 M. Tuttlingen (2125 ft.; Rail. Restaurant: Hot. Post. R.

2-2Y2 ^, B. 80 pf.; Bahnhof-Hotel), a thriving town with 15,900 in-

hab., lies on the right bank of the Danube. Above it, to the S.,

rise the fine ruins of the Honhurg (2415 ft.: 40 min. from the
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station), destroyed in 1645. In the Balinhof-Str., on the left, is a

monument to Max Schneckenburger (p. 63), by Jahn (1892). Tutt-

lingen is the W. starting-point of the N. and S. Randwege of the

Swabian Alb ('p. 67). The Witthoh (2800 ft.), a ridge IV2 lir. S.,

is a good point of view; descent thence to Hattingen (see below)

3/4 hr., to Mohringen (see below) IY4 hr. From Tuttlingen to Sig-

maringen and Ulm, see R. 13.

We ascend the broad valley of the Danube, enter Baden terri-

tory, and short of (87 Y2 ^I-) Mohringen cross to the left bank.

Some of the Danube water filters through the earth here and re-

appears in the Aach-Quelle (see below), 8 M. to the S. — 92 M.

Immendingen (2160 ft.; Rail. Restaurant, good; Hot. Falke), junc-

tion for Donaueschingen and Waldshut (see Baedeker^s Rhine).

The train recrosses the Danube and gradually ascends by deep

cuttings on the S. side of the valley. — 941/2 M. Hattingen (22^ ft.

;

Hot. Ochse). We penetrate the watershed between the Danube and

the Rhine by a tunnel and descend over viaducts. — 98 M. Tal-

muhle (hotel). Near Aach (Hot. Sonne, Lowe), 31/2 ^- to the E., is

the Aach-Quelle (see above); the brook descends in a torrent, driv-

ing three mills. — We now descend the wooded Engener Tal to

(101 V2 M.) Engen (1705 ft.; Hot. Post or Stern, Hegau), an an-

cient little town, where the mountains are quitted. About 2 hrs.

N.W. rises the Neuhowen (2845 ft.), the highest point of the Hegau
(see below), with a ruin (key at the Hot. zum Kreuz at Stetten) and a

view-tower; 1 hr. S.W. of Engen rises the Hohenhowen (2670 ft.),

a basaltic cone with an extensive view.

The train now skirts the volcanic peaks of the Hegau or Hoh-
gau. To the S. of (103 M.) Welschingen rises the two -peaked

Hohenstoffeln (2775 ft.). — 105 M. Muhlhausen, at the foot of the

basaltic Mdgdeherg (2185 ft.). — 107 M. Hohenkrdhen (1450 ft.)

lies at the foot of a bold phonolithic rock (2115 ft.), with a castle-

ruin fadm. 20 pf.). — On the right rises the Hohentwiel (see below).

110^/2 M. Singen. — Custom-house examination. — Railway
Restaurant. — Hotels. *Central-Hotel Schiveizerhof, R. 2-3, B. 1, D.
IJi 80 pf.-2 Ji, P. 6 Ji, BaTinJiof'Hotel Adler, R. IV2-2V2 -^» B. 80 pf.,

D. 1 t^ 60 pf .-2 ,S, P. 5-7 cS, both near the station ; Krone, corner of Haupt-
Str. and Post-Str., 10 min. from the station, an old-established house,

R. 1^40, B. 80 pf., J). IJC 60pf.-2.^; Eklcehard. corner of Hegau-Str.
and Scheffel-Str.

Singen (1405 ft.), a town of 8400 inhab. on the Aach, junction

for Winterthur (p. 65) and Constance (p. 89), is the starting-point

for a visit to the magnificent ruins of Hohentwiel (1^4 br. from the

station).

About 10 min. beyond the Hotel Krone (see above) we diverge to

the right from the G-ottmadingen road; 20 min. farther on lies the Hotel
zum Hohentwiel, whence we reach the gate of the lower fortress (adm.
20 ^f.) in 15-18 min. The *Hoheiitwiel (2255 ft.), an isolated phono-
lithic hill, was the seat of Alemannian dukes in the 10th cent, and has
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been an enclave of Wurtemberg since 1538. The Benedictine monastery
on the Hohentwiel, said to have been founded in the 9th cent., was removed
by King Henry II. in 1005 to Stein am Rhein. The fortress, which dates
from the 16th cent., was, between 1635 and 1644, five times successfully
defended by Wiederhold against Bavaria and the imperial troops. It

was destroyed by the French under Vandamme in 1800. Superb view of
the Alps from an old church-tower.

Fkom SingexX to Etzwilen, 8 M., railway in 24 min. — Beyond
(21/2 M.) Arlen-RieJasingen we cross the Swiss frontier. — 7 M. Hemis-
hofen. We cross the Rhine. — 8 M. Etzwilen, and thence to Winterthur
and Zurich, see Baedeker's Sivitzerland.

Branch-line from Singen to (9 M.) Beuren-BUssUngen.

II3Y2 ^I- Gottmadingen. We cross the Swiss frontier. —
II7Y2 ^^' Thaingen. — 120 M. Hei^hlingen, with its Schloss

(1970 ft.; view).

123 M. Schaffhausen. — Railway Restaurayit, D. 21/2 fr. —
Hotels (all good). *3Ii'iUer (PI. a; A, 1), opposite the station, R. 2V2-3V2>
B. 11/4, D. 31/2 fr. ; National (PI. b; A, 1), R. 2-3V'>, B. IV4, D. I1/2-3 fr.

;

Riese (PL c; A, 1), R. 2-31/4, B. IV4, B. IV2-3 fr. ; Rheinischer Hof (PI. d;
A, 1), R. 2-3, B. 1 fr. ; Hot. Bahnhof (PI. e; B, 1), Schwan (PI. f ; B, 2),

at both R. 2-3, B. 1 fr. 25, D. 2 fr. 80 c. ; TaJine (PI. g: A, 2) ; Lowe (PI. h;
B, 1) ; Schiff (PL i ; B, 2), near the steamer-pier, plain but good.

River Baths (PL B, 2), below the Rhine bridge, open daily for men
6-1 and 5-8, for women 2-5.

Tramway from the Bahnhof-Platz to Neuhausen (see below) every
10 min. (in 13 min.; 20 c).

Schaffhauseiv (1290 ft.), an old town of 18,000 inliab. on the

right bank of the Rhine, was a free town of the empire down to

1501, and is now the capital of the Swiss canton of that name. Its

numerous factories derive their power from large turbine-works

below the town. The Milnster (PL B, 2), an early-Romanesque
basilica of 1052-1101, has been restored in the interior. In the Rat-
haiis (PL 6) is a panelled room of 1625. The Museum (PL 5), in

the Herrenacker, contains antiquities of the stone age. Several

16th and 17th cent, houses may be noticed in the town. The massive

round tower of Munot (PL B, 2), erected in 1564-82, dominates the

town (fine view; 50 c). The Casino Promenade (PL A, 2) com-

mands a fine view of the Ehine and the Alps. The town is most

picturesque when seen from the Villa Charlottenfels, 25 min. S.W.

(tramway), or from the village of Feiierfhalen, on the left bank.

About 2 M. to the S. of Schaffhausen, and reached either by
railway or tramway, is Neuhausen (1455 ft.), the station for the

Falls of the Rhine.

Hotels. *Schiveizerhof, 5 min. from the Baden station, R. 31/2- 9>
B. 11/2. L. 3V2-IV2) D- ^-T, P- 9-18 fr., with terrace, large park, and the
finest view of the falls and the Alps ; *Bellevue, at the Baden station,

R. 3-5, B. li/s, L. 3, D. 4, P. 7-12 fr. — In the village: *H6t.-Pens.
Germania, R. 3-4, B. IV4, D. 2Vo-3, P. 6-10 fr. ; Oberberg, 3 min. from
the Baden station, R. 2-21/2. B.'l fr. 20 c, D. 2 fr., with view; Hot.
Badischer Bahnhof, R. 2-21/2. B. 1 fr. ; Rheinfall, R. 2-3. B. IV4, C 3 fr.,

well spnkpn of; *Hot. Schweizer Bahnhof, R. 2-2Vo, B. I1/4, P. 6-9 fr.
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The Falls may be visited in IV2-2 lirs. Illumination every evening in

Aug. and occasionally in July, for which 3/4 -1 fr. is charged in the

hotel-bill.

English Church in the 'Schweizerhof grounds.

The **Falls of the Rhine are one of the grandest cascades

in Europe. The river takes three leaps over a limestone ledge. Near

the left bank the falls are 60 ft., at the right bank about 50 ft.

high. If the rapids above and below be included, the total height

is 100 ft. Above the falls the river is about 175 yds. wide. In June

and July it is swollen with melting snow.

From the Baden station we take the road to the left, and after

a few paces descend by a path to the right to (5 niin.) the village of

Xeuhausen, where we join the road from the Swiss station. We
then descend the path (steps) over the Eglisau and Ziirich line;

100 yds. farther on we take the shady path to the left, which leads

past the small arms and waggon factory to the (1/4 hr.) Rhein-

fall-Briicke, which carries the "VYinterthur line across the river.

On the left bank a footpath ascends in 5 min. to Schloss Laufen
(1360 ft.), the garden of which (adm. 1 fr.) contains the best points

from which to view the falls: the Pavilion, the Kdnzeli, and

the Fischez, an iron platform projecting over the foaming abyss.

At the lower exit of the garden boats are ready to ferry us across

(50 c.) to the Schlosschen Worth (hotel), which affords the best

general view of the falls from below. A boat to the rock in the

midst of the falls, on which a landing may be made, costs 3 fr.

(l-2pers.). — From the Schlosschen Worth we may follow the path

upstream along the right bank (benches), ascending to the left just

short of the aluminium factory to the road. It is preferable, how-

ever, to continue along the river past the factory, then ascend the

easy path to the left (steps), with fine views of the falls, back to

(10 min.) the village. For fuller details, sqq Baedeker^s Switzerland.

11. The Swabian Alb.
The Sivabian Alb or Sivahian Jura, forming the central part

of Swabia, is an undulating limestone plateau, about 130 M. long

and 10-25 M. broad, intersected by picturesque valleys. It is bound-
ed on the W. by the Black Forest, on the N". by the valley of the

Neckar, and on the S. by the Danube. Its S.E. slopes are gentle, but

its N.W. face rises abruptly from the valley, attaining at places a

height of 1300 ft. The Alb has played an important part in the

recent history of geology and palaeontology, owing to the enormous
quantity of fossils found in the Jurassic strata of which it consists.

Between the Hohenstaufen, the Ipf, and Ulm stretches the E.

part of the Alb, consisting mainly of the Hiirtsfeld and the Albnch.
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The Ceutral Alb, or 'Rauhe Alb\ lies between Gdppingen and the

Hohenzollern on one side, and Ulm and Sigmaringen on the other.

The S.W. wing of the Alb is formed of the beautiful range between

the Hohenzollern and the Lupfen and of the plateau of the Hardt
and the Heuberg, bounded on the 8. by the lovely valley of the Dan-

ube between Signiaringen and Tuttlingen.

The picturcsfjue hills on the ]Sreckar side afford numerous views;

the valleys are luxuriantly fertile and partly clothed with fine beech-

forest; many of the towns are antiquated and interesting. Pedes-

trians in particular will find many attractions. Inns are generally

good and inexpensive. The finest points are the Licbtenstein and

Hohenzollern. The best season for a visit is spring or autumn.

Plan of Tour. 1st Day. Gmilnd, Hohenrechberg , Hohenstaufen

,

Gdppingen ; railway to Niirtingen. — 2nd Day. Railway to Neuffen;
HohenneitfCen ; descent tp Urach, Hohenicrach, Urach Waterfall; rail-

way to Reutlingen. — 3rd Day. Reutlingen, Achalm, Nehel-Hohle , Lich-
tenstein. — 4th Day. Tubingen, Hohenzollern. — 5th Day. Upper Valley

of the Danube (Sigmaringen to Beuron or Tuttlingen).

"Way Marks. The following complicated system of marking foot-

paths has been adopted by the Schwabischer Alb-Yerein. The two routes
(Nord or Neckar Randwcg, Stid or Donau Randweg) leading from Douau-
Avorth to Tuttlingen along the N. and S. margins of the Alb are marked
with red triangles, with the apex turned towards Tuttlingen. The routes
of approach are marked with yeUoio or blue triangles, according as they
lie within or without the district enclosed by the Randwege (apex turned
towards the Randwege). Both Randwege and routes of approach have
special marks for alternative paths (>), cross-paths (lozenge), and side-

paths (arrow), in red, yellow, or blue respectively. — The key-nia]j
issued by the Schwabischer Alb-Verein (1:200,000; two sheets, 1909 and
1912) contains all the way-marks mentioned above.

a. From Gmund to Goppingen. Hohenrechberg.
Hohenstaufen.

From Gmuxd (p. 39) to Goppingex, 17 M., branch-line in 1 hr.

— The line describes a wide curve to (2 M.) Gmund-Siid and then

turns to the S. On the right rises the Hohenrechberg (p. 68). —
47^ M. Strassdorf. Ascent of the (Ihr.) Hohenrechberg, see below.

— 57^ M. 3Ietlan(/en -Hohenrechberg, whence the Hohenrechberg
may also be ascended in 1 hr. (p. 68). — Xear (8 M.) Maitis-Hohen-
staufen the line reaches its highest point (1460 ft.). On the left

rises the Hohenstaufen (50 min.
; p. 69). To the Wiischerschlossle

via the village of Maitis, see p. 68. — 10 M. W&schenheuren. —
'We now descend the valley of the Aalbach to (13^2 M.) Hechberr/-

hauseii, with an old Schloss. — Then for a short distance down the

Marhach-Tal to (lo^a ^0 Faurndau (p. 44), and lastly along

the Fils to (17 M.) Goppingen (p. 44).

Ascent of the Hohenrechberg from Gmlnd, 1^/4 hr. We
follow the Rechberg road to (10 min.) Strassdorf. The station,

which may be reached by railway from Gniiind (see aljove), lies ^'^hr.
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farther on, to the left beyond the village. We continue along the

road, partly through woods. After 72 ^^-i i^^ar a wide curve (avoid

the footpaths to the left), a steep club-path diverges to the right

(steps) to (7'4 hr.) the ruin of Rechherg (2110 ft.), the ancestral

castle of the Counts of Rechberg, now occupied by a forester (visi-

tors admitted). View from the bridge. — A path, with Stations of

the Cross, leads E. from the ruin to (10 min.) the top of the —
*Hohenrechberg (2320 ft.), with a frequented pilgrimage-

chapel (rfmts. at the presbytery, but no night-quarters). The view

(indicator near the church) embraces a fertile and undulating land-

scape, sprinkled with villages, stretching N. as far as the Welzheimer

Wald and the Waldenburg and Limpurg hills. To the W. rise the

Hohenstaufen and the Black Forest hills; S.W. extend the ranges of

the Swabian Alb; in clear weather the Tyrolese and Swiss Alps

may be descried to the S.E. Panorama (1 ^) on sale at the pres-

bytery. A signal is hoisted when the view of the Alps is clear.

Descent from the Hohenrechberg to 3Ietlanyen-HoTienrec7iberg station

(p. 67), 50 min. — About 1 hr. S.E. is the Stuifen (2485 ft. ; view). — From
the Hohenrechberg to Eislingen (p. 4.4) via the Ottenbacher Tal, 21/2 hi's. ; to

Silssen (p. 44) via the Reh-Gebirge and the ruin of Staufeneck (p. 44), 2 hr.s.

From the Hohekeechberg to the Hghexstaufen, lYa-lV*^^"'^-

Short of the castle-bridge we turn to the right and after 20 paces

descend the footpath to the left. At (20 min.) the "W. exit of the

village oi Rechherg we take the road to the right (finger-post; red

way-marks) and follow the telegraph poles (footpaths) over the Aas-

rucken, or crest of the hill, to the road, which (^/ihr.) joins the road

from Maitis to Hohenstaufen (see below). We follow it for Y^ hr.,

then ascend the zigzag path to the right to (V4 hr.) the summit.

Ascent op the Hohenstaufen from Lorch (p. 38), 3 hrs. A
pleasant path ascends the Beuten-Tal via (lYa lir.) the W.dscher-

schlossle (1430 ft.), probably the old castle of Biiren, the ancestral

seat of the Staufen (now a barn) and the Wdscherhof {mn\ close by.

After V2 ^r. we reach Maitis (station beyond the village, see p. 67).

We now follow the road to Hohenstaufen village (see below), which

is joined after Y2 hr. by the road from the Aasriicken (see above).

Thence to (^o hr.) the top, see above.

Ascent of the Hohenstaufen from Goppingen (p. 44), 2 hrs.

(Railway as far as Maitis -Hohenstaufen, see p. 67; carr.-and-pair

to Hohenstaufen village in 1 hr., 1 r^^.) From the market-place we
follow the Obere Markt-Str. and the Friihling-Str. fright) to the

Wolf-Str. (left), at (20 min.) the top of which we take the road to

the right. After 3 min. we follow the forest-path to the left (blue

way-marks), which runs at first to the left and then to the right of

the road, rejoining it after 1 hr. In V4 hr. more we reach the village

oi Hohenstaufen (1980 ft.; Hot. Lamm, Ochse). In the cemetery

is a small church, restored in 1859 and adorned with the arms of
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the coiintries once ruled by the Hohenstaufen (interior neglected).

A footpath ascends thence in Y4 hr. to the top.

The *Hohenstaufen (2245 ft.) was crowned with the castle of

the illustrious family of Staufen or Hohenstaufen from about 1070
until its destruction in the Peasants' War in 1525. This family

occupied the imperial throne from 1138 to 1254. The ground-plan

of the castle is still distinguishable. The large shelter (rfmts.)

contains a memorial to the Hohenstaufen. The view is fine, but

less extensive than from the Hohenrechberg (p. 68).

b. Lenninger Tal. Teck. Neuffen.

From Plochingen (p. 44) to Oberlenningex, 15 M., branch-line

in 1^4 hr. — 4^2 M- Unterhoihingen (p. 52). _The line follows

the valley of the LenningeT' Laute7\ — 7 M. Otlingen. — 8 M.
Ki7'chh€im unter Teck (1010 ft.; Hot. Post, Krone), a town with

9700 inhab., prettily situated in view of the Alb.
Branch-line (51/2 M. in 1/2 h^O through the smiling Neidlinger Tal, •

watered by the Limlach. to iVeilheim (1265 ft. ; Hot. Post, Adler), a little

town dominated by the basaltic Limburg (1960 ft.). To the N.E., I'Va ^-
rises the Aichelberg (1645 ft.), with a shelter -hut and a view. From
Weilheim a road leads to (1 hr.) Neidlingen (1490 ft'.; Hot. Lamm), a
prettily situated village. About 1 hr. S. is the picturesque ruined castle

of Reussenstein (2465 ft.), commanding a charming view of the valley.

Rfmts. at the adjacent farm. Thence we round the head of the valley
to 'the (40 min.) ISeimenstein (2505 ft.), a rocky arch affording a view
of the Reussenstein and the valley. From the Reussenstein to the Ran-
decker Maar (p. 70), 35 min. : to Wiesensteig (p. 45), 1 hr. ; to the Bonier
(p. 44), 2 hrs. (a pleasant hill-walk, with glimpses of the Xeidlinger Tal).

Beyond this point the valley is known as the Lenninger Tal. —
1072^- Dettingen. The Teck comes in sight on the left, the Hohen-
neuflfen on the right. — We now enter the Alb. — 12^2 ^^- Owen
('ow' pron. as in 'cow'; 1285 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Post), a

small town with a handsome Gothic church (2nd half of 14th cent.),

the burial-place of the Dukes of Teck, containing a painting of

Owen when it was a fortified place in 1542. From Owen via the

Beurener Fels to (3 hrs.) the Hohenneuffen, see p. 71.

Ascent of the Teck from Owex, 1 hr. We follow the telegraph

posts N.E., joining after ^1^ hr. the shady path leading to the summit.
The *Teck (2545 ft.) is crowned with the scanty remains of the

ancestral castle of the Dukes of Teck. One of the towers has been

converted into a belvedere (adm. 20 pf.), on the first floor of which

is the Salzmann-Stiibchen (comp. p. 70; shelter; rfmts. in good
weather). The magnificent view includes the wooded heights of the

Alb and a great part of the Black Forest to the W. In clear

weather the Scesaplana in the Alps may be descried to the S. and
the Sentis to the S.S.W. Visitors should walk round the castle. On
the verge of the W. castle-rock is the Sibgllen-Hohle, a cave in

which remains of diluvial animals have been discovered.
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From the Teck to Gutenberg (23/4or4hrs.) or to Weilheim (4hrs.),

an attractive walk. In 1/4 tr. we reach the Gelber Felsen, under which
is the Verena-Beutlins-Hohle ; then (3/4 hr.) the Sattelhogen (2010 ft. ; to the
left to Bissingen, to the right in 1/2 ^'^- to Unterlenningen, see below) ; next
to the S.E. (way -mark red triangle) to (20 min.) the ruin of Rauber
(2565 ft.); in 10 min. more we reach the farm oi Diepoldsburg (rfmts.).

About 1 hr. to the right, via the Engelhof {good rfmts.), lie the Wiela^id-
steine (2287 ft.), with three ruined castles, whence we may descend to

Obcrlenningen station or to Gutenberg (see below). Or we may go S. from
Diepoldsburg to (3/^ hr.) Krebsstein and down to (1/2 hr.) Gutenberg (see

below). •— A path to the left from Diepoldsburg leads to the (3/^ hr.)

Breitenstein (2660 ft.), a precipitous hill with an extensive view to the N.
To the S.E. is (V4 hr.) Ochsenivang (Hot. Rossle), where Ed. Morike, the

l)oet, was pastor in 1832-3. A little to the S.E. is the Randecker Maar
(2405 ft.), the chief crater among the 140 embryo volcanoes of the later

tertiary period between Kirchheim and Reutlingen, with a monument (V4 hr.

from Ochsenwang) to Dr. Y. Salzmann (d. 1890), founder of the Schwabischer
Alb-Vereiu. Thence to the Heimenstein, see p. 69. From the Maar we
may walk to the X. along the Zipfelbach to (V2 hr.) Hepsisau and (3/^ hr.)

Weilheim (p. 69), or descend S. across the peat-moors and past the caves
mentioned below to (IV4 hr.) Gutenberg.

The railway goes on to (I3Y2 ^J^O Bmicken. On the right,

above, is the Briickerfels (p. 71). — 1472^- Unteydenningen (inn

at the station). To Erkenbrechtsweiler, see p. 71. On the right is

the ruin of Salzburg, high above ns on the left the ruin of Kauber
(see above).

15 M. Oberlenningen (1475 ft.; Hot. Adler, at the station),

with a paper-mill. To the left are the Wielandsteine (see above;

50 min. from the station).

Erkenhreclitsiceiler (p. 71), to the N.W., may be reached either to the

right via the Schroffelfels and Kammfels in I1/4 hr., or in 2 hrs. to the

left through the Hirsch-Tal to the Koyiradfels, where we join the attrac-

tive Randweg.

About 1 V4^r. from the terminus at Oberlenningen, the Lenninger

Tal (p. 69) comes to an end at the charmingly situated village of

Gutenberg (1745 ft.; Hot. Lowe, Hirsch). The museum (adm.

20 pf.) contains diluvial remains from the adjacent caves. About
25 miu, K of Gutenberg, to the right, in the upper part of the

valley, is the Gutenberger Hohle, discovered in 1889 (adm. 70 pf.;

guide at Grutenberg); 5 min. W. of it is the smaller Gussmanns-
Hohle (adm. 50 pf.). Both of the caves contain fine stalactites.

Thence via the neighbouring hamlet of Krebsstein (pretty view of

the valley; to the Teck via Diepoldsburg, see above) to the Wieland-

steine (see above), 1 hr. — About ^1^ hr. S. of Gutenberg is the ruin .of

Sperberseek, 10 min. below which is the Mondmilch-Hdhle (open),

160 yds. long. — From Gutenberg we may walk S.E. up the rocky

ravine of Pfidh, keeping high up to the right, to (1^4 hr.) the Romer-
stein (2900 ft.; shelter-hut;, the highest point of the Central Alb,

with a fine panorama (view-tower projected).

From Gutenbercj to Xedffen (p. 71), 3 hrs. Tlie road passes

Grabemtetten (2380 ft.) and the Burrenhof, with the 'Hcidengr^abQny.^a
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relic of a Gallic town. Pedestrians diverge V4 hi'- beyond the Burrenhof
aad follow the Randweg direct from Urach to the HohenneufPen.

From Gutenbkkg to Urach, 8 hrs. This attractive route leads S.W.
via Schlattstall and a ravine; after 1 hr. (finger-post) we either go to the
left through the Grosse Schrocke, a rucky hollow, or to the right through
the Kleine Schrocke to (1 hr.) the Falkensteiiier Hohle, 490 yds. long, in

which the Elsach rises and disappears again. Then down the pretty
Elsach-Tal to (1 hr.) Urach (p. 72).

From Nurtixgen (p. 52) to Neuffex, 5^2 ^^- ^^ V2 ^^- (views to

the left;. — The line leads hroiigh the Steinach-Tal (the 'Tale'). —
Neuffen (1340 ft. ; Hot. Hirsch or Post, R. 1 ^M 20-1 ^/6 50, B. 70 pf.)

is a small town with 1900 inhab., at the foot of the Hohenneuffen.

Beside the church is a Mount of Olives of 1504, and in the interior

is a pulpit-canopy of the early 17th century.
From Metzingen (p. 52) to Neuffen via Kohlbenj, IV2 hr.

From Neuifen a good forest-path (way-mark blue triangle) leads

in 1 hr. to the top of the *Hohenneuffen (2440 ft.), a conical and

conspicuous height projecting far into the valley. It is crowned

by the imposing ruins of an ancient stronghold, demolished in 1801.

Fine view. (Rfmts. when the flag is hoisted.)

From the Hohenneuffen a path leads E. via the Wilhelmsfelsen (2400 ft.

;

fine view) to (1 hr.) Erkenhrechtsiveiler (Hot. Eossle). Thence we may
ascend (1/2 'ir. X.) the Beurener Fels (2365 ft.), a bold projecting rock
commanding an extensive view (Hohenrechberg, Hohenstaufen , Black
Forest). Thence E. (way-mark blue triangle) to the (1/2 br.) Bruckerfels
(2385 ft.), with remains of Roman (?) walls and a charming view of the
Lenninger Tal and the hills opposite. Descent to Owen (p. 69), 35 min. —
From Erkenbrechtsweiler a steep and stony footpath leads E. to (IV4 hr.)

Unterlenninqen (p. 70); S.E. to OberJenningen, see p. 70.

From the Hohenxeuffen to Urach (p. 72), 2 or SV'^ hrs From
the ruin we go straight on (S.E,); after 12 min. (finger-post) we
turn to the right and follow the path along the hill-crest (Avay-mark

red triangle; to the left the Heidengraben, p. 70) to (35 min.) the

road coming from the Burrenhof (p. 70), which we now follow to

the right. About 1 min. farther on we keep to the left. We may
now descend straight on (way-mark red triangle), leaving Hillhea

on the left, to (lY4hr.) Urach. A pleasant alternative is to take

the path to the right a few paces farther on (finger-post; Avay-mark

blue triangle) to the (40 min.) Karlslinde (p. 52 ; view), and then

to the (11/4 hr.; red way-marks) Buckleter Kapf (2400 ft.; view of

Hohenurach). After 6 min. we descend to the right to the Erms-Tal
and to the left to (V4 hr.) Urach.

c. Uracher Alb.

From Metzingen to Urach, 6 M., branch-line in V-> br.

Metzingen, see p. 52. — The *Uracher Tal, up which the rail-

way runs along the Ej'ms, surpasses the Lenninger Tal (p. 69). Its

slopes are richly clad with beech-forest. Several quarries of tufa. —
11/4 M. Neuhausen (1205 ft.), I'/ihr, N.W. of the ariiner Felsen

Baedeker's S. Germany. 12th Edit. 5
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(p. 73). — Xear (3 M.) Dettingen (1305 ft.; Hot. Krone) the more
beautiful part of the valley begins. To the right rises the conspic-

uous Dettinger Rossherg (2580 ft.) ; farther on, beyond the Uraclier

Bleiche, is the Rander Berg, in a side-valley on the right; then

Hohenurach and the Tiergartenherg ; opposite is the Hochherg.
From Dettingen a fine walk (31/2 hrs.) leads via the (1 hr.) Sonnen-

fels (2550 ft.) to the (lV4hr.) Eutschenfelsen; thence via the Urach Water-
fall and Hohenmaeh to (I1/4 hr.) Urach, see p. 73.

Some of the trains up the valley halt on request at the station

of WasserfaU, at the entrance of the side-valley.

We follow the road S.W. (way-mark blue triangle), turn to the left

at (5 min.) a finger-post, and cross meadows to (40 min.) the foot of the
Urach Waterfall (p. 73). A zigzag path ascends to the Hochwiese. —
We now keep to the S. and follow the path (way-mark red triangle) along
the slope ; at (20 min.) the fork (finger-post) we may either ascend to the
left to (20 min.) Hohenurach or keep straight on to (25 min.) Urach.

6 M. Urach. — Hotels. Post, R. 2-3 ^, B. 80 pf., D. IJC 60 pf.-

3 ^M, good, Haas zur Krone, well spoken of, both in the market-place;
Zum Bahnhof. Tiergarten-Str. 5, with garden-restaurant, R. IV4-2 JC, B.
60 pf., plain but good: Schomclc, Xeue Str. 26, R. 1 ^-1 ^ 60 pf. —Beer
at Leinss's. — Cafe. Zur Glocke (with rooms), near the Schloss. —
Sanatoria of Dr. Kliipfel.

Urach (1530 ft.), an old-fashioned little town of 5400 inhab.,

charmingly situated in the Erms-Tal, is frequented as a summer
resort. Opposite the station is the Schloss, erected in 1443 and

now occupied by officials. The 'Goldner Saal' (adm. 20 pf.; free on

Sun. in summer, 11-12) contains gilded wood-carvings and coats-of-

arms, souvenirs of Dukes Eberhard and Ulrich, and a carved wooden
portrait of Count Henry of Mompelgard (late 16th cent.); the

'Weisser Saal' contains collections of natural history and antiqui-

ties (key at Schlosshof l*. The late-Gothic St. Arnancliis-Kirche,

K of the Schloss, built in 1479-99 and restored in 1896-1901, con-

tains the confessional of Duke Eberhard im Bart, with good carv-

ing (1472), a handsome font executed in 1518 by Christoph of

Urach, a richly decorated pulpit, and fine epitaphs (sacristan, 'Beim

Schloss' 2; adm. 30 pf.. Sun, 11-12 free). Adjoining the church is

the Protestant Seminary, formerly the canonry. The fine Fountain
in the market-place, a little to the E., reached via the Kirch-Str.,

is a copy of the original of 1518.

The best way (50 min.) to the ruined fortress of Hohenurach
(2305 ft.) is to follow the railway-line to the left from the station (way-

mark red triangle), crossing the rails after ^ ^ hr. ; after 100 paces

we reach the Schulmeisters-Buche at the edge of the wood, whence
we ascend the zigzag path (way-mark blue triangle) to the left. The
castle was built in the 11th cent., and after numerous sieges was dis-

mantled at the end of the 18th and beginning of the 19th centuries.

Charming view, though limited.

We next descend the 'Alter Burgweg', keeping straight on when
the path forks ; after Y^ hr. (finger-postj w^e join the good forest-path
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(p. 72; way-mark red triangle) leading from Urach round the hill

direct to the waterfall in 1 hr. AVe follow this path, leaving on the

right a footpath to the lower end of the fall, to the (25 min.j Hoch-
tviese (2030 ft.; shelter-hut; usually rfmts.). The Briihlbach rises

here and forms the Urach Waterfall, 85 ft. high. The best point of

view is near the bench called 'Olgaruhe', 3 min. below the Hochwiese.
A beautiful but stony path through the 'HdW connects the Urach

and Giiterstein waterfalls (see below; 1 hr.).

From Ukach to Reutlixgejt. (1) Via the Rutschenfelsen (to
Eningen 8-31/4 hrs.). To the waterfall, see above. Thence we ascend the
steep zigzag path to the right (way-mark red triangle). On leaving the wood
at the top we follow the liill-crest to the right to the (Va hr.) Rutschcn-
felsen (2465 ft.), to obtain a charming *View of the peaceful valley, with
the Hohenurach, Runder Berg, Hohenueuffen, and Teck. Thence we follow
the edge of the Alb to the (V2 hi'-) FoMenhof (2420 ft.), whence we may
take either the road in 20 min., or the footpath (guide-post) to the right
via the Griiner Felsen (2635 ft. ; view; to Neuhausen, see p. 71), in 40 min.,
to the royal stud-farm of St. Johann (2505 ft.: rfmts.). Thence a road
(short-cuts) leads to (1 hr.) Eningen (1520 ft. ; Hot. Post), at the foot of
the Achalm (p. 54; ascent 3/^ hr.), whence a tramway runs to (3 M.) Rent-
lingen (p. 52). — (2) Yii. Gtuterstein (to Eningen 31/2 hrs.). On quitting
the station we turn to the left and follow the railway-line; beyond a
red-brick warehouse we follow the 'Siechengassenweg' to the right through
orchards to the main road; 100 yds. farther on, at the watchman's hut, we
cross the line to the left and follow the road to the guide-post marked
'Giiterstein'. where we turn to the right (way-mark blue triangle) to
the waterfalls.. Near the (1 hr.) stud-farm of Giiterstein (1635 ft.; rfmts.)
a path ascends past the Giiterstein WoterfoUs to the (1 hr.) Folilenhof.
Thence to Reutlingen, see above.

The Erms valley is known above Urach as the *Seeburger Tal.
The hills are densely wooded, and the Erms flows through narrow
green meadows, often scarcely leaving room for the road. Carr.

from Urach to Seeburg and back 4 ^M ; motor-omn. 3-4 times daily

via Seeburg to Miinsingen (p. 77), 8 M. in 1 hr., 1 ^^. The 'Griiner

AVeg', a footpath leading on the left bank to Seeburg in 2^ ^ hrs.,

should not be taken except in dry weather. The road passes numerous
mills and a large cotton-factory. (Xear the Kunstmiihle we may
ascend to an interesting cave, with stalactites; adm. 30 pf., guide
at the neighbouring quarry.) To the left above the old basalt-works

of GeorgenaiL rises the ruined Hohcnwittlingen (^2 lir- from the

road; see below). In the finest part of the valley, between lofty

cliffs at the mouth of the romantic Fischhurg-Tal, lies (5 M. ; 2 hrs.)

the hamlet of Seeburg (Hot. Lowe). On a rock is the small JSchloss

Uhenfels. About ^ 4 hr. farther up, on the way to Traillingen (see

below), the Erms drives a mill, though only 50 yds. from its source.
A path (way-mark yellow lozenge}, diverging to the left from the

Seeburg road 1/2 hi- above Urach, leads tlirough the romantic WittUnger
SchlucM past the SchlUer-Hohle to the (3/4 hr.) ruin of Hohemcittlingen
(2265 ft.), whence we may descend to the Georgenau (see above) in V4 hr.

From Seeburg a road leads S. through the See-Tal to (IV-^ hr.) Jliin-
singen (p. 77; motor-omn., see above), which may also be reached by a
footpath passing the source of the Erms (see above), the Trailfinger
Schlucht, and Traillingen.
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d. From Keutlingen to Schelklingen. Lichtenstein.

36 M. Branch-line in 2^1.^-S hrs. ; to Houau, 7 M. in 35-10 min. ; to

Lichtenstein station, 8 M. in 1 hr. — Views to the right.

Reatlingen, see p. 52. The train enters the picturesqne *Eehaz-
Tal. — 2 M. JReutlittgeii-Sudbahiihof, 25 min. E. of Eningen (p. 73).

— 3 M. Pfullingen (1400 ft. ; Hot. Lamm, Krone), a town of

7950 inhabitants. About ^/^hr. to the right (W.) is the model-farm

of Erlenhof (no adm.). — 31/2 M. Pfullingen Paper Mills. A little

to the right of the railway is a large gymnasium and concert-hall

(adm. 9-6, in winter 9-4; 20 pf.).

From Pfullingen Paper Mills via the Wanne to the Nebel-Hohle
(Lichtenstein), 2 or 21/4 hrs. (way-mark blue triangle). From the station

we proceed to the high-road, where we turn to the left; we next ascend
to the right (guide-posts), skirting the railway for a short distance, to

the (3/4 hr.) Wanne (2275 ft. ; view). Thence we walk, either in 40 min.
direct, or (way-mark blue lozenge) in 85 min. via the (20 min.) Schon-
herg (2600 ft.

;
quaint tower), to the group of rocks called the Wacker-

stein (2700 ft.; fine views; to the Rossberg, see p. 78); we next cross a

ridge past the (V4 br.) upland pasture of Auf dem Wohn (2820 ft.) to the

(1/4 hr.) Nebel-Hohle (p. 76).

Beyond (5 M.) Unterkausen Cotton Mill Schloss Lichtenstein

is visible to the right, — 6 M. Unterhausen (Hot, Adler), immedi-

ately S. of which is Oberhausen (Hot. Hirsch, Krone).
From Unterhausen to the Lichtenstein (p. 75). (1) Direct (1 hr.).

This route leads S. through Oberhausen; after 8 min. (finger-post), beyond
the Hot. Krone, the road ascends to the right on the wooded slope; at the

first bend we keep to the left; after 1 hr. w^e leave the road at a cutting
in the rock, ascend the steps to the left, and reach the restaurant straight

on. — (2) Via the Giessstein (I1/2 hr. ; the best ascent for those already
acquainted with the Nebel-Hohle). We follow the direct route to the first

bend (see above), continue for a short distance straight on, then take
the short-cut to the left (guide-post; way-mark blue triangle to the edge
of the hill). "We soon return to the road and beyond the next bend
diverge to the left through the woods. At the top we turn sharp to the
left along the edge of the hill (way-mark red triangle) to the (50 min.)
Giessstein (2585 ft. ; view of the Echaz-Tal). Fine hill-walk thence via
the LinsenbUhl (2680 ft. ; charming view) to the (35 min.) Schloss.

From Unterhausen to the Nebel-Hohle (p. 76), 1 hr. "We diverge
to the left near the Rathaus at Oberhausen (key and guide at the Hot.
Hirsch) and follow the blue triangle way-marks along the brook and past
the cemetery. About 10 min. beyond a bridge, which is not crossed, we
keep to the' left.

6V2 M. Honau (1855 ft.; Hot. Rossle, R. 1-1 V2, B. \/^ ^).
-At the station is the artificial Elfen-Grotte (adm. 30 pf.). About
12 min. from the station is the Olga-Hohle, an interesting stalactite

cave, smaller than the Nebel-Hohle, but less blackened by torches

and more easily accessible (electric illumination; visit lasts 10 min.;

adm. 40 pf.). About 1/4 tr. S. is the Source of the Echaz.
From Honau to the Lichtenstein (p. 75 ; recommended for the

descent). "We w^alk from the station to the village, where we keep to the
left (way-mark blue triangle) till we reach the forest-path, which ascends
to the (3/4 hr.) Schloss. Another route leads through the village to the
soui-ce of the Echaz (see above), then (way-mark blue triangle) up the
Dobel-Schlucht ; at the top we turn sharp to the right (way-mark red
triangle) past Alt-Lichtenstein (p, 76) to (1 hr.) the Schloss.
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Beyond Honau tlie traiu ascends tlie Ilonauer Steige by a

rack-and-pinion system (gradient 1 : 10; length 2300 yds.) to (8 M.)

Lichtenstein station (2310 ft.). The line penetrates the three lower

strata of the White Jura and affords a fine view to the right of

Schloss Lichtenstein. To the Karls-Hohle (p. 76), VU hr. To the

N. of the station, at the foot of the Traifelbergfelsen (see below), lies

Hohenhonau (Alb-Hotel Traifelberg, R. from 2, P. from 5V , ^i).

Close by is a stake marking a point where a fine echo may be roused.

From REnniNGEN via the Madchenfei.s and Holzelfingen to
Lichtenstein Station , 5 Ins., attractive. Wi- taki- tlie tramway to En-
ingen (p. 73), walk back to (V4 I'l'-) the liridge. where we fo'llow the
field-path to the left ^way-mark blue trianalc' and cross the brook to the
road, which immediately beuds to the left. Beyond a second bridge wc
keep to the left and ascend to the (IV2 ^ir.) Madchenfels (2540 ft.),

commanding a view of the Alb and the plain. About 5 min. S.E. is the
Ubersberger Hof (rfints.). Paths (way-mark red triangle to Holzelfingen)
lead through meadows and woods past the (3/^ hr.) Stahleck (2335 ft.),

the (V-2 hr.) Eckfels (view), and the (10 min.) ruin of Greifeusteiu (2480 ft.

;

refuge-hut) cither direct ito the right; shady) in 25 min.. or to the loft

via the Jochimrr Hdule (view of the distant Alps), in 1/2 hr.. to Holzel-
fingen (2295 ft. ; Hot. Krone). Thence we follow the picturesque Rand-
weg either direct via the Traifelbergfelsen (2610 ft.) in 1 hr., or with
an attractive detour to the Burgstein (descent to Unterhausen. p. 74, 3/4 hr.

from Holzelfingen) in I'/i hr., to Lichtenstein station. From Holzelfingen
to Honau station (p. 74), 3/^ hr.

From Lichtenstein Station to the Schloss, 40 min. (way-mark
red triangle). The road descends to the right past the 'Schanze'

(beautiful view) and through the Dohel Tunnel: a footpath to the

right at the upper end of the Dobel-Schlucht fp. 74) then leads past

Ait-Lichtenstein (p. 76) to the Schloss.

*Schloss Lichtenstein (2680 ft.), erected in 1841 by Count
William of Wurtemberg on a projecting rock, 950 ft. above the

Honau valley, is one of the most attractive points in Swabia. Ad-
jacent is the ducal residence (1901; no adm.). — The Schloss is

open on week-days 8-12 and 1-6 (Oct.-March 9-12 and 1-4), on Sun.

and holidays 1-5 (1-4); adm. 40, with the tower 80 pf. It is closed

on Christmas Day, Easter Sunday, Whit-Sunday, and Whit-Monday.
The castle, skilfully adapted to its site, is approached by a draw-

bridge over a cleft in the rock. The interior is fitted up in the

'Gothic' style, and contains various curiosities and old German
pictures of the Swabian school. The principal attraction is the

*Yiew from the tower. In fine weather, to the S. beyond the plateau

of the Alb, the Swiss and Tyrolese Alps are visible; X., far below,

the green Honaucr Tal; beyond it the Achalm and the extensive

plain. Panorama by E. Werner (2 e/^).

About 3 min. W. of the Schloss is a forester's house with a

restaurant (D. 1 ^^ 60 pf. ; view).
On a projecting rock, a little to the S.E. of the Schloss. Count William

erected in 1842 a bust of the novelist Wilhelm Hauff (1802-27). by whose
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romance the old castle of Lichteiistein has been immortalized. Beside it

is a geological pyramid. About 10 min. to the S.E. is the ruin of Alt-

Lichtenstein (fine view).
From the Lichtenstein to Honait, or Unterhnusen. see p. 71; to the

Rossherg, see p. 78.

A visit to tlie Lichtenstein is usually combined witli one to

the Nebel-Hohle, which may be reached in 1 hr. from Unter-

hausen (comp. p. 74) and in 50 min. or 1^4 hr. from Schloss Lichten-

stein (comp. below; guide to the cave should be ordered in advance

by letter). Adm. 40 pf . each person, guide 1 ^, two torches 80 pf.

;

Bengal fire 20 pf. ; the visit takes ^/g hr. The brilliancy of the

stalactites has been sullied by the smoke of the torches; the massive

rock-vaulting is now the most interesting feature. A popular festival

is held on the Fest-Platz (5 min. above the cave) on Whit-Monday,
when the cavern is illuminated (adm. 1 ^).

From the Xebel-Hohle to Schloss Lichtenstein. (1) Direct (50 min.).
We ascend to the Fest-Platz, diverge slightly to the left (S.) near the hut,

and follow a good path near the edge of the hill (way-mark red triangle)

to its intersection with the Oberhausen road, where the route to the
Criessstein (p. 74) diverges to the left. Our path leads straight on (way-
mark red >- ) over the plateau to the forester's house. — (2) A pleasanter
route (25 min. longer) is the Eandweg via the (40 min.) Giessstein and
the Linsenbuhl (p. 74) to the (35 min.) forester's house. We follow the
red triangle marks to the Oberhausen road (see above) ; thence as described
on p. 71.

From the Xebel-Hiilile via tlie Wackerstein and the AVaiine to PfuU-
hujen Paper Mills, see p. 71; to Unterhause)/, see p. 71: to tlie Ross-
herg, see p. 78.

The Railway to Schelklingen proceeds from Lichtenstein

station (p. 75) across the Alb plateau, — 9^/2 M. Kleinengstingen

(2305 ft.; Hot. Post), whence we may visit the Karls-Hohle,
IY2 tr. S.W. (carriage -road; from the Haidkapelle, see below;

from Lichtenstein station, see p. 75). Key at the 'Schultheissen-Amt'

in Erpfingen (telephone), Y2 ^^- ^.W. of the cave; adm. 50 pf.

;

gratuity to the guide. The cave is not so large as the N'ebel-Hohle,

but is more interesting, the stalactites being still uninjured.

From Kleinengstingen to Sigmaringen, 261/2^-1 f*i' to Sigmaringen-
DORF, 31 M., branch-line in 2 or 2V2-3 hrs. — 3/^ M. GrossengsUngen. —
W^ cross the Prussian frontier. — 3 M. Haidkapelle. 40 min. S.E. of
the Karls-Hiihle (see above). — 71/2 M. Trochtelflngen (Hot. Hirsch, R.
1-11/2 -^), a quaint little town with 1100 inhab., 2 M. to the S.E. of which
is the Augstherg (2785ft.), with a belvedere. — The line enters a Wur-
temberg enclave and below (91/2 M.) Mdgerkingen reaches the valley of
the Lauchert, which it follows. — IOV2 M. Mariaberg. with an old
nunnery. — 121/2 M. Gammertiyigen (2185 ft. ; Hot. Post, Hirsch), a Prus-
sian town with 1100 inhab., junction for Hechingen (p. 81). — The valley
is now picturesque and repays the pedestrian. Below (15 M.) Hettingen,
with a Schloss, it is joined by the Vehla-Tal (p. 81). — 18 M. Veriyigen-
Stadt (Hot. Hirsch), with a ruined castle. — Short of (20 M.) Veringen-
Dorf the Lauchert forms a waterfall. — 22 M. .Jungnau (Hot. Ochse), with
the ruins of two castles. — Near (241/2 M.) Hanfertal the Sigmaringen
line leaves the Lauchert. — 261/2 M. Sigmaringen (p. 83).

The Sigmaringendorf line diverges to the left near Hanfertal and
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continues along the Lauchert-Tal. The prettiest part of the valley is

where it is joined by the Bittelschiesser Tdlchen, 10 min. iS. of Horn-
stein, with its ruined castle. — 27'/2 M. Bingen. — 31 M. Sigmaringen-
dorf (p. 86).

Near (131/2 M.) Offei)hauseit (21 SO ft.}, with its stud-farm, is the

source of the Gros.se Lcnifer. About '20 luin. S.E. rises the basaltic

Sternberg (2770 ft,), with a belvedere.— 15 M. Gomadingen (Roi.

Adler), V/^ hr. S.W. of the Buchhalde (2855 ft.). — The line

descends the Lauter valley to (17 M.) Marhach (2115 ft.; Hot.

Niethammer), with a stud-farm.

Pleasant excursion from Marhach through the Grosses Lauter-Tal,
with numerous ruined castles, to Untermarchtal, 8 hrs. — 20 min. Dapfen :

25 min. Wasserstetten : 1 hr. Buttenhausen (to Munsingen, see below);
'/o hr. Hmidersingen (Hot. Rossle), 20 min. Bichishauseu (Hot. Hirsch),
both with castle-ruins; 20 min. Gnndelfingen (Hot. Griiner Baum), with
two ruined castles. Thence we go past tlie ruin of Derneck (right) and
the Bettelmanns - Hohle (left) to (»/> br.) Weiler: V4 hr. Indelhausen
(Schloss-Brauerei ; 2^1., M. to the S.W. is Hayingen, p. 85), with the ruin
of Althayingen and the Gerbers-Hohle : V4 br. Anhai(seu. The marshy
district between Anhausen and Unterwilzingen should be avoided by
ascending the hill (road being made from Indelhausen to Munderkingen,
p. 85). The valley-path passes the ruins of Schillzhiirg (left), Maiseu-
hurg (right), and Wartstein and Monsberg (left). From (IV2 br.) Unter-
wilzingen we walk via (^/^ hr.) Lai(fenmuhle, with the ruin of Reichen-
stein, and ('/•> br.) Lauterach to (3/^ hr.) Untermarchtal (p. 85).

AVe leave Schloss>.Grafeneck on the left. — 22 M. Munsingen
(2320 ft.; Hot. Herrmann, R. 1-2 ^/l, R. 70 pf., D. 1 ^ 60 pf.;

Post), a town with 2100 inhab. and large cement-w^orks, on the

plateau of the Alb. About ^/^ hr. E. is the Manreuvre Ground of

the Wurtemberg army-corps (Hardt Hotel, at the camp, R. 2-3 J{,

B. 80 pf.). Roads lead from Miinsingen N. to Seeburg and Frach
(motor-omn., see p. 73) and S. to (1^2 ^^•) Buttenhausen (see above).

— At (24 M.) Ober-Heufal the railway turns to the S. and beyond

(251/2 M.) Mehrsfeffen to the E. — Near (30i
2 M.) Soudernach

rises the Schmiech, the pretty valley of which we now descend, past

the ruin of Jiisfi)ige)i (left). — 31i
o M. Hilften* at the entrance

of the wild Btiren-Tal. — 32
1/.^ M. Tolsfeusslingen, with Schloss

Keu.steiis.dingen above, on the right. — 35 M. Schmiechen-Ort
(oomp. p. 84; Hot. Sonne). — At (36 M.) Schelklingen we join the

Danube railway (p. 84).

e. Rossberg.

From Reutlingen a local railway (romp. p. 54) runs in 1 hr. to

Gonningen (1760 ft.; Hot. Schwan), at the foot of the Sfoffelberg

(2400 ft.; ruin) and 1 hr. from the top of the Rossberg. — Pedes-

trians follow the road from Reutlingen to the S., passing the pomo-
logical institute (p. 54) and the farm of Gatsbiihl, and walk through

the woods in 2 hrs., or along thQ road in I1/4 hr., to the Alteburg-

hof (rfmts.), behind which rises the Kugelberg (1950 ft.; view);

thence, keeping to the left, to Gonningen in ^ 4 hr.
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The Ros-sberg is ascended froui the Xebel-Hohle (p. 76), from the

TJcJitenstein (p. 75). or from the WacTcerstein (p. 7t) in lV->-2 hrs., on
the W. side, via GeuTcingen (2530 ft. ; Hot. Rose).

The *Rossberg (2855 ft.) is crowned with a view-tower 100 ft.

high and a refnge (restaurant and night-quarters). Beautiful view

of the Alb, Black Forest, and Alps. A monument on the W. peak

commemorates Prof. Quenstedt (d, 1889), who devoted himself to

the geology of the Alb. — We may descend on the W. to (1^/4 hr.)

Mossingen (p. 80) or (2V4 brs.) Diisslingen Cp. 80). To the Bolberg

(p. 80* 1' 2 hr., via Hirschhausle.

f. HohenzoUern. Zellerhorn.

The HohenzoUern is ascended from Zollen) station (p. 81) by

an easy, but shadeless road in 1 hr., passing the (5 min.) Hotel Briel-

hof(R. 1 c^ 20 pf.-2.y/, P. 3-6 ^l ; carr.- and- pair to the castle

6 ^ and gratuity) and the (40 min.) water-tower (see below). —
From Hechingen (carr., see p. 81) the ascent takes 1^2 1^^. From
the Hotel zur Linde we follow the Heiligkreuz-Str. to the (35 min
from the stationi Heiligkreuz-Kapelle, where we cross the railway,

and go straight on to the (^ 2 tr.) water-tower below the castle.

Thence the road (short-cuts) ascends in 20 min.

The castle of *HoherLZollem or Zoller)iJ2S0b U.; restaurant,

see below), grandly situated on an isolated wooded eminence of the

Alb, was erected by King Frederick William IV. in 1850-56 as a

royal Schloss. The old castle, destroyed in 1423 by Countess Hen-
rietta of Wurtemberg, widow of EberhardlT.. and by the Swabian

towns, was restored for the last time in 1454 by the various branches

of the Zolleru family, but by the 19th cent, little of it remained

except the chapel of St. Michael.

We enter through the Adler-Tor (PL 1), the inscription over

which refers to the history of the Schloss (above, the Prussiau eagle

and an equestriaa figure in relief of the Elector Frederick L). We
next enter the Rampen-Turm, within the narrow limits of which
three curves and a winding tunnel lead to the gate-tower (PI. 2), 75 ft.

higher up. The balustrade above the tunnel is adorned with two

men-at-arms in stone (fine view). The summit of the precipitous

rock is enclosed, in accordance with the ancient plan of the castle,

by walls 50-65 ft. in height, in the form of a heptagon, with bastions

and corner-turrets. Within this enclosure stands the modern castle,

with five towers, two of which rise to a height of 190 ft. above the

external walls. The two lowest of the five stories of the building

are vaulted and designed for purposes of defence.

To the left in the upper Burghof is the Burg-Garten, with a

bronze statue of Frederick William lY. (PL 4). To the right is the

Wehrhaus, containing a simple 'restaurant. Adjoining it is the

Protestant Chapel (PL 3), in the Gothic style. To the left (S.) rises
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the Alichaels-Tunn (PI. 13), with relief-portraits and armorial

bearings of the different lords of the castle. To the E. of it, in the

direction of the garden, is the Catholic St. Michaels- Kapelle
(PI. 14), in the late -Gothic style, the chief relic of the old castle.

A flight of steps (PI. 5) by the Wehrhaus, with a statue of the
Count ZoUern who rebuilt the castle in 14.54, leads to the apartments of
the interior (adm. 25 pf. ; the visit takes 20 niin.). The Stammbaum-Halle
(PI. 6), containing genealogical trees, is first entered. Then the sumptuous
Gothic Grafen-Saal (PI. 7), borne by ten columns of red marble, and
overladen with gilding and painting. On the right, near the entrance,
is the Kauer-Balle (PI. 8), with a central pillar and eight painted

aWTmiR
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statues of German emperors. At the end of "the Grafen-Saal, to the
right, is the small Bischofs-Halle (PI. 9). Adjoining the Grafen-Saal on
the W. is the Library (PI. 10), a low apartment with carved bookcases
and frescoes illustrating the history of the castle. From the library we
proceed to the right to the Markgrafen-Turm (PI. 11), which contains
the sitting-room and bedroom of the emperor; to the left arc the apart-
ments of the empress, in the Michaels - Turm (see above). The St.

Michaels-Kapelle (see above) contains intei'esting stained glass from the

nunnery of Stetten (p. 81).

Fiiie View from the terrace skirting the base of the castle (to the
right and loft of the upper gate-tower). It embraces the hills of Swabia

;

W. are Baliniren and Rottweil; beyond them the Black Forest, with the
Foldberg; S.W. the Jura; S. and E. the wooded slopes of the Alb.

AscEXT OF THE Zellerhorn FROM Hechixgen (p, 81), 2 V4 hrs.

To the Heiligkrouz- Kapelle, 35 min. S. of the station, see p. 78.

We first follow the Hohenzoller-"VVeg to the forest, then to the left

to the (1 hr.) prettily situated little church of Mariazell (closed;

view of the Hohenzollern). We next ascend through the woods to

Baedeker's S. Germauy. l-itli Edit.
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(3y'4 br.) the top of tbe Zellerhorn. Attractive detour lialf-way up
(finger-post) to the Fiirstenblick, with a fine view of the Hoben-

zollern. — From Zollerx Station (p. 81), 2'^!^ brs. Road to the

C5 min.) Brielhof, see p. 78. Thence a path leads to the left to

the (20 min.) Heiligkreuz-Kapelle (p. 79). — From the Hohen-
zoLLERX direct to the Zellerhorn, 1 br. About l^/g min. below the

Adler-Tor we diverge to the left from the road (finger-post); after

10 min. we keep to the left; 10 min. beyond the cross-roads we
ascend to tbe right (finger-post).

Tbe Zellerhorn (3000 ft. ; refuge-hut), a spur of tbe Alb plateau

in Wurtemberg, commands a good view (indicator). About 10 min.

below tbe summit is the Zollersteicfhof (rfmts.). A path leads E.

along the Trauf, or crest of the wooded bill, via the Baichberg
^^3135 ft.; view of the Alps) and tbe 'Hangender Stein' (close by
is the Hohenzollern-Hohle, discovered in 1912), in 2^/2 brs, to

Jungingen (p. 81; way-mark red triangle) or in 2 brs. to Onst-

mettingen (p. 82).

12. Prom Tubingen via Hechingen to
Sigmaringen.
Comp. the Map, p. 66.

541/2 M. Railway in IV2-3V4 brs. — Views to the left.

Tilbingen, see p. 55. We diverge to the left from the Horb line,

describe a wide curve, and enter the Steinlach-Tal. — Beyond

{I'^I^'M.) Derendingen we cross tbe Steinlach. — 5M. DussUngen
(1275 ft.; Brauerei Steinlacbburg). Ascent of the Rossberg, see

p. 78. — On the left rise tbe hills of tbe Swabian Alb: the Ross-

berg, the broad Farreuberg, and the precipitous Dreifiirstenstein

(see below). — Tbe Steinlach is again crossed. — 10 M. Mossingen
(1510 ft.; Hot. Schwan or Post, R. IJi-lJl 20 pf.), a village

with 3900 inhabitants. About Y2 ^^- ^- ^^^ ^^^ sulphur-baths of

Sehastiansweiler

.

From Mossingen the chief points of the upper Steinlach.-Tal may
be visited in one day. To the right from the station is (1/4 hr.) the
Romanesque Belsener Kapelle (1660 ft.; 2nd half of 12th cent.); thence
we walk to the left to the (IV4 hr.) Dreifnrstenstein (2800 ft. : shelter-

hut; forest -path to Hechingen, 2 hrs.) ; we next ascend the kornbnhl
(2910 ft.), IV2 br. S.E., with the Salme^idinger Kapelle; descend, either
direct fX.) in s/^ hr. or in I1/4 hr. via Salmendingen (2645 ft. ; Hot. Adler),
to Talheim: and return to (IV2 br.) Mossingen. From Talheim we may
ascend the (21/2 brs.) Bolberg (2890 ft. ; shelter-hut): thence we may descend
via OscMngen to (13/^ hr.) Mossingen, or go on via Hirschbausle to the
Rossberg (see p. 78). — From Mossingen direct to the Rossberg, see

p. 78. — The isolated Farrenherg (2695 ft. ; limited view), to the S.E.
of Mossingen station, may be ascended in I1/2 hr.

On a hill to tbe left stands tbe Belsener Kapelle (see above). —
Short of (13 M.) Bodelshausen the Hobenzollern is visible on the

left. We cross the Prussian frontier and descend into the Starzel-Tal.
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15^/2 M. Hechingen. — Railway Restaurant. — Hotels. Rad,
Kircli-Platz, R. IJi 40 pf.-2 c^, B. 80 pf.. P. 4'/2-6V2. '^mn. ^l-^Ji; Linde
or Post, Obertor-Platz, 15 min. from the station, R. 1 ^ 80-3 JC, B. 80 pf.,

P. 0-6 JC; Loive, nearest the station, with garden. — Motor Omnibus
from the station to the town in 6 min. (20 pf.). — Carriage-and-Pair
to the Hohenzollern 8 JC.

Hechingen (1640 ft.), with 5100 inhab., formerly the residence

of the Princes of Hohenzollern-Hechingen, was acquired by Prussia

in 1850. It is situated on the slope of the valley of the Starzel.

Near the station is the old Franciscan church of ;S'^ Ldzen, rebuilt

iu 1586-9, with stucco decoration and wooden vaulting. We follow

the Bahnhof-Str., Herrenacker-Str., and Alte Steig, pass through

the Unteres Tor ('road to the right to the Schloss-Platz, with the

old palaces), and ascend steps to the (12 min.) market-place. On
the N. side is the Rathaus, a half-timbered edifice on a late-Gothic

substructure of stone. The Catholic Parish Church, erected in

1783, contains a relief by Peter Vischer (beside the high -altar)

representing Count Eitel Friedrich II. of Zollern (d. 1512) and his

wife Magdalena of Brandenburg (d. 1496). In the Zoller-Str., 6 min.

8., is the Villa Eugenia, with a park, the property of Prince

Hohenzollern (open to visitors). About 20 min. farther on is the

Hotel Brielhof (p. 78).

About 3/4 hr. N.W. of Hechingen rises the Martinsberg (1770 ft.),

with a view-tower; V4 hr. farther W. is the Uttle Schloss Lindich (174:0),

with a park (key at the restaurant, open in summer). — To the Hohen-
zollern, see p. 78; to the ZeUerhorn, see p. 79.

From Hechingen to Gammertingen, 17 M., branch-line in IV4 br. —
We follow the wooded upper vallev of the Starsel, usually known as

the Killer-Tal. — 41/2 M. Junginge'n (1960 ft.; Hot. Post, R. 1-1'/,-^).

To the Raichberg and Zillerhorn, see p. 80. — S'/a M. Killer. — Near
(7 M.) Hansen- Starzehi (Hot. Hofle) rises the Starzel. — About IV4 M.
farther on we cross the watershed (2420 ft.) and descend the Vehla-Tal
(p. 76). — 9'/,^ M. Burladingen , with remains of a hunting-lodge of the
Hohenzollerns. — 141/2 M. Neufra, 2 M. to the N. of which is the ruin
of Lichtenstein (view). — 17 M. Gammertingen (p. 76).

Railway from Hechingen to Eyach, see p. 58.

We cross the Starzel. To the right is Stetten, in the Gnaden-
Tal, with an old nunnery. — 19 1/2 M. Zollern (1800 ft.). To the

Hohenzollern, see p. 78; to the ZeUerhorn, see p. 80. — The Hohen-
zollern long remains in sight. — 24 M. Engstlatf, with an interest-

ing wall-painting of the Ulm school iu the church. The Hunds-
rilck (3055 ft.; subalpine flora) may be ascended in l^j^'hr.

26 M. Balingen (1706 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Schwan,

Roller, Post), a manufacturing Wurteniberg town of 4100 inhab.

on the Eyach, has been repeatedly burned down.
From Balingen to Schomberg, 8 M., railway in 1 hr. (comp. the

Map, p. 63). — 51/2 M. Dotternhaiisen-Dormettingen, at the foot of the

(IV2 hr.) Plettenberg (3285 ft. ; view). Pleasant walk from the Pletten-
berg down to the Waldhaushof and up the (1 hr.) Schafberg (3265 ft.),

with a ruin on its E. slope. We next visit the (^/^ hr.) Lochenstein
(3160 ft.; refuge-hut; splendid view), with a circular entrenchment of

6*
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the Hallstatt period. Descent to Balingen in l'/2 hr. "We may also

descend from the Plettenberg W. to (I1/2 hr.) Schomberg, or S. via (1 hr.)

Ratshausen (2220 ft.; Hot. Sonne) and (1/2 hr.) Deilingen (2710 ft.; Hot.

Krone) to the (1 hr.) Oberhohenberg and (3/^ hr.) Lemberg (pp. 63, 62). —
8 M. Schomberg. To the Plettenberg. see above ; to Rottweil, see p. 63.

From Balingen to Burgfelden and the Schcdksburg, see below.

We uow enter the highest part of the Swabian Alb. To the

right rise the Plettenberg, the Schafberg, and the Locheustein

(p. 81). — At (29 M.) Frommern (1865 ft.) begins \he hilly part of

the railway, with gradients of 1 : 60 and 1 : 45. To the right rise

the Lochenhorule, the Grat, and the Grriibelesberg, to the left the

Schalksburg (see below). — 31 M. Laufen an der Eyach (2000 ft.).

The village (2020 ft.; Hot. Ochse) lies 10 min. to the left (S.E.).

ExcuR&iONS (comp. the Map, p. 63). To the W. we may ascend the
Lochenhornle (3135 ft. ; IV2 hr.), to the S. the Grdbelesberg (2940 ft.

:

3/4 hr.), with an entrenchment. — To the N. are the (1 hr.) remains of the
Schalksburg (2990 ft.), supposed to be the original seat of the Zollerns

;

thence by a narrow ridge to (20 min.) Burgfelden (2990 ft. ; Hot. Post),
with an old Romanesque church (wall-paintings of ca. 1050), perhaps the

burial-place of the early Zollerns. About 10 min. W. is the Bollatfelsen
(3020 ft.). From Burgfelden we may descend 'N.W. via the farm of
Wannetital (rfmts.) and Zillhausen to (2^/^ hrs.) Balingen (p. 81).

We- pass through a catting between the Tierberg (right) and

Heersherg (left). — Beyond (33^/0 ^^0 Laatlingen the line reaches

the watershed (2420 ft.) between the Rhine and Danube.

371,2 M. Ebingen(2375 ft.; Hot. Post, Bahnhof-Hotel), an old

industrial town of 11,400 inhab., prettily situated at a fork of the

valley. The tower on the Schlossfelsen (3125 ft.; 2/4 hr.) commands
a survey of the Alps from the Zugspitze to the Bernese Oberland.

Branch-line in 25 min. via Tailfingen, witli hosiery-manufactures, to

(5 M.) Onstmettingen (2630 ft. ; Hot. Sonne, Krone), the highest station
in Wurtemberg, with the chief source of the Schmiecha or Schmeie. To
the S.E. is the (V2 hr.) Linkenbolds - Hohle (2-10 yds. long; adm. 50 pf.

;

guide at the Krone, V2-I '^) '> ^U hr. N. the Eaichberg (p. 80).

We descend the winding Schmeien-Tal. On the right begins

the new Manoeuvre Ground of the 14th army-corps, which extends

to Stetten am Kalten Markt (p. 86). We cross the Prussian frontier.

— 41 M. Strassherg. High up on the left is the castle of that

name. The valley becomes wilder. — 48^2 ^^- Oherschmeien
(1945 ft.), % hr. X.E. of which is the ^Fursten-Hohe (2595 ft.), with

blockhouse, inn, and view of the Alps from the Zugspitze to the

Balmhorn. — We pass through two tunnels and enter the valley of

the Danube. On the right is the line to Immendingen (p. 86).

51 M. Inzigkofen (1910 ft.). The way to the village (Hot.

Erbprinz, Kreuz), 1/^ hr. S.E., passes a park of Prince Hohenzollern

on the steep and wooded S. bank of the Danube, rendered accessible

by steps and containing natural grottoes. — Fine walk via Luiz
(Hot. Adler) to (1^/4 hr.) Sigmaringen.

Sigmaringen comes in sight. The train runs direct towards tlie

Miihlberg (|j. 83), passes through a cutting, and crosses the Danube.
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54^/2 M. Sigmaringen. — Railioay Restaurant. — Hotels.
Deutsches Haus, Karls-Platz, R. 1 Ji 80 pf.-3 J6, B. 80 pf., D. 2 Ji, good

;

Loive, Karl-Str., R. IV2 -<«, B. 70 pf., D. 2 Ji, Adler, Adler-Str. 1, R.
1-2 ^, B. 70 pf., P. 3V2-'iV2 -^, both well spoken of; Erhprinz, Kirchberg,
R. 11 V2^, B. 70 pf., plain.

Sigma7'ingen (1885 ft.) is a pleasant little town with 5400 in-

hab., the residence of Prince Hohenzollern and seat of the Prussian

administrative authorities. It is a good centre for excursions.

From the station we follow the Bahnhof-Str. to the right and

the Markt-Str. to the left. In 4 min. we reach the handsome
ScMoss, situated on a rock rising abruptly from the Danube and
rebuilt since a fire in 1893 (portal of 1526). The interior is richly

decorated. The W. wing contains a "^M/isewn, chiefly formed by
Prince Charles Anthony (d. 1885), and admirably arranged in a fine

Grothic hall, with frescoes by A. Miiller, and in two cabinets. It

is open daily 10-12 and 2-4, on Sun. not till after high mass; adm.

40 pf. ; the visit lasts 1 hr. (gratuity); catalogues on sale.

The Collection of Pictures (230 works) chiefly illustrates the early-
German school, especially the Swabian masters. *81-86. Jorg Stocker
and M. Schaffner, Wings of a large altar-piece (Annunciation, Nativity,
Circumcision, Adoration of the Magi, Procession to Calvary; 1496);
*132-139. Earth. Zeitblom, Scenes from the life of the Virgin; 158-164.

Hans Schiilm, Seven scenes from the history of the Virgin ; 8. Altdorfer,
Adoration of the Magi; Ambergerf?) , *Portraits of a man and woman.
The Lower Rhenish School, especially that of Cologne, is also well re-

presented (*91. B. Bruijn, Crucifixion, in an appropriate landscape). The
best of the early -Flemish works are: *2, 4. Gei-ard David, Annun-
ciation ; 5. Herri met de Bles, Adoration of the Magi ; Rogier van der
Weyden(?), 29. Virgin, with a background of tapestry, *38. Virgin in a

landscape; 61. Geertgen tot Sint Jans, Crucifixion; 129. Lucas van Ley-
den, Adoration of the Magi. — The Collection or Industrial Art con-
tains mediaeval and Renaissancf carved work (statuettes, reliefs, fur-

niture; numerous sculptures of the Lower Rhenish School, ca. 1500; small
winged altar with paintings by B. Boham ; etc.); *Metal-work, especially
Romanesque candelabra, aquamanilia, goblets, ciboria. etc.; helmet of
the 6th cent.

;
glass, *Enamels, and pottery (Italian and French majolica;

Dutch, Rlienish, and Swiss stoneware)
;
jewellery; *Textiles, incl. a series

of excellently preserved Gobelins of the 14th and 15th centuries. — The
Waffen-Halle. with numerous state weapons, is interesting.

The Pal.eontological Collection (2000 objects) and the Library,
with rare books, incunabula, and MSS., are open to students only.

The Karl-Str., diverging to the left from the Markt-Str, as we
come from the station, leads to the Karls-Platz, which is adorned
with a bronze equestrian statue of Prince Leopold (d. 1905).

On the Brenzkofer Berg (2140 ft.
; Va hr.), on the opposite (N.) bank

of the Danube (reached by theBurg-Str. and Leopold-Str., keeping straight
on at the Turn-Platz), rises the War Monument, in memory of the cam-
paigns of 1866 and 1870-71. Tlie platform commands a' view of the
distant Alps. At the foot of the hill, 10 min. W. (reached from the
town via the Turn-Platz and tlie Lpupold-Str. , to the left), is the

ZoUerscher Hof, a favourite restaurant, with a garden. — The Miihlberg,
on the X. bank of the Danube, is another fine point of view (12 min,).
— To the S.W. to Inzigkofen, see p. 82.

Railway from Sigmaringen to Tuttlingen (Donau-Tal) and to iZcwfo?/"-

zell and Ulm, see R. 13; to Gammertingen and Kleinengstingen, sec p. 76.



84

13. From Ulm to Immendingen (Schaff-

hauseu) or to Radolfzell and Constance.
Comp. the Map, p. 66.

From Ulm to Immendingen, 90 M., railway in 23/^-41/2 hrs. : to Eadolf-
zell via Zielfingen 86'/2 M.. via Sigmaringen 93 M., in 4-5 hrs. — From
Eadolfzell to Constance, 12^1^ M. in VrVs hi-

Ulm, see p. 46. At (l^/^ M.) Soflingen we enter the smiling

valley of the Blau, cross the stream, and ascend the right bank. —
Near (41/2 M.) Kliagenstein, with a high -lying Schloss, we return

to the left bank. — 5 M. Herrlirigen, at the mouth of the Lauter-

Tal. Pleasant excursion via Schloss Oher-Herrlingen to (l^a ^^-J

Lautern (Hot. Lamm); 2 M. farther on (N.W.j lies Bermaringeit^

with a church containing 13th cent, mural paintings. — Rocks pro-

trude in fantastic forms from the wooded sides of the valley. — l^ear

('9^2 ^^•) Gerhaasen we leave the Blau valley. On the right is the

ruined castle of Hohen-Gerhausen or Rusenschloss (2110 ft.).

10 M. Blaubeuren (1695 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Bahnhof-

Hotel; Post, R. 1 c^ 20-1 J6 80 pf., P. 4-6 .^; Ochse), with 3430 in-

hab., 20 min. from the station, lies at the confluence of the Ach
and Blau, in a wooded, rock-girt basin, dominated by the Racken.
From the station the Bahnhof-Str. leads to the market-place,

passing the Protestant Parish Church (15th cent.), which con-

tains an altar with paintings by Altdorfer and Zeitblom (1605i.

At the X. end of the town is the large *Benedictine Monastery,
founded in 1095, rebuilt in 1491-9, and since 1562 a Protestant

seminary. The old walls and gateway still survive. The choir of

the old church, reached by the late-G(ithic cloisters, contains figures

of the Apostles, richly carved choir-stalls by Jorg Syrlin the Younger,

and a magnificent late-Gothic high-altar with paintings, reliefs, and

five painted statues. Pilgrimage on July 2ud. — At the foot of

the wooded Blauberg, behind the monastery, is the *Blautopf, the

source of the Blau, a wonderful blue-green pool 130 yds. in cir-

cumference and 65 ft. deep. The stream of water (ca. 220 gallons

per second; supplies a pumping-station for the villages on the Alb
and two mills. Monument to King Charles I., founder of the pump-
ing-station (1889).

We now enter the valley of the Ach, to the S.W. Beyond Weiler,

^li hr. fi-om Blaubeuren station , rise the Sirgeiistein (right; and

the Hohler Fels, both of which contain prehistoric cave-dwellings

(key for the latter at Schelklingen). — 14I/2 M. Schelklingen
(1755 ft.; Hot. Sonne; pop. 1850), with a ruined castle. About
20 min. N'.W, is the old Benedictine nunnery of Urspring (1920 ft.).

Branch-line to (;36 M.i Reutlingen, see R. lid.

At (15 M.) Schmiechen 'p. 77) we enter the valley of the Schmiech

(p. 77), a stream descending on the right from the Miinsinger Alb.
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About 20 niin. S.E. is the marshy Schmiecher See (1750 ft.). —
17^ 2^- Allmendingen (1705 ft.), with cement-works and a Schloss.

— 21 M. Ehingen (1680 ft.; Hot. Wurttemberger Hof, at the

station), an old town with 4800 inhab., near the confluence of the

Schmiech and the Danube. The church of St. Blasius, on a hill,

originally Gothic but remodelled in 1738, contains an alto-relief

(Pieta) of ca. 1520, spoiled by painting (in a chapel on the S. side).

Fine view from the Kaiser-Wilhelm-Turm on the Wolfert (1800 ft.

;

key at the Rathaus), between the town and the Danube.

We follow the broad valley of the winding Danube. — 28 M.
Munderkingen (1655 ft.; Hot. Post), a small town of 1940 inhalj.

on a rock encircled by the river. — 30 M. Untermarchtal (Hot.

Adler, Hirsch). Excursion through the Grosses Lauter-Tal to Mar-
bach, see p. 77. — We cross the Grosse Lender near its mouth.

To the left is the imposing old Premonstratensian monastery of

Obermarchtal, the property of Prince Thurn and Taxis. The baroque
church (late 17th cent.) contains a fine stucco-ceiling by Schmuzer
and oaken screens (sacristy). — 33 M. Rechtenstein (1695 ft.;

Hot. Bar), with the ruined castle of the Steins of Rechtenstein, is

one of the prettiest points on this line. We cross the Danube
twice, and again beyond (36 M.J Zwiefaltendorf {1720 ft.), with a

stalactite cavern (at the 'Rossle'i.

Road through ihe Aach-Tal to (1 hr.) Zwiefalien (176.5 ft.), an old

Benedictine monastery (now a lunatic asylum) with a tine church (1738-65).

Thence through a beautiful ravine to (50 min.) the Witnsener Hohle (entered
in a boat, 20 pf.

;
guide at the mill); then past Schloss Ehrenfels and

the ruin of AJt-Ehrenfels to the romantic Glas-Tal. About 5 min. above
the source of the Aach we diverge to the right, keeping always to the
right farther on, to (IV^ hr.) Hayingen (Hot. Adler, Wilder Mann). Thence
to the Grosses Lauter-Tal, see p. 77. — From Zwiefalten via the Heuuc-
hurg to Riedlingen, see below.

38V2 M. Unlingeii. The village (1760 ft.; Hot. Adler; lies

20 min. S.E.

The *Btissen (2515 ft.), an isolated hill, is ascended from Unlingcn
in 1 hr. (also road via Hailtingen and Offlngen). At the top are a ruined
castle and a pilgrimage -church containing a fine figure of Christ by
Jos. Kopf of Unlingcn. View of the Alps and the whole of Upper Swabia.

40^2 ^^- Riedlingen (1735 ft.; Hot. Post), an ancient town of

2540 inhab., ^ /^ hr. W. of the station. About 2^
.^ hrs. X.W., beyond

Pflummern, is the Heuneburg, an interesting circular entrenchment

above the Friedinger Tal. Hence via Upflmnor to Zwiefalten (see

above), '1^2 ^^- — 42^2 M. Neufra, with a Schloss. — 47 M.
Herbertingen (1795 ft. ; rail, restaurant). About ^2 hr. N. is the

Donauheuneburg, near Talhof.
From Herbertingen to Memmingen, 62 M., railway in SV-i-^'/j hrs.

— 51/2 M. Saulgau (Hot. Post), a little town of 5200 inhab. with a flat-

roofed Gothic basilica (ca. liOO). — 12 M. Altshausen. To SchwackA-
reute, seep. 88. — 17V'> M. Aidcnclorf. junction of the Ulm and Friedrichs-
hafcn line (p. 51). — 23 M. Waldsee (Hot. Post; pop. 3260), prettily
situated between two lakes, with a Schloss. The late -Gothic church,



86 Route 13. MENGEN. From Ulm

remodelled in 1705, contains the noteworthy brass of Jijrg von Waldburg
(d. 1467). — 28 M. Rossberg. Branch-line to (7 M.) Wurzach (2140 ft.

;

Hot. Rossle), with a Schloss of the Princes of Waldburg (1721). — 311/2 M.
Wolfegg, with the handsome Schloss of Prince Waldburg-Wolfegg-Wald-
see, rebuilt in the 17th cent, in the Renaissance style. The Ritter-Saal
contains wooden ancestral statues; the chapel (1733) has tine rococo
decoration. — 36 M. Kisslegg (Hot. Post^, on the small Zeller See, with
two old castles and a rococo church. Branch -line to (12 M.) Hergatz
(p. 314), via Wangen im Allgdu (Hot. Alte Post, R. IV2-2 <^) , an old
free town with 4830 inhab., picturesquely situated on the Argen. — 43 M.
Leutkirch (2145 ft.; Rail. Restaurant

;

'Hot. Post; pop. 4000), formerly
an imperial free town, lies on the W. slope of the Wilhehns-Hohe (2310 ft.

;

views). Branch-line to (10 M.) Isny (2360 ft. ; Hot. Ochse), an old free

town prettily situated on the Argen, with remains of town-walls and
the Schloss of Prince Quadt-Wykradt-Isny. Railway to Kempten, see

p. 312. The tower on the *Schiv'arzer Grrat(S&10 ft.), 2 hrs. E., commands
a superb view of the Alps and Lake of Constance; descent via, Eschach
to Buchenberg or Kiirnach (p. 312), 21/2 hrs.

Pretty scenery. — 441/.2 M. Unterzeil. On a hill to the left is Schloss
ZeU (17th cent.), belonging to Prince Waldburg-Zeil-Trauchburg. — 59 M.
Buxheim, once a Carthusian monastery, now a Schloss of Count Wald-
bott-Bassenheim. — 62 M. Memmingen (p. 49).

51 M. Mengen (Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Baier, at the station,

R. 1 ^M 60 pf.-2 t.^), on the Ablach, occupies the site of a Roman
castrum. To Radolfzell, see p. 87.

The Sigmaringen line passes (5 8^/2 M.) Scheer, with a Schloss

of Prince Taxis, crosses to the left bank of the Danube, and enters

Hohenzollern territory. — 50^/2 M. Sigma7^i7igendorf, at the mouth
of the Lauchert. Branch-line to Kleinengstingen, see p. 76. — We
recross the Danube.

58 M. Sigmaringen (p. 83j. To Radolfzell, see p. 87.

The Immendingen line follows the picturesque winding * Upper
Valley of the Danube (comp. the Map, p. 66), which will repay

pedestrians as far as Beuron (6 hrs.). — 61 M. Inzigkofen, junction

for Tiibingen (p. 82). — We cross the Schmeie and the Danube
and pass the ruin of Dietfurt, on a rock to the left. — SS^g ^^•

Guteustein (Hot. Sonne), a picturesque Baden village with a little

Schloss belonging to Count Douglas. Opposite, on the right, is the

ruin of Burgfelden. — Above the Danube tower the rocks of

Rahenfels and Heidenfels. — 64\2 M. Tiergarten (1970 ft.; Hot.

zum Hammer), with disused iron-works. About 1 hr. N. lies Stettea

am Kalten Markt, the church of which (1624) has a 13th cent,

tower and baroque ornamentation in the interior. Between Stetten

and Ebingeu stretches a new manoeuvre-ground (p. 82).

We next pass the ruin of Falkenstein (right), the Schaufelsen,

and the village of Neidingeii. — 69 M. Hansen im Tal (1970 ft.;

Hot. Steinhaus), with a ruin on a lofty rock to the right (1 hr. from

tl^ station). — Farther on, to the right, appears the old castle of

-^Werenwag (2535 ft.), the property of Prince Flirstenberg, with

a line view and a remarkable echo (\ ^ ^^i'- fi'om Hansen; inn at the
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top). At the foot of the castle -rock lies the hamlet of Langen-
hrunn. — We enter a narrow and romantic part of the valley.

Above, on the left, is the handsome castle of Wildensteiii (2660 ft.

;

l^/^hr. from Beuron), with well-preserved defensive works, partly

hewn in the rock (16th cent.). It is now used as a forester's house

(rfmts.i. We cross the Danube.

721/2 M- Beuron (:2050 ft.; Hot. Klosterhof, R. \ Jl 20 pf.-

2 ^^, Grregoriushaus , Pelikan, Sonne, Stern, all belonging to the

monastery; AValdeck, new, P. 4-41/2 ^-^j, a charmingly situated vil-

lage, visited as a summer resort. The old Augustinian monastery

(6 min. from the station; introduction necessary for visitors), founded

late in the 11th cent., suppressed in 1802, was made over to the

Benedictines in 1863. The handsome church, rebuilt in 1724-38
and restored in 1874-5, contains ceiling-paintings by Wegscheider
and altar-pieces by Beuron artists (see below). The bronze cross at

the entrance was presented by the Kaiser in 1910.
The Sigmaringen road leads E. to (Vabr.) the dairy-farm of St. Maurus

im Felde. Above is the St. Maiirns-Kapelle , built in 1868-70 and em-
bellished M'ith 'early-Christian' paintings by the lay-brothers Lenz, Wiiger.
and Steiner, the founders of the Beuron school. — About 1/2 hr. S.E. of

Beuron (to the left at the cross beyond the railway embankment) is the
Peters-Hbhle, a spacious grotto entered by wooden steps. — About 3/^ hr.

S. of Beuron. on a wooded rock above the Danube, is the well-preserved
ScMoss Bronnen (2.585 ft.; view; key at the Jagerhaus, below, on the
Danube; gratuity 50 pf.); attractive descent via the Scheuerlehof and
the Teiifds-Kilcke (below the ruin of Kallenberg) to (IV2 I""-) Fridingen
(see below). Pleasant club-path from Beuron along the Danube to 1 21/2 hrs.)

Fridingen.

The line now follows the left bank of the Danube, threads a

tunnel, and crosses the Bera. — 75 M. Fridingen (rail, restaurant),

20 min. N". of the town (Hot. Sonne), which has 1060 inhab. and a

Schloss (now a poorhouse). — We cross the Danube twice. On the

wooded heights to the left are an ancient entrenchment, the ruin

0^ Alt-Fridingen, and the ruined pilgrimage-church of Mariahilf.
— 781', M. MuJilheim. The town (2180 ft.; Hot. Krone), pictur-

esquely situated on a hill to the left, has a Schloss of Baron Enzberg.

80 M. Nendingen, with the ancient chapel of St. Blasius. We
next pass the royal iron -works of Ludioigstal and the station of

(821,2 ^^^-^ Tufflinger Vorsfadt, and cross the Danube.
84 M. Tutflingen, and thence to {90 M.) Immendingen , see

pp. 63, 04.

From Me\ge\ (p. 86) to Radolfzell .\xd Coxstaxce. The
line quits the Danube and follows the Ablach-Tal to the left. -

54 M. (from Ulm) Zielpngen. — 57 M. Krauchenwies (p. 88).

Fkom SiGMARixGEx (p. S&) to Radoei'zell axd Coxstaxce.
— 61 M, (from Ulm) Josephslust , with the large deer-park of

Prince Holionzollern, containiii"- a hunting- lodge and erratic
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boulders. — 63^2 ^^- Krauchenwies (Rail. Restaurant: Hot. 6ol-

dener Adler), with the prince's summer residence. Railwaj' to

Mengen, see p. 87.

69^2 ^I- Messkirch (Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Lowe, Sonne),

with 2200 inhab. and a Schloss of Prince Fiirstenberg. The parish-

church contains 16th cent, monuments (epitaph of Count Gottfried

von Zimmern by Labenwolf; 1551); the altar-piece (the Magi) is the

masterpiece of Jorg Ziegler, the Master of Messkirch (ca. 1540).

Between the church and the Schloss is a monument to Konradin

Kreutzer, the composer, born here in 1780 (d. 1849). Traces of a

Roman settlement in the old town.

76 M. Schicackenreate (rail, restaurant).

From Schwackenreute to xVltshausen, 251/2 M., railway in 2 lirs. —
10 M. PfuUendorf (Hot. zum Schwan), an ancient town. Charming ex-
cursion to (10 M.) Heiligenherg (p. 97; omn. daily in 2 hrs., VI., ^^; carr.

12 JC). — 20 M. Hossfcirch-Konigsegg. About Va hr. S.E. is the partly
preserved castle of Konigsegg, visible from tlio railway.— 251/2 M. Alts-

hausen (Rail. Restaurant: Hot. Post), junction of the Herbertingen and
Memmingen line (p. 85).

At (76 M.) Muhlingeu we enter the narrow wooded valley of

the Stockach. — 821/2 ^^- Stockach (Hot, Adler or Post), prettily

situated, near which the French under Jourdan were defeated by
Archduke Charles in 1799. View of the Alps and Lake of Constance

from the 'Seeschau'; Ya ^^- W- of the village is the ruin of Nellen-

biirg, with an extensive view. — We now traverse smiling green

valleys. — 89 M. Stahringen (p. 97).

93 M. RadoLfzell (1305 ft. ; Bahnhof-Hotel Schiff, R. 1 J6 70,

D. 1 -^^ 60 pf.-2 ^/t : Scheffelhof, Krone, Sonne), an old town of

6000 inhab., with Avails and gates, situated on the UnterSee. The
Grothic church of 1436 contains the tomb of St. Radolf and a fine

reliquary dating substantially from the 9th century. In the Stadt-

Garten is a monument to the poet Victor vou Scheffel (d. 1886).

Radolfzell is the junction for lines to Schaffhausen (p. 65) and

Basle and to Lindau (R. 14 b).

The Railway from Radolfzell to Coxstaxce intersects the

neck of land between the Unter-See and the Uberlinger See (p. 92). —
2 M. Markelfingen. — 51/2 M. Allenshach. — 7^/2 M. Hegne.

8^2 ^I- Reichenau, station for the island in the Unter-See, con-

nected with the shore by a causeway (IY2 M.).

The island of Reichenau (3 M. long, 1 M. wide), belonging to Baden,
was formerly the seat of a celebrated Benedictine abbey, founded in 724
and dissolved in 1799. It may be visited also by rowing-boat from
Hegne or Allensbach (1/4 hr.) or by steamer from Constance or Schaff-
hausen. —• Approaching from the causeway, we pass the ruined castle of
Schopfebi and reach Oberzell, a hamlet with a Romanesque church of
the 9th-10th cent., containing interesting wall-paintings (lOth-llth cent.). —
Farther on, I1/4 hr. from the mainland, is the chief village, Mittelzell or
Mun-ster (Hot. Mohr, Bar; pop. 1000). The parish-church, formerly the
abbey-church, was consecrated in 806 and dates in its present basilican form
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from the 10th-12th centuries. The late-Gothic choir (1447-1550) contains
nn altar-piece of 1598, sculptures, and tombstones. Fine reliquaries in

the sacristy. Charles the Fat, great-grandson of Charlemagne, who was
dethroned in 887, was interred in this church. Goojl view from the W.
tower of the Konigsegg, a 16th cent. Schloss, recently restored. — The
churcli of Unterzell, at the X.W. end of the island, is a basilica of the
llth-12th cent., with 12th cent. (?i wall-paintings in the ap.se. — Fine
view from the belvedere on tlio Friedrich-i-Hohe (key at the Mohr at

Mittelzell).

12 M. Pefershansen, with large barracks. On the Raifheberg
(1485 ft.), 20 min. N., is a Bismarck Tower (1912; view). — We
cross the Rhine by an iron bridge embellished with statues.

121/2 M, Constance. —Hotels. *Insel-Hotel (PI. a; C, 3, 4), of

the very first class, in the old Dominican monastery (frescoes by Haberlin
in the Romanesque cloisters; church converted into the dining-room),
superbly situated on the lake, with garden and restaurant (in the refectory),

R. 31/2-8, with bath 10-15, B. IV2, L. 4, D. 5, P. from 9, omn. 1 ^^, open the
whole year. — *See-Hotel (PL b ; D, 3), also on the lake, witli terrace and
restaurant, first-class, R. 3-5. B. IV2, D. 21/2-5, P. 8-12 Ji, open the whole
year ; *Hahn (PL c ; C, 5), R. '2i/.^-3V.2, B. 1, D. 1 ..^ 80 pf .-3 ^, P. 7-9 ^«, Ter-
minus (PL d; C, 5), R. 21/.2-5, B. 1, D. 1 .* 80 pf .-3 c^, both opposite the
station ; HecM (PL e ; C, 4), N. of the station, R. 2 J^ 30-3 JC 50 pf ., B. 1, D. 3,

P. 7-81/2^/^, with wine-room, good cuisine. — Krone (PL f ; C, 5), R. 2-5,

B. 1, D. 13/4-21/2 Jl, Schnetzer (PL g ; C, 5). R. 2-3, B. 1. D. 1 ^ 80-2 ^ 50 pf.,

both in the market-place, with restaurants, good: Barbarossa {V\. i, Bi;
p. 90), Oberer Markt, with popular wine-room, R. 2-3, B. 1 Ji, good;
Maximilian (PL h; C, 5), Bahnhof-Str. 4. Dentsches Hans, Stephans-
Platz 15, corner of the Obere Laube (PL B, 4), both with restaurants;
SchUissel (PL 1; C, 5). Sigismund-Str. 14. R. I1/.2-2 .«; Hohes Haus (PL n;
C, 4), Zollern-Str. 29; Ehren, Wessenberg-Str. 29 (PL B, C, 4), with
restaurant; Falke (?l. k; B, 6), Kreuzlinger-Str. 13, with beer-garden;
Katholisches Vereinshaus St. Johann (PL ; C, 3) , R. I1/2-2, D. 1-2,

P. 1-5 cS.

Restaurants. Musetiin. near the cathedral (PL C, 4); Kaufhaus
(p. 90); Cafe Dauner, Husen-Str. 3 (PL B, 5).

Post & Telegraph Office, opposite the station. — Inquiry Office
(Yerkehrs-Yerein), Bahnhofs-Platz, opposite the post office.

Motor Boats. From the harbour: IST. to the See-Str. (PL D, 3), every
10-20 min. (5-10 pf .) ; S.E. to Bottighofen and Waldhaus Jacob (p. 91),

9 times daily (20-40 pf .) ; circular trip (1 hr. ; 50 pf .). Rowing and sailing
boats according to tariff (to Mainau, see p. 92).

Baths in the lake (PL D, 5, 6; 40 pf. ; ferry from the Bootshafen 10 pf.).

Constance (1335 ft.), German Konstanz, a town of Baden with

29,600 iuhab., has iron-works and textile factories. It is situated

at the point where the Rhine emerges from the Lake of Constance.
Constance, which ascribes its origin to Coustantius Chlorus (3rd cent.),

became an episcopal see in the 6th cent, and was a free town until 1548,
when it was made subject to Austria. Since 1805 it has belonged to
Baden. After the Reformation the bishops resided at Mecrsburg (p. 92),

and in 1827 the bishopric was merged in the archbishopric of Freiburg.
The great Council of Constance, held in 1414-18 at the instance of the
Emperor Sigismund, suppressed the schism of the antipopes JohnXXIIl.,
Gregory XII., and Benedict XIII., and condemned the teaching of John
Huss (see p. 90).

The Miinster (PI. C, 4), begun in the 11th cent., was originally

a Romanesque basilica, but was altered in the Gothic style in 1435
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and 1680. The tower (250 ft. high) was erected in 1850-57; the

perforated spire is of light sandstone; on either side is a platform

(view; adm. 20 pf.).

On the doors of the principal portal are 20 *Bas-reliefs representing
the life of Christ, carved in oak in 1470. The stone organ-loft, richly

ornamented in the Renaissance style, is supposed to have been designed
by P. riotner in 1518. In the nave, which is supported by 16 monolithic
columns (30 ft. high, 3 ft. thick), «xteen paces from the entrance, is a large

stone slab with a white spot, on which Huss is said to have stood when
the Council (comp. p. 89) sentenced him to death (July 6th, 1415). The
pulpit dates from the 17th century. In the choir is the brass of Eobert
Hallam, Bishop of Salisbury (d. 1417). The late-Gothic choir-stalls are

adorned with satirical sculptures (15th cent.). Adjoining the choir on the

right is the Margareten-Kapelle, with the tomb of Bishop Otto III. of
Hachberg (d. 1434) and wall-paintings of 1445. The left transept contains

an elegant spiral staircase (1438?). In the last chapel of the N. aisle is a

large altar-piece of the Swabian school (1524). — The Treasury (V2-I «^ to

the verger) contains illuminated missals (1496). •— From the N. choir-

chapel we enter the Crypt, of 995. adjoining which is the Chapel of the
Holy Sepulchre (13th cent.}. — On the exterior of the X. side are two
walks of the late-Gothic Cloisters. Adjacent are the late-Gothic Mai(ritiifS-

Kapelle and the Chapter House (1480).

The Wessenberg-Haus (PL 6; C, 4), now the property of the

town, contains the public library and the picture-gallery (adm. free

on Wed. and Sat. 2-4 and Sun. 10.30-1 ; on other days 9-12, 50 pf.) of

J. H. von Wessenberg (d. 1860), the last vicar-general of the diocese.

The late -Gothic Stephans-Kirche (PI. B, C, 4), begun in 1428,

with a slender tower, contains choir-stalls, tabernacle, and reliefs

by H. Morink (1594).

In the Oberer Markt (PI. B, 5) are two old houses, recently

restored: the house 'Zum Holieu Hafen' (PI. 1), with frescoes by

Haberlin (1906), and the Hotel Barbarossa (PI. i
; p. 89), in which the

Emperor Frederick I. concluded peace with the Lombard towns in

1183. — The Eathaus (PL B, 5), rebuilt in the Renaissance style in

1592, was decorated on the exterior in 1864 with frescoes illustrating

the history of Constance. It contains the municipal archives, com-

prising 2800 documents. Fine inner court. In the lobby of the second

floor are frescoes by Haberlin (1898).

The Rosgarten (PL 4 ; C, 5), once the guild-house of the butch-

ers, contains a good collection of local antiquities (finds from lake-

dwellings, sculptures by H. Morink, etc.) and natural history

(adm. 50 pf.: free on Wed. 2-5 and Sun. 10.30-12 and 2-4).

The Kaufhaus (PL C, 4, 5), a picturesque building of 1388, is

now fitted up as a restaurant, with a terrace facing the lake. On
the first floor is the great council -chamber (adm. 20 pf.), where
Martin Y. was elected pope by the conclave of cardinals (Nov. 11th,

1417). It is supported by ten oaken pillars and decorated with

frescoes by Pecht and Schworer (1875).

The pvetiy Stadt-Ga7'ten (PL C, D, 4; band on summer evenings?,

on the lake, contains a bust of Emperor William I. Opposite is the old
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Dominican Monastery, now the Insel-Hotel (p. 89), — Farther N.,

near the Rhine bridge, is the old Rheintor-Turm (PI. C, 3).

The house in which Huss was arrested, Husen-Str. 64, near the

Schnetz-Tor (PL B, 5), bears a tablet (1878;. Adjacent is a relief,

dated 1415, with satirical verses. Behind it, in the 'Obere Laube'

(PL B, 5), a tablet marks the spot where Jerome of Prague was

imprisoned in 1415-16. — In the Briihl, to the left of the Gottlieber

Str. (PL A, 4), is the spot where Huss and Jerome were burned in 1415

and 1416, indicated by a huge rock with inscriptions ('Husenstein').

At Kreuzlingen (Hot. Lowe, Schweizerhof , both tfood; Bellevue
Sanatorium, for neurasthenic patients), V^ hr. from the S. gate, on Swiss
territory (conip. the map, p. 89), is an old abbey, now a sehooL The church
contains a curious piece of wood-carving, with 1000 figures (18th cent.).

Fine view of the lake and the Alps from the AUmanvsdorfer Aua-
sichts-Tiirm, 1 hr. N., 5 min. above the village oi Allmannsdorf, on the

road to Mainau. — Prettj^ walks to the Loretto-Kapelle (1/2 hr.) ; the

Waldhaus Jacob (1/2 br. ; hotel -pension, R. 2-3, P. from 51/2 c^)
j

the

Tabor, with a belvedere (1 hr.) ; the Kleiner Bigi, above Miinsterlingen

(Vli hr.); and the Eaitheberg (p. 89).

Railway from Constance to Schaffhausen and Basle, see Baedeker's
Rhine or Switzerland.

14. The Lake of Constance.
The Swiss bank, tlie principal steamer-centre on which is Rorschach,

is described in Baedeker's Switzerland.
Steamer-piers are indicated by S, railway stations by R.

The Lake of Constance (1295 ft.), German Boden-See, the

Lacvs Brigantinus of the Romans, is 40 M. long, 7^ 2 ^^- wide,

208 sq. M. in area, and at the deepest place, between Friedrichs-

hafen and Uttwil, 825 ft. in depth. Its principal feeder is the

Rhine, the deposits of which have formed a broad delta at its in-

flux between Bregenz and Rorschach. This vast sheet of water,

with its well-peopled banks, presents a scene of great beauty. On
the S, side are wooded hills, above which rise the distant Appenzell

Alps, with the snow-clad Sentis and, in clear weather, the snow-

peaks of the Vorarlberg Alps to the S.E. The E. and W. banks are

almost entirely flat, while on the N. wooded hills may be descried

in the distance. The climate is extremely mild. Vines flourish up

to 1500 ft. above sea-level, and orchards and lush meadows are

found even higher. — The best fish are 'Felchen', 'Sander', and

salmon -trout; the best wine grown on the banks is 'Meersburger'.

a. Steamers.
From Constance via Meersburg to Friedrichshafen in li/^-lVo hr.

(2 ^ 35, 1 ^S 55 pf.); to Lindau in 2-31/2 hrs. (3 .* 85, 2 .# 60 pf.); to

Bregenz in 21/2-4 nrs. {-^ Jdb, 2 v4( 90 pf.)" — From Friedrichshafen to

Lindau in I1/4 hr. ; to Romanshorn in 8/^ hr. (1 JC 20, 80 pf.) ; to Rorschach
in 1 hr. (1 JC 85, 1 JC 25 pf.). — From Lindau to Bregenz in 20-25 min.
(60, 40 pf.); to Romanshorn in I1/4 hr. (2 JC 25. 1 c^ 50 pf.); to Rorschach
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in 3/^ hr. (1 Ji 65, 1 ,.S 10 pf.). — Tickets for the steamer-lines are available

in part for the railway (p. 97) also (and vice versa). Eeturn-tickets are

available for 45 days." On Sun. and holidays the single-fare tickets are

good for the return also. 'Kilometre tickets' (Kilometer-Karten : available

for a year) are convenient for those making a long stay: ticket with
200 coupons (each representing one km.) 9 or G ^; family -ticket with
300 coupons 131/2 or 9 ,,S : on embarking the required number of coupons
is detached. — The lake is neutral, and luggage is examined only when
proceeding from Switzerland to Germany or Austria or vice versa;

passengers from one German port to another should have a custom-house
label (gratis) pasted on their luggage before embarkation, by which all

trouble is avoided on landing.

Constance , see p. 89.
_
The chief charm of the N.W. arm of

the Lake of Constance, or Uherlinger See, is the lovely island of —
*MairLau (Map, see opposite), 110 acres in area, connecter! with

the mainland by an iron bridge. Originally belonging to the Abbey
of Reichenau (p. 88), it was from 1272 to 1809 the seat of a lodge

of the Teutonic Order. In 18r)3 it became the property of Grand-

Duke Frederick I. of Baden, who refurnished the Schloss (built in

1739-46; adm. in the absence of the court onlv) and laid out the

island as a park (always open), in which his favourite spots are

marked with inscriptions.

Steamer from Constance to Mainau via Meersburg (see below) in

1 hr. (in summer also direct via Staad in 1/2 'ir.). — Eowing Boat (in

1 hr., a pleasant trip) 5 JC and gratuity. — Pedestrians (Map, see p. 91)

may either follow the road (carr. 5-6, with two horses 10 ^fC), a walk of

1 hr., or take the shorter footpaths (mostly through woods). In the latter

case we follow the Wilhelm-Str. (PI. D, 2, 1) to (10 min.) a guide-post,

where we turn to the right past the hospital; 8-10 miu. farther on we
reach another guide-post, where we either go straight on, skirting the

wood and soon joining tlie road, or take the preferable route to the left

('Privatweg Liitzelstatteu") through woods and past the St. Katharina inn.

On the X. bank of the Uherlinger See lie Meersburg (S; see

below), Unteruhldinge/> (S & R; p. 97), Nussdorf (R; p. 97), Uber-

lingen (S & R; p. 93), Sipplhigen (R; p. 97), and, at the N.W. end

of the lake, Ludwigshafeii (S &R; p. 97).

Meersburg. — Hotels. Seehof, at the steamer- pier ; Schiff,

E. li/o JC. B. 80 pf., P. 5-51/0 .S, Hecht, E. 1-1V.> .«, B. 90 pf .. P. iy.^-o JC,

with view-terrace. Wilder 'Mann, E. IV2-2 .«, B. 80 pf., P. from 5 .#,

with shady garden, these three on the lake.; Loice. in the upper town. —
Good Meersburger wine at the Weinstuhe des Winzer-Vereins ('Zum
Becher'), in the upper town. — Lake Baths near the quay.

Meersburg (1465 ft.), a Baden town of 1930 inhab., with towers,

gates, and old houses, lies picturesquely on a steep slope. The lower

town (Unterstadt) contains a late -Gothic chapel, with a carved

altar representing the Annunciation (ca. 1490). The Altes Schloss

(16th-17th cent.), with a medisevai keep, is situated on a rock in

the upper town (Oberstadti, which is reached in 10 min. from the

harbour by crossing the promenade to the left and ascending the

Steig-Str.,'to the right of the Wilder Mann. The old mill in the

adjacent ravine (artificially made in 1334) is highly picturesque.

The Neues Schloss, built after 1750 as the residence of the Bishops
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of Constance I'p. 89), is now a deaf-and-dumb asylum. Near it is a

bust of the poetess Annette von Droste-Hillshoff (d. 1848). The
cemetery contains the tomb oi JMesmer (d. 1815). the discoverer of

mesmerism. Fine views from the KClnzele, near the normal school,

and (more extensive) from the *Edelstein, 20 min. from the liarbour

and 5 min. W. of the church.

Uberlingen. — Hotels. Bad-Hotel (PI. A, 2), with garden and
baths. E. 2-i, B. 1, D. 21/2-3, P. 51/2-8, omn. 1/., Ji, Loice (PI. a; C, 2),

with a shady terrace. R. 2-21/2, B. 1, D. 2-21/2, P. .51/2-6 Ji, omn. 60 pf.,

Bafinhof-Hotel, near the W. station (p. 97), R.1-2^, B.SOpf.. D.lc^20pf.-
2 JC. P. 4i/„-6 JC, these three on the lake; Krone (PL c ; B, 2); Schiff
(PL b ; C, 2) ; Adler (PL f : B. 2). — Numerous Lodgings. — Wixe Rooms.
necht, Miinster-Str. (PL B, 2 ; with beds) ; Schcipfle, Obere See-Str. (PL B, 2)

;

Anker, Landungs-Platz (PL B, C, 2). — Restaur.\nts. C'hristophs-Keller,
corner of Christoph-Str. and Graben-Str. (PL B. 2): Seef/arten. Untere
See-Str. (PL B, 2; with l)eds) ; SalmansioeHer Hof. Franziskaner-Str.
(PL B. 1, 2).

Uberlingen (1345 ft.), an ancient town of Baden with 4550
inhab., frequented for its lake-baths and mineral spring, was once

a free town of the empire. Considerable remains of the old forti-

fications have been preserved, as well as numerous old buildings,

especially of the late 15th century. The Rathaus (PL C, 2) has a

rustica fagade ; the council-chamber, by Jakob Kuess (1494), contains

*Wood-carvings, including 39 statuettes (about 1 ft. high) represent-

ing the various elements of the German empire. The adjacent

Miinster-Kirche (PL B, C, 2), a 14th cent, basilica, with double

aisles added in 1429, contains a carved high-altar ])y Jurg Ztirn

(1613-34) and a fine 'Sakramentshauschen" (p. 170) of limestone ex-

ecuted in 1611, probably by the same master. Tickets of admission

to the choir (50 pf.) from the verger, Turm-Grasse 283. In the rich

treasury is a pax of ebony and silver, an Augsburg work of 1606.

The old Stadt-Kanzlei (PL C, 2), in the Miinster-Platz, has a fine

portal of the late 16th century. The Municipal Collections (PL

C, 1), in an old patrician liouse of the late 15th cent., comprise

antiquities and natural history objects (adm. daily 8-12 and 2-6;

20 pf.). The municipal gardens (PL A, 2, 1), with tlie Vhland-
Hohe and the Galler-Tarm, are wortli a visit.

Excursions. To the W. is tlie old Sil cester-Kirchlein (mural paint-
ings of the late 10th cent.?), near Gohlbach. Farther W. are the (i/.^ hr.)

Heidenlocher. mentioned in Scheffel's novel 'Ekkehard' ; on the hill

(1740 ft.) is Schloss Spetzgart, now a sanatorium, near which is a Glacier
Mill. — To (1/2 hr.) the 'Spetzgarter Tobel. — To (3/^ hr.) the Eodinger
Tobel, a picturesque ravine with waterfalls, near the station of Sussen-
miihle (p. 97).

Railway from Uberlingen to Constance or Lindaii, see pp. 97, 98.

The Steamer from Coxstaxce to Friedrichshafen (comp.

p. 91) usually calls at Meersburg (p. 92 i; on the left lie the island

of Mainau (p. 92) and in the distance t^berlingen (see above). Far-
ther, on the N. bank, appear the village of Hagnau (S; Hot. zum
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Adler), Ibe castles oi Kirchberg and Hei^rsberg, and the village of

Immenstaad (S). Then Manzell, where Count Zeppelin bnilt his

first airship hangar in 1899.

Friedrichshafen (S & R). — Plan, see p. 93. — Kailway Stations,

see p. 52. — Hotels. ^Kiirgarten-Hotel (PI. a ; B, 2), by the lake, 300 yds.
from the town-station, -'/'g M. from the harbour-station (motor-omn.)". R.
21/2-9, B. 11/4. D. 31/21 P- 8V0-I5 JC, with view -terrace: Deutsches Ham
(PI. f ; B, 2), with garden on the lake, R. 2-4, B. 1, D. 2-23/^, P. 6-8.^,
good ; Lamm (PL c ; B, 2), R. l^l^^^l^ Jt, B. 80 pf., D. 11/2-^ -«. Buchhorner
Hof (PI. d; B. 2), both with gardens on the lake; Drel Konige (PI. e;

C, 2), bv the Rathaus ; See-Hotel (PI. b ; C, 2), at the harbour, R. I1/2-3 ^H,

B. 90 pf. ; Sonne (PI. g; C, 2); Seehof {V\. h; B, 2). — Dr. Hufler's Sana-
torium (PI. B, 2). — Restaurants at the harbour-station, with terrace,
and at the town-station (D. 1-2 ^^).

Lake Baths (Pl.B, C, 2; June-Oct.), S. of the town-station (45 pf .).

—

Inquiry Office at Lineke's bookshop, Friedrich-'Str. 53.

Motor Boats ply between the harbour and the Schloss (15. there
;uid back 20 pf.).

Friedrichshafen (1320 ft.), a busy town with 7050 inhab.. was
founded by King Frederick I, of Wurtemberg (d, 1816), who united

Buchhorn, the little 'imperial city', with the monastery of Hofen,
founded the harbour, and gave the place its modern name. — A little

\V. of the harbour is the Rathaus (PL 2; C, 2), built in 1907 and
adorned on the S. side with a fresco by Brandes (Homage to Fred-
erick I.). In front is the Zepjjelin Fountain (1909). Farther

W., in the Karl-Str., are the Collections of the Bodensee-Verein
(PI. 1, C 2; adm. daily 10-12 und 2-6, 30 pf.), comprising natural

history objects, antiquities from lake-dwellings, Zeppelin souvenirs,

etc. — The main street of the town is the Friedrich-Str. (PI. C-A, 2),

adjoined on the S. by gardens stretching to the lake-side. The fine

Siadt-Garten (PL C, 2) affords a view of the lake and the Alps

(indicator). A little to the E. is a monument to Emperor William I,

A road is now being constructed along the lake-bank from the

harbour-station to the Kurgarten-Hotel. — At the W. end of the

town is the Schloss (PL A, 2; adm. 20 pf.), the old monastery of

Hofen (see above), rebuilt in 1824-30 and now the summer residence

of the king. Its chapel contains stucco work by Schmuzer. The
beautiful garden is open in summer (mid-April to mid-Oct., 9-6;

20 pf.). — About 10 min. N. of the town-station is the Riedle Park,
with a view of the lake and the Alps. To the W. of it are the works
of the Zeppelin Airship Co., erected by public subscription in

1908 (no adm.). — To the E. of the harbour is the Meteorological

Station (PL D, 2), opened in 1908.
Railway from Friedrichshafen to Stuttgart, see R. 8 ; to Constance or

Lindau, see R. 14b. Steamer to Romanshorn and Rorschach, see p. 91.

The Steamer to Lindau (p. 91) passes Eriskirch (S&R; p. 98)

and Schloss Montfort (p. 98) and reaches Langenargen (S&R;
p. 98). Soon Kresshronn (S) appears on the left; 1^4 M. to the S.E.

lies Nonnenhorn (R; p. 98). We next pass Wasserhurg (S & R;
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see below), the finely ^'liuiii^ii Bad Schachen (S; see below), and

Enzisweiler (R; see below), and reach —
Lindau (S & R). - See the Inset -Plan, p. 91. — Hotels (often

overcrowded in summer). *Bayerischer liof (?\. a), near the harbour and
station, E. 3-7, B. 1 ,^ 30 pf., L. 3-4, D. 31/2. P- 8-10 JC. — Reutetnann
(PI. b), R. 21/2-4, P. 6-7 JC, Lindauer Hof (PI. c), R. 1 ^ 60 pf.-8 JC,

Helvetia (PL e) , R. 1 ^ 80 pf.-3 JC. good, these three at the harbour;
Krone (P\. d), Lndwig-Str., R. lV>-2, P. 5-6i/ij .^; Peterhof [VX. g), corner
of Karolinen-Str. and Schaf-Gasse, R. 1 ^ 80 pf.-3 JC : Sonne (PI. f),

Reichs-Platz, R. 11/2-21/2. B. 1=^; ChristUchea Vereinshaus (PI. h), Paradies-
Platz, R. 1-21/2 ^. — Restaurants. Seegarten (PI. i : also beds), near
the harbour; Schiitzengarten, on the ramparts by the Romer-Turm, with
view. — Wine at Freifs, Maximilian-Str. .56. — Lake Baths on the N.W.
side of the town (30 pf.), and at the military baths on the E. side.

Lindau (1320 ft.), a free imperial town from 1275 to 1803, now
a Bavarian town with 6620 inhab., lies on an island in the Lake of

Constance, and is connected with the mainland by the railway-

embankment (p. 98) and a wooden bridge 355 yds. long. On the

qnay is a bronze statue of King Max II. (d. 1864), by Halbig (1856).

At the end of the E. pier is a lion (20 ft. high) in marble, also by
Halbig, and on the opposite pier a lighthouse (110 ft. high; ticket

40 pf., at the custom-house). The E. pier is adjoined by the Romer-
schanze, which commands a view of the Alps from the Scesaplana

to the Sentis (indicator). In the Reichs-Platz is the Meichs-Brunnen,
by Thiersch and Riimann (1884). The handsome Bathaiis, painted

both back and front, was erected in 1422-36, remodelled in the

German Renaissance style in 1578, and restored in 1885-7. On the

upper floor is a collection of antiquities (open 9-12 and 3-5, Sun.

10.30-12 and 3-5; adm. 30 pf., for two or more pers. 20 pf. each;

entrance at the back). In the j\Iaximilian-Str. (Nos. 56-58) are the

Brotlauben, picturesque arcades. The Peters-Kirche (now a gran-

ary), to the N.W., contains faded frescoes of the early 16th century.

View from the Diebs-Turm, close by (key at the Rathaus). — In

the N.E. part of the town is a relic of a tower of the Boman Wall
(inscription).

Excursions. Beautiful view from the (^/^ hr.) //oierbe?**/ (1495 ft.),

reached either„by the path along the railway, or by the road from the
Land-Tor via Aschach to the hamlet of Hoiren, at the foot of the vine-
clad hill. Restaurant and belvedere at the top. Return via Enzisiceiler
(Pens. -Rest. Enzisweiler) and Schachen (Zum Schlossle). — Pleasant walk
on the W. bank of the lake (crossing the railway-embankment, and to
the left) to the (3/^ hr.) charmingly situated Bad Schachen (steamer in
summer; Kurhaus, R. 2-31/2, P. 5 V^ 20-6 ^ 80 pf . : lodgings from 5 ^HC

per week per room), with mineral and lake baths. Near it (5 min.) is

the Lindenhof , with a park, hot-houses, etc. (adm. 1 JC). Thence we
skirt the lake via Tegelstein (to the left the finely situated Schloss
Ahcind) and Mitten to (3/^ hr.) Wasserhurg (Hot. zur Krone, with terrace,
Aicheler Garden - Restaurant , both on the lake), a small town with a
Schloss and church, situated on a peninsula. Return by steamer (p. 94)
or railway (p. 98).

Railway from Lindau to Munich, see R. 35; to Constance, see R. 14b;
to Bregenz (2 hrs.' walk), see p. 98. — Steamer to Rorschach, Romans-
horn, and Constance, see p. 91.



96 Hoide 14. BREGENZ. Lal^:e of Constance.

From Liudau the steamer proceeds in 25 min. via Lochaii (E;

Kaiser -Strand -Hotel, first-class, with a garden and baths in the

lake to —
Bregenz (S & K). — Hotels. *Montfort (PI. a ; B, 2), E. 21/2-0,

B. 11/2^. "^Europe (PI. b ; B, 2), E. 2-4, B. 1 iC 20 h, both at the station

;

Osten-eichischer Hof (PI. c; B, 2), at the harbour, E. 3-4, B. 1 ^ 20 7i;

Weisses Kreuz (PI. d : B. 3), Eomer-Str. ; Post (PI. e ; C, 2), at the harbour

;

Krone (PI. f ; B, 3) ; Hot. Bahnhof (PL q : B. 2. 3) ; Loice (PI. n : B, 2). —
Eestauraxts. Sporthaus (PI. A, 2), on the promenade, often with band
in the evening; Central (Pilsen beer), Anton-Schneider-Str. (PI. B, C, 2). —
WixE EooMS. F. Kinz, Kirch -Str. (PL B, 3); Altdeutschc Weinstiibe,
at the Hot. Bahnhof (see above).

Bregenz (1300 ft.), an Austrian town of 10,000 iuhab., capital

of the Yorarlberg, is charmingly situated at the E. end of the lake.

Fine views from the gardens on the lake-side, beyond the railway

(Sporthaus, see above;. The Museiun (PL B, 2; adm, 60 h or 50 pf.)

contains natural history specimens, Roman antiquities, etc. The
upper town (Obere Stadt; PL C, 3, 4), of irregular quadrilateral

shape, situated, on a hill, occupies the site of the Roman castrum

oi Brigantium^ which commanded the road from the Alpine passes

of Gfraubiinden to S. G-ermany.

Passing the parish-church (PL B, 4; we may ascend in ^ 4 hr. the

*Gebhardsberg (1970 ft,), with the ruins of the castle of Hohen-
bregenz, a small church, and an inn. Fine view of the lake, the

valley of the Rhine, and the Alps of Appenzell and Glarus.

The *Pfander (3490 ft.), to the E. of Bregenz, commands a

more extensive view (mountain-railway projected). From the Geb-

hardsberg it is ascended in 1^ 4 hr. From Bregenz the footpath

(2 hrs.) passes the hill of Isel (rifle-range and restaurant) and the

farm of. Weissem^eute, to the left; it then ascends to the right (white

way-marks) through woods via Hintermoos and the Hotel Pffiader-

dohle to the Hotel-Pension Pfdnder, 5 min. below the summit.

The road (2^/2 brs.; carr.- and -pair there and back 20 K) leads

via Fluh (p. 314), with a pretty view. From the Pfander to the

Scheidegg, see p. 314.

From Bregexz to Bezau, 25 M., railway in 2 hrs. (2 ^60, IK 70 h).—
The line (Bregenzerwaid-Bahn) follows the picturesque valley of the
Bregenzer Ach. — 21 M. Schicarzenberg (2085 ft.; rail, restaurant), a

summer resort (Hot. Hirseh , Adler) 21/2 M. to the X. of the station, at

the foot of the Hochalpele (4815 ft. ; 21/4 hrs.
;
good view). — 25 M.

Bezau (2135 ft. ; rail, restaurant). A road (omn. twice daily in 3 hrs.)

leads hence to (121/2 M.) Schoppernau (2755 ft.: Hot. Krone); thence by
road to (1 hr.) the sulphur-baths of Hopfrehen (^3350 ft.), and then by a

cart-track ascending rapidly to the (IV4 br-) Schrocken (4135 ft. ; Peter's
Hotel, good), a hamlet situated in a depression surrounded by steep
mountains.

From Bregenz to Weiler, see p. 314

.

Eailway from Bregenz to Lindau and Constance , see E. 14b ; to

Innsbruck, see Baedekers Eastern Alps. — Steamers on the Lake of Con-
stance, see p. 91.
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b. Railway from Constance to Lindau (Brefjenz).

64 M. Express in 3 hrs. — Tickets are partly valid by steamer also,

and vice versa (see p. 92). The quickest route is to take the steamer to

Unteruhldingeu.

From Constance to (12V 2 ^^O Badolfzell, see pp. 89, 88. — 17 M.
JStahriugen (p. 88). — Beyond (SO'/, M.) Espasingen the line ap-

proaches the Uberlinger See and skirts the bank of the lake to

(221 2 M.) Ludwigshafen (Hot. Adler, R. l*/2-2i/2 ^/l, B. 80 pf.,

D. V/2 ^fl). Opposite, on the 8. bank (motor-boat in 10 miu., 15 pf.),

lies Bodman (Hot. zur Linde;, with a view-tower; the Boden-See

is said to derive its name from the Carlovingian palace that once

stood here, the foundations of which may be inspected. — 25 M.
Sipplingen, a finely situated market-town, with the ruin of Hohen-
fels (35 min. N. of the station) and (5 min. farther on) the view-

point of Haldenhof (2215 ft.; rfmts.). — 26 M. SilssenmUhle,

1/2 hr. X.E. of which is the village of Hodingen (Hodinger Tobel,

see p. 93).

The station of (28 M.) Uberlingen (p. 93) lies 10 min. W. of

the town. — The line passes through a tunnel 1 M. long to (29 M.)

Uherlingen-Osthahnhof 2in^ skirts the bank of the lake to (30^ 9 ^^O
Nussdorf. We then leave the lake. — 33' 2 M. Oheruhldingen.
Branch-line to (1^ 2^^) TJnteruhldingen (S). — 36' 3^^- Mimmen-
hausen -Neufrach.

From Mimmenhacsen-Xeufrach to Frickingex. 5 M., branch-line in

21 min. — 2 M. Salem (1445 ft.; Hot. Schwan). About V4 hr. W. is the
old Cistercian abbey of that name, now partly occupied by- Prince Max
of Baden, with large halls (the 'Kaiser-Saal' in the baroque style), a
collection of paintings, etc. The Gothic *Church, completed in 1414, was
lavishly adorned in 1774-94 with classical alabaster sculptures (26 altars).— 31/2 M. Leustetten-Heiligenherg. About 31/., M. to the E. of the station
(one-horse ^arr. 4-5 JC, per day 10 JC : short-cuts for walkers, 1 hr.) is

the village of Heiligenberg (Hot. Post, R. 1 ^« 20-2 .^ 50 pf., D. 2 JC,

good; Winter, R. I1/2-2 c-«, B. 8U pf., D. Vj^-i^jo, V. 4.JC 80pf.-6^),
with the large Schloss and park (always open) of Prince Fiirstenberg,
picturesquely situated on a rocky terrace 1000 ft. above the Lake of
Constance (2"3y0 ft. above sea-level). The Schloss (2nd half of 16th cent.)
contains a magnificent Ritter-Saal, 115 ft. long and 33 ft. broad, with a
beautifully carved wooden *Ceiling (ca. 1550), probably the finest Renais-
sance ceiling in Germany. The chapel (begun in 1586; restored in 1878-82)
and the well-house in the court are also noteworthy. Splendid view of
the lake and the cliain of the Vorarlberg and Swiss Alps, from the Hoch-
vogel to the Jungfrau, best from the 'Sieben Linden'. Vt hr. from the
village. A similar view is enjoyed from the flower-garden, on the left
of the road to the castle; also from the Freundschafts-HohJen

,
grottoes

Vi hr. N.W. of the Hotel Post. From Heiligenberg to Pfullendorf, see
p. 88. — 5 M. Frickingen, a village with 800 inhabitants.

42 M. Markdorf, with 2000 inhab., 1 hr. N. of which is the

Gohrenberg (2475 ft.; views). — 46 M. Fischbach, near which are

remains of lake-dwellings.

49 M. Friedrichshafen (p. 94;.
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The line skirts the lake, aflfording fine glimpses of the Appenzell

mountains. — 53 M. Eriskir'ch. We cross the Schmsen. — 55V2 M.

Langenargen (Hot. Wocher zum Lowen, Strand-Hotel zum Schiffj.

On a tongue of land to the right stands Schloss Montfort. — The

Argen is crossed. — 58 M. Hemigkofen-Nonnenhach. — 59 M.
Nonnenhorn (Hot. Engel), a prettily situated Bavarian village. —
60^/2 M. Wasserburg, station for the village to the right (p. 95). —
62 M. Enzisweiler (p. 95). We cross the railway -embankment

(600 yds. long) to —
64 M. Lindau (rail, restaurant; p. 95).

From Lindau to Bregenz, 7 M., Au.sti'ian State Railway in 15-21 min.
(custom-house examination at Lindau). — We cross the embankment and
skirt the lake (fine views of the lake and the mountains in the back-
ground). — 2 M. Lindau-Reutln. — 41/2 ^- Lochaii (p. 96). — 7 M.
Bregenz (rail, restaurant, good; p. 96).
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Route Page
15. From Frankfort to Wiirzburg (Munich) 101

FromFiankfurt-Ostbahnhof toHanau 107. —From Kabl
toSchollkrippenlOT.— FromAschaffenburgtoMayence.
to Hoehst im Odenwald, and to Seckach 111. — From
Miltenberg to Wertheim 112. — From Lohr to Wert-
heim 112. — From Gemiinden to Elm 113: to Haramel-
burg and to Scbweinfurt 114. — The Spessart 115.

16. Wiirzburg 117
17. From Wiirzburg (Berlin) via Heilbronn to Stuttgart , 126

From Mockmtihl to Diirzbacb 126.

18. From Frankfort via Wiirzburg to Ratisbou (Vienna) . 127
From Kitzingen to Schweinfurt 127. —• From Neumarkt
to Dietfurt 128.

19. From Wiirzburg to Heidelberg 129
From Laiida to Wertheim 129.

20. From Leipzig via Bamberg'and Nuremberg to Munich 131

a. Via Saalfeld 131

b. Via Hof 132
From Plauen via Eger to Wiesau 132. — Bad
Steben 133. — From Hof to Eger 133. — Dobra-
berg 133. — From Lichtenfels to Banz 135. — From
StruUendorf to Schllisselfeld and to Ebrach 136. —
(Irafenberg 138. — From Roth am Sand to Gredingl39.

21. From Wurzburg to Bamberg. Kissingen 140
From Seligenstadt to Yolkach 110. — From Schwein-
furt to Kissingen Itl. — Booklet and Bad Briicke-
nan 141. — From Briickenau to Jossa and to Wild-
fiecken 145.— From Kissingen to Meiningen 1-15. From
Neustadt to Bischofsheim and to Konigshofen 145.

22. Bamberg ' 145
23. From Neuenmarkt via Bayreuth to Weiden. The

Fichtel-Gebirge
' 151

From Bayreuth to HoUtVld and to Warniensteinach 151.

24. Franconian Switzerland 159
25. Nuremberg 163

From Furth to Cadolzburg 189. — From Xureraberg
to Esclieuau 189.

26. From Nuremberg \\k Schnabelwaid to Eger 189
27. From Nuremberg via Nordlingen to Augsburg .... 191

From Nordlingen to Dombiihl 192. — From Donau-
worth to Neu-Oflingon and to Treuchtlingen 194.

28. Ratisbou and the Walhalla 202
29. From Ratisbou via Ingolstadt (Augsburg) to Donau-

wOrth ^ 211
From Saal to Kelheim and the Befreiungs-Halle 212.
— Valley of the Danube, Weltenburg, Altmiihl-Tal 213.
— Pfahl-Graben 214. — From Ingolstadt to Augs-
burg 214.
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Route Page

30. From Wiirzburg (Frankfort) via Ansbacli and Ingol-

stadt to Munich. Rothenburg 215
From Steinach toXeustadt an derAisch 21tj; to Rothen-
burg 217. — From Eichstatt to Kinding 226. ~ From
Ingolstadt to Riedeuburg 227.

31. From Stuttgart to Munich 227
From Mering to Weilheim 228.

32. From Leipzig via Hof and Ratisbon to Munich .... 228
From Wiesau to Baruau 228. — From Neustadt to

Eslarn 229. — From Nabburg to Oberviechtach 229.
—

• From Landsbiit to Landau and to Xenmarkt an der
Rott 232.

33. Munich 233
a. Karls-Platz. Frauen-Kirche. Marien-Platz. S. i^art

of the Inner Town 245
b. Lenbach-Platz. Maximilians-Platz. Maximilian-

Strasse. Grerman Museum 249
c. Royal Palace. Hof-Clarten 254
d. I>udwig-Strasse. Schwabing 259
e. Crlas-Palast. Basilica. Glvptothek 261
f. N.W. Quarters. Old and New Pinakothek 267

g. National Museum. Schack Gallery. English Garden 290
ii. W., S., and E. Quarters. Nymphenburg 299
i. Environs of Munich 303

34. The Starnberger See and Ammer-8ee. The Hoher
Peissenberg 305

35. From Munich to Lindau .* 308
From Kauferiug to Scbongau 308. — From Buchloe to

Augsburg and to Memmingen 309. -- From Kempten
to Isny and to Reutte (Partenkirchen) 312. — Stuiben
312. — From Imnieustadt to Ober.stdorf 312. - - (rriinten

312. — From Sonthofen to Reutte 312.

36. From Munich to Fiissen (Hohenschwangau) and via the

Fern Pass to Imst 314
Neu-Schwansteiu 316. — Stuiben Falls 318.

37. From Munich via Partenkirchen to Innsbruck .... 319
Partnach-Klamm, Yorder-Graseck, Kreuzeck 320. -

Hollental-Klamm, Bader-See, Eib-See. Zugspitze 321.
— From Garmisch-Partenkirchen to Reutte 321.

38. From Munich via Linderhof to Fiissen 322
a. Via Oberammergau 322
b. Via Oberau 324

39. From Munich via Kochel to Mittenwald. Walchen-See 325
a. Isar-Tal Railway from Munich to Kochel 325
b. From Munich via Tutzing to Koch^ and Mittenwald 327

40. From Munich to Bad Tolz and Mittenwald 328
From Bad Tolz to the Walchen-See 329. — Through
the Riss-Tal to the Achen-See 330.
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Route Page

j
41. From Munich via Tegernsee and the Achen-8ee to

i Jenbach (Innsbruck) 330

I

42. From Munich via Schliersee to Bayrisch-Zell and Kuf-

i

stein
' 333

Wendelstein 333.

43. From Munich via Rosenheim to Kufstein 334
i

From Munich to Rosenheim via Holzkirchen 335. --
!

AVendelstein 335.

44. From Munich to Salzburg and Reichenhall 336
a. Via Rosenheim 336

Chiem-See 386. •— From Traiinstein to (larching and
to Reichenhall 337.

b. Via Miihldorf 338
From Miihldorf to Burghausen 338.

45. From Reichenhall to Berchtesgaden. Konigs-See . . . 341
Grotzenalm .343. — From Berchtesgaden through the
Ramsau to Reichenhall 844. — Wimbach-Klamm,
Watzmann 344. — From Berchtesgaden to Salzburg
345.

46. From Munich via Simbach to Linz 345
47. From Nuremberg to Furth (Prague) 345

From Neukirchen to Weidcn 34fi. -- Hoher Bogen
347.

48. From Ratisbon to Passau 348
From Straubing to Cham 349. — From Passau to

Thyrnau and to Breitenberg 354.

49. From Rosenheim via Muhldorf and Plattliug to Eisen-

stein (Pilsen) 354
From Neumarkt an der Rott to Passau 355. — From
Gotteszell to Yiechtach 356. — From Bayrisch-Eisen-
stein to Pilsen 358.

50. The Bayrischer Wald and the Adjoining Part of the

Bohmer-Wald 358
I. W. Portion: Osser, Bohmisch-Eisenstein, Arber . 359

II. E. Portion: Rachel, Lusen, Dreisessel 362

15. Prom Frankfort to Wiirzburg (Munich).
841/2 M. Railway. Express in 21/4-8 hrs. (11 Ji 40, 1 Jt &0, 4 ^ 80 pf.),

ordinary train in 41/4-51/4 hrs. (10.^ 40, & JC 60, A JC 30 pf.). To Munich,
see p. 215. As far as Aschaflfenburg we travel by the Prussian State Rail-
way, beyond that by the Bavarian State Railway. — Fast trains also
run from Frankfort (Ost-Bahnhof) via Mainkur (p. 107) to Hanau, with
connection for Wiirzburg.

Frankfort.
Railway Stations. Haupt-Bahnhof (?\.G, A, 5), with good restau-

rant: Ost-Bahnhof (PI. I, 3). for the trains to Hanau via Mainkur
(p. 107). — Cabs, see p. 102 (luggage-cabs 20 pf. extra).

7*



102 Route 15. FRANKFORT. Practical Notes.

Hotels. Xear the Hatjpt-Bahnhof : *IIdt. cVAngleterre (PI. c ; C, 4),

R. 6-12, with bath 10-18. B. 2. L. or S. ^^l^JC; *Carlton Hotel (PL n:
C. 4), R. 6-8. with hath from 10. B. is/^. L. or S.5 JC.— *n6t. de Russi'e
(PI. k; C, 5), R. 3-7. B. li/o, D.A^l^JC; "'Bristol (PL v; C, 4, 5), R. 3V2-7,
B. 11/2, D. 31/2-5 JC; *Monopol & Metropole (PL t; C, 5). R. 2V2-IO, B. 11/4,

D. 23/4-31/00^: Continental (PL m ; C, 5). R. 21/2-IO, B. I1/4, D. 21/2-4^;
*&r.-H6t. National (PL 1; C. 5) . R. 21/.2-6 , B. 1 .4 20 pf., D. 31/., c^;
*Deutscher Kaiserhof (?\. h; C, 5), R. & B. 4-7 Ji; Royal (PL x; C, 4', 5);
Germunia (PL q; C. 5) ; Kolner Hof (PL s, C, 5 ; no Jews), R. 2-31/2,

B. 1 ^. — Hospiz Savoy Hotel (PL ; C, 5), R. 2-8, B. IV4. D. 2-31/2 -«.•

Baseler Hof (Christliches Hospiz: PL r, C 5), R. 2-5, B. 1^.
In the Town: *Frankfu7^ter Hof (PL a; E, 4), Kaiser-Platz, R. from

6. with bath from 10, B. 13/^, L. or S. 41/2-7 JC. — '^Imperial (PL' p ; D, 3),

Opern-Platz, R. 4Vo-18, B. 11/2, D. 31/2-5 c^; Palast-Hotel Fiirstenhof (PL b :

D, 4), Gallus-Anlage 2; *Schivan (PL d; E, 3), Theater-Platz. R. from 31/.,,

B. 11/4, D. 31/2^; ^^Union (PL f ; E, 3), Steinweg 9, R. 21/2-5, B. 1 .i, 20 pf.,

D. 3-31/2^; Drexel (PL i ; G, 3), Grosse Friedberger Str. 18-20, commercial

;

Ulmann (PL g; E, 4), Bethmann-Str. 52: Salzhans (PL e; E, 3), Am Salz-

haus 4, R. & B. 3 .«.

"Wine Restaurants. *Kaiser- Keller, Kaiser- Str. 29 (first floor),

D. 21/2-31/2 JC: *Ratskeller, in the Romer (p. 103), D. BJC: ^Malepartus,
Grosse Bockenheimer Str. 30 (PL E. 3) ; L. Bernhard, Grosser Korn-
markt 10 (PL E, F, 4), H.IJC 70-3 .«'50 pf. ; Pfeil, Alte Rothof-Str. (PL
E, 3). — Beer Restaurants. *Kaiser-Keller (see above); Kyffhduser,
Kaiser-Str. 62 : *Alemannia. Schiller-Platz 4 (PL E, 3) : *Kaiserhof, Goethe-
Platz 5 (PL E, 3) ; Falstaffi^l. z ; E, 3) : Zum Faust, in the Sehauspielhaus
(PL E, 4); Elsasser Taverne, Bieberger-Str. 10 (PL E, 3); Stadt Ulm,
Schafer-Gasse 9 (PL F, 3, 2). — Automatic Restaurants in the Zeil,

Kaiser-Str., etc.

Caf^s. Rumpelmaijer. Gallus-Anlage 2 (PL D, 4); Buerose, Bahnhofs-
Platz 12 (PL C. 4, 5^; Hanpticache (PL E, 3): Bauer, Schiller- Str. 2-4

(PL E, 3, 2); Bristol, Schiller-Platz 5-7 (PL E, 3).

Cabs. First zone (greater part of the town): 1-2 pers. for 800 metres
50 pf., each 400 m. more 10 pf. : 3-4 pers. for 600 m. 50 pf., each 300 m.
more 10 pf

.
; at night (11-6) 400 m. 50 pf

.
, each 200 m. more 10 pf.

Luggage, 25 pf. for each article over 22 lb. — Motor Cabs. First zone:
1-2 pers. for 600 m., or 3-5 pers. for 500 m., 60 pf. (electric motor-cab
80 pf.). each 300 or 250 m. more 10 pf. : at night for 300 m. 60 pf.

(electric 80 pf.), each 150 m. more 10 pf. Luggage as above.

Circular Drives throusrh the town twice daily, starting at the
Haupt-Bahnhof (4 ^).

Tram'ways, see the Plan. The chief centres are the Bahnhofs-Platz
(PL C,4, 5), the old Hauptwache (PL E, 3), and the Opern-Platz (PL D, 2, 3).

Theatres. Opera House fPl. D, 2. 3); Sehauspielhaus (PL E, 4);
Neiies Theater (PL C, 4). — Schumann -Theater (PL C, 4), Bahnhofs-
Platz, for variety performances.

Post & Telegraph Office, in the Zeil (PL F, 3). — Inquiry Office
(Yerkehrs-Yerein), Bahnhofs-Platz 8 (first floor).

Baths. Stddtisches Schwimmbad (PL G, 3). — River Baths in the
Main (PL G, H, 4; F, 4; D, E, 5).

Art Exhibitions. Frankfurter Kunst-Verein (PL E, 3), Junghof-
Str. 8 (open 9.30-6, Sun. and holidays 10.30-1; adm. 1 cS); Bangel, Kaiser-
Str. 66; Schyieid^r. Rossmarkt 23"; Hermes, Goethe-Str. 37.

British Consul- General, E. Beit von Speyer , Taumis-Anlage
(PL D, E, 4). — American Consul- General, Richard Guenther,
Schiller-Str. 20 (PL E, 3. 2).

English Church (Victoria Memorial: PL C, 2), Staufen-Str. ; ser-

vices at 8, 11, and 6: chaplain. Rev. R. S. Kendall, Gruneburg-Weg 153. —
American Church Service at 11 a.m. in the Hotel Imperial.



.Goethe's House. FRANKFORT. lo. Route. 103

Chief Sights (one day). Rossmarkt, Goethe-Platz, Goethe's House,
Romer, Cathedral, Stadel Art Institute, Senckenberg Natural History
Museum, Palmen-Garten.

Frankfort on the Main (300 ft.), German Frankfurt am Main
,

with 436,000 inhab,, on the right bank of the Main, was formerly

a free town of the empire and first appears in history in the reign

of Charlemagne. It is now the head- quarters of the 18th army-
corps and the seat of numerous scientific institutions. It has long

been one of the most important commercial centres of Germany.
The old part of the town, which is surrounded with promenades,

has numerous public buildings and private houses of the 15th-18th

centuries. The finest residential quarter is the AY. end. Sachsen-
hausen, on the left bank, which is connected with Frankfort by five

bridges, has important fruit-culture.

The principal approach from the imposing Haupt-Bahnhof
(PI. C, 4, 5; 1883-8) to the inner town is the busy Kaiser-Strasse.

At the point where it crosses the Gallus-Anlage rises a conspicuous

clock-tower; on the right are a, Bismarck Monument, by Siemering

and Manzel 1 1908), and the Schauspielhaus iPl. E, 4). The Kaiser-

Str. ends at the Rossmarkt (PI. E, 3), in the W. half of which rises

the Gutenberg Monument, a fountain with statues of Gutenberg,

Fust, and Schofter, designed by Ed. von der Launitz (1858).

The Goethe-Platz (PI. E, 3), which adjoins the Rossmarkt on
the X., has a Goethe jSIonnment, by Scliwantbaler (1844). — At
Xo. 23, Grosser Hirschgraben, is ^Goethe's House (PI. E, 4),

where the poet spent his boyhood (1749-65; open 8-1 and 3-6, in

winter 9-1 and 3 till dusk. Sun. 10-1 ; adm. 1 ^^). The house has

been restored to the condition in which it was after the alterations

made in 1755. The passage in the courtyard leads to the Goethe
Museum, with portraits and souvenirs.

To the N.E. of the Rossmarkt lies the Scbilh-r-Platz (PI. E, 3),

witb the old Ilaaptwache (now a cafe) and a statue of Schiller

by Dielmann (1863). Here begins the Zeil (PI. F, G, 3), the chief

business street of Frankfort, with fine shops and the General Post

Office (1892-4). Farther on, in the Neue Zeil, to the left, are the

Police Head-Quarters (Polizei-Prasidium; PI. G, 3), beyond which
are the Laiv Courts (Justiz-Palast: 1884-9).

In the Pauls-Platz is the Panls-Kirche (PI. F, 4; adm. 20 pf.),

a rotunda built in 1833, where the German parliament of 1848-9

held its meetings. In front of it is the Union Monument (1903). —
To the E. is the Romerberg (PI. F, 4), with the Justifia Fountain,
erected in 1543 and renewed in 1887.

The *R6m.er (PL F, 4) is the name now applied to the town
hall, which consists of a group of twelve old houses and various

new buildings. On the first floor of the Romer proper, on the Romer-
berg, is the Kaiser -fSaal, with modern portraits of tiie emperors
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from Charlemagne to Francis II. (open on week-days 8-7, Sun. 8-1,

in winter 8.30-5, Sun. 8.30-1; free on Mon. and Wed., at otlier

times 50 pf.; tickets in the court).

To the S. of the Romerberg is the Nikolai-Kirche, erected in

1290 and rebuilt in 1842-5 ; on the altar is a Resurrection by Rethel.

— A few steps to the S. are the Benten-Turm (1455). a relic of

the old town-walls, and the Saalhof iVl. F, 4), probably occupying

the site of the Carlovingian palace. — The Catholic >S'^ Leunhards-
Kirche (PI. F, 4) was begun in 1219 aud completed in 1507; the

late-Gothic choir dates from 1434.

The Alter Markt (PL F, 4) leads from the Romerberg E. to

the cathedral. Xo. 44, on the left, is the Steinenies Haas, a

(iothic building of 1464. Xo. 5 is the Goldene Wage, of 1624,

with fine skylight gratings.

The *Catliedral Dom: Catholic; PI. F, 4;, a Gothic church

with nave aud aisles of equal height, was rebuilt in 1235 on the site

of a church founded by Louis the German. The choir dates from
1315-38, the trausept from 1346-53. The German emperors were
crowned here. After a fire in 1867 the church was restored by
Denzinger, when the "W". tower (310 ft. high) was completed. The
paintings in the nave and on the "W. wall of the transept are after

Linnemauu aud Steinle. To the right of the high-altar stands the

beautiful monument of Emperor Giinther von Schwarzburg (d. 1349j.

To the S. of the cathedral are the Manicipal Archives (PL F, 4),

built in 1877 by Denzinger, and the old Leiiiwand-Haus, dating

from the 14th cent, aud rebuilt in 1902. The latter contains the

*Muaicipal Historical Museum (open free on Sun., Tues., Wed.,

aud Fri. 10-3; at other times 50 pf.).

The Kaiser-Briicke (PL G, 4) was begun in 1914 on the site of

the old Main bridge. — The quay on the right banli of the river,

flanked with lofty houses, is called the Schone Aussicht. At Xo. 17

the philosopher Arthur Schopenhauer lived from 1843 to 1859. At
the upper end is the Tov-n Library (PL H, 4), with 360,000 vols.

At the foot of the staircase are a marble statue of Goethe by Mar-
chesi (1838) and busts of other Frankfort celebrities.

To the N.A\^. of the library lies the Borne-Platz, with a Syna-
gogue (PL G, 3). In the Borne-Str., formerly the Juden-Gasse, is

the Ancestral House of the Bothschilds (Xo. 26, to the right), re-

stored in the original style.

To the X. of the Zeil lies the old Peters-Kirchhof, with the

Protestant Beters-Kirche (1893-5), a War Monument for 1870-

71, and the graves of Goethe's parents (PL F, 2).

The Hessian Monument (PL G, 2), outside the old Friedberger

Tor, was erected by Frederick William II. of Prussia to the Hessians

who fell in 1792 in the attack on Frankfort, then occupied by the
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French, Behind it is Beihmanu^s Museum fPl. G, 2; open 10-1

and 3-5, Sun. and in winter 11-1; f^ratuityi, containing Dannecker's

famous sculpture * Ariadne on the panther (1814j. — In the P'ried-

berger Anlage (PI. G, H, 2, 3) is the Heine Monument, by Kolbe

(1913). The Neiv Synagogue (PI. H, 3i is a curious building by
Jiirgensen and Bachmann (1905-7; custodian Friedberger Anlage 5,

gratuity). — A little to the E. are the Zoological Gardens
(PI. I, 2, 3; adni. 1 c./^^), with assembly-rooms, a restaurant, and a

sea-water ac^uarium (50 pt"'.).

From the S.W. corner of the Rossmarkt (p. 103) the Grosse

Gallus-Str. leads to the old Taunus-Tor. To the left is the house

(No. 19) in which Bismarck lived when Prussian ambassador to the

Diet in 1852-8. In the Neue Mainzer Str., to the right (No. 49),

is the *Kunstgeicerhe-Museum (PL D, 3), an admirable collection

of industrial art (open Tues.-Sat. 10-1 and 3-5, Sun. 10-1; adm.
50 pf.. Sun. and Wed. free; illus. guide 50 pf. . In the Juughof-Str.

are (Xos. 19-20) the Saalbau, for concerts and balls, and (Xo. S)

the Franl-furter Kunst-Verein (p. 102\
In the Opern-Platz rises the magnificent Opera House (PI. D,

2, 3), built by E. Lucae in 1873-80 in the Italian Kenaissance style,

with a handsome staircase and foyer. The mural paintings were

mostly designed by Steinle, — Opposite, in the Tauuus- Anlage,

is an equestrian monument of E)nperor William I. (PI. D, 3), by
Buscher (1896).

A little to the E. is the Neue Borse i^Pl. E, 3-, built by Burnitz

and Sommer in 1879, with a fine Renaissance hall (business-hours

12-2». To the N.E. is the round Eschenheimer Turm, built in

1400-28, the finest of the few gate-towers still extant. In the Grosse

Eschenheimer Str., leading to the Schiller-Platz (p. 103), is 'No. 26)

the old Palace of Prince Thurn and Ta.ris (PI. F. 3i, seat of the

German diet from 1816 to 1866, and now an ethnographical museum
(open free on Sun. 10-4 and Tues.-Sat. 11-1; at other times 50 pf.}.

At the old Bockenheimer Tor begins the Buckeniieimer Land-
strasse (PI. D-A, 3, 2 . On the right is the Fothschild Park- (PI.

D, 2). Farther on the Konigsteiner Str. leads to the right to the

Wesfend - Sgnagoge (PI. 0, 1), a lofty building with a dome, by
Roeckle (1911). Near the end of the Bockenheimer Landstrasse,

on the right, is the approach to the *Palinen-Garteii (PI. B, 1;

adm. 1 o/^; band 4-6 and 7.30-10). witli tine gardens, hothouses,

and a restaurant.

No. 7 in the Viktoria- AUee is the *Senckenberg Natural
History Museum (PI. A, 2), with important collections of palseon-

tology and zoology. It is open free on Sun. 10-1 (1st Sun. in the

month 3-5 also). Wed. 10-1 and 3-5, and Sat. 3-5; adm. 50 pf. on
Tues.-Sat. 10-1. — In the long HohenzoUern-Platz is the municipal

Fesf-Halle (PI. A, 3), with room for 18,000 persons.
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The *Stadel Art Institute (PI. E, 5) occupies a handsome
Italian Renaissance building (by 0, Sommer; 1874-8) on the Schau-

main-Kai, in Sachsenhaiisen. Its valuable picture-gallery includes

important works of the early-Flemish schools (15th cent.), the Dutch
masters of the 17th cent., and the Italian masters of the Renais-

sance, and many modern works, mainly of the 'Nazarene' and early

Diisseldorf schools. The municipal collection of modern paintings

is also housed here temporarily. The gallery is open free on Sun.

11-1 (1st Sun. in the month 10-3), Wed. 11-3, and Tues., Fri., and

Sat. 10-1; adm. 1 ^ on Mon. and Thurs. 10-1; at other times 2^^,
on application at Diirer-Str. 2. Catalogue 50 pf.

Grouxd Floor. To the left of the vestibule aie the Library, the
Draicings , and the Engravings (adm. Tues. -Sat. 11-1, also Wed., Fri.,

and Sat. 5-7). To the right is the Municipal Gallery; also sculptures
and German paintings of the early 19th century.

First Floor. The Dome Room, with a bust of Stadel, divides the
gallery into the older (W.) section and the modern (E.) section.

W. Half. Room IX (lighted from above) and the adjoining cabinets
contain Netherlandish works of the 17th century. Room IX: on the right,

182. Rembrandt, Margareta van Bilderbeecq (1633) ; 245. <S'. van Ruysdael,
River landscape; *642. Rembrandt, Blinding of Samson (1636); *683.

Rubens, Aged gentleman: 241. J. van Goyen , Haarlemmer Meer; 174,

173. Frans Hals, Portraits of a man and woman (1638); 157a. D. Teniers
the Younger, Consultation; 149. A. Brouwer, Bitter medicine.

Cabinets YII-IV. 215. J. Steen, Tavern scene: 148, 147. A. Bromcer,
Operations on peasants; 205b. Adr. van Ostade, Pig-killing.

Corner Room III. Xetherlandish works of the 15th-16th centuries.

102. Master of FlemaUe, Trinity (grisaille ; see below) : School of Dirck
Bouts , Vision of the Emperor Augustus ; 120. Roger van der Weyden,
Virgin with SS. Peter, John the Baptist, Cosmas, andDamian; *98. Jan
van Eyck, 'Madonna of Lucca'; Master of FlemaUe , 103. St. Veronica,
104. Madonna and Child (together with No. 102 parts of a large altar).

Room II (lighted from above). Italian works of the 15th-16th cent-

uries. 22a. Correggio, Madonna; 13. Bart. Veneto. Half-length portrait
of a girl: Moretto, *41. Madonna enthroned, *45. Madonna with tlie four
Latin church-fathers; *668. Palma Vccchiu, Jupiter and Callisto.

Corner Room I. Italian works of the lltli century.
Cabinet VII and tlie adjoining- room on the riglit. German works of

the 16th century. 71. Hans Holbein the Younger. Sir George of Corn-
wall; A. Dii.rer , 85. Portrait of a woman (,1497), 83. Job's sufferings;
T. Riemcnschncider, Sandstone statue of the Madonna; *655. L. Cranach
the Elder, The 'Princes' Altar' from Torgau (1509).

E. Half. Room XXI (lighted from above). Italian and Spanish works
of tlie 17th-18th centuries. 57. Velazquez, Cardinal Borgia; 690. Tiepoln,
Patron-saints of the Grotta family.

Room XIV (lighted from above). Frescoes and paintings of the 'Xazarene'
school. 416. Ph. Veit, Arts introduced into Germany bj- Christianity.

Corner Room XV and Cabinets XVI -XX. Modern works. In the
corner-room: 37. G. C'ourbct, The wave; 641. 01. Monet, Houses by tlie

water; 39. C. F. Daubigny , Tim orchard; 662. C'.C'orot. Summer land-
scape. In the cabinets: 620. Leibl, Peasant and girl; 3. M. Liebermann,
Courtyard of the orphanage at Amsterdam; 6. K. Spitzweg, Hermit; 458

n

and t. Lenbach, Portraits of Moltke and Bismarck: 458a. .4. Feuerbach,
Lucretia: 530. Bocklin, Villa liv the sea: 612. Spitziceg. Trout-stream;
35. J". iVil/iZZet, Portrait.

Cabinet Series XII and Cabinet XI. Frankfort works of tlie 17th
century. - Coinei' Room XIII. Holzhausen Collection (portraits).

Selumj Floor. Frankfort works.
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The Villa Liebieg, on the Schaumain-Kai, S.AV. of the Stadel Art

Institute, now contains the Municipal Sculpture Gallery {V\. D, 6j,

comprising medi?eval and Renaissance works from Italy, France,

and Germany; also a collection of antique sculptures, incl. a

*Statue of Athena after Myron. Adm, as for the Stadel Art Institute.

Soon after leaving the Haupt-Bahnhuf (p. 101 j we cross the

Main. — 3 M. FrankfurtSudhahnhof, for Sachsenhausen (p. 103).

— 41 2 ^^- Oberrad. — 6 M. Offenbach (Hot. Kaiser Friedrich,

Stadt Cassel, Degenhardt), a manufacturing town with 75,600 inhab.,

founded by French refugees at the end of the 17th century. Its

leather goods rival those of Paris, Vienna, and Berlin. Numerous
old houses in the Herren-Str. The old Schloss of Prince Isenburg,

on the Main, built in 1572, has a noteworthy facade and now con-

tains a museum of natural science. Branch-line to (3 M.) Frankfurt-

Ostbahnhof ip. 101). — 10 M. Milhlheim. To the left, on the Main,

is the village of Rnmpenheini, with a Schloss of the Landgrave of

Hesse. — 13 M. Klei)i-Steinheim. We cross the Main. — 14^/3 M.
Hanau-Ostbahnhof (rail, restaurant).

From Frankfurt-Ostbaunhof (p. 101) to Hanau, 11 M., railway in

26-40 min. — On the right, on the opposite bank of the Main, lies Offen-
bach (see above). — 3 M. ^laiukur.— 6M. Hochstadt-Dornigheiin. — 81/2 M.
Wilheliusbad (Kurhaus), witli a tine park and a piieasantry. — We
cross tlio Kiiizig to (10 M. ) Hanau-Westbahnhof. — 11 M. Hanau-Osl-
hahnh,>f.

Hanau (315 ft.; Hot. Adler, Ricsc, Posts a town with 34,400
inhab., lies in the fertile region of the Wetteraa. The modern part

of the town, to the S., owes its origin to Flemish and Walloon Pro-

testants, banished in 1597. Of their handicrafts, the manufacture

of gold and silver ware still flourishes; large diamond-cutting

works. In the market-place of the ucav town is a monumeiit to the

brothers Jacuh (1785-1863) and Wilhclm Grimm (1786-1859),

natives of Hanau, by Eberle (1896).
From Hanau to Ebcrbach and Stuttgart, sec R. 1; to Fuhhi and

Bcbra (Leipzig, Berlin), see Baedeker's Xortheru Gertnaui/.

To the right lies Gross-Steiuheim, on the left bank of the

Main, with a watch-tower with five turrets. — 17^ 2 M. Groa.s-

Krotzeiihnnj. to the right on the Main, occupies the site of a fort

on the Limes (p. 214), with remains of Roman ramparts. The ridge

to tlie left is tlie Halmenkamm (see below).

19' 2 ^I- Kahl (365 ft.; Hot. Krone, Lambertus), a manufactur-

ing village, near the confluence of the Kahl and the Main.
From Kahl, to Schollkrippkn. ll>/a M.. loeal railway in l'/* It. --

'I'lie line ascends the bank of the Kahl. — 3 M. Atzenau (410 ft. : Hot. znr
Post; pop. 2250), with a Schloss now occupied by law-courts. About
1 hr. E. is the Ludicigs-Turm on the Uahnenkamm (1435 ft.; rfmts.), a

"VV. spur of tljc Spessart (p. 115), with a tine view. Descent to Aschaffen-
bury, see p. 111. — We now enter tlie Knhlqnmd, a pretty Avonded valU'>'.

— 'J'/o M. j\ldiiibris-Mtninnga>iisd (Hoi. zum Karpitn). — Beyond [II M.)
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Konigshofen an der Kahl tlic Klosterberg (1260 ft. : views) appears on the
right. — 141/2 M. Schollkrippen (Hot. Post), a prettily situated village.

Pleasant walk (3 hrs.) via Vorm>cah7 to the (I1/2 hr.) forester's housu
Xani Engldnder (rfmts. on Sun. and Thurs. afternoons), with deseent to

Jakobstal and through the Lohrbach-Tal to (IV4 hr.) Heigenbriicken
station (p. 112). About 20 min. S. of the forester's liouse is the Steig-

koppe (1640 ft. ; extensive view).

At (21^/2 M.) DettiiiAjen the British, Hanoverian, Austrian, and

Hessian troops, commanded by King George II. of England, defeated

the French on June 27th, 1743. — 28' 2 M. Aschaffenbtny (rail,

restaurant'-.

Asehaflfenburg.

Hotels. Adlcr (PI. a; B, 2), Stricker-Gasse U, R. 1 ^/C TO-:; Ji 50 pf.,

B. 1, D. 2-31/25 oniu. 1/2^, good; LidtpoM (PI. b; B. 1), near the station;
Kaiserhof (PL c; B, 1), Erthal-Str. 16. E. 2-6, B. 1 c^; Georgi (V\. d;
B, 1), near the station; Frdnkischer Hof (PI. e; B, 1), Ludwig-Str. 17;
Witfelsbacher Hof (PI. f ; C, 1), Frohsinn-Str. — Beer Restaurants.
Frohsinn (PI. 5). Bavaria- Brauerci, both in the Weissenburger Str.

(PI. B, 1); Giegerlch, Friedrich-Str. (PI. B, C, 1, 2). — Wixe Rooms.
Stiftskeller, Dalberg-Str. l.S (PI. B, 0, 3); DormuJil , Sand-Gasse 41
(PI. C, 2, 3). — IsquiRY Office of the Verkehrs-Verein, Bahnhofs-Platz 9.

Aschaffenhurg (430 ft.), with 30,300 inhab., pleasantly situated

on the lofty right bank of the Main at the AY. verge of the Spessart

(p. 115), belonged to the Archbishops of Mayence from about 982,

but in 1814 was annexed by Bavaria. It has numerous frame-houses

and factories of coloured paper, clothing, and metal-ware.

The jS", side of the inner town is skirted by i^romcnades, con-

taining the Ludiuiys-Brmiueu (PI. 3; B, 2) and a War Monmneut
(P1.1;C,2).

Above the Main, on a substructure 60 ft. In height, rises the

*E,oyal Palace (PL B, 2), a building 280 ft. square, with four

corner-towers 195 ft. in height. Originally known as the Johannis-

biinj, it was built in 1605-14 by Georg Eiedinger of Strassburg in

the Renaissance style and was for two centuries a favourite resi-

dence of the Electors of Mayence. It now accommodates the

library and picture-gallery. On the N.W. side of the fine courtyard

(entrance on the S.E.) is a 14th cent, watch-tower.
The Library (open on Wed. and Sat. 11-12) contains 30,000 printed

vols., 54 MSS., and 20,000 engravings. Among the MSS. are the Mayence
Book of the Gospels (13th cent.), with famous miniatures ; the Halle Book
of Saints (1520), with 3-44 illustrations ; the missal (1524) and prayer-book
(1531) of the Elector Albert ef Brandenburg, the former with miniatures
by Nikolaua Glockendon (p. 168), the latter illuminated by Glockendon
and Hans Sehald BeJiam : the MS. of Schiller's William tell, with his

autograph dedication to the chancellor Karl von Dalberg (1804). The most
valuable of the 165 incunabula are Gutenberg's 42-line Bible and the

Mayence Catholicon of 1460.

The ^Picture Gallery (300 works), founded in the 18th cent., con-

tains excellent Netherlandish and a few good early-German paintings.
It is open on week-days 10-12 and 2-5 (in winter 2-4), Sun. 10-12; adm.
25 pf. ; bell in the courtyard, beside the S.E. archway. Visitors are

escorted by an attendant (20 min.). Catalogue (1902) 30 pf.
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Room I. Early-German masters. To the right, 17. L. Cranach the
Elder, Christ and the adulteress (studio-piece) ; Hans Cranach (the so-

called Pseudo-Grmietvald), 19, 20. Mass of St. Gregory, 24. Mary Mag-
dalene, 26. St. Erasmus, 25. St. Martin, 23. St. Maurice, 18. Martj'rdom
of St. Erasmus (1516), 22. The holy kinship. All these pictures are from
the abbey-church, some with the arms of the Elector Albert of Branden-
burg. 16. Hans Baldung Grien, Crucifixion.

Room II. Flemish, Dutch, and late-German masters. To the right,

128, 129. Corn. Huysmans, Mountain landscapes ; 132. Jac. Jordaens.
St. Augustine; 218. P. Lastman (Rembrandt's teacher), Daughter of
Herodias; 209, *208. Corn, de Heenu Fruit; 188. A. Cm/j). Horseman.—
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232. C. Netscher, Young cavalier (1680) ; 239. Rembrandt, Resurrection
(original at Munich) ; 179. Nic. Berchem, Gtipay camp ; 192. J. A. Duck(?).
Looting; *206. Jan van Goyen, The Yalkhof at Nvnnvegen (1646). —
164, 165. Corn, de Vos, Man and wife; 217. W. A'ai/T," Still-life. — Also,
distributed on the walls, 196-205. A. de Gelder, Scenes from the Passion.

Room III. Chiefly Italian masters. 273. Bart. Manfrcdi, Tomyris
;

281. Seh. Ricci, Assumption. — Room IV. Various schools. 242. H
Saftleven, Mountain landscape (1641) ; 248. Adr. van de Velde, Two horse
men; Paul de Vos, 167. Bear-hunt, 166. Boar-bunt; 147. Rubens, Boar
hunt (original at Dresden).

Room V(&VI). Netherlandish School. 222. P.Mohjn, Rustic festival:
*252. Ph. Wouverman, Horseman at a tavern (youthful work); 159. D.
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Teniers the Elder, Guard-room (copy?); 107. Fr. Francken the Younger,
Bearing of the Cross; 207. J. D. de Heem, Still-life; *181. N. Berchem,
Rocky landscape ; 257. Jan Wynants, Road across the dunes ; 233. Adr.
van Ostade, Cottage interior (1639); 190. G. Doh(?), Dentist; 24=6. Jan
Steen(?), The young savant (1653).

Room VI. 231. Eglon van der Neer, Conversation-piece ; 141. P. Neeffs
the Younger, Church interior; 193. A. van Everdingen, Mountain land-
scape ; 253. Ph. Wouverman, The skirmish ; 226. P. Moreelse, The flute-

player (1636) ; 216. L. de Jongh, Man reading by the fire ; *43. Ad. Els-
heimer, Evening landscape, with Christ on the way to Enimaus ; *238.

Rembrandt, Ecce Homo (1661) ; 65. Matthias Scheiis, Midday meal. —
RoomYII. Chiefly Netherlandish masters. *2J:1. Sal. vanBmjsdael,C?Lnal
scene (1639); 117. W. Gabron (CI. Heda?), Still-life; 236.' Ja?i Pynas,
Raising of Lazarus (1609); 168. Seb. "Tra^ica-, Soldiers looting; 282. Sal-
vator Rosa, Warrior resting.

Adjoining Room I is the Large Banqueting Hall, with pictures by
Schiitz (Views of Mayence) and J. Courtois (Battle and Siege). — The
Small Banqueting Hall contains pictures by Paolo de Mattels, etc. — lu
the Chapel are an alabaster altar and pulpit in the late-Renaissance style.

To the N.W., ou the bank of the Maiu, beyond the Schloss-

Garten (key at the palace or the hotels), stands the Pompeianum
(PI. A, 1; open daily 9-12 and 2-6, in winter 2-4; adm. 25 pf.),

erected by King Louis I. in 1842-9 in imitation of the 'House of

Castor and Pollux' at Pompeii, and adorned with mural paintings.

In the Schloss-Gasse, to the S. of the Schloss, is the Pfarr-
Kirche or Church of Our Lady (PI. B, 3), rebuilt in 1768-75,

with ceiling-paintings. The only relic of the original church is the

fine tower, begun in the Romanesque style, with an upper story of

ca. 1220-30 and a late-Gothic steeple.

The Dalberg-Str. leads to the left from the S, end of the Schloss-

G-asse to the Stifts-Platz, v>'hence a double flight of steps (16th cent.)

ascends to the *Stifts-Kirche, or Abbey Church of S/S. Peter &
Alexander (PL B, C, 3), a Romanesque basilica founded in 973
and rebuilt in the 12th-13th centuries. It possesses a beautiful W.
gallery and transitional transepts and choir. Of the two towers the

Gothic S. tower only has been completed. On the X. side are fine

transitional cloisters and the late -Gothic Maria -Schnee-Kapelle,
built by Cardinal Albert of Brandenburg and dedicated in 1516.

Above the main portal is a late-Romanesque relief, representing

Christ between SS. Peter and Alexander.
The Interior (sacristan Stifts-Gasse 1, on the X. side; adm. 50 pf.,

for a party 30 pf. each) was skilfully restored in 1870-81. In the nave are

a handsome late-Renaissance pulpit (ca. 1590) and several Renaissance
tombs, incl. (left: 6th pillar) the tomb of Gcorg von Liebenstein (d. 1533)

and (right; 7th pillar) the brass of Melchior von Graenroth bv Hieron.
Hack (1581). — At the W. end of the left aisle (X.), above "the steps
leading to the Maria-Schnee-Kapelle, is a large painted Crucifix (early
13th cent.) ; the chapel itself contains a Christ in Hades and a Resur-
rection by L. Cranach the Elder, and, behind the altar, two wings (SS.

Martin and George) and the base of the original altar-piece (1519) by
M. Grilneioald, who was probably a native of Aschaffenburg. In the 2nd
chapel is a bronze canopy by Hans Vischer (1536), on which stands the

gilt coffin of St. Margaret. Farther ou in the left aisle is the carved
altar of the fourteen 'Xothelfer' (p. 135; early 16th cent.). —At the W.
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MILTENBERG. lo. Route, m
end of the right aisle (S.) is the large alabaster monument of Friedrich
con ErthaL Elector of Mayencc (1774-1802); farther on is tlic Magdalene
altar, with an alabaster relief by J/. Kern (early 17th cent.); then, on
the last pillar, a St. Valentine by Hans Cranach ('Pseudo-Griincwahr)

;

opposite, on the right, is a Pieta by M. Griineicald (predella: ca. 1518-20).
— In the choir is tiie tine bronze Renaissance monument of Cardinal
Albert of Brandenburg (d. 1545), Elector of Mayence, cast in 1525 by
Peter Viscker the Younger: opposite is the brass of Margarete Riedingcr,
with a relief of the Madonna by Ha)i>< Viacher (15.30).

The old abbey-buildings, adjoining the churcli on the left, contain

the Museum (open free from April to Oct. on Sun. 10-12 and Thurs.

•2-3.30; at other times on application to the curator J. Friedrich,

Bader-Gasse 24, PI. C 2), which comprises minerals, Roman and

Frankish antiquities, and mediajval and modern objects of art.

Pleasant walk through the Schon-Tal (PI. C, 2) and the (Vi br.) FascDi-
erie to the Schmerlenhacher Wald. Also through the Schon-Tal and the

LudwifjS-AUee to the (^/^ hr.) Biichelberg (880 ft. ; view-tower: refuge). —
On the left bank of the Main, 3/^ hr. W., is the ScMnbusch, a royal park
with a villa and orangery; restaurant at the entrance to the park. Station,
see below\ — Pleasant walk N". via the (IV2 br.) Johamiesberg (1255 ft.) to

the (I1/2 hr.) Licdicigs-Turm (p. 107). — To the Spessart, see p. 115.

From Aschaffexburg to Mayence, 46i/.2 M., railway in lV2-2V2hi"s.--
Xear (oV-i M.) Stockstadt , on the site of a Limes fort (p. 214), we cross the
Main. — 8V2M. Bahenhausen. junction for Hanau and Eberbach (p. 32). —
2BM. Darmstadt, and thence to (46V2 ^I-) Mayence, see Baedeker'' s Rhine.

From A.schaffenburg to Hocust im Odenwald, 2OV2 M. , branch-
line in 1V2"2 hrs. — The line sweeps round the town in a wide curve.

On tlie left is the Fasanerie (see above). — 2 M. Aschaff'enburg- Siid

(see below). Then across the Main. — 41/0 M. Schonbusch-Nilkhehn,
near the royal park (see above). — 13 M. Momlingen , 41/2 M. to the
N.W. of Obernhurg-Elsenfeld (see below). — We ascend tlie Mi'nnlhit/-

Tal to (I71/2 M.) Neustadt im Odenivald (Hot. zum Ochsen), dominated
by tlie large, partly preserved castle of Breuberg (1005 ft.; restaurant ,

with a fine stucco ceiling of tlie early 17th centurj'. — 2OV2 M. Hochst im
Odenwald (p. 32).

From Aschaffexburg to Seckacu, i'd^l-.M., railway in 3-3'/., brs. —
To (2 M.) Aschaff'enbiirg-Snd, see above. Tlien along the right bank of
tlie Main, through a fertile region rich in vines.— 51/2 M. Sidzbach, station
for the picturesque Bad Sodental (470 ft. ; Kurhaus), 3'/2 M- to the E.,

with springs containing iodine and bromine. Thence to Rohrbrunn, see

p. 115. — 11 M. Obernburg-Ehcnfeld (110 ft.), at the mouth of tlie Elmim-
Tal. Railway to Heimbuchenthal, see p. 115. The little walled town uf

Obernburg (Hot. Hirsch, R. IV2-2 JC) lies on the left bank of the Main,
on the site of a Roman fort on the Limes (p. 214). One of the towers
contains a collection of Roman antiquities. — Short of (15 M.) Worth
the train crosses the Main. — 16 M. Klingcnberg (385 ft. ; Hot. Ochse,
well spoken of; Frankischer Hof) ; the small town, with its ruined castle,

lies in a picturesque gorge on the right bank. Via Streit to Eschan
(p. 115), IV2 hr. ; via Rollbach to (6 M.) Mdnchberg (p. 115), motor-umn.
in ^V.! hr. (60 pf.). — 18'/2 M. Laudenbach (Hot. Krone, Anker), witli a
Schioss and park. — 21 M. Klcinheubach (Hot. Loweusteiner Hof), with
a Schioss of Prince Lowenstein-Wertheim-Rosenberg (remains of a Roman
fort at the entrance to tlic park ; chapel witli frescoes by E. Steinle). On
tbe opposite bank lies Grosshcitbach, 20 min. S.E. of which is the high-
lyvjig Franciscan convent of Engelsberg, with a pilgrimage-church. About
V2 hr. S. of Kleinlieubach arc the Heunen-Saulen (p. 112\

23 M. Miltenberg (425 ft. ; Hot. zum Riesen, R. &B. 21/.2-3 JC; Lamm,
near the bridge; Rose, near the station), an old-fashioned little industrial
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town of 4000 inhab., extends for some way between the river, which is

spanned here by a new bridge, and the hills on the bank. It has several

old frame-houses, some of the 16th cent., including the Hotel zum Riesen.

Roman antiquities in the bridge-tower. Above the town is the old Castle

of the Electors of Mayence, built in the 13th-16th cent., destroyed in

1552, and rebuilt in recent times. In the vicinity are important quarries

of red sandstone, known to the Romans. In the woods, 3/4 hr. W. of

Miltenberg. are the Hain-Saulen or Heunen-Sdulen, sandstone columns,

remains of a quarry of the Roman period, which seems to have been sud-

denly abandoned. A marked path leads thence to (31/2 trs.) Michelstadt

(p. 32). Railway from Miltenberg to Wertheim, see below.

Farther on in the Mudbach-Tal is (28 M.) Amorbach (545 ft.; Hot.

Post, R. IV2-2V2 -*' Badischer Hof, R. IV2-2 </«) , a small town with
2300 inhab., the residence of the Prince of Leiningen. The abbey-mill

and other Grothic edifices in the town should be noticed. The old Bene-
dictine abbey, dating from the 17th-18th cent., now serves as the prince's

estate -office. The library (1790) and the cloisters are especially note-

worthy. The Protestant abbey-church, originally Romanesque but rebuilt

in 1742-7 by M. von Welsch, is tastefully fitted up in the rococo style,

with stucco-work by Feichtmayer and Cbelher and ceiling-paintings by
G-iinther (fine organ). Omn. daily from Amorbach via Ernstthal (Hot.

Prinz Ernst) to (13 M.) Kailbach (p. 31). Preferable for pedestrians is

the path (red way-marks) via the (1^/2 hr.) fine Romanesque ruin of

Wifdenburg or Wildeiifels (ca. 1200); thence to Ernstthal, 13/^ hr. From
Amorbach to Michelstadt, see p. 32.

371/2 M. Walldilrn, with 3800 inhab. and a pilgrimage-church. Branch-

line to (6 M.) Hardhelin, with 2100 inhab. and two castles, the upper of

which (ieth cent.) is well preserved, while of the lower (15th cent.) only

the keep survives. — 491/2 M. Seckach (p. 130).

From Miltenberg to Wertheim. 21 M., railway in IV2 hr. — The
line crosses the Main to (1 M.) IIlltcubercj-Nord and follows the right

bank through the fertile and wooded valley. — 2 M. Biirgstadt, on the

left bank.
' On the Wamienberg, to the E., are an ancient Germanic

rampart and a Roman quarry. — 5i/., M. Freudenberg (Hot. Rose), on

the left bank (bridge), a picturesque little town of Baden, with the ruins

of a castle of the 12th-15th centuries. — 81/2M. Reistenhansen-Fechenbach.
We pass large sandstone-quarries and the ruined KoUenberg. — 11 M.
Dorfprozeltcn. — 13 M. Stadtprozeltcn (Hot. Adler), with a picturesque

Schloss of the Schenks of Klingenbcrg. destroyed by the French in 1688.

To Rohrbrunn, see p. 116. — Then via (15 M.) Faulbach and (17 M.)

GrUnemcorth to (18 M.) Hasloch (p. 116), whence we fullow the left

bank of the Main to (21 M.) Wertheim (p. 113).

Beyoml Aschaffenburg the Wiirzburg Hue (comp. the Map,

p. 115) ascends via (33 M.) Hosbach and (35^/2 M.) Laufach and

penetrates the Schwarzkopf by a tunnel. — 40 M. Heigenbrucken

(910 ft.; Hot. Lowengrube, Hocbspessart). About IV4 hr. KW.,
beyond Jakobstal, is the Steigkoppe (p. 108). Via Lichteuau or

Echterspfahl to Rohrbrunn, see p. 116. — The line enters the

higher regions of the Spessart (p. 115), winds through the wooded

and grassy Lohrbach-Tal, and runs across bridges and through

cuttings in the red sandstone.

52 M. Lohr (rail, restaurant) , on the Main , 20 min. X. of the

town (p. 113).

From Lohk to Wertheim, 23 M.. railway in IVj hr. — The train

descends the plea.-3aut valley of the Main, following the right bank of



toWurzburg. OEMt)NDEN'. in. Hotite. 118

the winding river (Map, see p. 115). — I1/4 M. Lohr-Stadt. Lohr (560 ft.

;

Hot. Post; Hirsch, in the market-place, R. IV2 <^; Krone, near the church,

R. IV2-2V2 «^) is a small town with 5270 inhabitants. In the market-place,
4 rain, from the station, is the Rathaus (1601), with modern upper stories.

The parish-church, 3 min. farther, originally Romanesque, hut altered in the
late-Grothic style, contains tombs of the Counts of Rieneck in the choir.

To the Spessart. see p. 116. — 51/2 M. Neustadt am Main (575 ft.), with
the Romanesque brick church of an old Benedictine monastery. — 91/2 M.
Rothenfels (710 ft. ; Hot. Anker), with a Schloss of Prince Lowenstein-
Wertheim-Rosenberg. To Lichtenau. see p. 116. — 121/0 M. MarJctheiden-
feld (510 ft.; Hot. zur Post), with 2000 inhab., on the left bank of tin-

Main. Road to Wiirzburg (motor-omn.), see p. 126 ; to Rohrbrunn (Aschaffeii-

burg), see p. 116. — bearing (17 M.) Lemifurt-Trennfeld (Hot. Krone.
Brauerei Schedel. both at Lengfurt) w^e see on the right Schloss Triefe)/-

stein (585 ft.), once an Augustinian abbey, now the property of Prince
Lowenstein-Wertheim-Freudenberg. On the left bank are Homburg.
with an old castle on a rock, and the Burkardtcs-Hohle , the cave in

which St. Burkhard (p. 118) died in 754. — Beyond a tunnel is (22 M.)
Kreuzwertheim (Hot. Sonne) , with the Renaissance Schloss of Prince
Lowenstein-Wertheim-Freudenberg. We cross the Main.

2.3 M. Wertheim (475 ft. ; Hot. Held, on the Main, with garden,
R. 1 c^ 70 pf. -3 .^, B. 80 pf., well spoken of; Lowensteiner Hof, at the

station, R. l'/2-2 JC; Badischer Hof. near the Tauber bridge; Lowe, on
the Main, with garden), a small Baden town of 3650 inhab., first mentioned
in 779. It is pleasantly situated at the confluence of the Tauber and the
Main, at the foot of a wooded, ruin-crowned hill. Wertheim is a good
example of a mediaeval town and has remains of town-walls and numerous
16th cent, frame-houses. Turning to the left from the station, we cross
the railway and the Tauber and follow the Briicken-Gasse to the (8 min.)
picturesque market-place, at the S. end of which is the Engels-Brunnen
(1574). Straight on lies the Protestant Parish Church, rebuilt after 1383
in the Gothic style, with a pretty tower. In the choir are tine monu-
ments of the Counts of Wertheim (15th -17th cent.). Opposite is the
pretty two-storied Kilians-KapeUe (1472), containing a collection of anti-

quities (tickets at the Rathaus, 25 pf.). Thence we may ascend in 6 min.
to the ruined Castle (260 ft. above the Main), dating from the 12th cent,

(the lower castle completed in the 15th cent.) and destroyed in 1634.

This was the ancestral seat of the Counts of Wertheim, whose race
became extinct in 1556. Fine view from the terrace (rfmts.) and the
keep. To the Spessart, see p. 116. From Wertheim a railway runs S. to

Lauda (p. 129) and W. to Miltenberg (p. 112).

The Wiirzburg line now ascends the right bank of the Main. --

58^/2 M. Langenprozelten. We cross the Frdnkische Saale. —
61 M. Geraiinden (Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Koppen , Deutscher

Kaiser), a little town of 2400 inhab., lying picturesquely at the

foot of wooded hills, at the confluence of the Friinkische Saale,

Sinn, and ]\lain. Late-Gothic parish-church of 1488. The town is

commanded by the ruins of the Scherenhurg ; from the station we
turn to the left to (12 min.) the Bayerischer Hof, where we obtain the

key to the ruin; thence to the right to (8 min.) the top (fine view).

From Ge.munden to Elm, 28V2 M., branch-line in l-lVa hr. — The
line ascends tlie valley of the Sinn. — 8 M. Burgsinn, with the Xeues
Scliloss (1620). — 141/2 M. Jossa. Branch-line to' Briickenau and Wild-
flecken, see p. 145. — "We next ascend the valley of the Schmale Sinn,
then descend that of the Kinzig. — 24 M. VoUmerz, 1/2 l>r. E. of wliicli

rises the ruined Steckelbnrg, the birthplace of Ulrich von Hutten (b. 1488). —
28'/-- M. Elm (see Baedeker's Xorthern Germany).
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From GtEmdhden to HAiiMELsuKG, 171/2 ^^ railway in 11/2^1. through
the Saal-Tal, with its vines. — 31/2 M. Schonau, with an old Cistercian
nunnery. — 12i/o M. Morlesau. Beyond the Saale is the ruin of Soden-
berg (view).

—
'171/2 M. Hammelburg (595 ft.; Hot. Post, R. from

1^12 JC; Schwarzer Adler, R. I'^l^-^ JC), an ancient town with 2900 inhab.,

is picturesquely situated on the right bank of the Saale. On the opposite
bank, on a wooded hill, rises the ruined castle of Saaleck (925 ft.). To
the S. of the town is a manoeuvre -ground. — From Hammelburg to

(141/2 M.) Kissingen (p. 141 ; railway under construftion) , omn. twice
daily in SV* hrs. Attractive walk (4 hrs.): from Hammelburg along the
right bank of the Saale via Elfershausen to (21/2 hrs.) Aura, with the
ruins of two Benedictine churches (rfmts.); then to the left through woods
to (IV4 hr.) Garitz (Kurhaus and cafe-restaurant), with a dilapidated
17th cent, church and a view; finally down to (1/4 hr.) Kissingen.

From Gemunden to Schweinfurt, 3IV2 M., railway in IV2-2 hrs. —
From (2 M.) Wernfeld (see below) the line ascends the Wern-Tal. —
41/2 M. Gossejiheim, 2V2 M. to the S.W. of the ruin of Homburg. —
12 M. Thungen, with a Schloss. — 171/2 M. Arnstein (Hot. Goldenes
Lamm, Post), with 1700 inhab. and old frame-houses. The parish-church
has a handsome organ -case (ca. 1700). In the vicinity is the church of
Maria-Sondheim, with interesting tombs of the Hutten and Zobel families.

Motor-omn. to Rimpar, see p. 126. — The line leaves the Wern-Tal, and
at (25 M.) Waigolshausen joins the railway from Wiirzburg to (SlVa M.)
Schweinfurt (p. 140).

63 M. Wernfeld (see above). — 69 M. Karlstadt (535 ft.;

Hot. Lamm, R. 11/4-2, D. 1-2 c^), a small town with 3220 inhab.,

is surrounded by walls and tow^ers. Professor Bodenstein, known
as 'Karlstadt', the instigator of the Puritan iconoclasts, was born

here (d. 1541). From the station we walk straight on and then to

the left along the main street to (4 min.) the market-place, with the

Rathaus (15th-16th cent.), which has a double flight of steps and a

stepped gable. The council-chamber has panelling and carved cup-

boards (17th cent.). The Gothic parish-church has a Romanesque
tower and a figure of Christ (13th cent.?) in a niche to the right of

the portal. On the hill on the left bank of the ]\rain is the ruined

Karlshurg (25 min. from the station).

Farther on, to the right, is Laudejibach, with a ruined castle.

— 80 M. VeitshocliheirQ. Opposite the station is a country-

house built for the Bishops of Wiirzburg by Petrini in 1680-82.

The rococo wings date from the 18th century. The royal *Hof-

Garten (restaurant), with a lake and grottoes, ^vas laid out in 1755-9

(sculptures by J. P. Wagner, etc.).

82 M. Wurzhurg-Zell. The village (Hot. zur Rose, Brauhaus)

lies on the opposite bank. Beside it is the old Premonstratensian

monastery of Oberzell, founded in 1128, with a church (originally

Romanesque; restored in 1696) and fine abbey-buildings erected by

J. B. Neumann in 1744-60 (p. 118; noteworthy staircase). — To
the right, near Wiirzburg, is Konig & Bauer's printing-press

factory; farther on, to the left, rises the vine-clad Steinberg (p. 126).

841/2 M. Wurzhurg (p. 117). Thence to Munich, see R. 30.







The SpessaH. HEIMBTJCHENTHAL. 15. Route. 115

The Spessart.

The Spessart, an attractive forest-district noted for its gigantic oaks
and beeches, lies within the bend made by the Main between Gemiinden
and Hanau, and is bounded on the N. by the Kinzig and on the N.E.
by the Sinn. Geologically it consists mainly of crystalline schist and
(to the S.) red sandstone. The S. part (see the adjoining Map) is especially

worth a visit; almost in the centre rises the Geijersberg {1Q20 H.), from
which long hills radiate to the W., S., and E., on the crests of which
we may walk for hours at a time. — The Verein der Bpessart-Freunde,
which maintains and marks the paths, has published a map of the district,

with a key to the way-marks (1 Ji 70 pf.).

From Obernburg-Elsenfeld (p. Ill) to Rohrbrunx: railway

(3rd class only) to Heimbuclienthal, IOY2 M- ^^ V4-I ^^'-'^ thence on

foot in 2^4 lirs. — The line ascends the Elsawa-Tal. — 5 M.

Eschau-Monchherg (580 ft.; Hot. zum Spessart). The village of

Monchherg (Hot. Neuer Ban, Ochse; motor-oiun. to Klingenberg,

see p. Ill) lies 21/2 M. to the S.E. of the station. — 51/2 M.

Sommerau, near the village of Eschau (Hot. Volland). From
Eschau to Klingenberg, see p. 111. Pleasant walk N.E. (red way-

marks) via the ruin of Wildenstein and the (1^/4 hr.) Geis-Hohe

(1705 ft.) to (V2 111'-) Krausenhach (750 ft.; Hot. Hochspessart),

2/4 hr. E. of Wintersbach station (see below); thence up the Damm-
hach-Tal to {Vi^ hr.) Rohrbrunn. -- 81/2 M. Wintershach (Hot.

Lahr, Hammer, Villa Elsawa). The village (Karl Bauer's inn) lies

'4 hr. E. and extends for IY2 ^^- along the Damnibach-Tal. --

IOY2 M. Heimhuchenthal (Hot. Krone). Thence we walk N. to

the (50 min.) Mespelhi'unn (935 ft.; inn, with garden), the ancestral

castle of the Echter von Mespelbrunn family (p. 118). About 5 min.

farther a forest-path, diverging to the right from the route to Ech-

terspfahl (see below), leads E. via the Zeugplatte to the Aschaffen-

burg road, which we follow S.E. to (IVa ln'-) Rohrbrunn (p. 116).

From Asohaffexburg (p. 108} to Rohrbri-xx, 1 5 M. (1) Motor-

omn. from the station once or twice daily in summer in 1^4 hr.

(1 ^ 70 pf.) via the fSVg M.) pilgrim-resort of Hessenihal (Hot.

zur Post), the church of which contains 16th cent, tombs of the

Echter von Mespelbrunn family, and (12 M.) EcJiterspfahl (forester's

house; rfmts.j to Rohrbrunn (p. 116). -- (2) Walkers (6 hrs.)

proceed via Schweinheim and (5^.^ M.) Bad Sodental (p. Ill ; way-

mark red ring) to (3M.) the forester's house of Hohe Warte{\'dO(i ft.

;

rfmts. on Sun.). This point may also be reached in 3^2 hrs. by

following the Wiirzburg road to (2 M.) the first bend; here we turn

to the right, and soon after to the left into the valley; then by

footpaths (white way-marksi, leaving Gailbach on the right. From
the Hohe Warte we descend E. to (^'4 hr.) Neudorf (N. of which

lies Hessenthal, see above) and past the mortuary chapel of the

Counts of Ingelheim to (20 min.) Mespelbrunn. Thence to Rohr-

bruni., see above.
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From Echteispfahl (p. 115) we may walk N. across the hills (blue way-
marks) via the Esels-Hohe to (31/2 hrs.) Heigenbriicken (p. 112).

From Lohr (p. 113) to Rohrbruxx, o^/giirs. A path (yellow

way-marks) leads througli woods via the Yalentinusberg and Schanz-

kopf to (2 lirs.) Lohrerstrasse (simple inn). We descend thence (red

way-marks) through superb forests to (1 hr. S.) Ldchtenaa (785 ft.

;

Hot. zum Hochspessart, good), a summer resort prettih situated

in the wooded valley of the Hafenlohr : thence we walk S.W. via

(IV 2 hr.) the forester's house of Jdgerverein (1680 ft.) to (1 hr.)

Eohrbrunn (see below).
From Lohrerstrasse (see above) a road runs W. to (.31/0 M.) Rothen-

hucJi (1230 ft. : Hot. Lowe), a health-resort in the heart of the Spessart.
From Lichtenau (see above) routes leadX. (white way-marks) to (3 hrs.)

Heigenbr/icken (p. 112): S.E. down the valley of the Hafenlohr to Ei72-

sietiel and Lindenfiirt, where we follow the left slope of the valley high
up, descending finally to (31/4 hrs.) Rothenfels (p. 113) ; W. via Steintor
and the Metzgersgraben (old oaks and beeches) to (I1/2 hr.) Weibersbi'unu
(Hot. zur Spessartsruh), and on to (31/2 M-) Eohrbrunn (see below).

FromWertheim (p. 113) to Rohrbruxx, 4^2 trs. (from Hasloch

3^2 hrs.). We may either take the railway (p. 112) or the steamer

on the Main to Hasloch (see below). Or we ferry across the Main
(2 pf.) to Kreuzwertheim (p. 113) and turn to the left to the road;

20 min. beyond the village we take the path to the left, returning

in V 4 hr. to the road, which we follow to (20 min.) Hasloch (455 ft.

;

Hot. Stern, Krone, Lamm). We now ascend the right bank of the

Haslochbach past a powder-mill to (25 min.) some ironworks, beyond
which we cross to the left bank and follow the stream and lastly

the road W. to (3 hrs.) Rohrbrunn (see below).
From the cross-roads beyond the iron-works (see above) a road leads

to the right to (8/4 hr.) Michelrieth (inn), one of the seven Protestant
villages, formerly belonging to the Counts of Wertheim. whose inhabitants
have retained their characteristic costume ; thence we walk X.W. via Bisch-
brunn to the Torhaus Aurora (see below), and follow the high-road to

(33/4 hrs.) Rohrbrunn.

Rohrbrunn (1520 ft.), on the W. slope of the Geyersherg

(p. 115), in the centre of the S. part of the Spessart, is a summer
resort consisting of two forester's houses and the Gasthof zum
Hochspessart (R. 1 ^ 60, B. 70 pf., P. 3-4 ^). About 10 min.

S.E. is a royal hunting-lodge, behind the forester's house of Diana,
where the wild swine are fed in the afternoon. To the ^T.E. (20 min.)

is the Lii lipoid-Hohe, with a view-tower. About 10 min. S.W. is a

venerable oak, amidst splendid oaks and beeches.
From EohrbruQu we may walk S. via Altenbuch to (31/2 hrs.) Stadt-

prozelten (p. 112 ; way-mark red cross). — A road leads E. from Rohrbrunn
past the Torhaus Aurora fsee above) and Esselbach to (11 M.) Markt-
heidenfeld (p. 113).
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16. Wurzburg.
Hotels. *Kroupriu.z (PI. 1); D, 3), Residonz-T^Iatz, R. 2V2-8 (some

with batlis), B. 1 ,S 30 pf/, D. 4, omn. 1 ^/i ; *Biissif<cher Hof (PI. a ; D, 2),

Theater-Str. 3, with wine and beer restaurant, R. & B. from 3>/2 .,<((; ScJiuau
(PL c; C, 3), Oberer Main-Kai 26, with wine restaurant and view, R.
2i/a-8, B. 1.^20, T>. 2Ji 50 pf., good; Bahnhof-Hotel (PI. k; D, 1), at

the Haupt-Bahnhof, R. 2 ^ 20 pf.-4, B. \,J).1JC 60-2 ^iC 50 pf., P. 61/2-8^^,

good cuisine; Rilqmer (PI. d; D, 8), Max-Str. 9, R. 2i/o-5, B. 1, P. 6-8 c^,

well spoken of; Central (PI. e; C, 2), Schonborn-Str. 8, R. 2-4, B. 1, D. 2-3,

omn. 1/2 <^.' National (PI. 1; D, 1), at the Haupt-Bahnhof, with caf«'-

restaurant ; De/'tscher Kaiser (PI. n ; D, 1), R. 1 ^M. 80 pf.-2, B. 1 Ji, good,
Weiland (PI. m ; D, 1), R. 1 .« 80 pf.-3 .fC, B. 80 pf., D. 1-2 .*;, well spoken
of, Kaifterhof (PI. f ; D, 1), all three in the Kaiser-Str., near the Haupt-
Bahnhof; Sonne \V\. ^: D, 2), Bahnhof-Str. 5, R. &B. 2V2c^, plain but
good; Weisses Lamm, Marien-Platz 5 (PI. C, 3).

Caf^s-Restaurants. Theater-Cafe, at the theatre (PI. D, 2); WitteU-
bach, corner of Kaiser-Str. and Julius-Promenade (PI. D, 2); Alhambra,
Franziskaner-Classe, X. of the Franciscan church (PI. C, 3, 4), D. 1 cA(20pf. —
Confectioners. Zeissner, Tlieater-Gasse 9; Dauch, Dominikaner-Platz 1.

Wine Rooms. At the JnUus-Spital (Pi. C, I), 2
;
p. 122 ; to the left in

tlie enhance), Julius Promenade, open till 9 p.m. onlv (cold viands and wine
in bottle): Zur Kette, Ketten-Gasse 4 (PI. D, 3, 4); 'St. Kilian, Kapuziner-
Str. 11/2 (PI. D, E, 3); Zam Stachel, Gressen-Oasse 1 (PI. C, 3), with fine

court. Good wine in open bottles at manv baker's shops : Brilckenhacl:,
Alte Main-Briicke 9; FisP:alback, Sander -Str. 8 (PI. C, 4): Sternbuck,
corner of Stern -Gasse and Dom-Str. (PI. C, 3); etc. — The best-known
Wiirzburg wines are Leisten, from the Marienberg (p. 125), Stein, from
the Steinberg (p. 126), and Schalksberg. The best sorts are sold in short
l)iilging bottles called "Bocksbeutel'.

Beer Restaurants. Russischer Hof, Bahnliof- Hotel, National.
Detitscher Kaiser, Theater-Cafe, see above; Sandhof (p. 122), Schiinborn-
Str. 3; Klupfel, Innerer Graben 31-33, corner of Julius-Promenade (PI. (',

D, 2); Deppisch, Stern -Gasse 5 (PI. C, 3); Franziskaner. Domerschul-
Gasse 8 (PLC, D, 3); Hofbranhaus-Keller, Hocbberger Str. 6; Kohler's
Keller, Rennweger Glacis-Str. 5. — Atitomatic Restanrant. Doni-Str. 15
(PL C, 3). — Beer Gardens. Huttenscher Garten (PI. 0, .5), Platzscher
Garten (PL E, F, 3), both in the Sander Glacis ; Luisen- Garten, Rennweger
Glacis-Str.

; Nikolausburg, Steinburg, Frankennrirte, see pp. 125. 126.

Cabs. First 1/4 hr. 60 pf., for each 1/4 hr. more 50 pf. ; at night (10-6)

double fares. Luggage (over 22 lb.) 20 pf. for each 55 lb.

Motor Boat" downstream from the Krauen-Kai (PL B, 2) to Veits-
luichheim (p. 114); service upstream from the Oberer Main-Kai (PI. C, 3)

to the Stein bach-Tal and Heidingsfeld projected.

Tramways (no cars after 10 p.m.
;
passengers enter by the front

platform, on the right; fare 10 pf., to be put into the box). 1 (white"!

:

From the Haupt-Bahnhof (VI. I), 1) via the Kaiser-Str., Julius-Promenade,
Schonborn-Str., Dom-Str., Sander-Str., and Weingarten-Str. (PI. D, 5) to

the Heidingsfclder Strasse ^Sanderau). — 2 (red) : From the Haupt-Bahnhof
via the Theater-Str., Residenz-PIatz, Rennweg, Sander Glacis-Str., Sander
Ring-Str., and Ludwigs-Briicke to the Mergentheimer Strasse (PL B, 5\
going on thence (March -Oct.) to the Steiubach-Tal and Guttenborger
Wald. —3 (.blue): From the Wagner-Platz [V\. F. 1) via tiie Ludwig-Str..
Eichhorn-Str. (PL D. C, 2\ Julius-Promenade, and Luitpold -Brii.ke to

Oberzrll ;p. Ill ; l)t.yond PI. A, 3). ^
General Post Office (PL D, 3), Parade-PIatz 4.

River Baths. HilgeVs Schnimmbdder (PI. B, 5), above tlie Ludwius-
Briickc: Wellenbad (PI. C, 3), Main-Kai 3 (with warm baths).

Inquiry Office of the Fremdenverkehrs-Verein, Theater-Str. 4.

Baedeker's S. Germany. 12th Edit. 8
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Chief Sights (1 day). In the morning: Cathedral (p. 121); Palace
(p. 119); Hof-liarteii (p. 120): Luitpold-Museum (p. 120); Marien- Kapelle
(p. 122). In the afternoon: Alte Main-Briicke (p. 124); Kappele and
Frankenwarte (p. 125) or Marienherg (p. 125). returning by the Ludwigs-
Briicke and through the gardens to the station.

Wiirzburg (575 ft.), with 90,000 inhab. (one-fifth Protestauts),

once the capital of an episcopal principality, is the seat of a univer-

sity (1500 students) and of a bishop, and the head-quarters of the

2nd Bavarian army-corps. It is pleasantly situated in the vine-clad

valley of the Main, which expands here into a basin. The older part

of the town, on the right bank, is encircled with fine promenades
and contains several churches and other buildings of the time of

the prince-bishops. The town is dominated by the old fortress of

Marienberg, on the left bank. The industrial products of Wiirzburg

include printing-machinery and beer; it is also the centre of the

Franconian wine-trade.
The importance of Wiirzhurg as the capital of Fraueonia began with

the labours of St. Kilian. apostle of Franconia, martyred liere in 68H
(comp. p. 121). Castellum Yirteburc (p. 125". the oldest part of the set-

tlement, is first mentioned in 701. The first Ijishop was St. Burkanl
(741-754), consecrated by St. Boniface, who removed his residence from
the Marienberg (p. 125) to the right bank of the Main. The bishops soon
attained to great wealth and power, and were created dukes by Emperor
Henry II., a dignity confirmed to Bishop Eerold by Frederick I. in

1168. The efforts of the citizens to shake off the authority of the
bishops were in vain, and although Wiirzburg was recognized by King
"Wenzel in 1397 as a free citj- of the empire, their hopes were shattered by
the Battle of Bergtheim in 1400. Their participation in the Peasants' War
(1524-5). during which the Marienberg was several times assaulted in vain
,by the insurgents, led to the extinction of the last vestiges of liberty.

Julius Echter von Mespalhrunn (1573-1617), the most famous of the prince-
bishops, who relentlessly exterminated Protestantism in 1584-6 with the aid
of the Jesuits, distinguished himself by establishing the Julius-Spital in

1576 and by refounding (in 1582) the university, which had previously
existed from 1402 to 1413. Wiirzburg was occiiipied by the Swedes in
1632-4, but the Swedish garrison on the Marienberg was forced to capit-

ulate in 1635. During the 18th cent, the bishops added many new build-
ings ; the city is especially indebted to the Schonborns [Johann PhiJipp
Franz, 1719-24; Friedrich Karl. 1729-46), under whom flourished the
architect Johann Balthasar Neumann (1687-1753), a native of Eger.
The victory of the Archduke Charles in 1796 freed Wiirzburg only tem-
porarily from the French invasion ; the bishopric was incorporated with
the Bavarian Palatinate in 1803. and from 1806 to 1814 Wiirzburg was the
capital of a grand-duchy of the Rhenish Confederation under Ferdinand
of Tuscany. In 1866 the campaign of the Prussian army of the Main
concluded here with the bombardment of the Marienberg (July 27th). —
In the middle ages (especially in the 14th cent.) Lower Franconia was
the seat of an important school of sculpture, the chief representative of
which was Tihnan Biemenschneider, who lived at Wiirzburg from 1483
till his death in 1531.

From the Bahnhofs-Platz (PL D, 1), with the St. Kilian Foun-
tain (1895) and ^statue of Prince-Regent Luitpold (1903), the

Kaiser-Str. (PL D, 1, 2) and Theater-Str. (PL D, 2, 3) lead to the

(10 min.) Residenz-Platz. The Hanger Pfarr-Gasse, diverging to

the left opposite the Julius -Promenade (p. 122), about half-way,
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leads to the Stift-Hauyer Kirche (PL D, 2), with two towers and

a dome, built in 1670-91 in the baroque style by Antonio Petrini,

who was influenced by the Church of the Gesu at Rome. The interior

is consistently baroque (fine pulpit). — In the Theater-Str., to the

left, is the Biirger-Spital (I'l. D, 2), founded in 1319, which owns
large vineyards.

The quiet and spacious Residen'z-Plat/ (PI. D, E, 3) is bounded
oil the E. by the palace, on the N. by the Rosenhachscher Hof
(now the residence of the provincial president,!, and on the S. by
the Gesaiidten-Ban (now municipal offices^. In front of the palace

is the Luitjiold or Franconia Fountain, by V. von Miller (1894),

with seated figures of Walther von der Yogelweide (p. 122i, Tilinan

Rienienschneider I'p. 118), and Matthias Grilnewald.

The *Palaee (Residenz), formerly that of the prince-bishops,

now belonging to the king, erected in 1720-44 in a free baroque

style by J. B. Neumann, is one of the grandest 18th cent, edifices

of its kind. The huge sandstone building, consisting of a central

structure and two projecting wings, is 280 yds. long, 100 yds. broad,

and 70 ft. high, and contains 5 courts, 5 halls, 312 rooms, and a

chapel. The frescoes of G. B. Tiepolo of Venice, dating from

1751-3, mark the end of the splendid rococo decoration; the stair-

case and some of the rooms in the X. wing ('Ingelheimer Bau'; arc

in the Louis XVI. style, while other rooms were redecorated in the

Empire style by N. A. de Salins in 1807-14. — The rooms on the

first floor are shown daily 10-12 and 2-5 (Oct.-March 2-4), Sun

10-12; adm. 50 pf. ; tickets in the "White Room (see belowi; thi-

visit takes ^ .,-^ 4 hr.

"NVe pass through the portal of the left (X.) wing and in the back-

court enter to the right the spacious Hall (adm. free) of the central

building. The garden-saloon, behind it, on the left, has a ceiling-

painting by Job. Zick (d. 1762). The lofty ceiling of the *Staircasl

is adorned with an immense fresco by G. B. Tiepolo, representing

Olympus and the four Continents.

AVe now reach the apartments on the upper floor. The White
Room, with elaborate stucco ornamentation in the rococo style, is

followed by two anterooms and by eight rooms in the Empire style,

in one of which Prince - Regent Luitpold (1821-1912i was born.

From the corridor we obtain a view to the right of the sumptuous
Chapel, which contains two altar-pieces by Tiepolo (Assumption
and Fall of the Angels). Next come the Banquet Hall and a number
of apartments in the Empire style, then the *j\[irror Room, the

Venetian Room, the Throne Room, and the Reception Room (with

fine tapestry, History of Alexander, continued in the following-

rooms), all in the rococo style. The octagonal Kaiser-Saal, over-

looking the garden, contains three *Frescoes by Tiepolo: Marriage

of Emperor Frederick I. and Beatrice of Burgundy at "Wiirz-



120 Boute 16. WnEZBURGr. Lnitpold-Museum.

burg (1156); Investiture of Bishop Herold (p. 118); on the ceiling,

Apollo conducting the bride to the emperor. After visiting several

rococo rooms (iucl. Napoleon's bedroom , in the Empire style), with

tapestries, groups of porcelain, and tiled stoves, and the magnificent

Card Koom, we reach the four rooms devoted to the Picture Gal-

lery (mainly Dutch and Flemish paintings).

In the S. wing (entr. in the first gateway, on the left) is the picture-

gallery of the Kunst-Verein (open 10.30-2.30, Sun. 10-3
; adm. 50 pf. ; closed

on Tues.). — The extensive Cellars beneath the Schloss contain Franconian
wine produced by the royal vineyards (adm. on application in the N. wing;
gratuity).

The Hof-Ctaetex, at the back of the palace, laid out in 1720,

has fine wrought-iron "Gates by J. G. Oegg and contains an orangery,

sculptures by J. P. Wagner, terraces, and fountains.

The Hof-Strasse (PI. D, 3) leads W. from the Kesidenz-Platz to

the cathedral. At Xo. 4 in the Max-Str., diverging to the right, is the

Frankisches Luitpold-Museum, containing the important col-

lections of the city of Wiirzburg, the Franconian Art & Antiquarian

Society, and the Historical Society. It is open daily (except Mon. and

Fri.) 9-3 (Oct.-April 10-2;; adm. on Sun. and holidaVs 20pf., on Tues.,

Wed., and Sat. 50 pf., on Thurs. 1 ^. Catalogue (1913) 1 ^.
Ground Floor. Room 1 : Sumptuous room from Lohr. —^ E. 2: Collec-

tion of costumes. ^— R. 3 : Ironwork. — R. 4: Guilds. — R.5-7: Weapons.

—

R. 8: Ecclesiastical art (18th cent.).

Staircase. Tombstone of Tilman Riemenschneider (p. 118).

First Floor. R. 13-18. Mediaeval ecclesiastical art. — R. 13, 14: Late-
Gothic sculptures in wood. — R. 15: Gothic stone sculptures; Madonna
in alabaster (ca. 1400); Banner of St. Cyriacus (1266). — R. 16: Romanesque
monuments; tympanum of an old Wiirzburg chapel; font from Neustadt
am Main. — R. 17. ^Sculptures by Tilman Riemensclineider and liis

school. In stone: Adam und Eve (1493), figures of the Apostles from the
Marien-Kapelle (p. 122), Madonna and Child with St. Anne from Kissingen.
In wood: Mourning Madonna from Acholshausen, double Madonna, St.

Stephen, Madonna and Child with St. Anne , St. Nicholas, St. Barbara,
St. Sebastian, angel as candelabrum. Round table with sandstone top. —
R. 18: Ecclesiastical vestments and vessels. — R. 19: Gothic room. —
R. 20: Panelled room; silversmith's work. —^ R. 21 : Room with fine stucco
ceiling of 1596 from the Sandhof (p. 122); pottery, furniture, small ob-

jects. — ^'R. 22: Stucco ceiling from the Sandhof; fine Franconian and
S. German faience; figures in stoneware. — R. 23: Wiirzburg coins and
medals; seals. — R. 24: Stucco ceiling from the Sandhof (1614); stone-

ware, stove-tiles, and furniture (17th cent.). — R. 25: Stucco ceiling;

pewter. — R. 26: Stucco ceiling of ca. 1725; glass; writing-table with
ivory inlay. — R. 27: Room from Wiirzburg (1725). — R. 28: Mm-al
paintings of ca. 1750; carvings by Witz ; fine stove. — R. 29: Clay models
by J. P. Wagner (1730-1809). — R. 30: Panelled rococo bedroom from
Wiirzburg. — R. 31-34: Prehistoric Franconian antiquities. — R. 35, 36:

Peasants' work. — R. 37: Furniture (18th cent.). — R. 38: Louis XYI.
room from Wiirzl)urg. — R. 39: Room with wall-paper of ca. 1820. —
R. 40: Musical instruments. — R. 41: Room in the Empire stj'le. —
R. 42, 43: Jewish art; ^Synagogue from Kirchheim (18th cent.). — R. 44,45:
Wine museum. — R. 46 : Wiirzburg paintings ; engravings, plans, and designs
by J. B. Neumann (p. 118).

The Garden contains the remains of the fine Romanesque cloisters

of the Xeiimlinster-Kirche (j). 121),
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We continue along the Hof-Str, past the Parade-PIatz (PI. I), 8)

to the Cathedral iSt. Kilian: PL C, D, 3), a cruciform Roman-
esque basilica with four towers, begun in 1042 under Bishop Bruno
on the site of a 9th cent, church and continued under Bishops Em-
bricho (1127-46) and Hermann (1222-54). The interior was fitted

up in the baroque style in 1701, the choir lowered in 1749, and the

exterior restored in 1879-85.
The IxTEKiOR is usually open until noon only; the sacristan, who

shows the vestment-room, Schonborn chapel, Sepultur, and cloisters, lives
in the annexe to the right of the Schonborn chapel (gratuity). In a recess
at the end of the right aisle, near the main entrance, is a group in sand-
stone of the Death of the Virgin (ca. 1480) ; in front are two Romanesque
columns (lltli cent.\ The bronze font in the nave, near the entrance,
is by Eckhard of Worms (1279) ; by the two first pillars on each side are
statues by Tihnan Riemenschiieider (Christ, St. Peter, St. Andrew, and
St. John the Evangelist), from the Marien-Kapelle (p. 122). On the 5th,
Rth, and 8th pillars on the left are Mary and the Magi (ca. 1300); by
the 8th pillar on the right is the handsome Renaissance pulpit, by Michael
Kern (1609). The church contains many tombs of bishops, of "which we
may mention that of Seinsheim 1^^1735-79), near the 3rd pillar on the X. side,
by J. P. Wagner: those of Bibra (1495-1519) and Scherenberg (1466-95), by
the 6th and 7th pillars on the right, both executed hy Biemenschneider

:

those of Julius and Sebastian Echter von Mespelbrunn (p. 118), by the
3rd pillar, the former by M.Kern: and that of Conrad von Thiingen
(d. 1540), in the right transept, on the wall of the choir, by Loif Bering.
On the right of the choir steps is an altar with tlie relics of Bishop Bruno
(see above). — In the richly decorated choir (elegant rococo screen) are
beautiful rococo stalls (1750); from the roof hangs a large painted crucifix
(1478). — The vestment-room, to the S. of the choir, contains vestments,
mitres, and Antwerp tapestry (legend of St. Kilian'l.

Adjoining the S. transept on the S. is the late-gothic Sepultur (15th cent.1,

the old burial-chapel of the canons. — The W. door of the S. transept leads
to the cloisters (usually open), completed in 1453, with numerous tombs
of canons. By the E. wall is the alabaster tomb of Baur von Eiseneck
(d. 1621) hy 3f'. Kern : by the W. wall is the cenotaph of Margrave Frederick
of Brandenburg (d. 1536) by Loi/ Bering.

Adjoining the X. transept is the Schonborn Chapel, a superb rococo
structure by J. B. Xeiimann (1721-36), with the tombs of the two prince-
bishops (p. 118).

To the N. of the cathedral, on the spot where St. Kilian (p. 118)
and his companions SS. Kolonat and Totnan sutfered martyrdom
(festival on Sun. following July 8th), rises the Neumiinster-
Kirche (PI. C, D, 3), founded about 1010, but rebuilt in the tran-

sitional style in 1223-47, with a fine tower. The handsome red

baroque facade was constructed in 1711-19; the dome was added
in 1736.

The well-proportioned Interior (sacristan, Herzogen-Str. 3) was altered
in the 18th cent, in the baroque style. It contains (to the right of the
main entrance) the tombstone of Abbot Johann Trithemius (d. 1516), the
humanist, and (opposite) a charming sandstone figure of the Madonna
(1493: disfigured by repainting), both by Biem-enschneider. In front of
the high-altar are painted busts of the "three apostles of Franconia (see
above), also by Riemenschneider. Under the cupola, on the right and left,
are the entrances to the W. crypt ('Kilians-Gruft'). where the three apostles
are interred, with copies of the above-mentioned busts. The Romanesque
E. crypt, under the choir ('Kreuz-Gruff), dates from the 11th century.
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On the outside E. wall of the S. aisle, near the choir, is a tablet

put up in 1843 to the memory of Walther von der Vogehceide (d. 1230),

the greatest of the mediaeval German poets, who was interred in the old
cloisters (pulled down in 1883: p. 120).

At Herren-Grasse 8, to the N.E., is the old canonry, with a

tasteful oriel-window, rebuilt in the Renaissance style in 1594, and

now (since 1817) the Bishop's Palace (PL D, 3). The chapel con-

tains an alabaster altar by M. Kern.

The busy Dom-Strasse (PI. C, 3), with quaint houses, leads W.
from the cathedral to the Alte Maiu-Brlicke (p. 124). Xear the end,

to the right, opposite the Vierrohren-Bi'unnen (1766), rises the

Old Rathaus (PI. C, 3), with the Romanesque Grrafen-Eckards-

Turm, heightened in 1453 and 1588. The council-chamber, or King
Wenzel's Room, is an important monument of mediccval secular

architecture, now being restored. The JRoter Ban, behind it to the

left, is a baroque edifice of 1659. Adjacent, to the N., in the Kar-

meliten-Grasse, is the New Bathaus, in the German Renaissance

style (1898-9). — The Karmeliten-Str. leads hence to the X., passing

the FiscHMARKT (PL C, 3), with the Fischer'-Brunnen by Kohler

(1770); on the right (No. 20) is the imposing baroque Hof zicm

Riickermain (1715-22).

From the Fischmarkt we proceed E. to the Markt-Platz (PL

C, 3), in which rises the elegant Grothic *Marieii-Kapelle, erected

in 1377-1479; the perforated spire was rebuilt in 1856-8.
The Gothic sculptures on the three portals (Last Judgment, Annun-

ciation, Coronation of the Virgin) date from the first half of the 15th cent-

ury. The 14 statues on the buttresses (six replaced by copies; comp.
p. 120) are from Riemenschneider's studio (1500-6). — In the interior,

which was restored in 1856-7, are the tombstone of a knight (1499) and
wooden *Statues (SS. Dorothea and Margaret) by Riemenschneider.

To the E. of the Marien-Kapelle is the Haus zum Falken, with

fine rococo decoration (ca. 1735). — From the E. end of the Markt-

Platz we follow the Schoxborx-Strasse (PL C, 2) to the N. The

Sandhof (resianrant)
.1
in the courtyard of No. 3, to the left, retains

its picturesque Renaissance interior of 1596-1614. To the right in

the Dominikaner-Platz rises the Augustiner-Kirche, formerly

the Dominican church (PL C, D, 2); the nave, erected in 1280, was
rebuilt in 1743-62 by J. B. Neumann, while the choir dates from

1308-12; elaborate rococo altars and decoration.

The Schonborn-Str. ends at the Jruis-PROMEXADE (p. 118). To
the left is the bronze statue (1847) of Bishop Julius Echter von
Mespelhrunn (p. 118). Opposite rises the Julius -Spital (PL

C, D, 2; wine-room, see p. 117), a large group of buildings begun

in 1576 and rebuilt in the 17th-18th cent, (visitors admitted). The
rear -building ('Fursten-Bau'), completed in 1704 by Petrini, con-

tains the quaint old Apotheke, with interesting ironwork over the

dispensing- table, by Oegg (1762). The central passage in the

Fursten-Bau contains an old relief from a portal (1579). In the
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garden are a fountain -group and a tasteful pavilion, erected in

1705 and used as an anatomical theatre from 1724 to 1853.

P'rom the W. end of the Julius -Promenade, where there is an

old Crane (1767) bearing the arms of its builder Bishop Seinsheim,

the Kkanex-Kai (PI. B, C, 2) descends the bank of the Main to the

Lfuitpold-Bridge (PI. B, 1). Here, on the right, begins the Pleicher

Ring (PL C, D, 1\ which leads to the Bahnhofs-Platz (p. 118) and

contains most of the Medical Institutes of the university, the Phy-
sical Institute (No. 8; with a tablet to Prof. Rontgen^ who disco: er-

ed the Rontgen rays here in 1895), and the Botanical Gardens
(interesting glass-houses). To the Steinberg, see p. 126.

From the Dom-Str. (p. 122) the Augustiner-Str. (PI. C, 3, 4),

passing the Ehemannsches Haus (No. ^/g; frame-building of 1547

in the court), leads S. to the Neubau-Strasse (PI. C, D, 4), which

affords a pretty view of the fortress (p. 125) and also contains

ancient houses and courtyards (No. 2 , on the right , with a timber

fagade of the early 17th cent.; No. 7, on the left, with rococo decora-

tion). — On the left, farther on, is the —
Old University (PI. D, 4; entr. Domerschul-Gasse 16), built

by Wolfgang Beringer (?) in 1582-91, with a fine Renaissance quad-

rangle. The University Church or Neubau-Kirche, restored in

1695, is built in a curiously mixed Gothic and Renaissance style.

The tower (270 ft. high; altered by Petrini in 1701) is used as an

Ohservatory (Sat. 2-4). The Old University now contains the

Psychological Institute, the University Library, and the Museum
of Historical Art (open free on Sun. from April to Nov., 10-1 ; at

other times on application to the keeper, 9-1 and 2-6, 50 pf.).

First Floor. Picture Gallery (catalogue in preparation). — Cor-
ridor I. Flemish masters of the 16th-18th centuries. Cabinet \: A. Willacrts,
Sea-piece; Jan Matsys, Susanna at the bath. Cabinet 2: BitbcnsC?), Rape
of Europa, Battle of Constantine (sketch); L. cle Vadder , Landscapes.
Cabinet 3 : D. Teniers the Elder, Temptation of St. Anthony ; D. Ryckaert
the Younger, Kitchen. Cabinet .5: Van Voorst, Two portraits. — Cor-
ridor II. Dutch and French Masters. Cabinet 1: P. Claesz, Still -life;

Molenaer, Winter scene ; S. van Ruysdael, Landscape. Cabinet 2: J. van
Ravesteyn, Portrait; A. van der Neer , Landscape; M. d'Hondecoeter,
Cock-fight; by the window, W. van de Velde, Sea-piece; Tcrhurg, Woman
peeling apples. Cabinet 3: Sc^aZcAren, Portrait. Cabinet!: N. Ponssin,
Bacchanal; CI. Lorrain, Landscape. — Then three rooms with mediaeval
German works. First room: Battle-piece of the S. German school (15111.

Room to the left: Nuremberg tapestry with the Crucifixion (end of loth
cent.). Room to the right: Riemenschneider , Madonna, Pieta (relief);

School of Riemenschneider, Statue of the Madonna, Baptism of Christ
(relief), and St. John in Patmos (relief); H. Schdnfelein , Portrait of
Sixtus Olhafen; M. Schongauer, Baptism of Christ, St. John the Evan-
gelist; small wood-carving of the Descent of the Holy Ghost (early 16th
cent.). — The adjoining room contains mostly Italian works: Spin^Uo
Aretino, Madonna with saints; Andrea delta Robbia, Nativity (faienre
relief); Style of Ribera, Two portraits. — The following rooms contain
17th cent. 'German works (Beinmel, Beich , Feistenberger): also G. B.

Tiepolo, Mucins Scsevola, Alexander the Great and the family of Darius,
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Head of an Oriental: alabaster sculptures (17th cent.). — In the next
ruoni are works by Frauconian painters of the 18th cent. (Fesel, Kath.
Treu) and by Jan Zick and Kobell ; sculptures by J. P. Wagner. —
The two last rooms contain modern paintings: in the second are works
lent by the Pinakothok at Munich, iucl. K. Haider, Evening landscape;
A. StdbU. Approaching storm ; J. Wenglein, Scene on t)ie Isar. — Farther
on are the Cabinet of Exgeayings, with drawings by G. B. and D. Tiepolo,
P. Wagner, M. von Wagner, and Urlauh , and the WoRZBt-RG Room,
containing armorial tapestry whioli originally belonged to the St. Kilian
tapestry in the vestment-room (p. 121) of the cathedral (1687).

Second Floor. Plaster Casts. — Marble Cabixet. Greek and Roman
fragments, incl. a Centaur's head from the Parthenon (ca. 430 B.C.).

TJiird Floor. Egyptian Collectiok. Reliefs, small antiquities, Coptic
textiles, etc. — Aktiquarium. Large collection of Greek vases (especially
black-figure and red-figure)

;
glass, gems, paste, terracottas, bronzes, and

lamps. — Cabinet of Coins. Wiirzburg coins and medals.

Tlie University Library possesses 390,000 vols. An important col-

lection of MSS. from the 5th cent, onwards (some with ivory-carvings),
early specimens of printing, book-bindings, and bj3ok-plates is exhibited
on the ground-floor. Adm. on application at the office.

On the E. the Old Uiiiversitj'^ is adjoined by the Michaels-

Kirche (PI. D, 4), built in 1765 in the late-baroque style.

From the Neubau-Str. the Peter -Str. leads S. to the Peters-

Kirche (PI. D, 4), originally Romanesque but in its present form

baro(iue (1717-20), with a Gothic choir. Within is a fine rococo

pulpit, ascribed to Balth. Esterbauer. To the E. are the Goverv-
iiieiit O/^ces (Regierungs-Cxebaude; PI. D, 4), formerly the Benedic-

tine abbey oi St. Stcphan. the church of which, now Protestant, was
tastefully decorated in the classical style in 1782-9. — The Reuerer-

Kirclie or Carmelite Church (PI. C, 4), in the Sander-Str., a little

to the S.W., is a baroque structure by A. Petrini (1662-9).

The Sander-Str. leads S. to the Sander Rixg-Strasse, on the

left of which rises the New University (PI. D, 4), a modern
Renaissance edifice by Horstig (1892-6), with a baroque and rococo

interior (fine staircase). Between this and the Laiv Courts (Justiz-

Gebciude; PI. D, 4), built in 1892-5. is a bust of P. F. vo)t Siehold,

the travx^ller (1796-1866).
A little S. of the Sander Ring, in tlie Weingartcn-Str., is the Adalherv-

Kirche (PI. D, .5), a Romanesque l)uilding by Denzinger (1891-9). — The
Ht'tten- Schlosschen (PI. C, 5), Sander Glacis -Str. .50, an elegant little

villa built by J. B. Neumann in 1725 for Bishop von Hutten, now belongs
to the students' corps 'Rhenania*.

From the Sander Ring we may return to the Bahnhofs-Platz

(p. 118) via the pretty gardens on the Rexnweger Ring (PI. E,

F, 2, 3) and the Hauger Ring (PL D, E, 1). In the former are two

Hercules Groups by J. W. van der Auvera. (d. 1756).

The Dom-Str. (p. 122) leads to the Alte Main-Briicke (PI. B,

C, 3), 215 yds. in length, constructed in 1474-1607 and adorned

with statues of saints. It commands a good view, with the Stein-

burg (p. 126) in the distance, to the right. On the left bank, straight
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ahead, is the small IIvfspital-Kirche (PI. B, 3j. containing a wood-

carving of the fourteLMi 'Nothelfer" ip. 135; ca. 1530). The fine

Gothic Deutschhaus-Kirche (PI. B, 3), in the Zeller-Str., now used

as a military warehouse, was built after 1280. A little to the N.

is the Schotten-Kirche (PI. B, 2), now the garrison-church, a Roman-
esque basilica of 1146.

Pleasant walk along the Hochberger Str. (PI. A, 3) to the (>/,. hr.)

Wittchhachev Ilohe (restaurant) and the (25 min.) Zeller Wolclspitze;

thence througii the municipal Konigs-Anlagen (view-points) to (15 min.)

ZeU (p. 111). Return by railway, by tramway, or on foot (.50 min.).

We now ascend the 'Erste Schloss-Gassc', a few paces to the

right of the Hofspital-Kirche, and pass through the Xeu-Tor
(PL B, 3), a fine gateway of 1657, with the arms of the Schonborns,

to (12 min.) the old fortress of Marienberg (875 ft.: PI. A, B, 4j,

425 ft. above the river. This was the ancient Castelhim Virte-

burc (comp. p. 118), and from 1250 till the completion of the palace

was the residence of the prince -bishops. It is now an artillery

depot. Adm. on week-days 8-12.30 and 2-6 (Oct.-March 9-12 and

2-4), Sun. 8-6 (9-4); visitors apply at the guard-room and are es-

corted round the fortress (20 pf.). The most interesting points are

the Echter-Tor ^1606), the Scherenberg-Tor (1482), and the Lieb-

Irauen-Kircho, the oldest church in Wiirzburg (lower story of the

Stli cent.). The X.E. bastion ('Alarm-Batteric'i commands a good

view of the' town.

In the Burkarder Str., to the left, 5 min. above the Alte Main-

Briicke, rise the Gothic towers of St. Burkard iPl. B. 4), the

oldest church in Wiirzburg of intact exterior, erected in 1033-42

in the Romanesque style and altered in 1168, with a picturesque

late-Gothic choir of 1492-5, beneath which the street runs. In the

N. transept is a late-Romanesque oflfertory-box, and in the S. tran-

sept a painted bust of the Madonna by Riemenschncider and a

carved altar of 1591.

The Nikolaus-Str., the second street to the right outside the

Bin-karder Tor (PI. B, 4), ascends in a curve (short-cut on the left)

to the (8 min.) garden-restaurant of Nikolaushurq (viewi. A path

with Stations of the Cross by J. P. AVagner and Van der Auvera

goes on to (6 min.) the Kappele (PI. B, 5) on the Nikolausberg,

a pilgrimage-chapel built by J. B. Neumann in 1747-92. Beautiful

*View of the town and its lights in the evening.
About 10 min. S. of the Kappele (path along the ridge, with views)

is the SchUtzenhof Restaurant, whence we regain the town in >/* tir.

On the top of the Nikolaasherg (1085 ft.; PI. A, 5; mountain-

railway projected), 25 min. W. of the Kappele, is the Franken-
warte, a view-tower 90 ft. high, commanding a fine view of the

Main valley, Frankenwald, Steigerwald, S])essart, and Rhon (adm.

10 pf.; restaurant). We may return throiigh the Anna-Schluchi to

the Steinhach-Tal (tramway, see p. 117), with its gardens and
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restaurants. Hence we regain the (1 hr.) town by following the path

to the left and crossing the Ludwigs-Brilcke (PI. B, 0, 5; 1895).

Excellent views are obtained from the Steinberg (940 ft. ; beyond
PI. D, 1), which is reached in V2 ii^"- by passing under the railway to the X.
of the Pleicher Ring (p. 123) and turning to the "W. beyond the gas-works.
At the top are the Restaurant Steinburg and a Bismarck-Turm (1905). We
may descend N. to (10 min.) Unter-Dtirrbach (615 ft. ; Hot. Adler, Stern),

situated in the charming valley of the Durrbach and much frequented in

the .vintage-season. Hence back to (.3 M.) Wiirzburg by road.

About 51/2 M. to the N". of Wiirzburg (motor-omn. from the Haupt-
Bahnhof in 40 rain., 50 pf.) is the village of Rimpar, with a Schloss
of the late 16th cent, and a church containing a monument by Riemen-
.schneider (1487). There is also a stone relief of the Crucifixion by Riemcn-
schneider in the church of 3Iaidhronii, IV4 M. to the E. Motor-omn.
from Rimpar to (9V2 M.) Arnstein (p. 114).

Motor-omn. from Wiirzburg: to (201/2 M.) 3TarJctheidenfeld (p. 113),

thrice daily in 23/^ hrs. (l^'65pf.); to (20 M.) Tauherhischofsheim
(p. 129), thrice daily in 21/4 hrs.

From Wiirzburg to Bamberg, see R. 21 ; to Nuremberg and Eatisbon,
see R. 18; to Heidelberg, see R. 19; to Stuttgart, see R. 17 j to Munich
via Ansbach, see R. 30; to Frankfort, see R. 15.

17. From Wiirzburg (Berlin) via Heilbronn
to Stuttgart.

112 M. Express in 3V4-3V2 hrs. (16 JC 20, 10 JibO, <o Ji 60 pf.). Through-
train from Berlin in 12 hrs. (53 ^ 10, 32 JC 60 pf., 21 ^).

From Wiirzburg via Lauda to (48\/2 M.) Osterhurken , see

pp. 129, 130. — The line crosses the Kirnach and descends its

valley. — 51 M. Adelsheim, a little Baden town on the E. spurs

of the Odenwald. We now follow the Seckach-Tal.

58 M. Mockmuhl (Hot. Wiirttemberger Hof), an old town at

the confluence of the Seckach and Jagsf, was stoutly defended by

Gotz von Berlichingen against the Swabian League in 1519. At
the N. end is the castle (restored), with the 'Grotzen-Turm'.

From Mockmuhl, to Dorzbach, 24 M., branch -line in 21/4 hrs. —
8V2 M. Jagsthausen, with a castle supposed to be the birthplace of Gotz
vou Berlichingen. — 11 M. Berlichingen. — 121/2 M. Schontal (Hot. Post),

with an old Cistercian monastery founded in 1156, now a Protestant
seminary. The Catholic church, built in 1708-28 by J. B. Neumann (p. 118),

has an effective interior. The cloisters contain the grave of Gotz von Ber-
lichingen (d. 1562). — 24 M. Dorzbach. The church of Stuppach, 5 M.
to the N". of Dorzbach and 3 M. to the S. of Bad Mergentheim (p. 36),

contains the 'Madonna of Stuppach', by M. G'riinewald (ca. 1520).

We follow the valley of the Jagst. — 61 1/2 M. Zilttlingen.

72 M. Jagstfeld, and thence via Heilbronn to (112 M.) Shdt-

gart, see pp. 29-27.
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18. Prom Frankfort via Wurzburg to
Ratisbon (Vienna).

210 M. Express in 63/^-7 hrs. (28 JC 20, 18 JC 10, 11 JC 60 pf.) ; ordinary-
train in 131/2 hrs. (26 Ji 20, 16 JC 10, 10 c^ 60 pf.). This is the quickest
route from Frankfort (Ostend) to Vienna (express in UV-j-lo hrs.). — From
Wiirzburg to Ratisbon, express in 41/4 hrs. (17 v^ 90, 11 .^60, 7 Ji 30 pf.

;

by ordinary train 15 Ji 90, 9 ^ 60, 6 c^ 30 pf.).

From Frankfort to (84' '^ M.) Wiirzburg, see R. 15. The railway

follows the Bamberg line (R. 21) as far as (SQ'/a M.) Roftendorf]
;ind then turns S.E. in a wide curve. — From (93 M.) Detfelhach
a branch-line runs in ' 4 hr. to (S'/a ^) the small walled town of

that name (Hot. zum Adler), on the Main, with 2060 inhab. and a

late-Gothic Rathaus (1512). The pilgrimage-church, 10 min. E.,

beyond the Falter-Tor, is a late-Renaissance edifice of 1608-13,

with a late-Gothic choir. — We follow the ridge on the right bank
of the Main.

99 M. Kitzingen (675 ft.; Hot. Rotes Ross, R. & B. 2-2^1^ J6;
Frankischer Hof, Schwan), a trading town on the Main with 9100
inhabitants. The chief relic of the town -walls is the imposing
Falter -Turm (1496). From the station we go straight on for

4 min., turn to the left, then (3 min.) to the right along the Falter-

Str., and after a few paces descend to the left by the Prinzregent-

Luitpold-Str. to the (5 min.) Rathaus, a gabled structure in the

early-Renaissance style (1561). Adjacent, to the E., is the lofty

round Marki-Turm (15th cent.). A little to the S.E. is the Gothic

Catholic Church (15th cent.), with a fine 'Sakramentshiiuschen'

(p. 170; 26 ft. high) on the left of the choir. About 12 min. N.W.,
above the station, is the Schiesshaus, which affords a fine view of

the vine -clad hills of the Main and of the Steigerwald. A stone

bridge with twelve arches (295 yds. long), dating from ca. 1500 but

rebuilt in 1700, crosses the Main to the suburb of Etwashausen
(see below). At the beginning of the bridge is the Catholic Heilig-

krevz-Kapelle, by Balth. Neumann (1741-5).
About 2V2 M. below Kitzingen, on the riglit bank of the Main, lies

Sidzfeld, with picturesque gate-towers, a Rathaus of 1609, and old houses
with statues of saints.

Fkom Kitzingen to Schweinfurt, 31 M., railway in 2^1.^2^!^ hrs. -

The line crosses the Main to (IV4 M.) Kitzingen-Eficaskaiisen (see above).
— 7 M. Kleinlangheim. About I'/a M. to the S.E. (omn. thrice daily in

IV2 hr.) lies the pleasant village of Castell il035 ft.; Hot. Griiner Bauni.
Krone), situated amid vine-clad liills on tlieW. verge of the Steigerwald,
with a Schloss of Prince Castell-Castell (fine view from the castle-hill).— 10 M. Wiesentheid , with a parish -church built bv Balth. Xeumann
(1727-32). Omn. daily in 23

,, brs. to Ebrach (p. 136), 10 M. to the X.E. —
121/2 M. Prichsenstadt, a small walled town. — We now skirt the W.
slope of the Steigerwald. — I8V2 M. Gerolzhofen (755 ft. ; Hot. Stern,
Frankischer Hof), a small town with 2560 inhabitants. In the parish-church
(15th cent.) is a fine carved Virgin in a garland of roses, by Ricmcn-
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SL-lineirlcr(Vj. Oum. daily in t^U I'i'«- ^o Ebrach (p. 136), 91/2 M. to the

S.E. Charming excursion via Handelshausen to the (2 hrs.j ruin of Zabel-
stein (1585 ft.), situated at the N.W. corner of the Steigerwald and
affording a wide view. — 30 M. Schweinfurt-Sennfeld. — 31 M. Schivein-
furt-Haupthalinhof (p. 140).

The line crosses the Main. — IO472 M. Iphofen (870 ft.; Hot.

Deutscher Hof), with 1670 inhab., is an excellent example of an

old Franconian town, with its mediceval walls and three gates. The
late-Grothic parish-church dates from the 16th cent., the Anitshaiis

from 1693, and the Rathaus from 1717. About 1 hr. N. is the

Schwanherg (1550 ft.; view). — To the left, immediately bej'ond

(113 M.) Marktbibart, v.-e see Schloss Schwarzenherg (17th cent.),

tlie ancestral seat of the princes of that name.

122\.,M. Neustadt an der Aisch (945 f t, ; Rail. Restaurant;

Hot. Krone; pop. 4500), with remains of old walls, has an import-

ant trade in hops. Branch-lines N.E. to (9\ 2 ^^) Demantsfurth-
Uhlfeld and S.W. to Steinach (see p. 216). — Beyond (128 M.) Ems-
kirchen we cross the Aurach. — 137V/2 M. Siegelsdorf. Branch-

line to (11 M.) Markt Erlhach. — 140 M. Burgfarrnbach, with

a Schloss of Count Piickler. We join the Bamberg line (p. 138)

and cross the Rednitz. On the right is the Alte Teste (p. 189). —
143 M. Fiirth (p. 189). — Xcar (145 M.) Nurjiberg-Doos we cross

the Ludwigs-Kanal (p. 146).

148 M. Nuremberg fp. 163). The line runs through woods.
-- 150 M. Dutzendtekh ('p. 188).

155V, ^^- Feucht (1185 ft.; Kur-Hot(^l Waldschlosschen).
Branch -lines W. to i3 M.) Wendelstein : E. to (71/2 M.) Altdorf

(1160 ft.; Hot. zur Post), a quaint little town with 2900 inhab., the seat
of a university in 1623-1806. In the S. part of the town is the university
building, erected in 1571-5 (now a training college). In the court is a

tasteful fountain by Labenwolf.

From (15872 ^^O Ochenbruck a pleasant walk leads into the

Schwarzach-Tal, ^'2^^'- ^-i ^i'* Schwarzenbruck. — We cross the

Ludwigs-Kanal. — 164^ ., M. Postbaaer. To the left rises the

Dillberg (1945 ft.), to the "right tlie Tyrolsberg (1880 ft.).

170']\r. Neumarkt in der Oberpfalz'(1390 ft.; Bahnhol-

Hotel Egner, R. 1 ^^l 20-1 rJl 50 pf. ; (foldene Gransi, a prettily

situated town of 6400 inhab. on the Snlz, with chalybeate and

sulphurous springs. The late-Gothic parish-church (early 15th cent.)

and Rathaus (15th cent.) are interesting. The Schloss (ca. 1550)

contains the law-courts. Views from the (20 min.) Mariahilfberg
(1920 ft.) and the (1 hr.) ruin of Wolfstein (1905 ft.).

From Necmarkt to Dietfurt , 23 M., branch-line ,3rd class only)
in IV4-2 hrs. — We descend the Sulz valley, skirting the Ludwigs-Kanal.
— From (41/2 M.) Greisselbach a branch-line runs to (6 M.) Freystadt (Hot.
zur Post; pop. 900), with a domed pilgrimage-church by G. A. Viscardi
(1708-10; stucco-work by the brothers Asam). ^ 17 M.Beibigries (Hot.

zur Post, R. 1-2 JC), a small town of 1850 inhab. at the confluence
of the Sulz and Altmilhl. The partly preserved town -walls date from
the late 15th century. In tombs close by antiquities of the Hallstatt and
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stone periods have been fouml. About 20 min. W. lies Schloss Hirsch-
bery, the summer-residence of the Bishops of Eichstatt (visitors admitted).
Pleasant walk from Beilngries to Dietfurt (see below): either (2 hrs.) via
Ottmaring, or (1^/^ hrs.) via the Arzberg (1640 ft. ; view). About 5 M.
to the W. of Beilngries lies Grreding (p. 139). From Beilngries up the
Altmiihl-Tal to Kinding, see p. 226. — The line now^ descends along the
Altmiihl to (2.3 M.) Dietfurt ini Altmiihl-Tal, an ancient town of 1200 in-

habitants. Omn. twice daily in 21/2 hrs. down the Altmiihl-Tal to (lO'/g M.)
Riedenburg (p. 227).

The line crosses the hroiid Sidz-Tal and enters the wooded
Frauconian Jura. — Beyond (176^/2 M.) Deining we cross the Laher.
- 182 1/0 M. Seuhersdorf.

Omn. thrice daily in I1/4 hr. to (51/2 M.) Velburg (1695 ft.), a pleasant
little town with 1120 inhab. and a castle-ruin. Close by is the Konig-
Otto-Hohle, over 100 yds. long, one of the finest stalactite caves in

the Jura.

187 V2 M. Parsherg (1810 ft.), situated on the slope of a hill,

which is crowned by an old Schloss, now law-courts. — Beyond
(194 M.) Beratzhausen we cross the Sehwarze Laber, the valley of

which offers numerous picturesque views. — 204^2 M. Etterz-

hausen, to the left in the Naah-Tal. Close by is the Btiiiber-

Hohle, a lofty dome-shaped cavern in the rock.

The line descends along the right bank of the Naab and crosses

the Danube. — At (208 M.) Priifeuing, on the right, is the old

Benedictine monas^ry of that name, with a garden-restaurant. Its

church (1119) has wall-paintings of ca. 1150 ('?).

210 M. Batisbon (rail, restaurant; p. 202).

19. From Wurzburg to Heidelberg.
99 M. Express in S-S'/i hrs. (14 ^/6 80, 9 .S 60, .5 ^ 90 pf .) : ordinary

train in 5 hrs. (12 ^^ 80, 7 ^ 60, 4 ^ 90 pf.).

Wurzburg, see p. 117. The line follows the Munich line nearly

to (S'/aM.) Heidingsfeld (p. 216), diverges to the right, and ascends

through a monotonous hilly region. — 7 M. Beicheuberg, in the

valley to the left, overlooked by a Schloss. — Beyond (ISYg ^•)

Kirchheim we cross the Baden frontier. The line now descends. —
Beyond (HV/g ^•) Wittighausen we follow the wooded valley of

the Grilnbach. — 221/2 M. Grilnsfeld (700 ft.), an old town with

a pretty Rathaus and a Gothic church containing a monument to

Countess Dorothea of Wertheim (d. 1503), by Riemenschneider. -

25^2 M. Gerlaehsheim, with a church in an exaggerated baroque

style. — The train crosses the Tauber, and turns to the left.

26»/2 M. Lauda (595 ft.; Kail. Restaurant; Bahnhof-Ifoteli, a

small town with 2600 inhab. and a bridge of 1510.

From Lauda to Wkrtheim, 191/2 ^t-. railway in ^/4 hr. (views to tlio

right). — We follow the smiling Tai^ber-Tal. which produces an agreeable
light wine. — 5 M. Taitberbischofsheim (58.") ft.: Hot. Badischer Hof:
pop. 3600), a pleasantly situated little town, with interesting Gothic
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castle, church, ami chapel. Motor-oiun. to Wiirzburg. see p. 126. — We
cross the Tauter. — 12 M. Gamhurg, with an old castle. — 15 M. Bronn-
hach. The old Cistercian abbey, with an interesting church (1222), now
belongs to Prince Lowenstcin. The cloisters are transitional, the choir-

stalls and the rooms of the old abbey are in the rococo style. The
picturesque little town of Kulsheim, 31/2 M. to the S., possesses an old

castle (ca. 120() .

—
'iT M. BeichoJzheim. — 191/2 M. Wertheim (p. 118^

^ From Lauda to ('raiUJieim, see pp. 37, 36.

28'/.^ M. Konigshofen (660 ft.; Hot. zur Eiseiibahn), a small

and ancient town at the confluence of the Umpfer and the Tanber,

Avhere the Crailsheim line (p. 37) diverges. — We leave the Tanber

and turn S.W. into the Unipfer-Tal. — 34 M. Boxberg-Wolchiiigen

.

The well-restored church of WOlchingen, in the transitional style,

has handsome portals, interesting Romanesque capitals, and

Romanesque and Gothic tombs.
Oiun. twice daily in 3-74 hrs. (back in 3 hrs.) to Krautheim, on tlic

Jagst, 12 M. to theS., with remains of town -walls. Of the castle, a

line early- Gothic building of the early 13tli cent., the keep and chapel
still survive. The adjoining Schloss (17th cent.) contains an art-collection.

We proceed along high embankments. — 41 M. Eahigheim. —
Then through the Kiruar-h-Tal to (481-2 M.) Osterburken (Rail.

Restaurant; Hot. Kanne, at the station, R. 1 ^ 50-1 Jl' 80, B.

50 pf.), an ancient town of 1500 inhab., on the site of a Roman
castrum. Railway to Jagstfeld, see p. 126.

The Baden railway diverges to the right frcftn the Wurtemberg
line and traverses pleasant w^ooded and grassy valleys. — 5OY2 ^^^

Adelsheim, 1/4 hr. from the town (p. 126). The line now runs through

the Seckach-Tal. — 53 M. Seckach. Branch -line to Aschaffen-

burg, see pp. 112, 111. — 57 M. Oherschefflenz. Branch-line to

(51/2 M.) Billigheim, with a Romanesque church date 12th cent.). —
The line now follows the Elz.

66 M. Mosbach (Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Prinz Karl, Krone),

an old town on the Elz, with 4300 inhab. and numerous old frame-

houses. In the church is the bronze monument of the Countess

Palatine Johanna (d. 1444). Branch -line via (31/2 M.) Lohrhach,
wdth a mediaeval castle now belonging to Prince Leiningen, to

(I7V2 M.) Mudau.
671/2 M. Neckarelz (435 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Klingen-

burg), at the influx of the Elz into the Neckar, on the right bank

of the latter. Opposite rises the Neuburg. Branch-line to (20 M.)

Meckesheim (p. 31). Neckarelz is the junction of the Stuttgart and

Hanau line (p. 31), which we follow as far as (80 M.) Eberbach

(p. 31), where we diverge to the W. along the Neckar. Farther on

the Gammelsbacher Tal (p. 31) opens on the right. — 85 M. Hirsch-

horn (Hot. Naturalist, Erbach-Fiirstenauer Hof;, a quaint old town

picturesquely situated at the foot of the castle of that name (col-

lection of antiquities;. - To the left, on a wooded hill, rises the

old stronghold of Dilsherg.
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89^.^ M. Neckarsteinach (415 ft.; Hot. Scliwal ben-Nest,

good; Harfc, with a garden on the Neckar), with 1700 inhab. and

four old castles of the Landschaden ('land-scourges') of Steinach.

One of them, the Mittelhurg, has been restored in the mediaeval

style. Pretty view from the castle of Schadeck or Srhwalben-Kesf.
— Beyond a tunnel the train crosses the Neckar.

93 M. Neckargemund (405 ft.; Hot. Pfalz, with garden on

the Neckar. R. 2' .,-3. B. 1 ^l ; Kredell, Hirscb), a town of 2750 in-

hab. at the mouth of the KLseiiz. Kailway up the Elsenz-Tal to

Meckesheim and Jagstfeld, see pp. 31-29. - 95'
._,
M. Schlierhucli.

On the right bank are Ziegelhausen and, farther on, the abbey of

Neuhary. — 97* ., M.-lIeidelbenj-Kaiisfor. The train then })asses

through a tunnel below the castle to the (99 M.j main station of

Jlehldhenj (see Baedeker's Rhine).

20. From Leipzig via Bamberg and Nur-
emberg to Munich.

a. Via Saalfeld.

.S23Va M. fvia Naiimbuig or Gera aud via Iiigulbtadt or Augsbiug).
Express via Naumburg in S'/a-y/a hrs., via Gera iu 'd-U^U •'!•« (39^90,
25 JC 30, 16 Jl 10 pf

.
; comp. R. 32J ; via Halle and Naumburg in 9-10'/.^ brs.

(40 JC 20, 25 Jt 40, 16 JC 20 pf.). — From Leipzig to Nuremberg, 2OOV2 M.,
express via Naumburg in 5V2-6V4 brs., via Gera in 6-7 hrs. (27 ^^ 10, 17 c^ 40,

10.^ 90 pf.); via Halle and Naumburg in 6-7 hrs. (29 c^ 20, 18 <.^ 70 pf..

12 JC).

From Leipzig via. Naumburg or Gera to Saalfeld, see Baedekers
Norther)/ Germaity.

87 M. Saalfeld (770 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Roter Hirseh,

Thliringer Hof, Bahnhof-Hoteli, a factory-town of 14,400 inhab. in

the Duchy of Saxe-Meiuingen, with remains of town-walls, is pic-

turesquely situated on the Saale. The Rathaus, in the market-place,

dates from 152G-37. A little N. is the Gothic St. Johannis-Kirche,

rebuilt iu 1389-1456, with a fine W. portal and stained glass of 1514.

AVe traverse the E. part of the ThUrincjer Wald, at first skirt-

ing the Saale; fine rocks on the left. — 93 M. Eichicht (770 ft.). —
We descend i\\Q Loquitz-Tal. — IO2V2M. Probstzella (1130 ft.;

Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Meininger Hof), a village with slate-quarri»'s.

We cross the Bavarian frontier. — 105 M. Lauenstein (1310 ft.).

On the right (20 min.) is the castle of that name (1805 ft.; adni.

50 pf.), once the seat of the Counts of Orlamiiuck, destroyed in 1290

and rebuilt in the 14th-16th cimt. (Hot. -Pens. Burgfried, good). - -

107 M. Ludu'igsstadf (1500 ft.; Hot. zum LOwem. Branch-line E.

to (5 M.) Lehesfeii, with slate-quarries. Near (110^ .^ M.) we cross

the Beiuistiey, the watershed between the Rhine and the Elbe, and

descend into the valley of the Hasslach. — 118V .^M. Rotheu-

kirchen. — 122 M. Stockheim (^1130 ft.), with coal-mines.
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127 M. Kronaeh (1015 ft.; Hot. Sonne, E. from IVgc^; Grol-

dener Wagen), a busy town of 5400 inhab. at the confluence of the

Hasslach and Rodacli, with well-preserved 16th cent, walls. The

painter Cranach the Elder iLucas Miiller; 1472-1558; was born

in the house called the 'Scharfes Eck' (hotel). At the S. end of the

town is the Gothic parish -church (14th-16th cent.). Overlooking

the town on the N. is the well-preserved stronghold of Rosen-

herg (1240 ft.), dating from the 16th cent., with a 13th cent, keep

(small museum, 30 pf. ; rfnits. in summer). — We now follow the

pretty Eodach-Tal. — 131 M. Kiips, a village with a porcelain

factory and a Schloss. — ^ear (136^,0 M.) Hochstadt-Marhtzodn
we join the line from Hof. Thence to Xuremberg and Munich,

see pp. 135-140.

b. Via Hof.

3471/0 M. (via Ingolstadt or Augsburg). Express in 10-13 hrs., via

Bayreuth and Xuremberg (pp. 190, 189) in IO-IOV4 hrs.. via Marktredwitz
and Xuremberg (pp. 228, 191-189) in 11 hrs.: fares as via Saalfeld (R. 20a).

Comp. also R. 32. — From Leipzig to Nuremberg, 223V.2 -^t.. express in

6V9-7V4 hrs., via Bavreuth in 6'/., hrs., via Marktredwitz in 61/4-7 hrs.

(27\* 10, 17 Jt 40, 10 a 90 pf.).

From Leipzig via Alfeuhun/ to Plauen, see Baedelej-'sXortheni

Germany.
76 M. Plauen (1348 ft.; Hot. Deil, Wettiner Hof, Plauener

Hof; American consul; pop. 121.000), on the Weisse Elster, is the

capital of the Vogtland and the centre of the Saxon lace and em-

broidery industry. AboAe it rises the old Schloss Hradschiu.

From Plauex via Egek to Wiesau, 62 M., railway in 23/^-41/4 hr.s. —
The line crosses the Syratal-Briicke (105 ft. high) and leads through the

picturesque Elster-Tal. with numerous factories. — 20V->M. ^<^Zo/-/". Branch-
line to Asch, see p. 133. — 221/2 M. Bad Elster (Hot. Wettiner Hof, Hot.
de Saxe, etc.), with alkaline and saline springs. — We cross the water-
shed between the Elster and the Eger. — At (371/., M.) Voitersreuth, the

Austrian frontier- station, luggage is examined. — 42 M. Franzenshad
(1475 ft.; Hot. Kcinigsvilla. Grand, Post, Bristol, Hiibner: Erzherzogin
Gisela , opposite the station) , a watering-place with fourteen mineral
springs for drinking and bathing and mud-baths, is the junction for Hof
(p. 133). — 46 M. Eger (Rail. Restaurant: Hot. Kaiser Wilhelm, at the
station; Zwei Erzherzoge, Xeuberger). an old town of 28,000 inhab., situ-

ated on a hill on the right bank of the Eger, is known as the scene
of Wallenstein's assassination on Feb. 25th. 1634, in the present town-hall.
The Kaiserburg has been in ruins since 1742. From Eger to Carlsbad,
Prague, and Vienna, see Baedeker's Atistria : to Nuremberg, see R. 26.

— Beyond Eger the train leaves Austrian territory. — 531/.2 M. Waldsassen
(Hot. Bayriseher Hof, 'Zum Kloster), with an old Cistercian abbey (hand-
some baroque church, 1681-1704; tine carving in the library). — 59 M.
Mitterteich. To the right is the Kosseine (p. 159). — At (62'M.) Wiesau
(p. 228) we join the line from Hof.

The line turns to the AV. in wide curves. — 82\'.>M. Mehltheuer.
— Beyond (91^ .2M.) Reuth we enter Bavaria. The Fichtel-Gebirge

(p. 155; become visible on the left.
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105^/2 M. Hof. — Railway Restaurant. — Hotels. Kaiserhof, R
Vj.^-l JC, WittelsbacJierHof, at the station; Central-Hotel, Sonnen-'Pla.tz,

R. 2-21/2 -A!; Frankischer Hof, Bismarck-Str. 21, R. Vl^-2^j., JC. — Tram-
way from tlie station to the cemetery via the Bahuhof-Str., Bismarck-Str.,
Altstadt, Liulwig-ytr., A^orstadt, and Schleizer Land.stras.se.

770/(1610 ft.), a town of 41,100 inhab. on tbc left bunk of the

Saale, is the head-quarters of the woollen and cotton industry of

Upper Franconia and the junction of the line to Munich via Ratis-

bon (R. 32). On the W. side of the Ludwig-Str., J/., hr. from the

station (tramway, see above), is the Rathaus, built in 1568-6 and

altered in 1823, with a lofty tower. Opposite is the Micliaels-Kirche,

consecrated in 1299, but also subsequently altered. On the The-

resienstein, 12 min. from the Rathaus (from the tramway station

in the Schleizer Landstrasse to the right along the 'Sand', then to

the left), is the Stadt-Park (restaurant); -I^M. farther to the N.E.

is the Lahyrinthenherci (1865 ft.), with a ruin and a belvedere.
Branrh-line via '12M.i Naila (to Sclnvarzenbach . see below) and

(l.^)M.) HuUen-Tai to (17 M.) Bad Steben (190.5 ft.: *Konigliehes Knr-
Hotel. R. 2-8. B. 1, D. 1 ^ 60-2 J6 50 pf.. P. 7-12, omn. 1/2 -«•• Bayrisrher
Hof), loftily situated chalybeate and mud Ijatlis, managed bv government
and well fitted up (visitors' tax 13 .« ; bath IJl 70 pf.-3 Is). The two
fhalybeate springs are used both for bathing and drinking. Xew Ivur-

haus, with a colonnade. In 1796-7 Alexander von Humboldt was mining
superintendent here (tablet). Excursions to the Hollen-Tal (Adam's inn),

which extends from the village of Holle (station, see above) almost to

(3/^ hr.) Lichtenberci, whence we may walk back to Bad Steben in 1 hr. ; to

the LangenaHei- Tal (rfmts. at tlie forester's), with the (IV2 hr.) Max-
Marien-Quelle (chalybeate spring); and to (Vl-^ hr.) Blankenberg, prettily
situated on the Saale.

From Hof to Eger, 371/2 ^f-j railway in 2 hrs. — Si/o M. Oherkotzou
(see below). — 8i/., M. Rehati. On the" right rises the" Grosser Korn-
berg (p. 228). — 15y., M. Selb-Plosberg. Branch-line to (2i/.^ M.) Selh
(pop. 11,000). whence another line proceeds to (131/2M.) Holenbrunn (p. 228'.

— 201/.2 M. Asch (2100 ft.; custom-house examination; Hot. Geyer,
R. 2-^K: Post), a Bohemian town I1/4 M. to the X. of the station, with
22,000 inhab. and important weaving industry. Fine view of the Fichtel-
Gebirge and the Bohmer-Wald from the tower on the Hainberg (2455 ft.),

1/... hr. N. Branch-line via (2 M.) Asch-Stadtbalmhof to (18 M.) Adorf
(p. 132). — From Asch via (33 M.) Franzensbad to Eger, see p. 132.

The line follows the winding Saale. — 109\'2 ^^- Oherkotzau
irail. restaurant), where the line to Eger (see above) diverges on

the right, and that to Ratisbon and :^[unich (R. 32) on the left.

121 M. Miinchberg (1830 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Harttig),

an industrial town with 6600 inhabitants.
r,raiHh-line X.W. to (6 M.") Helmbrcchts (2020 ft.; inn), whence the

Dobraberg (2605 ft.), the highest point of the Frankenwald, may be
ascended in li/o hr. (view-tower; extensive panorama). Descent "W. to
(i/o hr.) ScJiwarzenbach am Walde (2200 ft.; Hot. Lamm), a summer re-

sort with 1600 inhab.. terminus of aline to (6 AI.'i Naila (.see above). From
Schwarzenberg a picturesque forest-path leads via Geroldsgrfin to (2i/o hrs.)

Steben (see above).
Branch-line from Miinchberg S. ^Map, see p. 1551 to (6M.) Zell in Ober-

franken (2020 ft.; Hot. Rotes Ross, Leupold), whence the *Grosser Wald-
stein (p. 158) may be ascended direct in 1 hr., or in I1/2 hr. (guide useful)
via the Source of the Saale (2315 ft.) and the Bdrenfang (p. 158).
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stein, Schneeberg, and Ochsenkopf, the highest points of the Fichtel-

Grebirge. Comp. the Map, p. 155. — 131 M. Falls. Branch-line E.

to (3M.) Gefrees (p. 156), whence motor-omn. run to Bayreuth and

to Markt-Redwitz (see p. 155). — 134 M. Marktschorgasf {1660 ft.

;

Hot. Goldener Lowe), in the valley to the right. Road through the

Knoden-Tal to Berneck (p. 156; 37-2 ^l^-)- — The engineering of the

line here is interesting (gradient at iirst 1 :40); cuttings, embank-

ments, and bridges follow one another in rapid succession. To the

left in the distance is the Abbey of Himmelkron (p. 155).

138^/2 M. Neuenmarkt -Wirsherg (1150 ft.; Rail. Restaurant;

Bahnhofs-Hotel), junction for Bayreuth and Bischofsgrun (pp. 151,

155). About 14 hr. N
summer resort. — 142'

'omn.) lies the healtli-resort of Stadtsteinach (1155 ft.).

146 YoM. Kulmbach (1005 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Krone,

Lange Gasse, R. 1-^^,.^Ji, B. 80 pf.; Goldener Lowe, Bahnhof-Str.),

a town of 10,700 inhab. on the Weisser Main, famed for its beer,

has remains of the old town-w\alls. From the station we follow the

Bahnhof-Str., after 3 min. cross the 'Kressenstein' to the left, and

follow the Lange Ciasse to the right to the (5 min.) market-place,

in which stand the Vereinshans and (behind, to the right) the Rat-

haus, with a facade of 1752. A little to the W.. in the Graben-Str.,

is the small Liiitpold-M7iseum (adm. 20 pf.), containing the Por-

bitsch treasure ^silver vessels of the early 17th cent.i and other an-

tiquities. We proceed E. to the Obere Stadt-Str., at the end of

which we ascend to the left to the Fetri-Kirche, a late-Gothic church

(15th cent.) with a baroque altar. Returning to the Obere Stadt-

Str., we ascend the Rentamts-Gasschen, to the right, past the Reut-

amf, a baroque building of 1694, to the Flasseubarg {1391 li.\

restaurant), formerly the residence of the Margraves of Branden-

burg -Kulmbach. The main part of the building was erected in

1559-69. In the outer court is the arsenal, with a portal of 1607,

adorned with a relief of Margrave Christian on horseback. The inner

court is surrounded on three sides with Renaissance arcades. The

castle is open on week-days 8-12 and 2-6 fXov.-Feb. 9-12 and 2-4),

on Sun. 9-12 and 1-5; adm. 10 pf., incl. the apartments in the interior

20 pf. Good view from the 'rondell' to the W. of the castle.

Branch-line S. to (10 M.) Thurnau, with a Schloss of Count Giech
and a parish-church (ca. 1700; with a fine stucco ceiling. Tiiencc to Bay-
reuth, see p. 154.

Near (150 M.) Mainleus (995 ft.) the Weisser and Roter Main
unite to form the Main. — I5672M. Bnrgkundstadt (920 ft.), with

a timbered Rathaus (1689). — We are joined on the right by the

line from Saalfeld (p. 132). - 160V,, M. Hochstadt - Markfzeuln

(885 ft.; rail, restaurant).
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IGo'/s M. Lichtenfels (880 ft.; Rail. Restaurant : Hot. Krone,

iu the market-place, R. l^V^ '^ ; Bahnhofs-Hotel, Ankerj, with

4450inhab. and a basket-weaving school, is the junction of theWerra
line (to Coburg- and Ei.senaeh; see Baedeker's Northern Germany).

From Lichtenfels to Ban'z, 1 '4 hr.'s walk (carr. G o// there and

back). From the station we walk straight on, turning to the right

after 2 min. into the Bamberger Str. In 9 min. more we take the

avenue to the right, pass under the railway to the left, [and cross

meadows, leaving Beundorf on the left, to (40 min.) the ferry

at Hansen. We cross the river (5 pf.j to the Restaurant Fahrhaus,

on the right bank, and follow the Main to the porcelain-factory;

opposite the bridge wc ascend through the wood to (20 min.) Banz.

The once celebrated Benedictine abbey of *Banz (1380 ft.i,

founded in 1069, was dissolved in 1803. The extensive buildings,

beautifully situated on a wooded height 525 ft. above the Main, date

mostly from the 18th cent, and now belong to the widow of Duke
Charles Theodore of Bavaria. The interior (visitors shown round

in '/._, hr.
;
gratuity) contains a collection, of fossils found in the lias

of the neighbourhood (fine saurians, ammonites, etc.). The Descent

from the Cross, a relief in silver in the chapel, presented by Pope
Pius VI. to his godson Duke Pius of Bavaria, is erroneously attrib-

uted to Cellini. The interior of the baroque abbey-church (1710-18)

is arranged for picturesque effect (best view at the entrance, whence
no windows are visible). The terrace on the S, side of the abbey

affords a delightful view, with Yierzehnheiligen and the Staffelberg

in the foreground. Good hotel (P. 4-5 c^), — From Banz we may
descend via Unnersdorf to Staff'elstein station (p. 136) in ^^ lir.

(up in 1 hr.).

• Opposite Banz, on the left bank of the Main, 1 lir. from Lichtenfels
(ascending to the left at a cross beyond Sei'belsdorf, to the S. of Lichten-
fels; carr. via Grundfeld 41/9 Ji there and back), is the abbcv-church of

Vierzehnheiligen (1270 ft."; Hot. Hirseh. R. 80 pf.-lVa <^), "visited by
50,000 pilgrims annually. It was begun in the rococo style in 1743 by
J. B. Xcuiiianu (p. 118) and ounipleted in 1772. The interior is even
more bizarre than that of the Banz churcii (see above). The Gnaden-Altar
in tlie centre of the nave marks the spot, where, according to the legend,
the 14 'Notlielfer' ('helpers in need', i.e. patron -saints against various
diseases and other evils) appeared to a shepherd-boy in 14J."), and gave rise

to the foundation of the churcli. Festival on the 4th Sun. after Easter.
Farther S. rises the Staffelberg (177.) ft.), ascended from Vierzehn-

lieiligen in IVj^'i"- (finger-posts), from Staffelstein station (p. 130) in I'/ihr.

by a steep and rough path. Its steep limestone clififs rise in terraces
('Stal!Vln ) to a height of 920 ft. above the Main. On the top are a chapel of

St. Adelgundis and a hermitage (rfmts.). Prehistoric implements liave been
found here. The tine view has been celebrated by Scheffel : to the N.
lie the Tliiiringer Wald, with the fortress of Coburg in the foreground,
and the Frankenwald ; to the E. stretch the Fichtel-Gebirge (with tlie

Sehneeberg and Ochsenkopf) and the Franconian Jura ; to tlie S. we see
the Altenburg near Bamberg, with the Steigerwald behind it; and to

the W. are the valley of the Main, with Banz, and the Grabfeldgau and
Rhiin-Gebirge beyond.

n*
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The train leaves Vierzehnlieiligen aiul the Statfelberg to the

left, and the Abbey of Baiiz to the right. — 169 M. Staffelstein
' 865 ft. ; Hot. ziir Post l The ancient town of that name (^Hot. Griiner

Bauni, Bar), with 1850 inhab., lies ^j^ hr. S.E., at the foot of the

Staffelberg (j). 135). It was the native place of Adam Ries (1492-

1559), the arithmetician, and has a Schetfel musenni. To Banz, see

p. 135. — To the left, near (173 M.) Ehensfeld, rises the Veitshercj

(1515 ft.), with a chapel and mined castle. — 180 M. Breitencjilss-

bach. On a height to the left stands the rnin of Giech (p. loi).

185 M. Bamberg (rail, restanrant, good; p. 145). The line

from Schweinfurt ('Kissingen: R. 21) joius ours on the right. —
We now traverse pine-plantations and hop-gardens. The railway,

high-road, Lndwigs-Kanal, and Regnitz run parallel as far as Fiirth.

— 1891/2'^!. Strullendorf.
From Strcllexdorf to Schlusselfeld, 20 M., branch-line in 2 hrs.

— We follow the valley of tlie Rauhe Ebrach to (5 M.) Frensdorf. To
Ehrach. see below. — Beyond (71/3 M.) Wingersdorf we follow the valley
of the Beiche Ebrach. — 10 M. Steppach-rommersfeldeyi. To the S. of
the village of Pommeisfelden and 1/2 hr. from the station is Count vou
Schonborn's *Schloss Weissensteirij built by Job. Dientzenhofer in
the baroque style in 1711-18. and accounted one of the finest chateaux of
the 18tli century. Magnificent staircase and banqueting- hail (open in

summer on Sat. and Sun., in winter dailv). Large parkT About 41/., M.
to the S. lies Hochstadt (p. i;".7). — 20 M. Schlilsselfeld.

From Strullendorf to Ebrach, 2.3 M.. railway in 2 hrs. •— To
(5 M.) Frensdorf. see above. — Beyond (81/., M.) Uptern/^uses we follow
the valley of the Mittel-EbracTi. — 2.3 M. "Ebrach (Hot. Steigerwald,
Wilz), with a celebrated Cistercian Abbey founded in 1127. now a prison.
The church, originallj^ built in 1200-82, was at one time the finest early-
Gothic structure in Germany, but near the end of the 18th cent, its

interior was entirely remodelled in the baroque style by Bossi. The
extensive conventual buildings were rebuilt by Leonh. Dientzenhofer in

1G87-98 and enlarged by B. Xeumann in 171fi. Omn. to Wiesentheid and
to Gerolzhofen, see pp". 127, 128.

195' oM. Eggolsheim. To the left rises the Jagersbw'g(118r>n.;
view), once a hunting-lodge of the Bishops of Bamberg (1730).

200 M. Forehheim(870ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. zur Eisen-

bahn, Zettelmaier, R. l-2Vo-//, both at the station), a town of 9150
inhab. on the Wiesent, near its confluence with the Regnitz, and on

the Ludwigs-Kanal, was already of some importance in the time of

Charlemagne. It carries on weaving, spinning, and paper-making.
Remains of the fortifications are still extant, including the I^urn-

berger Tor (1698), a little S. of the Parade-Platz. At the station

we turn to the right, after a few paces turn to the left along the

Eisenbahn-Str., cross the canal, and then follow the Kloster-Str. to

the Parade-Platz. Farther on we take the main street to the right

to (V4 hr.) the Rathaus-Platz. Here, to the left, stands the Rat-
haus (14th-16th cent.,). Behind it is the Gothic parish-church of

>S^^ Martin, with eight scenes from the Passion, of Wohlgemut's
school, on the jiillars of the nave. A little to the W., on the site
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of tlie Carlovingian palace destroyed in 1246, rises the Palace of

the Bishops of Bamberg (late 14th cent.). On the first floor is a

niuseum, with prehistoric antiquities; on the ground and second

floors and in the Kapellen-Saal are retouched mural paintings of

the 14th cent. (adm. 1 <Jl ; attendant opposite the portal).

Railway to Ebennaanstadt (Franconian Switzerland), see j). 160.

Branch-line TV. to (I41/2 M.) Hochstadt an der Aisch, an old walled
town of 1900 inhab., with a Schloss (now oflfices).

209^ 2 ^I- Erlangen. — Baihvay Restaurant. — Hotels. Trliger's

Baknhof-Hotd : Schican (PI. a : A. 2), Haupt-Str. 12, E. 2-4 JC, B. 80 pf.-

1 JC: Kaiserhof (PI. d: A. 2\ Gocthe-Str.. near the station, E. Vfyi^S;

,:Burgbg- 700Tn,Ea.tsX^
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Erlo.nqer Hof (PI. e; A, 2), at the station, E. 1 JC 70-2 .;« 50, B. 70 pf. —
Wine Eoom. Rimrod, Sehloss-Platz 3 (PI. A, 1. 2). — Beer Eestaurants.
Oppelei. Halbmoud-Str. 4 (PI. A, 2} ; Siedersbeck, Haupt-Str. 40 (PI. A, 1, 2).

— Post Office (PI. A, 2), Luitpold-Platz.

Erlangen (920 ft.), with 24,900 inhab. (one-third Catholics),

owes its prosperity mainly to French Protestants, exiled by the re-

vocation of the Edict of Nantes (1685), and to German Protestants

who took refuge here when the French devastated the Palatinate.

The University (1200 students) was founded in 1743 by Margrave

Frederick Alexander of Brandenburg-Bayreuth.

From the Bahnhof-Platz i^Pl. A, 2) we walk straight on, passing

the French Reformed church (1692), to the Luitpold-Platz (PL A,2j,

with a monument to Professor Herz (1816-71). To the left the
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Haupt-Str. leads X. to the old Schloss 'PI. A. 1, 2 : of the margraves,

bnilt in 1700-4. In front is a statue of the founder of the university

fp. 137) by Schwanthaler (1843i; opposite rises the Paidi Fountam
(1889/. with Tritons. Xereids, and bronze figures of Erlanga and

Alma Plater. The beautiful Schloss-Garten. behind the palace^

contains an unfinished statue in sandstone of the Great Elector

('1703' and a fountain with statuettes of the first French refugees

(1706 1. The garden is surrounded by handsome buildings, mainly

university institutes. In the S.^V. corner is the Kollegienhaus

(PI. B. 2 , erected by Scharf in 1889. Behind it is the Universitij

Library PL B. 2). containing 246.000 vols, and several rarities,

including a MS. Bible of the 12th cent.: also a valuable collection

of drawings by Xetherlandish and German masters of the IStli-

16th cent, iperhaps collected by Sandrart, p. 188), including sketches

by Diirer (20) and Peter Flotner. On the X. side of the garden are

the Botanical Gardens (PI. B, 1; open in summer 6-12 and 1.30-6^

Sun. 8-1: closed on Sat. at 4), on the W. side of which is a minia-

ture reproduction of the Jura. Farther W. is the Orangery (PI.

A, B, 1: 1704), with the royal picture-gallery, containing 125 works

by old masters ''open free on Sun. 11-1; at other times through the

keeper, gratuity; catalogue 20 pf.i.

Pleasant walks on the Eatsherg (belvedere and restaurant), to the

X.E., and the Burgherg. to the X. of the Altstadt. a spur of the Jura,

at the foot of which a fair is held at "Whitsuntide.
Branch-line E. via (12 M.) Eschenan (p. 189) to (171/2 M.) Grafenberg

(1425 ft. : Hot. zur Post"', a little town with a Schloss. prettily situated

at the foot of the Eherhavtsherg (1753 ft.; view). About 5 M. to the X.
(omn. in li 2 hr.) is the Egloffstein (p. 161). — Another branch-line runs

W. from Erlangen to (T'/, ^f-) Herzogenav.rach, i M- to the W. of which
is Mnnchaurach. with a 12th cent, church.

Beyond '212 M.: Elfersdorf, to the left, lies Schloss Gross-

grilndlach, formerly the convent of Himmelsthron, burial-place

of the 'White Lady' (p. 155'. — The line crosses the Ludwigs-

Kanal to '215 ^L. Vach and then crosses the Regnitz. — Before

reaching the bridge over the Bednifz we join the Wlirzburg line

(p. 128'^ to the right rises the Alte Feste )'p. 189». Comp. the Map,

p. 189. — 2181 o M. FUrth p. 189). — We cross the Ludwigs-

Kanal to (220' ^ ^^- Nilrnherg-Doos (p. 128).

223V .3 ^r. Nuremberg p. 163..

The railway to Munich again crosses the Ludwigs-Kanal, leaves

the Ansbach and Stuttgart line on the right, and turns towards the

S. — Beyond (229 ^ .3 M.) Reichelsdorf, with a large summer beer-

garden, the Rednitz is crossed.

234 M. Schwabach (1120 ft.: Hot. Goldeuer Engel, R. from

l<>^20pL; Schwarzer Bar), a town with 11,200 inhabitants. From
the station we walk straight on to (13 min. i the late-Gothic Protestant

St. Johannis-Kirche, erected in 1469-95. In the interior (verger in
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tlic Kircli-IMatz, in the sjjiall house lo the lel'l of the bookseller's} is

;i largi- altar-piece with *Carviug by Veit Stoss and paintings from
Wohlgeniut's studio (1506-8). In front of the choir, to the left, is

a tine Gothic 'iSakramentshauschen* (p. 170; 1505;, 40 ft. high. In

the Kosenberg chapel, to the left of the choir, are paintings by Martin

Schaff'ner 1?; Virgin in a garland of roses) and others. The Schoner
BruKiicn in the market-place dates from 1716.' 'Scbwabach type' is

an old-fashioned Gothic printiug-type. The 'Articles of Schvrabach'

foi'ni the Protestant creed adopted in 1528-9.

The line ascends the Rednitz. — Near (240 M.) Roth am Sand
(1110 ft.; Hot. Goldene Krone) is Schloss Ratihor (late 16th cent.).

FiJOM RoTii AM Sa>d to Gredixg. 21 M.. laihvay in 2. bis. — The
line leads tliroiigh the Rot-Tol to (7 M.) Hilpoltstein (1255 ft.), a prettily
situated little town with 1500 inhabitants. AVe then traverse a wooded
hill-country. — Beyond (21 M.) Hobiug the train follows the valley of
the Schuai-zach to"(24M.) Greeting (12(55 ft.), a pleasant village. Thence
to Kinding or BeUngries, -see pp. ii'6, 129.

Motor-oum. thrice daily from Koth to the W. via (6 ^M., in 1 hr.

:

50 pf.) Ahenhtrg (1-140 ft. ; Hot. ziir Post), with a Schloss (.15th cent.;

now a veterans' liome), to (I2V2 ^-l-) Windsbach (p. 37 ; l^/^ br. j 1 <^ 20 pf.).

Near (245 M.) GeorgensymUiid the Sckicdhische and FrOn-
kische Rezat unite to form the Rednitz.

Branch-line W. to (4V» M.) Spalt {WIQ ft.: Hut. Post, Krone , a small
town of 1800 inbab.. prettily situated on the Frankisclie Rezat, the centre
of the Frauconian bop-district. It was the birthplace of (1. Spalatin
(118-1-1545), the friend of Luther and Melancbthon.

The line now ascends the course of the Schwabische Rezat.

251 M. Pleinfeld (1215 ft.; Rail. Restaurant: Hot. zur Krone),

junction for the Xurembcrg and Augsburg line i)p. 191). On a wooded
eminence 1 hr. X.E. rises Schloss Sandsee (1495 ft.\ the property

of Prince Wrede. — 254 M. ElUngen (Hot. Romischer Kaiser), an

old town with 1660inhab., formerly a commandery of the Teutonic

Order. At the entrance to the town is the large Schloss of Prince

AVrede, rebuilt in the 1st lialf of th(> ISth century. Fine Rathaus

of 1746 and other rococo cditices.

2567o M. Weissenburg am Sand '1380 ft.; Hot. Rose, R.

1 Jl 80 ^t-?>JC : Adler, Post\ a picturesque old town of 7200 iuhab.

on the W. slope of the Frauconian Jura, was a free city of the

empire from 1306 to 1806. We follow the 8chanz-Str. and then the

Spital-Stf. to the left, with the Spital-Tor, to the market-place, on

the X. side of which rises the handsome late-Gothic Rathaus, \Yith

a portal of 1474. Close by, to the right, is the late-Gothic Carmel-

ite church (15th cent.). The adjacent Ellinger Tor has a well-

preserved 'Zwinger' (enclosure between the wallsi. The "Limes* fort

of Biriciana (comp. p. 214\ immediately behind the station, and

the collection of antiquities in the grammar-school deserve notice.

On a bill-spur ^V^ br. E. is the convent uf ]\'iilzburg (2060_ft. ; rfmts.).

now a convalescent liome for veterans, commanding a fine view. It was
founded in tlie Carlovingiau era, annexed bv the Margraves of Ansbacli
in 1510, and fortified in 1589-99.
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259^-2 M. Groithart. To the right of the station is the Fossa

Carolina, the remains of a canal beg-un by Charlemagne.

262 M. Treuehtlinge)! (1030 ft.; Rail. Restaurant: Hot.Poujol\

junction for tbeWtirzburg and Munich line (p. 224). Thence to

(347V'o M.) Munich, see pji. 224-227.

21. FromWiirzburg toBamberg. Kissingen.
62 M. Express in Is/^-L' lirs. ^8 ^H, 90. 5 JC SO. ?, JC 70 pf .} : ordinary

train in 3 lirs. (7 c.« 90, 4 .-« SO. .3 .« 20 pf.). — From Schweinfnrt to

Kis.siugen, see p. 141. From Wiirzliur£j to Kissingen in 2-3 hrs. (5 JC 10,

3 ^fi 30, 2 ^ 20 pf. ;. expres.s 5 Jt (JO, 's .« 80, 2 .« 4-3 pf.).

Wiirzbnrg, see p. 117. The Bamberg line runs E. to (5 M.)

Piottendorf (p. 127) and then turns N, — lOV 2 M- Seligenstadt.

From Seligexstadt to Volkach, 7 M., branch-line in 40 min. —
5 M. Vogelsburg, an old convent (rfrats.). — 6 M. Astheim has an old

abbey-church with a Eenaissanee portal. — 7 M. Volkach (Hot. zur Post),

an ancient town on the left bank of the Main. About V2 'i^"- upstream
is the pilgrimage-church on the Kirchberg, with a Madonna by Riemen-
schneider (1521). Gatbach, I1/4 M. from Volkach, has a 17th cent. Schloss
and a i-hurrh built in 1710-4.") by Baltli. Xeumann (p. 118;.

141/2 M. Bergtheim {9do ft.). — 20 M. Waigolshausen, junction

for Gemtinden (p. 114). About ^

'2 hr. X. is Werneck fHot. Krone-

Post, 5 min. from the station), a little S. of which is an old summer-
residence of the Bishops of Wiirzbnrg, built in 1731-47 by B. Xeu-
mann (p. 118), with fine gates by J. G. Oegg. It is now a lunatic

asylum. — The line approaches the Main.
26^2^^- Schweinfurt-Haupthahnhof {YA\\. restaurant; horse-

tramway to the town), junction for the lines to Kissingen and
Meiningen (pp. 141, 145), Gremiinden (p. 114), audKitzingen(p. 127).

281/2 M. Schweinfurt. — Hotels. Krone, Ruckert-Str. 22, R.
11

j2-S Ji:"Central , R. from IV-, ^A(; Deutsches Haus. Brucken-Str. 37, R.
1 JC .30-2 JC 30, B. 60 pf., D. li/.j .€ : Babe, Markt 21/ R. 2. B. 3/4, D. 2 JC.

— Wine at Gossicein's, Fischerrain 67. — Cafe Schneider, in the
market-place.

Schweinfurt (715 ft.), with 27,000 inhab., on the Main, was
a free town of the empire until 1803. It is noted for its steel ball

factories and dye-works ('Schweinfnrt green'), and a large cattle-

market is held every fortnight. From the station we turn to the

left, and beyond the bridge over the Marienbach we turn to the

right. "NVe then follow the Rlickert-Str. to the left to the flO min.)

market-place, which contains a statue of Friedrich Biicl'ert, the

poet (1788-1866 1, by Riimann. At the corner of the Riickert-Str.,

to the right, is the house in wliich Rilckert was born. The hand-

some Bafhaus. on the left, erected by X. Hoffmann in the German
Renaissance style in 1570-72, is one of the best buildings of its

kind. It contains the Museum of art-objects and curiosities (adm.

9-12 and 2-5; ticket 50 pf.. available also for the Altes Gvmnasium)
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A little to the N. is the late-Romanesque Protestant Johannis-

Kirche, spoiled by rebuilding in the 14th century. To the N. of

the church is the Altes Gymnasium, founded in 1631 by Gustavus

Adolphus; on the first floor are the Riickert Room and the Schuler

Collection of birds and birds' eggs (adm., sec p. 140; kev at Kirch-

Platz 6).

Vicw-toweis on the Pcterstirne. V* J""- ^-K- ^^ the town, and on
the AV. side of the Hainicald, Vi lir- farther on. From the Peterstirne
a path, affording good views, leads via the Wilhelmsruhe to (10 miu.)
Mainberg (see below).

The line follows the Main as far as Bamberg. — Nt-ar (31^2 ^^-i

Schonungen, on a hill to the left, is Schloss Mainherg. — 39 M.

Obertheres. To the left is Schloss Theres, founded as a seat of

the Babenbergs before 900 and converted in 1043 into a monas-

tery, which Avas dissolved in 1803.
"42 M. Hassfurt (740 ft. ; Hot. Post i, an old town of 2700 inhab.,

with the Gothic Marien-Kapelle or Ritter-Kajjelle 15th cent.).

On the outside of the choir are the armorial bearings of the

members of a noble brotherhood, who contributed to the cost of

building the chapel. Others are carved on the pillars and on Ihe

vaulting in the interior (226 in all).

Branch-line X. in 3/^ hr. to (10 M.) Hofheim, via (5 M.) Konigsberg
(Hot. Goldener Stern; pop. 860), in the Duchy of Coburg, birthplace of

the mathematician Johann Miiller. surnamed Rcgiomontanus (1436-76;.

The Marien-Kirche, dating from 139T-M32, Avas restored in 1904.

461 ^
]\]r ^f,^i ]^J^5 J^ diapel on a hill, with two towers. —

491 2
^^' Ehehhach. To the right, on the left bank of the Main,

lies the small town of Eltmann, commanded by the ancient watch-

tower of the castle of Waldhurg. — 58 M. Oberhaid. To the right

the towers of 8t. Michaers, the' Altcnburg, and the four cathedral-

towers become visible. The Main is crossed. To the left is the

ruin of Giech (p. 151).

62 M. Bamberg (p. 145).

From Schweinfurt to Kissingen, 14' 2 M,, railway in 35-

60 min. The trains start from the Haupt-Bahnhof (p. 140). —
S'/aM. Ebenhausen (Bahnhof-Hotel, R. 1-1V2^)- To Meiningen,

see p. 145. — "We skirt wooded hills, pass the ruin of Bodenlaube

(p. 143), and enter the valley of (14i
2 '^^) Kissingen.

Kissingen and its Environs.
Hotels several ilnsed in winter\ *I\i'rhaKS (PI. C, 3; open April-

Oct.). Kurhaus-Str. 1, with baths, R. from o, B. IV2. D- J^Va- board 9 .M

:

*Palast-Hotel Sanner (PL d; C. ."1). R. (some with baths > from 4, B. 1»/....

D.41'0, P. from 12.«, *H6t. <le Rt>s.-<ic (PI. a; C, 41, R. from 4. P. from
11 .^'*Viktnria <( Raiserhof (VI. b: 0. 4). R. from 41/2. B. l'/.,, P. 12 .A.

all three in tlie Knrhaus-Str. : *E)igli.schci' Hof (PI. e : C, 3), Theater-
Str. 6. P. 81V12 .«: *Hot. & Villa Dia7i<t (PI. : A. 4), Bismarck-Str. 10.

P. from ll»i.«. *3retrolwlr (PI. m: A. 3). R. 3-12. B. IVa- P- from 10^.
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*Regina (beyond PL A, 3, 4), Schornborn-Str., R. Si/j-lO, B. li/.^, D. 3-4,

P. 9-15 JC, *Bi'istol (PL i; A, 3). P. from 8V2 '^j these four beyond the
Saale: *Zapf (PL 1; D, 4), near the station. — Wittelsbach (PL f ; B, 2),

Markt-Platz 1. R. from 8, B. 1 ^M 40 pf
.

; BMel (PL n; C, 3), Prinz-

regenten - Str. 2, R. 3-5, B. 1 c^ 30 pf., P. 8-11 ^; Park-Hotel (PL p;
C, 6), Kurhaus-Str. 21, near the station, new; Prcussischer Ilof (PL h

;

C, 2), Ludwig-Str. 10, R. 2-4^; Hot.-Rest. Fedevheck, Hartmann-Str. 27

(PL C, D, 2); Berzfeld, Max-Str. 4 (PL B, 2), Jewish.

Hotels Garnis. Grand-Hotel Garni, Kurhaus-Str. 32 (PL C, 4), near
the Neuer Kur-Park ; Will, Kurhaus-Str. 26, near the Kur-Cxarten ; BaUing-
haits, Theater-Str. 3 (PL C, 3), with garden; Villa Elsa. Prinzregcuten-
Str. 9 (PL C. 8, 4); Herramhof, Schlos.s-Str. 2 (PL C, 4), P. 20-35 .« per
week; Villa Bauer, Balliug-Str. 1 (PL C, D. 3); Weinberger, Ring-Str. 3

(PL D, 4), board 8 .^ ; Eieger, Kurhaus-Str. 10 (PL C, 3, 4). — Beyond
the Saale: Fiirstenhof, Bismarck-Str. 21, P. from 10 ^H, ; Bismarck'hans
(p. 143) ; Bergschlosschen, Altenberg 8, P. 7-12 J{. — Numerous Lodgings.

Restaurants. Kursaal, at the Kouversatious-Haus (PL B, 3); Casino
(p. 143) ; Messerschmitt, to the N". of the Kur-Garten : Federbeck, Biidel
(see above); Fruhlings- Garten, Friihiing-Str. 9-11 (PL D, 3); Lawcnbrdu,
at the Preussischer Hof (see above); Schiceizerhaus (PL A, 2) ; Schweizer-
hduschen (PL A, 4), on the Altenberg. — Wine Rooms. Altdeutsche
Weinstube, Markt-Platz 16 (PL B, 2), D. 2-2\i^ JO; Ratskeller, Markt-
Platz 11; Karen, Wein-Gasse 1 (PL B, 2).

Cabs. From the station to the town 1, for 2 pers. li/u, for3-4pers.
2 JC; with two horses IV2. 2, 3, or (5 pers.) 4 J6. By time: 1-4 pers. for
'4 hi.-. 1 f'li, for each Vi hr. more 60 pf. ; with two horses I1/2 =-^ and 80 pf.
— Carr.-and-pair (there and back : gratuity extra) : to the Salinen-Bad
in the forenoon S'/VlVa, in the afternoon 41/2-5V2 =^y to Bocklet 14 JC
(with 1 hr.'s wait); to Bad Briickenau 30 JC.

Post & Telegraph Office (PL C, 2, 3), Ludwig-Str. 12.

Theatre (PL C, D, 3), for comedies and operettas. — Band in the Kur-
Garten. — Reading Rooms at the Konversations-Haus (PL B, 3).

Visitors' Tax (season April Ist-Oct. 15th}. 1st class 30 ^. for the
second member of a family 14, for each member more 9 JC: 2nd class

24, 91/2, and 41/2 ^; 3rd class 14, 6 and 8 t/lt. Municipal tax i/.^-l •^•

Baths (l^V^ ^^'^ at the Kurhaus (p. 141), the Prinzregent-Luitpold-Bad,
and the Salinen-Bad (p. 143); Kurmittel-Haus (PI. B, 2, Salinen-Prome-
nade. — Sanatoria. Dr. Dietz, Schloss-Str. 5-6 (PL C. 41; Dr. Dapper
(PL D, 4), Ring-Str.l; Dr. Pick (English), Kurhaus-Str. 6 (PL C, 3, 4).

Inquiry Office in the pavilion by the Ludwig-Briicke.
Motor Omnibus several times daily to (6 M.) Bocklet (p. 144) in 3/4 hr.

(1 JC 10 pf.); via fl2i/o M.) Geroda and ri7 M.) Pomershag (p. 145) to

(201/.2 M.) Briickenau (p'. 144) in 21/4 hrs. (3 l^ 20 pf.). — Omnibus to Havi-
melburg (railway under construction^ see p. 114.

Sport. Golf Links (9 holes), on the Euerdorf road l.eyond PL A, 6)

;

Teyinis Courts (PL B. 6), in the Lindesmiihl-Promcnadc.
English Church {All Saints'; PL C, 1); services in summer.

Kissivgen (660 ft.; pop. 5800) lies picturesquely in the valley

of the Ft^anMsche Saale, enclosed by wooded hills. The curative

properties of the waters were known as early as the 16th cent.,

and the Bishops of Wiirzburg took the place under their protection.

Though at the beginning of the 19th cent, it was still a mere village,

Kissingen is now the most frequented watering-place in Bavaria,

with 35,000 patients annually (many English and Russians). The
waters are ethcacious in affections of the heart and digestive or-

gans. — The gardens in front of the station (PI. 0, 6) contain a

war monument in the shape of a pretty fountain.
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The extensive Kur-Gai'ten (PL B, C, 3, 4), the principal pro-

menade, shaded by maples and chestnuts, is bounded by the old

Kurhaas (p. 141; and the Konversafions-llaus or Re(jenten-Baii,

rebuilt in 1911-13 by Max Littniann (p. 244;. In front of the latter

are a statue of King Louis I., by Knoll (1891;, and the 'Quellen-

gruppe', by M. Arnold. On the S. side of the garden is the Wandel-
haUe, also by Littmann (1910-11); at its X; end are the chief

drinking-springs, the Rakoczy and the Pandar, containing iron,

carbonic acid, and salt. On the ?^. side of the garden is the Max-
Brui'neii. resembling Selters water, with a small Greek temple.

In the Xeuer Kar-Parl', on the right bank of the Saale, stands

the Prinzrecient-Luifpold-Bad (PI. B, 4), a large edifice with two

wings (left, baths for ladies ; right, for gentlemen). The central block

contains the Casino, with a restaurant, in front of whicli rises a

statue of King Max II., by Arnold. — A tablet on the Bismarck-
Haus (PL A 3; commemorates the attempted assassination of Prince

Bismarck in 1874. — In tlie AVein-Gasse is the small Municijial

Museum {V\. B, 2; open Wed. and Sat. 10-12). — A little to the

E. of the Marien-Kapelle (PL D, 2) is a marble statue of Germania
Mourni)u/. by Arnold, commemorating the engagement between
the Prussians and Bavarians near Kissingen in 1866.

The Saline Springs, with extensive evaporating-sheds, situated

on the Saale, V/^'^l. to the K of the Kur-Garten, are reached by
steamer fevery 20 min., except from 12 to 2; fare 30, there and back

50 pf.). In the waiting-room of the Salinen-Bad is the Salinen-

Sprudel, an artesian well over 300 ft. deep (2"
.^ of salt; 61 ° Fahr.),

which alternately rises and falls in its glass-covered reservoir. Ad-
joining the baths is a cafe-restaurant. Xear it is a statue of Prince
Bismarck, who frequently resided at the Obere Saline, 5 min.

farther on (open daily 3-7 p.m. ; 50 pf.), — At the village of Hansen,

\ 4 hr. farther on, is the Schonhorn-Sprudel, al)0ve which rises a

tower, 105 ft. in height ladm. 4-6 p.m.). — About 20 min. N.E. of

Hansen, near the village of Klcinbrach, is the Luitpold-Sprudel.

A pretty walk, beginning beyond the tirst house in the Hain-

Str. (V\. D. 5) and ascending the steps to the left, leads to (25 min.^i

tlie ruin of Bodenlauhe (1130 ft.), the X. tower of which commands
a fine view (restaurant below the ruin). ~VVe may return by the road

via Unterhodenlauhen, Avith its old lime-tree. — Fine view also

from the Ludwigs-Turni (1265 ft.; 147 steps: rfnits.), 25 min.

X.W. The path ascends near the Schweizerhaus (PL A, 2\ keeps to

the left at (10 min.) the fork, and leads past the Jagdhaus (.right)

to (\ 4 hr.) the tower. — Above the station, on the E., is the Ballinf/-

Hain, with a monument to Dr. Balling (d. 1875). — Well-kept paths

lead to the Sfationsberr/ < 1150 ft. : restaurant), 20 min. S.E., beyond
the theatre; to the Lindes-Miihle. 10 min. S.; to the AUenberg,
1

4 hr. S.W.: to Garitz (p. 114), '
^ hr. S.W.. and the monastery of
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Aura (p. 114), 1% h^'- farther on; to the Scheinberg (1315 ft.i,

IVg hr. S., with the Wittelsbach-Turm, 110 ft. high (panorama);

to the Alfenburger HciKS, ^ ^ hr. X., at the mouth of the Kaskadeii-

Tal; to the A7a;<67io/'(restaurant), 1^/4 hr. K, in the woods, reached

bv the Briickenaii motor-omn. and also by omn. {VU ^^^ return),

and to the Klaus-Hohe (1340 ft.), 20 min.*^ farther on.'

Ascent of the Krei'zberg (see below): (1) via Bischofsheim, see p. 145 ;

(2) via Aschach (see below), and theuce via Premlch ami Waldberg or via
Sandhevg (school of wood-carving), iu 6-7 hrs. (road as far as Waldberg
or Sandberg).

Booklet (690 ft.), with powerful chalybeate springs and mud-
baths, is prettily situated on the Saale, 6 M. to the X. of Kissingen

(motor-omn. and carr., see p. 142), in a green valley surrounded by
wooded hills. Rooms at the Boyal Kurhaus, in Plank's Hotel,

and in various villas. Between the Kurhaus and the Badhaus with

its Trinkhalle is a small park with fine old trees.

About i/i hr. S. of Booklet, on the Saale. lies the village of Aschach
(station of tlie motor-omn. from Kissingen to Booklet), with the Schloss
of Count Luxburg. well restored in the mediaeval style. It contains a

collection of old driuking-vessels. wood-carvings, etc. (adm. in the absence
of the projorietor : gratuity). — Attractive excursion from Bocklet through
the Saale valley to (3 hrs.) Xoustadt (p. lio).

The third of the Franconian baths. 20' o M. to the X.W. of

Kissingen t'motor-omn. and carr., see p. 142), is —
Bad Briickenau. — Hotels. ^Eouigliches Kur-HoteJ, with nine

dependanccs, R. 2-6. B.l, D. from 2, P. 6V2-II cV/(; ^Schloss-Hotel, R. 2-3c^;
Fiiglein, R. IJi 20pf.-3c^. B. 1, board sy^-i ^ : Peuiiion Sinntalhof.
P. o^lo-l^l-, ^: Villa Heil. — Dr. SchJaginticeWs Sanatorium. — Visitors'
Tax (season May 15th -Sept. 15th; first three days free) 18 ^, second
member of a family 8, each member more 1 JC.

Bad Brilckenaih (985 ft.) lies in the grassy valley of the Sinn,

enclosed by wooded hills. In front of the Kursaal (restaurant) is

a figure of King Louis I., by F. von Miller (1897). A band plays

thrice daily in the Kur-Clarten. The Stahl, "Wernarzer. and Sinn-

berger springs, charged with carbonic acid, are beneficial in cases

of kidney disease, female complaints, etc. (4000 patients annually).
Beautiful walks iu the environs. Shadv paths lead X. through the

Uarthwald to (H/2 I'l'.) Kloster Volkersbcrg (rfmts.); W. to (2 hrs.)

Schicarzenfels, with its old castle; S. via the Sinnberg to the (2 hrs.)

Dreistelzberg (2165 ft.), with a view-tower (carriage-road as far as the
Dreistelzhof, V-.> I'l"- from the top).

The town of Briickenau (Hot. Bayriseher Hof or Post. Krone;

pop. 1800;, ^4 hr. E. of Bad Briickenau, has three mineral springs

and a bath-house (visitors' tax 15, second member of a family 5,

each member more 3 ^/l).

Fine excursion to the top of the Kreuzberg (3060 ft.), the highest
but one of the Rhon hills, 11/2 hrs. X.E. We may take the railway (p. 145)

to WiMfleclcen and walk up by a forest-path (blue and white way-marks)
in 13/^ hr. Or we may follow the road along the Sinn to (6 M.) Oberbach
(railway also to this point, see p. 14.5) ; thence we follow a path with
red and white way-marks to the (21/2 hrs.) Franciscan convent -(ijuartcrs
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for both sexes) and Braun's inn, 330 ft. below tlic top, which is marked
by a wooden cross. Extensive view of X. Frauconia to the "W. as far as

the Taunus, to the E. as far as the fortress of Coburg and the Ficlitcl-

Gebirg-e. The Stcig-erwald closes the view to the S., the Tliiiringer Wald
and the hills of Fulda to the X. Descent to Kissitifjen, see p. 144; to

Bischofsheim, see below. — For details of the Rhon district, aec Baedeker^

8

Northern Gerinany.

From Bruckexao to Jcssa, IOV2 ^^^ local railway in 1 hr. — li/i M.
Smntalhof (p. 111). — 2 M. Bad Briickenau (p. 144). Then along the
Sinn to (10»/.^ M.) Jossa (p. 113).

From Bruckenau to AVildfleckex, SVz M., local railway in V4hr.

—

21/.^ M. Rdmershar/. — 6 M. Oberbach (p. 144). — 8V2 M. Wildflecken.
Thence to the Krcuzberg, sec p. 144.

From Kissixgen to Meixixgex, 4fi M., railway in IV2-2V2 'ii"S- —
To (51/.J ^I.) Ebenhausen. sec p. 111. AVc diverge here to the "X. from
the Scliweinfurt line. — 9'/-2 ^1- Rolterahauscn. Branch-line to (IOV2 ^I-)

Stadtlauritiffen. — 15 M. Munnerstadt (Hot. Frankisclier Hof, Adler),
an old town of 2230 inhab. ou tlie Lauer. The late-Romanesque and
late-Gotliic parish-church contains a modern nltar incorporating four
statues from the old altar (early works of Riemenschneider) and a relief

of the Crucifixion, ascribed to Yeit Stoss. — 22 M. Neustadt an der
Saale (Hot. Ooldencr Mann, R. IVp-^ ^«, B. 60 pf., good

;
pop. 2160},

1/4 hr. S.W. of the station, is prettily situated above the Saale and en-
closed by a wall with towers. On the hill to the E. is (1/2 hr.) the
Salzburg, an ancient palace in the Romanesque style, probably built by
Chai'les Martel, now one of the largest ruins in Cxcrmanv. View from
the keep (10 pf.). At the fo^ot of the hill (V* hr. E. of Xeustadt) lies Bod
Neuhnus (Schloss-Hotel & Kurliaus, P. 41/2-6 t,^), with salt and carbonic
acid springs. Brancli-lincs, see below. — We leave the Saal-Tal and
turn to tlie left into the valley of the Streu. — At (36V2 ^I) Renticerts-
hatisen we cross the low watershed between the Saale and "Werra, and
descend to (41 M.) Ritschenhausen and (46 M.) Meiningen (see Baedekers
Northc rii Germa nij)

.

From Xeustadt (see above) to Bischofsheim, 12 M., branch-line in

11/4 hr. — The line follows the wooded valley of the Brend. -- ''2 M.
Brcndlorenzen, with a Romanesque church. — 12 M. Bischofsheim
vor der Khon (Hot. Rhoulust, xVdler, Lowe), an ancient town with
1300 inliHb.. lies at the X. foot of the Krcuzberg p. Ill}, which may be
ascended hcuec via Hasselbach in I'', 4-2 hrs.

From Xeustadt to Koxiusuofen ,
14i/.j M., branch -line in l',4 lir.

tlirotigh tlic attractive valley of tlie Frdukische Saale. — Konigshofeu
im G-rabfeld (Hot. Schlundhaus) is a quaint' old town with 1800 inhnb.
and an interesting late-Gothic church (1442-96).

From Kissingen via Hammclburg (railway under construction) to

Geinnndcn, see p. 114.

22. Bamberg.
Hotels. BcUcvhc (PI. c; C, 3), Schimlcins-Platz 1. R. 2-5, B. 1, D.

2-3 .«. good; National (PI. g; C, 1), Luitpold-Str. 37, R. P/4-3V2 c#, B.
90 pf., D. 1 .« 70 pf. ; Drcl Kronen (PI. d; B. 3). Lancre Str. 12-14. R.
2-4, B. 1, D. 21/2-3^. good; Erlangcr Hof (PI. c; C. 1), Luitpold-Str. 51,
near the station. — Lidtpold (PI. f; C, 2), Luitpold-Str. 11; Baumaiiii
(PI. a; C. 1). T,uitpold-Str. 45: DcKtsches HaHU (PI. b; C, 2), Obere
Konig-Str. 4, R. l.« 60pf.-3v«; Eisenbahn-Hotel, Ludwig-Str. 8, to the
right of the station.

Cafes-Restaurants. Hot. Belleiue. National, Luitpold, see above:
Eckenbiittner Sale. Franz-Ludwig-Str. 5a (PI. C, 2, 3): SchutzcnhoKS
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Schonleins-Platz 1 (PI. C, 3); Munchentr Haf, Hauptwacli-Str. 4 (PI. C, 2),

with garden: Schonlein, Friedricli-Str. 6 (PI. C, 3). — Wixe Rooms.
Messerschmitt, corner of Lange Str. and Promeuade-Str. (PI. C, 3) : Eats-
keller, Kessler-Str. 19 (PL B, C, 2, 3). — Beer Gardexs. Hofbra ii-Keller
(view of the Reguitz-Talj. Polorbdr, etc.. on the Stephansberg (PI. B, 4j

;

others on the Jakobsberg (PI. A, 3).

Cabs (stand.s at the station, Maximilians-Platz, and Sch6ulcin!5-Platz).

From the station to the town (level ground) 50-75 pf., with two horses
80 pf .

- 1 JC 20 pf . : to the Jakobsberg 1 ..^ or 1 ^« 80 pf
.

; to tlie Michaels-
berg li/o or 2 Ji : to the Altenburg (two horses) 5 c^. By time, within
the town: Vi lir- 50, with two horses 80 pf. : V" br. 1 c^ 'or 1 ,^ 60 pf.

;

1 hr. 2 .« or 2 Ji 40 pf.

Tramways (no cars after 10 p.m.). From the Station (PL D, 1) viii

the Hauptwach-Str. and Griiner Markt to the Schiceinfurter Str. (PL A, 1).— From the Infantry Barracks (PL E, 1) via the station, Luitpold-Str.,
Sophien-Str.. Schonleins-Platz, Obstmarkt, and Hauptwach-Str. to the
Hallstadter Str. (beyond PL B, 1). — From tlie Schonleins-Platz (PL C, 3)

to the Hain-Str. (PL C. 3, 4; Theresienhaiu).
General Post Office (PL C, D, 3), Wilhelms-Platz 3. Poste restante

letters and parcels are obtained at the post office by the station (PL D, 1).

Baths. Stadthad, Geiersworth-Str. 3 (Pl.B.S); Theresienhain (p.loOj.
with river-baths.

Chief Sights (5 brs.): Cathedral, Palaces. Michaelsberg with the view-
terrace, Theresienhain. Excursion to the Altenburg (p. 151; 2 hrs.).

Bamberg (785 ft.\ a town with 48,000 inhab., first mentioned
in 973, was erected into a bishopric by Emperor Henry II. in 1007
(archbishopric since 1817), and since 1802 has belonged to Bavaria.

It also possessed a university from 1648 to 1802. Bamberg lies in

the mild and fertile valley of the Begin fz (here separated into two

branches), 3 M. above its confluence with the Main. The Ludtvigs-

Kanal, which connects the Main Avith the Danube (comp. p. 212),

joins the Regnitz above the town. The Prinz- Ladicig-Hafeu
(1912), on the right branch of the Eegnitz, to the X. of the town,

marks the limit of navigation on the Main. The chief industries of

Bamberg are cotton-spinning, brewing, and market-gardeniug.

The Luitpold-Str. leads from the station to the town (to the

cathedral Y2 l^i'-)- ^^^ ^^^ left is the church of St. Gangolph
(PLC, 1, 2), founded in 1063, originally Eomanesque with a Gothic

choir, but much altered. — We next follow the Obere Konig-Str.

to the Ludwigs-Brilcle (PL C, 2), and then the Hauptwach-Str. to

the MAxmiLiAxs-PLATz (PL B, C, 2), in which rises the Maximilian
Fountain (PL 13), by F. von Miller (1880', with bronze statues of

Maximilian I. of Bavaria, Emperor Henry II.. his wife Kunigunde,
Bishop Otho the Saint, and Emperor Conrad III.

Farther on is the Gruxee Makkt (PL B, 2, 3). On the right is

the St. Martins - Krrclie (PL 1), built in the baroque style in

1686-93. The nave has waggon-vaulting; the crossing is adorned
with deceptive architectural painting in the style of Andrea Pozzo.

The tower, 180 ft. high, affords a good survey of the town. Ad-
joining the church is the Boyal Lyceum (PL 4). built in 1696-1719,

formerly the university (see above) and Jesuit college. The entrance.
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Jesuiten-Str. 2, leads into a court, at the back of wbicli are the en-

trances to the Linder Cabinet of Natural History (on the right;

shown at 10 and 11 on Sun. from May 1st to Oct. 10th; at other

times gratuity) and to the Royal Library (PL 5, B 2 ; on the lefti.

The library, formed by the union of the .Tesuits* library with col-

lections frou) several conveiits. now contains over 300,000 vols., ."100 in-

cunabula, and 4500 MSS. It also comprises tlie Heller collection of
:50,000 drawings, water-colours, and engravings, incl. works by Diirer and
Cranach. The exhibition-room (oi^en free on week-days 9-12 and 2-."), on
Suu. from May to July 10-12, from Aug. 15th to Oct. 15th on week-days
11-12 only; closed on Sat. afternoons; apply at the reading-room, 1st floor)

contains engravings (near tlic entrance); fragments of a MS. of Livy
(5th cent.: left row); fine parchments from the library bequeathed by
Emperor Henry II. to the chapter of Bamberg (from 6th cent, onwards',
incl. the -Bible of Alcuin\ probably written at Tours ca. 800 (Case XY).
and the prayer-books of Henry II. and his wife Kunigunde, with fine

Byzantine ivory diptychs of tlie 6th cent. ('? ; Case XYI) ; also valuable
ijindings and miniatures.

Farther on in the Griiner Markt, to the left, rises the Neptune
Fountain ('Gabelraann'; Pi. 14, B 3), erected in 1698. The Obst-

niarkt leads thence to the Ohere Briicl-e (PI. B, 3), a bridge over

the left arm of the Regnitz, completed in 1456, with a view down-
stream of tlie old fishermen's houses ('Little A^enice'). On the right

is a stone Crucifix of 1715. On a artificial island half-way across the

bridge stands tlie Rathaus (PL 7i. built in 1746-54 and adorned

externally with allegorical frescoes by J. Anwander. The old tower

above the entrance to the bridge i.s adorned with two rococo bal-

conies. — The Karolinen-Str. ascends thence to the Karolixex-
Platz, a square enclosed by the cathedral and the palaces. At the

E. end of the cathedral stands an equestrian statue of Prince-

Eegent Luitpold (PL 16), by F. von Miller (1899). In front of the

old palace is a statue of the prince -bishop Franz Ludirig von
Frthal (d. 1795; PL 15), by AN^idnmann (1865i.

The "^Cathedral (PL B, 3), with its four conspicuous eight-

storied towers (265 ft. in heighti, is one of the grandest Roman-
esque edifices in Germany. The original building was a flat-roofed

basilica, founded by Emperor Henry IL in 1004 and destroyed by

fire in 1081. The present church was erected on the old founda-

tions in 1237. The two towers at the E. end are Romanesque, but

the open-work turrets on the two "VV. towers reveal the influence

of the early French-Gothic style, which is also apparent in the W.
choir (completed at the end of the K^th cent.) and the transept.

The spires of the four towers date from 1767. The interior of the

cathedral is 312 ft. long, 93 ft. wide, and 83 ft. high. The *Sculptures

are among the best examples of German plastic art between the

lato-Romanesque and the early-Renaissance periods. Comp. p. xix.

The recessed Fursteii-rorta}. or main portal, on the X., facing the
Karolinen-Platz, resembles the 'Goldene Pforte' of Freiberg Cathedral;
its sculptures represent the Last Judgment (above the archilrave). the
Apostles standing on tlie shoulders of tlie Prophets. ;tnd symbolical figures
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of the Church (left) and Synagogue (right ; with its eyos bandaged). The
two portals on the E. choir are also embellished with sculptures: on the
left (S.) portal ('Adams-Pforte") are figures of St. Peter, Adam, and Eve
(right; the first nude statues executed since the classical period), and of
Henry II., Kunigunde, and St. Stephen (left; ca. 12i0) ; the right (X.)

portal ('CTnaden-Pforte') has columns with elaborate capitals, with the

Yirgin worshipped by saints above the architrave (ca. 1200?).

The *Interior (open 5.30-12 and from 2 till the Angelus) wa.? restored
under King Louis I. in 1832-7. The sacristan, who shows the choir-screens,
crypt, and treasury, lives at the S.W. corner, by which we enter the
church (for 1-3 pers. 1 ,^^, for each pers. more 30 pf.).

In the centre of the Nave is the *Tomb of Henry II. (d. 1024) and
Kunigunde (d. 1038), executed by Tilman Eiemensclineider (p. 118) in
1499-1513. On the ornate limestone sarcophagus repose the emperor and
empress, over lifesize, in the costumes of the 15th century. Reliefs on
the sides : (1) The Empress proves her innocence by walking over red-
liot ploughshares; (2) She pays the workmen emploved in building the
church of St. Stephen; (3) Death of the Emperor ;'

(4) The Archangel
Michael weighing the soul of the Emperor; (5) The Emperor cured of
an illness by St. Benedict.

By the pillar to the left of the steps leading to the St. George's or
E. Choir is an '^Equestrian Figure of Emjyeror Conrad III., who died
at Bamberg in 1152 and was buried in the cathedral (or of Stephen, King
of Hungary, who is said to have been baptized here; or of one of the
Magi); on the pillar to the right is a relief of the Annunciation. The
choir contains, on the right, the tombstone oi Prince-Bishop George II.
(d. 1505), from Peter Yischer's studio, and the sarcophagi of Bishop Giinther
(d. 1065; 13th cent.) and Bishop Otho II. (d. 1196; Romanesque). The
bronze Christ over the altar was designed by Schwautlialer. — The stone
screens separating the E. choir from the aisles are adorned with *Sculp-
tures of the 13th cent., revealing French influence. In six niches on the
S. side are figures in relief of the twelve Apostles, while in the seventh
niche is St. Michael and the Dragon. In similar niches on the X. side
are twelve Prophets. On the intervening pillar are three beautiful figures
of the Madonna, *St. Elizabeth (left: "also identified as St. Anne or a

sibyl), and the Angel of the Annunciation (right; 'The laughing angel").

—

The Crypt, below the E. choir, is severely Romanesque; the vaulting
is borne by 14 round and octagonal columns. It contains the simple
Sarcophagus of Emperor Conrad III and a well.

In the St. Peter's or W. Choir is the low marble sarcophagus of Popte
Clement II. (d. 1047), once Bishop of Bamberg, with reliefs of the
13tli cent. (?j. On the walls are the tombstones of the prince -bishops
Schaumburg (d. 1475; Xo. 34, right). Gross-Trockau (d. 1.501; Xo. 36,
left), Pommersfelden {({.IbO^; Xo. 37, right), the last two being from
Peter Yischer's studio, and George III. of Limhurg (d. 1522), on the left
wall, by Loy Hering, in marble. The choir-stalls date from the late

14th century. — On the wall of the S. transept, to the left, adjoining the
W. choir, is a Byzantine ivory crucifix presented by Henry il. in 1008.

The Astosius-Kapelle, in the S. transept, contains an altar-piece
by Lucas Cranach the Elder (?J, representing the rosary, with saints and
portraits of Emperpr Max I., Pope Leo X., and other princes of that
period. — A door in the S. transept leads to the Heilige Xagel-Kapelle,
added in the 15th cent., which contains 64 brasses of canons (1414-1540)
and a carved rcredos of the 15th cent.; it is divided into two aisles by
three columns and two pillars. — The adjacent Treasury (adm., see
above), especially rich in Romanesque objects, contains four imperial
mantles (11th cent.), the skulls of Henry II. and Kunigunde in costly
mountings, the Emperor's crown, sword, drinking-horn, and knife, an
Alexandrian glass vessel (1st cent. A.D.). the enamelled head of St. Otho's
crozier, the shroud of Bishop Giinther (d. 1065), with a representation
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of the East and West doing homage to Coustantine, a tall Romanesque
Easter- candlestick in bronze, vestments, liturgical ivory combs, reli-

quaries, portable altats, etc.

On the W. side of the Karolinen-Platz is the Alte Residenz
(AUe Hofhaltinig : PI. A, B, 3), with a lofty gable and handsome
uriel-window and gateway, built ca. 1570 on the site of an older

palace of the Counts of Babenberg, in which the Lombard kingBeren-

gar died in captivity in 9()() and Count Palatine Otho of Wittelsbach

slew Emperor Philip of Swabia in 1208. The courtyard is bounded on

the \V. by the old oflPices, picturesque frame-buildings with galleries

and exterior staircases (15th cent.j. — The N. side of the Karolinon-

Platz is occupied by the handsome Neue or Konigliche Resi-
denz, erected by L. Dientzenhofer under Bishop von Schonborn in

1695-1704. Here, on Oct. 6th, tS06,Xapoleon issued his declaration

of war against Prussia. The palace is open (entr. by the left portal;

50 pf.) 10-12 and 2-5 (Oct. -April 2-4), Sun. 10-12 only. In the

E. wing (right portal) is the Museum of the Historical Society

(Sun. 10.80-12; 20 pf.).

The Dom-Str., with the old canoni-ies. leads AV. from the old

palace to the Jakobsberg and the St. Jakobs-Kirche (PI. A, 3i,

a flat-roofed Romanesque basilica (1073-1109), with a Gothic W.
choir and an E. choir which was transformed in 1771 into a baro([ue

fa<;ade. To the Altenburg, see p. 151.

Short of the Jakobs-Kirche the Michaelsberg-Str. leads to the

right to the ^Michaelsberg (PI. A, 2i, with the conspicuous church

and other buildings of a Benedictine abbey founded by Henry II.

The court, which we enter by the W. gateway, affords a good picture

of a large mediceval convent, though the present buildings are later

than 1696. A staircase ascends to the St. Michaels-Kirehe, a

Romanesque basilica of the 12th cent., with Gothic additions. The

facade dates from 1700; the interior was altered in 1725-48 in the

baroque style and reiwvated at the end of the 19th century.

The Interior contains many tombs of bishops (16th-18th cent.), of

little artistic value, transferred hither from the cathedral. Fine 18th cent,

pulpit. Below the choir, umlcr the high-altar, is the toml> of St. Otho
(d. 1139), dating from the 1-lth cent.; on the lid is a figure of the saint.

Tlie statue at the back, in an earlier style, is also said to represent the

saint. Handsome rococo choir-stalls. On tiic ceiling are curious lio-

tanical paintings.

The S. wing of the abbey-building (in the court, to the right)

contains the Municipal Art Gallery fopen daily 10-12 and 2-5,

in winter 2-3, 50 pf
.

; free on Sun. morning: catalogue 50 pf.).

The PiCTPRE (tallekt begins to tlie right of the entrance. Room I.

S. German school of 1480-1520. -- R. II and III. Early Gorman schools
of 1500-80, including paintings by M. Wohlgemuth Hans von KnhnbacJi.
HcDis Baldung Grlen. B. Strigeh and Lucas Cranach the Elder (.'5. SS.

Willibald and Walburg adored by Bishop Eib of Eichstiitt). --R. IV-VIII.
Dutch and Flemish masters of the 16th-18th centuries. — R. IX and X.
Italian schools of U50-1780. — R. XI. Spanish works of the 16th-17tii

centuries. — R. XII. Frencli school of the 17th-18th centuries. — R. XIII.
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Various schools. — R. XIV. Objects of art and designs. — R. XVI.
German schools of 1580-1780. — R. XVII. Grcrraan schools of the 19th
r-entury. — R. XVIII. Works of early and modern." masters. — R. XIX.
Bamberg Room, with paintings in oil and on porcelain. — The rooms
to the left of the entrance contain the FAhnogvapTiical Collection lin

R. XXIV and XXV objects from Japan).

On the X. .side of the courtyard, to the right, adjoining the

church, is the old abbey, now the BiirgerSpital (PL 10; alms-

house); to the left are the secular buildings, with a brewery.

Passing the garden of the latter, we reach the terrace behind the

Michaels-Kirchc, where an avenue of limes aftbrds charming views

of the to\vn. Good cafe, much frequented in the afternoon.

From the Michaelsberg we go to the W., through the St. &etreu-

Str. and ne,ar a crucifix to the left to (6 min.) the Villa Benieis

(beyond PL A, 3), now a restaurant. — From the Michaelsberg the

Aufsees-Str., Elisabethen-Str., and Obere Sand-Str. descend to the

Rathaus ''p. 147), passing fine Stations of the Cross, by a sculptor

of the same t^'pe as Adam Ki-afft. From the Michaelsberg to the

Altenburg, see p. 151.

From the Obere Briicke fp. 147) we may ascend to the left

(S.W.) to the Pfahl-Platz and the Kaulbekg. On the Unterer Kaul-

berg, to the left, stands the Gothic Obere Pfarr-Kirche, or

Church of Our Lady (PL 2; B, 3), erected in the 14th century.

The interior of the nave was altered in the baroque style in the

18th century. On the >7. side is the Braut-Tiir, with an elegant

porch and figures of the Wise and Foolish Virgins. In the S. aisle

is a^ finely carved altar by Veit Stoss (1523). To the Altenburg,

see p. 151.

From the Pfahl-Platz (see above) we may go to the S. through
the Alte Jnden-Str., with the old Prellsches Haus (No. 14), in the

richest baroque style, and the Concordia -Str. to the Concordia
(PL 11; B, 4). a picturesque club-house on the river, with terraces

(best view from the 'Milhlworth' opposite, Pl."^ 4). ^Ve then ascend

the Stephansberg (PL B, 4), with its beer-gardens, and take the

Sternwarten-Str. to the left to the Observatory (Sternwarte; PL B,

4), with its two towers (fine view).

In the new quarter to the W. of the old town is the Wilhelms-
Platz fPl. C, 3), with the Law Courts I'Justiz-Gebaude: 1900-3)

and the General Post Ofjice (1905-8). Close by, in the Urban-Sir.,

is the Synagogue (1910). — Beyond the L-uitpold-Brilcke (PL D, 3)

lies the suburb uf Wunderburg. with barracks and market-gardens.

The *Theresienhain (PL C, 4; tramway, see p. 146), with its

old oaks, affords pleasant walks. A little to the S. of the river-baths

is a statue at King Louis II. in his coronation robes, by Kittler

(1910). In the middle of the wood is a cafe-restaurant. Pleasant

walk along the river to (^
.^ hr.) the village of Bug, at the S. end

of the park.





BAYR E UTK
1:27500
200 400 600

B4

Meter
Venkmnler

1 GrcUiCr
2 JeiutPaxd B4
3 ^[axxnuluLnE B4

4 Sarmonie B 4

5 Eerzogspulcus B 4

6 KaJhohEirche B 4.

7 P/ of^6'f Kirche B 4

8 SchloB.ultes
9 SchloB.neu^f. BC 1

I'd':

Georir. .\iist.V.Wagner A Debes .Leipzig



BAYKEUTH. 23. Route. 151

Three pleasant routes lead to the Altenburg. By the first

(35 min.; steep) we ascend the Unterer Kaulberg (p. 150), passing

the Carmelite Convent (PL A, B, 4 1, with its interesting Romanesque
cloisters (gratuity to the porter; ladies not admitted); we then follow

the 'Knocklein' to the right and the Altenburger Str. (PI. A, 4) to

the left direct to the castle. The second route (45 min.
;
good road)

ascends from the Jakobs-Kirche fp. 149) along the 'Jakobsberg' and

its continuation fkeep to the left at the top). A third route, still

longer, but affording extensive views of the Main valley, leads from

the Michaelsberg (p. 149) along the St. Getreu-Str., lastly through a

wood up the hill, where we turn to the left and ascend'the ravine. The
*Altenburg (1265 ft.), probably founded in the 10th cent., was

a stronghold of the prince -bishops from 1251, and was destroyed

in 1553 by Margrave Albert of Bayreuth, but was afterwards partly

restored. The new building of 1902 is occupied by a restaurant

(with beds). Fine view from the tower (165 steps; 10 pf. ; afternoon

light best). The 15th cent, chapel, restored in 1834, contains

16th cent, monuments and old stained glass.

Branch-line from Bamberg (3rd class only) in 1/2-^/4 l^r. to Schesslitz

(1015 ft.; pop. 1300), 8i/-i M. to the X.E. About 2 M. to the S. of it

lies Peulendorf (1310 ft.), a summer resort with the old episcopal

hunting-seat of Giech, now a sanatorinm (P. from 5 ^S). Excursions may-

be made hence to Pilnzendorf, 1/2 'ir. E.. near the 'Krippenfelsen' ; via

Weingarten to (IV4 M.) the ruined Schloss Giech (1745 ft.; rfmts. in

summer; fine view), and then on to the pilgrimage-chapel of Gilgel, V4 hr.

S.E. ; to the Stammberg (1835 ft.\ 1 hr. S., a plateau with a fprestef 's

house (rfmts.) and good points of view.
Other interesting excursions from Bamberg to Banz (p. 135). Schloss

Weissenstein (p. 136), Ebrach (p. 136), and the Franconian Sioitzerlanff

(p. 159).

YxomB^mhtxgxik Hof ov Saalfeld Xo Leipzig, see R. 20; io Nurem-
berg and Munich, see R. 20; to Wiirzburg, see R. 21.

23. Prom Neuenmarkt vi^ Bayreuth
to Weiden. The Pichtel-Gebirge.

49 M. Railway to Bayrerdh, 13 M. in 20-40 min. : from Bayreuth to

Weiden, 36 M. in 2 hrs. Express from Bayreuth to Munich in 5Vvi-6V2 ^I'S-

(23 JC 50, 15 JC 60, 9 .^ 70 pf.).

Neiienmarkt-Wirsherg., see p. 134. — 3 M. Trebgast, on the

Weisse?' Main. — lO^/o M. Bindlach, with a church illustrating

the transition from the rococo to the classical style. Near Bayreuth

the Wagner Theatre (p. 153) is seen on the right.

13 M. Bayreuth. — Railwag Restaurant. — Hotels (charges

raised everywhere during the Wagner performances). At the station:

Grand-Hotel (PI. c; C, 3), R. I'/o-o, B. 1. D. l^l-iJC, Post (PI. g; C. 3),

R. from 2 Ji, B. 80 pf., D. IVy -/K. both well spoken of; Bai/rischer Hof,
R. from 11/.2 ^. — In the town: Reichsadler (PI. b ; B. 4). Maximilian-Str.,

R. 2-3, B. 1 Jt, Goldener Anker (PI. d ; C. 4), Opem-Str. 6, R. from IV-.c^,

both well spoken of; Schwarzes Ross (PI. e; B, 4), Ludwig-Str. ; Tranbc

Baedeker's S. Crormany. 12th Edit. 10
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(PI. f; C, 4), Richard-Wagner-Str. 11, R. 1-2 JC. — During the Wagner
performances lodgings may be advantageously obtained through the
Wohnungs-Komitce, at the station.

Eestaukasts. Restaurant beim Festspielhaus (PI. C, 2), Riehenstahl,
Eichard-Wagner-Str. 55 (PL C, 4), with tasteful rooms, both open during
the "Wagner performances only ; at the Graiid-Hdiel, Post, and Schiuarses

Ross; Vogel, Luitpold-Platz 11 (PI. B, 4); Eolb's Hannickel, Luitpold-
Platz, D.'l^l^JC; Eide, Kirch-aasse 8, near the Rathaus (PI. B. 1); Sonne,
Richard-Wagner-Str. (PI. C, 4); Streil, Ludwig-Str. (PI. B, 4). — Wine
Rooms. Markqrafenhof, Luitpold-Platz 2 (PI. B, 4); Bdrenhduter,
Bad-Str. 8 (PI. 6. 4); Parsifal, Maximilian-Str. 15. — Cafes. Habsburg,
Luitpold-Platz ; iJ/sf /'ojJoZ, Wolfel-Str. ; in the Rbhrensee-Anlagen (PI. B, 5).

Post & Telegraph Offices at the station (PI. C, 3; poste restante)

and in the Kanzlei-Str. (PI. B, 4; main telegraph office).

Baths. Wagner-Bad, Stddtisches Bad, Bad-Str. 41 and 45 (PI. C, D, 4).

Inquiry Office, Opern-Str. 3 (PL B, C, 4).

Cabs. Per drive in the town (1/4 hr.), 1-2 pers. 50, 3 pers. 60 pf.

;

with two horses, 1-2 pers. 70, 3-4 pers. 90 pf. To the Wagner Theatre 2 J6

(3 pers. 2 cJ 70 pf.), with two horses 3JC; from the theatre to the town
at night 3 or 41/2 cS- To the Biirgerreuth, Rollwenzelei, or Geigenreuth
(a dairy adjoining the Fantaisie-Pai-k) 2 or 3 Ji; to the Eremitage 3 or
4-5 JC (during the Wagner performances 4 or 5-6 JC); to the Fantaisie
4 or 5-6 Ji; to the Waldhiitte 8 or 12 Ji. 'No charge for return; the
fares include 1 hr.'s wait (during the Wagner performances 1/2 ^r., at

the Waldhiitte 2 hrs. ; each 1/4 hr. more 50 pf.). Double fares at night.

No gratuities. — Motor Cabs (during the Wagner performances only).

In the town for 1/4 hr. 11/2 t^ ; to the Wagner Theatre for 1-2 pers. 4,

over 2 pers. 6 Ji; to the JSremitage and back (1/2 hr.'s wait) 5 or 7 <^.

Porter for 451b. 20 pf. per 1/4 hr., over 451b. 25 pf.

Bayreuth or Baireuth (1120 ft.), with 34,500 inliab.,'tlie capital

of Upper Franconia, in the broad valley of the Bote7' Main, was
the residence of the j\Iargraves of Brandenburg- Kulmbach from

1603 to 1769, and has been Bavarian since 1810. It is mainly in-

debted for its present appearance to Margrave Christian (d. 1655),

who transferred his seat from Kulmbach hither, to George William

(d. 1726), and to Frederick (d. 1763), husband of Wilhelmine, the

talented sister of Frederick the Grreat. Bayreuth is famous for its

association with Richard Wagner, who lived here from 1872-83,

and for the performances of his operas in the theatre specially

built for the purpose.

At the end of the street ascending to the right as we leave the

station is seen the Wagner Theatre (p. 153). To the left the Bahn-

hof-Str. leads to the Luitpold-Platz. Farther on, to the left, is the

Opern-Str., with the Opera House (PI. C, 4; 1744-8), richly de-

corated in the interior in the Italian baroque style (adm. 11-1;

30 pf.). The Opern-Str. ends at the Maximilian-Platz, whence the

Maximilian-Str. diverges to the "W., the Lud^vig-Str. to the S., and

the Bad-Str. and Richard-Wagner-Str. to the E. Wagner^s House,
Richard-Wagner-Str. 48 (adm. to the front garden only), built in

1874 by Wolfel, bears the inscription: 'Hier, wo mein Wahnen
Frieden fand, WaJinfriecl sei dieses Haus von niir benannt' (I call

my house Wahnfried because here my aspirations first found peace).

Above is a sgraffito representing Wotan as a wanderer. Wagner
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(d. Feb. 13th, 1883) is buried behind the house (apply to the

gardener; gratuity). At the corner of the Wahnfried-Str. and Liszt-

Str, is the house (No. 1 ; PI. C, 5; in which Franz Liszt isee below)

died in 1886. Opposite is an entrance to the Hof-Garten (see below;.

From the Maximilian-Platz (p. lh'2) the Ludwig-Str. leads S.

to the Residenz-Platz, in which is the Neiv Palace (PI. 9), erected

in 1754-73 in the baroque style. The left wing contains the col-

lections of the Kunst-Yerein and the Historical Society ^shown on

application). Behind the palace is the Hof-Garten, laid out in the

French style (military band on Sun.). The large Fountain (1700) in

front of the palace bears an equestrian statue oi Margrave Christia)i

Ernest (d. 1712). — At the S. end of the Ludwig-Str. rises Schwan-
thaler's statue of the humorist Jean Paid Bichter (PL 2 ; see below),

whose house is in the Friedrich-Str. (No. 5; PL B, 4, 5i.

From the K end of the Friedrich-Str. the Kanzlei-Str. leads

to the right to the Maximilian-Str. and the old palace. The Pro-

testant Stadt-Kirche (PI. 7; B, 4), built in the Gothic style in

1438-68, contains a fine high-altar of 1615. Beneath the church

is the Fiirsteu-Gruft, in which most of the princes from ca. 1600
to 1750 are interred.

The Old Palace (PI. 8), begun in 1454 and rebuilt after a lire

in 1758, is occupied by public offices. The octagonal tower in the

inner court (1603), with a spiral staircase and fine balustrade,

affords a good survey of the town and environs; key in the sacristy

of the Catholic church (see below) or in the Catholic clergy-house

(PI. C, 4; gratuity). In front of the palace is a statue of King
Maximilian II. (PL 3).

The Catholic Church (PI. 6), adjoining the palace, formerly

the palace-church, contains the tomb of Margrave Frederick and

his consort Wilhelmine (p. 152). — The Maximilian-Str. (market-

place) is embellished with three fountains. Some of the houses

liave tasteful oriel-windows. — In the cemetery to the W, of the

town (Erlanger Str.) are the graves of Jean Paul (d. 1825) and

Franz Liszt (see above).

About Y4 hr. N. of the station, on a hill, stands the Wagner
Theatre or Festspielhaus (PI. C, 2; 1245 ft.), built by Semper in

1872-6, where the 'Nibelungen-Ring' was first performed in 1876
and 'Parsifal' in 1882. The theatre, which has a concealed orchestra,

contains 1650 seats (25 ^/l each). — About 5 min. higher up is

the Bilrgerreuthj a restaurant with a fine view. About V4 ^*•

above the Biirgerreuth rises the Hohe Warte (1525 ft.; PL B, 1),

with the Sieges-Turm (55 ft. high), commanding an extensive view.

To theN.E. of Bayreuth, beyond the railway, lies St. Georgen,
commonly called the 'Brandenburger', a suburb founded by Mar-
grave George William (p. 152). On its N. side, 20 min. from the

station, is the former Chapter House (PI. D, 2) of the 'Ordre do

10*
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la Sincerite', instituted in 1712 by Margrave George William. The

meetings of the order were held in the neighbouring Ordens-Kirche

(PL D, 3), built in 1705-11. The balustrade of the gallery is adorned

with the arms of the knights down to 1767.

The Eremitage may Le reached on foot in 1 hr. (carr., see p. 152) by
following the avenue (PI. D, 5) past the RoUicenzel hm (half-way), where
a room often occupied by Jean Paul is shown (gratuity). Or we may take

the "Weiden railway to (21/2 M.) Evemitaqe station (p. 155), whence we walk
to the right (X.) through the village of Eremitenhof and ascend straight

on to (8 min.) the S.W. corner of the park: we then follow the arboured

walk, which ends at (6 miu.) the above-mentioned avenue, opposite the

Sonnen-Tempel. TheEremitage, with gardens, fountains, artificial ruins,

etc., was begun by Margrave George William in 1715. It is situated

on a hill (1250 ft.) washed on three sides by the Roter Main. From the

avenue we pass through an archway into a courtyard with the offices

(restaurant). A little to the W. is the Oberes SchJoss (adm., as for the

Unteres Schloss, 9-12 and 2-5; 50 pf
.

; vi.sitors ring), containing a hand-
some rococo music-room and a number of family-portraits, incl. Frederick
the Great as a child and as king, and his sister the Margravine Wil-
helmine (p. 152), who wrote her memoirs here. The Unteres Schloss is

a crescent-shaped colonnade with rooms behind it, encircling the 'Grosses

Bassin' (see below). The small central building is called the 'Sonnen-

Tempel'. The walls and pilasters are fantastically inlaid with coloured
stones, rock-crystal, etc. In the interior are portraits of Margravine
Wilhelmine, Frederick the Great as a young grenadier, and the Countess
of Orlamiinde (p. 155). The temple contains handsome columns of striped

marble. The Fountains comprise the 'Grosses Bassin', an imitation of

that at Versailles, a second basin a little lower down, and a grotto.

They are set in motion on week-days for 50 pf. per person, on Sun. for

20 pf. per person (minimum 2 J6) : gratis on Sun. about 6 p.m. (notice

given by the ringing of a bell).

About 11/4 br. "W. of Bayreuth (carr., see p. 152) lies Donndorf (good
inn), with the Fantaisie, a' country-seat built in 1765, now private pro-

perty (no adm.). The pretty park "is entered from the Hotel Fantaisie.

By descending through the park we reach (20 min.) Fantaisie-Eckersdorf
station (see below; few trains). — From Donndorf we may go on via

Oberwaiz to (2 hrs.) the forester's house of Watdhutte (rfmts. ; carr.

from Bayreuth in I1/.2 hr., see p. 152), near which is the wild ravine of

the Dilhlhach with the 'Teufels-Loch'.

From Bayreuth to Hollfeld, 2OV2 '^'^•> railway in 2 hrs. — We
describe a wide curve to the S. round the town. — 3 M. Bayreuth-Alt-
stadt{see below).— oK. Fantaisie-Eckersdorf (see above). — From (9V2M.)
31istelgau (1390 ft.) a pleasant walk leads via Glashiitten, Volsbach, and
Kirchahorn to (3 hrs.) Burg Raheyistein (p. 162). Or we turn to the

right at Volsbach and follow the Waischcnfeld road for 25 min., ascending
to the left at a lime-tree just before the road dips into the Zeubach-Tal.
From the ridge we have a view of the Franconian Switzerland. Thence
we go on via Hannberg to (3 hrs. from Mistelgan) Waischcnfeld (p. 163).

— We descend the Trnppach-Tal to (13 M.) Obernsees. — 151/2 M.
PlanJcenfels. Omn. to (IQi/.^ M.) Heiligenstadt (p. 160) in 23/j hrs. ; to

Waischcnfeld, see p. 160. — We ascend the left bank of the Wiesent. —
201/2 M. Hollfeld (1275 ft. ; Hot. Adams), a town of 1100 inhab., with a

church of 1774-7, containing paintings by Auwander.
From Bayreuth to Warmexsteinach, 141/2 M.. local railway in

11/2 hr. through the Steinach- Tal. — 8V2 M. Weidenberg (1415 ft.),

prettily situated at the foot of the Bocksleiie (1875 ft.
; V2 ^^-'i view). —

141/2 M. Warmensteinach, aud thence to the Ocbsenkopf, see p. 157.

Branch-line from Bayreuth to (16 M.) Thurnau (p. 134) in I1/2 hr.,

diverging from the Hollfeld line (see above) at (3 M.) Bayrev.th-Altstadt.
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Railway to Schnabelwaid (Nuremberg), see p. 190.

Motor-oBin. from Bayreuth (n^ar the station) via Berneck (p. 156:

90 pf.), Gefrees (p. 134), Weissenstadt (p. 157 ; 2 »-« 10 pf.), Eoslau (p. 228)!

Wtcnsiedel (p. 158; 3 ^«), and Alexandersbad (p. 158) to Markt-Bedwitz
(p. 191 ; 31/2 ^) ; the omn. run all the way (861/2 M., in 4 hrs.) once or twice
daily from May to Oct., at other times on Sun. and holidays only; more
frequent service on certain sections.

To tlie left, as we leave Bayreuth, are Si. Georgeii and the Ere

milage. — 2^/2 M. Eremitage (p. 154). — 25 M. Kirchenlai-
bach (rail, restaurant), junction for the Nuremberg and Eger

line (p. 191). — 29 M. Kemnath-Neusfadt (1475 ft.). On the

right rises the Ravher Kulm (2240 ft.; view-tower), to which

forest-paths ascend in ^/4 hr. ; on the left are the S. spurs of the

Fichtel-Gebirge. AVe descend along the Haidenaah. — 40 M.
Schwarzenhach. — Then through large pine-forests (Parksteiner

and Mantler Wald). — 42 M. Parksteinliiltten , 11,4 hr. N.E. of

which lies Parksfein (1950 ft.), on the summit of a hill of beauti-

fully formed columnar basalt. —49 M. Weiden (p. 229).

The Fichtel-Gebirge.

The Fichtel-Gebirge , situated mainly in the X.E. part of Upper
Franconia, consists principally of granite, gneiss, and crystalline slates,

and forms an important watershed between the affluents of the Elbe (Eger,

Saale), the Rhine (Weisser Main), and the Danube (Naab). It abounds in

pleasant valleys, massive crags amidst fine forest-scenery, and heights com-
manding beautiful views. — Granite and other quarries have now taken
the place of the old tin and gold mining and charcoal-burning industries.

The most convenient approaches are from Neuenmarkt-Wirsherg
(p. 134; branch-line to Bischofsgriln), Bayreuth (p. 151; branch-line to

Warmenstelnach or motor-omn. to Berneck, etc., see p. 154 and above),

Hof {t^. 133; railway via Miinchberg to Zell, via Kirchenlamitz to Weissen-
stadt, and via Holenbrunn to Wtoisiedel], and Markt-Redicitz (p. 191). —
Two days, with Neuenmarkt as starting-point, may be spent as follows.
1st day: Railway to Berneck and (IV4 hr.) Bischofsgriin ; then on foot viii

the Ochsenkopf and Schneeberg to (6 hrs.) "Weissenstadt. [Or railway
from Bayreuth to (I1/2 br.) Warmenstelnach, thcu on foot via the Ochsen-
kopf and Schneeberg to (7 hrs.) Weissenstadt.] 2nd day: Walk to the

top of the Waldstein and back (2V2 hrs.); motor-omn. from Weissenstadt.
or on foot via Birk in 21/2 hrs., to AVunsiedel ; in the afternoon ascend
the Luisenburg with guide and descend to (2Vo hrs.) Alexandersbad.
Thence by motor-omn. to Markt-Redwitz (p. 191), or on foot via the

Katharinenberg back to (40 min.) Wunsiedel. — The paths are well
provided with guide-posts and way-marks.

From Neuenmarkt-Wirsberg (p. 134) to Bischofsgrux, 13 M.,

branch-line in 1 hr. 20 min. — We diverge to the left from the

Bayreuth line and enter the valley of the Weisser Main. — 3 M.

ffirnmelkron (1090 ft.), with an old Cistercian nunnery, known for

the legend of Countess Kunigunde of Orlamiinde, the 'White Lady',

supposed to be buried here (comp. p. 138). Remains of late-Gothic

cloisters and bnrial-vault.
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7 M. Berneck. — Hotels. Btihe, R. IVa-S ^, B. 80 pf., with

garden-restaurant, Hirsch, R. 11/2-2^2 <-«, both good; Post, R. I-IV2 <>*;

(S'fat7« Bayreuth, unpretending. — Visitors' Tax (.3 days free) 5 ^, 2 pers.

8 JC (half-price up to T days). — Motor Omnibus to Bayreuth and Markt-
Redwitz, see p. 155.

Berneck (1235 ft.), a small town of 1950 inhab., picturesquely

situated at the mouth of a narrow valley watered by the Olschnitz

or Olsnitz, is a favourite summer resort. In the main street is the

KnrhavSj with reading-room, restaurant, and garden. On the slope

of the Schlossberg, in the Olschnitz valley, is the new colonnade

(band daily). We may ascend thence to the castle of Wallenrode
(1550 ft.), destroyed by the Hussites in 1431. From the upper

ruin a path leads past the ruined chapel to the lower ruin (fine

view from the tower, open about mid-day). From the 'Kapf (view;

ascended from the church), a spur of the Kirchleite, we may follow

the crest of the hill to the 'Rothersfelsen', with a view of the

castle-ruins. On the hill -slope to the S.E. of the town is the

'Rothersberg' promenade. — Panorama from the tower on the

Koslar-Hohe (1960 ft.), reached from Berneck via the Bimlas-
yrund in IVg hr. (via the Schafherg in 1 hr.).

Pleasant walk from Berneck along the Olschnitz to (3/^ hr.) the ruined
castle of Stein (1765 ft.). Thence we may walk through the valleys of
the Olschnitz and Liihnitz, past the ruin of Grunstein, to (3/^ hr.) Gefrees
(p. 134). — Pearl-mussels (IJnio margaritifer) are found in the Olschnitz;
the shells are opened and the pearls removed every 6-7 years by a govern-
ment official. — From Berneck to Marktscliorgast, see p. 134.

The railway crosses the Weisser Main and then follows it up
the Goldmuhl-Tal to (8 M.) Goldmuhl (1350 ft.; Hot. Grampp).

Road thence to (V2 hr.) Goldkronach (1520 ft. ; inn), with deserted
gold-mines. Thence to the Fiirstenstein (see below), 1 hr. — From Grold-

milhl to the Ochsenlcopf (see below) via BrandhoJz (see below) and the
forester's house of HirscJihorn, 3 hrs. ; via Warmensteinach, see below.

We now rapidly ascend the beautiful contracting valley of the

\Veisser Main. — 13 M. Bischofsgriin (2125 ft.; Hot. zum Main-

Tal). The village (2230 ft.; Hot. Lowe, R.I-IV2, ?• 3-4 Jl, good;

Post, R. 1-172 c/^; Pens. Allla Helene, P. 4-4V2^^; Pens. Herren-

haus, at Frobershammer), with an old glass -bead industry, lies

18 min, from the station, at the N. base of the Ochsenkopf. The
Schneeberg (p. 157) may be ascended in 2 hrs. (guide-posts).

From Bischofsgriin a good forest-path, steep at one place only,

ascends the (1^/4 hr.) Ochsenkopf (3360 ft.). At the top it trav-

erses blocks and steps of granite, leaving on the left the 'Schnee-

loch', in which snow sometimes lies till June. The view from the

tower extends to the Thiiringer Wald. About 3 min. S. is the 'Aus-

sieht', commanding a view of Warmensteinach.
From Goldmchl, (see above) via Warmexsteikach to the Ochsen-

kopf, 4-41/2 hrs., attractive. We follow the road up the valley of the
Zoppatenbach to (20 min.) BrandhoJz (1715 ft.), 3/4 hr. above which is the

Fiirstenstein, affording a fine panorama. At Brandholz we ascend the

path diverging to the right from the road to the Hlrschliorn (see above),
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follow the (3/4 hr.) road to the right, and at the next bend turn to the

left via the Hohe Wacht (view to the left) to (1 hr.) Warmensteinach
(2065 ft. ; Hot. Krug, above the station, R. I-IV2 -^Z Zur Eiseubahn, at

the station; Trassl, below the church), prettily situated, the terminus of
the line from Bayreuth (p. 154). Bead-making and glass-polishing. — The
Ochsenkopf (p. 156) may be reached hence either by the direct path via
Fleckl (2 hrs.), or through the Lochlegrund (inn at the entrance to the
ravine) and the Moosbach-Tal to (1 hr.) Grassemann (2405 ft.; inn),

before which we pass the Ludwigs - Quelle on the left; thence to the

(IV2 hr.) summit by a path with white way-marks.
From Warmensteinach a road leads E. to (2 hrs.) Fichtelberg (2245 ft.

;

Hot. Post, Zur Eisenbahn, Griiner Baum), terminus of a line from Neusorg
(p. 191). Attractive path hence via Neubau, the Weissmainfelsen, and
the soiu-ce of the Weisser Main (see below) to the (2 hrs.) Ochsenkopf.

From the Ochsexkopf to the Schxeeberg, 2^/_^ hrs. We
descend E. along the saddle which connects the two hills, passing

(V4 hr.) the Source of the Weisser Main (2910 ft.), with its stone

parapet, above which is a portion of the earlier parapet with the

arms of the Bavarian Electors. After 12 min. we reach the Weiss-

mainfelsen (3050 ft.), a group of rocks with a view of the Schnee-

berg and ISTusshardt. We then descend to (25 min.) the forester's

house of Karches (2410 ft. ; rfmts.). Thence to the S.E. stretches

the peat-moor oi Seelohe, once the Fichtel-See, a small relic of

which lake still survives ^/^ hr, farther on. [From Karches roads

lead N.W. to (lV4lir.) Bischofsgriin (p. 156), S.E. to {V/^^r.) Silber-

haus (p. 159), and S. to (IY4 hr.) Fichtelberg (see above).] We again

ascend through woods to (I74 tr.) the Nusshardt or Nossert

(3190 ft.), huge blocks of granite; the round hollows on the top are

called the 'Druiden-Schiisseln' (druids' dishes). Thence to Seehaus,

Silberhaus, etc., see p. 159. We now ascend the (V2 ln'- N.) Sehnee-
berg (3455 ft.), the highest summit of the Fichtel-G-ebirge. At the

top are a group of rocks, 23 ft. high, named the Backofele (oven)

and a shelter-hut (no rfmts.). The view includes the distant Erz-

G-ebirge on the N.E., Weissenstadt and the AValdstein to the N., the

Thuringian hills and the Grleichberge to the N.W., and the Ochsen-

kopf to the S.W. Descent to Bischofsgriin, see p. 156.

From the Schxeeberg to Weissenstadt, l^/^ hr. We descend

to the KE. through woods to (40 min.) the Drei Brilder (2735 ft.),

three lofty granite rocks. Then (7 min.) the Rudolfstein (2840 ft.),

a huge group of granite slabs, formerly crowned by a castle, with

'Druiden-Schiisseln' (see above). View from the highest point. We
descend for ^j.^ hr. more through the forest, then follow a path to the

right, past several rock-cellars, to (Ya l"'-) Weissenstadt (2065 ft.

;

Hot. Lowe, Reichsadler or Alte Post, R. at both 1-1 V o c-//), a small

town with 2800 inhab. on the Eger, which rises 2 M. to the S.W.

Motor-omn. to Bayreuth, see p. 155; to Wunsiedel and Alexanders-

bad, see p. 155. Railway to (T^o M.) Kirchenlamitz (p. 228).

From Weissenstadt to the Waldsteix, 1 hr. At the station

the road diverges to the left into the woods; after 2/4 hr. (finger-



158 Route 23. WUNSIEDEL. Fichtel-Gebirge.

post) we ascend to the left to (Y4 lir.) the Waldstein. A shorter foot-

path starts at the W. end of the village. The *Grosser Waldstein
(2880 ft.) is a group of granite rocks, made accessible by paths and

steps. On the highest point, to the S.E., stands the 'Schiissel', an

iron pavilion commanding an extensive view. The robbers' strong-

hold of Waldstein, of which fragments remain, was destroyed by
the Swabiau League in 1523. Adjacent is the finely situated Wald-
haus (2830 ft.; rfmts.).

From the Waldstein to Zell in Oherfranlcen, see p. 133. On the direct

route to Zell, 200 paces X.W. of the Waldstein, is the Bcirenfang, a

17th cent, stone building.

From the Waldhaus a marked forest-path, running first N.W.,

then E., and crossing the road from Weisseustadt to Sparneck,

leads to the (l^/^ hr.) Epprechtstein (2620 ft.), with a ruined

castle and a view; thence to Buchhaus station or (fatiguing) to

Epprechtstein station (p. 228), ^/'s
hr.

From Weissexstadt to "Wuxsiedel. The shadeless road (8 V2 M.)

via (6 M.) Boslau (p. 228) is unattractive to walkers (motor-omu.

in summer in 65 min., to Alexandersbad in 80 min., comp. p. 155;

carr, to Alexandersbad in IY2 lir. , 7-8 c^). The path via Birk

(2^2 hrs.) is preferable. — From Holenbrunx (p. 228) to Wux-
siEDEL, 2Y4 M., branch-line in 10 min.

"Wunsiedel. — Hotels. Kronprinz von Bayern, R. 1 ./« 20 pf .-

2 Ji, B. 70 pf., D. 11/2-2 JO; Grii.ner Baum, with garden, n. IJC 20 pf.-

2 c^*; Pens. Elnhoni, R. 1-2 t,H>. — Restacraxts. Zur Warthurg, with
garden; Porsch (beer); Fr. Ojpel (wine). — Carriage to Alexandersbad
8 JO, with two horses 5 JC.

Wunsiedel (1800 ft.), a town with 5850 inhab. on the Rosla
or Roslau, was the birthplace (1763) of Jean Paid (p. 153), whose
bust by Schwanthaler has been placed in front of the house where

he was born (now a school), adjoining the Protestant church. The
Altes Lyceum contains a local museum (ticket at Dressel's book-

shop in the market-place, 20 pf.). The Katharinenherg (2020 ft.),

20 min. S.E., with a ruined church, commands a pretty view. To
the Luisenburg or the Kosseine, see p. 159. — An avenue of lime

and chestnut trees leads S.E. from Wunsiedel to (2 M.; motor-oran.

in Y4 hr., see above )
—

Alexandersbad. — Hotels. Kurhaus, open May 15th-0ct. 1st,

R. 1-4, B. 1, D. 21/2 c^; Weber, R. 1 c^ 20-1 ^ 50 pf
.

; Lang; Zur Miihle,
in Diinkelhammer. — Visitors' Tax (5 days free) 10 c^, for 2 pers. 15, for

more than 2 pers. 18 JC. — Chalybeate bath IV2 Ji.

Alexandersbad (1935 ft.), a pleasantly situated health-resort,

is named after the last Margrave of Ansbach-Bayreuth (1783).

Besides the two chalybeate springs, which are used both for drinking

and bathing, Alexandersbad has pine-needle and mud baths. To the

KOsseine direct, see p. 159.
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The most striking point in the environs is the *Luisenburg
(2570 ft.), ^I^^r. S.W. of Alexandersbad and 2/4 hr. S. of Wunsiedel.

It was first made accessible in 1790 and derives its name from the

visit of Queen Louise of Prussia in 1805. A few traces of the old

castle of Luchshurg may be seen.

The Luisenl)urg is, as it were, a mountain in ruins. Huge fantastic

blocks of granite are piled together in wild confusion , the result of

disintegration ; they are partly overgrown with thick moss, interspersed

with pines and bushes. — At the entrance is a Hotel-Restaurant {22b'o ft.
;

R. 2 JC, B. 60 pf., P. from H JC). Numerous inscriptions on the rocks.

The rocky labyrinth affords a beautiful walk of about 2 hrs. (guide, not

essential,' 2 JC^ to the Kosseine 4 JC). Near the S. summit, between the

'Teufels-Treppe' and the 'Kreuz' (view), 1 hr. from the hotel, a path
leads to the (10 min.) Kaiser -Wllhelm- Felsen (2675 ft.), a huge block
affording a view. The Burgstein (2860 ft.), a group of rocks 25 min.
farther on, commands an open view to the E., N., and "W. The Haber-
steine (2790 ft.), 1/4 l^r. farther on, consist of four lofty rocks, of which
two form the Grrosser Haberstein and two the Kleiner Haberstein (the

latter inaccessible). The view is similar to that from the Burgstein.

On the highest rock are 'Druiden-Schiisseln' (p. 157).

The *Kosseine (3085 ft.), ^/^ hr. S. of the Habersteine (1\'^ hr.

direct from Alexandersbad, 2 hrs. from Wimsiedel), commands the

finest and most extensive view in the Fichtel-G-ebirge, em.bracing

the greater part of the Upper Palatinate to the S. At the top is a

belvedere; a little belov/ it is a shelter (11 beds at 1^ o ^l). Good

water 10 min. below the summit on the E. side.

From the Kosseine a path leads via the Mdtze (2665 ft.) and the Girgel-

stein (2435 ft.), passing the Prinz-Leopold-Warte (left), to the (2 hrs.)

Silberhaus (2335 ft.
;
good rfmts.), whence we may ascend via (1 hr.) the

forester's house of Seehaus (3125 ft. ; rfmts.) to the Xusshardt and the (1 hr.)

Schneebery (p. 157). — From the Kosseine we may descend via Kosseine-
Muser to {l^U It.) EbnatTi (p. 191), to (2 hrs.) Keusorg{^. 191; white way-
marks), or via Rodenzenreuth to (IV2 hr-) Waldershof station (p. 191).

Motor -omn. from Alexandersbad in summer in 25 min. via

Sichersreufh to (372 ^^O Markt-Redwitz, on the lines from Hof

to Ratisbon (p. 228) "and from Eger to Nuremberg (p. 191). The

footpath (not much shorter) leads partly through woods.

24. Pranconian Switzerland.
The small hilly district dignified with this title, forming the N.E.

portion of the Franconian Jura, lies nearly in the centre of a triangle

formed by Nuremberg, Bamberg, and Bayreuth. It consists of a tableland

1600-1900 ft. above the sea-level, with pretty valleys watered by the

Wiesent and its tributaries, and offering curious and varied socnery.

Its wooded heights are crowned with old castles. The picturesque 'Jura'

limestone and dolomite rock -formations occasionally assume the most
grotesque shapes; in the N.E. district, between the Aufsess valley and
Bayreuth, the plateau has a surface of sandstone. The Stalactite Caves
contain remains of antediluvian animals, specimens of which are preserved
in almost every museum in Europe.

Carriage 10-12^ per day, 6-H JH per half-day: with two horses 20

and 10 Ji. — The paths are maintained and provided with guide-posts by
the Frankii<vhe)- Schweiz-Verein.
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The following excursion of two days from Ebermannstadt is recom-
mended. 1st day: On foot via (1 hr.) Streitberg (with the Bing-Hohle,

Va hr.) to (50 min.) MuggeMo7-f and the (IV2 hr.) Stempfer-Milhle (with
a detour of 1/4 tr. to Gossweinstein), and on to (1/4 hr.) Behringersmiihle
and (IV2 hr.) Pottenstein. — 2nd day: Cross the plateau to (2 hrs.) Raben-
stein, visiting the Sophien-Hohle (IV2 hr.); thence proceed to (50 min.)
Babeneck and (40 min.) Doos, and via the Riesenburg to (I1/2 hr.) Muggen-
dorf, whence we return by carr. or omn. to (IV4 hr.) Ebermannstadt. —
A good run for cyclists is from Ebermannstadt to (I41/2 M.) Pottenstein
and (91/2 M.) Pegnitz.

Fkom Foechheim (p. 136) to Ebermannstadt, 9^2 ^-j railway

in ^1^ lir. — The line leads in a wide curve to the E. into the

pleasant Wiesent-Tal. — 2M. Pwzherg{lQ10ii.; Hot.zurTerrasse,

good), 10 min. from the station. — About 2/4 hr. E. of (3^2 ^^O
Wiesenthau is the Ehrenbiirg or Walberla (1745 ft.), a view-point

with a chapel, where prehistoric antiquities have been found. —
5^/2 M. KircheJwenbach (Hot. Frey), at the mouth of the Ehren-
hach-Tal. — From (772 ^0 Pretzfeld a road leads S.E. through

the Trubach-Tal to (6 M.) Egloffstein (p. 161). It passes (2 M.)

Wannbach, whence a road leads to (6 M.) G-ossweinstein (p. 161). —
9^/2 M. Ebermannstadt (955 ft.; Hot. zur Eisenbahn, R. IY21
B. ^2 ^^) Groldener Engel, both plain), with 800 inhabitants.

Omn. twice daily from Ebermannstadt in 31/2 hrs. via Behringers-
miihle to (141/2 M.) Potteyistein (p. 162); omn. thence twice daily in 23/^ hrs.

to (91/2 M.) Pegnitz (p. 190). — Another omn. plies daily in 6 hrs. via
Behringersmiihle to (171/2 M.) Waischeufeld (p. 163); omn. thence twice
daily in 1 hr. to (5 M.) Plankenfels (p. 154).

From Ebermannstadt to Behringersmuhle, IOY2 ^^' (^ brs.'

walk). The road ascends along the right bank of the Wiesent.

IY2 ^I- Gasseldorf, at the foot of the Hunneustein (see below).

Wc may ascend the picturesque narrow Leinleiter-Tal via (1 hr.)

Unterleinleiter, with a Schloss of Baron von Seckendorff, to (1^/4 hr.)

Heiligenstadt (p. 154; railway from Ebermannstadt projected).

3 M. Streitberg. — Hotels. Altes Kurhaus, R. 1 ^ 20-1 JC

80 pf., Goldener Lowe, with garden, R. 1 c^ 20 pf.-2 Ji, both well spoken
of; Brandenburger Hates; ScMvarzer Adler, plain. — Dr. Dieckhoff^s
Sanatorium. — Visitors' Tax 2, family 4 JC.

Streitberg (1045 ft.), picturesquely situated on a hill-slope at

the mouth of the Schauer-Tal, is frequented as a summer resort.

Above the village, 12 min. W., is the *Bing-H6hle, with fine

stalactites, the most interesting cave in Franconian Switzerland,

lighted by electricity (54"" Fahr. ; adm. 1 ^ each, with minimum
of 3 ^^; visit lasts 40 min.). About 10 min. higher up is the

Prinz- Ruprecht- Pavillov (fine view). — To the E. of the village

a good path leads in 10 min. to the Muschel- Quelle and Brocks-
Anlage. — Other view-points are the old ruin of Streitburg, V4 br.

N.; the ruin of Neideck (1255 ft.), ^j^^'^ar. S.E., on the opposite side

of the valley; the Hunnenstein or Huminerstein (1550 ft.), 74^^*
W., and the Guckhilll (1643 ft.), 40 min. N.E.
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The road continues along the right bank of the Wiesent. —
5^2 M. Muggendorf (1065 ft.; Kiirhaus & Hot. Schtiler, D. 2,

P. from SVoc//^, good; Goldener Stern, Sonne, Tiirkei; Restaurant

Rosenau, Kohlmann; A. Feiler's wine-room), a pleasant summer
resort and good centre for excursions (visitors' tax 2, family 4 c^,

first week free). Shady promenades on the left hank of the ^^iesent.

To the X.W. (1/4 lir.) is the BosenmUllerg-HOMe (162.j ft.), containing
fine stalactites, the entrance to which is visible to the left from the road
(guide lives in house No. 26; for 1-5 pers. 2 ^4, magnesium light 50 pf.).

The Osicalds-Hohle (V2 hr. E. ; open) may be visited also, if time permit.
Near it are the Wunders-Hohle and Witzen-Hohle. The latter contains
what is said to be a heathen sacrificial altar. The Koppenburg, near
the Eosenraiillers-Hohle, the Hohenstein and Hohe Wacht, above the
Oswalds-Hohle, and the Adlersfein, 3/4 hr. S.E., beyond Eugelhardtsberg
(p. 162), are good points of view. The village of Wichsenstein (1930 ft.),

commanding an extensive panorama, may be reached from Muggendorf
in 21/0 hrs., via Windisch-Gailenreuth. In the Tritbach-Tal, 1 hr. S. of
Wichsenstein, is the ])ictnve^qu.e Schloss Egloffstem (1150 ft.); thence to

Pretzfeld, see p. 160, to Grafenberg, see p. 138.

From Muggendorf to Burg Gailenreuth, IV4 hr. "We follow the
Behringersmiihle road (see below) for 1/2 lir., cross the Wiesent, and take
the road ascending the hill, whence a path to the left leads to Btirg
Gailenreuth (1560 ft.; rfmts.). The forester here shows the adjoining
Gailenreuther Zoolithen-Hohle (1-3. pers. l JC each, 4-6 pers. 50 pf.

each, larger parties 25 pf. each; light 5-10 pf. each), which is famous for

the investigations of Esper, Rosenmiiller, Cuvier, and Goldfuss, but is

now little visited by tourists. It consists of four stories, one above the

other, each containing chambers which were filled with remains of bears,

wolves, hyaenas, etc. From Burg Gailenreuth to Gossweinstein (i^ee below),

IV2 hr. ; to Wichsenstein (see above), IVi hr. (marked path).

From Muggendorf via the Riesenhurg to Doos, see p. 162.

From Muggendorf the road leads S.E. through the Wieseut-Tal

(shady path on the left bank), past Burg Gailenreuth (see above; to

the right, on the hill), to the (l^/o hr.) Stempfer-Milhle (restaurant,

with beds), with the JDrei Quellen, whence Gossweinstein (see below),

on the height to the right, may be reached in 15-20 min. About

1/4 hr. farther on is —
101/2 M. Behringersmiihle (1120 ft.; Hot. Post, Behringers-

miihle, Stern, R. 1^ 20-1 <J^ 50 pf., all three very fair), a frequented

summer resort, charminglv situated at the junction of the Wiesent-

Tal, Asbach-Tal, and Piittlach-Tal. The Pfa/fenstew, \'. hr. W.,

commands a fine view. To Doos and Rabenstein, see p. 162.

The road crosses the Yv''iesent and divides, the left branch leading

to (41/2 M.) Pottenstein (see p. 162). The road to the right ascends

rapidly to (V2 ^ii*-) Gossweinstein (1620 ft.; Kurhaus Faust,

R. 1 J^ 20 pf.-2, P. 4-41 2 -"^^, with garden, well spoken of; Hot.

Distler, with garden, R. d J^ 20-1 cJl 50 pf., P. 31/2-^ ^Z Friinkische

Schweiz, R. 1 ^// 20 pf., P. 4 c//; Sonne, Traube, Rose, these three

unpretending), a village with 600 inhab. and a large pilgrimage-

church built by J. B.Neumann in 1730-39. The clergy-house (1747)

was formerly a summer-residence of the Bishops of TViirzhurg. The
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Castle, on a high rock, the property of Baron von Sohlern. has been

restored in the Gothic style (adm. 40 pf.). The castle, the Kreuz
behind the church, and the Wagners-Hohe command a view of the

greater part of the Franconian Switzerland. Through the grounds

in the government -forest we descend in 25 min. to the Stempfer-

Miihle (p. 161). About IV'g^r. W. of Grossweinstein is the Gaileu-

reuther Hohle (p. 161).

Frox Behrixgersmi:hle to Pottexsteix, 4^2 M. (l^'a hr.'s

walk). The road leads through the romantic Piittlach-Tal to

(1/2 hr.) Tiichersfeld. (Hot. zum Piittlach-Tal). a village curiously

situated on lofty dolomite rocks. — Pottenstein (1180 ft.; Hot.

Distler, R. 1 ^i2Q-lJ{ 50 pf.; Anker, Krone), beautifully situated,

has a simple Schloss (adm. 30 pf.) built on a lofty rock (1430 ft.;

366 steps). Omu. to Pegnitz, see p. 160.
Pleasant excursion to the S. tbrougli the romantic "Weiher-Tal,

past the (3/4 hr.) Schutters-MUhle (good inn; close by are the Teufeh-
Hohle, 110 yds. long, and the forester's house of Altenhof, with rfmts.),
to (3/4 hr.) Kiihlenfels. Thence we walk W. via KirchenbirTcig back to

(IV4 hr.) Pottenstein.

From Pottessteix to RABExsTEiy (see below) over the plateau, 2 hrs.

We turn to the left at the post office, ascend the road on the left, and walk
straight on, leaving (1/2 hr.) Wmdmannsgesees S-nUi {ih min.) KJeinlesau on
the left, to (40 min.) Zauppenherg. We then descend into the valley of
the Asbach (view) to the (1/4 hr.) Neu-Milhle (p. 16.S1.

The direct road

crosses the hills to the E. (left). Just beyond Muggendorf we di-

verge by a road to the right to (^/^ hr.) Engernardtsbery (key of the

Riesenburg). About 10 min. S. rises the bold Adlersfem (1745 ft.

:

10 pf. ; view), and 10 mih. farther on is the QuackenscMoss, a jagged

greywacke rock. The road leads on X. to (^u hr.) the *Riesenburg,
a \s-ild group of dolomite rocks with natural arches and towers,

rendered accessible by hand-rails and bridges (adm. 50 pf., 2 pers.

70 pf., 3-4 pers. 25 pf. each, over 4 pers. 20 pf. each). Charming
view of the Schotter-Tal (see below). We descend into this valley

and turn to the left to (1/4 hr.) Doos or Toos (1120 ft.; key of the

Riesenburg), an inn at the mouth of the Aufsess-Tal.

From Behrixgersmlhle (p. 161) to Doos, 1 hr. The road leads

N. through the beautiful Schotter-Tal or Schauder-Tal, watered
by the Wiesent. About half-way is the Schotters - Miihle (inn, R.

1-172, P. 4-5 ^; key of the Riesenburg).

From Doos to Burg Rabexsteix, l^o hr. We ascend at first

the picturesque Babenecker Tal, watered by the Wiesent. We
leave the road (which goes on in 2/4 br. to Waischenfeld, p. 163)

at (35 min.) a mill, and beyond the Wiesent ascend to the right to

the partly preserved Burg Babeneck. Thence we continue to the

E. across the plateau, past (25 min.) Schonhof, straight on to

(Vj hr.) Burg Rabenstein (1455 ft.), a pinnacled castle belong-
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ing to Count ScliOnborn and partly restored, looking down on the

valley of the Asbach, 160 ft. below. At the foot of the hill lies the

Neu-Milhle (rfmts., with beds;. The custodian of the castle has

the key of the (^^4 hr.) Sophien-Hohle or Rabenstein-IIohle, an

interesting cave with bones ot diluvian animals (cave-bear, elk, etc.)

and fine stalactites. The visit takes ^,4 hr. fguide and lights for 1-4

pers. 2^/1 40 pf., each pers. more 60 pf.; magnesium light 50 pf.j.

From Rabeiisteiu a road leads through the pleasant Ailsbach-Tal,
or lower valley of the Asbach, past Ober- and Unter-Ailsfeld (to Tuchers-
feld, p. 162, 1 hr.), to (2 hrs.) BehrincjersmUhle (p. 1()1).

From Rabenstein to Pottenstein, sec p. 162 ; to Mistelgau (Bayreuth),

see p. 154. — Those whom time permits may cross the hill to the N. of

Rabenstein, which separates the Ahoni-Tal (upper valley of the Asbach)
from the Wiesent-Tal, and descend via Langenloh to (3/^ hr.) Waischen-
feld (1140 ft. ; Hot. zur Post), a small town pleasantly situated on the

Wiescut, with a ruined castle on the hill. The Forsters-Hohle (20 min.

E. ; key at Lang's ; adm. 1 JC, for a party 50 pf. each) is a dome-shaped
vault with fine stalactites. — From Waischenfeld by omn. to Ehermann-
stadt or PlankenfeJs, sec p. 160; on foot via Volsbach to Mistelgau,
see p. 154.

25. Nuremberg.
Kailway Stations. Haupt-Bahnhof (PL E 3, II; good restaurant),

on the S. side of the old town ; Ludwigs-Bahnhof (PL C, 3 ; //), in the

Plarrer, for the local line to Fiirth ; Nordost-Bahnhof (beyond PL F 1, I),

for Eschenau (p. 189). — Poktek for 1/4-V2 ^^- 33 lb. 20-35 pf., 110 lb.

40-60 pf.

Hotels. *Grand-H6tel (PL b, E 3; II), Bahnhof-Str. 1, R. from 3.

B. IV2, D- A. P- 10-15 JC; *Wurttemberger Hof (PL a, E 3; //), Bahnhof-
Platz 2, R. from 4, B. li/,, D. 4-6, P. from 10 Ji; Goldmr Adler (P\. c,

D 3; //), Adler-Str. 15, in a quiet situation, R. from 3, B. 1 .i( 20 pf.,

D. 31/2, S. 21/2 Ji, omn. 60 pf. ; *Wittelsbach (PL d, D 3; //), Pfannen-
sebmieds-Gas'se 22, with cafe and variety theatre (p. 165); * Victoria

(PL e, E 3; //), at the Frauen-Tor, near the Haupt-Bahnhof, R. 3-4,

B. 11/4, D. 13/4-21/2 <^; *Kaiserhof (PL f, DE 3; //), Roter Halm (PL g,

D3; //), R. 21/2-8, B. 1 .i( 60 pf., both with restaurants, *Deutschcr
Kaiser (PL h, E 3; II), R. 3-5, B. 1 ^ 20, D. 1 .^ 80-2 .ii 50 pf., P.

from 7 Ji, Monopol (PL i, D 3 ; //), with cafe, R. 21/2-4, B. 1 .^. Bam-
berger Hof (PL k, E 3 ; //), good, all five in the Konig-Str. — Maximilian
(PL 1, E 3; //), Lorenzer Str. 31, R. 2-3 .M ; Nilrnberger Hof (PL m,

. E 3 ; //), R. 2-4, B. 1 JC, Fottingcr (PL n, E 3 ; //), with wine-restaurant,

R. 2-2i/.2^, B. 80 pf., Drei Raben (formerly Herzog Max; PL 0, E 3, II),

RTieinischer Hof (PL p, E3; //), all four in the Kouig-Str., near the

Haupt-Bahnhof; Luitpold (PL r, E 3; II), Luitpold-Str. 3, R. 2-3.^:
Weisser Hahn (V\. s, D 3 ; //), adjoining the Roter Hahn, R. 2-31/2, B. l.#;
Schneider (PL q, E 3 ; II), Johannes-Gassc 20, R. 2-3 ^/i; Deutscher Hof
(PL t, D 3; //), Frauentor-Grabcn, near the Stadt- Theater, R. 2-6, B.

11/4 ^^, with cafe-restaurant. — ChristUches Hosjjiz, Tafelhof-Str. 8, near
the Stern-Tor (PL D, 3; //), R. 11/^-4, B. 1, D. I1/2. P. 41/2-8 ^, good;
Martha-Haus, Wolfs-Gasse 4 (PL E, 2; //), for ladies onlv, R. 1 a 75-

2 ^ 30 pf. — Hotel Garni. Stauffer, Bahnhof-Str. 13 (PL E, 3; //),
R. 11/2-21/2 JC. — Pension. National, Luitpold-Str. 11 (PL D, E, 3; //),
P. eva-io e^.

Restaurants. *Cafe-Restaurant Kusch, Karolincn-Str. 6 (PL D, 3;
II), D. 2-3, S. 2c«; ""Hot. Victoria. *Roter Hahn. Kaiserhof, Witteh-
hach, Bamberger Hof, Deutscher Kaiser, Deutscher Hof, see above ; Zum
Losimger, Am Lanferschafturm 6 (PL E, 2; //), D. I1/2-2 Ji; Cafe-
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Restaurant Kuiistlerhaus (p. 168); KroTcocUl, Weiutrauben-Gasse 2 (PI.

D, 2 ; II), D. 1 c^ 20 pf. ; Ludwigstorzicinger, at the Ludwigs-Tor (PI. C,

3; //), Marientorzicinger, at the Marien-Tor (PI. E, 3; /J), two popular
garden-restaurants.

"Wine Restaurants. *Rathaus- Keller, in the Stadtisches Amts-
Gebaude (p. 172), entr. from the Eathaus-Gasse or the Obstmarkt, D.
1 Ji 10 pf. ; Goldenes Posthorn, Glocklein-Gasse 4, near the Moritz-

Kapelle (PI. D, 2; //), dating from 1498; Nassauer Keller, in the Nassaiicr

Haus (p. 170), D. l^joJi; Waizen-StUblei7i, Eathaus-Gasse 4 (PI. D, 2; //)

;

Herren-Keller, Theater-Gasse 19 (PI. E, 3 ; //) ; Hot. Fottinger (p. 163).

Beer Eestaurants. Kranich, Karolinen-Str. 15 (PI. D, 3; II);
Mohren-KeUer, Konig-Str. 34 (PL D, E, 3; II); Sehaldusklause, Schul-

gasschen 1, S. of the Sebaldus-Kirche (PI. D, 2; II); Leistleiti, Karl-

Str. 14 (PI. D, 2; //). For Nuremberg sausages: Bratwurst-Glocklein

(p. 175), at the back of the Moritz-Kapelle (PI. D, 2; //), quaint, closed

at 9 p.m.; Braticurst-Roslein, Obst-Gasse 3-7 (PI. D, 2; //) ; Bratwurst-
Herzle, Herz-Gasse 9 (PI. D, 2; II), open 3-9, Sun. 5-9 p.m. — Automatic
Restaurants: Konig-Str. 70 (PI. D, E, 3 ; //), Karolinen-Str. 9 (PI. D, 3;

//), and in the Haupt-Markt, corner of the Tuch-Gasse (PI. D, 2; //). —
Eestaurants at Dutzendtelch and the Tiergartcn, see p. 188.

Popular Resorts. *Stadt-Parlc (p. 188), D. l^k-i JC, band (30 pf.)

in the afternoon and evening on Sun., Tues., and Thurs. ; Ro8enau(Pl. C 3,

//; p. 187), D. 11/2-3 u^; Industrie- und Kultur-Verein (PI. D 3, II; p. 187),

band on Sun.

Caf6s. Imperial, Konig-Str. 70 (PI. D, E, 3 ; //) ; Kusch (p. 163)

;

Konig, Konig-Str. 56; Bristol, Josephs-Platz 19, 1st floor (PI. D, S; II);
Natiotud, Plobenhof-Str. 10, 1st floor, corner of Haupt-Markt (PI. D, 2

;

II); Wittelsbach (p. 163); Monopol (p. 163); Habsburg, Konig-Str. 72,

1st floor (PI. D, E, 3; II); Theater-Cafe, Lorenzer Platz 14 (PL D, E, 3;
II). — Confectioners. Eisenbeiss, Konig-Str. 2 (PL D, E, 3 ; II) and
Bayreuther Str. 33, near the Stadt-Park (PL F, 1 ; /) ; Autenrieth, Eathaus-
Gasse 8 (PL D, 2 : //) ; Scheuermann, Schuster-Gasse 3 (PL D. 2 ; II),
behind the Sebaldus-Kirche ; Gossner, Konig-Str. 76 (PL D, E, 3 ; //).

Baths. Ludvjigsbad, Breite Gasse 91 (PL D, 3 ; II) ; Wildbad, Hintere
Insel Schlltt 15 (PL E, 2; II); Ottobad, Otto -Str. 13 (PL G 3, //; no
swimming-bath). — Eiver Baths at the Wohrder "Wiese, to the E. of

the old town. Dutzeudteich, see p. 188.

Cabs. Taximeter: Inside the town, 1-2 pers. 1000 metres 50 pf.,

each 500 m. more 10 pf. ; 3-4 pers. 750m. 50 pf., each 37om. more 10 pf.

;

at night (9-6) 1-4 pers. 500m. 50 pf., each 250m. more 10 pf. — Ordiaanj
Cabs ('Fiaker'): For 1/4 br. 1-2 pers. 60 pf., 3-4 pers. 70 pf. ; each i/i br.

more 50 or 60 pf. ; with two horses 80 pf. or 1 <.^, each 1/4 ^^- more 60

or 70 pf. ; double fares at night; small articles free, trunk 20 pf. — Motor
Cabs: for 600 m. 90 pf., each 300 m. more 10 pf

.
; at night 400 m. 90 pf.,

each 200 m. more 10 pf.

Circular Drives through the town in motor-cars, starting at 9 a.m.

from the Amtliches Bayrisches Eeisebureau (p. 165). Also in brakes
(3 hrs. ; incl. visit to castle and Eathaus) starting at 9.15, 2.45, and 5.15

from the Luitpold-Str. and Hall-PIatz (4 .,li).

Tramways (fare within the city 10 pf., incl. two changes of car;

to Fiirth from the Plarrer 10, from the Haupt-Bahnhof 15 pf. ; cars run
till midnight). 1. From Maxfcld (Stadt-Park; PL F 1, /) via the Laufer-
Tor (PL E, F, 2; //), Marien-Tor (PL E, 3; //), Haupt-Bahnhof (PL E,

3; II), Lorenz-Kirche (PL D, E, 3; //), Plarrer (PL C, 3; //), and Fiirther

Str. (PL C-A. 3, 2; /) to Fiirth (p. 189). — 2. From the Plarrer (VI. C,

3 ; //) via the Lorenz-Kirche (PL D. E, 3 ; II) and Marien-Tor (PL E, 3 ; II)
to Dutzemlteich (PL I 5, /; p. 188 ; 20 min. ; 10 pf.). — 3. From the Nord-
ost-Bahnhof (beyond PL F 1, /) via Maxfeld (Stadt-Park; PL F 1, /),
Eathaus (PL D, 2 ; II), Plarrer (PL C, 3 ; //), and Schlachthof (PL B, 4; /)
to Schiveinatc (PL A, 6 ; /). — 4. From the Bucher-Str. (Gartner-Str. j
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PI. D, 1, /) via the Haller-Tor (PI. D, 2; //), Plarrer (PL C, 3; //),
Tafelfeld-Str. (PI. D, 4; 7), and Allersberger Str. (PI. E, F, 4, 5; /) to

Luitpoldhain (Wodan-Platz ; PI. Gr 5, 7). — 5 (circular route). From
Maxfeld to the Haupt-Bahnhof as by No. 1, then via the Stadt-Theater
(PI. D, 3 ; 77), Plarrer (PI. C, 3 ; 77), Haller-Tor (PL D, 2 ; 77), and Pirk-
heimer-Str. (PL D-F, 1 ; 7) to Maxfeld. ~ 6. From the West-Friedhof
(PL A, 1 ; 7) via the Johannis-Kirchhof (PL B, C, 1, 2 ; I), Haller-Tor (PL
D, 2; 77), Rathaus (PL D, 2; 77), Laufer-Tor (PL E, F, 2; 77), and
Ost-Bahnhof (PL I, 1 ; 7) to Erlenstegen (beyond PL I, 1 ; 7). — 7. From
the Hofener-Str. (Fiirth ; p. 189) via the Further Str. (PL A-C, 2, 3; 7),
Plarrer (PL C, 3, 77), Haupt-Bahnhof (PL E, 3; 77), and Scheurl-Str.
(PL F, 4; 7) to Licitpoldhain (PL G, 5; 7). — 8. From the Lorenz-Kirche
(PL D, 3; 77) via the Haupt-Bahnhof (PL E, 3; 77), Aufscss-Platz (PL
E, 4; 7), Christus-Kirche (PL D, 4; 7), and Katzwanger Str. to the Siid-

Friedhof {heyond PL E, 6). — 9. From Gihitzenhof (PL C, 6; 7) via the
Zeltner-Str. (PL D, 4, 3 ; 7), Hall-Platz (PL D, 3; 77), Konigs-Tor (PL E,

3; 77), and Allersberger Str. (PL E, F, 4, 5: 7) to the Tierqarten (PL G,
6, 7; p. 188). — 10. From the Viktoria-Str. (PL H, 1 ; 7) via the Laufer-
Tor (PL E, F, 2; 77), Haupt-Bahnhof (PL E, 3; 77), and Tafelfeld-Str.

(PL D, 4; 7) to tlie FranJcen-Str. (PL E, C; 7).

Post Offices. Bahnhof-Platz 1 (PL E 8, 77; poste rcstante) ; Kaio-
linen-Str. 82-36 (PL D, 3; 77); Theresien-Str. 11 (PL D, E, 2; 77); etc. —
Telegraph Offices. Haupt-Bahnhof, Karolinen-Str. 36, etc.

Theatres. Stadt-Theater (PI. D, 3; 77), Frauentor-Graben, f(.r

operas, operettas, and plays (closed in summer); Intimes Theater (PL
E, 3; 77), Johannes-Gasse 4-6, for modern pieces; Apollo- Theater, at

the Hot. Wittelsbach (p. 163), Pfannenschmieds-Gassc 22 (operettas in sum-
mer, variety entertainments in winter).

Shops. Nuremberg Toys: Wahnschaffe, Josephs-Platz 18; C. Quehl,
An der Fleischbriicke 5, corner of the Kaiser-Str., — Artistic Goods:
Eysser, in the Peller-Haus (p. 178), Egidien-Platz 23; Leykauf, corner
of the Konig-Str. and Karolinen-Str. — Antiquities: Helbing, Karl-Str. 2;
Wohlbold, Augustiner-Str. 11 ; F. Neumann, Trodelmarkt 31. •— Ivory
Carvings: 7". G. Behl, Kaiser-Str. 37. — Books (old engravings): Schrag,
Konig-Str. 15; Edelmann, Haupt-Markt 3. — Lebkuchen (a kind of ginger-
bread): Metsger, Josephs-Platz 6, Konig-Str. 56, Haupt-Markt 25, and
Rathaus-Gasse 6; Hciberlein, Konig-Str. 6 and 53, Winkler-Str. 35, and
Ludwig-Str. 34; Goess, Ludwig-Str. 75; etc.

Tourist Offices. Amfliches Baijrischcs Reisebureaii (Cook's agents),
at the Haupt-Bahnhof, E. side. — Inquiry Office. Fremden-VerJcehrs-
verein, at the Haupt-Bahnhof, E. side (open on week-days 8-6, Sun. 8-12).

English Church Service in summer.

British Consulate, Peunt-Gasse 4 (office -hours 2.30-4.30). —
American Consul, James C. McNally, Further Str. 6a (office -hours
10-12 and 2-4).

Chief Sights. Alhrecht-Durer-Verein (p. 168), week-days (except
Sat.) 10-1 and 3-5 (Oct.-March 2-4), Sun. 10-1 ; adm. 50 pf. ; closed in August.

Art Collection, 3Iimicipal (p. 1681, daily (except Sat.) 10-1; adm. free;
at other times on application to the keeper (round the corner).

Dilrer^s House (p. 175), week-days 9-1 and 2-6, Sun. 9-12; 50 pf.
Germanic Museum (p. 181), week-days 10-3, Sun. 10-12; adm. 1 ^tl.

4-5 pers. 3 ^^, free on Sun. (and "Wed. in winter). A member's ticket
(3 JC) admits at any time with family. Cloak-room 10 pf. The museum
is closed on New Year's Day, Good Friday, Easter Sunday, Whit-Sunday,
Ascension Day, and Christmas Day. For permission to inspect the tex-
tiles, coins, medals, seals, and the carriages and artillery exhibited in
the adjoining Frauentorzwinger, apply to the director. The library,
archives, and engravings (entr. Untere Grasers-Gasse 18) are open free
on week-days 10-12 and 2-4.



166 Route 25. NUREMBERG. History.

Kaiserburg (p. 176), daily 7.30-1 and 2-6 (Oct.-April 9-1 and 2-4); adm. 50 pf

.

Lande8-Gewerheansto.lt {^. 11^): industrial art collections and ex-

hibition of machinery daily 9-12 and 2-5 (Oct. 15th-April 15th 10-12 and
2-4), Sun. 10-12.30; library and collection of models 8-12 and 2-6 (-winter

9-12 and 2-9. Mon. till 4/Sat. till 6). Sun. 10-12.80. Adm. free, to the

industi-ial art collections on Tues. and Fri. 50 pf.

Library, Municipal (p. 175), week-days 9-12 and 3-6.

Natural History Museum (p. 179), Sun. 10-12, free.

Rathaus (p. 172), 20 pf. Adm. to the dungeons and subterranean
passages 1 JC, for 3-5 pers. 70 pf. each,

Tiergarten (p. 188), daily 8 a.m. to 11 p.m. ; adm. 80, Sun. 50, after

7 p.m. 30 pf.

Ver7cehrs-3Iuseum (p. 179), open free on Tues., Thurs., and Sat. from
May to Oct., 9-12 and 3-5, in winter 10-1, Sun. 10-12.

The Churches may be visited at any time except during service.

Egidien-Kirclie (p. 177), gratuity 20. pf.; ring at the Tetzel-Kapelle
at the back of the church.

Heiliggeist-Kirche (p. 178), gratuity 20 pf. ; sacristan at Spital-Platz 1.

Jakobs-Kirche (p. 180), gratuity 20 pf. ; ring at the N.W. door.

Kathariyien- Kirche (p. 179), gratuity; key at No. 3, on the S. side

of the church.
Liebfrauen-Kirche (p. 171), adm. by ticket (20 pf.) obtained in the

sacristy, at the S.E. corner of the church; sacristan at Yorderer Spital-

hof 9, 2ud floor.

Lorenz-Kirche (p. 169), closed on week-days 12.30-2, on Sun. 12-2

and after 4; adm. 20, for 3-4 pers. 50 pf., free on Sun. morning from
May to Sept. ; knock at the S. or N. door; sacristan at Lorenzer Platz 7.

Sebaldus-Kirche (p. 172), adm. 20, 3-4 pers. 50 pf. ; knock at the

X.W. portal ; sacristan at Burg-Str. 6 (PI. D, 2 ; II).

When time is limited (IV2 day). 1st day: In the morning, Lorenz-
Kirche (p. 169), Liebfrauen-Kirche (p. 171), Haupt-Markt (p. 170), Sebaldus-
Kirche (p. 172); in the afternoon, Burgberg (p. 175), walk round the
town-walls (p. 186), Stadt-Park or Tiergarten (p. 188). 2nd day: Germanic
Museum (p. 181).

Nuremberg, German Nilriiberg {Veguiiz 960 ft., castle 1150 ft.),

a free city of the empire down to 1806, has since belonged to

Bavaria and is the head-quarters of the 3rd Bavarian army-corps.

Pop. 360,000 (115,000 Catholics, 7800 Je^vs). Nuremberg lies in

a sandy plain, partly clothed with fir-trees and intersected by the

Pegnitz, Avhich divides the old town into two nearly equal parts,

the Lorenz and the Sebald sides, the latter being the older and

more interesting. There is no city in Germany so suggestive of the

prosperity and artistic taste of a 'city of the empire'. The Alt-

stadt, dominated by the citadel, is still enclosed by a wall, towers,

and a broad, dry moat. Nuremberg is also the chief commercial

and manufacturing toAvn in S. Germany. Machinery, toys, metal-

ware, lead -pencils, and beer are among its chief products. The
local line to Fiirth (p. 188), opened in 1835, is the oldest railway

in Germany.
History. The first historical mention of the castle of Nuremberg

occurs in a document of 1050. In 1105 the fortress afforded protection
for two months to Emperor Henry IV. against his rebellious son, after-

wards Ilonry Y. It subsequently passed by inheritance to the Hohen-
staufens, Frederick and Conrad, and in 1127 successfully defied the attacks

of the Emperor Lothair. From that date, with the exception, of a brief
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period under the rule of Henry the Proud (1130-38), Xuremberg main-
tained its independence as a free city down to 1806. Conrad III. and
Frederick Barbarossa frequently occupied the castle, and the privileges
accorded to the town by these and other emperors greatly promoted its

progress, which was accelerated by its adherence to the Rhenish League.
From the S. slope of the castle-hill it gradually extended down to and
beyond the Pegnitz. The government was originally vested in the pa-
trician families ('Greschlechter'). and tliough expelled by the artisans in
l.B-18 they returned in the following year and with the aid of Charles IV.
obtained a firmer grasp of power. That emperor cherished a special
affection for Nuremberg, and in his Golden Bull of 1356 ordained that
every emperor should hold his first diet here. In 1424, during the Hussite
war, the imperial regalia were transferred by his son the Emperor Sigis-

mund to Xuremberg, whence they were removed to Vienna in 1796.
The early history of Nuremberg is closely interwoven with that of

the Hohenzollern family. The office of Burgrave, originally a deputy
of the emperor, was first held by Frederick I. (d. 1218) of this family.
About 1227 the Hohenzollerns divided into the Franconian and the
Swabian lines, and after the 13th cent, the chief residence of the
family was at Cadolzburg (p. 189), and after 1363 at Ansbach (p. 221).

When Frederick VI. was invested by the Emperor Sigismund with the
Mark of Brandenburg in 1415, the Hohenzollerns formally ceded to the
town their castle, which stood near the imperial castle, but they en-
deavoured to retain their other rights in Nuremberg. The bitter feuds
with the Margraves of Ansbach, Albert Achilles (1449) and Casimir (1502),
did not prevent the continuous growth of the town, which at the beginning
of the 16th cent, had become, like Augsburg, one of the chief depots of
the trade between Germany, Venice, and the East. At this period, too, it

was eminent as a centre of learning and took an active part in the intro-
duction of the Reformation. Regiomontanus the mathematician (p. 141),
Martin Behaim the cosmograplier, Christoph Scheurl and WiUibald Pirk-
heimer the scholars, and Hans Sachs the poet all resided at Nuremberg.
The discovery of the sea-route to India som^ewhat impaired the pros-
perity of the town; it suffered still more severely from its feud with
Margrave Albert Alcibiades (1552-4) and during the Thirty Years' War;
in the 18th cent, its decline was hastened by the feeble rule of the pa-
tricians. As an Bavarian city, however, Nuremberg has prospered greatly,
thanks to its favourable situation on the great routes of traffic. Its
population in 1871 amounted to 83,200.

Art History (comp. pp. xxiii-xxv). The principal churches, built
of red sandstone, date from the 13th-15th cent., but the Secular Buildings,
which render Nuremberg so picturesque, were erected mainly in the
16th and early 17th cent., with the exception of a few older stone build-
dings (e.g. the Nassauer Haus) and a number of frame-houses with wooden
galleries. In the domestic architecture of Nuremberg, one of the most
characteristic expressions of the German Renaissance, special attention
is given to the elegant oriel-windows ('Chorlein') and to the artistic
embellishment of the courtyards.

The zeal with which the art of Sculpture was cultivated at a very
early period is shown by the astonishing wealth of carving in the churches
and by the fountain-figures, as well as by the numerous signs and figures
of saints (14th-16th cent.) with which the houses are embellished. Few
authenticated names of artists have come down to us from the earlier
period, and for a long time it was customary to refer all works of art
to one or other of the three great masters Adain Krafft (ca. 14.50-1509)
the 'stone-mason', Veit Stoss (ca. 1450-1533) the wood -carver, and Peter
Vischer the Elder (ca. 1455-1529) the brass -founder. Krafft's principal
works are the Stations of the Cross on the way to the Johaunis-Kirch-
hof, the 'Sakramentshiiuschen' in St. Lawrence's, and the Schreyer monu-
ment in the Sebaldus-Kirche. The works of the first great creative
period (1477-96) of Veit Sxoss are to be sought for in Cracow. Both of

Baedeker's S. Germany, 12th Edit. 11
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these masters are rooted in the traditions of mediseval art. Peter Yischer,
on the other hand, endowed with a delicate sense of form, illustrates

in the shrine of St. Sehald the triumph of the Renaissance spirit, to

which he was probahly introduced by his sons, Peter Vischer the Younger
(d. 1528), an artist of versatile imagination, who visited Upper Italy in

1508, and Hermann (d. 1516), who was in Rome in 1515. The foundry
of the Yischers was the most famous in Germany: after it closed much
meritorious work was produced by Pawt'ras Labemco?/" (1492-1563), a pupil

of the elder Vischer (Gansemannchen and other popular fountain-figures).

The Nuremberg school of Paikting, influenced at first by the early

masters of Prague and later by the Netherlandish schools, finds its first

important representatives in the anonymous painters of the Imhoflf,

Tucher (Hans Peurl ?), and Loffelholz altar-pieces, dating from the early

15th century. In the latter half of the same century Hans Pletjdemvurff
(A. 1472 ; influenced by Roger van der Weydcn) and Michael Wohlgemut
(1434-1519) were the most prominent of Nuremberg painters. The cha-

racteristic depth of meaning shows itself, even more distinctly than in

his paintings, in the woodcuts and engravings of Albrecht Dilrer (1471-

1528), a pupil of "Wohlgemut. His best works must be sought for at

Vienna, Munich, and Berlin. The only examples of his brush in his

native town are his two early works 'Hercules' and 'Pieta' and the por-

traits of "Wohlgemut and of the Emperors Maximilian I., Charlemagne,
and Sigismund (all in the Germanic Museum). Some of Diirer's numerous
pupils, the so-called 'little masters', Georg Pencz (ca. 1500-50), Hans
Sehald Beham (1500-50), and Barthel Beham (1502-40), were also pro-
minent as engravers. In other departments the most famous names are

those of Veit Hirschvogel the Elder and the Younger, painters upon
glass, the versatile Augustin Hirschvogel, and Albrecht and Nikolaus
Glockendon. the book-illustrators.

Painting now rapidly declined in Nuremberg. On the other hand the
Artistic Handicrafts flourished here till the 18th century. Among the
specialities of Nuremberg were artistic cabinets, pottery, iron -work,
pewter-work (Hans Lobsinger and Kaspar Emlerlein), and, above all,

the casting of medals and goldsmith's work. The most celebrated
die-cutters were Ludicig Krug (d. 1532) and the versatile Peter Flotner
(d. 1546): the best-known goldsmiths Wenzel Jamnitzer (loOS-So) and
Hans (d. 1585) and Elias LenJcer (d. 1591).

Comp. The Story of Nuremberg, by Cecil Headlam, in the Mediseval
Town Series (London; 1899), and Nuremberg (in the Famous Art Cities

Series), by P. J. R6e, trans, by G. H. Palmer (Leipzig; 1905).

a. From the Station through the Old Town to the Castle Hill.

To the S. of the Altstadt lies the imposing Haupt-Bahnhof
(PI. E, 3; 7/), erected from the designs of Von Zenger in 1901-11.

In front of the station is a bronze eqnestrian statne of Prince-

Regent Luitpold, by Yf. von Eiimaun (1901). A little to the N". is

the Frauen-Tor (p. 186). To the right of this gate is the

Kunstl'erhaus (PL E, 3; //), erected by K. Walther in 1908 and

containing a cafe -restaurant (fine hall), the modern paintings of

the Alhrecht-Dilrer-Verein (adm., see p. -165), and the Municipal
Art Collection (adm., see p. 165; catalogue of 1909, 1 tJ6).

In the tower-chamber, to the right of the eulranoe, is a statuette of

St. Maurice by P. Vischer the Elder (No. .5). — Paintings. Ground Floor:
1st cabinet, to the right, 14. P. C. Geissler, Popular festival on the Peter-

heide in 1833; 3rd cabinet, to the right, F. von Lenbach, King Louis I.,

48. Baron Thcodor von Cramer-Klctt; 44. F. von Stuck, Prince - Regent
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Luitpold. Upper Floor: 117. A. Baur, Body of Otho III. brought to

Germany over the Alps; 112. Werner Schuch, Removal of the body of
Gustavus Adolphus to Wolgast ; in the room lighted from above, *1l'5.

A. Feuerbach, Battle of Amazons > 1873) ; 124. C. Jciger, Emperor Maxi-
milian visiting Diirer in 1518; 13^. J. von Sandrart, Banquet in thn

Eathaus on Sept. 25th, 1649; 128. P. Ritter, Bringing in the imperial
regalia on March 22nd, 1121.

Farther on we reach the Komg-Stra.s8b (PI, D, E, 3; //), tlic

busiest street in Nuremberg, traversing the entire Lorenz side oftlic

old town (p. 166). To the left rises the little Catholic Klara-Kinhe
(PL D, E, 3; //), an early -Gothic church consecrated in 1274 but

rebuilt in 1428-34 (sacristan Konig-Str. 72, gratuity). Farther on,

on the same side, is the late -Gothic Mauthalle (PL D, 3; //),

originally a granary erected by H. Beheiin the Elder in 1498-1502

above the inner town-moat and now stores. The relief on the E.

portal, from Adam Krafft's workshop, and the lofty gable should

be noticed. Xo. 32, the Mohren-Apotheke, opposite the Lorenz-

Kirche, has a brick gable and a statue of the Madonna (15th cent.i.

In the LoKExzEK Platz (PL D, E, 3; //) rises the Gothic

•St.Lorenz-Kirche (PL D 3, //; Protestant), with its two towers,

the largest and finest cliurch in Nuremberg. It was begun in 1278 (?).

1.1200

1. Sacristy ; 2. Braut-Tiir; 3. High Altar ; 4. Sakramentshauschen; 5. Krcll

Altar ; 6. Altar of St. Anne ; 7. Wolfgang Altar : 8. Deocarus Altar : 9. Altar
of St. Rochus; 10. Altar of St. Catharine;" 11. Altar of St. Martha. —
Choir Windows: 12. Tucher; 13. Kaiser; 14. SchlUsselfelder ; 15. Yol-
kamer; 16. Kiinhofer; 17. Frederick III. ; 18. Knorr: 19. Haller; 20. Rioter.

The W. part and nave of the present edifice date from the first hall

of the 14th century. The 8. tower was completed in 1403. In

1403-45 the nave was enlarged, and in 1439-77 the choir was re-

built with aisles and ambulatory by Konrad Roritzer (p. 204). The
whole edifice has been restored since 1905 by Jos. Schmitz. Above
the sculptured AV. portal (1332) is a rose -window, 30 ft. in dia-

meter. The K tower, with its roof of gilded copper, 235 ft. in

height, was renewed after a fire in 1865. The church is 95 yds.

long and 30 yds. wide.
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*Interior (adm.. see p. 166). The uuraerous Altars of the 15th-16th

cent, afford an interesting survey of the development of art in Nurem-
berg. In the gallery (usually closed) over the X. entrance is the Imhoff
Altar (ca. 1420), with the Coronation of the Virgin as altar-piece. The
Wolfgang Altar (N'o. .38; PI. 7), in the last chapel, dates from the same
period. By the pillar opposite is the large Dcocarus Altar (Xo. 42; PI. 8),

with animated figures of the Apostles (1406). Behind it is (Xo. 1) an
Adoration of the Magi, which, along with its four fine wing-paintings
fXos. 2, .3) on the pillar opposite (Annunciation, Adoration of the Child,

Flight into Egypt, and Massacre of the Innocents), is by the Master of
the LbffeJholz Altar (p. 174). Xear the latter, in the last three chapels
of the S. aisle, arc the altars of .St. Rochus (Xo. 12: PI. 9; 1499). St.

Catharine (Xo.l6: PI. 10\ and St. Martha (Xo. 18: PI. 11), all three

ascribed to the studio of Wolilgemnt. Passing the fine two-storied sacristy

(PI. 1 ; 1463) and the tower with the spiral staircase (1519). we reach the

krell Altar (Xo. 5; PI. 5; late 15th cent.), behind the high-altar, with
the earliest known representation of the town: the Altar of St. Anne
(Xo. 4; PI. 6). to the left, has wing-paintings hy Hans von Kulmbach {lb2l).

The choir, like the chapels, is hung with hatchments of patrician
families. The brass Gothic candelabrum is by P. ViscJier the Elder (1489).

In front of the high-altar (1839), suspended from the roof, is the *Ax-
(tElical Salutation, carved in wood by Veit Stoss and presented by
the Tueher family in 1518: it represents the Annunciation, enclosed in

a garland of roses with reliefs of the Seven Joys of the Virgin. On the
left of the high-altar is the *Sakramestshausciiex (PI. 4), or receptacle
for the host, the masterpiece of Adam Krafft {\i93-6), presented by Hans
Imhoff; it consists of a slender Gothic tower of limestone, resting on
tlie lifesize figures of the sculptor and his two assistants, and is en-

riched with numerous statues and scenes from the Passion; the apex is

bent like a bishop's staff. On the right of the high-altar is the Eenais-
sance brass of the provost Anton Kress (d. 1513), from the foundry of
Peter Vischer.

Most of the beautiful stained-glass *'Wikdows in the choir date from
the second half of the 15th century. The finest is the Volkamer window
iPl. 151, representing the genealogv of Christ with portraits of the donors
i'1493). The Tueher window (PI. 12), by J. Springlin of Zurich (1601), is

interesting also. Adjoining it is the 'Kaiser-Fenster" (PI. 13\ put up in

1881 in memory of the 84th birthday of Emperor William I. The four
Apostles (after Diirer; comp. p. 273) in the bottom row of the Schliissel-

felder window (PI. 14) are modern.

The Tugend-Brunnen, a fountain on the N.W. side of the

church, with numerous bronze figures, was executed in 1585-9 by
Benedict Wurzelbauer. To the left, at the corner of the Karolinen-

Str. (p. 179), is the *Nassauer Haus (PI. D, 3; 77), with a

iKisteful oriel, a gallery with coats -of- arms, and corner turrets.

The loAver part was erected in the 13th cent., the Gothic upper
in 1422-31.

Farther on the Kuuig-Str. descends to the Pegnitz, passing the

Adler-Str. (left; p. 180) and the Kaiser-Str. The Museums-Brucke
(PI. D, 2; 77), rebuilt in 1700, commands a picturesque view of

both banks. The Fleisch-Briicke (PI. D, 2 ; 77), which we see to the

left, was rebuilt in 1596-8 in imitation of the Ponte di Rialto at

Venice. We continue through the short Plobenhof-Str. to the

quaint old Haupt-Marli (V\. D. 2: 77), the centre of traffic on the

Scbald side (p. 166).
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The Gothic *Liebfrauen-Kirche (PI. D 2, //; Catholic since

1816), oil the E. side of the market-place, was erected in 1355-61

and well restored by Essenwein in 1879-81. Over the W. porch,

with its rich sculpturing, on the wall of St. Michael's chapel (1411 ?),

is a curious old clock known as the 'Mannleinlaufen', skilfully re-

constructed in 1506-9 by G. Heuss and Seb. Lindenast, with moving
figures of the seven electors around the Emperor Charles IV. (seen

daily at noon). The clock commemorates the 'Golden Bull' (p. 167).
The Interior (adm., sec p. 1C6) has recentlj' been reilecoratcd. At

the end of the N. aisle is the *Tomb of the Periugsdorfer family by
A. Krafft (1498?), with a relief of the Madonna as Mother of Mercy,
formerly in the Augustinian monastery (p. 175). Adjacent is the *Tucher
Altar, with a winged picture on a gold ground, one of the finest works
of the Nuremberg school (ca. l-MO-50 ; by Hans Peurl?). To the right,

beside the triumphal arch, is the *Tonib of Hans Rebeck (d. 1500), by
A. Kralf't, formerly in the Dominican monastery (p. 175). On the right

and left of the choir are 14th cent, frescoes. Old stained glass in tlie

choir, with the arms of Nuremberg families.

In the square behind the Liebfrauen-Kirche is h quaint fountain-

figure in bronze, by Pankraz Labenwolf (ca. 1550?), called the

''^GCuisemdvnchen (PI. D, 2; //), a peasant carrying a goose under
each arm. Obstmarkt, see p. 178.

In the centre of the Haupt-Markt is a copy (1902) of the Nep-
tune Fountain. The original (by G. Schweigger and C, Ritter),

completed in 1661-9, was never erected in Nuremberg, and having

been sold in 1797 now graces the Peterhof near St. Petersburg.

The Schoner Brunnen (PI. D, 2; 77), on the X. side of the

market-place, erected after 1361 (probably byMeister Heinrich, the

'Parlier'), was restored in 1903 by H. Wallraff and painted accord-

ing to a coloured drawing by G. Pencz (1541). The Gothic pyramid.
60 ft. in height, is adorned with numerous figures. The statues be-

low represent the seven electors and the nine heroes (Charlemagne.

Godfrey de Bouillon, and Clovis, the Christian heroes; Judas Macca-
baeus, Joshua, and David, the Jewish heroes; Caesar, Alexander,
and Hector, the pagan heroes); above are Moses and the seven pro-

phets (originals in the Germanic Museum, p. 183). There are other

seated figures of the Evangelists, church-fathers, etc. The wrought-
iron railing round the fountain is Gothic in its lower part; the

upper part, in the Renaissance style, is a replica of an addition

(now lost) made in 1587 by Paulus Kiihn of Augsburg.
The long house iMeier's) to the N. of the SchiJner Brunnen is

said to date from the 14th century. No. 19, on the W. side of the

Haupt-Markt, was the residence of the humanist Willibahl Firk-

heimer (1470-1530; p. 225). No. 15, adorned with frescoes by Wan-
derer (1886), is the house in which Jlartiit Behaim, the cosmo-

grapher (1459-1507), was born. From 1425 till 1523 the crown-

jewels (p. 167) were exhibited annually in front of this house. The
Belief of the Madonua on No. 11 is attributed to Adam Kraft"t.
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At the corner of the Haupt-Markt and Waag-Grasse is the new
building of the Haiidels-Vorstand (PI. D, 2; 77), adorned with

frescoes by Gr. Kellner; the council-chamber of the Chamber of

Commerce contains a painting by A. Feuerbach (Emperor Louis the

Bavarian according privileges to the merchants of Nuremberg).

A few yards to the N. lies the Rathaus-Platz (PL D 2, 77; band

on Sun. at noon), with the Rathaus and the Sebaldus-Kirche.

The *Ilathaus (PL D, 2; 77) was originally a Grothic edifice

of 1332-40, but of this only the Saalbau on the 8., with the skil-

fully restored E. gable in the Rathaus-Grasse,* now remains. Hans
Beheim the Elder erected a late -Gothic addition in the rear in

1515; and in 1616-22 the whole structure was practically rebuilt in

the Italian Renaissance style by Jacob Wolf the Younger. The
fagade, 280 ft. in length, has three fine portals with sculptures

by Christoph Jamnitzer. The tasteful bronze fountain in the in-

teresting old court is by Pankraz Labenwolf (1557). In the S.E.

corner of the court, on Beheim's addition, is a fine balustraded gal-

lery, resting upou curious carved brackets. The modern-Gothic

annexe on the E., with a fagade towards the Theresien-Str. (p. 178),

was added by Essenwein in 1884-9. In the small court is a bronze

figure of Apollo, by Hans Yischer (1532).
Interior (adm., see p. 166; entr. opposite St. Sebald'.s ; bell for the

custodian in the entresol, to the right). The chief attraction is the Grosser
8aal, in the entresol, 130 ft. long and 3.5 ft. broad, with its timber roof.

The decoration of this hall, which was restored in 1903, dates from the
16th-17th cent., with tlie exception of two reliefs of 1340 on the E. wall
(Emperor Louis the Bavarian enthroned ; allegory of the commercial
league between Nuremberg and the Flemish cities).* Of the famous mural
paintings executed in 1522 by G. Pencz(?) from Diirer's designs only
those on the N. wall have survived, and these were retouched in 1613, vis.

Triumphal procession of the Emperor Maximilian, Town Pipers, and
Calumny' (after Apelles). Above the door under the first of these is the
motto 'Eins manns red ist ein halbe red, man soil die teyl verhoren bed'
(one man's opinion is but half an opinion; both sides should be heard).
— On the ceiling of the corridor on the second floor is a large relief in

stucco representing a tournament held at Nuremberg in 1446, executed
by Hans and Heinricli. Kuhn in 1621. — The Kleiner Saal has a timber-
ceiling by Hans Wilhelm Beheim (d. 1619), paintings by Wanderey (1901),
and a reproduction of Wenzel Jamnitzer'' s famous epergne (now the pro-
|)erty of A. de Rothschild of Paris). — The registrar's office, with a portal
of 1622, has (left) a tasteful Renaissance door by Peter Flotner.

Beneath the small court, in the S. part of the building, are the old
Dungeons, of the 14th century. Subterranean Passages lead hence in
various directions ; that leading to the casemates beneath the imperial
astle was constructed in 1543.

An archway connects the Rathaus with the Stadtisches Amts-
Gebilude (municipal offices; PL D, 2, 77), a modern Renaissance edi-

fice (1896-9) in the Fiinfer-Platz (p. 178). Rathaus-Keller, see p. 164.

The Protestant *St. Sebaldus-Kirche I'Pl. D, 2; 77) was ori-

ginally a basilica with two choirs, naves, and transepts, erected

about" 1230-73. The W. choir (-LDtfelholz-Kapelle'), which was
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heightened later, and the nave date from this church, which was
in the transitional style. The aisles were enlarged after 1309 in

the Gothic style. The twin towers, completed in the middle of the

14th cent., were raised to their present height in 1482-4. In 1361-79

the church was provided with a Gothic E. choir ('8ebaldus-Chor'),

an imposing erection with aisles and ambulatory. The exterior of

the church, restored in 1888-1904 by G. von Hauberrisser (p. 244)

and J. Schmitz, is distinguished by an unusual wealth of *Sculptures

(partly replaced by copies; original fragments in the X. aisle beneath

the tower and in the upper story of the N. sacristy). Over the S.W.
portal (PI. 1) is the Last Judgment, and at the sides are fine statues

North]]

South

Portals: 1. Last Judgment of 1310; 2. Portal of the Magi (Schul-Tiu)

;

H. Schau-Tur; 4. Braut-Tiir; 5. Anschreibe-Tur. — 6. Schreyer Monument;
7. Bronze font; 8. Bearing of the Cross by Adam Krafft; 9. Pulpit; 10.

St. Sebald's Slirine; 11. riodl's Madonna;" 12. Statue of the Madonna of
ca. 1450; 13. Kulmbach Madonna; 14. Sakramentshauschen. — Altars:
15. Loffelholz; 16. High Altar; 17. St. Peter; 18. Tucher; 19. Mnffel

;

20. Haller. — 21. N. (Great) Sacristy; 22. S. (Small) Sacristy. — Choir
Windows : 23. Window of ca. 1360 ; 24. Grundhcrr ; 25. Mendel ;"

2io. Tucher

;

27. Fiirer; 28. Stromer; 29. Bamberg; 30. Maximilian; 31. Margrave;
32. Pfinzing; 33. Haller; 34. Schiirstab; 35. Behaim; 36. Volckamer;

r,7. Irahoff; .88. Window of ca. 1360.

of S8. Peter and Catharine (copies; originals of ca. 1310). At the

S.E. portal ('Schau-Tilr'; PI. 3) is another Last Judgment, by Yeit

Stoss (after 1485). The 'Schreyer Monument' (PI. 6), on the E. choir,

with reliefs of the Bearing of the Cross, Crucifixion, Entombment,
and Resurrection, is one of the most important works of Adam
Krafft (1492). On the N.E. portal ('Braut-Tiir'; PL 4) appear the

Wise and Foolish Virgins (early 14th cent.); on the X.W. portal

('Anschreibe-Tlir'; PI. 5) are reliefs of the DeatJi, Burial, and Coro-

nation of the Virgin (ca. 1310). On the S. tower, adjoining the main
portal, is a largo statue of St. Christopher (1442).
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The Interior (adm., see p. 166) was restored in 1903-6. The W.
Choir contains a Gothic bronze font (PI. 7; ca. 1410?), the oldest example
of the founder's art at Xuremberg. The Loflfelholz Altar (PI. 15), with
carvings (inside, the Martyrdom of St. Catharine) and paintings betraying
Netherlandish influence, dates from 1-453.

On the pillars of the Xave are numerous statues of saints (1st half

of 14th cent.). The Haller Altar (PL 20), by the 2ud pillar on the left,

is an early work by the Master of the TucJier Altar (p. 171). On the
2nd pillar on the right is a Bearing of the Cross (PI. 8) by Adam Kraff't

(1496). The pulpit (PI. 9) is modern. Behind, above the' 'Portal of the
Magi' (PI. 2), is a fine relief of the Madonna (1429), retaining the original

colouring.
East Choir. **St. Sebald's Shrine (Sebaldus-arab ; PI. 10; p. xxiv),

the masterpiece of Peter ViscJier, the celebrated artist in bronze, was
completed by him with the aid of his sons in 1508-19. This is one of

the most important monuments of German art, in which ancient traditional

German ideas are blended with elements suggested by the humanists of
Xuremberg or the Lombard sculptors of the Eenaissance. From a plat-

form borne by twelve snails rises a Gothic canopy surmounted by three
domes and enclosing the Gothic silver sarcophagus (1397; restored in

1506) in which are preserved the relics of the saint. On the base of the
sarcophagus are four ^Reliefs, representing the miracles of St. Sebald
and heads in the antique style; at the W. end is St. Sebald, at the E.

end Peter Vischer with apron and chisel, two beautiful statuettes. The
canopy displays an astonishing wealth of charming Renaissance ornamen-
tation and carving; pagan deities (Jui)iter, Yenus, etc.) and other figures

of classical mythology (Centaurs, Tritons, Xereids, Sirens) appear side by
side with putti playing with lions and dogs and the four Christian car-

dinal virtues (in the centre of the four sides of the base) ; in niches
round the sarcophagus are the twelve *Apostles ; on the top arc statuettes
of prophets of the old dispensation : on the central dome appears the
Infant Christ with the terrestrial globe. — Over the high-altar (PL 16)

is a wooden ^Crucifixion by Veit Stoss (1520). On the pillar to the left

of the altar is a bronze statue of the Madonna (PL 11; by Stejyhau Godl
(ca. 1515). On the 1st X. choir-pillar is a wooden *Statue of the Madonna
(ca. 1450; PL 12), under its original canopy, with well-preserved colouring.

In the Ambulatory are numerous 15th cent, statues of saints, in-

cluding several by Veit Stoss. To the left, below the Mendel window,
is the *Tucher Altar (PL 13), a votive triptych painted in 1513 by Hans-
ron Ktdmhach from drawings h\ Diirer : the central painting, the Virgin
enthroned with SS. Catharine and Barbara and angelic musicians, breathes
quite a Venetian spirit. Farther on, below the Bamberg window, are a

richly sculptured Gothic wall-tabernacle or 'Sakramentshauschen' (p. 170;
PL 14; ca. 1375) and, below the Margrave window (PL 31), three reliefs by
Veit Stoss (1449): Last Supper, Christ on the Mt. of Olives, and the Kiss
of Judas. — The stained-glass Wixdows in the choir are, like those in the
Lorenz-Kirche, among the finest in Germanv. More than half (PL 23-28,

33-35, 38) date from ca. 1360-80, the rest from the end of the 15th and
the beginning of the 16th cent., the latest, the Imhoff window (PL 37),

from 1601. In the centre of the apse is the *Maximilian window (PL 30),

by Veit Hirschvogel (1514), with portraits of Emperor Maximilian, the
donor, his first wife Mary of Burgundy (d. 1482), his son Philip the Fair,
and Joanna of Castile. To the left is the Bamberg window (PL 29), designed
by Wolfgang Katzheimer (1501); to the right are the *Margrave window
(PL 31; designed by Hans von Kulmbach), presented by Margrave Fre-
derick of Ansbach-Bayreuth, and the Pfinzing window (PL 32), both
executed by Veit Hirschvogel (1515); the Volckamer window (PL 36;
ca. 1495) is perhaps an early work of Hirschvogel.

The Sehalder Ffarrhpf (i^nvsoii^ige; PL 1) 2, //;, opposite the

N.W. corner of the church, has a fine Gothic 'ChOrlein' (oriel)
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of ca. 1361, renewed in 1902 by Schmitz (original now in the Ger-

manic Museum, p. 183). The house was once occupied by Melchior
Pfinzing (d. 1535), provost of St. Sebald's and author of the 'Teuer-

dank', an allegorical narrative of the wooing of Mary of Burgundy
by Emperor Maximilian I. — Opposite St. Sebald's, on the X., is

the Gothic St. Moritz-Kapelle (PI. D, 2; //), built in 1313 and

recently restored by Jos. Schmitz. On tlie X. side is the Brativiirsf-

Glocklein (p. 164), mentioned as early as 1519.

To the S.W. of St. Sebald's, Winkler-Str. 29, is Palm's House
(PI. 3, D 2; //), with inscription signifying 'Here dwelt John Palm,
bookseller, who fell a victim to the tyranny of Napoleon in 1806'.

Palm was shot at Braunau I'p. 345; on Aug. 26th, I8O6. Oppositf,

over the gateway of the Stadt-Wage (built by H. Beheim the Elder
in 1497), is a quaint -Relief by Adam Krafft (1497), who executed

also the Annunciation (1504) on No. 24. Both these works are

copies, the originals being in the Germanic Museum. Adjoining
l^ilm's house, at the corner of the Augustiner-Str., on the site of

an Augustinian monastery i'p. 181), stand the Law Courts (Justiz-

Palast; PL D 2, //), erected by Solger in 1877. Lower down
(Winkler-Str. 20) is the house in which Diirer was born. Nos. 5

and 1 have tasteful courtyards (1496 and 1516).

We now cross the Weinmarkt iPl. D, 2; //), to the W. of St. Se-

bald's, noting the fine statues of the Madonna on Nos. 12a and 12,

and enter the Albrecbt-Di\rer-Str. to the N. No. 39 in this street,

near the Tiergartner-Tor (p. 186), is Dlirer's House (PI. D, 2 ; // ),

a Gothic frame-buildiug (15th cent.), now the property of the city.

It contains antique furniture and utensils and numerous copies of

Diirer's paintings. Adni., see p. 165. — AVe return S.E. to the Rat-

haus via the Berg-Str. and the Albrecht-Diirer-Platz (PI. D, 2; //),

in which is Ranch's Statue of Diirer (1840).

0n the right side (No. 4) of the Burg-Strasse, at the corner of the

Theresien-Str. (p. 178), is the old Dominican Monastery, contain-

ing the j\[anicipal Archives on the ground-floor. The upper floor

contains the Municipal Library (PL D 2, //; adni., see p. I661,

founded in 1538, with 108,000 vols., 2000 MSS. lincl. a missal

with fine miniatures by the brothers Glockendon), and 2000 incuna-

bula (incl. the Rationale of Durandus, printed by Fust at Mayence
in 1469); also autographs of Luther, Melauchthon, Ulrich von
Hutten, and Hans Sachs. — No. 15 (left) is the Fembo-Haus, a late-

Renaissance edifice of the early 17th cent., with a large gable.

No. 21 was Wohlyemufs House (p. 168); No. 10, SchenrVs House
(1482; p. 167), has a room with fine Gothic panelling.

The Burg-Str. ends on the S. slope of the Burgberg, or castle-

hill (1150 ft.; PL D 2, 77), a sandstone rock on the N. side of the

old town, on which §tand the imperial castle, the remains of the
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small burgrave's castle (p. 167), destroyed by fire in 1420, and two

municipal edifices. Since 1866 the castle bas been the common prop-

erty of tbe AVittelbacbs and Hobenzollern. Two routes lead to the

top: the 'Himmels-Weg' (PL 15), to the left, leads via the Himmels-
Tor (PI. 14) and the Hasenburg (PI. llj, a square tower on the left,

direct to the forecourt of the Kaiserburg; the path straight on,

with a view of the stables, leads to the Burggrafenburg.

Of the Burggrafenburg, or burgrave's castle, the only remains

are the Pentagonal Toicer ('Alt-Niirnberg'; PI. 10), the oldest

building in the town (11th cent.; upper parts of the 14th or

15th cent.); the St. Ottmars or Walpurgis Chapel (PI. 21), a

Romanesque structure rebuilt after a fire in 1420; and the Amt-
manns-Wolinung (PI. 6), probably erected as early as 1273 as a

guard for the Kaiserbiu-g. The tower contains a torture-chamber

(adm. 30 pf.) with a copy of the 'Iron Maiden', a hollow figure with

iron spikes into which the victim was thrust, and other instruments

of torture. From beside the tower we command a view of the moat

and the N. suburbs. On the parapet are hoof-marks, said to have

been left by the horse of the robber-knight Eppelein von G-ailingen.

— "We pass through the Vestner-Tor, to the left of the Amtmanns-
Wohnung, to the Freiung (PI. 9), so called from the right of asylum

exercised by the burgraves. Gfood view of the old town. — We
now pass through another gateway, to the right of which is the

round Sinwell or Vestner Tumi (PI. 19), with a roof dating from

1561 (view from the top; gratuity 10 pf.), and enter the Yorhof,

or forecourt, with the Tiefer Brunnen (PI. 20), a well 340 ft.

deep (adm., incl. illumination, 10 pf,). Passing the Heiden-Turm
(see below) on the left, we reach the Inneres Burg-Tor, a Renais-

sance gateway of 1562, through which we enter.

The Kaiserburg, or imperial castle (PI. 17; adm., see p. 166;

ring), was founded probably in the 11th cent., enlarged by Frederick

Barbavossa in the 12th, and modernized in the 19th.

In the Inner Court (PI. 16), altered in 1833 by Heideloff, is the stump
of a lime-tree, said to have been planted by "the Empress Kunigunde
(d. 1038). In the old Palas the only points of interest are the chapel,

with its choir built into the Heiden-Turm (PI. 12), and the royal apart-

ments. The Chax^el (PI. 8) is a double Romanesque structure of the

12th cent. ; above is the Kaiser-Kapelle, with sculptures and paintings,

below is the St. Margareten-Kapelle, probably used originally as a burial-

vault. The Royal Apartments, fitted up in a modern Gothic style in

1854-6, contain several Renaissance stoves. The ceiling of the audience-
chamber, painted in 1520 by Hans Springinklee, a pupil of Diirer, shows
coats-of-arms with the motto of Charles Y. ; on the timber ceiling of the

study (late 14th cent.) appears the imperial eagle. — The modern Roman-
esque balcony of the W. Wing (erected in 1861-6 on the site of the 'Keme-
nate') affords' a splendid view. — The gardens on the W. side of the Kaiser-

burg, said to have been laid out in 1487, are open to the public (comp. PL 7).

Xext the Pentagonal Tower (see above), on the right, is the old

granary, built by Hans Beh^im the Elder in 1494-5, now the Kaiser-
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Stallung (PI. D 2, II ; imperial stables), with a coat-of-arms by
A. Krafft. To the E. is the Lmginsland (PL 18), with turrets at its

four corners, erected in 1377.

b. The E. Part of the Old Town.

In the Paniers-Platz (PI. E, 2; //), a few paces to the E. of

the castle-hill, rises the Topler-Haiis (PI. 5; D, 2), aKenaissance

edifice of 1590-97. No. 9, close by, has a Gothic tower with a spiral

staircase; Xo. 20 is a Gothic frame-house. — Xo. 23, Schild-Gasse,

farther down, is the Hans zum Goldenen Schilde (PI. D, 2; //;,

where the first twenty -three articles of the Golden Bull ip. 167)

were composed in 1356.

Turning to the jSr.E. out of the Paniers-Platz, we pass the former

Max-Tor (PI. E, 2 ; II) and the Siehen Zeilen (PI. E, 2 ; //), seven

rows of weavers' houses, erected in 1488 on the site of the old

town-moat. In the Hirschel-Gasse (PI. E, 2 ; //), on the left (Xo. 11),

is the Tvcher Lcmdhaus, erected in 1533-44 and tastefully restored

by Gabr. von Seidl, with an interesting conrt (entr. at Xo. 9; gratu-

ity). The Hh'schvogel House (PI. E, 2 ; //), Xo. 21, farther on, since

] 905 the property of the town, contains at the back a hall in the

pure early -Renaissance style bv P. FlOtner C1534; open 9-12 and

3-7, Snn. 9-12; 20pf.).

Retracing our steps, we cross the AVebers-Platz to the Landaiier
Biuder-Klosfer(JPl.Y^,2; II), now a Real-Gymnasium (boys' school).

The pretty vaulting of the late-Gothic chapel (1506 ; entr. at Vordere

Landaner Gasse 8 ;
gratuity) is borne by two twisted columns. For

this chapel Diirer painted in 1511 his celebrated All Saints altar-

piecCj now at Vienna. — A few paces lower down is the Laufer-
scMag-Tiirm (PI. E, 2; //), a remnant of the town-wall (p. 186\ re-

constructed in 1508 and 1561.

In the Egtdien-Platz (PL E, 2; //), to the \V. of the Landauer
Kloster, rises the Protestant Egidien-Kirche (adm., see p. 166\
originally a Romanesque basilica belonging to the Schotten-Kloster,

the oldest monastery in the town. The church was burned down in

1696 and rebuilt in 1711-18 by J. Trost.
Three chapels dating from the original church have heen preserved

:

the Gothic Tctzcl-Kapelle (13-15), containing numerous hatchments of the
Tetzel family and the tomb (injured in the fire) of the Landauer family,
by Adam Krafft (1501), and adorned on the exterior with a statue of the

Virgin, perhaps an early work by Adam Krafft (9): the Romanesque
Eucharius-Kapelle (12th-l'3tli cent.); and the Gothic Wolfgangs-Kapelle,
with a large group of the Entombment (1116).

The church is peculiar in having an oval nave. The decoration
illustrates the transition from the baroque to the rococo stylo. The Pieta
on the high-altar is a studio -copy of Van Dyck's painting in the Old
Pinakothek at Munich. To the left', behind the" high-altar, is the Renais-
sance brass of the Eisen family, with a Pieta in relief, by the two Peter
Visclters (1522).
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On the N. side of the square stands a bronze equestrian statue of

Emperor William /., by Riimann (1905). Behind it is the *Peller-
Haus (IsTo. 23; PI. E 2, //), now the property of Eysser, the art-

dealer (p. 165), erected in 1605 by Jakob Wolf the Elder. It is the

finest late-Renaissance building in Nuremberg, and has a beautiful

court with arcades in three stories (gratuity). No. 13, on the AV.

side of the square, was the house of the printer Anton Koberger
(ca. 1440-1513). Opposite is a statue oi Melanchthon , by J. D.

Burgschmiet (1826), in front of the Gymnasium organized bv him
in 1526.

Adjacent on the S.W. is the little Thekesiex-Platz (PL E, 2; //),

with a bronze statue of Martin Behaim (p. 171), by Rossner (1890).

Thence the Binder-Gasse and Theresien-Str. lead W. to the Rathaus

(p. 172). Binder-Gasse 20 and Theresien-Str. 23 are adorned

with *Reliefs by A. Krafft (Joshua and Caleb, St. George and the

Dragon). KrajfVs House (PL D, 2; //), Theresien-Str. 7, probably
erected by Hans Beheini the Elder about 1510, has a fine two-storied

court. ~ Adam Krafft's statue of the Virgin at Binder-Gasse 1,

corner of the Fiinfer-Platz, and the statue of the Madonna at Obst-

markt 16 have been disfigured by painting. In the Obstmarkt, at

the corner of the Stadtisches Amts-Gebaude ('p. 172), is a fine statue

of St. Helena (15th cent.).

The Tuchek-Strasse(P1.E, 2; //), to the E. of the Obstmarkt,

possesses three of the finest courtyards in Nuremberg, at Nos. 15, 20
('Historischer Hof), and 21. At the corner of this street and the

Neue Gasse is the Grilhel Fountain (PL E, 2; //), by Wandei-er

(1881;, commemorating Konrad Grubel (1736-1809), a popular pot-t

of Nuremberg. At the corner of the Ebners- Gasse and the Hen-
Gasschen, near the AV. end of the Neue Gasse, is the bronze Bag-
piper Fountain (PL E, 2; 77) , a copy of a Renaissance model in

the Germanic Museum.
The Spital-Platz (Pl.E, 2; 77) is adorned with a bronze statue

oiHans Sachs (1494-1576), by J. K. Krausser (1874). Hans Sachs
lived at No. 17 in the adjacent Hans-Sachs-Gasse (V\. 2), now partly

restored to its original condition; the landlord of the tavern 'Zuin

giildenen Baren' shows the cobbler-poet's workshop.
On the S. side of the Spital-Platz stands the Protestant Heilig-

geist-Kirche (PL E 2, 77; adni., see p. 166), a Gothic churcli

(1331-41) belonging to the neighbouring hospital, and formerly the

depository of the imperial regalia (p. 167). The interior was remod-
elled in the baroque style in 1663. The aisles are adorned witli

frescoes of the 14th-15th centuries. On the high-altar (1912) is a

fine crucifix in the style of Veit Stoss; in front of it is the tomb
of Konrad Gross (d. 1356), founder of the hospital. At the E. end
of the N. aisle is the altar-tomb of Herdegen Yalzner (d. 1418).

The marble pulpit is by Heilmaier (1912;. — In the forecourt (entr.
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Spital-Gasse 14) of the Hospital is the Hansel Fountain, with a

Renaissance railing, and in an adjoining court (entr. over the Spital-

Briicke, through the Noris-Stift) is a Chapel of the Holy l^epvlchrc

(1459). - Opposite the church is the handsome Synagogue fPl. E,

l>, //; 1869-74; adm. 20 pf.i.

Turning S. from the Spital-Platz, we cross the Spital-Briickc
to the island oiSchiltt (PI. E, 2 ; 7/i, with the Mannerschuld-Turm.
View to the left of the picturesque houses on the Pegnitz. Thence
the Hea-Briicke leads to the Peter-Yischer-Str., with the house in

wliich Peter Vischer the Elder lived (PI. 4, E 3, //; No. 23).

Retracing our steps we pass through the gateway of No. 7 to

the Gothic Katharinen-Kirche (PI. E 3, //; adm., see p. 166), of

the early 14th cent., used by the Meistersingers as their school

from 1^20 onwards. The neglected interior contains paintings and
models. — To the E. is the new LuitjxM-Haus (PI. E, 3 ; //_), with
the collections of the Isatural History Society ladm., see p. 1(56 1.

—

-

Adjacent, to the E., is the —
Bayrische Landes-Gewerbeanstalt (PI. E, 3; 77), con-

sisting of a main building (1894-6), in the baroque style, and an
annexe of 1900. Adm., see p. 166.

Mais Building. On the ground-floor, to the right, are modern in-

dustrial art exhibitions; the first floor contains ancient and modern
patterns for industrial art (principally faience, stoneware, and porcelain)

;

on the second floor are a collection of models and the library. Fine view
of the old town from the windows.

Annexe (opposite). On the ground -floor are two lialls containing
machinery; the upper floor contains machine-tools and the electrical section.

A few paces to the E., Marientor-Graben 8, is the Bayrisches
Verkehrs-Museum (Pl.E, 3; 77), opened in 1899 (new building

under construction near the Stadt-Theater). Adm., see p. 166.
The Ground Floor contains the railway section. Rooms I. and IT.

Models of engines and railway-carriages. — Room III. Bismarck's saloon-
carriage. — Room XII. Section of an engine-boiler (fire-boxes in the
basement). — Room XVII. Models of bridges.

On the First Floor is the postal and telegraphic section, iucl. tele-
phonic, telegraphic, and pneumatic apparatus. Room YI. Models of mail-
coaches. — Room YIII. Collection of postage-stamps. — Room IX. Models
of steamers and steam-ferries.

c. The S.W. Part of the Old Town.
TJie main thoroughfares between theLorenzcrPlatz (p. 169) and

the Spittler-Tor (p. 186) are the Karolixex-Stkasse(P1.D,3; 77)and
the Ll-dwig-Strasse (PI. D, C, 3; 77). No. 30, Karolinen-Str., has a

graceful 'Chorlein' (oriel; after 1700), and No. 34 has a Renaissance
gable and court (16th cent.). No. 36, the General Post Office, is

by L. Ullmann (1905). — In the Hefners-Platz (Pl.D, 3; 77) stands
a monument (1905) to Peter Henlein (1480-1542), who is supposed
to have invented Avatches ('Nuremberg eggs'). — The Ludwig-Str.

l^jids past the Weisser Turm (PI. D, 3; 77), a relic of the town-wall
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(p. 186), to the Jakobs-Platz (P1.C,D,3; //). On the right stands

the Catholic Elisabeth-Kirche, built in 1785-1802 by the knights

of the Teutonic Order in a classical style, and restored in 1903

(sacristan, Eugelhards-Classe 8). Adjoining it is the old Deutsches

Haus, now the head-quarters of the commanding general. In the

middle of the square rises the —
St. Jakobs-Kirche (PI. C, D, 3, //; Protestant), founded in

1209 as the church of the Teutonic Order. The present building,

dating from ca. 1350, was restored by Heideloff in 1825.
The Ikterior (adm., see p. 166) contains many fine .sculptures in wood

and stone (14t[i-16th cent.). To the right and left of the W. portal are

the Virgin and St. John, figures from a group of the Crucifixion in the
style of Veit Stoss. — In the X. aisle is a Pieta (Virgin with the body
of Christ and St. John) by Veit Stoss, to whom also is ascribed the

group of St. Anna, the Virgin, and Child, on a winged altar in the
Dillherr Chapel. This aisle contains also remains of frescoes (1510) and
a famous *Pieta (the Virgin kneeling before the body of Christ), closely
allied in style to the Nuremberg Madonna (p. 183). — In the S. aisle,

opposite the second Pieta, is a small statue of the Virgin by Veit Stoss,
who executed also the relief of the Last Judgment in the Egloffstein
Chapel. — The fine choir contains many hatchments of Teutonic knights
and good statues of saints (14th cent.). The Gothic high-altar (ca. 1400)
has wing-paintings (retouched) and four admirable figures of Apostles in

terracotta (six others of the series in the Germanic Museum, see p. 183).

From the Jakobs-Platz we may follow the Jakob-Str. E. to the

Kornmarkt and Hall-Platz (PL D, 3; //), to the left of which,

along the inner town-wall, are a row of Corn Magazines, now used

by the hop-merchauts, with a portal of 1588 at the E. end. From
the Kornmarkt the Vordere Kartauser-Classe leads S. to the G-er-

mauic Museum (p. 181).

We turn to the 'N. from the Jakobs-Kirche and follow the

Weizen-Str. (Pi. C, D, 3; //) past the Weizen-Gebdude, a large

baroque building of 1672 (now municipal offices), to the Unschlitt-

Platz (PL D, 2; //), with the old Unschlitt-Haus (1491), originally

a granary, now a pawn-broking office.

Superb *Views of the town (particularly iine by moonlight) are

afforded by the four lower Bridges over the Pegnitz (PLD, 2;

11): the Max-Briicke, rebuilt in 1852-3 by B. Solger; the Kettensteg

(1824), the first suspension-bridge in Germany, adjoining the present

town-wall (p. 186); the iron Henkersteg ; and the Derrer-Brilcke
(1486), between the Trodelmarkt island and the Karl-Str. — In the

court of No. 23, Karl-Str. (PLD, 2; //), are realistic carvings in

the style of Hans Sebald Beham (p. 168), representing a village

church -festival, etc. — In the gardens of the Maximilian -Platz

(PL D, 2; //) is the Triton Fountain, by Bromig (1687).

In the Adler-Strasse (PL D, 3; II) the rococo facade of No. 21
should be noticed. In the Grothic court of No. 19 is a small relief

(Adoration of the Child) by Adam Krafft (1498); on No. 28 is a

statue of the Madonna (14th cent,).
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d. The Germanic Museum.
The **Germanic JSTational Museum fPl. D, 3, //; adm.,

see p. 165), an institution founded in 1852 by Baron Hans von

Aufsess for the illustration of German historical research, consists

of collections bearing on the history of art and civilization (entr.

Vordere Kartauser-Gasse 7), a library, archives, and a cabinet oi

engravings (entr. Untere Grasers-Gasse 18;. Since 1857 it has been

established in a suppressed Carthusian monastery, a Gothic struc-

ture founded in 1380 and enlarged in the 15th cent., with a church

and two cloistered courts. The building has been repeatedly extended

by A. von Essenwein (1866-92; andDr.vonEezold, the present direc-

tor. On the S. side, facing the Frauentor-Maucr, is the Augustinian

monastery (p. 175), rebuilt here in 1872-5; adjoining it is the S.AV.

wing, completed in 1902; and a further addition is being erected on

the N". side. Owing to the munificence of private donors the museum
has become one of the finest in Germany. The objects of general

interest are open to the public, while others are reserved for the

use of students (adm. on application to the directors of the various

sections). The rooms on the ground-floor (stone floors) are very cold

and for the most part badly lighted. In addition to the excellent

general guide ('Wegweiser'; 50 pf.) there are numerous sectional

catalogues. Refreshments in summer in Cloister 30. Those whose

time is limited should confine their visit to the following rooms

(1-1 V2 tr-): 34, 35, 33, 36-38, 26, 39, 48, 49, 52-55, 61, 62, 59,

89-82 (paintings), 71-76, 66-68.

Ground Floor. — Immediately to the left, in Rooms 1 and 2,

are the prehistoric collections. R. 1 : Objects of the stone age ; model
of a lake-dwelling; copy of a 'Hun's grave', etc. R. 2: Antiquities

of the bronze and iron ages (Halistatt and La Tene periods).

Cloister 3 and Halls 4 and 5 (right and left) contain Roman
antiquities found in Germany. In the cloister: Casts of sepulchral

monuments (from the 1st cent. A.D. onwards). Hall 4: Glass vessels,

etc. Hall 5 : Two beams from the bridge over the Rhine at Mayence.
— Room 6 (to the left). Recent acquisitions.

Passage 7 (right) and Room 8 (left) contain Christian anti-

quities, mostly Germanic (Ist-lOth cent.). R. 8: Prankish weapons
(Cases I-VI); antiquities found in Upper Egyptian tombs(CaseVIIi;
early-Germanic helmet, from Pfersee near Augsburg (Case VIII);

works of art of the Carlovingian period (Case X); copies of the

'Treasure of Athanarich' (d. 381), Yisigothic work of the 4th cent,

(Case XI; original at Bucharest); gold ornaments of the Ostrogoths

from Ravenna (Case XY); objects from tombs in Thalmassing in

Central Franconia (Case XVIII); coins; damascened belt-hooks. -

In the N.W. Court (M) are old fire-extinguishing apparatus and

one of the first carriages used on the Ludwigs-Bahn (p. 166).
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Cloister 9. Casts of mediaeval sepulchral monuments (down

to the 14th cent.). — Rooms 10-13 (on the left). Stoves and stove-

tiles. — Rooms 14 and 15. Work in wrought iron. — Opposite is the

Hohexzollerx-Hallb, designed by Essenwein (p. 181). — At the end

of Cloister 9, to the left, is the Wilhelms-Halle (16), with a Grothic

wooden ceiling, stained glass presented by King William of Prussia

in 1868, and sepulchral monuments of the 14th-15th centuries.

East Cloister 17. Casts of sepulchral monuments (14th cent.)

and seals (12th-19th cent.). — In the new Romanesque Cloisters

(18, 21-23) and the adjoining Halls (19, 20, 24, 25) are casts of

Grerman sculptures (10th-16th cent.). — Court D. Copy in cement

of the Roland statue at Bremen.

The South Wing (26) of the large cloisters contains casts of

tombstones (15th-16th cent.) and *Stained glass (12th-16th cent.).

The finest specimens of stained glass are: Frames 1 and 2. Roman-
esque windows of French origin (ca. 1200); 7. Early-Gothic panes from
Cologne; 16. Windows from the Frauen-Kirche, with the Scourging of
Christ (Nuremberg; loth cent.); 19-22. "Windows with coats-of-arms from
Xureniherg; 23. Half-length portrait of a married couple (Swabian :

ca. 1500), St. Fridolin and Death; 24. Death and a canon (Nuremberg),
Virgin with angels (Nuremberg; ca. 1500); 25. Christ with three martyrs
(Swiss; 1517). Continuation of the tombstones and stained glass in

Cloisters 49-51 (p. 184).

Hall 27 (to the left, at end of S. wing). Instruments of torture;

headsmen's swords (17th-18th cent.); falling-axe (18th cent.).

From the S. wing we pass straight on into Rooms 28 and 29,

containing objects in majolica, stoneware, faience, and porcelain.

R. 28. The wall-cases contain majolica and faience: 1. Persia; 2-i.

*N. German faience; 5. Balearic Islands (Spanish-Mauresque majolica);
fi-12. Italy; 13 and 14. Delft; 15. Rouen; 16 et seq. Nuremberg and other
S. German pottery.

R. 29. Porcelain. Case 1. Early brown ware fi'om Meissen and
Bayreuth; 2. Frankenthal (*Apotheosis of the Elector Charles Theodore
of Bavaria); 3. Nymphenburg; 4. Meissen, Berlin, and FUrstenberg;
5. S. Germany; 6. Vienna; 7. English stoneware by J. Wedgwood (1730-95)

;

8. Fulda (*Madonna Immaculata).

Small Cloisters (30-32). Six Stations of the Cross by Adam
Krafft (ca. 1505; comp. p. 187); brasses of the 16th -18th cent.,

mostly from Nuremberg (30); casts of ecclesiastical utensils (31 j

and sepulchral monuments of the 16th-17th cent. (32).

The old Carthusian Church (33) contains original ^Sculptures

(mostly 15th-16th cent.), ecclesiastical utensils, etc.

We mention some of the larger sculptures. On the N. wall: 231. Coro-
nation of the Virgin (Tyrolese ; ca. 1400); 228. St. George (Bohemian;
ca. 1400); 233. Madonna and Child (Rhenish; early 15th cent); 317. Virgin
kneeling, by Veit Stoss ; *409, *410. SS. Leonard and Stephen (Tyrolese

;

ca. 1500) ; *316. Crucifix by Veit Stoss ; farther E. are sculptures by Tilman-
Riemensch'iieider (p. 118) and his school, incl. *St. Elizabeth (restored);
adjacent, the upper portion of a late-Gothic carved altar. On the S. wall

:

375. St. Anne, Virgin, and Child (Swabiau; 1st half of 16th cent.); *380,
*381. Two groups of saints, in high-relief (Swabian; ca. 1520); 397, 398,

SS. Lawrence and Peter (Bavarian?; ca. 1510); epitaph in glazed terra-
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cotta, from Wasserburg on the Inn; 213, 214. Virgin and St. Elizabeth
(Swabian; ca. 1340). — In the cabinets: 1. Costly processional cross
(10th cent.); *2. Silver bust -reliquary of St. Zcno (Augsburg; 1467);
*o. Ostensorium of rock-crystal (lltli cent.) witli Cufic inscription, on a
late-Gothic foot; 4. 'Hedwig's glass' (12th-13th cent.), etc. ; silver-mounted
casket in which the imperial jewels were kept (p. 1H7 ; 1.5th cent.); 7. Ena-
mels and ivories; 8, 9 (under the gallery). Mass vestments; 10. Copies
of imperial seals; 11, 12. Sculptures iu wood and alabaster; 13. Aqua-
manilia (mostly 14th and l.')lli. cent.), Gothic chalices, and monstrances;
If). Processional cross and book-cover (Romanesque). Carved altar from
Hersbruck (Nuremberg; ca. l.iOO). — On the walls are hatchments, flags, etc.

From the N". .side of the church we enter (left i Covered Court 34,

containing mediajval sculptures in stone and terracotta, mostly ex-

ecuted at Nuremberg: *Oriel -window from the Sebalder Pfarrhof

(p. 174 1,• architectural fragments and sculptures from the SchOner
Bruunen (p. 171); six seated terracotta statues of Apostles, from the

Jakobs-Kirche (p. 180); Mary Magdalene kneeling; Madonna (Nu-
remberg; 1482).

Covered Court 35 (eutr. from Passage 7, p. 181) contains the

*Sculptures, mostly in wood, belonging to the town.
On the E. wall': 2.")1. Altar with tlic Betrothal of St. Catharine

(Nuremberg; 2nd half of 15th cent.); 278. Madonna by Veit Stoss, from
his house in tlie AVunderbnrg-Gasse (ca. 1,500) ; *478. Nuremberg Madonna,
in the style of Peter Vischer (ca. 1520), a masterpiece of Nuremberg art.

On the S. wall : *273. 'RosenkrauztafeP, a wooden tablet with coloured
reliefs (Veit Stoss'?; ca. 1.500); 301. Frame of the All Saints picture
(p. 177), from a design by Dilrer, with a ^Frieze (Last Judgment) full

of life. On the W. wall: *49(3. The unjust judge, by Ham^Ixinheriier
(ca. 1525-.50); 479. St. Wenzel, wooden model for the bronze statue" in
Prague Cathedral, cast in Vischer's foundry (before 1532).

In the former Sacristy (36; entr. on the N. side of the church)

are several carved altars (15th-l 6th cent.); 264. Recumbent figure of

St. Catharine with three small angels, hwVeit Stoss (ca. 1500); 395.

Christ entering Jerusalem on the ass (Bavarian?; early 16th cent.i;

388. The twelve Apostles, coloured relief (Upper Rhenish?; early

16th cent.), — Opposite, on the S. side of the church, is the former
Chapel (37), containing ecclesiastical antiquities. — Straight on is

Room 38, with mediaeval household utensils. We return to Cloister 26

(p. 182; and at its E. end turn to the right.

Hall 39. Late -Romanesque portal from Heilsbronn Abbey
f^p. 37; after 1200); stoves, furniture, and household utensils of

tlie 16th-17tii centuries. — AVe now turn to the right and enter the

picturesque modern -Grothic Water Court (F). On the W. side,

by the Augustinian monastery (p. 181), is a spiral staircase, ad-

joining which are the 'Reckentiirmchen' and a balcony from Danzig
(17th cent.). We ascend the steps adjoining Hall 39.

Kitchex (40), with 17th cent, utensils. - Rooms 41-47. R. 41

:

Gothic peasant's room from Tyrol (ca. 1500). R. 42: Room from
Cologne (after 1600). R. 43: Swiss room (ca. 1700). R.44: Tyrolese
room. R. 45 and 46: Nuremberg rooms (the second of ca. 1570).

We return to Hall 39 and turn to the left i)ast the staircase.
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Room 48, witli furniture and uteusils (16tli-18th cent.).

In the middle: Sumptuous ebony bedstead inlaid with alabaster

(Nuremberg; after 1600) and two cabinets (X. Italian; 17th cent.).

Cases 5 and 8: Goldsmith's work; among the Xuremberg work in Case 8

are a double goblet by Peter Wiber (after 1600), the Holzschuher goblet

by EUas LenJcer (1562), the *Coco-nut goblet with Bacchic scenes by
Peter Flotner (ca. 1535), the goblet of the Pfiuzing family (1536), a

nautilus goblet by F. Hildebrand (1595), and a glass goblet with silver-

gilt mounting hy'WeuzelJamnitzer i]^. 168), the only authenticated work
of this artist at Nuremberg. Case G: Silver-gilt travelling-service, adorned
v.ith agate (Augsburg; ca. 1710). Case 7: Enamelled vessels from Limoges.

The adjoiuing Cloisters ('49-51) of the Augustinian monastery

contain casts of monuments and stained glass (16th-19th cent. ; comp.

Cloister 26, p. 182i. In Cloister 50 is also the collection of glass.

The collection is rich in ornamental Venetian glass (Cases 1-3).

Cases 4-8 contain German and Bohemian glass, incl. enamelled glass (6)

and 'Schaper-Glaser' (7).

Stained glass in the ^Y. wing (51): Frame 37. Aristotle and Phyllis
(ca. 1510), with a coat -of -arms (Swiss; 1548); 38. Two Swiss windows
(ca. 1550); 39. Pane of Hans Gross (1599), probably by Chr. Maurer
(d. 1614); *41, 42. Four allegories of good government, by Chr. Maurer;
50-56. Medallions with coats-of-arms (Nuremberg; 16th-17th cent.).

Adjoining Cloister 50 on the S. are Rooms 52-54, containing

portable fire-arms, chronologically arranged. The earliest barrels

(14th cent.) are interesting. — Hall 55, in the S.TT. "wiug, contains

armour, pikes, swords, daggers, shields, helmets, and cross-hows

(15th-19th cent.). The jousting armour on the staircase and the

gala armour in the cases (early 17th cent.) should be noticed. —
From the N.W. corner we enter (right) Rooms 56-58, with cannon and
models of cannon. R. 56 also contains sleighs. The larger cannon

are kept in the hall at the W. end of the Frauentorzwinger ('comp.

p. 165). We return to Cloister 51 and ascend the staircase.

First and Second Floors. [The numbers in parenthesis on

the adjacent plan refer to the second floor.] — Room 59. Costumes
and ornaments. — Then up the stairs to Room 60, with pewter
ware itemporarvj and peasants' utensils. — Room 61 (opposite;.

Peasants' costumes and ornaments, incl. 353 costumed figures and
busts. We descend the stairs. — Room 62. Peasants' rooms. — We
cross the W. staircase and descend to Room 63, with the Kahlbaum
collection of pewter and 4000 European gold and silver coins. —
Rooms 64-66. Furniture (18th cent.). — Room 67. Panelling from
a house in the Tetzel-Grasse il771i. — Room 68. *Tapestried room
from the Wespieu House at Aix-la-Chapelle. in the rococo style

(ca. 1740). We descend the spiral staircase.

Room 69. Museum of commerce (models of ships and Avaggons,

weights and measures, etc.). We return to R. 66 and cross the

gallery of the church (70). — Room 71 and Hall 77. Scientific

instruments, incl. (R. 77) the first terrestrial globe, by Martin
Behaim (p. 167 ; 1492), the terrestrial globe of Job. Schoner (1520),

and the astronomical globe of Juh. StOfller il493). — Hall 72 and
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Rooms 73-76. Pbariiiacpiitical collection (73. Chemist's shop; 76.

Laboratory). — Koom 78. Technical models and tools. — From
Hall 77 we turn to the right into Chapel 79. Ecclesiastical objects

(17th and 18th cent.). — Room 80 (on the left). Guild antiquities.

— Room 81. Toys, incl. a rococo puppet-theatre and Nuremberg
dolls' houses.

Rooms 82-89 contain casts of sculptures of the 16th-18th cent.

(R. 87), small sculptures, and the ••Picture Gallery I'over 500
works), in which the masters of the 8. German schools of the 15th

and 16th cent, are well represented (catalogue of 1909, with supple-

ment of 1910, 60 pf.).

Gallery 82. Section I (Rhenish and Early-XetheilaiuUsh Schools of
the 14tli-16th cent.). To the left, 4. Meisfer Wilhelm of C'ologne(r^),

Madonna •ft'ith the pea-blossom; 1. t'ologne School (ca. 1400), Five scenes
from the Passion; 13. Stephan Lochner, Cincifixion : School of Stephau
Lochner, 871. Nativity, 18. Christ and Mary Magdalene; 42. Master of
the Death of the Virgin, ^ladonna ; *80. Lucas van Leyden , Moses
smiting the rock. To "the right, 21. Style of the Master of the Life of
the Virqin, Adoration of the Magi. — Section II (Franconiau School of
the l.otii cent.). To the left, 135. M. Wohlgemut, Portrait of Hans Perck-
meister (1496); 117. blaster of the Tmh off' Altar, Nativity (epitaph of
Walpurg Priinster). To the right, 116. Master of the Imhoff' Altar, Pieta :

*8T8. Conrad Witz, Annunciation; 2o'->-2SS. Martin Scliivarz, Four scenes
from the life of the Virgin. — .Section III (S. Grerman Schools of tlie

loth and 16th cent.). To the left, 1.J2. School of Hans Pleijdenwurff',
Madonna at a prie-dieu ; 151. Nuremberg School I'ca. 1470), St. Bridget;
.308-310. Studio of Friedrich Pacher, Virgin, St. Nicholas, and St. John.
To the right and on the end-wall, 254-259 and 888-891. Bernhard Strigel,
Altar from Mindelheim ; 228, 229, 242. 243. Sicabian School {Ute 15th cent.),

Scenes from the life of Christ; 246. Barth. Zeitbloni, Pieta. Sculpture;
481. Paulcraz Labenicolf, Putto.

KooM 8."] ;S. German -^-orks of the early 16th cent.}. To the left,

Ifiins Bnrgkmair, 280, 281, 897. Triptych, *283. Madonna in a green
landscape (1510); Hans Baldung Grien. •'=344. Holy Family, 903. Madonna ;

*273. Hans Holbein the Elder, Madonna; *2'i9. Sigmund Holbein, Ma-
donna enthroned; L. Cranach the Elder, *207. Portrait of Stephan Reuss.
213. Venus and Cupid: A. Dilrer, *166. Hercules fightins: with the Stvm-
phalian birds (1500), *i69. Maximilian I., *885. Portrait of M. AVohlgeniut

;

184. Hans von Kidvibach, St. George; *312. A. Altdorfer, Crucifixion.
To the right, 313-315. A. Altdorfer, Legend of St. Qiiiriuns ; L. Cranach
th^ Elder, *214. King Christian II. of Denmark, 215. Margrave Casimir of
Brandenburg; 267. Martin Schaff'ner, Adoration of the Magi ; 6'. German
School (ca. 1490), 110. Last Judgment, 109. Allegory of Life and Death.
In the centre arc German Renaissance bronzes . including some from
Peter Vischer's foundry.

Room 84 (S. Germ'an works of the 15th aud 16th cent.'. On the
entranee-wall ; A. Diirer, 165. Pieta, the so-called Holzschulier panel (a

replica with variations of the picture at Munich), *167, *168. Emperors
Charlemagne and Sigismund (1510-12; freely retouched); Hans von Kidm-
bach, 185. St. Cosmas, 186. St. Damian; *282. Hans Burgkmair, Madonna
(1509). On the end-wall: 142-115. M. Wohlgemut, AVings of the Perings-
dorfer altar. On the long E. wrtll: 880-883. Hans Pleijdemcurff, Betro-
thal of St. Catharine, Nativity, Crucifixion, Resurrection, four wing.s

of a high-altar from the Katharinen-Kirche at Nuremberg. In the centre
are medals.

Hall 85 (German and Netherlandish Masters of the 16th-17th cent.).

To the left. Chr. Schnarz. 9ii0. Glorification of the Virgin, 901. St. Jerome,

12^
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902. St. Catharine. To the right. *206. G. Penes, Captain Sebald Schirmer
(1345). On the window-side are miniature portraits.

Hall 86 (works of the 17th-19th cent.). To the right, 432. Adam Els-
heimer. Biblical scene; 410. Jo?i. Lingelhach, Scene in an Italian park;
453-460. Joh. Kiipetzky, Portraits.

Hall 88 (modern pictures). 501. J. LunteschUtz, Schopenhauer; 505.

Lenhnch, Bismarck (1894); 986. Jos. AbeJ. Countess Fries and her children.

In the centre is an old wooden model of Xuremberg, probably by Wilhelm
Behaim (ca. 1615). Case I: Stone reliefs of the 16th century. Case II:

Turner's work. Case III : Small Renaissance sculptures.

Room 89 (paintings of the ITtb and 18th cent., chiefly Xotherlandish).
To the left, 385. Esaias van de Velde. Attack on a convoy; 409. Sal.

van EuysdaelCO, Forest -scene; 402. Corn. Bega , Tavern - scene ; 399.

G. Terburg, Portrait of a woman; Rembrandt, *392. St. Paul in prison
(ca. 1628), *391. Portrait of himself (ca. 1629); 405. ./. van BHijsdaeK?),
Landscape; *406. Pieter de Hooch Genre -scene; 408. TT". van de Velde
the Younger, Sea-piece. In the centre are reliefs in lead (plaquettes),

*Reliefs in boxwood by Peter Flotner and others (six allegorical female
ligiires representing tlie cardinal sins, ca. 1540), a dagger-sheath (Xurem-
berg: 16th cent.), etc.

Gallery 90. Pictures of costumes. *— Room 91 (to the left).

Moiiuments of medical scieuce. — Room 92 (to the right). Musical

instruTiieuts. — Gtallery 93. Tapestry, incl. the Garden of Love

(Flemish; after 1500). Original wood-cut blocks, illustrating the

development of the art since tiie loth century. — Room 94 (to the

left). Book-bindings. — Room 95. Development of writing (since

the 8th cent.) and printing; graphic arts. — Room 9G. Weaving.
The nearest way to the exit is to cross the gallery of the church

(70), traverse Room 71, aud descend the staircase to the right.

e. The Town Walls and Outer Quarters.
' The *Towii Walls, built in 1345-1452 and greatly strength-

ened in the 16th- 17lh cent., form one of the most interesting

features of the town; though they have unfortunately been removed
at places to meet the requirements of modern traffic, they still bear

testimony to the military strength of the old city.

The earliest fortifications consisted of a double wall 23 ft. in height
and 55 ft. broad, with a protected passage and square towers placed at

intervals of .50 yds. Outside was a dry moat, 30 ft. deep and 90 ft.

broad. The four main gates (^Frauen-Tor , PI. E 3, //; Spittler Tor,
PI. C 3, II: Xen-Tor, PI. D 2, //; and the razed Lanfer-Tor. PI. E, F,

2, //; were defended l)v strong outworks. Of the four smaller gates
(Haller Tor, PI. D 2. //.• Tiergdrtner Tor. PI. D 2. //; Vestuer Tor,
PI. D 2. //; and the razed Wohrd^r Tor, PL E F 2. II) the second alone
belongs to the older fortifications compleleil in 1332. When gunpowder
became a feature of warfare, tlie wall was reinforced by smaller forts

and by round forts with cannon (•Streichwehre'), especially in the Yest-
nertor-Clraben and at the points where the Pegnitz entered and quitted
the town. These additions were made in conformity witli the theory
of fortification propounded by Diirer. In 1538-45 Antonio Fazuni of

Malta erected the great polygonal Bnrgbastei between the Tiergartner
Tor and the Yestner Tor, with casemated side-bastions. In 1556-64 the

four main towers received their present circular shape (walls 19 ft.

thick) from the designs of Oeorg Unger. Tlie works constructed shortly
before and during- the Thirtv Years' War liave vanished. — The most
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picturesque portion of the fortifications is on the \V. side, between tlie

Spittler Tor (PI. C, 3; II) and the site of the Max-Tor (PI. E, 2; //),
and near tlic Wohrdcr Tor (PI. E, F, 2; II). The protected passage
('Wchrf^ang') on the inside of the wall is well seen at the Ludwigs-Tor
(PI. C, 3;//) and the Neu-Tor (PI. D, 2; 77). — A good idea of the
whole fortifications is afforded by a circular trip on the tramway-line
Xo. 5 (p. 165;.

On the rrinzrcgunten-Ufcr (PI. E, F, 2, 3; 11) rises ;i lofty

pedestal supporting an equestrian statue of Bisntarck , in lime-

stone, 16 ft. liij^h, by Tli. Fischer and J. Flossniann (1918).

In the Fraueutor-Graben, between the Frauen-Tor and Spittler

Tor, and opposite the Germanic Museum, is the Neues Stadi-

Theater (PI. D, 3; 77), built by Seeling in 1902-5. A little W. is

the building of the Industrie' nnd KHltar-Vereia (PI. D 3, 77;
restaurant, see p. 164), by Th. von Kramer (1905). — In the Me-
lanehthon-Platz (PI. C, D, 4, 5; 7), to the S., beyond the railway, is

a monumental Fountain by Kittler (1908).

In the Plarrer (PL C, 3; 77), between the Spittler Tor and the

Ludwigs-Bahnhof, another monumental Fountain (1890j commem-
orates the opening of the first German railway (p. 166). — In the

Rothenburger Str., S.W. of the Plarrer, is the old St. Rochus-
Kirchhof (PI. B, 3; 7), with the grave of Peter Vischerthe Elder
(d. 1529) and his sons Hermann and Peter (No. 90, "ninth stone

in the path to the right). The Bochus-Kapelle, erected in 1519-21

])y Paul Beheim, contains stained glass from the w^orkshop of Veit

Ilirschvogel, resembling Diirer's work. — A little to the S.W. is

the Harhonr of the Ludwigs-Kanal (p. 146), 370 yds. long.

To the AV. of the Spittlertor-Graben lies the Rosenau (PI. C,

3; 77), a pleasure-resort (p. 164). — In the Prater-Anlagc (PL C,

3; 77) is the MinnesOntjer-Brunnen, by Kittler (^1905).

Outside the Xen-Tor, in the Johaxxis-Strassk (tramway Xo. 6,

see p. 165), which leads to the Johannis-Kirciihof (see below), is the

simple Heiluikreuz-Kapelle (PL C 2, 77; Xo. 24, on the right:

gratuity), containing numerous hatchments of the Haller family and
a large altar from Wohlgemut's workshop, with a group of the

Descent from the Cross and painted double wings.

In the Burgschmiet-Str., which runs from the Ticrgartner Tor

(p. 186) to the Johannis-Friedhof, stands on the right the Lenz
Bronze Foundry (formerly Buryschniief : PL I) 2, 77), with a

collection of models (visitors admitted). — In the Burgschmiet-Str.

and the Johaunis-Str.. farther on, are Adam Kraff't's Stations of
the Cross, seven sandstone pillars (1505-6) with reliefs of the

Passion. The Kalvarienberg, the last station, is inside the Johannis-

Kirchhof. Six of the stations have been replaced by copies by Georg
Leistner; the originals are now in the Germanic Museum (p. 182 1.

The Johannis-Kirchhof (PL B, C, 1, 2; 7), laid out in 1518
and containing fine brasses, is well worth a visit (the daughter of
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the chief sexton or the keeper affords all iuformation and also opens

the Holzschuher-Kapelle; jt^ratuity 50 pf.)-

The late -Gothic Holzschuher-KapeUe , to the left of the entrance,

near the Kalvarienbcrg (p. 187), contains a large Entombment, Adam
Krafft's last work (1508). — In the 6th row from the entrance, five graves
X.E. of the Holzschuher ch;ipel, is Pirl'heimer^s tomb (Xo. 1411; p. 167).

On the path leading to the Johannis-Kirche (see below) rises the 3Iuntzer
tomb (1560: 25 ft. "in height). In the 6th row behind it is the grave
of Diirer (Xo. 6iy, the 11th stone to the left of the path): 'Quicquid
Alberti Dureri mortale fnit, sub hoc conditur tumulo ; emigravit YIII Idus
Aprilis MDXXYIII' (April 6th, 1528). About 50 paces S. is the tomb
(Xo. 503) of the confectioner Hans Sachs and his descendants, perhaps
including the poet Hans Sachs (p. 178). A few paces to the right

(X.E.) of Diirer's grave is that of Wenzel Jamnitzer (p. 168: Xo. 664,

in the 5th row), with a fine epitaph by Jost Amman. In the row in

front lie the painter Ansehn Feuerbach (d. 1880 ; Xo. 715) and A. von
Essenwein (p. 181 ; Xo. 720). Eight rows to the W. of Diirer, in the

direction of the Johannis-Kirche, rests Veil Stoss (p. 167; Xo. 268),

and farther on lies the popular poet Griihel (p. 178; Xo. 20t)). Four rows
to the X.W. , opposite the Johannis-Kirclie, is Paumgdrtner' s grave
(d. 1679). with a large bronze skull (movable jaw). In the second row
farther X.W., on the paved side-walk, a little to the right of the church,
is the tomb of the painter Joachim von Sandrart (d. 1688). — The Gothic
Johannis-Kirche (14th-15th cent. ; opened by the sacristan, gratuity) con-
tains a winged altar by the Master of theTucber Altar (p. 171;' left);

the main altar is by Diirer's contemporary Wolf Traut.

To the X.E. of the Altstadt, in the Bayreuther Str.. is the Stadt-
Park (PI. F 1, /; tramways Nos. 1, 3, and 5, see pp. 164, 165),

Avith a restaurant (band, see p. 164). Xear the latter, at the end

of the central walk, rises the fSchiller Moniunenf, by A. Hildebrand

(1909j. A bronze monument to Km;/ Louis II.. V»y M. Heilnieier,

was erected in 1913.

f. Environs. Fiirth.

A tramway (Xo. 2, p. 164) runs to the S.E. from Xuremberg,
passing the Luitpoldhain (with a festival -hall) on the right, to

Dutzendteich (PL I 5, /; station, see p. 128), with a large lake

for bathing and boating, gardens, and restaurants (Dutzendteich,

Bellevue, and AValdlust'. — To the S. of the Luitpoldhain (see

above) and to the y^. of the lake (entr. opposite the festiA^al-hall;

tramway No. 9) is the *Tiergarten(Pl. G H 6, /; adm., see p. 166),

laid out in 1912 in the style of the Hagenbeck zoological gardens
at Hamburg, with large ponds. Xear the main entrance, to the left,

is a restaurant (band daily j; refreshments may also be obtained in

the S.AV. eorner of the gardens.

From Dutzendteich a pretty forest-path leads via the Falzner
Weiher (restaurant; water-shoot) and Schmausenhuck (1275 ft.;

rfmts.), with its view-tower (20 pf .), to Mogeldorf siaiion (p. 345). —
Xear the Erlenstegen terminus of tramway Xo. 6 (p. 165) is the Plaf-

nersherg, an old town-park with a garden-restaurant (fine views).

For an excursion to Furth we may use the state-railway (5 M.

;

p. 128), the local Ludwigs-Bahn (3^'^ M. in 10 miu.; station, see
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p. 163; trains every V4-V2 li^'-
!

^''^^^ -^j ^^i 1^ pf-/*? <^^' the tram-

way (No. 1, or No. 7 as far as the town-boundary, see pp. 164, 165;

V'y hr. from the Haupt-Bahnhof >.

Fiirth. i965 ft.; comp. the inset -plan opposite; Park- Hotel,

PI. a, R. from 2 Jl'^ Kiitt, PI. b, both near the Ludwigs-Bahnhof

;

Oaf6 Corso, corner of Schwabacher-Str. and Most-8tr. 1, a busy town

with 66,600 inhab., vies with Nuremberg in the manufacture of

Nuremberg wares, and possesses important gold-leaf and mirror

factories. In front of the Staats-Bahnhof is a monumental Foantain
(PI. 1 ; 1890). In the Hall-Platz is the Theatre (1900-2). To the

N.W. stands the Bathaus (1844-50), with its lofty tower. The Gothic

St. Michaels -Kirche (14th cent.), still farther N.W., contains a

beautiful late-Clothic 'Sakranientshiiuschen' (p. 170), 26 ft, high.

The Rednitz, which joins the Pegnitz below the town to form the

Regnitz, is crossed by a railway and a suspension bridge. — On
the left bank of the Pegnitz, N.E. of the Ludwigs-Bahnhof, is the

Stadt-Park, 10 min. E. of the E, end of which is the Ludwigs-
Qaelle, a mineral spring bored in 1901 and resembling the Kis-

singen Sprudel.
FnoM FiJKTH TO Cadolzbukg, 8 M., local railway in '61 min. (70 or

40 pf.). AVe start from a station W. of the Staats-Bahnhof. — 21/2 M.
Alte Feste. At the Alte Feste (1185 ft."), on a wooded hill by the Red-
nitz, 10 min. "VV., the battle between Gustavns Adolphus and "Wallenstein.

which compelled the Swedish monarch to retreat, was fought on Sept. 4th.

It532. Extensive view from the toAver. 90 ft. high; adjacent is a garden-
restaurant. — 3 M. Zirndorf, with a brewery. — 8 M. Cadolzburg
(1245 ft. ; inns), with 1500 inhabitants. Leaving tlic station we turn to

the right and then almost at once to the left. After Vi hi"- '^'e either

proceed to the left to (5 min.) the view-tower (140 ft. high ; 10 pf.), passing
the house of its keeper (right), or we may keep to the right, pass (2 min.)

the town-gate, and reach the old castle of the Burgraves of Nuremberg
(now a law-court). It consists of the outer and inner castle, the latter

including the old building (2nd half of 15th cent.), the chapel, and the

new building (after 1500).

From Nuremberg to Eschenau, 12 M., branch-line in 1 hr. The
trains start from the Xordost-Bahnhof (beyond PI. F, 1 ; 7). — 8V2 M.
Kalchreiith (1360 ft. ; Hot. Miiller) , with 950 inhab. and a 15th cent,

church containing a •Sakramcntshauschetf (p. 170) from A. Krafft's work-
shop (early 16th cent.). View from the tower of the foothills of the

Jura. — 12 M. Eschenau (1130 ft. ; Hot. Schwan). To Erlaugen or Grafen-
berg, see p. 138.

26. Prom Nuremberg via Schnabelwaid
to Eger.

94 M. Railway in 23/4-6'/^ hrs. (express to Prague in S^U hrs.).

Nuremberg, see p. 163. We cross the Pegnitz-Tal by a long

embankment and several bridges. — 2\'2 ^^- Nuremberg - Ost-

bahnhof. We then skirt the hills on the N. side of the Pegnitz-

Tal; on the S. side of tbe valley the Schwandorf line runs parallel
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•with ours as far as Hersbruck (coiiip. R. 47;. — 8 J\I, Rilckers-

dorf, 1 hr. ?^. of which is Lmhcif/slwhe, a summer resort with a

view-tower. — 10\'2 ^^- Lanf (right bank station), with a Schloss

on the Pegnitz. About 10 min. S. is the station of the Schwandorf

line (p. 346). — I21/2 M. Schnaittach.
Brancli-line X. via (3 M.) Markt Schnaittach. witli lljc ruin of Rotten-

berg (1830 ft. ; view) above it, to (6 M.) SimmcUdorf-Hiittenbach.

151/2 ^- JReichenschivand , at the base of the Hausgorglberg

(see below; 1 hr.), with a Schloss and park.

171/2 M. Hersbruck (right bank station; 1100 ft.; Hot. Post,

at the N. end of the town ; Traube, iu the market-place ; Roter Hahn),

a prosperous little town of 4600 iuhab. at the foot of the Michels-

berg, surrounded by hop-gardens. The station on the left bank of

the Pegnitz (p. 346/ lies 1/., hr. S.

The Michelsberg (1420 ft.), ascended from the riglit bank station in

1/4 lir., affords a survey of the town and district. The view from tlic

Hansgorglberg (1975 ft.; pavilion), IV2 hi'- fi'om the right bank station,
is spoilt by trees.

At (21 M.) Hohenstadt the line turns N. and enters the narrow
and tortuous Upper Pegnitz-Tal (numerous bridges and tunnels).

To the right, at the mouth of the HirschbacJi-Tal, lies the summer
resort of Eschenhach (1140 ft,), with a Schloss. — We pass Alfcdtcr
on the left. — 25 M. Vorra (1160 ft.); 10 min. up the valley lies

Artelshofen (Hot. Hirsch), in a picturesque situation.

28 M. Rupprechtstegen (1185 ft.; Hot. zur Friiukischen

Schweiz, with a huge lime-tree), the centre of the 'Hersbruck or

Nuremberg Switzerland'. On the slope to the left is the imposing
AV^aldrab's Hotel Kurhaus (P. 4-^-61, 2 -/«^)-

T\\Q Anka-Tal, to the W., with its woods and groups of rocks (incl.

the Andreas - Kirche, on the left), affords a pleasant walk. Thence we
may cross the plateau to (IV2 hr.) the ruin ol HGhenstein (2075 ft.), above
the village of that name (Hot. zur Felsbnrg) ; tine view from the bel-
vedere (key at the village). — About 1 hr. E. of Rupprechtstegen i.s the
ruin of Hartenstein (1845 ft.).

The walk through the Pegnitz-Tal to Veldeu is interesting. —
30 M. Velden (1235 ft.; Hot. Krone), a picturesquely situated town
with an ancient gate, lies 8 min. N.W. of the station. The valley

now expands. — 31^2 M. Neidiaus an der Pegnitz (Rossbach's
Hotel, at the station, R. 1 ^^-1 ^M 20 pf.j, commanded by the

watch-tower of the old castle of Veldenstein (1425 ft.).

Near the village of Krottensee (Hot. zur Grottc), »/•_> hr- E., is the
Maximilians -Grotte, with five chambers and fine stalactites, especiallv
in the 'Kristall-Palast' (adm. 75 pf., 2 pers. 1 JC, each pcrs. more 30 pf.";

guide necessary; magnesium wire 75 pf.).

411/2 M. Pegnitz (1380 ft.; Hot. Lamm, Ross), a little town
on the Pegnitz, which rises at Lindenhardt, 3 hrs. N. Omn. to

Pottenstein (Ebermannstadt), see p. 160.

The train now ascends to (46^/2 M.) Schnabelwaid (1465 ft.).

Branch-line via (Si/g'M.) Kreussen, in the valley of the Roter Main, noted
for its earthenware, and {Q'K.) Ncuenrcuth to {II 'M.) Bayreuth (p. 151).
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The train turiisE., <indrni-dY(4:9\'2'M..)I'Jn(/elmannsreuth{16U)h.)

crosses the watersheil between the Pegnitz and the Naah.
58^/.^ M. Kirchenlaibach (1510 ft.; rail, restaurant), junction

for the Neueumarkt and Weiden line (p. 155). Conip. the Map,
p. 155. — I^ear (63'/2 M.) Immenrenth wc cross the Haidenaah by
a bridge 55 ft. high, and at Oherivappenost (1905 ft.) we pass under
the Avatershed between the Haidenaab and the Fir/ifelnaab bv a

tunnel. The valley of the latter stream is crossed near Riglasreuth
by an iron A'iaduct 130 ft. high. — 70 M. Xet/sorfj (182'5 ft.). To
the Kosseine, see p. 159. Branch -line via (2' ^ ^f-) Ehnath (Hot.

Rubenbauer, Oberwirt; p. 159) to (9\Aj M.j i'Vc7*?e/&(PVY/ (p. 157). —
>«par LaiKjenteileit we ])ass through another long tunnel to (75M.)
WaldersIiofilSOi) ft.), 2 lir.s. W. of which is the Kosseine (p. 159i.

77 M. Markt-Redwitz (1765 ft. ;i{ahuhof-Hotel zuni Goldencn
Anker, R. 2-27., ^j ^- ^'^ P^-i Kaiserhof), a factory-town of 6600
inhab. on the Kosseine, junction for the line from Hof to Ratis-

bon (p. 228).

We cross the Boslau twice. — Beyond (86 M.) tSchirndinf/ we
enter Austrian territory. The train now follows the Fger, inter-

sects the plateau to the S. of the town by a cutting 55ft. deep,

and and enters the station of (94 M.) Efjer (p. 132).

27. From Nuremberg via Nordlingen to
Augsburg.

105Va M. Eaihvay in « lirs. (10 .,« .30, 6 JC 70, -4 ^ ."^O pf.). — The
express-trains run from Plcinfelfl to Donaiiworth via Trcuelitlingon comp.
pp. 191 and 1:59-110).

Xurembeir/ , see p. 163. Thence to (271,2 M.) Pleinfeld
(1215 ft.: rail, restaurant), junction of the Trcuchtlingen line,

see pp. 138, 139.

371/2 M. Gtnizenhfniseii (1365 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Ifot. zur
Post), on the Altmiihl, junction of the AVlirzburg and Munich line

(p. 224). — 46 V2 M. Wassertrildimjen (1400 ft.; Hot. zur Sound,
on the Wornitz. Motor-omn. in li/., hr. to (14'/.3 M.) Dinkelsbii'hl

(p. 193 ; 1 .// 20 pf.). Pleasant excursion to the Hesselbenf (2260 ft.

:

rfmts. in fine weather), a spur of the Jura, 1'^
^ hr. N.W., with an

entrenchment of the Hallstatt period (extensive view). — 54 M.
bttiiKjeii, a small town with 2900 inhab. on the Wornitz, residence

of the Prince of Ottingeu-Spielberg. — The Ipf (p. 41i is visible

to the W. The village on the right near NOrdlingen is AVallcr-

stein (p. 192).

62 M. Nordlingen (1410 ft.; Rail. Restaurant ; Hot. Deutschcs
Haus, PI. c, C 2, R. 2-3 .M, B. 80 pf. : Krone, PI. a, B 2; Bahnhof-
Hotel, PI. b, D 2), on the Eger, formerly an imperial town, is still

surrounded with walls and "towers. Pop. 8700. During the Thirty
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Years' War the imperial general Ferdinand of Hungary gained a

signal victory a little to the S. of Ndrdliugen over the Swedes

(Sept. 6th, 1634). — From the station (PI. D, 2) we turn to the right,

then to the left through the Deininger Tor, pass the old Corn

Exchange (1606), and reacli the (10 min.) Rlibeumarkt (PL B, 2).

Here stands a pretty war monument in the form of a fountain by

AVrba (1902; PI. 2). The handsome Protestant St. Georgs-Kirche

(PI. B, 2; verger Pfarr-Gasse A 6, opposite the S. side/ was erect-

ed in the Gothic style in 1427-1-505 and remodelled in 1877-87.

Adjoining the baroque high-altar (1683) is a fine carved Crucifixion

of tbe late 15th cent.; at the back are paintings of the Herlin

school. Behind the high-altar, to the right, is the tomb of a Duke of

Brunswick (1546). The church contains also a late-Gothic 'Sakra-

mentshauschen' (p. 170; 1511-25), a stone pulpit (1499), and spiral

staircases leading to the organ-loft. In tbe baptistery, adjoining tbe

N. aisle, is a Pietji by Schaufelein (1521). The tower (295 ft. high;

329 steps) commands an extensive prospect of tbe Ries (p. 193),

with the Ipf (p. 41) rising to the W. (entr. at the X.AV. corner;

gratuity). — A little to the N. is the late-Gothic Rathaus (PI. B, 2),

restored in 1858, with a fine covered staircase of 1618 at the S.E.

corner. On tbe upper iioor is tbe Manicipal Museum /^always

open), containing a mural painting by Schaufelein (Story of Judith;

1515), other pictures by Schaufelein (four *"\Viugs of an altar;,

F. Herlin, etc., autograpbs, coins, and local antiquities. In tbe

gardens S.W. of tbe station is a bronze bust of Melchior Meyr
(d. 1871 ; PI. C, 3), author of 'Erziiblungen aus dem Ries'. Visitors

should walk round the protected passage (^/^ hr.) on the well-pre-

served Toivii ITy/Z/s (14th -15th cent.), the imposing gate-towers

of wbicb are by AVolf Waldberger (d. 1613). The Lopsinger Tor
(PI. C, 1) is especially noteworthy.

Branch-line E. via (10 M.) Wildbad Wemdiny, with a sulphurous
spring, to (IO1/2 M.) Weniding (1475 ft. : Hot. Krenz;, a quaint town of

2iOO inhab. on tlie Dosbach.
From Xordlingen to Stuttgart, sec R. 7.

From Nordlingen to Dombiihl, 33^/ 5, M., railway in 2-2^2 l^'S-

— 21
.J
M. Wallersteiii, with a large baroque Schloss of Prince

Ottingen and a clift' commanding a fine view. — About 20 min. E.

of (5 1/2 ^^•) ^tarktuffingen lies Maihingen, au old convent with tbe

A-aluable library and collections of Prince Ottingen -AVallerstein

(apply to the steward; gratuity). — 9^\,'K. Fremdingen, 5 M. to

tbe W. of which is Tannhausen, in Wurtemberg, with a late-Gothic

churcb. — 141/0 M. Wilburgstetten. About 1 hr. E. is Weilfingen,

the residence of the extinct Dukes of "^Tiirttemberg-Weiltingen in

1650-1705. In the woods between AYilburgstetten and "Weiltingen

the Limes (p. 214) is in good preservation.
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18V o M. Dinkelebiihl (1460 ft.; Plan, see p. 192: Hot. Goldne

Kanne,"Pl. a, B 2, R. & B. From 2' , ^M, Goldne Rose, PI. b, B 2,

R. 1 Jl 80-2 o//^ 50, B. 80 pf., D. 1 Jl 60 pf.-2 aC, botli well spoken

of), an old imperial town with 4800 iuhab. on the Wdrnitz, in a flat

situation, i)artly surrounded with water. Situated, like Rotbcnburg

(p. 217), on the ancient road between Augsbur','' and AVtirxburg,

Dinkelsbiihl, with its excellently preserved walls and towers of the

15th cent., its moats, and its gabled houses, affords an unusually

complete idea of a media) val town. — From the station (PI. D, 2) we
proceed to the right, enjoying a good view of the town, cross the

AVOrnitz, and pass through the Wonn'fz-Tor (PI. 0, 2) to the market-

place. This contains the Dinkelbauer-Brunnen (PI. 1; 1866)
and a bronze statue of Christoph von Sckmkl (1768-1854; PI. 3,

B 2), a popular writer for the young, by AMdnmann. The late-

Gothic -^Georgs-Kh-che (PI. B, 2), built "in 1448-92, is the finest

church of its type in 8. Germany. The lower part of the tower
(190 ft. high) is Romanesque (13th cent.) and has a pretty portal.

In the interior are a 'Sakramentshauschen' (p. 170) of 1498 and two
old carved altars. The tower affords a fine view (key at the verger's,

llintere Priester-Gasse 5). On the W. side of the AVeinmarkt is the

Deutsches Haus (PI. B, 2), a fine frame-house of the 17th cent., now
an inn. The collections of the Historical tSociety (ndm. 9-5; 30 pf.)

arc housed partly at Rotbenburger-Str. 6 (PL B, 1; key kept by the

porter of the hospital, iu the court to the left) and partly in the

old sacristy of the Dreikonigs-Kapelle, near the Scgringer Tor
(PI. A, 2; ring). The Deutschherren-IIaus (PI. B, 3) in the Turm-
Gasse has a rococo chapel. A very interesting -Walk (1 hr.) may be

made round the old Toica Walls, the most picturesque ])arts of

which are bv the Stadt-Park (PI. A, 1) and tlie Xordliuger Tor with

the Stadt-Miihle (1490; PI. 0, D, 3). — On the third Mon. in July a

festival, known as the 'Kinderzeche', is held in the Schranne (P1.B,2)

and at the Old Rathaus (PI. B, C, 2), commemorating the escape of

the town from pillage by the Swedes iu 1632. ]\[otor-omn. to

"Wassertriidingen, see p. 191.

26^';, M. Fcuchtiuangen (Hot. zur Post), an ancient town of

2500 iuhab., with a local museum and an abbey-church containing

paintings from "Wohlgemut's studio. — 33'
._, M. Domhilhl ip. 37).

Beyond Nordliugen (p. 191) we enter the Ries, a fertile tract

12 M. broad, once the bed of a lake; volcanic rocks occur on its

margins. — 731/2 M. Harbttrg (1355 ft.), a little town of 1480 iu-

hab., with a well-preserved castle of the 17th cent, (keep 13th cent.\

picturesquely perched on a rock. — The train again follows the

fertile valley of the winding WOruitz.

80 M. Donauworth (1320 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Krone,

near the Rathaus, R. from 1 ^4 30 pf. ; Krebs, by the bridge), an
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old imperial town of 46U0 inliab., at the cuntlueiice of the Woniitz

and the Danube. From the station wc walk straight on, then

(2 min.) turn to the right and pass through the Rieder Tor to the

(9 min.) Rathaus. The Reichs-Str. leads hence to the left, passing

(4 min. ; left) the Gothic Parish Church (1444-67), with a fine

'Sakramentshiiuschen' fp. 170) in its choir (1503). About 3 min. ^X.

of the church lies the suppressed Benedictine abbey of the Holy
C7^oss, Avhich now contains the Catholic 'Cassianeum', with two

schools, a publishing office, a library of 70,000 vols., and a museum
(the two last open on week-days 8-12 and 2-6). In the baroque

abbey-church (1717-22) is the tomb (early 14th cent.) of the ill-

fated Mary of Brabant, consort of Duke Louis the Severe of Ba-

varia, by whose order she was beheaded in 1256 on a groundless

suspicion of infidelity.

From Doxauworth to Neu-Offingen, 271/2 M., railway in I1/2 hj"-

(to Ulm in 21/2-3 hrs.). The line runs S.W. and follows the left bank
of the Danube. — 9 M. Blindheifn or Blenheim, famous for the victory
of Prince Eugene and the Duke of Marlborough over the Elector Max
Emmanuel of Bavaria and Marshal Tallard (Aug. i:itb. 1704). — 12 M.
Hochstadt. — 17 M. Dillingen (1420 ft. : Hot. Bayrisclier Hof, R. I1/2-3 ^«

;

Sonne, Stern), a town of 6300 inhab.. was formerly the seat of a uni-

versity (1554-1804). The old Schloss belonged down to 1803 to the Bishops
of Augsburg. There are some fine buildings in the main street. Branch-
line lo Aalen, see p. 40. — 19V-. M. Lauingen (1435 ft. ; Hot. Drei
Mohrcu), also a station on the line from Dillingen to Aalen (p. 40), is

an old town of 4400 inhab., the residence during the middle ages of tlic

Bavarian Dukes of Pfalz-Neuburg, whose burial-vault is below the late-

Gothic Catholic parish -church (1518). The isolated Hof-Turm, 180 ft.

high, in sixteen stories, was erected in 1478. A bronze statue of the
scholar Alhertus Magnus (Count Albert of Bollstadt ; 1193-1280), a native
of Lauingen, stands in the market-place. At Faimingen, 20 min. W., near
the junction of the Brenz and Danube, are a Roman fort and other
remains. — 22V2 M. Gundelflngcn, a small town of 2830 inhab. on the
Brens. Branch-line to (51/.2 M.) SontJieim-Brenz (p. 41). — The line turns
S., crosses the Danube, and joins the Ulm and Augsburg line (p. 227)
at (271/2 M.) Nea-Offingen.

From Doxauworth to Treuchtlingen, 22 M., railway in V2-I I'l'-)

a line traversed by the expresses from Munich and Augsburg to Xurcm-
berg (comp. p. 191) and by some of the expresses from Munich to Wiirz-
burg and Frankfort (R. 30). — 131/2 M. Ottinq-Weilheim, 41/2 M. to the
E. of Wemding (p. 192). — We descend the MOhren-Tal. — 22 M.
TreucMlingen (p. 224) ; thence on to Pleinfeld, see pp. 140, 139.

From Donauworth to IngoUtadt and Ratishon, see R. 29.

The train crosses the Danube and then the Schm utter. —
841/2 M- Merthujen. Branch-line to (10\A_> M.) Wertinyen, with a

Schloss, on the Zusant ; the choir of tlie parish-church has fine

stucco decoration of ca. 1700. — 891/2 M. Nordendorf. On the

right is Schloss Holzen. — 921/, M. Meifimjen. On a hill to the

right is Schloss Markt, once a Roman fort, the property of Prince

Fugger. — 104 Vo M. Aiigsburg-Oberhausen, junction for Ulm
(p. 228). — We cross the Weiiach near its union with the Lech. —
1051 '2.^- Augsburg (rail, restaurant).
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Augsburg.
Hotels. Pcdast-Hotel Drei Mohren (PI. a, C 4; coinp. p. 199), Maxi-

iiiilian-Str. B 12-13; Kaiserhof (PI. b; B, 5), Herman-Str. 2, 7 min. from
the station, R. 2-3Vo, B. 1 .4 20, D. 1 .^ 80 pf.-.S, omn. '/o -«, ?:«o(] ; Bay-
rischer Hof (PI. c; B, 4), Bahnlinf-Str. 3, R. 1 JC 80-3 .« 50. B. 80 pf.,

well spoken of; Aticjusta (PI. tl;B, 4), Fugger-Str. 3, R. 2-2V.. .«.• Drei
Kronen (PI. h ; A, 4), Bahnhof-Str. 17, with garden, R. li/o-3'/2. B. 1.^;
Bahnhof-Hotel Victoria (PI. i; A, 4), R. 11/0-31/2-*, B. 80 pf. : Merkiir,
Maximilian-Str. (PI. C, 4, 5). R. 1 ./i 30-1 JC 50, B. 80 pf. ; Eisetihut
(PI. f; B, C, 3), Obstmarkt, R. 1' .,-2 .«, B. 70 pf

.
; Bamberger Jlof (P\. g;

A, 4), Halder-Str. IG.

Cafes-Restaurants. Baijrl.'iCher Hof (sec above), Central, Fugger-
Str. 1 (PI. B, 4), these two with gardens; Schiessgraben (PI. B, .5),

Sehiessgraben-Str. 14, with garden: Kernstoclc, Stein-Gasse D 268 (PI. B,
C, «), D. 1 ^M, 30 pf. ; Prinz- Regent, Prinzregenten-Str. 1 (PI. A, 4);
Augusta (see above); Maximilian, Maximilian-Str. Do (PI. C, 4); Post.
Luuwig-Str. D 210 (PI. B, 3). — Wixe Rooms. Hofmann (Griines Haus),
Anna-Str. D 253, 1st floor (PI. B, 4), much frequented at midday, D. IV2-
3 JC; Lamberger zur WeiberscJiule, Hinter der Metzg C 182 (PI. C. 3";

Ratskeller, Elias-Holl-Platz C 323 ; Herz, Auf dem Mittlcrn Krcuz F 201
(PI. B, 2) ; Rebstoclde, Stcin-Gasse D 63 (PI. B, C, .3). — Beer Restaur.v.xts.
Riegele-Brauerei, Kunigs-Platz (PI. B, 4} ; Hdrinq, Schmiedberg C 119
(PI. C, S);'Hohes Meer, Frauentor-Str. E 16 (PI. B, 2) : Zum Stockhatts-
keller, Eserwall-Str. 15a (PI. C, G), with garden. — Automatic Restaurant,
,Maximilian-Str. C 5.

Baths. Augsburger Stadt-Bad (PL C, 3), Schmiedlecb C 231 ; Mauer-
Bad, Mauerberg C 138 (PI. C, 3). — Stddtisches Schicimm-Bad (PI. E, 7):

StdiUische Schicimm-Schule (beyond PL A, 2, 3).

Post & Telegraph Office (PL B, 3), in the Grottenau. corner of the
I.udwig-Str.

("abs. Within the town, for 1-2 pers. up to 800 metres 50 pf.. each
4(10 m. more 10 pf.; at night (9-6) up to 400 m. 50 pf., each 200 m. more
10 pf. ; from the Haupt-Bahnhof 25 pf. extra: luggage 25 pf. for 55 lb.— Motor Cabs. For 1-3 pers. up to 600 m. 70 pf., each 300 m. more
10 pf

.
; at night up to 400 m. 70 pf., each 200 m. more 10 pf.

Tramways (from the Han])t-Bahnliof to the town 10 pf., to Kriegs-
liaber and Giiggingen 15 pf.). "White boards: From Lechhausen (beyond
PL E, 1) via the Moritz-Platz (PL C. 4) and tlie station to Pfersee (bevond
I'L A, 4). —Blue boards: From the Infantnj Barracks (PL B. 7) via the
K.iiiigs-Platz (PL B. 4) and the theatre (PL B, 3) to Oberhausen (beyond
LI. A, 2). — Green boards: From Krieqshnher via Oberhausen (bevond PL
A. 1), the cathedral (PL B. C, 2), Moritz-Platz (PL C, 4), and Kouig-s-Platz
(,P1. B, 4) to Goqqingen (Iteyond PL A, 7). — Red boards: From the
Morits-Platz (Pl.'C, 4) via the Maximilian-Str. and Backer-Gasse (PL C.

D. 5) to the Haiinstetter Str. (PL C, 7).— Line under construction from
the FAsoihammer-Str. (PL A, 2) via the Maschiuenfabrik Augsburg-Xiirn-
berg and Sebastian-Str. (PL C, 1) to the Barfiisser-Str. (PL C. 3).

Inquiry Office at the Bureau-Haus, Grottenau (PL B. 3).

Chief Sights (i/.jday): Rathaus , Cathedral, Maximilian Museum,
Fugger Museum, Picture Gallery, and St. Ulrichs-Kirche.

Augsburg (1625 ft.), with 1 50,000 iuhab. (one-third Protestants),

situated at the confluence of the Wertach and the Lech, is one of

the most important towns in 8. Germany. Ehthorate Renaissance

structures give the town its chief architectural stamp and recall its

former greatness. Its beautiful fountains are celebrated, and some
of the gates of the old rorti(ie,iti(.us :ir.' still i-xtant (see ji|i. 107.-2(M 1.
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Outside the gates are important cotton spinning and weaving mills

and macMne-works.
Augusta Vindelicoruin was founded about 15 B.C., probably as a

'forum' (market), and was raised by Hadrian about 122 A.D. to the rank of a

'municipium'. Even in the Eoman period it was an important trading-place.

St. Ulrich (923-972) was the chief of the early bishops and distinguished
himself in the defence of the town against tlie Hungarians, who were
routed on the Lechfeld (p. 309~i in 9.55. From 1268 Augsburg was a free

imperial city and the great centre of traffic between N. Europe, Italy,

and the Levant. It readied the height of its prosperity in the 15th and
16th cent., and several of its citizens enjoyed princely wealth and power.
Three daughters of Augsburgers were married to princes: Clara von
Detten to Elector Frederick the Victorious of the Palatinate; Agnes
Bernaucr, the beautiful daughter of a barber, to Duke Albert III. of

Bavaria (p. 3-48); and PMHppine M^elser (p. 199) to Archduke Ferdinand
of Austria. Bartliolomdus Welser, uncle of Philippine, fitted out a

sq^uadron to take j)ossession of Yenezuela, which had been assigned
to him as a pledge, by Emperor Charles Y. The Fuggcr family raised
themselves within a century from the condition of poor weavers to that

of the wealthiest merchants in Europe. The chief members of the family
were Jalcoh Fugger II. (1459-1525), 'the Rich', founder of the Fuggerei
(p. 197), and his nephew Anton Fugger (1495-1560); they frequently
replenished the exhausted coffers of the emperors Maximilian I. and
Charles V. At Augsburg Charles V. held the diet of 1530, at which the
Protestant princes presented to the emperor and the estates the Augs-
burg Confession, a reformed creed framed by Melanchthon. The delivery
of the Confession took place in a hall of the episcopal palace (now
government offices, p. 198). The diet of 1555, by which a religions peace
was concluded, was also held here by the emperor's brother Ferdinand,
acting as his representative. Augsburg art reached its highest point at

the beginning of the 16th cent., at which period fl'a».S' Holbein the Elder
and Hans Burgkmair flourished here (comp. p. xxii). At the same time
industrial art, especially goldsmith's work, attained a high level. A
distinguished archaeologist was Conrad Peutinger (1465-1567), the town-
clerk and confidant of Emperor Maximilian I., after whom the Tabula
Peutingeriana in the imperial library at Vienna is erroneously named.
The chief Augsburg architect was Elias Holl (1573-1616), the builder of
the Ilathaus. A revival of Augsburg art took place after the Thirty
Years' War, especially in the 18th century. The abundant water-power
aiforded by the canals traversing the town has favoured its industrial
development. Augsburg fell to Bavaria in 1806. In 1871 it had a popii-

lation of 51,200.

From the Haupt-Bahnliof (PL A, 4) we follow the Bahnhof-Str.

to the Koxigs-Platz (PL B, 4), and thence the new Biirgermeister-

Fischer-Str. to the Moritz-Platz (PL 0, 4). The latter is skirted

by the IMaximiliax-Strasse (PL C, 4, 5), which together with its X.

prolongation the Karolinen-Str. (p. 197), forms the chief arteiT of

traffic in Augsburg. At the corner to the right is the >S'^ Moritz-
Kirche (PL C, 4), a church of the 15th cent., decorated in the bar-

oque style in 1714 and containing interesting tombstones. In the

JMaximilian-Str., in front of the church, is the Mercury Fountain
(PI. 4; C, 4), by Adrian de Tries (1599).

At the ]S^. end of the Maximilian-Str. is the Ludwigs-Platz (PL C,

3, 4), usually called 'Am Perlach' or 'Eiermarkt', the busiest part

of the city. In the centre rises the "^^Augustus Fountain (PI 1 ; C, 3),
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with a bronze statue of the oiiperor, who founded the city, executed

by the Dutch master Hubert Gerhard in 1589-94. On the left is

the Exchange.
The Rathaus (PI. C, 4), on the right side of the Ludwigs-Platz,

a handsome Renaissance edifice with no exterior ornamentation,

was erected in 1615-20 by Elias Holl. On the gable iiv front is a

large pine-cone in bronze, the heraldic emblem of the city. The

lower vestibule contains an eagle (1606) and busts of Roman em-

perors. Visitors are admitted ^tickets on the right) on week-days

8-12 and 1-6 (Oct.-March 9-12 and 1-5), Sun. and holidays 10-12

and 2-5; for 1 or 2 pers. 50 pf., for more than 2 pers. 25 pf. each,

free on the 1st Sun. in the month 10-12. An anteroom on the first

floor, borne by eight columns of red marble, has a fine wooden ceiling

and a statue of Chr. von Schmid (d. 1854; p. 193). On the second

floor is the '^Goldener Saal, 110 by 55 ft., and 45 ft. in height,

one of the finest halls in Germany, with baroque decoration recall-

ing the Doges' palace at Vmce and with mural and ceiling paint-

ings after Peter Candid. The four adjoining Filrsten-Zimmer also

have fine wooden ceilings, panelling, and stoves (ca. 1624i.

To the IS", of the Rathaus, adjoining the Petei\s-Kirche^ rises

the Perlach-Turm (PI. C, 3; 255 ft. high), originally a watch-tower,

heightened and converted into a belfry by E. Holl in 1615, and

now a fire-station ; it is adorned with a large fresco, Hadrian enteiing

Augsburg (comp. p. 196), bv A. Brandes (1912); fine view from the

top (entr. at the N.W. angle; 10 pf.). -^ To the E. of the Perlach-

Turm is the Metzg-Platz
,
with the Metzcj (PI. C, 3), or butchers'

house, erected in 1609 by Holl. Farther E. rises the Protestant

Barfiisser-Kirehe (PL 0, 3), remodelled ca. 1398 and 1723. It

contains pictures by S.German masters of the 17th-18th cent, and

an excellent organ. — The Jakober-Strasse, the E. continuation of

the Barflisser-Gasse, is an admirable example of a niediteval street.

It ends at the Jakober-Tor (PI. E, 3; 14th cent.). To the right,

half-way, is the entrance to the Faggerei (PI. D, 4), a quarter founded

by Jakob Fugger (p. 196) in 1519, closed by its own gates, and

consisting of fifty-three small houses for indigent citizens. The

iSt. Jakohs-Kirche (PI. D, 3) contains an Annunciation by a S. German
master (early 16th cent.) and a wall-painting of 1469 in the choir.

From the Ludwigs-Platz (p. 196) the Karolinen-Str. (comp.

p. 196) leads N. to the Kauolixen-Platz (PL C, 3, 2). On the E. is

the Bis1iop\'i Palace. On the W. rises the Cathedral \Doni :

PL B, C, 2, 3), an irregular pile, originally a Romanesque basilica

with two choirs, a W. transept, and two E. towers, begun in 995

and consecrated in 1065. In 1321-1431 it was altered to a Gothic

church with double aisles, the E. choir with its radiating chapels

being added at the same period. The curious bronze doors of the

S. transept contain representations of Adam and Eve, the serpent,
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centaurs, lions, etc., in thirty-five sections (lltli cent.). The N.

and S. portals of the E. choir have 14th cent, sculptures.

Interior. The nave has low cross-vaulting, borne by square pillars

:

fine brass candelabrum of ca. 1500. The aisles are separated by slender

columns with foliage-capitals. The W. choir contains an episcopal throne

in marble, resting on two lions (12th cent.), and a Gothic reredos of

brass (1447). Fine stained glass, ancient and modern; tlie S. windows
of the nave (11th cent.) are among the oldest in existence. The *Altar-

pieces of the first four side-altars are by Holbein the Elder (149o ; scenes

from the life of the Virgin); those of the other four belong to the School

of Zeitblom. The pulpit and the high-altar in the E. choir are modern
and richly carved in the Gothic style. In the ambulatory, in the Wolf-
gangs-Kapelle (1st on the left), is a fine altar by Christoph Amberger
(Madonna and Child and angels,' with SS. Ulrich and Afra on the wings;
1554). In the next chapel but one is the fine tomb of Bishop Friedrich

von Zollern ^d- ISOS"!. in red marble, by Hans BHuerlein of Augsburg.
The choir -chapels, containing many tombs of bishops, are separated

from the choir by tasteful iron screens. — The fine late-Gothic cloisters

(1479-1510) on the X. side contain tombstones dating from 1285 to 1805

(entr. through house D 110, by the N. portal: ,gi-atuit>- to the verger).

To the W. of the cathedral, in the Frouhof, with its war monument
for 1870-71, are the Government Offices (Regierungs-Gebiiude;

PI. B, 2, 3 1, on the site of the old episcopal palace (p. 196). — To

the W. of the Fronhof stand the two Heilighreuz-Kirchen (PI. A, B, 3),

one Catholic, the other Protestant. The Catholic church, dating

from 1502, but remodelled in the baroque style in 1716-19, contains

(at a side-altar on the left) an Assumption by Rubens (studio-piece;

ca. 16-25). — A little S.E., in the old Von Stetten house (Obst-

markt B 70), are the Katnral History Colleciions (PI. B, 3), the

first floor containing those of palaeontology, mineralogy, ethnology,

and botany, while the second floor is devoted to zoology. The

collections are open 10-1 and 2-5, < )ct.-March 10-12 and 2-4 (closed

on Sat. and Sun. afternoons); adm. 30, Sun. 20 pf.

Farther S. the Boeck house (Philippine-Welser-Str. D 283), built

in 1544-6 and enlargedin 1908, contains theMaxirQilianMuseum
''PL B, 4), founded in 1854. It comprises the collections of the town

and tiie historical society, and also the old diocesan museum. Renais-

sance facade with fine oriel-windows. The museum is open on week-

days 8-6 (from Oct. to May 15th 9 till dusk), Sun. and holidays 9-2

(10-2;; adm. 50 pf.. Sun. morning free, Sun. afternoon andMon. 1 zJ{.

('atalogue 30 pf.

Ground Floor. Roman aud modiseval sculptures. — First Floor.
Room 10 contains the diocesan collections, partly of the Romanesque
period: Ecclesiastical vestments and utensils; miniature paintings (by the
entrance; the attendant draws back the curtain); helmet and sword of
Emperor Charles Y. R. 11 : Porcelain (good examples from Meissen). R. 12

:

Augsburg goldsmith's work, incl. the Rotlischild cabinet by J. A. Thelott
(1654-1734), in tortoise-shell and silver, with a clock and a globe. R. 13:

Pewter. R. 15 (X. wing): Coins and medals (11,000). R. 18: Weapons.
R. 19: Guilds. R. 23: Four portraits by Christoph Amberger of Augs-
burg (d. 1.^02), incl. one of Peutinger (p. 1961: Samson and Delilah, by
L. Cranach the Elder (1529). R. 24 and 25 : Copies of facade-paiutings.
— Skcoxd Floor. R. 27 (ceiling-painting. Olympus and the four continents):
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original models and drawings of the arcliitect jE/ias /foZZ (p. 196); mathe-
matical and astronomical instruments of Christoph Schissler (16th-17th cent.)

and Georg Brander (d. 1783). R. 28 and 29: Locksmith's work, especially

skylight-gratings and guild-signs. R. .30: Pottery and glass, incl. a faienre

group of bears from GiJggingen (p. 202). R. 34: Prehistoric, Roman, and
early- mediaeval antiquities. R. 36: Graphic art; drawings of the Augs-
burg painter G. P. Bugenda.^ (1666-1741).

Ill front of the niiiscuni is the statue of Hans Jakob Fugyer
(1516-75), erected in 1857 by Louis I. after a design by Brugger.

Opposite, No. D 29, is the house in which Philippine Welser ip. 196 ;

born in 1527, probably at the Schazbu*-Palais, p. 201) spent her

childhood. It is occupied by the Deutsche Bank (PI. 8; C, 4).

We cross the St. Anna-Platz, with the Goldschmied-Brunnen
(PI. 7, B 4; 1912), to the Protestant St. Anna-Kirche (PI. B, 4),

founded in 1321 and altered in the late-Gothic style in 1487-97.

The central part was rebuilt in the Renaissance style by J]. Holl,

who also completed the tower. The church belonged tothe Carmelite

monastery of which Luther was an inmate in 1518, when he refuserl

to recant at the summons of the papal legate Cajetan.

Interior (verger St. Anna-Platz D 227, gratuity). The nave contains
a fine pulpit of 1682. In the Gothic E. choir are some paintings : altar-

piece (Jesus receiving little children), and portraits of Lutlier and Elector
John Frederick of Saxony, by L. Crcuwch the Younger: to the right of
the altar, the Wise and Foolish Virgins, by Amberger (1560); Feeding
of the four tliousand, by Bottenhammer ; Christ in Hades, by Biirgkmair
the Younger (1534). To the left of the altar is a fine limestone relief

of the Raising of Lazarus (16th cent.). — At the W. end is the burial-

chapel of the Fugger family, the earliest Renaissance monument in

Germany, built by Jakob Fugger the Rich (p. 196) in 1509-12, in a Venetian
style. Tlie elaborate decoration of the chapel has mostly disappeared.
The large stone reliefs behind its high-altar (Samson and the Philistines.

Resurrection) are after Diirer. Fine double organ of 1512; the paintings on
the wings of the large organ are perhaps by Burgkmair the Younger. —
On the left of the E. choir is the Goldsmiths' Chapel, built in 1425 and
enlarged in 1496, with frescoes of the 15th-16tli centuries. — Numerous
tombstones in the cloisters.

We return S.E. to the Moritz-Platz and follow the M.\ximiliax-

Stkasse (p. 196) to the right. A few paces farther on, to the right,

is the Fugger-Haus (PI. C, 4), the town-house of Prince Fugger
von Babenhauseu, adorned with frescoes by F. Wagner in 1860-63.

The adpiuing Hotel Drei Jfohren (p. 195">. with a fagade of 1722,

was formerly one of the Fugger houses.

We now follow the Apotheker-Gasschen W. to the Zfto-Platz,

at No. B 208 in which is the entrance to the *Fugger Museum,
installed in the so-caWed Fngger Bath Booms, sumptuously decorat-

ed in the Italiau Renaissance style for Hans Fugger in 1570-73 by
Fr. Sustris and Ant. Ponzano. It now contains the art-treasures of

the family of Fngger-Babenhausen and is open on week-days 10-12

and 2-4, Sun. 10-12 (a])ply at the prince's estate office); adm. 50 pf..

for 5 pers. 2 ,Jl ; catalogue 50 pf.

Room I. In the middle, weapons, incl. a sumptuous shield in em-
bossed Augsburg work. — Room II. Glnss cases with ecclesiastical ob-

Bak.ukker's S. (icrniany. li'tli Kdit. 13
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jeets (Byzantine crucifix of the 10th cent.); golden vessels of Augsburg
work; in Case 2, a painted wooden relief by Hans Daucher (1515), and
a wooden medallion with a portrait of George Fugger (1557) : in Case 3,

a bronze door-knocker by Hub. Gerhard (p. 197). By the right wall are

coins and medals, cast by the Fuggers with metal from their own mines. —
Boom III. Fire-arms, glass, etc.

Opposite is the Arsenal iZenyhaus : PI. B, C. 4), an imposing

edifice with a Renaissance facade by Elias Holl (1602-7). Above the

portal is a bronze statne of St. Michael, by Reichel (1607).

Following the Kleiues Katharinen-(iasschen S. from the Zeug-

Platz, we reach the Royal Picture Gallery (PI. B, C, 5), which

is housed on the first floor of the old St. Katharinen-Kirche. The

entrance is at Katharinen-Gasse B 156. Many of the pictures are

from secularized chnrches and convents. The gallery possesses fine

works by Hans Holbein the Elder and Hans Burgkmair (p. xxii.

Adm. free on week-days 9-1, "Wed. and Sat. 2-4 also, Sun. and

holidays 10-1 and 2-4. Catalogue of 1912, 50 pf.

Anteroom. 168 and 169-179 (in Cabinets 1-5). H. torn Ring. Sibyls
and prophets ; *62-64. Holbein the Elder, S. Maria Maggiore (1499), and
86-88. Burgkmair, S. Giovanni in Laterano (1502), part of a series of

paintings from the old convent of St. Catharine, representing the seven
principal churches of Eome (others in R. I); 65-67. Holbein the Elder,
Miracles of Christ.

Room I (to the right\ In the centre: Marble bust of Hans Holbein
the Younger. To the left: 82-84. 2fa.iter L. F., S. Lorenzo andS. Sebastiano
(1502; see above). Following wall: *89-91. Burgkmair, S. Croce 1504;
see above'. Right of the entrance: *85. Burgkmair. St. Peter's (1501;
see above): *52-49. Zeitblom. Legend of St. Valentine: between these,
68-70. Holbein the Elder, S. Paolo (see abovci. X. wall, between the

windows: 61. Holbein the Elder, Scenes from the Passion.
Room II, mostly Italian works. First section: entrance -wall, 308.

Fr. Torbido , Transfiguration: to the left of the entrance, 1225. Carlo
Dolci, Jesus as a boy; 1056. School of Raphael, Holy Family beneath
an oak. — Second section: *1140. Paolo Veronese. Cleopatra; 1260.

Carlo CigiW.ni, Repentant Magdalene; 1153. Palma Giovane , Pieta;
1232. Cai'la Maratta. Sleeping child. — Third section, partition-wall:
405. Rosalba Carriera, Head of a boy.

Room III, mostly Xetherlaudish works. Entrance-wall: 471. Van
Dtjck, The painter Andries van Ertveld. Long wall to the left: 462.

Rubens. Arabs fighting with hippopotamus and crocodiles (studio-piece);

612. Pyjiacker, Landscape. Short wall at the end: 265. J. A. Koch,
Heroic landscape with St. George; G. P. Rugendas, 273. Training horses,

272. Horses and men. — First partition-wall: 435. Jan Brueghel the Elder,
The landing-place (1615). — Second partition -wall, at the back: *620.

Jan van Goyen, Village (1636); above, 561. Pieter Eastman (Rembrandt's
teacher), Ulysses and Xausicaa (1619). — Third partition-wall: 621. Van
Goyen, The tavern; 574. Benj. Cuyp, Circumcision; 596. Ph. Wouwer-
man , Hawking; Van Goyen, 623. Farmyard, 622. Village scene; 585.

Isaak van Ostade, Slaughtered pig; above, 638. A. Cuyp, Pastoral scene.

At the back: 611. Bcrchem, Evening scene with cattle; 631. Hobbema,
The oaks.

Cabinet 5 'adjacent. 12. Cologne JIaster of St. .S'fti-e?-?"«, Assumption.
Cabinet 4. *138. Barthel Beham, Elector Palatine Otho Henry;

A. Diirer, 133. Madonna with the pink (1516~, 1.34. Virgin praying, or

Virgin as mediatrix (1497 : copy); 102. G. Giltinger the Elder (f), Adoration
of the Magi: L. Cranach the Elder, Luther, Mclanchthon, and Frederick
the Wise; 59 and without Xo., M. Schaffner, Scenes from the Passion.
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Cabixkt :]. Uhich Apt. 106, 107. Aiinuuriatiou (grisaille), 103-105.
Cnuittxioii; 161. L. Vranach the Eld^r , The Man of Sorrows; 59 and
without Xo., 31. Schaffner, Scenes from the Passion.

Cabinet 2. Bern. Strigel , Emperor Maximilian I. ; 92-94. Buryk-
mair, Christ anil the Madonna with saints (1507,; 57, 58. 31. Schaffner,
Scenes from the Passion.

Cabixkt 1. Holbein the Elder, *74-77. Legend of St. Uliioh, Martyr-
dom of St. Catharine, St. Anne with the Madonna and Child, Crucifixion
of St. Peter (wings of an altar; 1512;, 71-73. Crucifixion, Deposition, and
Entombment; 56, 55. B. Striyel, The propliets Isaiah and Zachariah:
M. Schaffner, Sieues from the Passion.

We return through the Katharinen-Gasse E. to the ]Maximiliau-

8tr. (p. 199). At the corner on the right, No. B 16, is the Schazler-
Palais (PI. C, 5; comp. p. 199), with a fine rococo hall of 1770
(shown by the porter; gratuity). In front is the Hercules Fountain
(PI. 3; C, 5), by Adrian de Vries (1602).

At the S. end of the Maxiniilian-Str. are the two St. Ulrichs-
Kirchen (PI. C, 5, 6), one Protestant, the other, the old collegiate

church of */S'/. Ulrich and St. Afra, Catholic. The lofty nave of

the latter was erected in 1467-99 by Burkard Engelberger, and in

1500 the foundation-stone of the choir was laid by Emperor Maxi-
milian I. The pentagonal porch of tlie N. portal was added in

1881. The tower (270 ft.), completed in l")9-4:, commands a fine

view, but the ascent is disagreeable and not recommended for ladies

(entr. in thePeter-Kotzer-Gasse; ticket, 20 pf.. at the shop opposite.

No. A 234).
Interior (always open). The nave and aisles are separated from tlie

vestibule by an elaborate iron screen of 1712, which produces a striking
effect of perspective.. The Fugger Chapel, between the 2nd and 3rd pillars
on the left, with its fine iron railing of 1588, contains the *Tomb of Hans
Fugger (1598), a marble sarcophagus with recumbent figure by A. Colin
of Malines, transferred from Schloss Kirchheim in 1877 ; also an altar with
fine carvings (16th cent.). In the Chapel of St. Bartholomew (left aisle)

is a Roman sarcophagus, said to be that of St. Afra. In the nave is a
Crucifixion in bronze, by Reichel and Xeidhardt (1605). The three handsome
baroque altars date from 1604-7. Below that to the right is a vault with
the marble sarcophagus (18th cent.) of Bishop Ulrich (p. 19H), patron of
the see of Augsburg. In the S. aisle the fine screens of the chapels are
adorned with lattice-work (16th cent.). Finely carved confessionals of the
early 18th century. The 16th cent, paintings above the choir-stalls represent
the foundation of the choir and the procession of the emperor and estates.
The large organ (1903) is played at the chief services and on Fri.. 11-12.

The Sacristi/, on the left, in the Renaissance style, contains good stained
glass by Holbein the Elder and valuable reliquaries. A winding stair
ascends thence to the so-called Schveclcen-Kapelle, containing a Gothic
altar (1570) and old pictures.

No. A 67 in the Dominikaner-Gasse (PLC, 4; is iheDominikaner-
Kh'che (key at No. A 68a;, a lofty church built in 1512-15. The in-

terior, redecorated in the baroque style in 1718, is now utterly

neglected, but is to be restored. On the sides are four fine memorial
tablets for Emperor Maximilian, his son Philip, and two grandsons

(1519). — On the S.E. of the town is the Botes Tor .PI. C, D, 6i,

completed in l.")46. with a tower l)y Elias Holl (1622).

13*
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The ^V. quarter^' near the statiou coutaiu several liaudsome

modern buildings. /In the Fugger-Str. are the Municipal Archives

(V\. B, 4; open on week-days 9-12 and 3-4;, the Law Courts (Jnstiz-

(rebaude; PI. B, 3, 4; 1871-5 1, and the theatre (PI. B, 3; 1876-7;;

in the Priuzregenten-Str. is the Prince Regent Fountain (PI. 6,

A4), by Fr. Bernauer ('1903); in the Schiizler-Str. is i]iQ Municipal
Library (PI. A, 3; 1893 1, with 200,000 volumes. — In the S.^V.

suburb is the Stadt-Garten (V\. A, 6), with a cafe-restaurant, a

large concert-hall. etc.

From the Rotes Tor (p. 201) we may cross the Siebentisch-Anlagen
and Siebentisch- Wald to the (1 hr.) Ablass, large waterworks on the Lecli

^tickets at the building office iu the Rathaus; restaurant . The dam, which
was nine hundred years old, was destroyed by a flood in 1910 and is at

present being rebuilt. About V4 hr- ^- i^^ Spickel station.

About -2 M. to the S.W. of Augsburg (tramway, see p. 195), in the
Wertach-Tal, is the health-i-esoi't of Goggingen ^Hessing's Orthopaedic
Sanatorium , with a palm-house and a summer-theatre.

From Augsburg to Stuttgart and Munich, see R. 31 ; to Ingolstadt,
see p. 2U: to Buchloe, see p. 309.

28. Ratisbon and the Walhalla.
Hotels. Park-Hotel Maximilian (PI. a; D, 4), Maximilian-,Str. 28,

near the statiou, with beer-restaurant, cafe, and garden, R. 2-6, B. l.JC,

Griiuer Kranz (PI. b; C, 3). Obermiinster-Str. 9, an old-established house,
R. 2-5, B. 1 .« 20 pf., D. 3. P. 7-10 .M,. omn. 60 pf., botli well spoken of. —
National (PI. c; D, 4), Maximilian-Str. 26, with beer-restaurant, R. 1V''-2V2,
B. 1 .«, well .spoken of; WeicUnliof {V\. d; E, 4;. Maximilian -Str. 23,

R. IVi-ov*.- Karmeliten (PI. e; E. 3), Maximiliau-Str., with beer-restaurant.
R. 1-2 .«, GoUUner Stern (PI. f; E, 3), Maximiliau-Str. 9, both plain but
very fair.

Restaurants. Park-Hotel Maximilian, Hot. National, see above;
Neues Hans, at the theatre, Bismarck-Platz 6 (PI. B, 3), closed iu summer,
B. 1JC20 pf. ; Velodrom, Arnulfs-Platz 4 (PI. B, 2), with varietv perform-
ance iu winter; Cafe-Best. Central, Pfauen-Gasse (PI. D. 3) ; Cafe-Best.
Wittelsbacher-Park, Jakob-Str. .PI. B, 3 : Cafe-Best. Furstenhof, Maxi-
milian-Str. ; Vou der Tann, Yon der Tann-Str. 10 (PI. E, F, 3. 4}, with
garden. — Plainer beer-restaurants: Bischofshof iPl. 1;D, 2 , Kia'uterer-
markt: Augu.stiner, entr. in the Xeupfarr-Platz, opposite the Wahlen-Str.
(PI. C. I). :i ; Katharinenspital-Branerei (PI. D. 1}, in Stadtamhof, near
the bridge, witli garden on the river ;fineviewi; Karmeliten, see above;
Munchner Hof, Tandler-Gasse 9 (PI. D, 2) ; Automatic Bestauraut at the
Hot. Weidenhof (see above) : Wurst-Kilche (PI. D, 2), quaint, below the
bridge (open 6-11 a.m.). — Wine Rooms. Bathaus-Keller. at the Rathaus
(p. 2061 ; Weisse Lilie, Frohliche Tiirken-Str. 4 (PI. D, 3. 4) ; Baumgarten,
Von der Tann-Str. 9 (PI. E. F, 3. 4: Hungarian wines) ; Diem, Ludwig-Str. 5
(PI. B, C, 2), also warm dishes ; Freilinger, Schaffner-Str. 16 (PI. D, 3, 4).

Greneral Post Office (PI. D, 3), in the Dom-Platz.
Cabs (stands at the station. Dom-Platz. and Haid-Platz\ For 1/4 hr.

SO pf. ^.3-4pers. 90 pf.:, each 1/4 hr. more 50 pf. (60 pf.l, after the Is't hr.
2 c^ {=2 JC 40 pf.) per hr. Double fares at niglit. To the Walhalla and
back 7 .S 70 9 .JC 20 pf.). First 22 lb. of luggage free, each 22 lb. more
20 pf. — Motor Cabs (at the station). For 900 m. 90 pf., each 300 m. more
10 pf. ; for 3-4 pers. up to 600 m. 90 pf., eacli 200 m. more 10 pf. At night
for 1-4 pers. up t^i 4nn m. 90 pf.. cacli l.')0 m. more 10 pf.
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Tramways (10-15 pf.). From the Station (Pi. D, E, 5j via the Moltke-
Platz (PI. D. E. 3), Dom-Platz (PI. D, 2. .3), Arnulfs - Platz (PI. B, 2), and
Spoit-Platz tu Priifening (p. 129; beyond PI. A, 3). — Froiii the Schlacht-

hof (heyoud PI. G, 3) via the Dom-Platz (PI. D, 2, 3) and the bridge t-.

Htadtamhof (PI. D, ij. — From the Mcuimilian-Str. (PI. D, E, 4) to the

Barracks (beyond PI. G, 5).

Steam Tramway (Walhalla-Bahn) from Stadtamhof (PI. D, 1 ; p. 210)

via Donaastauf, Walhalla Station, and Sidsbach (p. 211) to (141/2 M.)
Worth an der Donau; to (6J/2 M.) Walhalla in 50 min. (55 or 40 pf. ; Sun.

there and back 50 pf.).

Motor Ominibus from tlie station to the Walhalla four times daily

from July to mid-Sept, in V2 l'^'- (1 <^)-

Baths. Otto-Bad, Fischmarkt 1 (Pi. C, 2; .swimming-bath also). —
River Baths : Stddtische Schicimm-Schule (PI. B, 1), at the Obcrcr Worth

;

Regen-Bdder (PI. E, 1), at the mouth of the Regen.

Inquiry Ofl3.ce (Fremden-Verkehrsverein), Maximilian-Str. 29, near
the station (PI. D, E, 4. 5); circular motor-car trips round the town and
to the Walhalla.

Chief Sights (l day). Forenoon: Cathedral (p. 204); Porta Preetoria

(p. 205) ; GeschlecJiter-Hduser (sec below) ; Rathaits (p. 206) ; Jakobs-Kirchc
(p. 207

;
portal) ; St. Emmeram (p. 208) ; Stone Bridge (p. 210). Afternoon :

Walhalla (p. 210). — Excursion to the BefreiiingH- Halle near Kelheim.
see pp. 211,212.

Ratishon (1110 ft.;, Grerman Recjenshury , was the Castra
Regina of the Romaus, later known as Ratishona. It is now the

see of a bishop, with 55,000 inhab. , situated in a broad fertile

basin on the right bank of the Danube, where the latter is joined

by the Regen. For the art -history of the early middle ages, and

especially for the Romanesque period, Ratishon is as important as

Nuremberg is for the subsequent centuries (comp. p. xixi. Some of

the extant Cliristian structures date back to the late C'arlovingian

period. The Geschlechter - Hciuser (Adelsburgem, or mansions of

the old patricians, with tlieir towers of defence and private chapels,

dating from the 13th-14th cent., are a reminiscence of early German
civic life now preserved at Ratishon alone. The town-walls were

demolished in 1858-68, with the exception of two gateways (St. Em-
merams-Tor and Osten-Tor). — The important river-trafiBc, of

wliich the transport of timber is the chief branch, is served by two
harbours on the right bank of tlie Danube, between \\\r slaughter-

house and the Hof railway-line.

Castra Regina was a fortified camp on tlie river, completed in 179 A.D.
Its chief relic is the Porta Pretoria (p. 205), or X. gate. The site of
tlie praetorium. or commandant's residence, is now occupied by the Moltke-
Platz (PI. D, E, 3). Numerous Roman and (iermanic antiquities found in

graves are preserved in the museum of the historical society (p. 205). —
"Phe bishopric of Ratishon was founded by St. Boniface in 7.39. From the
11th to the lltli cent. Ratisbon was one of the most flourishing and pop-
ulous cities of S. Germany, being distinguished for its industrial art.

especially in goldsmith's work and tapestry-weaving (p. 207'i. In 1245 it

became a free imperial town, and from 1663 to 1806 it was the permanent
seat of the imperial diet. During the Thirty Years' War the town was
several times besieged (1633-4). In 1803 it was adjudged to Karl von
Dalberg, Elector of Mayence, and in 1810 it was united with Bavaria,
after the French had bombarded ai\d stormed the town on April 23rd of

the preceding year.
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The traffic of the town centres in the Dom-Platz (PI. D, 2, 3 ; tram-

ways, see p. 203), in which, in front of the General Post Office,

rises an equestrian statue of Louis I., by F. von Miller (1902).

The *Cathedral {Dom : PL D, 2, 3), dedicated to St. Peter, the

chief Gothic edifice in Bavaria, was begun by Bishop Leo of Thun-

dorf on the site of an earlier edifice in 1275 and completed during

the following centuries (down to 1524), Avith the exception of the

towers. The material is greenish-yellow sandstone from Kapfelberg

(p. 212). Of the architects employed the best -known are Konrad

Roritzer (after 1450) and his sons Matthaus and "Wolfgang (d. 1514).

The "VY. facade, with the chief portal and a triangular porch, is

due to Matth. Roritzer (1482-6). The two open-work towers (330 ft.

high) were completed in 1859-69 by F. von Denzinger. A gallery,

with open stone balustrade, is carried round the roof, and affords

a good survey of the town (apply to the sacristan, see below). On the

N. transept rises the Esels-Turm, a relic of the original Romanesque
edifice, containing a winding inclined plane. Conip. p. xx.

The ^Interior (adm. on week-days from 10. on Sim. from 11 a.m.,

by the X.E. portal in the Dom-Grarten; sacristan Domgarten 2. behind the
choir; good music on Sun. and feast-days 9-10.30) is 275 ft. long, 120 ft.

broad, and 100 ft. high. The iDroportions recall St-Urbain at Troyes or
Strassburg Cathedral. Peculiarities of construction are that the transept
does not project beyond the sides of the aisles, and that the choir is

destitute of the ambulatory and radiating chapels usual in Gothic cathe-
drals. The choir has a triforium-gallcry, Avhich is continued round the
entire church. Most of the stained-glass windows in the transepts, the

S. aisle, and over the W. portal are modern; those in the choir date
from the llt)i and Ifitli coituries.

Xate. On the W. wall, next the portal, are early-Gothic equestrian
statues of SS. Maurice and Martin (early 14th cent.). The late -Gothic
pulpit (canopy modern) dates from 1482. The nave contains also the
bronze monument of Cardinal Philip (1579-98), son of Duke William of
Bavaria. — In the Aisles are five Gothic altars (14th -15th cent.) with
modern paintings, the finest in the X. aisle, with statues of Emperor
Henry II. and Empress Kunigunde. In a niche in the X. aisle, partly
concealed, is the marble monument of the Primate Karl von Dalberg
(p. 203), designed by Canova. Opposite is the beautiful early -Renais-
sance tomb of Ursula Aquila (d. 1547).

Choir. On the N. side, to the left, is the bronze *Monument of Mar-
gareta Tucher, by Peter Vischer (1521), in the Renaissance style, with a

relief representing Christ taking leave of Mary. The high-altar, presented
in 1785 by Bishop Fugger, is entirely covered with silver plating; adjoin-
ing it is the elegant *'Sakramentshauschen' (p. 170), 60 ft. in height, with
numerous statuettes, begun in 1493 hy 31. Roritzer and completed in 1510-14
hyWoIfgang. By the portal on the S" side of the choir is a well 55 ft. deep,
with an elegant stone covering executed in 1501 by Wolfgang Roritzer.

The Treasury (shown by the sacristan) contains valuable cliurch-plate,
incl. an early-Gothic *Altar-cross , originallv in the possession of King
Ottocar of Bohemia (d. 1278), a silver-gilt statuette of St. Sebastian (after
1500), and the 'rationale' of Bishop Berthold of Eichstatt (1351-65).

The *Cloisters (PI. D, 2) on the N.E. side of the cathedral (shown
by the sacristan

;
gratuity 50 pf .) date in their present form mainly from

the 14th-16th centuries. The central walk between the two courts contains
beautiful windows displaying a union of Gothic and Renaissance forms
(ca. 1520) ; the pavement is formed by tombstones of canons and patri-
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ciaus. — Adjoining tliis walk on the E. is the Romanesque Allerheilifjen-

KapeUe , the burial-chapel of Bishop Haitwig II. (llSo-eS"!, with tlirec

apses, early frescoes, and a Romanesque altar. — On the N. side of the

cloisters is" the St. Stephans-Kapelle, erroneously known as the 'Old

Cathedral', probably built about 105U as the chapel of the Bischofshof
(see below). It forms a vaulted rectangle, with apsidal recesses in the

sides and the W. gallery. The early-Romanesque altar is a block of stone
partly hollowed out, with little windows, in which the relics of St. Wolf-
gang (p. 209) were formerly preserved. — The Gothic St. Michaels-Kapelle,
on the S. side of the cloisters, lias interesting vaulting.

On the N^. .side of the cathedral, next the Johannis- Kirche, is

the old Bischofshof (PI. 1 ; D, 2), or episcopal palace, huilt about

975 by St. Wolfgang fp. 209), rebuilt in the 13th and 16th cent., and

frequently occupied by the emperors on their visits to Ratisbon. —
In the street 'Unter den Schwibbogen', on the X. side of the Bischofs-

hof, is the ancient Porta Pneforia (PI. 6, D, 2 ; p. 203), of which

the archway of rough limestone blocks and the E. tower (adjacent,

to the left) are preserved.

Since 1821 the Bishop's Residence (PI. E, 2;, E. of the cathedral

cloisters, has been in the former Benedictine nunnery of Nieder-

miinster, founded in the 9th century. The Stifts-Kirche (PI. E, 2i,

now the pari-sh-church, restored after the fire of 1152 and rebuilt

in the 17th and 18th cent., has a Romanesque portal and a Cruci-

fixion (early 14th cent.) in the vestibule. On the S. wall of the choir

there is a good stone Madonna (ca. 1350). — In the Erhardi-Gasse,

behind the church, is the early-Romanesque Chapel of St . Erhard
(key kept by the caretaker of the Katholisches Yereinshaus, p. 206;

gratuity 30 pf.).

On the S. side of the Dom-Grartcn, just beyond the cathedral, is

the St. Ulrichs-Kirche, or AUe 'Pfarre (PL D, 3), an early-

Gothic rectangular building, with reminiscences of the Romanesque
style (ca. 1250), surrounded by galleries. It contains the most im-

portant part (comp. p. 206) of the Collections of the Historical

Society (adm. May-Oct. 8-12 and 2-6, 20 pf.; catalogue 30 pf.).

Tlie Nave contains mural paintings of 1571. In front arc sculptures

of the MLMovingian period (?) and medijeval sculptures and architectural

fragments (on the left, 3. Romanesque astrolabe from St. Emmeram's,
ca. 1200; right, 157. Small stone figure from tlie stone bridge; 193. Cata-

pult from a tower of defence). Farther on are Roman monuments in

stone, dedication-stones, sarcophagi, etc. ; on the wall to the left (No. 1)

are remains of the inscription on the Porta Principalis Dextra, the E.

gate of Castra Regina (p. 203). — In the Galleries are valuable pre-

historic and Germanic objects from tombs, and (W. side) Roman *Glass
vessels, phalerje, gold coins, etc.

A few paces to the S.E. of St. Ulrich's is the Moltke-Platz (PI.

D, E, 3). On the W. side are the Herzopshof (P\. 2; now forestry

offices), mentioned as early as 988, and the so-called Romer-Tnrm
(PI. 9), an early-mediseval tower Avith a Romanesque upper story.

On the 8. side of the square, beside the Maximilian -Str., which

leads to the station, is the Alte Kapelle (PI. D, E, 3), originally a
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Romanesque church touuded in the 9th cent., with a Gothic choir

(1441) and a detached belfry built of Roman freestone (the lower

part Carlovingian). The interior of the church was modernized in

1748 in a sumptuous rococo style. On the E. side is the Carmelite

Church (PI. E, 3), in the Italian baroque style (after 1660). —
Beyond it, in the Kasern-Platz, rises the Gothic Minorite Church

(PI. E, 3), of the 13th-14th cent., with a fine slender choir. It is

now used as a military gymnasium, and the adjacent monastery is

now barracks.

On the left side (No. 2i of the Kalmlmzer-Cxasse, which leads

N. from the Minoriten-Kirche, is the Catholic Vereinshaus St. Er-

hard (PI. E, 2), with a fine Gothic hall from the old Dollinger-Haus

(ca. 1300), containing curious reliefs (Bollinger's battle with the

giant Krako, etc.). On the second floor are the remainder (comp.

p. 205) of the Collections of the Historical Society (open Sun. and

holidays, in summer Tues. and Thurs. 10-12 also; adm. 20 pf.;

apply to the attendant in St. Ulrich's church^
Near the entrance are old plans of Ratisbou (1614 and 1645). Farther

to the left, work in iron; instruments of torture; tilting -saddle of the

Paulsdorfer family (15th cent.). Among the pictures : L. Cranach the Elder,

Pieta ; remains of frescoes (Susanna at the bath, Lovers, etc.) from a bath-

room in the emperor's apartments at the Bischofshof (16th cent.); Alb.

Altdorfer (of Ratisbon ; 1480-1538), David and Bathsheba, and a winged
altar-piece (1517); Mich. Ostendorfer, Altar-piece (1555) and Portrait

(1533) ; three portraits of the Memmingcr family (1642). Also fine stained

glass (15th-16th cent.), three stoves in the Empire style, etc.

From the N. end of the Kalmiinzer-Gasse the Osten-Gasse leads

to the Osten-Tor (PI. F, 3; 1330). To the X. lies the Boyal Villa

(PI. F, 3), built in 1853 in a modern Gothic style, on an old bastion

commanding a fine view. — In the Reichs-Str., Xo. 10, beside the

Cdcilien-Kirche (PI. G, 4). is a Catholic School of Church Music.

A few paces to the X.W. of the Dom-Platz, in the Goliath-Str.

(PL D, 2), is the Thundorfer-Haus. reconstructed in 1898, with

a wall-painting (David and Goliath) and an old tower of defence

(p. 203). — In the Wahlen-Str. (PI. C, D, 2, 3), which runs S. from

the adjacent Kohlenmarkt, rises the Goldener Turm (175 ft.), the

highest of the towers of defence. — In the opposite direction we
reach the Fischmarkt, with a pretty fountain, and (left) the quaint

Kepler-Str. (PI. C, 2), with the house (Xo. 5, on the left) in which

the astronomer Johann Kepler (b. 1571; comp. p. 22) died in

1630. Adjacent (Xo. 7) is the Gasfhaus zum Blauen Hecht. with

a tower of defence.

The *Rathaus (PI. C, 2) is a picturesque, irregular pile, re-

stored in 1904-7. The older or W. portion, dating from the 14th

cent., presents a plain Gothic facade towards the Rathaus-Platz,

with an elegant oriel and a fine portal; remains of old 16th cent.



St. Jakobs Kiichc. KATISbON. -'S. Route. 207

frescoes may be seen on tho S. wall. The newer or E. portion,

extending to the Kohlenmarkt, was erected in 1660-1723. Adni.

daily 8-12 and 2-6 (Oct.-March 2-4); tickets (50 pf.) in the archway
(Kathaus-Platz 1), to the left; adm. free March-Oct. on the 1st and
3rd Sun. of the month, 10.30-12.30 and 2-4.

The large Hall, in -wliicli the imperial diet met from 1663 to 1806.

with the original tittings, contaius the canopy under which Emperor Mat-
thias entered Ratisbon in 1613, wall -paintings of 1564. (restored), and a

carved wooden ceiling of 14.08. The emperor used to show himself to the
people from the oriel-window. — The Fursten-CoUegium contain a col-

lection of Aveapons and some valuable *Tapestry (14th-16th cent.): Twenty-
four pairs of lovers (14th cent.), Contest of the virtues and the vices
(15th cent.), etc. — Tlie FurstUches Nehenzimmer contaius old flags, por-
traits of patricians, Ratisbon coins, etc. — In the.Jlodell-Zimmer are
models of buildings in Ratisbon (iucl. a wooden model for the Kapelle
zur Schonen Maria, p. 209, showing a curious blending of Gothic and
Renaissance forms, by Hans Huber of Augsburg, 1519), guild antiquities,

targets, etc. — On the ground-floor are old cannon, the condemned cell,

the well-preserved torture-chamber, with the judges' seat behind a lattice,

and two dungeons.

Farther W. is the Haid-Platz (PI. C, 2), on the E. (left) side of

which is the old Imperial Library, a building with towers and

a double arcade facing the court, in which the religious disputation

between Eck and Melanchthon took place in 1541. On the N". side

is the Krafft House (PI. 4, C 2; formerly the Hotel zuni Goldnen
Kreuz), with a massive tower of defence bearing a modern portrait

of Don John of Austria.
Don John of Austria, the famous admiral, a natural son of Emperor

Charles Y. and Barbara Blomberg, was born at Ratisbon in 1547 (d. 1578).

Charles Y. lodged during tho diet of 1.546 at the house of Bernard Kraflft,

but that Don John was born there is a fiction.

We now follow the Ludwig-Str. to the Arnulfs-Platz, and turn

to the left past the Neues Hans with the Theatre (PI. B, 3).

The St. Jakobs -Kirche or Schotten-Kirche (PI. B, 3), a

Romanesque basilica consecrated in 1110, was reconstructed about

1152-84. The *N. Portal is adorned with curious and fantastic

sculptured figures of men and animals, perhaps symbolical of the

rescue of souls from the Evil One' above are Christ and the

Apostles. The monastery, founded by Scottish (i.e. Irish) monks,
was suppressed in 1862 and is now a seminary. — In the vicinity,

outside the Jakobs -Tor, with its 14th cent, towers, is a richly

carved Gothic Column of 1459. — Farther AV., in the Schiitzen-

Str., is the new Sfadt-Fark (PI. A, 2). To the right of the entrance

is the Xahiral Science Museum (PI. 5; A, 2), opened in 1912,
with interesting geological and zoological collections (open free in

summer on Sun. 10-12 and 2-4: at other times apply to the attend-

ant, gratuity).

In the former Westner suburb, N.W. of the Jakobs-Tor, are the
HeiligJcretiz-Kloster (P]. A. 2; no adm.), a Dominican nunnery of the
12th cent., and the St. Lconhards-Kirche (PI. A, B, 2; 13th cent.), with a

good carved altar (1505) and Romanesque frescoes rostorodV
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To the E. of the Jakobs-Kirche is the Bismarck-Platz (PI. B, 3)
,

on the S.E. side of which rises the earlv- Gothic *Doniinican
Church or Church of St. Blasias fPl. b/C, 3), begun about 1240
and completed about I-IOO. By the -Ith and 5th central pillars to

the left in the interior, which is notable for its elegant proportions,

are the admirable tombstones of Jorg Scheuk you Xeideck (d. 1504)

and Fuchs von Schneeberg (d. 1526; Renaissance). In the 8. aisle

are mural paintings of the 14th cent. (SS. Catharine. Christopher,

etc.). The sacristan (bell at the W. portal) shows the Cloisters

(15th cent.), the W. Avalk of which is adjoined by the Albertus-

Kapdle (rebuilt in 1897), the Schola Alberti Mafjni, a lectiu-e-

rooni of the 15th cent., converted into a chapel. Albertus (p. 194i,

afterwards Bishop of Ratisbon (1260-62), is said to have lectured

here about 1235. The monastery now accommodates the Lyceum,
with philosophical and theological faculties.

The Gesaxdtex-Strasse (PI. B, C, 3) leads E. from the Bismarck-

Platz to the Neupfarr-Platz (p. 209), passing on the right the Pro-

testant Dreieinigkeifs-Kirche (1627-31), consisting of a nave Avith

massive barrel-vaulting and a lofty gable (key next door, Xo. 11).

Behind it, in the former graveyard, a number of interesting tomb-
stones are built into the wall (visible from the street).

The Beraiter-AYeg leads S. from the Bismarck-Platz, passing the

Prcisidicd-Gebaude (PI. B, 3), formerly the palace of the French
ambassador, to the Agidien-Platz (PL B. 3), with the Gothic Agidien-

Kirche or St. Gilgen-Kirche, of the I3t'h-14th cent., till 1809 the

church of the Teutonic Order. — The Marschall-Str. to the left

leads thence past the Begierungs-Gebciude to the Emmerams-Platz
fPl. C, 3, 4), with a statue of Bishoj^ J. M. von Sailer (d. 1832),

by M. Widnniann (1868).

The old Benedictine abbey of St. Emmeram (PI. C, 4), one

of the oldest in Germany, was founded in the 7th cent, and sup-

pressed in 1803. The Romanesque Church, with two choirs and
crypts, was reconsecrated in 1052, rebuilt in 1163-89 after a fire,

and modernized in 1731-3 in the baroque style by the brothers

Asam. It is open during divine service only; the bell for the

sacristan (gratuity 50 pf.) is beside the belfry.'

From the Emmerams-Platz we first pass through au early- Gothic
double portal, forming- the X. wall of an imcomplctcil vestibule, into
tlie Forecourt, with a Crucifixion of 1513. On the left is the pretty
detached Bell Touer (1575-9), the sandstone figures on the exterior of
which have mostly disappeared. Wc next enter the 'Paradies', two bays
of the above-mentioned vestibule on tlie left is the St. Rupert-Kirche,
p. 209), and reach the Double Portal of the Emmerams-Kirche, with
two semicircular niches in au antique style and stift' figures in relief of
Christ and SS. Emmeram (left) and Dioiiysius (right) : "on Christ's foot-
stool is the portrait of the builder, Abbot Reginward (1048-64).

Interior. The large painting on the high-altar is by Joachim von
Sandi'art, representing the martyrdom of St. Emmeram (d. 715?). Two
slabs in the pavement in front mark the tombs of the emperors Arnulf
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(887-899) and Louis the Child (900-911). Beneath the high-altar is the
silver sarcophagus of St. Emuicram (1423). — The chief objects of
interest arc the tombstones (mostly 1 1th cent.). In the left aisle, beside
the altar of St. Dionysins, is the *Tombstonc of Empress Uta, wife
of Arnulf (or rather of Emma, wife of Emperor Louis the German?):
farther on, to the left of the entrance to the St. Eupert-Kirche (see below ,

is the alleged grave of Count AVarmund ofWasserburg (d. 1010): in the
chapel to the left of the choir are the monuments of Duke Henry the Quarrel-
some of Bavaria (d. 995) and the *Blessed Aurelia (d. 1027)j said to be a

daughter of Hugh Capet (erected in 1.335); opposite, at the entrance to the
ohoir, is the tomb of Duke Arnulf (d. 937) : in the chapel on the right of
the choir is the large Gothic monument of St. Emmcram (14th r-ent.), in
red marble ; in the S. aisle, beside the altar of St. Calcedonius, are the
*Monument of St. AVolfgang (d. 994; beneath an iron grating) and the
simple tombstone of Bishop Tuto (d. 930). — The modernized E. crypt
rnntains the stone coffin of the builder. St. Ramwold 1^975-1001). — The
W. crypt. Avitli its double aisles, -wall-niches, columns, and octagonal
pillars, dates from 1052 and was restored in 1878. On the altar is a

modern shrine containing the relics of St. Wolfgang. In the central
niche is an ancient stone seat known as the Heinrichs-Stuhl.

Adjoining the Emraeranis-Kirche on the X. is the late-Gothic

,'S'/. Rupert - Kirche (PI. C, 4), completed in l.JOl. now a parish-

church. — The Residence of the Princes of Thurn and
Taxis (PL C, 4 1, which has occupied the site of the abbey-buildings

since 1812, encloses the fine Cloisters on the S. side of St. Emme-
rani's. The cloisters (open daily, 11-12), erected after 1250 in the

transitional style, with a fine X. portal and a modern-Gothic burial-

chapel (1835-41) containing a marble statue of Christ by Dannecker

(1831), are reached by turning to the right froju the church, past

lhe royal riding-school (with reliefs by Schwauthaler); then to the

left into the large court, with the 'Kaiser-Brunnen" (1579), and again

to the left where we find the porter (gratuity 50 pf.). '

The adjacent abbey-church of Obermiinster (PI. D, 3), a few

paces S. of the Obermimster-Str., is a Romanesque basilica of the

11th cent., resembling St. Emmeram's and completely remodelled

in the baroque style with the exception of the detached belfry. It

contains a Mount of Olives (1470) in the vestibule, a fine Renais-

sance altar (1534-40) in the N. aisle, and tombstones of abbesses

in the S. aisle. The convent, which dates from the Carlovingiau

period, is now an episcopal school for boys.

The Maler-Gasse leads hence to the K, past the modernized
church oi St. Kassiai), to the Xeupfakr-Pl.vtz (PI. D, 3), con-

structed in 1519 on the site of the old Jewish ([uarter. In it stands

the Protestant Xeuj)farr-Kirche. erected in 1519-40 as the 'Kapclle

zur SchOnen Maria'. AVe may return to the Dom-Platz (p. 204
by the Residenz-Str., i)assing the former residence of Prince Dal-

berg (p. 203). where Xapoleon lodged in 1809.

The Anlagen, promenades laid out on the site of the ram-

parts, are embellished with an Obelisk (PI. D, 4i erected in 1806
to the founder. Prince Charles Anselm of Thurn and Taxis, a
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round temple built in 1808, Avith a marble bust of Kepler (p. 206),

and the Prediger-Sdule (PI. 7 ; D, 4
>, a Romanesque column of the

I3th century.

The Stone Bridge over the Danube (Steincrne Briickc; PI. D,

2, 1; tramway, see p. 203 >, 203 yds. long and 23 ft. Avide, Avith six-

teen arches, dates for the most part probably from 1135-46 and

AA-as much admired in the middle ages. The only remaining S. toA\-er

('13th cent.) Avas rebuilt in 1648. The bridge (fine vieAv'i connects

Ratisbou AAith Stadtamhof, an ancient Bavarian tOAvn on the left

bank, destroyed by the SAvedes in 1633 and burned doA\'n by the

Austrians in 1809. BeloAv Stadtamhof the Fegen empties its turbid

Avater into the Danube.
Pleasant walk across the bridge and X. through Stadtamhof to tlie

(20 min.) DreifaltigTceitsherg. and then X.W. across the ravine to the

(20 min.) Seidenplantage (restaurant: view, best by evening-light).

The excursion to the Walhalla is most attractive ('steam-traniAvay,

motor-omu., or carr., see pp. 203. 202). The Walhalla-Bahn (station,

see PI. D, 1) traverses Stadtamhof, crosses the Regen. and inter-

sects the raihvay (p. 229) at the station of Walhalla -Strasse.

Thence through the plain of the Danube Aia ScJnvabelweis and
Tegernheim to (o^/o M.) Donaustauf or SfanfdOSO ft.; Restau-

rant zur "Walhalla. at the upper end). On a steep rock above the

straggling village rise the ruins of the castle of Stauf ('1385 ft.;

^
2 hr. from the tramA\'ay), said to have been founded by St. Tuto

(p. 209) and destroyed in 1634. The A'icAv from the gardens is finer

than that from the AValhalla. The traniA^'av skirts the S. side of

the village; — 6^ o M. Walhalla.
Two routes ascend from the tramway station to the Walhalla. The

one to the left, diverging to the W. (guide-post) from the high-road after
3 min., below the Salvator-Kirche, and running through woods (at first

a carriage-road, then ascending in steps and by a footpath to the right,
past the house of the custodian), is easier (12^ min.) and preferable for
the view suddenly disclosed. The other (8 miu.), a footpath, ascends
direct from the tramway station to the flight of steps.

The *Wallialla (i.e. Hall of the Chosen, the Paradise of the

ancient Germans), a 'Temple of Fame' resembling the Parthenon,
built from the plans of Klenze (p. 244), stands conspicuously

on a hill planted AA-ith trees, 315 ft. aboA-e the Danube (1350 ft.

above sea-lcA-el). A magnificent flight of 240 steps, divided into ter-

races, ascends to it on the river-side. The foundation-stone Avas laid

by King Louis I. on Oct. 18tli. 1830, and the building was inaugur-

ated on Oct. 18th, 1842. Adm. free on week-davs from April to Aug.,

9-12.30 and 2-7 (Sun. 2-6j; in March and Sept. 9-12.30 and 2-6;

in Oct. 9-12.30 and 2-5; other months 9-12.30 and 2-4 (on gen-

eral holidays not open till 10 a.m.).

The Exterior (220 ft. long, 105 ft. broad. 65 ft. high), a Doric
temple surrounded by fifty-two fluted columns 30 ft. in height, is
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constructed of unpolished grey marble. The pediments both in front

and at the back contain groups in marble: S., towards the Danube,

Germania regaining her liberty after the Battle of Leipzig; X., the

Victory of Arminius over the Romans, both by Schwanthaler. The
roof is of iron, covered with plates of copper.

The INTERIOR, of the Ionic order, consists of a superb hall

155 ft. long, 45 ft. broad, and 50 ft. high, with a coffered bronze

cpiling, riclily decorated and gilded (the compartments painted blue

with stars of platinum), and lighted from above. The lateral walls

are divided into six sections by projecting buttresses and corner-

])ilasters, and are lined with red-brown marble. The richly adorned

architrave is supported by 14 painted Caryatides by Schwantaler.

Around the entire hall runs a marble frieze by M. Wagner, repre-

senting in 8 sections the history and life of the Germans down to

the introduction of Christianity. Above the cornice are 61 marble

tablets bearing the names of famous Germans of whom no portrait

has been preserved, and three tablets commemorating celel)ritios

whose names even are unknown fthe author of the Nibelungen-Lied,

the architect of Cologne Cathedral, the three men of the Riitli>.

Marble busts (105 at the present time), by Tieck, Schadow, Ranch,

etc., represent Germans who w'ere deemed worthy by the founder

to grace his temple of fame. Emperor William I. Avas added in

1898, Prince Bismarck in 1908, Moltke in 1910, and Wagner in

1913. Some of the busts have curious inscriptions composed by

King Louis. In the centre of each of the six sections of the walls

is a Victory by Ranch. Round the walls are twelve marble seats

and eight candelabra. Opposite the entrance is a seated figure of

Louis L, by F. von Miiller (1890i.

The *View includes the dark slopes of the Bayrischer Wald,

the Danube, and the fertile plain of Straubing; on the right are

Donaustauf and Ratisbon.
The fine Deer Park of Piiuce Tluiiu and Taxis, with its numerous

red-deer and a hunting-lodge, is best visited from Sidzbach (p. 20;Vi

:

adm. on application at the forester's house. From Mmv ir)th to Atie. l.'>tli

visitors are restricted to the carriage-road.

29. From Ratisbon via Ingolstadt (Augsburg)

to Donauworth.
Railway to (18 M.) Kclheim in 1 lir. ; to (40 >r.) IngolstaJt in 2 hrs. ;

to (79 M.) Donamcorth in 5 hrs. ; to (871/2 M.) Augsburg (see p. 214) in

4-5 hrs.

JRafisbon, see p. 202. We pass under the Ratisbon and Nur-

emberg line at 121/2 ^1^-' Friifening (p. 129) and cross a bridge (295

yds. long) over the Danube, which is here flanked by the spurs

of the Franconian Jura. — 3\.>M. Sinzing, at the mouth of the

Schwarze Laber (p. 129). Then on the left bank of the Danube;
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pretty scenery. — Opposite (9^2 M.) Gundelshausen lies Ohern-

dorf, where Count Palatine Otho of Wittelsbach, tlie murderer of

Emperor Philip (p. 149), Avas overtaken and slain in 1208. Farther

on is Ahhach (1215 ft. ; Bad-Hotel, R. 80 pf.-l ^ 30 pf.), the birth-

place of Emperor Henry II. (1002-24), with sulphur -baths (May-

Sept.) and a ruined castle. — We then cross the Danube, To the

left are two stone lions commemorating the Tuaking of the road in

1794. — 12 M. Ahhach, ^U^y. from the village (omn. four times

daily). Opposite, on the left bank, is Kapfelherg, with large lime-

stone quarries.

The train skirts the Teufelsfelsen. On the Ringhery (left) is

an extensive circular rampart. — Ih^j^'^i. Saal (1140 ft.). The

Befreiuuffs-Halle becomes visible on the right.

From Saal to Kelheim, 21/2 M., branch-line in 1/4 ^^'- The
terminus lies on the right bank of the Danube. As we cross the

bridge to the village of Kelheim we obtain a view to the left of

the district offices, in an old castle of the Dukes of Bavaria; in the

garden are the remains of the old keep.

Kelheim. — Sec insct-uiap, p. 211. — Hotels. Ehrnthaller (PI. a),

R. l-l'/or D. 1 J6 20 pf
.

; Goldenes Kreuz, adjacent; Bosengarten, near
the station, plain. — Beer Restaurants. Klosterbrdit (PI. b), at the
foot of the Michaelsherg, lAing (PI. c), on the E. side of the village,

both with gardens. — Carriage from the town to the Befreiungs-Halle
and back to the station in 1'/.- hr. (3 JC).

Kelheim (1160 ft.), an old town of 3800 inhab., is situated at

the confluence of the AltmUhl and Ludivigs-Kanal (p. 146) with the

Danube. The town-walls are still partly preserved. At the entrance

to the town is a monument (1905) to the butcher Matthias Kraus,

who saved Kelheim in 1705, The market is adorned with a ]\[arien-

Siiule of 1700 and statues of Louis I. and Maximilian II. by Halbig.

The *Befrei\mgs-Halle (Hall of Liberation; 1480 ft.i, on the

Michaelsherg, to the W. of the town (^l^i"- fi'om f'le station by
road, 35 miu. by footpath on the E. side), designed by Gartner and

Klenze, was founded by King Louis I. on Oct, 19tli, 1842 (comp,

p, 210), and inaugurated on Oct. 18th, 1863, the 50th anniversary

of the Battle of Leipzig. A rotunda in the antique style, 195 ft. in

height, is borne by a substruction 25 ft, high, and is reached by a

flight of 84 steps on the E. side. On the exterior are 18 colossal

female figures, emblematical of different German provinces; in front

of and below these are 18 candelabra; on the coping aljove the

external arcade of 72 Doric columns are 18 troijhies. Adm. free

(galleries 20 pf.) 8-12 and 2-6 ifrom Oct. 16th to April 14th 10-12

and 2-4); at other times (7-7, in winter 9-2
1 for 1-2 pers. 1 ry/o, each

pers. more 50 pf.; knock at the door.

The IxTERiOR, lined with coloured marble, contains 34 Victories

in Carrara marble bv Schwanthalei': between tlip'^e are 17 bronze
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sliields made of captured French guns, bearing names of victories.

Above the arcades are the names of 16 German generals on white

marble tablets; higher up, the names of IS rajjtured fortresses.

Below those is a gallery borne by 72 granite columns, 20 ft. in

lieight. The riclily fretted doiue, 70 ft. in heiglit and 10.') ft. in

width, is lighted by a glazed opening 20 ft. in diamettn*. A spiral

staircase of 85 steps ascends to the inner gallery, wliich affords a

good survey of the interior (echo). A narrow staircase leads thence

to the oul^r gallery, where a view of the valleys of the DaTiube and

Altmiihl is enjoyed.
The *Valiey of the Danube between Kelhcim and Weltenburg

affords a pleasant boat-trip (downstream). The barren and rugged rocks
(300-400 ft. in height), the gorges and summits of which are wooded, rise

so abruptly from the river that no room is left even for a footpath,
and iron rings are attached to the sides to help the boatmen in going
upstream. The rocks are named from their shape or from some legend
(Three Brotliers, Maiden, Peter and Paul, Pulpit, Napoleon, etc.). Three
'Roman walls' (of pre-Roman origin) cross the ridge between the Danube
and Altmiihl valleys; one of them is 2 M. long. — The best plan is to

follow the good forest-path (red way-marks) from the custodian's cottage
behind the Befreiungs-Hallc. passing the Roman walls (tablets) and reach-
ing the Danube opposite (1 hr.) Welten!)urg. Ferry (10 pf.) to the abbey
(restaurant). The Benedictine Abbey of "Weltenburg, founded l>y

Duke Tassilo III. of Bavaria in 77.5, possesRcs a ^Church which, tliough

outwardly unassuming, ranks as a triumph of the S.E. German baroque
style owing to the interior decoration by C. D. Asam (1717-21). Upstream
to Eining, sec p. 211. We descend the river in a small boat (1-6 pers.

to the Klosterl 3, to Kclheim 3V2 «^'*) to the Klosterl (garden-restaurant),
romantically situated on tlie left bank, whence a walk of 20 min. through
woods brings us to the Befreiungs-Hallc or to Kelhoiui.

Fine excursion from Kelheim up the =^Altniuh.l-Tal to (lO'/.i M.)
Riedenburg (motor-omn. 3-5 times daily in l'/^ lir.. 90 pf. ; carr. in 1^/4 hr.

(5 Ji, with two horses 9 .S). The road follows the left bank of the Alt-
miihl, skirting a bare slope, with Neu-Kelheim and the extensive Kel-
heim fiuarries, and passes Gvonsdorf and (2V._. M.) Oberan. To the right,

half-way up the hill (marked path), is the SchullerJoch, a large stal-

actite cave affording a view of the Altmiihl and Danube valleys (rfmts. .

[Pedestrians should follow the road to the Befrciungs-Halle on the right
bank of the Altmiihl, as far as the tirst kilometre-stone, and take tlie

path to the right, skirting the wood, to tlie Schotteiihof, above whicli,

at tlic Hesgdberger iu the Au, is a ferry to the SchnUerloch; or they
may continue along the right bank via SchrUiK cL- to Alt- and Xcu-Essing.']—

• 47.2 M. Neu-Essing (BrJiuhaus), commanded on the X. by the ruin of
Ramieck. About 5 min. S. is a stalactite cavern (adm. on application
to Herr Wiedemann, the brewer). To Eining, see p. 214. — 71/2 M. Nuss-
kciusoi (Briiuhaus): to the right, on a precipitous and isolated rock, is

ScJiIoss Prima, with a view of Riedenburg. To the left diverges a patli

to the Klamm, a mass of rock towering amid the woods on the right
bank, and affording a survey of the Altmiihl-Tal : thence a shadv path
leads direct to (10'/., M.) Riedenburg (p. 227~i.

Beyond Saal (p. 212) we leave the Danube and traverse a wooded
and hilly district to the valley of the 7/oj;/i'/?i«c/^ — 20M. Thaldorf.
Then through tlie X. part of the Holledau, a hop-growing district.

25 M. Abensberg (1215 ft.; Hot. Kuchlliauer. R. 1 .// 20-

2 ^/^ 50 pf.), a town of 2300 iuhab. on the Ahensffnss, with an
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interesting Carmelite cliurcli in the Gotliic style, was the birthplace

of the Bavarian historian Johann Thurmair, surnamed Aventinus

(1477-1534), to whom a monument has been erected in front of the

law-courts. About 25 min. S. is the pilgrimage-church of Allers-

clorf (late 17th cent.), and 20 min. farther S. is the Eomanesque
abbey-church of Bihurg (12th cent.). A road leads from Abensberg

X.W. through woods to (1^2 ^^'•) Eining (see below).

About 8 M. to the S.E. of Aben.sberg (motor-onui. thrice daily in

1 hr., 70 i)f.) lies Rohr, with au interesting abbey-church built in the

baroque stj'le by E. Asam in 1722. Omn. to Rottenbiirg, seeip. 232.

281/2 M. Neustadt an der Donau (1170 ft.; Hot. zur Post), a

little town with 1800 inhabitants.

From Xeustadt a road affording good views leads X. via (3/^ br.)

Gogging (Hot. Romerbad), a village with ^ strong sulphur spring and au
old Romanesque portal (on the X. side of the church), to (V2 hr.) Eining
(Stipberger's Brauhaus, in Hienheim, opposite), on the Danube, to the

S. of which are the interesting remains of the Roman frontier-station of

Abusina, one of the chief military posts in Bavaria (apply to the school-

master). The Romans recognized "the importance of Eining as the junc-

tion of the military roads connecting the Danube territories with the

Rhine and Gaul, and soon after 15 B. C. they established a station here,

which they maintained, with three interruptions, down to the 5th century.
— From Eining we may descend the Danube by boat to (5 M.) Welten-
burg (1-6 pers. 5 Ji, each pers. more 60 pf.) and Kelheim (p. 213). On
tlie left bank, I'/j M. below Hicnheim (see above), begins the Pfahl-
Graben (Limes), a Roman frontier-rampart 340 M. long, constructed in

tlic 2nd-3rd cent. A.D. Under the name of the Rhattian or Danube Limes,
it extended "W. from the Danube past Weisscnburg am Sand fp. 139) to

Lorch (p. 38); thence, as the Germanic or Rhenish Limes, it was carried

to the X. through the hilly districts of the Xcckar and the Odenwald to

Miltenberg on the Main :p". Ill); finally from Krotzenburg (above Hanau)
it ran round the "SVetterau to the Taunus and thence via Ems to Rhein-
brohl on the Rhine. — Pleasant walk X. from Hienheim across the Pfahl-
G-raben through the Hienheimer Forst, with its huge oaks, and past the

forester's house Am Schlott (rfmts.) to the Klamm and (31/2 hrs.) Rieden-
hurg or (3 hrs.) Neu-Essing in the Altmiihl-Tal (p. 213).

Beyond !N'eustadt the country becomes flatter. AVe skirt the

extensive forest of Dilrnhuch. — 33\/2 M. Milrtchsmilnster, on

the Ilm. formerly a Benedictine abbey. — 37^ 2 M. Vohhurg. The
village, Avith an extensive ruined castle, the ancestral seat of the

]\Iargraves of Yohburg, lies on the Danube, 1 hr. X. — 46 M.

Ingolstadt (Haupt-Bahnhof; p. 226).
From Ikgolstadt to Augsbckg, 41V.> M-5 railway in 2 hrs. — 151/2 ^1-

Schj'obenhausen (1345 ft.), a town on the' Paar, with a late-Gothic brick
church of the 15th cen.tury. — 25Vo M. Aichach. a pretty little town with
remains of fortifications. A little X.E. is the ruined castle of Wiftelsbach.
the ancestral seat of the reigning house of Bavaria, destroyed in 1209.

The obelisk close by dates from 1832. — 36V2 M. Friedberg, an ancient
town of 3500 inhab. on the Ach, with remains of walls and a modern
church decorated with frescoes by F.Wagner. The Schloss(15th-16th cent.),

which formerly belonged to the Dukes of Bavaria, contains a collection

of antiquities. — 38V2 ^i- Hochzoll (p. 228). The train crosses the Lech
to (4IV2 M.J Augsburg (p. 195).

The Donauworth line traverses the Donan-j\[oos, a marshy dis-

trict, now reclaimed for the most part.
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58V2 M. Neuburg an der Donau (1320 ft.; Hot. Krone,

near the bridge, R. IV2--V2 ^j B. 80 pf.; Post, to the E., near the

Danube: Bahnhof-Hotel}, from 1503 to 1685 the capital of a duchy

of the same name, is a town of 9100 inhab., pleasantly situated on

a hill rising from the Danube. The old town still has remains of

fortifications. From the station we proceed straight on through

the Bahnhof-Str., the Schungnadenegg, and the Ludwig-Str. to the

Oheres Tor (1540). Beyond this, to the right, we follow the

Amalieu-Str. to (20 min.) the Schloss, passing the library (Karls-

Platz), Rathaus, and Hof-Kirche on the left, and the Harmonic club,

with the collections of the historical society, on the right. The
Library, once the church of St. Martin, was rebuilt in 1730 in the

baroque style. The Rathaus, with its flight of steps, dates from

1613; inside, the fittings of the 'Reprasentations-Zimmer' should

be noticed. The Hof-Kirche, re-erected in 1607-16, is embellished

with stucco work by Castelli (1620) and contains valuable eccle-

siastical vessels. Among the collections of the Historical Society

the prehistoric objects, four pieces of tapestry (16th cent.), and

some antependia may be mentioned. The older part of the large

Schloss is now a barrack. The W. wing rOtto-Heinrichs-Bau'i, in the

Renaissance style, added by Elector Otho Henry in 1530-38, is in

better preservation and contains the district archives. From the

Schloss we descend to the left to the bridge, from the N. end of

which we follow the road straight on for a few paces, then turn to the

right across the meadows to (^/^ hr.) the Arco-Schlosschen (rfmts.),

which affords a good view of the town and the Schloss.

The line now traverses an uninteresting district, running 1-3 M.
from the right bank of the Danube. — From (63 M.) Unterhausen

Count Arco-Steppberg's Schloss Steppherg is seen in the distance

to the right, on the wooded left bank of the river. Farther on is

Bertoldsheim, the Schloss of Count Dumoulin. — 71 M. Rain,
where Tilly was mortally wounded in 1632 while defending the

passage of the Lech against Grustavus Adolphus. - The line crosses

the Lech, the Danube, and the Danube Canal.

79 M. Donauicorth (p. 193).

30. PromWurzburg (Fnnikfort) via Ansbach
and Ingolstadt to Munich. Rothenburg.

172 M. Express in 1-5 his. (23 .A; 10, 15 .« 40, 9 .« 60 pf.,: orainaiy
train in 10 hrs. (21^*10, 13^40, 8 v« «0 pf.). Some of the expresses
run from Treuehtlingeu via Donauwiirth and Augsburg (pp. 194, 228). —
From Frankfort to Munich, 256V2 ^-^ express in 6V>-9 brs. (33.* 40.

21 Ji 50, 13 .^ 90 pf.); as far as (84Vo M.) AViirzbuig, see R. 15.

WUrzbnrg, see p. 117. The Munich line skirts the town to the

S., passing (IV/4 M.) Wilrzburg - Sild (PI. E, 4), and crosses! the

Baedekek's S. Germany. 12th Edit. 14
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Main. — SYg^^- Heidingsfeld, a suburb of Wiirzburg. The cboir of

the parish-church, a Romanesque basilica of the 12th cent., contains

a relief (Pieta) by Tilman Riemenschneider (1568). To Heidelberg,

see R. 19. — Farther on we ascend on the left bank of the Main.
— 8^/2 M, Winterhausen. Opposite is Sommerhausen , with its

numerous towers.

13 M. Ochsenfurt (630 ft.; Hot. Schnecke, in the market-

place), a little town of 3450 inhab., with well-preserved town-walls

and several interesting old houses. From the station we proceed

to the left to (7 miu.) the market-place. Here, to the right, stands

the Bathaus, a building of 1488-99 with a Gothic flight of steps,

above which (to the right) is a stone Madonna in the style of Tilman
Riemenschneider. The main street leads W. to the Gothic Parish
Church I late 14th cent.). To the right of the choir is a brass font

of ca. 1510, to the left a stone 'Sakramentshauschen' (p. 170) of

ca. 1500. Behind the church, to the S., is the late-Gothic Michaels-
Kapelle (1440), with a relief of the Last Judgment in the tympanum
of the portal.

Branch-line via (121/2 M.) Aub , with an old hunting-lodge of the
Bishops of Wiirzburg (iiow law-courts) and the ruin of Beichelsbuvg. to

(171/2 M.) Rottingen (Hot. zur Eisenbahn, Ochse), with well-preserved
fortifications. Thence to Creglingen (Rothenburg; and to Weikersheim,
see p. 36.

Between Ochsenfurt and Marktbreit, on the right bank of the

Main, is the charming little town of Friclenhausen, with a Avail,

a 15th ceut. parish-church, and numerous, houses of the 16th-17th

centuries. It may be reached from Ochsenfurt in ^
., hr.

16 M. Marktbreit (Hot. Goldener Lowe, R. 1-1
1 2-/^, ^- 70 pf. 1,

a town of 2350iuhab., has old town-walls and numerous Renaissance

buildings. Adjoining the Main-Tor is the Rathaus (1579, rebuilt in

1909), Avith a large anteroom and panelled council-chamber on the

second floor. — The railway now leaves the Main and approaches
the S.W. slopes of the Steigerwald (p. 127). — 271/2 M. Uffenheim.

351/2 M. Steinach (1220 ft.; Rail. Restaurant ; Hot. Samann,
R. 1 <^ 20 pf. - 2 ty/l, unpretending). Continuation of the Munich
line, sec p. 221.

From Steinach to Xeustadt an der Aisch, 18 M., branch -line in

IV4-3 hrs. — 8V2 M. Windsheim (1070 ft. ; Hot. Goldene Gans), an old
imperial town with 3600 inhab., situated on a hill on tlie left bank of
the Aisch. From the station we proceed straight on to (7 min.) the Kireh-
Platz, on the right side of which stands the museum. To the S. is the
parish-church, originally Cxothic, but altered in the baroque style after
a fire in 1730. Adjoining tlie church, in the market-place, is the Rathaus
(1716? U with a handsome facade. At the S. end of the market-place is

a fountain of the late 16th cent., with a statue of Emperor Charles VI.
A little N. of the station is the Kurhaus, with mineral and saline baths.— 18 M. Neustadt an der Aisch (p. 128).
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Rothenburg ob der Tauber.— Hotels (looms must be oideied

in advance at Whitsuntide}. *\Vildbad (PI. B, C, 4), in the Tauber-Tal,
outside the town to the y., 1/4 hr. from the station, with swimming-bath
and iron and sulphur baths, R. 3-6, B. 1 c/i 20 pf., D. 3, P. T'/q-H c/i(.

onui. 70 pf. — Goldener Hirsch (PI. a; C, 3), modernized, Untere Schmied-
Str., R. 2'/2-6, B. 1, D. 'ly.^./C, omn. 60 pf., good, Eisenhnt (PI. b; B, 2),

Herren-Str., with popular wine-room, K. 2-4, B. 1, D. 1 ^/C 80 pf.-3, P.

7-8, omn. V'"^' g"'od, both with views of the Tauber-Tal from the rooms
at the back; Bdr (PI. e; B, 2j, Hof bronnen-Gasse, R. l^l^-S Jl, B. 80 pf.-

1. omn. V> ^*i ^^dl spoken of; MarkuBturm (PI. d;C, 2), Roder-8tr.,
R. 1 .ft 2()pf.-2 ,IC, B. 80 pf.. D. lV.>-2 ^)C ; Bcufvischer Hof, 2 min. from the
station, R. 1 c« 20 pt-i cM, B. 70 pf.. plain: Lamm (PI. e; C, 2), iu the
market-place, unpretending. — Pex.siox.s. Bronnenmiihlt (p. 221), in the
Tauber-Tal, P. 5-6 .«; Holme, Burg-Gasse 62-63 (PI. B. 2j, P. 5V.,-6 .16.

Restaurants.- Cafe-Rest. Schneider, Georgen-Str. (PI. C, 1); wino
at the prettily titted up Meistertnoik, Kapellen-Platz (PI. C, 2); beer at

the Adler, Herren-Str. 6. — Confectioner. W. Breyer, Milchmarkt
(PI. 0, 2).

Post & Telegraph Office (PI. B, 2), in the market-place.

Pictures and objects of art on the ground -floor of the Historical
Museum (p. 218). Pliotographs at the book-sliops of Krdmmer and
Trenlcle, iu tlie Hafen-Gasse (PI. C, 2), and of Mahler <t Ressel, Obere
Schmied-Str. 343 1 Bauineister-Haus, p. 220).

Rothenburg (140U ft.), with 8600 inhab., is pleasantly situated

on the W. margiu of a plateau desceuding abruptly to the Tauher.
It was already spoken of as a town iu 942, and from 1172 to 1802

it was a free city of the empire. Rothenburg attained its greatest

prosperity in the 14th cent, as a member of the Swabian League,

under Burgomaster Toppler. In 1525 it joined the insurgent peas-

antry, and in 1544 it embraced the Reformation. During the

Thirty Years' War the town was captured in 1631 by the imperial

troops under Tilly and iu 1645, after a short bombardment, by

Turenne. — Rothenburg is unique in its wealth of beautiful build-

ings and picturesque streets. The small red -tiled, gabled houses

and the excellently preserved walls, towers, and gates aflbrd an

admirable idea of a medieeval town. As in Nuremberg the churches

are Clothic, while the secular buildings, though of Gothic plan, are

mostly decorated in the Renaissance style (comp. p. xxix).

Those who are not subject to giddiness sliould not fail to ascend
the tower of the Rathaus, in order to obtain an idea of the town as a

whole. Another fine view of Rotlienburg is obtainable from the Burg-
Garten, especially by evening-light. The gardens between the Stober-
leins-Turm and tlie Cobolzeller Tor command a splendid view of tlie

town from the S., especially fine in the evening or Ity moonlight.
On Whit-Sunday afternoon a 'shepherds' dance" is held, followed by

an illumination of the town from the Cobolzeller Tor to the Burg-Garten.
On Wliit-Monday the play of 'Der Meistertrunk' (p. 218) is given.

From the station we proceed to the left to (6 min.) the Roder-
Tor (PI. D, 2), the E. entrance of the town, with a bastion of 1615
ipretty view of the 'Zwinger', or space between the walls). Thence
we follow the Roder-Str. straight on to the Roder-Bogen, adjoining

the Markfis-Ttirnt (PLC, 2), a relic of the earliest town -wall,

14*
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pulled (lowu iu the 13tb century. We next follow the Hafen-Grasse

to (5 min.) the Markt-Platz (PL B, C, 2). Ou the W. side is the —
Rathaus (PI. B, 2i, the older (iothic part of which (at the

back) dates from 1240-50. The tower. 160 ft. high, was built in

1556. The front part of the building, burned down in 1501, was

replaced in 1572-5 by a beautiful Renaissance structure by Leon-

hard Weidmann of Rothenburg and Wolf Loscher of Xuremberg.

It is adorned with a fine projecting rustica portico and balcony

(1681?), a staircase-tower, and an oriel-window. Tickets (at the

police-station) 25 pf., for a party 20 pf. each pers., for the tower

and dungeons 10 pf. each.

The spiral staircase iu the newer building ascends to an anteroom
with a fine timber-roof supported by Ionic columns aud the arms of
former councillors. Beyond this i door to the right of the tower staircase

;

ring) is the large court-room, now called the Kaiser-SaaL with a judges'
bench, jury-box. bar. etc. This is the scene of the Whitsuntide play
mentioned on p. 217. The present Council Chamber ou the second floor

contains paintings by Birkraeyer (Tilly entering Rothenburg, and the
town saved from destruction by the •Meistertrunk'. or wondrous draught
of wine, of Burgomaster Xusch) and by Schuch (luterceding with Tilly).

The spiral staircase has fine vaulting at the top. — In the cellars are
dungeons, where, among others, the burgomaster Toppler (p. 217), accused
of treason, perished in 1408.

The tower of the old Rathaus (193 steps, difficult; entr., see above)
commands a splendid view of the town and environs. — In the court
between the old and new Rathaus (entr. in the Herren-Str.) is a fine, but
sadly weather-worn Renaissance portal (1598).

On the N. side of the market-place is the old Rats-Trinkstuhe
(1466), now the post ofB.ce (PI. B, 2)\ at midday two figures appear
on the gable and perform the 'Meistertrunk'.

The Hafen-Gasse (see above; is continued to the AV. by the broad
Herkex-Strasse(P1. B, 2), at the beginning of which, to the left, is the

fine Herterich-Brunnen or aS7. Georgs-Brunnen, of 1608, restored

in 1886. Behind it CSo. lb) is the Fleisch-Haus or Tanz-Haus, ou
the site of the earliest Rathaus, burned down in 1240. It now con-

tains an historical museum ^20 pf.). No. 74, the old Jagstheimer
House (1488), now the Marien-Apotheke, has a pretty court (apply at

the chemist's). Farther on, to the right (No. 19), is the Voit Staudt
House (PI. B. 2). with a fine courtyard. Opposite, ou the left, is

the early-Gothic Franciscan Church (PL B, 2; Protestant), built

in 1285-1309 (keys kept by the 'Stadt-Kirchner', p. 219 ; adm! 40pf.,

for a party 20 pf. each).

The Interior contains many interesting hatchments and tomb.s. In
the left aisle, beneath a Gothic Madonna, is the tomb of Peter von Creg-
lingen (d. UO-l) ; by a round pillar to the left of the painted choir-screen is
the tomb of Hans von Beulendorf (A. 1504) and his wife (d. 1496): by
the entrance to the choir is the monument of Dietrich von Berlichingen
(d. 1484), grandfather of Gotz. The statue of St. Liborius on the choir-
screen is from the studio of Riemeuschneider (1492).

No. 44. adjoining the church, is the old Berrneter House, Mnth
a lofty Gothic gable. The Herren-Str. ends at the Burg-Tor (p. 220).
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In the Kikch-Platz, a few paces N. of the Rathaus (p. 218), are

the St. Jakobs-Kirche and tlic Gymnasium (PI. B, 1), built by L.

^Veidmann (p. 218) in 1589-92; it has a good staircase-tower, with

a portal of 1703.

The Protestant *St. Jakobs-Kirche (PI. B, 1 1, a lofty basilica,

Mas built in 1373-1436 (the W. choir completed in 1471), rebuilt

in the Gothic style in 18ol-7, and recently restored to its original

condition. It has two E. towers and a choir at each end. The sacri-

stan ('Stadt-Kirchner') lives opposite the E. choir (adm. 50 pf., for

a party 30 pf. each).

The Ikterior is remarkable for its flue ])roportions. In the E. choir
is the *High Altar 'of the twelve messengers', with carvings of the Swa-
bian school (Crucifixion with six saints and four hovering angels); on the
exterior of the wings are scenes from the life of the Madonna, by Friedrich
Herlin (1466). Below are Christ and the Twelve Apostles. At the back,
above on tlie left, is a view of tlie market-place with the Ratliaus before
the rebuilding (p. 21S). The 'Sakraraentshauschen" 'p. 170: late 14th cent.).

to the left, bears a naive representation of the Trinity. The three stained-
glass *AVindows of the E. choir (best seen by morning-light; date from
the late 14th cent, and were restored in 1856 (scenes from the life of
Christ). To the right of the choir is the *Altar of the Holy Blood (1478\
with carvings by Riemenschneider (Last Supper, Entry into Jerusalem,
Christ on the Mount of Olives : 1499-1505"). On the predella is the Baptism
of Christ. To the left is the Altar of the Virgin, from the Spital-Kirelio
(Franconian ; after 1520). — In the 1st chapel of the S. aisle is a Madonna
(ca. 1480-90); in the 2nd or Toppler Chapel is the tomb of the burgo-
master (p. 217). — The W. choir contains three modern windows (1910).

Built into the W. choir, beneath which the Kliugen-Str. passes,

is the Gothic Heiligbh(t-Kapelle (PI. B. 1; temporarily inacces-

sible), rebuilt after 1453, with three paintings by Fr. Herlin, etc. —
Close by, at the corner of the Kloster-Gasse, is the V(fn Kochert
House (1613; now the parsonage), with an elaborate oriel and hand-

some stucco ceilings (Parable of the prodigal son). — At the AV.

end of the Kloster-Gasse is the entrance to the Bettelvogt-Turm
(PI. B, 1), with a torture-chamber (25 pf.\

In the Klostekhof. to the N. of the Kloster-Gasse, is the for-

mer Dominican Nunnery (PI. B. 1: now offices), founded in 1258,

with a mediaeval kitchen and fine court 'apply to the officials; bell

in the corner). At the corner of the Klingcn-81r. is the house of the

])aker Feuerlein. Avith a tasteful oriel. Tiic Klingen-Str. ends, to

the X., at the Klingen-Tor (p. 220 l

The Geokgex-Stk.vssk runs E. from the Kirch-Platz (see above)

to the Weisser Turm (PI. C, 1), which, like the Markus-Turm
(p. 217), is a survival from the earliest town-wall. Adjacent, to the

left, is the picturesque Judentanz-Haus, or Stein house (late 14th

cent.; no adm.), with a pretty wooden oriel (behind the tower). The
Wiirzburger Str. leads from the Weisser Turm to the Wiirzhuryer
Tor (PI. D, 1), whence another street leads to the station. — From
the Weisser Turm we walk a few paces to the right to the Kapellex-
Platz, passing on the right \\\q Schmidt House {lb 50; restored in
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1902). with a fine timbered gable faring tlie square. In front of it

is the Seel-Brunnen (162(j). Thence wc may return W. to the

market-place (p. 218).

From the market-place the Obere Schmied-Str. (PL C, 2, 3)

descends to the S. part of the town, known as the 'Kappenzipfel'.

Immediately on the left (Xo. 343) is the Hans des Baumeisters,

by L. "NVeidmaun (1596), with a handsome facade adorned with

Caryatides and a pretty court (cafe in summer). The Goldener Greif^

adjoining (Xo. 342), was once the house of Toppler (p. 217). Farther

on. to the right, is the G^oWuq St.Johan ins-Kirche{V\. C, 2 ; Catholic),

dating from 1393-1403 and restored in the interior in 1604, with

the Johanniterhof (now district offices). The Schmied-Str. leads

farther on to the 'Plonlein'. one of the most picturesque parts of

the town, whence a street descends on the right to the Cpholzeller

Tor (PI. C, 3). AVe continue straight on through the Siebers-Turm

fPl. C, 3) to the Spital-Gasse. On the right rises the Hospital (PI.

C, 4\ rebuilt bv "Weidmann in 1574-8, with fine doors in the interior.

The' early -Gothic Spital-Kirche (1280-1300; rebuilt in 1591)

contains a beautiful 'Sakramentshauschen' (p. 170; verger, Spital-

Gasse 166). In the court stands the Hegereiter-Hauschen (1591).

— Outside the Spitcd-Tor (PI. C, 4) projects a circular bastion

(1572-86), still mounting some ancient cannon. Steps descend thence

to the Hot. Wildbad fp. 217). — From the Spital-Tor we may take

the road X. outside the town-walls, past the Faul-Turm (PI. C, 3),

to the Roder-Tor (p. 217); or we may ascend the steps to the right

at the end of the Spital-Gasse and follow the covered walk on the

E. and X. walls to (25 min.) the Klingen-Tor ('see below).

From the bastion of the Spital-Tor we proceed to the right (W.)

to the Essigkrug (PI. B, 4), a projecting spur, on Avhich rises the

Wildhad-Turm (PI. B, 4), the only relic of a castle destroyed by

an earthquake in 1356. Descent thence into the Tauber-Tal, see

p. 221. We next skirt the town-wall, passing the Stoherleins-Turm

(PI. B. 4) and the Cobolzeller Tor ('see above), and reach the (10 min.)

Burg-Garten (PL A, 2), with its old lime-trees, laid out on a hill

once occupied by a castle of the Hohenstaufen, built in 1146 to

replace the stronghold of the Counts of Rothenburg, who became

extinct in 1108. This was destroyed by the earthquake of 1356, only

the St. Blasias-Kcqjelle, now containing architectural fragments

('adm. 20 pf.), escaping destruction. The gardens command a fine

*View of the town and the deep Tauber-Tal. Below, to the W., is

the Toppler-Schlosschen (p. 221).

A pretty walk may be taken from the Burg-Garten outside the

town-walls, past the Burg-Tor (PL A, 2), at the end of the Herren-

Strasse (p. 218), and the Straf-Turm (PL A, B, 1), to (8 min.) the

Klingen-Tor (PL B, 1; walk along the ramparts, see above). A
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little K of this is the small Schafer-Kirche or St. Wolfgangs-
Kirche (PL B, 1 ; key at the adjoining gatekeeper's lodge), containing

a carved altar of ca. 1500. The bastion was bnilt on to the church

in 1536, From the Klingen-Tor back to the town via the Klingen-

Str., see p. 219.
Environs. The following walk (I'/i br.) is recommended. From the

Essigkrug (p. 220) we descend the Xeuer Steig (views) into the Taubcr-
Tal, where we reach the late-Gothic Catholic CoholzeUer Kirclie (PI. B. 3 :

1472-9; shut). "We next cross the Doppel-Brilcke (1330) and follow the

Tauber-Tal pass the Felsenkeller restaurant to the Toppler-Schloisschen
or Kaiserstuhl, built by Toppler (p. 217) in 1388. The road goes on to

the old village of Dett^wang (Hot. Schwarzes Lamm, Pulvermiihle),
with a church (meutioned in the 8th cent.) containing a carved *Altar
by Riemenschneider (key kept by the schoolmaster, opposite). We may
return to the Klingen-Tor (p. 22.0) in 20 min.

A visit (I-IV2 br.) to the hill on the W. of the Tauber, commanding
fine views of the town (best in the afternoon), may be combined with
the preceding walk. From the Burg-Tor we follow the path to the X.
towards the Klingen-Tor (see p. 220), after 5 min. descend the 'Kurzer
Steig' (PI. A, 1) to the left, and cross the Tauber at the Bronnen-MiiliJe

(p. 217). Beyond the Vorbach-Tal we ascend S. by marked forest-paths

to the Engeisburg . a circular entrenchment with a superb view of the

town. Thence we may descend to the Toppler -Schlosschen, or follow
the ridge S. to the Doppel-Briicke (see above).

Omu. (motor- omn. projected) twice daily in 2V2 brs. via Touher-
scheckenbach (below the Burgstall, with Celtic fortifications) to fl2 M.)
Creglingen (910 ft.: Hot. Lamm. R. 1 JC 50-1 .^ 80 pf . ; Post, R. li .,-

2V2 <^)- The Herrgotts - Kirche (V4 hr.) contains a carved *Altar by
Riemenschneider (after 1500). [The old road to Creglingen commands,
as far as Schn-arzenbronn ^ charming views of Rothenburg.] Railway
from Creglingen to Weikersheim, see p. 36.

Omn. from Rothenburg daily in 8 hrs. to (13 M.) Rot am See (p. 36). —
Motor-omn. 2-3 times daily in 2 hrs. to (171/2 M-) Leutershausen-Wieders-
bach (p. 37 ; IV4 <^).

Branch-line via (12 M.) Schillingsfiirst (Hot. Stein, R. 1-2 Ji), with
a Schloss of Prince Hohenlohe-Schillingsfurst to (16 M.) Dombilhl (p. 37),

Thence to Dinkelsbuhl, see p. 193.

CoNTiNUATiox OF THE MuNicH LixE, At (43 M.) Oherclcich-

stetten we enter the valley of the FrCinldsche JRezat. The Peters-

herg (1635 ft,; view), previously visible to the left, may be ascended

hence in 1 hr.

541/2 M. Ansbach. — Railwaij Restaurant. — Kotkls. Goldener

Stern (PI. a; B, 2), corner of the Promenade -Str. and Karl-Str., with
garden, R. 2 JC 20-2 Ji 50 pf.. B. 1 ^, good; ZirTcel (PI. b; A, 2), Maxi-
milian-Str. ; Deutscher Kaiser (PI. c; B, 2) , Karl-Str., R. IV0-2V2 -^.'

Bayrischer Hof (PI. e; B, 2), near the station, plain. — Wine Rooms.
Benkher, Butten-Str. 20 (PI. A, 1) ; Wed^l-Probst, Uz-Str. 19 (PI. A, B, 1

;

also hot meals). — Restaurant. Schu-aj'zer Bock, Pfarr-Str. 31 (PI.

B, 1 ; also bedrooms). — Cafe. Roth, Unterer Markt 10 (PI. B, 1).

Post & Telegraph Office (PI. C, 2), near the station. — Baths iu

the Rezat, X.W. of the town.

Ansbach (1345 ft.), the capital of Central Francouia, with

20,000 inhab., is situated on the Friinkische Rezat amidst park-like

surroundings. Orisrinating in the Benedictine monastery of Onolz-
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bacli, founded in the 8tli cent, by St. Gumpertus, Ansbach Avas

from 1363 the seat of the Burgraves of Nuremberg, Avho later on

became the Margraves of Brandenburg -Ansbach (p. 167). Since

1806 it has belonged to Bavaria.

From the station (PI. B. C, 2) we turn to the right, then to the

left through the Theresien-Str. to the (5 min.) Schloss. On the left,

at the beginning of the Promenade-Str., is the Luitpold Foimtain

(PI. 1; B, 1), with a group by Behn (1908). On the right, in front

of the Schloss, is a bronze statue of the poet August von Platen

(1796-1835; p. 223 •. by Halbig fl858).
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The royal *Scmoss (PI. B, 1) was begun in 1713 from plans

by Gabriel de Gabrielis on the site of the old palace burned down
in 1710, and completed by Zocha in 1723-32 (open 10-12 and 2-5,

Oct.-April 10-12 and 2-4,'Sun. and holidavs 10-12: tickets, 50 pf.,

to the riffht in the gatewav : visit lasts hr.\
The FuRSTEx-ZiMMER, ou the first floor, are decorated in the purest

early-rococo style. The stucco embellishments are by Diego Carious and
Joh' Schnell: the frescoes mainly by Carlo Carlone. The chief apart-

ments are the bedroom , with fine stucco ornamentation ; the ancestral

hall, with portraits of King Frederick William I. of Prussia and his

family; the porcelain-room, with faience-panelling; the picture-gallery
(pictures of no importance): the portrait-room, with portraits of the mar-
graves; the Grosser Saal, with a superb ceiling; the Weisser Saal; the

library; the marble cabinet; the *Mirror Room, with old Dresden and
Berlin porcelain; the audience -chamber of the margravine, with a fine

porcelain candelabrum (Berlin; 1772); and the tapestry-room.
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The X. annexe of the Schloss contains the Collecxioxs of the
Historical Society (open May-Sept, on Sun. 11-1 2. oO, 20 pf., at other

times 50 pf.). incl. an ichthyosaurus ami portraits of tlie Zollcrn family.

To the E. of the Schloss is the llof-Garten (PI. C, 1, 2), with

a double jiveinie of lime-trees. The old orangery (restatirant) con-

taius a room with teu frescoes by Hcideloflf (1827j. To the S,, at

the edge of the meadow (keep to the left), is a memorial to Caspar
Hauser (d. 1833; PI. C, 1; 'Hie occultus occulto occisus est'i, a

foundling who laid claim to large estates and whose death was as

mysterious as his origin. Close bv is a bronze bust of the poet

Uz (d. 1796; PI. C, 1), by Heideloflf (1825). F.oth are buried in

the cemetery S. of the town.

From the Schloss we proceed W. via the Promenade-Str., No. 20
iu which contains the Municipal Collections of coins, engravings,

and antiquities (PI. B, 1 ; adm. May-Oct. 20 pf., free on Sun. 10-12;

in winter 50 pf.). We next pass through the Herrieder Tor 1 16§4),

to the right, and follow the Uz-Str. (PL A, B, 1) to the Unterer Markt.

The Protestant Gumbertus-Kirche (PL B, 1), on the N. side,

originally a Eomanesque edifice of the 12th cent., with three Grothic

^\. towers ^1483-93 and 1594-7) and a late-Gothic choir (1523).

The nave was rebuilt in 1732-4. The Georgs-Kapelle, now partly

walled up, was intended by Margrave Albert Achilles (1459; to be

tlic central point in S. Germany of the Order of the Swan, founded

in 1440 by the Elector Frederick IL of Brandenburg.
IxTERioR (verger, Pfarr-Str. 3:3). The choir, known as the 'Schwanen-

rittcr-Kapelle', restored in 1907, contains monuments transferred iu 1825
from the Georgs-Kapelle. incl. the Schivanoiordcns-Altar, with carvings
and paintings of the school of Wohlgemut, presented in 1185 by Margrave
Albert Achilles and well restored. On the predella are the portraits of

the donor and his second wife. On the wall are twelve stone monuments
of knights, the first on the right being hidden by an altar-piece (Christ

in the wine-press) by H. Baldung Grien (?). Above the monuments are

hatchments of the kniglits. The stained glass dates from the 15th-

16th centuries.

On the N. side of the church is the Hoflanzlei, now law-courts

(PL B, 1), an unpretentious gabled edifice of 1563. Adjacent, to

the S.W., is the old Landhaus {V\. 4, B 1; now a chemist's shop),

a Renaissance edifice of 1535. with Gothic windows. In front, in

the Obercr Markt, is a fountain with a gilded statue of Margrave
George the Pious (d. 1543; PL 2, B li, who introduced the Re-

formation.

On the N. side of the Obercr Markt is the Protestant aS'/. ./('/m/^y</s-

Kirche (PL A, 1). a Gothic structure begun in 1441, with two

towers of unequal height. Below the choir is the burial-vault of

the margraves, constructed in 1660. It contains 25 coffins, mostly

of pewter and richly gilded (verger, Schaitberger-Str. 6). — No. 17,

Platen-Str. (PL A, 1), is the house in which Platen was born (comp.

p. 222; tablet).
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AVe may cross the bridge beliiud the Schloss (p. 222) and a«cead the

steep Schloss -Str. (PI. B, C, 1) to (V4 br.) the Kaiser- Hohe, with a

Bismarck -Turm (1903) and a view of the town and its environs. Close
by is the restaurant of Drechselsgarten.

From Ansbach to Heilshronn and Nuremberg^ or to Crailshcim and
Stuttgart, sec K. 6; to Bechhofen, see p. 37.

64', 2 M. Triesdu)'f. About 1^/4 M. to the W. is a former country-

house of the margraves (1692), with a fine park.
About 3 M. to the X.E. of the station, beyond Merkoidorf , with

830 inhab. and almost intact walls, lies Escheilbach (J. Bauer's inn),

a perfectly preserved mediaeval town of 960 inhab.. with walls and frame-
houses. The poet "Wolfram von Eschenbach (d. ca. 1220), Avbo is com-
memorated by a fountain (1861). Avas born here. The early-Gothi-o church
of the Teutonic Order was spoiled in 1878 by 'restoration'. The old
Rathaus dates from 1471 ; the new Ratliaus , formerly a lodge of the
Order, has a Renaissance facade.

72 M. Gunzenhausen (Rail. Restaurant: Hot. zur Post;, junction

for Nordlingeu and Pleinfeld (p. 191). — We cross the Altmiihl

and follow its vallev to Eichstatt. On the right is the long ridge

of the Hahnenlcimm (2115 ft.). — 87 M. Treuchtlingen (1030 ft.;

Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Poujol), junction for Nuremberg and Donau-
worth (Augsburg, Munich; pp. 140, 194).

The Altmiihl is crossed twice. — 90i,2 M. Pappenheim
(1330 ft.; Hot. zur Krone, R. 1-2 t^), a charmingly situated sum-
mer resort, is commanded by the ruins of a castle (11th cent.) of

the Counts of Pappenheim (key at the monastery near the way up to

the castle: fine view from the 'Romer-Turm', 20 pf."i. The town
contains two chateaux of Count Pappenheim.

94 M. Solnhofen (1335 ft.; Rail. Restaurant: Hot. zum Stern),

pleasantly situated on both sides of the stream. In the main street

is a monument to Aloys Senefelder (1771-1834), the inventor of

lithography. About 20 miu. S. of the station are interesting quar-

ries of chalky slate, where over 3000 workmen are employed. The
pale yellow stone, used for lithographing, paving, etc., is largely

exported. Numerous fossils have been found here, iucl. the archaeop-

teryx now at the Natural History Museum in Loudon. The collection

of Herr Grrimm, the manager, on the Maxberg, is .open to visitors.

99 M. DoUnsfeiri, an old town still surrounded by walls. — On
the left bank of the Alhniihl rises the serrated Burgsteii), 1 hr.

from (103 M.; Ober-Eichstatt, a pretty village with a government
foundry. — The line quits the valley of the Altmiihl and reaches the

(105 M.) station of Eichstatt (rail, restaurant). Continuation of the

Munich line, see p. 226.

Narrow-gauge line in 20 min. to (3 M.) the town of Eichstatt.

"Walkers (% hr.) ascend to the left 3 min. S. of the station. Good
view of Eichstatt as we descend. Before beginning the descent, we
may diverge to the left for a visit to the Willibaldsburg (p. 225).
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Eichstatt (1270 ft.; Hot. Adler, in the market-place, R. 1' g-

272 ^^/ I^^ir, G-rosso Markt-Gasse, R. 1-1', 2 ^^^ ;' Traubc). a quiet

little town of 8000 inhab. on the left bank of the Altmilhl, has been

the seat of an episcopal see since 745, when St. Willibald, a com-

panion of St. Boniface, became its first bishop. It owed its impor-

tance also to the pilgrimages to the relics of St. Walpurga, whicli

were transferred hither in 870.

A little E. of tho station, beyond the river,, lies the Cathedral,

or Doni, consecrated by Bishop Gundekar II. in 1060. The two E.

towers are Romanesque; the "\V. choir is in the transitional style

1269); the Gothic nave and E. choir were begun after 1354; the

interior has been restored in the Gothic style since 1880.
IxTKKioK. The new high-altar in the E. choir is adorned with old

Avood-carvings: in the middle, Virgin and four .saints, by Meiater Hans
rlate 15th ceut.); at the top, Crucifixion with the Virgin and St. John.
By the S. wall is the tomb of Bishop Courad von Gemmingen (d. 1612).

attributed to P. Candid, with a recumbent figure in bronze. — By the

wall of tlie N. transept is the Pappenheim altar, of sandstone, with
a relief of the Crucifixion (late 15th cent. V). — In the choir of St. "Willi-

bald (W. clioir), at the back of the marble altar, is a seated stone figure

of St. Willibald, by Loij Hering (1514). To the left of the altar is the

tomb of Bishop W. von Reichenau (d. 1496), in red marble, by Hana
Bau^rlein. — From the S. transept we enter the beautiful late-Gothic
cloisters (ca. 1350). with two stories. In the W. walk (Mortuarium ; 14871.

which has two aisles, are tombs of canons and a stone crucifix, possibly
by Loij Hering (S. wall).

Adjoining the cathedral on the S. is the old Palace, built in

the 18th cent, and now containing the law-courts. Its staircase

and 'mirror-room' are interesting. In front of the palace, in the

Residenz-Platz, is -a Marien-SClide, 60 ft. high, with a gilded

figure of the Virgin (1777). To the E. is the Leonrod-Platz, with

the Wittelsbach Fountain (1906); on the E. side is the Schntz-

engel-Kii'che, formerly the Jesuit church (1617-34^. In the Osten-

Str. (No. F17, on the right', which diverges hence to the E.. is the

old /Summer Palace, built in 1735 by Efftier. now containing the

government library and a diocesan museum. Behind it is the

Hof-Garten.
In the Doni-Platz, N. of the cathedral, is a War Monument

by H. Wadere (1911). Farther X.. in the market-place, is a foun-

tain with a bronze statue of St. Willibald , by J. Engel (1695 1.

Thence we proceed N, through the "Westen-Str., passing the house

(No. B 218, on the left) in which Willibald Pirkheimer (p. 167)

was born, and then ascend to the Wal2Jurf/a-Kirche (1631k Behind
the high-altar is the burial-chapel of St. Walpurga. with five old

wooden statues. Festival on May 1st.

About 20 min. N.AV. of the station, on the right bank of the

Altmilhl, rise the extensive remains of the Willibaldsbuj'g, the

residence of the bishops down to 1730. The mediaeval part has

completely disappeared; the newer part was built in 1609-19 by
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Elias Holl. The tower commands a striking view, best in the

evening (a])])ly to the custodian;; the ascent is difficult and not

recommended to ladies. The Avell is 300 ft. deep. — On the Bln-

menhercj. 1 hr. X.W. of the Willibaldsburg, numerous rare fossils

(pterodactyl: archseopteryx. now in the Natural History Museum at

Berlin) have been found.

From Eichstatt to Ki.ndixg, 18i/., M.. narrow-gauge Hue in IV2 I'l"-

down the AltmilhJ-Tal. — 41/2 M. Pfiinz, with extensive remains of the

Vetonianig, a fort on the Pfalil-Grahen (p. 214). — 12 M. Arnsberg, with
a ruined castle (view). — 15 M. Kipfenberg (RoX. zurPost. R. 1.«-1^'20 pf.).

a picturesque little town with a ruined castle, situated at the point where
the Roman 'limes' crosses the Altmiihl valley. — 17 M. Bohming, with
remains of a Roman fort. Numerous Celtic and Merovingian tombs have
been found in the vicinity. — ISV-j M. Kinding (Hot. zur Altcn Post,

plain), with a fortified cemetery of the 17th century. Excursions in the

Schivarzach-Tal to (IV2-2 hrs. : omn. 85 pf.
. Greding and Hobing (p. 139).

and in the Anlauter-Tal to (31/2 hi'S- ; omn. 1 JC) Titting (Brauerei). From
Kinding an omn. (thrice daily in l^/^ hr. ; 1 ^M) descends the Altmiihl-Tal

to (7 M.) BeUngrics (p. 128).

•CoxTixrATiox OF THE MuxiCH LiXE. Beyoud (119^/2 M.) Iiigol-

stadt-Nordhahnhof the line skirts the fortifications of Ingolstadt

and crosses the Danube.

122 M. Ingolstadt. — Baibvay Bestaurant. — Hotels. Adlcr.

Thcresien-Str. 22, R. 1V2-3 JC ; Wittelsbacher Hof. Donau-Str. 14, R.
1 Ji-1 JC 70 pf. : Bar, Theresien-Str. 6. — Trajiway to the town (2M.,
in 20 niin. : 20 pf.).

Ingolstadt (1200 ft.), with 23,800 inhab.. is a fortified town on

the left bank of the Danube. The mediaeval walls still survive for

the most part. The famous university founded in 1472 by Duke Louis

the Rich was transferred to Landshut (p. 230) in 1800 and to Munich
in 1826 /p. 260). At the end of the i6th cent, it was attended by

4000 students. The Jesuit College, founded in 1555, was the first

in Germany. — Coming from the station, we enter the town through

the Donau-Tor. Thence we follow the Donau-Str., Moritz-Str.,

and the street 'Am Stein' to the (8 min.; Garrison Church (14th

cent.), containing interesting tombs. We then retrace our steps

through 'Am Stein' and follow the Theresien-Str. to the right to

the (5 min.) Frauen-Kirche, or Oher-Pfarrkirche, a late-Gothic

church of 1425-1500 (rebuilt in 1848). with two massive towers.

On the S. portal is an interesting Annunciation. Inside are the

brass of Dr. Eck (d. 1543; in the chapel to the left of the high-altar),

the opponent of Luther, and monuments to Tilly and the Bavarian

general Mercy, who fell at Alerheim in 1645. Elaborate high-

altar by Hans Mielich (15^2) and fine stained glass of the early

16th century. A little W. is the Kreuz-Tor (1383). The Konvikt-

Gasse leads N. to the sodality -chapel oi Maria de Victoria, a

masterpiece of Bavarian rococo (1732-6), with ceiling-paintings by

the brothers Asam. From the Frauen-Kirche we return through
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the Theresien-Str., continuing straight on tlirough the Ludwig.s-Str.

to the (9 min.j old Schloss (15th cent.).

From Ikgolstadt to Riedexbukg, 26 M., railway in 2 lirs. —
Beyond (18 M.) Saudersdorf, with a Sohloss, the line follows the charm-
ing ScftambacTi- To?. — 23 M. Hexenogger. with a conspicuous Schloss. —
26 M. Riedenburg (Hot. Schwan . R. 80 pf.-lV2 '^; Post), a town of

1800 inhab., finely situated at tlie foot of two projecting rocks, whicli

seem to close the'AltmUM-Tal. On one of the rocks arc Schloss Rosen-
htirq and the ruin of RahenstrAn, on the other the ruin of Tachcnsteiv

.

Down the AltmUhl-Tal to Kelheim, see p. 213; up the valley to Dict-

furt. see p. 129: to Eining. sec p. 211.

Railway to Donamcorth. Augaburg, and Ratisbon, see R. 29.

1 34 M. Wolnzach. Branch-line to (14' ^ M.) Mainhurg (p. 232 1.

— We ascend on the right bank of tlie Urn. — 141 M. Pfajfen-

hofen, a small town with 3300 inhabitants. — Beyond (149 M.)

Petershmisen we cross the Glon , an affluent of the Amper. —
155','2 ^^- Rohrmoos. We descend into the Amper-Tal , crossing

the river, to (161 M.) Dachau (p. 303). — The railway intersects

the Dachauer Moos, an extensive marshy plain, crosses the Wlirm

short of (165'
'2 M.) Allach , and skirts the park of Xymphen-

bnrg (p. 301).

172 M. Munich (p. 233).

31. From Stuttgart to Munich.
150 M. Express in r.'/,- 1

' ^ Ins. (20 .M 50. 1.*? .« 70. 8 ^M 50 pf .) : ordinary
train in 7-10 hrs. (18 JC 50, 11 JC 70, 7 ^« 50 pf.).

From Stuttgart to (58'/2M.) Ulm, see R. 8. The line crosses the

Danube and enters Bavaria. — 60^2^^- -A^e«-L7m (Bahnhof-Hotel),

on the left bank of the Danube, forming together with Ulm (p. 46)

an imperial fortress. To Kemptcn, see p. 49. — 63'
._,
M. Barla-

fiiuicu. Elchingen (p. 41) is seen on the opposite bank. — 71 M.

Lci])heini. witli a Schloss.

74 M. Glinzburg '^Kail. Restaurant; Hot. Glocke, Mlinzbniu),

a town with 5100 inhab., the Roman Gunfia, lies picturesquely on

a iiill, at the confluence of the Giinz and Danube. It has two gate-

towers, a large 16th cent. Schloss, and a beautiful Frauen-Kirche

built by D.Zimmermann in 1735-40. The collections of the historical

society include prehistoric. Roman, and other antiquities. Branch-

line to Mindelheim, see p. 309. — On tlie range of wooded hills

to the right lies Schloss Beisohsbunj.
77 ''2 M. Neu-Offingen 'rail, restaurant 1, junction for Donau-

worth (p. 194). — The train leaves the Danube. — Near (79 M.)

Offivqen it crosses the Miiulel. — 84 M." Bior/au, with an old and

a new Schloss. — 95 M. Dinkelscherheu. Branch-line to (S'/o ^^•'

in 1 hr.) Thannhauseu, on the Mindel, with a parish-church (1746)

containing a large ceiling -painting by Jos. Christ (1787). — We
cross the Zusam. — Beyond (98 M.) Modishofen we cross the
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Schmutter. — 1U2 31. Gessertshausen. Branch-line to Ttirkheini,

see p. 309. — 110 M. Augsburg-Oberhausen, junction for Nurem-
berg (p. 194). The train then crosses the Wertach.

Ill M. Augsburg frail, restaurant; p. 195).

We cross the Lech. — 114^/0 M. Hochzoll, junction for Ingol-

stadt (p. 214;. — At (117\ g M.) Kissing Ave leave the Lech. —
121 M. Mering, a pleasant village.

From Merino to Weilueim. 34 M., railway in I'/a-^'/^ hrs. — The
line runs through the smiling Paar-Tal. — 13 M.' Geltendorf. on the line

from Munich to Lindau (p. 308). — 16 M. Greifenberg. 20 min. W. of

the village, with the Schloss of Baron von Perfall. The train reaches the
Ammer-See (p. 307), the W. bank of which it skirts. — 18V-^ M. Scho>i-
dorfir-di\. restaurant; p. 308). — 2OV2 M. rtting (p. 308). — 26'M. Diessen
(p. 308). Then through the Ammer-Moos to (34 M.) Weilheim (p. 306).

Near (ISS'/g M.) Olching we cross the Amper (p. 308). The
broad Dachauer Moos (p. 227) is then traversed. — At (145^2 M.)

Pasing ip. 303) the train crosses the Wilrm. Near Munich the

park of Nvmphenburg (p. 301) is seen on the left.

150 M. Munich (p. 233).

32. From Leipzig via Hof and Ratisbon to
Munich.

2991/2 M. Express in TV^-^^/i iirs. (39./^ 90, 25 .« 30. \% .k, 10 pf.;;

ordinary train in 17-23 hrs. (37 Ji 90, 23 Jt 30, 15 JC 10 pf.). The Xord-Siiil
express accomplishes the distance in 71/4 hrs. (1st cl. only; extra -fare
11 c4 20 pf.). — From Leipzig to Munich via Hof and Xureniberg, see E. 20.

From Leipzig to (105^2 ^^-j Hof, see p. 132. The line runs

near the winding Saale. — 109'/, ^I- OberlxOtzau (rail, restaurant;

p. 133), junction for Eger to the left, and Nuremberg to the right. —
1171/2 M. Kirchenlamitz (1835 ft.). Comp. the Map, p. 155.

Branch-line via (2i/., M.) KirchenJamitz-Stadt (1965 ft. ; Hot. Lowe,
Post), (31/2 M.) Epprechhtein (p. 158), and (41/2 M.) Biiclihans (p. 158) to

(71/0 M.) Weisscnstadt (p. 157).

The Grosser Kornberg (2715 ft. : belvedere) rises 1 hr. X.E. of
Kirchenlamitz station.

At (I2O1/2 M.) Marldleothea we cross the Eger. — 125 M.
Roslau (1915 ft.). Motor-omu. to Bayreuth, see p. 155. — 127^/2 M.
Holenbrunn (1845 ft.). Branch - line to AVunsiedel, see p. 158
to Selb, see p. 133. — We cross the valley of the Boslaa.

1311/2 M. Marld-Reclivitz. junction of the Nuremberg and Eger
line (p. 191). Motor-omn. to Bayreuth, see p. 155.

143 M. Wiesau (1730 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Bayrischer

Hof), junction for Eger (p. 132). About 1/2 hr. AY. of the station

is the Konig-Otto-Bad, with a chalybeate spring.
From Wiesau to Barnau, 15 M., railway in I1/2 in'- — We pass

numerous carp-ponds. — 7 M. Tirschenreuth (Hot. Post, Bayrischer Hof),
with 4900 inhab. and an early -Gothic parish -church. — 15 ^Nf! Bdrnau
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(Hot. zum Biiren), with a pearl-button industry. About 2 hrs. S., on the
Bohemian frontier, rises the Entenhiihl (3070 ft.). From Silberhutte
(2705 ft.), on its W. slope, a road leads to (1 hr.) Flossenbiirg (see below).

149 M. Reuth. Branch-line to (31/2 M.) Erbendorf, with steatite

quarries. — Then down the valley of the Fichtelnaab to ('154 M.;

Windisch-Eschenhach and (159'/.2 M.) Neustadt an der Waldnaab
(1380 ft.; Hot. zur Bahn), a prettily situated little town. To the left

(S.E.j rise the wooded hills of the Oberpfaker Wald. To the right

is the Farksfein, a basaltic hill.

From Xeustadt to Eslarx, 31 M., railway in 2^/.^ hrs. — 6 M. Floss
(Hot. zum Croldenen Lowen), 1V> hr. E. of which (railway under con-
struction) is Flossenbnrg, with a ruined castle (view). To Silberhiitte,

see above. — 10 ^I. Waldthiirn. About IV4 M- to the S.E. lies the
village, ^li hr. E. of which rises the Fahrenberg (2630 ft. ; view';, with
a pilgrimage-church of 1775-80. — 15V> M. Vo1ien>itrau^s (Hot. Drei Lilien.

Wilder Mann), with Schloss Friedrichsburg (158(5). The loftily situated
ruin of Leuchfenberg iltth cent.; adm. 50 pf.}, IV2 hr. S.AV.", was the
ancestral seat of the landgraves of that name. — 201/0 M. Plegsteln
(1780 ft. ; Hot. zum Goldenen Kreuz), at the foot of a cliff of rose-q^uartz,

crowned with a convent. — 31 M. Ei^tarn (1<".55 ft. ; Hot. zum Bayrischen
Lowen), with 2500 inhabitants.

1631/... ^i^ Weiden (1305 ft.; Hot. zur Post, R. 1 ^ 80 pf.-

3 cy//), a town of 14,900 iuhub., junction for Xeueumarkt via Bay-

reuth (R. 23) and for Xeukirchen (p. 346). — At (169 M.) Lulie-

Wildenmi (1270 ft.) the Haidenaah and Waldnaab unite to form

the Naab. — 174 M: Wernberg, with an old castle. — 178i/._, M.

Pfreimd (Hot. zum Schwau), at the confluence of the Pfreimt and

Xaab. In the valley of the former, 5 M. to the X.E., are the village

and castle of I'raus/ntz, where Frederick the Handsome was im-

prisoned in 1322-5. — 181 M. Xabburg (Hot. Schwani, a town of

2070 inhab., with town-walls and a Gothic church (second half of

the 14th cent.).

From NABBURfj to Obkkviechtach, 18 M., railway in IV2 ''i- — ^t
(3 M.) Wolsenrlovf, with quarries of fluor-spar, we enter the valley of
the Schicarzach. We then ascend the valley of the Muracli. — 18 M.
Oberciechtach (IfiKo ft.; Hot. zur Post), with 1300 inhabitants.

188 \/., M. Irrerdohe (rail, restaurant), junction for Nurem-
berg (p. 347). — We cross the Xaab. — 190'

._,
M. Schwandorf

(1205 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Kloster, Bahn'hofs-Hotel), a town

of 7400 inhab., junction for Furth and Prague (R. 47 >. — 200i,
o M.

Haidhof. Branch-line to (4' ^ ^^•) Burglengenfeld, with a ruined

castle. — Beyond (202'/., M.) Poidiolz, to the right, is Schloss

Pirkensee. — Short of (208 M.) Begenstauf the Begen is crossed.

— Beyond (214'/2 M.) Wcdhalla-Strasse the train crosses the

Danube by an iron bridge, 775 yds. long. On either side are the

harbour-works (p. 203;; on the left the Walhalla (p. 210) is visible.

Comp. the Map, p. 211. We de.scribe a wide curve to the right.

217' o M. Ratisbon trail, restaurant; p. 202 1.

Backing out of Ratisl)on station, the Munich train traverses an

uninteresting district. 222'
^, M. Obertraabling. To the left is
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tlie "Wallialla. To Passau, see R, 48. — We cross tlie Grosse Laber.
— 232i/o M. EggmUhl, wliere the French under Davoust (Prince

d"£ckmublj defeated the Austriaus on April 22ud, 1809. Monu-
ment bv F. von Miller (1909). — The Kleine Laber is crossed. —
2411 o l^x. Xeufahrn. Branch-line via (16 M.) Eadldorf (p. 348) to

(22' 2 M-J Straubing (p. 348;,

256 M. Landshut. — BaiJuaij Beftauraid. — Hotels. Drdxhuair
(PI. a; C. i), Altstadt 53. R. 2-3, B. IJi : Kronprinz (PI. c: C, 4), Alt-
stadt 29: Drei Mohren (PI. b; C, 4), Altstadt 69, R. 1V2-3 ^«; Deutsche/-
Kaiser (PI. d: A, l), near the station, R. l-Vjo^^. — Cafe. Fischer., Alt-
stadt (PI. C, 4), AV". side. — "VVixe Room. Martinsklaitse. Kirch-Oasse
(PI. C, 4). — Cabs. For Vi br. 45 pf., 1/2 l"- ^0 pf-. 1 hr. 1 .^ 40 pf. :

from the station to the town GO pf. — Tramway from the station to

(IV2 M.) the town, in 10 niin. i.lO pf.).

Landshut (1290 ft.), with 25,100 inhab., the capital of Lower
Bavaria, with handsome brick churches and gabled houses, lies

picturesquely on the right bank of the Isar, which forms an island

within the town. The quarter on this island is called Zicischen-

Bi^Ucleit. From 1255 to 1503 Landshut Avas the capital of the

Duchy of Bayern- Landshut, and in 1800-26 it was the seat of a

university (comp. p. 226). An historical festival ('Landshuter Hoch-
zeit'j is celebrated every summer in memory of the marriage of

Duke George with the Polish princess Hedwig in 1475.

The station (PI. A, 1) lies on the left bank of the Isar, in the

suburb of St. Nikola, 20 min. from the Js^. end of the 'Altstadt'.

On the way to the town we pass the Cistercian nunnery oiSeligental

(PI. B, C, 2), founded in 1232, with a church rebuilt by Dom.
Zimmermann (?) iu 1729-38. The latter has fine stucco decoration

in the early-rococo style and a wood-carving of the Descent from
the Cross (ca. 1525; S.E. wall). Adjacent'is the Gothic Afra-
Kapelle, originally Romanesque. — Beyond the Kleine Isar, in

Zwischen-Briickeu. is the small Sebastians- Kirche (PL C, 2, 3),

rebuilt in 1666.

On the right bank of the Isar begins the 'Altstadt', or main
street of the town, with arcades on its E. side. On the right is the

Heiliggeist-Kirche, or Spital-Kirche (PL C, 3), an elegant brick

building begun by Hans .Stethaiiiier in 1407 and finished in 1462.
— Farther on, to the left, is the Bathaus (PL C, 4), built in 1446
and remodelled in a Gothic style in 1860-61. The large hall on
the first floor (bell for porter to the right), fitted up by Hauberrisser,

is adorned with mural paintings relating to the 'Landshuter Hoch-
zeit' (see above). In front of the Rathaus stands a bronze statue of

King ^Laximiliaa II. (PL 3), by Beruhard (1868).

The Residenz (PL C, 3, 4), or royal palace, opposite the Rathaus,

was begun by German architects in the Renaissance style in 1536,

and completed by Italian architects iu 1643. The E. facade was
remodelled iu 1780. The main W. building has an open colonnade
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on the side next the court and a closed fagade towards thcLand-Str.

The rooms have vaulted stucco ceilings and frescoes. Custodian in

the portal to the right (ticket 20 pf.). — Adjoining the palace,

No. 81, is the Pappenberg house, with an interesting court. —
To the W. of the 'Altstadt', at the end of the Theater-Gasse, is

the Land-Tor (PL 5; C, 4), with the Collections of the Historical

^Society (Sun. 11-12; keeper next door).

Farther S. in the 'Altstadt' is the *.SV. Martins-Kirr/ieiVl. C, 4),

a late-Gothic brick cliurch with slender pillars, begun before 1392
by Meister Hans Stethaiiuer of ]»urghausen and completed about

1432. On the W. side is a tower (435 ft. high) erected ca. 1500,

one of the highest mediaeval church-towers in Germany. The por-

tals are elaborately decorated. Outside the S. wall, protected by
a railing, is the tomb of Hans Ijjtethaimer, with his bust and a

figure of the Saviour. Inside the chief points of interest are the

pulpit with its stone canopy (1422), a large wooden crucifix (ca.

1500; left of the W. portal), and the stone high-altar (1424).

Xearly opposite St. Martin's, on the ^V. side of the 'Altstadt',

is the old House of the Estates (PL 4; C, 4), with late 16th cent,

frescoes of the Bavarian sovereigns from Otho I. to Maximilian I.

(restored). — In the Dreifaltigkeits-Platz is a bronze statue of

Duke Louis the Rich (A. 1479; PL 2, C 4), founder of the university

(p. 226), by Fr. Brugger (1858).

Above the town to the S. (ascent in 8 min. by the Berg-Str.)

rises *Burg Landshut or Trausnitz (1520 ft.; PL C, 5), an old

castle begun by Duke Louis of Kelheini in 1204 (comp. p. xxviii),

and the residence down to 1503 of the Dukes of Bayern-Landshut.

Conradin, the last of the Hohenstaufen, was born at the neighbour-

ing castle of Wolfstein (now a ruin) in 1252, and spent a part of his

childhood at tlie Trausnitz. The building now contains the archives;

part of the top fioor has been fitted up for tlie reception c»l' the King
of Bavaria. Custodian at the second gate, on the left (\ 2"! '^)-

Tlic two maiu hiiildiugs stand at liglit angles to each otlier ami mi
the side facing the court are furuislied with arcades above the ground-
floor (ca. 1.j78). Iu the court is a well, surmounted by a wrought-iron
fraiiiework; the bronze pails (1.5.')8J are now kept inside the castle. The
mural paintings on the "Xarren-Treppe' (fools' staircase) represent scenes
from the Italian comedy. Some of the apartments were painted in the
Renaissance style in 1577-80 from designs by Fr. Sustris. The late-

Romanesque chapel (restored) is a part of the original structure. It

contains interesting seated figures in stucco of Christ, the Virgin, and the
Apostles (on the balustrade of the choir), a relief of the Annunciation, mural
paintings (in the altar-recess), and a 'Sakramentshituschen' (p. 170^ of 1471.

We may descend from the castle through the Hof- Garten
(PL D, 4), a public park with shady walks on the E. slope of the

hill. Thence we either go 8. to Hofberg (p. 232) or N. to the "Xeu-

stadt', at the S. end of which is the old Jesuit Church (PL C, 4),

completed in 1640 and containing a large high -altar. — The
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St. Jodok'Kirche (PI. D, 3, 4), a brick edifice of ca. 1338, contains

the tomb of P. vou Altenhaus, in red marble (early 16tli cent.; in

the baptistery). — The old Dominican Chnrch (PI. D, 3) contains

interesting choir-stalls behind the high-altar.

Beyond the Trausnitz, 20 min. from the town (via the Hof-

Grarten, p. 231), lies the village of Hofberg (Hot. Mariawaberli,

a summer resort with an early-Gothic parish-church. — Fine view

of the town and valley from the garden-restaurant on the Klausen-
berg (beyond PI. A, 6). 25 min. S.W. of the town, reached by following

the Freising high-road to the flood -arch of the Rott-Tal railway,

and ascending to the left immediately beyond it.

Branch -line X. to (ITV-i M-) Rottenhurg an der Grossen Laber,
whence an omu. plies daily in l-V^ hr. to (7 M.) Rohr (p. 214).

From Landshut to Landau, 30 M., railway in 3/4-IV4 ^^'-i the shortest
route from Munich to Eisenstein a«d Prague, also used by expresses to

Vienna via Passau. — The line descends along the left bank of the Isar.
— 18 M. Dingolflng, on the right bank, with a handsome parish-church
of 1467. — "VVe next traverse the Dingolfinger Isar-Moos. — 26 M. PUsting
(p. 355). — 30 M. Landau an d^r Isar (p. 3.55).

From Laxdshut to Xeumarkt ax der Rott , 2i M. , railway in

IV4 hr., used by the direct trains from Hof and Hatisbon to Miihldorf
and Salzburg (Trieste). — We cross the Isar. — At (81/2 M.) Geisen-
hausen the Kleine ViU is crossed. — 131/.2 M. Vilsbiburg (1475 ft. ; Hot.
zur Post), with 3100 inhab., on the Grosse Vils. — At (171/2 M-) -4/cft

we cross the Bina. — 24 M. Neumarkt an der Rott (p. 355).

The Munich line ascends the left bank of the Isar. — 261 M.
GUndlkofen. To the left is Schloss Kronwinkel. — 263 M. Briick-

herg, with a small Schloss to the right of the line; then on the right

Schloss Isareck. The Amper is crossed near its junction with the

Isar. — 267 M. Mooshurg (1380 ft.; Hot. zur Alten Post), an an-

cient town with 3550 inhabitants. The Romanesque church contains

a late-Gothic high-altar, 50 ft. high, with sculptures by Hans Leiu-

berger (ca. 1520). Omn. to Erdiug, see p. 338. — The Alps become
visible on the left. - 272 M. Langevhavh. Branch-line to (22' '2 M.)

Mainhurg (p. 227).

2771/2 M. Freising (1380 ft.: Rail. Restaurant; Bayerischer
Hof; Furtnerbrau, R. 1 -Jl 20 pf.-2 .,#), a town with 15,000 inhab.

on the left bank of the Isar, is the seat of an episcopal see (now the

archbishopric of Munich-Freising and located in Munich) founded
in 724 by St. Corbiniau. — A few paces from the station we take

the Miincheuer Str. to the right and cross the Moosach. After
10 min. we ascend the Obere Domberg-Gasse to the right to (3 min.)

the Dom-Platz. Opposite rises the Klerikal-Seminar , with early-

German paintings, sculptures, etc. Through the seminary we enter

the Domhof, with the statue of Bishop Otho of Freising (d. 1158),
the historian of the Hohenstaufen. On the E. rises the Romanesque
Cathedral, with its two towers, double aisles, and galleries, begun
in 1159, provided with a vaulted roof in 1480, and remodelled in

1620-24. In 1723 the interior was decorated by the brothers
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Asam with painting and stucco-work. We should notice the late-

Romanesque inner portal (partly disfigured), the statuettes of Fred-

erick Barbarossa and his wife Beatrix, of 1161 (in the raised vesti-

bule to the left of the entrance), and the quadruple Romanesque
crypt, the vaulting of which rests on round and polygonal columns.

Grothic choir-stalls (1488). The Benedictns-Kirche, connected with

the cathedral by cloisters, contains a stained-glass window of 1891.

From the Domberg we descend E., then W., to the Rathaus in the

Marien-Platz, containing frescoes relating to the history of the

town (1912). — About 20 min. W. lies the old abbey of Weihen-
stephan (1625 ft.), now an agricultural college (restaurant).

2917., M. Schleissheim ^p. 303). — 303 M. Munich.

33. Munich.
Kailway Stations, (l) Baupt-Bahnhof (PL D, E, 5, II; restaurant

;

p. 245), forming a terminus for most of the lines. Omnibuses of the
larger hotels meet the trains here. — (2) Starnberger Bahnfiof (PI. D,
E, 5 ; II), on the N". side of the Haupt-Bahnhof , for the trains to Starn-
berg, Murnau, Partenkirehen, Oberammergau, and Kochel. Xew building
under construction. — (3) Isartal-Bahnhof (PI. D 8, I: restaurant), for
the line to Wolfratshausen and Kochel (R. 39a). — (4) Sud-BahnTiof
(PI. D, 8; /) and (5) Ost-Bahnhof (Vl. H, 7; /), supplementary stations for
the Rosenheim and Miihldorf lines (R. 43, 44b). — A new station for the
Holzkirchen line is being built on the S. side of the Haupt-Bahnhof. —
Porter from the station to a cab, 20 pf. up to 110 lb., 40 pf. up to
220 lb. Outside porter for luggage up to 55 lb. 40 pf. for 1/4 hr., 20 pf.

each Vl hr. more. The Amtliches Bayrisches Reisebureau (p. 242) conveys
luggage from the stations to the town (up to 110 lb. 1 Jt-, hand-bag 50 pf".\

— Cabs, see p. 236. A fee of 20 pf. is charged for the ticket (Bestell-
marke) securing a cab at the Haupt-Bahnhof.

Hotels (charges are written up in each room ; rooms should be engaged
beforehand in the season). Of the highest class : *Vier Jahreszeiten (PI. a.

F, 5, 6; 77), Maximilian-Str. 4, with restaurant (p. 235), American bar, and
telegraph, railwav, and luggage offices, R. 5-12 (with bath from IS), B. 2,

L. 3-41/2. D. (6-8 p.m.) 6, S. (8-11.30 p.m.) 31/2-41/2, P. (Oct.-April) 9-15,

omn. 11/2 .€: *Gr.-H6t. Continental (PI. e, E 5; 77), Otto-Str. 6, with
American bar, telegraph office, and garden, R. from 5 (with bath from 12),

B. 2, L. (12-2 p.m.) 41/3, D. (6-8 p.m.) 6, P. (Oct.-June) from 12, omn.
(inel. luggage) V/oJC; *R^'gina-Palast-Hotel (PI. r p, E 5 ; 77), Maxirailians-
Platz 5, with American bar, R. 7-20, B. li/o, L. (12-2 p.m.) 4, D. (6-9 p.m.) 6.

S. (7-11 p.m.) 4, P. (in winter only) from' 12, omn. IJC; Bayerischer Eof
(PI. b, F 5 ; 77), Promenade-Platz 19, with American bar, R. 5-15 (with
bath from 10), B. I1/2, L. 4, D. (1 p.m.) 4, P. from 13, omn. 1 JC: *H6t.
rle Russie (PI. ^, E 5; 77), Otto-Str. 4, with American bar, R. 5-12 (with
bath from 10), B. P/^. L. 3-4i/,. D. (6-8 p.m.) 6, omn. l^joJC; *Gr.-H6t.
Bellevue (PI. c, E 5 ; 77), Karls" Platz 25, R. from 5. B. IVa" D. 5, P. from
13 JC; *Excelsior, Schiitzen-Str. 5 (PI. E, 5, 6), R. 4-10. B. l'/*. T). 2-lJK. --

LSlightly less pretentious: *Rheinisc?i€r Hof (PI. d, E, 5. 6; 77). Bayer-
Str. 23, near. the Haupt-Bahnhof, R. 4-7, B. li/.,, D. 3-5^; *Gr.-H6t.
Leinfelder (PI. g, E 5 ; 77). Lenbach-Platz 9, R" 31/..-8. B. IV2, D. 31/.,.

P. 10-14^, omn. 80 pf. ; *Marienhad (PI. h, E 5 : 77), Barer-Str. 11 , an
old family hotel with garden, R. from 4, B. li/o. D. 31/2. P. 10-12 .^;
*Park-Hotel (PI. Jc, E5; 77), Maximilians-Platz 21, R. 4-12 (with bath
from 8), B. li/g, D. (1-3 p.m) 4, in the restaurant 3-5, P. from 10, omn.
1 JC; *Gr.-H6t. Grunwdld (PI. w, E 5; 77), Hirtcn-Str. 25, near the
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Haupt-Bahnhof, R. 21/2-4, B. IJl, 20 pf., D. (12-2.30 p.m.) 21/2-31/2, P-

from 9 ^.
In the Bayer -Stk., S. of the Haupt-Bahnhof: No. 31, *Hdt. de

VEurope (PI. 1, E 6 ; //), R. 21/2-7, B 1 c^ 20 pf
.

, D. 31/2-5.*;; No. 43,
* Terminus; No. 9, Habsburg (PL I, E, 5, 6 ; //) : No. 37, Gassner (PI.

c, E 6; //); No. 41, Metropol (PI. (7, D 6; II), R. 2i/,-4, B. 1 ^20pf.,
D. IV2-2V2 -*; ^0. 47, Wittelsbach (PL f, D 6; //); No. 45, Post (PL e,

D 6; II). — In the Arnulf-Str., N. of the Haupt-Bahnhof: Nos. 6-8,

*National-8Immen (PL «, D 5; //) , R. 2-31/2, B. 1, D. 2-3, P. 6-SJC;
No. 2, Deutscher Kaiser (PL r, E 5 ; II), R. 2-5, B. 1 J6; No. 4, TFoiyf

(PL 6, E 5; //); Nos. 16-18, Central (PL Zi, D 5; //), good; No. 22,

Sdchsischer Eof (PL i, D 5 ; //). — Between the Haupt-Bahnhof and
the Karls-Px-atz : Kaiserhof (PL p, E 5; II), Schiitzen-Str. 12, R. 2 <^
20pf.-4, B. 1, D. IV2-3, V.l JC; ^Schotteithamel (PL v, E 5; //), corner
of Luitpold-Str. and Prielmaier-Str. ; Schiueizerhof (PL x, E 5 ; II),
Luisen-Str. 1. — In the Karls-Platz: Stachus (PL m, E 6; II), R.
21/.2-7, B. li/i, D. 2-4, P. 8JC; *Roter Hahn (PL y, E 6; II), R. 23/^-6,

B. 1^ 20 pf., D. 21/2, P. 9-12 ^; Hot. Karlsplatz (PL i>, E 6; II), R.
2-3 Ji. — In the Inner City: ^Enijlischer Hof (PL f, F 6; II), Diener-
Str. 11, R. 3-6, B. 1^ 20 pf., D. 3-5, S. 21/3-31/0, omn. 1 Ji; *Deutscher
Hof (PL t, E 6; //), Neiihauser Str. 40, R. 21/0-6, D. (12-3 p.m.) 2-4 c^;
Bamberger Hof (PL 0, E 6; II), Neuhauser Str. 25-28, R. 1 .^ 80 pf.-4,

B. 1, B.SJ^; Savoij (PL n, E 6 ; //), Herzog-Wilhelm-Str. 32, R. 21/4-4,

B. 1, D. from 11/2^, omn. 60 pf. ; Peterhof (PL q, F 6; //), Marien-
Platz 26; Maximilian (PL i, F, 5, 6; //), hotel garni, Maximilian-Str. 44,

2nd floor, R. 2-4, D. 1-1^12 Jl; Hot.-Pens. Astoria, Neuhauser Str. 21,

new. — To the S. of the Karls-Platz: Reichshof (PL u, E 6; //),
Sonnen-Str. 15, R. 21/2-6, B. 1 ^, omn. 60 pf. (motor 1 J^); Wagner
(PL w, E 6; II), Sonnen-Str. 21-23, with a concert-hall, R. 2-5 (with bath
from 6), B. 1, D. 2i!.,JC, omn. 80 pf. ; Ring-Hotel (PL ri, E6;//), Send-
lingertor-Platz 1, R. 2-5, B. 1, D.IJC 20-2 ^ 50 pf. — To the S. of the
Bayer-Str. : Herzog Heinrich (PL he, E 6; //) , Landwehr-Str. 9, R.
from 1 JC 80 pf. ; Germania (PL ge, E 6: //), Schwanthaler-Str. 28; Vrei
Raben (PL 5, E 6; //), Schiller-Str. 6; Bavaria, Schiller-Str. 10, corner of
Schwanthaler-Str. ; Schwarzer Adler, Schiller-Str. 32 (PL E, 6 ; 77) ; Stutt-

garterHof, Mars-Str. 2 (PL D, 5; 77); FranTciscTierEof, Senefelder-Str.
2-3 (PL E, 6; 77); Viktoria (PL vi, E 7; 77), Lindwurm-Str. 23-25. —
Baseler Hof (PL k, E, F, 5; 77), a hospice, Pranner-Str. 11, R. 2-5^,
well spoken of; Christliches Hospiz, Mathilden-Str. 4-5 (PL E, 6; 77), R.
11/2-3 JC, B. 80 pf., D. 1 ^ 10 pf. ; Union (PL 0, E 5; 77), Catholic, Barer-
Str. 7, R. 3-4, B. i, D. IV2-2V2 -«•

Pensions. Arcis-Str. (PL E, 5, 4; 77): No. 44, Thzirner, P. A-h JC.

— Barer-Str. (PL F, 5 ; 77) : No. 38, Finckh, 5-8 J^. — Bayer-Str. (PL D,
E, 6, 5; 77): No. 25, Jugend, 5-8 JC. — Brienner-Str. (PL E, F, 4, 5; 77):
No. 8, Toussaint, 6-10^; No. 9, Beausejottr , 1-12 JC. — Galerie-Str,
(PL F, 5; 77): No. 11, Podlech, 5-7 Ji. — Herzog -Rudolf -Str. (PL F,
G, 5, 77): No. 30, Hansa, 5-7 ^. — Herzogspital-Str. (PL E, 6; 77):
No. 14, Wild, 4-6 JC. — Herzog-Wilhelm-Str. (PL E, 6; 77): No. 12,
Austria, 5-6 c^. — Hess-Str. (PL E, 4; 7): No. 26, Grvber, 5-7 c^;No. 30,
Waltenberg, 4 .« 70 pf.-8 Ji. — Jager-Str. (PL F, 5; 77): No. 1, Dietrich,
6-8 Ji. — Kanal-Str. (PL F, 6 ; 77) : No. 38, SicTcel, 5-71/2 JC. — Karl-Str.
(PL D, E, 5; 77): No. 28, Mainz, A-lJt. — Ludwig-Str. (PL F, 5,4; 77):
No. 22 a, GartenJieim, 7-14 .«. — Luisen-Str. (PL E, 5 ; 77) : No. 50, Burger,
5-7 Ji. — Mathilden-Str. (PL E, 6 ; 77) : No. 10, Nizza , 5-8 cS. — Maxi-
milians-Platz (PL E, F, 5; 77)': No. 8, Liesecke, 8-15 JC; No. 18, Elite,
6-12 JC. — Maximilian-Str. (PL F, G 6 ; 77) : Nos. 5-6, Glocker, 5-8 Ji;
No. 20b, Bucher, b^j^-l JC. — Neuhauser Str. (PL E, 6; 77): No. 21,
Astoria, R. 2-7, B. 1 .^. — Prinz- Ludwig-Str. (PL E, 5; 77): No. 5,

Beckenbauer, 6-12 JC; No. 7, Stella, 6-10 JC. — Schelling-Str. (PL E, F,
3, 4; 7): No. 1, Berg, i JC 80pf.-7 ^; No. 10, Sibin, b-6 JC. — Schwan-
thaler-Str. (PL D, E, 6 ; 77) : No. 79, Reichskrone, 4-8 JC. — Sonnen-Str.



Notes. MUJSIICH. 33. Roxdc. 235

(PI. E, 6 ; //) : No. 6, Helios, from ^ JC. — Von der Tann-Str. (PI. F,

5; II): No. 22, Tann, dVa-? JC. — Thercsien-Str. (PL E, F, 4; 7/):
No. 19, Amalia, i-bJC; No. 30, Bellevue, 5-7 J6; No. 82, Qicisisana, 6-8 JC.

— Tiirken-Str. (PI. F, i, 5; 77): No. 6, Washeim, 5-9 Ji; No. 35, Bristol
(English), 4-6 .^. — Wittelsbacher Platz (PI. F, 5; 77): No. 2, Grehencni,
5-9 JC; No. 3, Steinnuinn, 5-8 «^.

Caf^s-Restaurants (beer in all). At many of the huteLs and Avine-

restaurants ; Luitpold (PI. F, 5 ; 77), Brienner-Str. 8, near the Wittels-
bacher Platz, D. 2-3 JC: 'Terrassen- Restaurant' at the Reqiym-Palost-
Hotel (p. 233), D. 3 JC; Hot. de Riissie (p. 233), D. 2^kJC; Hot. Excelsior
(p. 233); Hof-Theater, Residenz-Str. 12 (PI. F, 5; 77), D. from l^j^JC;
Preysing - Palais (p. 257), Residenz-Str. 27; Neue Borse, Maximilians-
Platz 8 (PI. E, F, 5 ; 77), D. 1 c^ 20 pf.-3 JC; Heck. Galerie-Str. 2 (PI. F, 5

;

77), by the Hof-Garten; Thomasbrdu (Domhofj, Kaufinger Str. 15 (PI. E,
F, 6; 77); Kaiserhof (p. 234). D. from 1 ^M 20 pf. ; Viktoria, Maximilian-
Str., corner of Thiersch-Str. (PI. G, 6 ; 77), D.IJC: Deutscher Ilof (p. 234)

;

Peterhof{\>. 234); Deutsches Theater (PI. E, 6; 77), Schwanthaler-Str. 13;
Orient, Sonnen-Str. 26 (PI. E, 6; 77), corner of Schwanthaler-Str. ; Modern,
Theresien-Str. 80 (PI. E, 4 ; 7) , opposite the Technische Hochschule ; Deut-
sches Haus, Sophien-Str. la, corner of Lenbach-Platz (PI. E, 5; 77). —
Automatic Restaurants. Karls-Platz (PL E, 5. 6; 77); Neuhauser Str. 3

(PL E, 6 ; 77) ; Theatiner-Str. 47 (PL F, 5 ; 77) ; Reichenbach-Str. 39 (PL F.
6, 7; 77). — Yeoetarian Restaurants. Ethos, Otto-Str. 1 (PL E, 5;

77); Ceres, Lowengrube 8 (PL E, F, 5, 6; 77); Vegetarisches Speisehaiis,
Schraudolph-Str. 2a (PL E, F, 4, 3: 7); Vegetarierheim, Turken-Str. 24

(PL F, 4, 5; 77).

Wine Restaurants. First-class: *Vier Jahreszeiten (p. 233; entr.

Marstall-Str.), with American bar; Schleich, with the Odeon Bar (artis-

tically fitted up), Brienner-Str. 4-5 (PL F, 5; 77); *Fest. Francais, at the
Cafe Luitpold (see above). — Less pretentious, but good: Park- Hotel
(p. 233), Kiinstlerhaus (p. 249), Lenbach-Platz 8 (PL E, 5; 77), D. 2V-,-

31/2 '^, beer also in both ; Ratskcller (p. 248). entr. Diener-Str. ; Kunsl-
geiccrbe-Hatis (p. 250); Eberspacher, Pfandhaus-Str. 7 (PL E, 5; 77);
Eckel, Burg-Str. 17 (PL F, 6; 77): Kurtz, Augustincr-Str. 1 (PL E. F. 6

;

77), D. 1 ^/K 70 pf.-2 JC 20 pf
.

; Heidelberger Pass, Brauhaus-Str. 4 (PL F,
H; 77); Neuner, HerzogspitaLStr. 20 (PL E, 6; 77); Torggel-Stube, in the
Platzl, near the Hofbrauhaus (PL F, 6; 77). — Continental Bodega,
Maffei-Str. 4 (PL F, 5; 77); Ristorantc ItaUano al Bersaglicre, Isartor-
Platz 3 (PL F, 6; 77).

Beer Houses (beer on draught; comp. under cafes -restaurants).

Hofbrdnhatcs (PL F, 6, 77; p. 251), in the Platzl, frequented by all

classes (no waiters on the ground-floor; on the first floor is the' 'Triuk-
Stube' ; on the second floor the 'Festsaal', with orchestra on Tues. and
Thurs.); Bauerngirgl, Residenz-Str. 20 (PL F, 5; 77), D. 1-2 JC: Biirger-
hrdu, Kaufinger Str. 6 (PL E, F, 6; 77); Augustinerhrdu, Pschorrbrdu.
Bamberger Hof (Spatenbriiu; D. IV2 ^), Neuhauser Str. 16, 11, and 26
(PL E 6, 77) ; Paulanerbrdu, Kaufinger Str. 11-12 (PL E, F, 6 ; 77). D.
1 .<«; 20 pf.-2c.«; Franziskaner. Residenz-Str. 9 (PL F, 5; 77); Mathdscr
Bierhallen, Bayer-Str. 5 (PL D, E, 5, 6; 77), popular. Near the Pinako-
theken (PL E, 4; 7): Lohengrin, Tiirken-Str. 50 (PL F, 4, 5; 7); Wittels-
bacher Garten, Theresien-Str. 38, near the Tiirken-Str., D. ^U-VJo^/C. —
Pilsner Urquell, Sporer-Str. 2 (PL F, 6; 77). — 'Weissbier": Schneider
Jj Sohn, corner of the Tal and Maderbriiu-Str. (PL F, 6; 77). " *»'

The large 'Bierkeller' in the suburbs, belonging to the Munich brew-
eries, attract numerous visitors on summer evenings (band-music) : they
generally possess gardens and fair restaurants. Lowenbrdu-Keller (PL D,
4; 7), Stiglmaier-Platz, with a terrace-garden and a lars:e concert -room
military baud every evening^ -- On the rigiit bank of the Isar: Hof-
hrduhaus-Keller (PL G, 6; 7/), Innere Wiener-Str. 12, near the Maxi-
milianeum; Franziskaner-KcUer (PL G, 7; 7), Hoch-Str. 7, with a fine

15*
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view-terrace ; Milnchner Khidl-Keller (PI. G, 7 ; II), Rosenheimer Str. 20,

with a large concert-room; Bilrgerbrdit-KeUer (PI. Gr, 7; II), Rosen-

heimer Str. 29 ; Eherl-Faher-Keller (PI. G-, 7 ; II), Rosenheimer Str. 17

;

Gasteig-Keller (PI. G-, 6, 7; //), Gasteig 1; Maximilians-Keller (Ster-

neckerbrau), AuBere Prinzregenten-Str. 15 (PI. H, 5; I), near the Prinz-

regenten-Theater. — Augustiner-Keller (PI. D, 5; 7), Herbst-Str. 1; Spa-

ten-Keller (PI. D, 6; I), Baycr-Str. 109; Hacker - Keller and Bavaria-

Keller (Pschorrbrau), Theresien-Hohe (PL D, 6 ; I); Thomasbrdu-Keller,
Kapuziuer-Platz 5 (PI. D, E, 7; /) ; Kochelbrdu-Keller (PL D, 8; 7),

Schmied von Kochel-Str. — In the breweries and beer-gardens the beer

is served in earthenware mugs holding a litre ('Mass'), in the restau-

rants in glasses containing 1/2 ot 1/4 litre. Specially strong kinds of

beer are drunk at certain seasons only: Salvator, for a week from the

Sun. before March 19th, at the Salvator-Keller (PL F, 8 ; 7), Hoch-Str. 49,

and the Kolosseums - Bierhalle , Balan-Str. 75 (PL G, H, 7, 8 ; 7), both

in the suburb of Au; Bock (first introduced from Einbeck in the 16th

cent.), at the beginning of May and Corpus Christi (usually 7-9.30 a.m.

only), at the Hofbrduhaus (p. 235), etc. The season for the strong,,

well-matured Mdrzenbier begins at the time of the Oktober-Fest (p. 239).

Caf6s (mostly closed in the evening; cafes-restaurants, see p. 235).

Central, Brienner-Str. 53 (PL E, F, 5 ; 77) ; Parade, Ludwig-Str. 4 (PL F,

5; 77); Prinz- Regent, Prinzregenten-Str. 4 (PL F, G, 5; 77); Odeon,
Brienner-Str. 56 (PL E, F, 5; 77); Plendl, Rosen- Str. 11 (PL F, 6; 77);
Filrstenhof, Keuhauser Str. 21 (PL E, 6; 77); Palast-Cafe, Theatiner-

Str. 16 (PL F, 5; 77); Cafe Rathaus, Marien-Platz, corner of Diener-Str.

(PL F, 6; 77); 7%eater-Cafe, adjoining the Kiinstler-Theater (PL C, 6; 7),

in summer only; Bauknecht, Helbig, Arkaden, all in the arcades of the

Hof-Garten (PL F, 5; 77), with seats outside in summer; Glasl, corner

of Theresien-Str. and Amalien-Str. (PL F, 4; 77); Dom-Cafe, S. side of

the Frauen-Platz (PL F, 6; 77); Borsen-Cafe, Maflfei-Str. 3 (PL F, 5; 77);
Orlando di Lasso, Platzl 4 (PL F, 6 ; 77) ; Perzel, Marien-Platz 13 (PL F,

6; 77): Karlstor, Neuhauser Str. 34 (PL E, 6; 77); Union, Herzogspit^l-

Str. 12 (PL E, 6; 77); Schelling, Schelling-Str. 56 (PL F, 4; 7).

Confectioners. Regina-Palast-Hotel (p. 233), with orchestra in the

afternoon; Ceylon Tea Rooms, at the Hot. Maximilian (p. 234), fashion-

able ; Trautniann & Vokt, Promenade-Platz 14 (PL F, 5 ; 77) ; Eyerich,
Maffei-Str. 4 (PL F, 5; 77); Tcichlein, Kaufinger Str. 34; Haaser, Thea-
tiner-Str. 23 ; Griebel, Residenz-Str. 26 (PL F, o;II); Bernhard, Theresien-
Str. 25 (PL F, 4; 77); Gocht, Maximilian-Str. 32 (PL F, G, 6; 77). —
WitkowskVs Cocoa Rooms, Karls-Platz 7 (PL E, 5, 6; 77).

Baths. *Stddtisches Karl-Milller-Volksbad (PL G, 6, 77; p. 301) with
vapour-baths and swimming-baths, open till midday on Sun. ; Konigliches
Hofbad or MaxAmiliansbad (PL F, 6; 77), Kanal-Str. 19, with swimming-
baths ; Luisenbad, Luisen-Str. 67 (PL E, 4, 5 ; 77) ; Marienbad (p. 233)

;

Giselabad, Muller-Str. 2 (PL E, F, 6, 7 ; 77). — River-baths in the Wurm

:

Stddtisches JJngererbad (PL G, 1 ; 7), Ludioigsbad (PL G, 1 ; 7), both at

Schwabing. — Gernbad, Gern 8. — Steiner-Bad at Pasing (p. 303).

Cabs. Many of the cab-drivers and chauffeurs speak English. The
radius of the taximeter cabs extends for nearly 3 M. from the Marien-
Platz (PL F, 6; 77). Night tariff from 10 p.m. to 6 a.m. Tickets at the

Haupt-Bahnhof, see p. 233. Luggage under 22 lb. free; above that, 20 pf.

for every 55 lb.

Taximeter Cabs (with one horse). Within the cab-district, and from
points outside the cab-district to points within, 1-2 pers., 800 metres
70 pf., each 400 m. more 10 pf. ; 3 pers. 600 m. 70 pf., each 300 m. more
10 pf . At night, and by day to a point outside the calD-district, 1-3 pers.

400 m. 70 pf., each 200 m. more 10 pf. — Waiting before the beginning of

the drive, 6 min. 70 pf., each 3 min. more 10 pf

.

MoTOii Cabs. For 1-:! pers. by day within the cab-district, or from
points outside the cab-district to points within (same fares, at night),
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900 metres 90 pf., each 300 m. more 10 pf. ; for 1-3 pers. at night within
the cab-district, and for 4-5 pers. by day within the cab-district or (same
fares at night) from points outside to points within, 600 m. 90 pf., each
200 m. more 10 pf. ; to a point out.side, or for 4-5 pers. at night witliin

the cab-district, 450 m. 90 pf., each 150 m. more 10 pf.'— Waiting before
the beginning of the drivQ, 6 min. 90 pf., each 2 min. more 10 pf.

Fiacres (with two horses ; few in summer), 1-4 pers. Vi hr. 1 Ji 20 pf.,

each 1/4 hr. more 70 pf
.

; 5-6 pers. 1 .^ 30 pf . and 80 pf . Double fares at night.

Circular Drives (2 hrs.) in Mav-Sept., starting at 9.30, 9.45, 2.30, and
3.15 (in July and Aug. at 9.15 and 4.30 also) from the Bahnhof-Platz (PI. K,
5; //) and 1/4 hr. later from the Lenbach-Platz (PI. E, 5; II); tickets (AJi)

at the starting-points, the Fremden- Verkehrsverein, and the Amtliches
Bayrisches Reisebureau (p. 242). The latter organizes also circular drives
in motor-cars, starting at 9 and 2.15 from the office in the Promenade-Platz
(whole day 20, morning 10, afternoon 12 ..*). — Circular drive in a horse-
cab (no stoppages) for 1-2 pers. 5 Ji 40, 3 or more pers. 6 cS 70 pf. ; in

a motor-cab for 1-3 pers. 7 tS, for 4-5 pers. 9 cS 80 pf. ; tickets at tlie

Fremdeu-Verkehrsverein, the kiosk in the Lenbach-Platz, etc.

Tramways (10-20 pf., except for Xos. 18 and 25). The cars are
marked by numbers corresponding with those in the following list. At
the halting-places the numbers of the cars which pass these points are
posted up. The name-plates of the cars which traverse the Bahnhofs-
Platz are distinguished by a transverse red bar. Plan-references are to

the larger plan at p. 233. — 1 (blue lamp). From Nymphenhtirg (Xot-
burga-Str. ; PL A, 3) via the Stiglmaier-Platz (PI. D, E, 4), Haupt-Bahnh<.f
(PI. E. 5), Marien-Platz (PL F, 6), and Ludwigs-Brticke (PL G, 6, 7^ to the
Ost-Bahnhof{Vl.R, 7). — 2 (red). N. Ring Line: From the Hanpt-Bahnhor
(PL E, 5) via the Sendlingertor-Platz (PL E, 6), Isartor-Platz (PL F, G,
Maximilian Monument, Galerie-Str. (PL G, F, 5 ; near the National Museum 1,

Ludwig-Str. (PL F, 5), Theresien-Str. (PI. F, E, 4; Pinakotheks) , and
Augusten-Str. to the Eaupt-Bahnhof. — 3 (green). From the Arnulf-Str.
(PI. D, 5) via the Haupt-Bahnhof, Lenbach-Platz (PL E, 5), Odeons-Platz
(PL F, 5), Ludwig-Str. (PL F, 5, 4) , and Leopold-Str. (PL F, G. 3) to
Schicabing (Feilitzsch-Str. ; PL G, 2). — 4 (red and yellow). From tlie

Ost-Bahnhof (PI. H, 7) via the Maximilianeum (PL G, 6), Promenade-Platz
(PL F, 5), Karl-Str. (PL E, 5), and Neuhausen (PL C, B, 4, 3) to the West-
Friedhof (PL B, 1). — 5 (white). From the Marien-Platz (PL F, 6; Heilige
Geist-Kirche) via the Reichenbach-Briicke (PL F, 7) to the Candid-Phitz
(PL E, 9). — 6 (white and blue). From Schwabing (Belgrad-Str. ; PL F, 2)

via the Barer- Str. (PL F, E, 4, 5; Pinakotheks), Sendlingertor-Platz
(PL E, 6), Goethe-PJatz (PL D, 7), and Sendliug to Thalkirchen (p. 325;
Hofmann-Str. ; beyond PI. C, 10). — 7 (green and red~i. From the Georgen-
Str. (PL E, 3) via" the Haupt-Bahnhof, Sendlingertor-Platz (PL E, 6), and
Frauuhofer-Str. (PL F, 7) to the Ost-Friedhof (PL G, 8). — 9 (yellow..

From the Landsberger-Str. (Barth-Str. ; PL B, 5) via the Haupt-Bahnln.f
(PL E, 5), Marien-Platz (PL F, 6\ Ludwigs-Brucke (PL G, 6, 7), and Wiener
Platz (Prinzregenten-Theater ; PL H, 5, 6) to Bogenhausen (PL H, 4, 5). —
10 (yellow and green). From Schicabing (Feilitzsch-Str. ; PL G, 21 via the

Leopold-Str. (PL G, F, 3), Odeons-Platz (PL F, 5\ Marien-Platz (PL F, 6).

Sendlingertor-Platz (PL E, 6), and Siid-Friedhof (PL E, 7) to the Isarial-

Bahnhof (PL D, 8). — 11 (blue and green). From Neuhausen ^Rotkreuz-
Platz; PL C, 4) via the Haupt-Bahnhof (PL E, 5), Marien-Platz (PI. F, 6),

and Ludwigs-Briicke to the Ost-Bahnhof (PL H, 7). — 12 (violet). S. Ring
Line: From the Haupt-Bahnhof {V\. E, 5) via the Goethe-Platz (PL D, 7),

Giesingerberg (PL F, 8. 9), Ost-Friedhof (PL F, 8), Maximilianeum (PL G, Hi,

and Promenade-Platz (PL F, 5) to the Haicpt-Bahnhof. — 13 (violet and
green). From Schicabing (Nord-Friedhof ; PL G, H, 1) via the Leopold-
Str. (PL G, F, 3), Odeons-Platz (PL F, 5), and Maximilians-Platz (PL F, E, 5)

to the Haupt-Bahnhof (Arnulf-Str. ; PL E, 5). — 16 (white and green).

From Schicabing (Belgrad-Str. ; PI. F, 2) via the Barer-Str. (PI. F, E, 4, 5:
Pinakotheks), Karls-Platz (PI. E, 5, 6), Sendlingertor-Platz (PI. E, 6) and
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Goethe-Platz (PL D, 7) to Sendling (Forstem-ieder Str. ; PI. C, 8, 9), going
on to Holzapfelkreuth (comp. No. 18) in the afternoons. — 17 (blue and
red). From Schivabing (Hoheuzollern-Str. ; PI. F, 3) via the Josephs-Platz

(PI. E, 3). Haupt-Bahnhof (PL E. 5), and Goethe-Platz (PL D, 7) to Giesing
(Pilffersheimer-Str. ; PL F, E, 9). — 18 (white and red). From Sendling
(Foi\stenrieder Str. ; PL C, 8, 9) to Holzapfelkreuth (beyond PL C, 8; Wald-
friedhof). — 19 (blue and vellow). From Steinhausen (beyond PL H, 6) via

the Ludwigs-Briicke (PL (>, 6, 7), Marien-Platz (PL F, 6), Haupt-Bahnhof
(PL E, .'i), and Ausstellungs-Park (PL D, C, 6) to the Trappentreu-Str.
(PL C, fi). —24 (whitei. From the KarU-Platz (PL E, 5, 6) via the StigL
rnaier-Platz (PL D, E, 4) to the Dachauer Str. (Leonrod-Str. ; PL D, ?,^. —
25 (white and blue). From the Ost-Friedhof (PL F, 8) via the Grunwalder
Platz (Tierpark Heilabrunn. p. 302) \.o Menterschivaige, Grosshesselohe, and
Grilmcald (p. 30t: bej-ond PL E, 10). — 26 (white and violet). From
the Kolner Flatz (PL F, 1) via the Leopold-Str. (PL G, F, 3>, Odeons-Platz
(PI. F, 5). Marien-Platz (PL F, 6), Sendlingertor-Platz (PL E, 6), Impler-
Str. (PL D, 8, 9), and Thalkirchner Str. (PL D, C, 9, 10) to the Tierpark
Heilabrunn (p. 302). — 29 (green and yellow). From the Karls-Platz
(PL E, 5, 6) to Laim and Pasing (p. 303; beyond PL A, 5). — 30 (green
and violet). From Bogenhausen (Torring-Str. ; PL H, 4) via the Max-
Joseph-Briicke (PL G, H. 41, National Museum, Maximilian Monument,
Isartor-Platz (PL F, 6), and Auen-Str. (PL E, 7, 8) to the Isartal-Bahnhof
(PL D, 8). — 36 (white and redl. From the Kolner Platz (PL F, 1) via the
Leopold-Str., Odeons-Platz (PL F, 5), Marien-Platz (PL F, 6). Sendlingertor-
Platz (PL E, 6), and Impler-Str. to the Gross-Markthalle (Oberlander-Str.

:

PL D, 8), going on to the Tierpark (comp. Xo. 2fi) on Sun. afternoons and
on fine week-davs.

General Post Ofifice (PL F, 5, 6; II) in the Max-Joseph-Platz (poste
restante) and at Bayer-Str. 12, on the S. side of the Haupt-Bahnhof. —
Telegraph Office (PL E, 5; //), Bahnhof -Platz 1; also at the Max-
Joseph-Platz office (entr. Residenz-Str.).

Theatres. Konigliches Hof- v.nd National- Theater (PL F 5, II;
p. 2."i6), performances almost daily (closed in July). Opera prices: 1st row
of the Balkon (dress-circle), 1st and 2nd rows Parkett (stalls) 8-12 JC (plays
<)ci(); 3rd-13th rows of the Parkett, 2nd row of the Balkon, front seat
in a Balkon-Loge (dress-circle box) or in the Erster Rang (upper circle)

6-10 JC fplays 4 JC) ; standing-room in the Parkett 5 JC (plays 3 Jl,) : back
seat in a Balkon-Loge or in the Erster Rang, front seat in the Zweiter Rang
.0-8 ,^ (plays 31/2 JC); gallery 2-3 Ji (1 JC 40 pf.). Performances usually
begin at 7 p.m. (grand operas at 6 p.m.). Box-office open 9-1 and 4-5 (entr.

in the Maximilian-Str.); booking-fee 30 pf. ; tickets aold also at the Amt-
liches Bayrisches Reisebureau. Promenade -Platz Ifi (8-4, Sun. 8-1) and
Haupt-Bahnhof (8-3.30), and at Seyfferth's, Amalien-Str. 17 (8-4, Sun.
9-12).

_— Konigliches Eesidenz- Theater (Fl. F, 5, //; p. 257), where plays
and light operas are performed 3-4 times weekly. Opera prices: Parkett,
front seat in a Parterre-Loge (pit-box) or in the'Erster Rang (dress-circle)
5-10 ,^; back seat in a Parterre-Loge or in the Erster Rang 4.-GJC; front
seat in the Zweiter Ran? fupper circle) 3i/->-5 JC; front seat in the Drifter
Rang (gallery) 21/2-4.^. Prices for plays f Parkett-Fauteuil 5JC; Erstes
Parkett (lst-6th rows), front seat in a Parterre-Loge or in the Erster Rang
4c-«; Zweites Parkett (7th-10th rows'), back seat in a Parterre-Loge or in
the Erster Rang 3 JC; front seat in the Zweiter Rang 21/2 ^^.' Parterre
(lst-3rd rows), back seat in the Zweiter Rang 2 JC. Tickets as for the
Hof-Theater. Performances begin at 7.30 p.m. — Prinzregenten- Theater
(PL H, 5, 6, /; p. 299), for "Wagner operas in Aug. and Se.pt., with con-
cealed orchestra and amphitheatrical auditorium ; seat 25 JC 40 pf. Tickets
at the Amtliches Bayi-isches Reisebureau (booking -fee 2^4!;) and at the
box-office of the Hof-Theater. Performances besrin at 4 or 5 p.m. —
Theater am Gartner-Platz (PL F, 6, 7, /; p. 301),^ for operettas : front
row of the Erster Rang (dress-circle) 4 ^S 20. Parkett 2 JC 30-4 JC 20 pf.
Tickets at the box-office (open 9-1 and 4-6). at the kiosk in the Lenbach-
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Platz, at Hieber's, Marien-Platz 18, and at Seyfiferth's (p. 238 ; open 8-5).

Performances usually begin at 7.30 p.m. — Schauspielhaus (PI. F, 6, II;
p. 251), Maximilian-Str. 34-35; Parkett 1 ew<f 75-4 ^ 70 pf. Tickets as for

the Gartner-Platz Theatre. — Kunstler- Theater (PI. C 6, /; p. 300), in

the Ausstellungs-Park, for plays and comedies, open in summer only
(tickets at the Amtliches Bayrisches Reisebureauj. — Lustsjnelhaus

,

Augusten-Str. 89 (PI. E, 4, 5 ; //), daily; seat 60 pf.-4 .« 70 pf. — Volks-
Theater (PI. E, 6; //), Joscphspital-Str. 10a.. — Marioiietten- Theater {PI. E,
6 ; II), Blumen-Str. 29a, on Sun. and Wed. afternoons (closed July Ist-Aug.
15th); also in the Ausstellungs-Park (p. 300) in summer.

Variety Theatres. Deictsches Theater {P\. E, 6; //), Schwanthaler-
Passagc (Parkett 2-21/2-/^); Blumensale (PI. E, 7; II), Blumen-Str. 29;
Kolosseum (PL E, 7 ; //), Kolosseum-Str. 4. — Cabarets. Kleines Theater,
in the Tonhalle (see below; 2-bJC); Bonhonni'ere, at the Kost-Tor (PI. F,

6; II). at 8 p.m. 1-4.^, from 10.30 p.m. to 1a.m. free (cloak-room fee

Vl^JC): Benz, Leopold-Str. 50 (PI. F, G-, 3; /). at 8.30 p.m.
Ice Skating Rink (Xov.-March), Galerie-Str. 26 (PI. F, 5; II).

Military Band daily at middav in the court of the Xew Rathaus
(p. 247; PI. F 6, II) and on Tues., Tlmrs., Fri., and Sun. in the Feld-
herrn-Halle (PI. F 5, //; p. 257). In summer in good weather also every
Mon. and Wed. afternoon from 5 to 6 in the Hof-G-arten (p. 258), and on
Sat. near the Chinese Tower (p. 29.9). — Concert daily in winter at 8 p.m.
at the TonhaUe (formerly the Kaimsaal; PI. E, F, 5, //; with restaurant);

bands also at many of the 'Bier-Keller" (p. 235).

Church Festivals. Music at the Michaels-Hofkirche (p. 246) and
in the Fratien-Kirche (p. 246) on Sun. at 9 a.m.; in the Allerheiligen-
Kirche (p. 257; Nov. -June) at 11 a.m. — On the morning of Corpus
Christi (2nd Thurs. after Pentecost) great procession, shared in by the

court and officials, from the Frauen-Kirche through the chief streets. —
On St. George''s Day (April 23rd) at 11 a.m. procession of the Knights
of St. George in the uniform of their order, through the Kapellenhof
of the Residenz to the old court-chapel, and back at 12.30; at 1p.m.
banquet in a room in the Rcsideiiz through which strangers may pass.

Popular Festivals. During the Carnival (Jan. 7th to Shrove Tues-
day) masked balls ('Redoutcn') are held at the Deutsches Theater, Hot.
Wagner, and Kolosseum. The Dult (rag-fair) is held on the first Sun.
in May and the 3rd Sun. in Oct. in the suburb of An (p. 302), in July in

the suburb of Haidhausen (p. 301). At Whitsuntide a church-wake takes
place at Grosshesselohe (p. 304). The Magdalenen-Fest in Xymphenburg
(p. 300) lasts from July 22nd to July 29th. The Schafftertanz ('coopers'

dance') is celebrated every seven years (next in 1914). The Oktober-Fest,
founded in 1810 on the occasion of the marriage of the crown-prince, later

Louis I., and celebrated on the Theresien-Wicse (p. 300) from the end of

Sept. to the middle of Oct., attracts large crowds of peasants from S,

Bavaria; it includes an agricultural show, horse-races, etc.

Shops. Specimens of industrial art products: Bayerischer Kunst-
geicerhe-Verein (p. 250), Pfandhaus-Str. 7 (8-7; in Sept.-Dec. Sun. also,

10-12); Vereinigte Werkstdttcn fur Kuust im Handiverk (p. 245),

Odeons-Platz 1 (cntr. Brienner-Str. ; also pictures); JVcrkstdtten fi'ir

Wohnungs-Einrichtung, Arcis-Str. 35; Deutsche Werkstattcn fiirHand-
werks-Kimst, in the Arco-Zinneberg Palais (p. 267); GewerbehaUe,
Farber-Graben H/,. — Furniture and decorations: Bemheitner, Len-
bach-Platz 3 (p. 249); Hahn & Bach, Kaufinger Str. 14 (carpets); Possen-
bacher, Brienner-Str. 55; M. Ballhi, Promenade-Platz 7. — Antiquities:

Jicl. Bohler, Brienner-Str. 12; J. Dopplcr, Barer-Str. 12; A. S. Drey,
Maximilians-Platz 7; J. Drey, Maximilians-Platz 18; Einstein & Co.,

Maximilian-Str. 7; H. Helbing. Liebig-Str. 21 (auctions); ^(7. Steinharter,

Residenz -Str. 25. — Paintings, see Art Exhibitions. — Second-hand
Booksellers (old engravings, etc.): J. Halle. Otto- Str. 3a; G. Hess,
Brienner-Str, 9; E. Hirsch. Karl-Str. 6; J.Eosenthal. Brienner-Str. 47;
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L. Rosen'tJial. Lenbacli-Platz 6. — Coins: 0. Helbing, Lenbach-Platz 4;

Dr. Jak. Hirsch, Arcis-Str. 17. —Jewellers: Th. Eeiden, Odeons-Platz 18,

Gr. Merle, Odeons-Platz 13; P. Rath, Theatiner-Str. 37; Schallmayer:

Maximilian-Str. 37 : K. Thomass jun., Kaufinger Str. 37. — Silversmiths

C. Weishaicpt, Marien-Platz 29; Ed. WoUeniveber, Theatiuer-Str. 36. —
Ivory Carvings: A. Diessl, Pfarr-Str. 7 (2nd floor); J. Ziinmermann,
Perusa-Str, 1. — Stained Grlass : BoucM, Ainmiller-Str. 8 ; Ule, Schelling-

Str. 42. ; F. X. Zettler, Brienner-Str. 23 (9-12 and 2-5). —Bronzes: E. Meier,

Promenade-Platz 16. — Pewter: Jos. Lichtinger, Knbbel-Str. 14; Briider

Thannhauser. Kaufinger Str. 7.— Church Ornaments : Mayersche Hofkunst-
anstalt, Stiglmaier-Platz 1 (9-12 and 3-5) ; J. G. Schreihynayr, Frauen-Platz 7.

— Porcelain: Depot of the NymjJhenburg Factory (p. 301), Odeons-Platz 1.

Art Exhibitions. — In the Glas-Palast (p. 261), June-Oct., daily

9-6; 1 ^*. — Exhibition- of the 'Secession^ (p. 244) in the Kunstaus-
stellungs-Gehaude (p. 262), thrice yearly (from the end of Dec. to the

beginning of Feb., in March and April, and from May 15th' to Oct. 31st),

dafly 9-6 ; IJi. — Exhibitio7i of the Munchener Kunstler-Genossenschaft
at the Old National Museum (p. 251), daily 9-6 (Oct.-April 9 to 4 or 5),

Sun. 10-1 ; 50 pf . — Kun&t- Verein (p. 258), daily except Fri. 9-6 (w^inter

10-6), usually closed in the second half of July; V2-I •^- — Permanent ex-

hibitions: BrakVs Kunsthaus (p. 300), Beethoven -Platz 1 (IJC); Julius

Bohler (old paintings), Brienner-Str. 12: Heinemann, Lenbach-Platz 5-6

(1 Ji); Moderne Galerie (Thannhauser), Theatiner-Str. 7 (entr. Maffei-Str.

;

1 Ji) ; Caspari, Brienner-Str. 52 ; 0. Hermes, Promenade-Platz 11 (1 Ji) ;

Fleischmann, Maximilian-Str. 1 ; J. Littauer, Odeons-Platz 2 ; Wim mer & Co.

,

Brienner-Str. 3 (1 ^4). — Gesellschaft fur Christlicke Knnst, Karl-Str. 6.

Tourist Agents. Amtliches Bayrisches Reisebureau, Promenade-
Platz 16 (PI. E, F, 5, //; 7-7, Sun. 7-1) and at the Haupt-Bahnhof (central

building), agents for Messrs. Thos. Cook & Son, theatre-tickets (p. 238),

luggage (p. 233), and tickets for circular drives (p. 237). — Inquiry
Offices. Fremden-Verkehrsverein, at the Haupt-Bahnhof (N. building);

Austrian State Railivays, Wein-Str. 7.

English Church (PI. E 6, II; p. 249). Blumen-Str. ; services on Sun.

at 8.30, 11, and 6: chaplain. Rev. D. Cowling, Karls-Platz 5. — American
Church Service at 11 and 6 in the Salvator-Platz (PI. F, 5; //); chaplain,

Rev. W. W. Jennings, "Wilhelm-Str.

- British Minister Resident, Sir Vincent Corbett, Theatiner-Str. 8

(PI. F 5, //; office-hours 10-12). — British Consul- General, Lucien
Buchmann (vice-consul, Arthur Abbott), same address and office-hours.

— American Consul- General, T. St. John Gaffney (vice-consul,

A. Schlesinger), Theatiner-Str. 7 (PL F 5, //; office-hours 1-4).

Golf Club (9 holes), Ungerer-Str. 221 (beyond PI. H, 1).

Chief Sights (4 daysl. First Day. Forenoon: Karls-Platz (p. 245),

Maximilians-Platz (p. 249),.^ Frauen-Kirche (p. 246), Old Rathaus (p. 248),

Palace (p. 254; week-days at 11 a.m.), St. Michaels-Hofkirche (p. 246). —
Afternoon: Drive via the Konigs- Platz (p. 262) and the Ludwig-Str.

(p. 259) to Schwabing (p. 261), returning through the English Garden

(p. 299) to the Max-Joseph-Platz (p. 250), and thence through the Maxi-
milian-Str. (p. 251) and Maximilians-Anlagen (p. 254) to the Prinzregenten-

Str. (p. 290). A detour may be made from the Maximilian-Str. to visit the

Hofbrauhaus (p. 251). View from the tower of the New Rathaus (p. 247; in

summer till 6 p.m.): Bavaria (p. 300; till 7 p.m.).

Second Day. Forenoon: Basilica (p. 262), Old Pinakothek (p. 268;

closed on Tues.). — Afternoon: Xvmphenburg (p. 300; closed at 6 p.m.).

Third Day. Forenoon: Glyptothek (p. 262), National Museum (p. 290;

till 4 p.m., closed on Mon. ; luncheon procurable). — Afternoon: German
Museum (p. 251; till 7 p.m.; closed on Tues. or Fri., comp. p. 240).

Fourth Day. Forenoon: New Pinakothek (p. 284); Schack Gallery

(p. 297; till 2 p.m. ; closed on Thurs.). — Afternoon: Tierpark Hellabrunn

(p. 302!, Isar-Tal (p. 304).
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Munich (1705 ft.), German Milnchen, the capital of Bavaria,

with 630,000 inhab. (one-seventh Protestants; only 170,000 in 1871),

lies on the S. side of a sterile plateau, chiefly on the left bank of

the Isa'r, which emerges from a narrow valley (tO M. long) above

the city. It is the head-quarters of the 1st Bavarian army-corps, the

scat of a university and a technical college, and the chief centre of

art in Grerraany. Munich is liable to sudden changes of temperature,

against which visitors should be on their gnard, especially towards

evening. The liigh mountains, about 25 M. to the S., become very

distinct after a thunder-storm or on the approach of bad weather. As
Munich did not attain its present importance until the 19th cent.,

it is pre-eminently a modern city. The most important industrial

products are beer, machinery, and gloves; the manufacture of ob-

jects of industrial art (p. 245) is also notable.

Munich owes its fouadation to the monastery of Tegernsee or

Schaftlarn, which is the origin of the name Muniha and of the monk
in the city's coat-of-arms ('Miinchuer Kindl"). In 115S Duke Henry the

Lion established a market-place and a mint here and built a bridge across
the Isar in order to levy toll on the salt coming from Reicbcnhall and
other places. At the imperial diet held at RatisboH in 1180 Henry was
put under ban, and Bavaria was assigned to Count Palatine Otho of
Wittelsbach. Louis the Severe (1253-94) transferred his residence to

Munich, which obtained municipal rights in 1294. Under Emperor Louis
the Bavarian (1294-1347) the construction of the second city-wall was
begun, which marked the limits of the city down to the 19th cent. ; it

extended from the Isar- Tor on the E. through the Blumen-Str. to the

Karls-Tor on the W., then made a circuit to enclose the Palace on the X.,

and finally followed the Herrn-Str. back to the Isar-Tor. The emperor
also rebuilt the city, which was loyally attached to him, after a fire in

1327 (his tomb is in the Frauen-Kirche , see p. 247). Duke Albert V.

(1550-79) founded the library and the Kuust-Kammer, to which the An-
tiquariura, cabinet of coins, and part of the National Museum owe their

origin. His son, Tn7?«rt»i F. (1579-97), a pupil of the Jesuits, erected the

St. Michaels-Hofkirche or Jesuit church. Maximilian I. (1597-1651), the

first Bavarian Elector (created 1623), renewed the fortifications of the city

in 1619-38, built the Old Palace, and was a diligent collector of the works
of Diirer. In 1620 Munich had 22,000 inhabitants. The central part of

the palace of Nymphenbui'g was built by Barelli for the Savoy princess
Henrietta Adelaide, wife of the Elector Ferdinand Maria (1651-79). Under
Max II. Emmanuel (1679-1726), who from 1704 to 1714 was a refugee at

the court of Louis XIY., began the triumphal progress of the rococo
style, with the erection of Schloss Schleissheim near Munich by Zuccali
and Effner. This progress went on with great brilliance under Charles
Albert (1726-45), afterwards Emperor Charles YIL, as is testified by the

Reiehe Zimmer in the Palace and the Amalienburg in the park of Xymphen-
burg, both due to Fr. CuvilUes. Elector Ma.vimtlian III. Joseph (1745-77)

founded the Academy in 1759, and his successor Charles Theodore of the

Palatinate (1777-99) removed the old fortifications. King Jlaximilian I.

Joseph (1799-1825) contributed materially to the improvement of the

city by the dissolution of the religious houses and the erection of new
buildings. At the beginning of the 19th cent, the number of inhabitants
had risen to 40,000.

The real creator of modern Munich was King Louis I. (1825-48;

d. 1868), who built the Glyptothek and the Old and Xew Piuakotheks,
constructed the Ludwig-Str., and raised the city to the foremost rank as

a school of Q-orman art. The twin tendencies of the age found expression
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here also ; the classical school is represented iu the secular buildings of
Leo von Klenze (1784-1864), for which the indefatigable L. von Schwan-
thaler (1802-48) provided the plastic embellishment, Avhile the influence

of the romantic school produced the modern Romanesque and Gothic
churches hy Gartner, OMmuUer, and Ziebland. — The Maximilian-Str.,
with the old N'ational Museum and with the Maximilianeum filling in the
vista at the end, was laid out by MaonmiUan II. (1848-64) as a pendant
to the Ludwig-Str. — Louis II. (1864-86) displayed his love of art in

the building and adornment of royal palaces outside the city. — In
consequence of the rapid growth of the town, the reign of Prince-Regent
Luitpold (1886-1912), who was succeeded in the regency by his son, now
King Loins III., coincided with a fresh architectural impulse, which
has 'displayed a certain homogeneity of character and an harmonious
adaptation of the new structures to the existing conditions such as has
probably never been excelled in any city. The majority of the new
buildings are elaborate structures in a style developed from Renais-
sance and baroque models; others display Romanesque, Gothic, or
classic forms ; while a third group betrays the endeavour to take into
account modern requirements and materials in a modern and practical
style. Among the best-known architects are G. Neureuther (1811-87;
Technische Hoohschule, Academy of Fine Art) ; Georg von Hauberrisser
(Rathaus, Pauls-Kirche) ; Friedrich von Thiersch (Ursula-Kirche, Justiz-
Palast) ; Heinrich von Schmidt (Maximilians-Kirche) ; Gabriel von Seidl
(1848-1913; Anna-Kirche, Villa Lenbach, Klinstlerhaus, National Museum,
new German Museui») ; Emanuel von Seidl (Augustiner-Ausschank; Palais
Matuschka , Brienner-Str. 46; Tierpark Hellabruun) ; Karl Hocheder
(Miillersches Yolksbad, schools in the Weiler-Str. and at Bavaria-Ring 40,
Martins-Spital, Yerkehrs-Ministerium) ; 3Iax Littinann (Prinzvegenten-
Theater, Hofbrauhaus, Schauspielhaus, Kunstler-Theater) ; Hans Grdssel
(Wald-Friedhof and other cemeteries; schools; orphanage and Heiliggeist-
Spital at Neuhausen; Stadtbauamt) ; Theodor Fischer (hvidges; schools
and Erloser-Kirche at Schwabing; Bismarck Column by the Starnberger
See; Polizei-Direktion).

In the domain of Painting Munich has seen, more than any other
art-centre, the most diverse tendencies in German art expressing them-
selves side by side. The masters of the 'classic' period (Peter von
Cornelius, Buonaventura Genelli, Karl Rottmann, the landscape-painter),
who cheerfully neglected all the technical achievements of the past, and
the 'Nazarenes' , represented at Munich, for a brief period only, by
L. Schnorr von Carolsfeld, were succeeded by the school of W. von Kaul-
bach (1805-1 i), whose art long enjoyed an undeserved reputation. Moritz
von Schioiml (1804-71 ; of A^ienna), who drew his inspiration from popular
tales, and the humorist K. Spitzweg (1805-85) were typical German painters.
Historical painting, introduced from Belgium in 1842, found one of its

most influential champions in Karl von Piloty (1826-86), for many years
the head of the Munich school, which fixed its attention on the lost art
of colouring, based on the studj' of the old masters. At the same time
Munich rivalled Diisseldorf in the development of genre paintings. The
best-known masters of this period are W. Diez (1839-1907). the painter
of 'historical' genre scenes ; Franz Defregger (b. 1835), the creator of
idealized scenes of peasant-life; Griltzner (b. 1846), whose works display
a marked 'literary' interest; and Gabriel von Max (b. 1840 in Prague),
noted for his inclination towards mysticism. The celebrated portrait-
painter Franz von Lenbach (1836-1904) elaborated a scheme of colouring
of his own, based on a study of Titian, Rembrandt, and Velazquez.
Fr. A. von Kaulbach (b. 1850) is another successful painter of portraits.
The realist W. Leibl (1844-1900) occupies a place bv himself. The modern
tendency, introduced from Paris by Fritz von tlhde (1848-1911), which
lays special stress upon technical perfection while recognizing the indi-
vidual liberty of each artist, found eager support in the ^Secession'' (p. 262)
at Munich in 1892; the artists' colony at Dachau (p. 303) owes its existence
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to the preference for landscape. Among other living artists we may
note Baron Hugo von Habermann (b. 1849), Albert von Keller (b. 1845),

and Leo Samberger (b. 1861), the portrait-painters; Lvdwig Dill (h. 1848;
now at Carlsruhe), the landscape-painter; H. Ziigel (b. 1850), the eminent
animal -painter; Angela Jank (b. 1868), painter of horses and military
scenes; and Franz Stuck (b. 1863), the 'modern idealist', who is also a

sculptor. — Since the death of W. von Riimann in 1906 the leading
Sculptor of Munich is A. von Hildebrand (b. 1847), whose work is

inspired by antique art. Younger sculptors are Jos. Flossinann (b. 1862),

Hermann Hahn (b. 1868), and Hubert Netzer (b. 1865 ; now at Diisseldorf).

Industrial Art at Munich, after adopting the various historical

styles in turn, has struck out a line for itself; its aim now is the crea-

tion of a German home, founded on the practical and aesthetic require-

ments of the present. Representatives of this school are Riemerschmid,
W. von Beckerath, A. Niemeyer, and other members of the 'Vercinigte
Werkstatten fiir Kunst im Handwerk'. — The well-known comic papers
'Jugend', 'Simplicissimus', and 'Fliegende Blatter' are all published in

Munich.

a. Karls-Platz. Frauen-Kirche. Marien-Platz. S. Part of the
Inner Town.

To the W. of the inner town lie the Karls-Platz and the Bahnhof-

Platz, two of the chief intersecting points of the tramway system

(p. 237). On the W. side of the Baunhof-Platz (PI. E, 5; //)*is the

Haiipt-Bahnhof {^. 233), built by Graff in 1876-84; on the E. is

the large Warenhaus Tietz, built by Heilniann &Littmann in 1905.

To the N.W. of the station is the extensive Verlcehrs-Ministeriam

(Ministry of Traffic; PI. D 5, //), built in 1905-13 by Hocheder in

the vS. German baroque style, with a dome 235 ft. high and an arch-

way over the Arnulf-Str. — From the Bahuhof -Platz the Priel-

raayer-Str. with the Justiz-Palast (see below), the Schiitzen-Str.,

and the Bayer-Str. with the restaurant of the Mathaser Breiccry

(Xo. 5; p. 235) all lead E. to the Karls-Platz.

On the W. side of the busy Kakls-Platz (PI. E, 5, 6; 77) stand

the Courts of Justice (Justiz-Palasf), an imposing baroque

building by Thiersch, completed in 1897. The most interesting

parts of the interior are the central hall (with its glass dome), the

reception hall, the jury-court, and the library (open in May-Sept,

ou Wed., 12.30-2.30). To the W. are the New Courts of justice,

built by Thiersch (1905) in a Gothic style, with coloured plaster

decoration. — On the N. side of the square, in front of the Courts

of Justice, is the Nornen-Brunnen, by Netzer (1907). Lenbach-

Platz, see p. 249. On the S. side are the pretty Gasteiger-Brunneu
(VHrunnenbuberP), presented by Gasteiger, the sculptor, and the

Protestant Matthaus-Kirche, by Pertsch (1832).

From the E. side of the Karls-Platz we pass through the Karls-

Tor (PI. E, 5, 6; 77) into the inner town. The N'ErHAusEK Strass^e

and its prolongation the Kat'fixgek Strasse, two of the busiest

streets in the city, lead hence E. to the Marien-PIatz (p. 247). On
the left side of the Neuhauser Str., at the corner of the Herzog-
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Max-Str., is the Kaafhaas OberpoUinger, erected iu 1905 by Heil-

mann & Littmann. Farther on Qso. 48) is the Bilrgersaal ('St. Cor-

hiuian'; PL E 6, //), a sodality-chapel erected by Viscardi in 1710.

The hall on the ujjper floor contains a large but dilapidated fresco

of the AssiTmption by M. KnoUer (1774).

The Academy of Science (Akademie der Wissenschaften

;

PL E 6, II), in the old Jesuit college, built in 1585-90 by Sustris(?)

in the baroque style, contains important Natural History Col-

lections (adm., see p. 241),
Tlie * Geological and Palxontological Collections on the first floor are

exhibited in nine rooms, the animal fossils being arranged zoologically,

the plants geologically. — The Anthropological and Prehistoric Col-

lections contain many objects from lake-dwellings in the Starnberger See
and at Robenbaueen, and others of the La Tene period, found at Manching
near Ingolstadt. — The *Mineralogical Collection is unequalled for its

complete representation of Alpine minerals. Special collections illustrate

tlie characteristics and crystalline formation of minerals (by the -win-

dows), their chemical formation (in the central cases), their origin (wall-

cases to the right of the door), and their industrial uses (to the left

of the door). Catalogue 2 JC. — The most noteworthy features of the

Zoological Collection on" the second floor are the birds (Sturm collection

of humming-birds), the skeletons, and the extinct species (quagga, great
auk). Guide 50 pf. — The Cabinet of Coins (open for students after

previous application on week-days 10-12.30) contains over 20,000 Greek
coins and also the Bavarian coins and medals formerly in the National
Museum.

Adjoining the Academy rises the *St. Michaels-Hofkirche
(Pl.E, 5, 6, II ; adm., see p. 241 ; sacristan at the back of the church),

formerly a Jesuit church, built in 1583-97 iu the Kenaissauce style

by Friedrich Sustris. Its erection marked an epoch in the history

of Catholic church-building in S. Germany. Between the two portals

on the late-Eenaissance facade is a St. Michael in bronze, by Hubert
Gerhard (1592). The interior, with its grand barrel-vaulting, is

285 ft. in length and 70 ft. in w idth. There are no aisles. In the

third chapel to the right is a good late-Gothic reliquary of SS. Cosmas
and Damian (ca. 1400). On the left, under the fourth arch, is the

*Monumeut of Eugene Beauharnais (d. 1824), Duke of Leuchten-

berg, by Thorvaldsen. The Renaissance choir-stalls have been dis-

figured by painting. The Fall of the Angels, on the high-altar, is

by Chr. Schwarz (d. 1597). In the royal burial-vault under the

choir reposes King Louis II. (1886); adm. 11-12, July-Sept. 11-1

and 4.30-6 (30 pf. ; bell in the Ett-Str.). Church-music, see p. 239.

Farther on, to the left, on the site of the old Mauthalle,

arc the new buildings of the Police Offices (Polizei-Direktion;

PL E, F, 5, 6, 77), by Th. Fischer. Thence the Augustiner-Str. leads

to the left to the —
*Prauen-Kirche (PL F, 6; 77), the cathedral of the Arch-

bishop of Munich and Freising, a red-brick edifice (320 ft. long,

120 it. broad; vaulting 110 ft. high) in the late-Gothic style, erected

by Jorg Ganghofer in 1468-88 and restored in 1858-68. The two
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uncompleted towers, 320 ft. high, covered early in the 16th cent,

with round caps of green copper, are a distinctive feature of Munich.

The N. tower may be ascended on week-days 8-6 (in winter 9-4i,

on Sun. 10-6 (10-4); tickets (40 pf.) from the sacristan, Frauen-

Platz 11, or in the sacristy. A red signal is hung out when tlie

view is good, and a white signal when the Alps are visible. On the

outside walls of the church are many old tombstones.

Interior (adm., see p. 241; music, see p. 239). The nave and aisles

are of equal height, borne by twenty-two octajronal pillars : richly painted
vaulting. The windows, 65 ft. high, are filled with fine stained glas.s.

including the remains (sometimes wrongly arranged) of the old glazing
of the 15th -16lh centuries. On the back of the choir-stalls are carved
wooden figures by Erasmus Grasser (1502). — In the Chapel of the Mater
Dolorosa (1th on the left) are four good bronze reliefs from the studio
of Hans Krumper. — By tlie entrance, under the organ-loft, is the *Mou-
uraent of Emperor Louis the Bavarian (p. 21.3), erected in 1622 by Elector
Maximilian I. after the designs of P. Candid, in dark marble, with figures

and decorations in bronze ; four knights at the corners guard the tomb ; at

the side are statues of the Yfittelsbach princes Albert Y. and William IV.
Inserted in the pedestal is the fine tombstone of red marble (ca. 1490). —
The treasury contains a bust of St. Benno (early 17th cent.) and a chaliic

of the late 16th century.

The Kaufinger Str. (p. 245) ends at the Makie^t-Platz^PI. F, 6 ; //),

which is adorned with the Marien-Sdule, in red marble, erected in

1638 by Elector Maximilian I. to commemorate the victory on the

Weisser Berg near Prague (1620). Enthroned on the column is the

Virgin, the patron-saint of Bavaria; four genii at the corners contend

against a viper, a basilisk, a lion, and a dragon (plague, war, famine,

and heresy). — At the iST.E. corner rises the Finch -Brunnen, in

bronze, designed by Knoll (1866). The figures allude to an old

Munich custom called the 'Metzgerspruug'.

On the N. side of the square is the New Rathaus (PI. F, 6 ; //),

a handsome Gothic edifice designed by Hauberrisser, richly adorned
with sculptures. The E. portion (ofbrick) was completed in 1874,

the W. portion (of stone) in 1906. The facade towards the square

has numerous statues of Bavarian dukes and electors. On the right

is an arcaded balcony in three sections, terminating in a lofty gable;

to the left of it, under a canopy, is a gilded equestrian statue of

Prince-Regent Luitpold, by F. von Miller (1906). On the tower

(280 ft. in height) is a mechanical clock, with jousting and dancing

figures, which play their parts at 11 a.m. and 9 p.m., and chimes.

The third gallery of the tower, 200 ft. higii, commands an admir-

able panorama (adm., see p. 241). A flag is flown when the Alps
are visible. Panorama, with description of the Rathaus, on sale at

the top (60 pf.).

On the second floor arc the Council Chambers, on the left that of
the town-council, on the right that of the magistrates (adm.. see p. 241;
entr. by door No. 208). In the former are a large painting of 'Monachia'
by K. von Piloty and portraits of Louis II. by F. Piloty and Prince-
Regeuf Luitpold by KaiUbach. The magistrates' room is adorned with a
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mural painting by W. Lindenschmit (progress of Munich under Louis I.),

stained-glass windows by R. Seitz, and portraits of Louis L and Louis II.

by Lenhach. Splendid carved wooden ceiling, mantelpiece, and chandelier.— On the ground-floor (entr. in the Diener-Str.) is the RatskeUer
(p. 235).

Room 36 in the W. wing contains the Prince-Regent Luitpold Military
Museum, a collection of Bavarian and captured French arms, founded by-

Bavarian veterans (open daily 10-1 ; adm. 1 JC; entr. in the Prunkhof).

The Old Rathaus (PI. F 6, //), on the E. side of the square,

was erected originally in 1313-27, rebuilt by Jorg Granghofer in

1470-74, and restored in 1862-5. The tower, under which runs a

passage leading to the Tal (see below), is adorned with paintings by
F. Seitz. The banqueting-hall (visitors ring the bell at Burg-Str. 18;

open week-days 8-6, Sun. 10-12) has a vaulted wooden ceiling.

On the sides, beneath the frieze of coats-of-arms (painted after

1476), are ten wooden statuettes of Hungarian Maruska dancers,

by Erasmus Grasser (1480); below are 23 banners of the Munich
guilds (17th-18th cent.).

A few paces to the S. of the Marien-Platz is the Peters-Kirche
(PI. F, 6; //), a long basilica erected in 1181 as the first parish-

church of Munich, but since repeatedly restored and remodelled

(last in 1726-50). The main tower, which dates from 1379-86 (the

spire from ca. 1607), affords a fine panorama (adm. 40 pf., ticket

from the attendant). Inside, to the left of the main entrance, is

the tomb of Ulrich Aresinger (d. 1485), in red marble, while to the

right is that of Balthasar Botschner and his wife, both by Erasmus
Cirasser (1482 and 1505). In the last chapel of the X. aisle is a

reredos of painted sandstone with reliefs, presented by Barthold

Schrenk (ca. 1400). The large high-altar dates from 1730. The
choir-stalls are by J. G. Greif (ca. 1750).

From theMarieu-Platz theWEix-SiRAssE and Theatiner-Str. lead

N. to the Ludwig-Str. (p. 259), while the Dient;r-Strasse leads N.

also to the Max-Joseph-Platz (p. 250). — To the E., passing through

the archway in the tower of the old Rathaus, we reach the wide street

named the Tal (PI. F, 6; 11). Immediately to the right is the

Heilige Geist-Kirche, originally erected in the 15th cent., but

entirely remodelled in 1724-30 and 1885-8. The nave and aisles

are of equal height, and the choir is surrounded with an ambulatory.

Beneath the organ is the admirable brass of Duke Ferdinand of

Bavaria (d. 1608), ascribed to Hubert Gerhard (1589). On the E. the

Tal ends at the Isar-Tor (PI. F, 6; 77), a gate of 1314, arbitrarily

restored in 1833-5, with a fresco by Bernhard Neher (1831) re-

presenting the entry of Emperor Louis the Bavarian after the Battle

of Ampfing. In the Isartor-Platz is the Fortuna-Brunnen. by
K. Killer (1907). Ludwigs-Briicke, see p. 301.

To the S. of the Holy Ghost Church extends the Viktualiex-
Markt (PL F, 6; 77> At the S. end is the large ScJirannen-Halle
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(PL F, E, 6, 77), the first market -hall built in Germany (1851-3),

now used by the wholesale dealers in vegetables and fruit. — A
little W., at St. Jakobs-Platz 1, is the municipal Historical
Museum (PL F 6, 77; adm., see p. 240), containing pictures illus-

trating the history of Munich, weapons, flags, fire-saving appli-

ances, seals, badges, weights and measures, coins, and objects of

industrial art. The MaUlinr/er Collection comprises over 30,000
engravings. On the ground-floor is a Collection of Models of build-

ings and monuments of Munich. — In the gardens in the middle of

the Blumen-Str. rises the Enr^lish Church fSt. George's ; PL E 6, 77;

p. 242), built by H. Bergtholdt in the Gothic style (1911-13) and con-

taining wood -carving from Oberammergau and stained glass. —
No. 80 in the Sexdlinger Strasse is the office of the newspaper
Milvchner Neueste Nachrichten, built by Heilmann & Littmann
in 1906. Farther S.W. is the late -baroque *St. Johannes-
Nepomuk-Kirche (PL E, 6 ; 77), also known as the Asam-Kirch-
lein, built by the brothers Asam at their own expense in 1733-4

(facade completed in 1746i. The interior is fantastically decorated

with gilding, frescoes, and imitation marble. Adjacent, to the left,

is the house (No. 61) in which the brothers Asam once lived. On
the S.W. the street' ends at the Sendlinger Tor (PL E, 6; 77),

dating from the late 14th century. Siid-Friedhof, see p. 302.

b. Lenbach-Platz. Maximilians-Platz. Maximilian-Strasse.
German Museum.

The Karls-Platz (p. 245) is adjoined on the N.E. by theJLenbach-

Platz and the Maximilians-Platz. The Lexbach-Platz (PL E, 5 ; 77)

is adorned with a statue of Goethe, by "Widnmann (1869). On the

S. side rises the Kiinstlerhaus (PL E, 5; 77), built in 1896-1900

by Gabriel von Seidl, and artistically fitted up in the interior (10-6,

in winter 10-5, Sun. 10-2; adm. \ tJ6 ; restaurant). Opposite, to

the E., is the Synagogue, a Romanesque building by Albert Schmidt

(1884-7). On the E. side of the square is the Herzog- Max -Burg

(p. 250). On the W. side are the Deutsche Bank and the Darm-
stadter Bank, both built by A. Schmidt in 1902, and between these

is the Bernheimer - Hans, built in the baroque style by Fr. von

Thiersch in 1890.

At the Maximilians-Platz (PL E, F, 5 ; 77). with its fine

gardens, rises the handsome *'Wittelsbach Fountain, erected

by A. von Hildebrand in 1895 as an ornamental termination to

the city aqueduct. From a basin 80 ft. in length and 45 ft. in

width rises a pedestal bearing four masks and the arms of the four

Bavarian races. On the top of this is a basin 18 ft. in diameter,

and above this a smaller basin from which the water issues. On
the right and left of the large basin are two colossal marble groups

(10 ft. high and 13 ft. wide): a female figure upon a water-bull and

Baedeker's S. Grcrmany. 12th' Edit, 16
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a male figure upon a water-horse, symbolical of the fertilizing and

destructive power of water. — In the middle of the square are a

monument to the hygienist M. von Pettenkofer (d. 1901), by Eiimann

and Mayer (1909), and a seated marble figure of the chemist J.

von Liebig (d. 1873), by AYagmiiller and Riimann (1883). Behind is

a marble bench with a bust of Effner (1886), who laid out the

gardens. To the N. of the square is the Hans fiir Handel und
Gewerhe, containing the Exchange and the Chamber of Commerce,

designed by Thiersch (1900j. Brienner-Str., see p. 267.

From the Lenbach-Platz (p. 249) the Pfaxdhaus-Strasse (Pl.E,

5; II) leads E. to the Promenade-Platz. Immediately to the right

is the Herzog-Max-Burg (PL E, 5; II), built after 1590 by Duke
William V. and named after his son; it is now occupied by various

offices. To the left stand the Dreifaltigkeits-Kirche, a baroque

church by Viscardi (1714), and the Kunstgewerbe-Haus (PI.

E, F, 5, //; No. 7), built in the Renaissance style in 1877 by

Knab and Cedon and containing the exhibition of the Bavarian

Society of Industrial Art (adm., see p. 239). The banqueting-hall is

adorned with Avail -paintings by F. A. von Kaulbach, while the

restaurant has been decorated by A. Niemeyer.

In the Promexade-Platz (P1.E,F, 5 ; II) are five bronze statues

:

Lorenz von Westenrieder (1748-1829), the historian, by Widnmann
(1854); GZwcyt (1714-87), the composer, by Brugger (1848); Elector

Max Emmanuel (p. 243), conqueror of Belgrade, by Brugger (1861)

;

Orlando di Lasso (1520-94), the Flemish composer, by Widnmann
(1849); and Kreittmayr (1705-90), the chancellor, by Sch-wan-

thaler (f845).

On the E. side of the Peomexade-Strasse (PI. F 5 , //; No. 13)

is the house of the Muse urns- Gesellschaft, a baroque club-house

built in 1770 as the Palais Porcia. No. 10 is the new building of the

Bayrische Hypothelcen- und Wechsel-Bank, by E. Schmitt (main

entr. in the Theatiner-Str.); No. 7 is the Archiepiscojml Palace,

formerly the Palais Konigsfeld, built in 1733-7, perhaps by Cuvillies.

— A little to the N. is the Greek Church (PL F, 5; 77), built

in 1494 as the Salvator-Kirche and containing old stained glass. —
At Pranner-Str. 20 is the Landtags -Gehdude, or House of the

Bavarian Diet (PL F, 5; 77), rebuilt by Siebert in 1885 in the

German Renaissance style.

The Maffei-Str., running E. from the Promenade-Platz, leads

to the Theatiner-Str. (PL F 5, 77; Ludwig-Str., see p. 259). Farther

on we follow the Perusa-Str. to the Max-Joseph-Platz (PI. F, 5 ; 77),

in the middle of which is a seated figure of *King Max I. Joseph

(d. 1825), by Ranch (1835). On the N. side is the Konigsbau of

the Royal Palace (p. 256); on the E. side is the Hof-Theater (p. 256);

and on the S. side is the General Post Office, built by Gunezrhaiuer

in 1747 as the Palais Torring, with a colonnade by Klenze (1835).
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— To the S. of the post office is the Alter Hof(P\. F, 6; //), begun

in 1253 under the name oi Alte Feste or Ludwigshurcj, the earliest

residence of the Bavarian dukes. It has been repeatedly altered

and enlarged, and now contains the Eentamt (revenue-office).

On the E, side of the Max-Joseph-Platz begins the Maxi>iiliax-

Strasse (PL F, G-, 6; //), 1 M. in length and 25 yds. in breadth,

much frequented in the afternoon. It was constructed by King
Max II. in 1854, and its buildings were intended to inaugurate a new
German style of architecture; the result, however, was an unhappy
juxtaposition of Gothic and Renaissance forms. The vista is closed

by the Maximilianeum beyond the Isar. First, on the right, is the

Mint (Mlinze; PI. F, 5, 6, 77), a part of the old stables^ rebuilt by
by Biirklein in 1859. The Turnierhof, or old tilding-yard (entr.

Hof-Graben 4), built by Eckl in 1563, is surrounded by three tiers

of arched galleries, and is one of the earliest Renaissance structures

in Munich. About 2 min. farther on a cross-street leads to the

right to the 'Platzl', with the Hofbrauhaus (PL F 6, 77; p. 235.,

reconstructed by Heilmann & Littmann in 1897. — At Maximilian-
Str. 34-35 is the Schauspielhaiis (PL F 6, 77; p. 239), erected by
Heilmann & Littmann in 1901 and fitted up by R. Riemerschmid.
The street expands into a square ('Forum') relieved with gardens;

on the left is the JRegieriuif/s-Gebaude, or Government Offices (PL

F, G, 6, 77; 1858-64), on the right the German Museum. In the

centre rise four statues : to the left, GeneralDeroy (killed at Poloczk
in 1812), by Halbig(1856), and Count Bumford (p. 299). by Zum-
busch (1868). Opposite are statues of the philosopher Schellinrj

(d. 1854), byBrugger(1861), and the optician i^m«<7?Ao/er(d. 1826J,
by Halbig (1861). At the E. end of the square is the statue of King
Maximilian IL (d. 1864), by Zumbusch (1875).

The *Germaii Museum (PL F, G, 6, 77; tramways Nos. 4
and 12), founded in 1903 and temporarily accommodated in the

Old National Museum building by Riedel (1858-65), includes a

collection of originals, models, designs, etc., illustrating the deve-

lopment of natural science and the technical arts. Since 1905 a

part of the collections has been housed in the old Barracks of the

Heavy Cavalry (p. 253). Xew building, see p. 254. Though naturally

of prime interest to students, the exhibits are arranged as clearly

as possible for the sake of the ordinary visitor. All the objects bear

labels, and many of the models may be set in motion. Adm.. see

p. 240; guide 1,^/1, short description 40 pf. Experts are ready

(9-1 and 2.30-6,30) to conduct visitors round either of the two
sections (about 2 hrs.; 1-3 pers. 6 ^/l, each pers. more 1 t.^); also

at 8.15 p.m. on week-days (except Sat.). To the left of the entrance

is a refreshment room. On the grouud-floor, to the left, is the exhi-

bitioa of the Miinchuer Kiinstler-Genossenschaft (adm., see p. 242;.

16*
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GrROUND Floor. To the right, Room 1. Geology. — R. 2. Min-

ing. We descend to the left to R. 2a, Avhich illustrates the under-

ground working of mines. — We return to R. 2 and pass to the left

into R. 3 and 4, illustrating iron-founding. In R.4 is the first cast-

steel bell, made by the Bochum Co. (1854). — R. 5 and 6. Rolling,

forging, welding, and casting of iron. Model of the Krupp forge,

with the 'Fritz' hammer. — R. 7. Water-power motors; hydraulic

machine by Reicheubach (1817); to the left of the entrance is the

first turbine used in Germany, made in France in 1834. — R. 8.

Earliest steam-engines; Alban steam-engine (1840); to the right

of the exit is the oldest steam-engine in Germany (1813). —
R. 9. Steam-engines and boilers; cylinder of a Sulzer ventilating

machine (f905); Watt's waggon -boiler (ca. 1800); Alban tubular

boiler (1859). — We descend to the right to R. 10. Sledges, car-

riages, bicycles. — R. 11. Motor-cars (first Daimler petrol car, 1885;

first benzine car of Benz, 1886), locomotives. In the garden are

safety appliances for railways. — R. 12. Electric railways (first

electric locomotive by Weruer Siemens, 1879). — We return to

R. 9 and pass to the right into R. 13 and 14. Hot-air motors, gas

motors by Lenoir and Otto, first Diesel motor (1897), vfindmills.

First Floor. R. 15. Astronomy. — R. 16. Geodesy, with original

instruments of Reichenbach, Brandcr, Fraunhofer, Steinheil, etc.

— R. 17. Mathematics (calculating machines), kinematics, and

scales. From the balcony we may ascend to the Observatory (open

in fine weather 9-1.30 and 5-9.30, with lecture, or 2.45-7; Sun. 9-1

and 1.45-5.30), with a refracting telescope and an astronomical map.
— R. 18. Mechanics; original apparatus of Otto von Guericke. —
R. 19 and 20. Optics; original apparatus of Helniholtz and Fraun-

hofer; spectrum apparatus of Kirchhoft' and Bunseu. — R. 21. Heat

and meterology; by the rear-wall, original apparatus of Robert

Mayer; by the exit-wall, original machine for the liquefaction of

air by Linde (1895). — R. 22. Science of waves. — R. 23. Acoustics

;

phonographs, gramophones, etc. — R. 24. Frictional and contact

electricity; original apparatus of Ohm. — R. 25. Magnetism and

electric currents; original apparatus of Ampere. — R. 26. Electric

rays and waves; original tubes and photographs by Rontgen; models

and apparatus of Hertz. — R. 27. Telegraphy; first electric tele-

graph by Sommerring (1809); first writing telegraph by Steinheil

(1836). — R. 28. Telephones; original apparatus of Reis (1863);

original telegraphone by Poulsen (1898). — We now pass through

the 'Ehren-Saal', containing portraits, busts, reliefs, and a model

of the new building, into R. 29, which is devoted to the technique of

painting. — R. 30. Printing; reproduction of the first machine-press

of Friedrich Konig. — R. 31. Printing of illustrations and photo-

graphy; first lithographic lever-press bySeuefelder (1797). — R. 32.

Clocks; reproduction of au old watchmaker'!? room in tlie ^Plack
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Forest. — R. 33. Spinuiug. — R. 34. Spinning, winding, and sewing.

— R. 35. Weaving; old weaver's room from the Fichtel-Gebirge. —
R. 36-38. Agriculture. — R. 39. Brewing and distilling. — R. 40.

Manufacture of dyes, soda, and acids. — R. 41. Alchemist's labo-

ratory. — R. 42. Chemical laboratory of the 18th century. — R. 43.

Reproduction of Liebig's laboratory at Giessen (1839), with original

apparatus of Liebig, Mitscherlich, etc. — R. 44. Modern laboratory,

with original preparations of recent days. — R. 45. Electro-chemistry

and electro-metallurgy.

Second Floor. Straight on, R. 46. Hydraulics. — To the riglit,

R. 47. Inland navigation. — R. 48. Canalization. — R. 49. Models

of buoys, lighthouses, and docks. — R. 50. Models of merchant-

vessels. — R. 51. Models of war-ships. — R. 52-55. Library and

Reading Boom, with plans and specifications of patents.

A little N. of the Maximilian Monument, at Pfarr-Str. 3, is the

Wo'kmen's Museum (Arbeiter- Museum; PI. Gr 6, //; adm., see

p. 241), with collections of devices for the comfort and safety of

workers (prevention of accidents, industrial hygiene, workmen's

dwellings, dietetics, social institutions, statistics, alcoholism). —
In the Thiersch -Platz (PL Gr, 5; II) is an ornamental fountain

(Harvester) by E. Kurz (1905). — On the E. side of the Anna-Str.

is the handsome St. Anna-Kirche (PI. G-, 5; //), a modern Roman-
esque basilica by G. von Seidl (1887-92). Opposite is the Alte ISt.

Anna-Kirche (PI. Ct, 5, //; 'St. Anna auf dem LeheP), built in the

baroque style by J. M. Fischer in 1727-37, now a Franciscan con-

vent-church. The interesting oval interior has decorations by the

brothers Asam; the plain facade with its two towers dates from

1852. — Farther N. is the Bavarian National Museum (p. 290).

To the S. of the Maximilian Monument is the Protestant ;SY.

Lukas-Kirche (PL G, G; //), in the transitional style, by Alb.

Schmidt (1893-7). — Opposite, to theE., on the Prater-Insel (No. 5),

is the old 'Isarlust' (1888), which has contained since 1911 the

Alpine Museum (PL G, 6; II) of the German and Austrian

Alpine Club (adm., see p. 240). Guide of 1912, 30 pf.

In tlie garden are speciiiieus of Alpine rocks, an Alpiue garden, and
a stalactite cave. In the lower room: Relief of the Jungfrau on a scale
of 1:2500 by Xaver Imfeld; Alpiue geology (mining); flora and fauna;
models of huts; history of mountaineering and mountaineers' outfit. .S.

colonnade: History of the German and Austrian Alpiue Club, cartography,
guides and rescue appliances. N. colonnade: Statistics relating to the
history, technique, and hygiene of mountain-climbing. In the xipper rodui

:

Numerous reliefs, incl. the Matterhoru by Imfeld (1 : 5000) and the Inn
glacier in the glacial period (1 : 75,000) ;

paintings illustrating the movement
of glaciers; costumes from the Grijden valley; etc.

On the S. of the Lukas-Kirche are the old Barracks of the

Heavy Cavalry (Kaserne dcr Schweren Reiter; PL F 6, //), con-

taining part of the collections of the German Museum (comp.

p. 251; entr. Zweibriicken-Str. 12; adm., see p. 240; guides, see
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p. 251). Ground Floor: R. 1, Metallurgy; R. 2, "Working of metals;

R. 3, Gas production; R. 4, Electricity; R. 5, Lighting; R. 6, Build-

ing-materials and testing of juaterials. Upper Floor. On the right,

technical acoustics (musical instruments). We retrace our steps

and enter (straight on) the admirably complete aeronautical section,

incl. models and original parts of Zeppelin and Parseval airships.

Next, a refreshment room. Then, road-making, bridge-building,

tunnels, domestic architecture, water supply, drainage, heating and

ventilation, cooling apparatus. — Opposite, to the E., is the

Museums-Insel, on which the large new building for the German
Museum is being erected from the plans of G. von Seidl (to be opened

in 1915).

The Maximilian- Str. crosses the Isar by the Maximilians-
Brilcke (PI. G, 6; //), rebuilt in 1905 by Thiersch. On its N. side

is a stone figure of Pallas Athene (18 ft. in height) by Drexler. On
the island is a monument to the painter M. von Schwind, with

figures of Legend and Poetry by Hahnel (1893). — Straight ahead,

on the slope of the hill, rises the —
Maximilianeum (PI. G, 6 ; //), founded by KingMaximilian II.

for the instruction of the royal pages and other students, and built

by Biirkleiii in 1857-61. Adm., see p. 240. A broad approach

ascends to the facade, which rises in two series of arches on a lofty

terrace, hiding the square main building from the town. The slightly

curved central part of the structure is adjoined by open arcades on

each side, flanked with corner-towers. At the top of the handsome
staircase are the sketches in oils for the paintings by K. von Piloty

on the fagade (replaced by glass mosaic in 1902): in the middle,

Emperor Louis the Bavarian founding the monastery of Ettal (1330;;

on the right, AVolfram of Eschenbach at the 'Saugerkrieg' in the

Wartburg; to the left, Duke Louis the Rich founding Ingolstadt

University. Three rooms on the upper floor contain thirty large oil-

paintings, illustrating momentous events in the world's history,

by K. von Piloty, Schnorr, AV. von Kaulbach, G. Richter, Adam,
Schraudolph, etc.

On both sides of the Maximilianeum lie charming gardens, laid

out under King Maximilian II. from the designs of Effner. They
comprise the Gasteig-Anlagen, extending upstream to theLudwigs-
Briicke (p. 301), and the Maximilians-Anlagen, stretching down-
stream past villas and the Peace Monument (p. 298) to Brunntal

(p. 299). Haidhausen, see p. 301.

c. Royal Palace. Hof-Garten.

The N. side of the Max-Joseph-Platz (p. 250) is bounded by the

*Royal Palace {Residenz; PI. F 5, //), which consists of three

parts: on the S. side towards the square the KOnigs-Bau, N. to-

wards the Hof-Garten the Festsaal-Bau, and between these the Alte
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Residenz, facing the Residenz-Str. [The names in parenthesis on

the adjacent plan refer to the ground-floor.]

The Alte Residenz was built in 1598-1616 under Elector

Maximilian I., probably by Hans Reifenstuel. The fagade is painted

with imitations of architectural features. Between the two baroque

portals of red marble is a bronze statue of the Virgin, which, like

the allegorical figures over the portals, is by Hans Krumpcr. The
brazen lions flanking the portals are by Grerhard Huber. We pass

through the left portal and enter the Kaiserhof, also with imitation

stone-work. Thence we may proceed to the Apothekenhof (see below).

By the right portal we enter the Kapellenhof. The passage thence

to the Bruunenhof contains 'Duke Christopher's Stone'' (with ex-

planatory inscription). To the right of the Kapellenhof is the

fine Grottenhof, constructed in 1580-90 under William V., with a

small garden and a shell-grotto; in the centre is the bronze Perseus

Fountain, designed by P. Candid, surrounded by eight putti with

fish. From the S.E. corner a passage leads to the Konigshauhof,
with fountain-figures of Neptune, etc. The Brunnenhof, to the E.

of the Kapellenhof, contains a fountain Avith a statue of Otho of

Wittelsbach and other figures in bronze, erected under Maximilian I.

(late 16th cent.I The Allerheiligen-Hofkirche (p. 257) adjoins this

court on the E.; to the S. a passage leads to the Hof- Theater

(p. 256); to the N. is the Apothekenhof (see above), whence a

passage leads E. to the Marstall-Platz (p. 257). In this passage

the tickets of admission are obtained (see p. 241). The visit lasts

about an hour.

Visitors are first conducted to the Festsaal-Bau, 260 yds. long,

erected in 1832-42 by Klenze in the Palladian Renaissance style.

The main fagado towards the Hof-Clarten has a portico of two stories,

the upper with Ionic columns; above are two lions, between which
are eight figures by Schwanthaler representing the provinces of the

kingdom. The six rooms on the ground-floor (no adm.) are decorated

with encaustic mural paintings from the Odyssey, by Hiltensperger,

from designs by Scliwautiialer. We ascend to the first floor from

the passage where the tickets are obtained (see above).
Staircase, with six handsome marble columns; Reception Room,

with reliefs by Schwanthaler; a second Reception Room, decorated in

the Pompeian style by Hiltensperger. — Ball Room, with coloured reliefs

(dancing Amazons and Bacchantes) by Schwanthaler. — Two Card Rooms
with the 'G-allery of Beauty', thirty- six portraits of beautiful women
by Stieler. — Banquet Hall or Battle Saloon: Fourteen large pictures

representing scenes from the wars of 1805-15, by P. von Hess, Kobcll,
Adam, Heideck, and Mouten. — Charlemagne Room-, with six large

encaustic paintings by Jiiger, Giessmann, and others, from designs by
Schnorr. — Barbarossa Room, with six mural paintings by the same
masters. — Hapsbnrg Room, with four paintings, mainly by Schnorr.

Frieze by Schwind, groups of children representing the Triumph of the

Arts, etc. — Throne Room. Twelve gilded bronze statuAjs, by Schwan-
thaler, of ancestors of the house of Wittelsbach.
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Next come the Trier- Zimmer, in the Alte Residenz, guest-

rooms built in 1612 and partW remodelled in the 18th cent, (ceiling-

paintings by P. Candid), and the Hercules Room, built by Maximi-

lian I., where on Maundy Thursday the King performs the ceremony

of washing the feet of twelve old men.

Farther on are the *Reiche Zimmer or Kaiser-Zimmer, the finest

suite in the palace, the first three by Effner, the rest fitted up in

1730-37 in the rococo style by Cuvillies after the fire of 1729.

Reception Room (PI. 2), with a marble chimney-piece; Audience

Chamber (PI. 3), with a bronze-gilt clock; Throne Room (PL 4),

occupied in 1809 by Napoleon 1., with four portraits of Roman
emperors by an anonymous Venetian painter of the 17th cent, (eight

similar portraits in other rooms); Green Gallery (Fl. 4a), contain-

ing five Venetian glass chandeliers (17th cent.) and Italian and

Dutch pictures of little value; Bedchamber (PI. 6), with a richly

gilded bed; Mirror Cabinet ("Fl. 7); Miniature Cabinet (PL 8). —
The Papst-Zimmer y occupied in 1782 by Pope Pius W.. were de-

corated in the baroque style by Barelli in 1665-7.

We now descend the Konigin-Treppe to the Konigs-Bau Cfagade

towards the Max- Joseph -Platz 135 yds. long), erected in 1826-35

by Klenze in imitatii)n of the Pitti Palace at Florence. It is adorned

in the interior with sculptures and frescoes. The rooms of King

Max II. contain painted scenes from Greek poetry, those of Queen

Marie similar scenes from G-erman poetry (all inaccessible). In the

S.W. part of the ground-floor are the five Nibelungen Rooms, with

nineteen large wall-paintings by Jul. Schnorr (1831); in the lunettes

are numerous smaller paintings.

The ^Treasury (adm., see p. 241) contains jewels, precious orna-
ments, goblets, orders, and regalia. Among the more important objects
are the 'Haus-Diamant', a large blue diamond: the 'Pearl of the Palati-
nate', half black; the crown of Empress Kunigunde (d. 1033); the so-

called crown of Emperor Henry II. (d. 1024), 13th cent, work; the Bohemian
crown of Frederick V. of the Palatinate (14th cent.), captured at Prague
in 1620; statuette of St. George and the Dragon, the knight in chased
gold, the dragon of jasper, and the whole adorned with diamonds, rubies,
emeralds, and pearls (early 17th cent.); model of Trajan's Column, exe-
cuted by Valadier (1763-83'); violin of tortoise-shell.

The *Reiche Kapelle (adm., see p. 241), a superbly decorated chapel
of 1600-15. contains costly objects in gold and silver, incl. the enamelled
pocket-altar of Mary, Queen of Scots, 6 in. long (French; 14th cent.), and
a reliquary and fine domestic altar of Albert V.

The old treasury on the ground-floor, beneath the Papst-Zimmer, is

now the Porcelain Cabinet (adm., see p. 241), containing a fine collec-

tion of Frankenthal and other old Bavarian ware (Toilet of Vemis, by
W. Lauz). The chief examples of Dresden porcelain are the Fox at

the spinet and the Lovers at the piano, bv J. J. Kandler (ca. 1740).
Guide (1912) 1 ^4 20 pf.

The Hof- und National-Theater (PL F 5, //; p. 238),

on the E. side of the Max-Joseph-Platz, one of the largest theatres

in Germany (1800 seats;, was erected by K. von Fischer iu
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1811-18, but was burned dowu in 1823 and re-erected in its original

form by Klenze within eleven months. Handsome portico of eight

Corinthian columns. The frescoes in the pediment by Schwauthaler

(Pegasus and the Horse, Apollo and the Muses) were replaced in

1894 by glass mosaics. The interior deserves a visit, Avhich takes

an hour (parties conducted at 2 p.m. on Mou., "Wed., and Sat.; closed

during the holidays; custodian in the Maximilian-Str. ; fee 50 pf.).

View of the Alps from the roof. — Adjoining the Hof-Theater on

the N. is the Konigliches Residenz- Theater (PI. F 5, II;

p. 238; 565 seats), built in 1751-3 by Cuvillies, with elaborate

rococo *Decoration.

The *Allerheiligen-Hofkirche (PI. F 5, //; adm., see

p. 241; music, see p. 239), on the E. side of the palace, is 50 yds.

long, 30 yds. broad, and 75 ft. high. It was erected in 1826-37 by

Klenze in the Byzantine-Romanesque style, with details borrowed
from St. Mark's at Venice and the Cappella Palatina at Palermo,

and is sumptuously fitted up. The arches rest on columns of varie-

gated marble with gilded capitals, the walls are covered with col-

oured marble; and the vaulting, window-arches, and choir-niches

are decorated with frescoes on a gold ground by H. vou Hess,

Schraudolph, and Koch.

At the back of the Alte Residenz, in the Marstall-Platz, are the

Royal Coach Houses and Harness Rooms (Hofwagenburg, Ge-

schirr- und Sattel-Kammer; open on week-days 9-12 and 2-4, Suu.

9-12; adm. 50 pf., free on AVed. afternoon; bell on the S. side), con-

taining an extensive collection of vehicles belonging to the rulers

of Bavaria in the 17th-19th centuries. Among the most noteworthy

objects are the state coaches and sleighs of Elector Max Emmanuel
and King Louis II. On the upper floor are saddles, trappings,

harness, etc.

To the W. of the Alte Residenz is the Feldherrn-Halle (PI. F,

5; //), a copy of the Loggia dei Lanzi at Florence (1376j, erected

in 1841-4 by Gartner. It contains the Bavarian Military Monument
by F. von Miller (1892), statues of the Bavarian generals Tilly and

Wrede by Schwauthaler, and two marble lions by Riimaun a906i.

The square in front of the hall is a fashionable rendezvous on Sun-

day after 12 noon (comp. p. 239> — Adjacent to the S., at Resideiiz-

Str. 27, is the Freysinf/ - Palais, hmlt ca. 1730 by Effner in the

German baroque style. It is now occupied by an aristocratic club

(cafe-restaurant on the ground-floor).

Opposite the Feldherrn-Halle is the Theatiner-Hofkirche,
or St. Cajetans - Hofkirche i^Pl. F, 5; //), erected by Barelli in

1663-75 in the Roman baroque style, with a lofty dome (fine patina)

and two towers, the latter by Enrico Zuccali. The fayade, designed by
Zuccali, was completed by Cuvillies in 1767. The interior (restored

ill 1856; adm., see p. 24 li contains pictures by Zanchi, Cignani, and
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others, aud the royal vaults, in which Emi^eror Charles YII.

(d. 1745) is buried. To the right is the mortuary chapel of King
Maximilian II. (d. 1864) aud Queen Marie (d. 1889).

'Adjoining the Festsaal-Bau (p. 255) on the N. is the Hof-
Garten (PI. F, 5; //), laid out in 1614, a square planted with

trees aud bounded on two sides by open arcades, which are adorned

with frescoes of landscapes and historical subjects (1827-34).
The historical frescoes on the W. side were executed by pupils of

Cornelius. Beyond them are landscapes from Italy and Sicily (now much
faded) by Karl Rottmann. The distichs above the pictures are by King
Louis I. On the IST, side, at the top, are thirty-nine small encaustic paint-
ings from the Grreek War of Independence, by Nilson after sketches by
P. von Hess. In the seven niches at the N.E. end are the Labours of
Hercules, in wood, executed by R. Boos (1730-1810) and restored in 1852. —
In the middle of the Hof-G-arten is a small temple (1615) by H. ScMn,
surmounted by a bronze figure of Bavaria by H. Krumper, after the design
of P. Candid.

The ground-floor of the N". wing of the arcades contains the

Museum of Plaster Casts (adm., see p. 241; catalogue 50 pf.). —
On the upper floor, to the left of the exit into the G-alerie-Str., is

the extensive Ethnographical Museum (adm., see p. 240). Eoom I,

Objects from the Grerman colonies in Africa and recent acquisitions;

R. II, Africa; R. III-YI, Asia (Japan; in R. lY, Chinese carvings in

semi-precious stones); R. YII, Oceania and America. Peruvian an-

tiquities, see p. 296. — To the right of the exit is the Kunst-Verein
(PI. F 5, //; adm., see p. 242), containing paintings and sculptures

by living artists, changed weekly, some of them the property of the

society, others for sale.

On the E. of the Hof-frarten is the Bavarian Army Museum
(PL F, 5 ; //), an Italian Renaissance building by Melliuger, erected

in 1901-5. It contains also the Military Archives and the Military
Library. In front of the building is an equestrian statue of Otho

of Wittelsbach, by F. von Miller (1911), on both sides of which
are a number of cannon and mortars, several with elaborate orna-

mentation. Adm., see p. 240; to the gallery of the dome on Sun.,

Tnes., and Fri. 25 pf. Catalogue of 1913, 50 pf. (on loan 2p pf.).

In the Vestibule are eight statues of Bavarian rulers and old cannon,
incl. a leather cannon (Xo. 7) used in the Thirty Years' War. Above the
vestibule, on the first floor, is the fine Domed Hall, 105 ft. high, adorned
with captured flags, the flags of disbanded regiments, etc.

Rooms I-YI, on the left, contain the Early Collections (1500-1806). —
Room I. Weapons of the late 15th cent., incl. the first muskets (match-
locks; Xos. 155-167). — Room II shows the equipment of the mercenary
soldier (Landskuecht) of the 16th century. Besides the cutting and thrusting
weapons (incl. two halberds of particularly fine workmanship, Nos. 149
and 164:, by the middle column) there is a large number of improved
muskets (Nos. 13, 14, immediately to the right of the entrance) and wheel-
locks. — Room III illustrates the period of the Thirty Years' War.
25, 26 (immediately to the right of the entrance) , Armour of Pappeu-
heim's cuirassiers; 417. Standard of a cavalry -squadron of 1661-4. —
Room IY illustrates the period of Elector Max Emmanuel (1679-1726),
which was important for the Bavarian army on account of the Turkish
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wars, in which the audience-teut of G-rand-Vizier Suleyman (Xo. 189) was
raptured, and the war of the Spanish Succession. — Rooms V and VI.
Objects of the 18th century. — We return to the vestibule.

Rooms VII-XIV, straight on, contain the Modern CoUcctions (1806-

1906). — Room VII. Souvenirs of the wars of 1805-12. — Room VIIT.
Period of King Max I. Joseph (1813-25). — Rooms IX and X. Period
of Louis I. (1825-48), when percussion-caps (Nos. 75-83, in R. X, to the
left of the exit) superseded flint-locks. — Room XL Period of Maxi-
milian II. (1818-61) and the first years of the reign of King Louis II.,

when rifled barrels (Nos. 31-35, to the left of the entrance) and the first

breech-loaders (137. Werder rifle, to the left of the exit) were introduced. —
Room XII. Souvenirs of the Franco-German war of 1870-71. 90 a. The
first mitrailleuse captured at Worth. — Rooms XIII and XIV. Period from
1871 to 1906. To the right in R. XIV, 54. Captured Chinese weapons. —
We return to the vestibule and descend to the right.

Basement. The vestibule contains cannons. To the right, in the
N. wing, is the ArtiUcry Museum; to tlie left, in the S. wing, are the
Special Collections (models, experimental weapons, etc.).

At Kf3aigin-Str. 25, close by, is the Theatre Museum (PI. F,

4, 7; adm., see p. 241; if desired, the custodian shows visitors round

in winter), with a library (ca. 10,000 vols.), designs for scenery,

models of stages, 700 portraits, etc. On the ground -floor is the

Wohlmuth collection of 320 studies and sketches by Munich artists.

— Prinzregenlen-Str., see p. 290.

d. Ludwig-Strasse. Schwabing.

Most of the buildings in the handsome Lt'dwig-Strasse (Pi. F, 5,

4, /; tramways Nos. 3, 10, 13, 25, 26, and 3G), originated by King
Louis I., nearly 2/4 M. in length and 120 ft. in width, are in the

round -arched style of architecture, with strong emphasis on the

horizontal lines. The street begins on the S. at the Odeons-Platz

(Feldherrn-Halle, see p. 257) and ends on the N. at the Sieges-Tor.

In the Odeoxs-Platz (PI. F, 5; 11) rises the equestrian Statue
of King Louis I. (d. 1868), by Widnmann (1862); the two pages

at the side display the king's mottoes, 'Justice' and 'Perseverance'.

— To the left is the Odeon, erected in 1828 by Klenze, and destined

for concerts and the Academy of Music. The ceiling of the large

ball is decorated with frescoes by W. von Kaulbach, Eberle, and
Anschiitz. To the N". stands the Leuchtenbei-g-Palais, erected in

1817 by Klenze, and now occupied by Crown-Prince Rupert.

Farther N. in the Ludwig-Str., to the left (Xo. 8), is the Herzocj-

Karl-Palais (PI. F 5, //; no adm.), now occupied by the widow of

Duke Charles Theodore. It was built in 1828-30 by Klenze, with

frescoes by Langer, "NV. von Kaulbach, and Zimniermauu and a

marble frieze representing the myth of Bacchus by Schwanthaler.

On the right is the Kriegs-Miuisterium (War Office : PI. F, 4, 5, II),

also by Klenze (1824-30).

The * Royal Library {Bibliothelc ; PI. F 4, II: adm., see p. 241)

was built in 1832-43 by Gartner in the Florentine style. The steps
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are adorned with seated figures of Aristotle, Hippocrates, Homer,
and Thucydides, in limestone , by Sanguinetti and Mayer. In the

vaults of the ground -floor are the national archives of Bavaria.

Fine staircase with a broad flight of marble steps. At the top are

statues of Albert V., the founder (1561), and Louis I., the builder

of the library, both by Schwanthaler, The library comprises up-

wards of 1,150,000 vols, and 50,000 MSS., and is especially valuable

for its theological literature, German MSS. (Wessobrunner Gcbet,

before 814; Heliand, Muspilli, both ca. 830; MS. A of the Niebe-

lungen-Lied, late 13th cent. ; Codex Aureus of Emperor Charles the

Bald, 870; prayer-book of Emperor Maximilian I.; etc.), early

examples of French and Italian printing, and works on art and

architecture. The 'Fiirsten-SaaF (adm., see p. 241) contains an

exhibition of the most interesting MSS. and printed books, changt-d

yearly (the rarities known as 'Cimelien').
' The Xational Archives (see above; office-hours 8-4, Xov.-Fel). 8.30 3.."iO,

Sat. till 2) contain about 500,000 doenraents and include a collection of
medals and impressions of the seals of German emperors, princes, and
noblemen (shown on application).

The Ludwigs-Kirche (PI. F 4, /; adm., see p. 241), erected

in 1829-44 in the Italian Eomanesque style by Gartner, is 75 yds.

long, 50 yds. broad, and 85 ft. high. Facade flanked with two towers

210 ft. in height. Mosaic roof of coloured tiles. Above the portal

are statues of Christ and the Evangelists, by Schwanthaler. The
entire wall at the back of the high-altar is covered with the Last

Judgment, the largest of the frescoes of Cornelius (1836-40), 60 ft.

high, 35 ft. broad. The other frescoes, designed by Cornelius, were

executed by his pupils (God the Father, Nativity, and Crucifixion,

in the transepts; Patriarchs, Prophets, Apostles, and Martyrs, above

the crossing). — Opposite is i\ie Blind Asylum (PI. F, 4; /), erected

by Gartner in 1834-8 in the Florentine style.

The University, on the left, and the Priests' Seminary (Geor-
gianum) and Max Joseph Girls' School, opposite (all by Gartner,

1834-40), form a large square, intersected by the Ludwig-Str. and
adorned with two fountains copied from those by Bernini in the

piazza of St. Peter at Kome. The University (PI. F 4, /; over

6800 students;, founded in 1472 at Ingolstadt, was transferred to

Landshut in 1800, and thence to Munich in 1826. The University
Library, on the second floor, contains 650,000 vols, (week-days
8-1 and 3-6, Sat. 8-1 only;. In the Amalien-Str., parallel with the

older building, is an extension of the university, erected in 1905-8

by Bestelmeyer, with an elaborate facade. In front, on granite

monoliths, are bronze figures of Truth and Science, by H. Hahn
(1908). Fine staircase, with seated figures of Louis I. and Prince-

Regent Luitpold. The Auditorium Maximum (782 seats), the two
Aulee, and the rector's room should be visited (shown by the porter;

gratuity).
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The *Sieges-Tor (PI. F, 4; /), 85 ft. wide and 75 ft. hi^h,

erected by Louis I. 'to the Bavarian army', marks the termination

of the Ludwig-8tr. Begun by Gflrtucr in 1843 and completed by
Metzger in 1850, it is an imitation of the triumphal arch of Con-
stantine at Rome. It is crowned with a 'Bavaria' (18 ft. high) in a

quadriga drawn by lions, designed by M. "Wagner and executed by
Brugger. Over the eight Corinthian columns are figures of Victory;

on the walls, reliefs representing warlike exploits (below) and the

l^rovinces of the kingdom (above).

To the left of the Sieges -Tor, in the Akademie-Str., is the

Academy of Art (PI. F, 4; 7), in the Italian Renaissance style,

erected by Neureuther (1874-85). The central building is 200 yds.

long, Avhile the wings at the ends project 35 yds. On the flight of

steps in front of the main entrance 'are mounted figures of Castor

and Pollux, by "Widumann. The Aula, a hall added in 1912 by
F. von Thiersch, contains ten tapestries (ca. 1685; after Raphael's

frescoes in the Vatican.

From the Sieges -Tor the Leopold -Str. leads past the Palace
of Prince Leopold (PI. F, 3; /), on the left, and several pretty

villas to the suburb of Schwabing. Besides numerous villas and
private houses (in the Franz-Joseph-Str., Friedrich-Str., and Aiu-

miller-Str.) the modern buildings include the St. Ursula -Kirche
(PI. F, 2 ; 7), in the Kaiser-Platz, in the Italian early-Renaissance

style, by F. von Thiersch (1894-7), and the Protestant Erloser-
Kirche (PL G, 2 ; 7), in the German Romanesque style, by Th. Fischer

(1902 1, in the Band-Str. The quaint and simple Schools at Haini-

hauscr-Str. 5 (PI. G, 2; 7) and in the Elisabeth-Platz (PL F, 3; 7),

by Th. Fischer, should also be noticed. Near the latter, in front

of the Josephs -Kirche (PL E, 3; 7), is the Jonas - Brunnen , by
Hubert Netzer (1911). At the N. end of Schwabing is a large new
hospital (PL F, 1; 7), with 1000 beds. Adjoining this on the W.
is the new Prinz-LuUjwld-Park (PI. E, 1, 2; 7).

c. G-las-Palast. Basilica. Glyptothek.

In the Elisen-Str., N. of the Courts of Justice (p. 245), lie the

Old Botanical Gardens (PL E, 5; 77), the hot-houses of which
are now used for art -exhibitions. At the S.W. corner of the gar-

dens, almost opposite the girls' school (Luisen-Str. 9) erected by
Th. Fischer, is the Germanen-Brvnnev^ by Bernauer. — In the

Sophien-Str. is the Glas-Palast (PL E 5, 77; 255 yds. long,

central part 75 ft. high), erected in 1854 entirely of glass and iron.

Since 1888 it has been used for the annual Exhibitions of Art

(p. 242; restaurant). — A little to the E., at the corner of the

Ai co-Sir. and Barer-Str., is the monument of 7^. X. Gahelsherger
(d. 1849; PI. E 5, 77), inventor of a well-known system of shorl-

haud, by Eberle (1890),
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The *Basiiica of St. Boniface (PL E 5, //; adm., see p. 241),

in tlie Karl-Str., is an imitation of an early-Christian Italian basilica

of the 5th-6th cent., built by Ziebland in 1835-50. The church is

250 ft. long and 120 ft. broad.
Ikteriok. The nave and double aisles are supported by 66 monolithic

columns of grey Tj'rolese marble. Open timber roof with gilded beams. On
the right of the entrance is a sarcophagus of grey marble containing the

body of King Louis I. (d. 1868), his queen Theresa (d. 1854) being interred

in the vault below. Frescoes by H. von Hess and his pupils Schratidolph
and Koch: in the apse, eight figures of saints; on the walls of the nave,
scenes from the life of St. Boniface, beginning on the right of the altar;

above the columns in the nave, thirty -four medallion -portraits of the

popes from Julius III. to Gregory XVI. — Adjoining the choir of the

church is a Benedictine monastery, with a fine fresco of the Last Supper,
by H. von Hess, in the refectory.

To the K of the Basilica lies the *Ko^'igs-Platz (PI. E, 5; //),

with three classical edifices of the reign of Louis I.: the Exhibition

Building, the Propylsea, and the Clyptothek.

The Kunstausstellungs-Gebaude (Exhibition Building;

PI. E 5, 77), in the Corinthian style, with a portico of eight col-

umns, was completed by Ziebland in 1845. In the tympanum is

Bavaria bestowing wreaths on artists, by Schwauthaler. On the

upper floor is the picture-gallery of the Munich Secession (p. 244;

adm., see p. 242), with paintings by L. Corinth, Jul. Diez, H. von

Habermaun, A. von Keller, L. Samberger, Fr. von Stuck, Fr. von

Uhde, W. Volz, W. von Ziigel, etc. (catalogue of 1911, 1 Jl).

The *Propyl8ea (PI. E, 5; 77), a magnificent gateway in the

style of the Propylcea at Athens, with Doric columns outside and

Ionic inside, was designed by Leo von Klenze (1846-62). The re-

liefs by Jos. Schefzky (after Hilteusperger) represent scenes from

the (xreek war of independence and the reign of Otho I., the son of

Louis I., elected king of Greece in 1832 and expelled in 1862. On
the inner walls are inscribed the names of the heroes of the war
and of famous philhellenists.

The *Glyptotliek (PI. E, 4, 5; 77) contains ancient sculptures

collected chiefly by Louis I. when crown-prince, in 1805-16. The

building, erected by Leo von Klenze in 1816-30, the oldest museum-
building in G ermany , is externally in the Ionic style, with a jDor-

tico of eight columns; the interior is vaulted, and tends to the

Konian style. The group in the tympanum , designed by AYaguer,

and executed by Schwauthaler and others in marble, represents

Minerva as protectress of the plastic arts. The niches in front and

on the sides contain eighteen marble statues of famous sculptors

and patrons of the plastic art. The rooms are. not heated in winter.

Adm., see p. 240. Short catalogue (1911) 50 pf., with illustrations

(1912) 2 J^; detailed catalogue (1910) 3 JL
I. Assyrian Hall. At the entrance, two colossal lions with

human heads, casts of the originals from the palace of Sardanji-
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palus III. at Calah (Ninirud; 884-860 B.C.), now in the British Mu-
seum. In the hall, seven alabaster reliefs (1-7) from the palace of

Sardanapalus, originally coloured, with winged genii and cunei-

form inscriptions.

The glass cases contain the *Arndt Collection of small objects of
Greek and Italic art. Short guide (1908) 30 pf. In the middle, vases and
terracottas (beautiful figures in Cases B-D). To the left of the entrance,
archaic terracottas. Behind, in Case N, gold ornaments; in Case P,
bronzes. In Case R, etc., small grotesque heads from Smyrna.

II. Egyptiax Hall. At the entrance, 20, 21. Statues of black

marble in the style of Egyptian kings, of the time of Hadrian; 23,

24. Recumbent sphinxes, in basalt, of Egyptian workmanship; be-

tween them, 22. Obe-

lisk in syenite, of the

Roman period. To the

left, farther on, 25.

Horus, the god of the

sun, with the head of

a falcon, in black gra-

nite , early - Egyptian

;

27. Antiuotis as Osiris,

in rosso antico, of Ha-
drian's time; 26. Por-

trait-statue of a man
(Grseco-Roman period;;

29. Isis, aRoniau figure

with an early-Egyptian

head; 31. Relief with

the figure of a man
(3rd millennium B.C.);

*28, 37. (xroups of hus-

band and wife in a sit-

ting posture, in sand-

stone, the former with traces of painting (New
1100 B.C.); between these, 34, 34a. Portrait -statuettes in basalt
(Middle Empire; 2200-1700 B.C.); *45. Sitting figure of a high-
priest, in'limestone, early-Egyptian (ca. 1300 B.C.); 45!>. Head of a

statue in black granite, a Greek work of the Ptolemaic period.
III. Hall of the Ixcuxabula (lighted from above). Greek and

Etruscan art 'in cunabulis', i.e. 'in its cradle', and copies; also

sculptures of the 5th cent. B.C. and a few later Etruscan works.
Around the walls, 67-73. Fragments of a large bronze relief in the
archaic Greek style belonging to a chariot, found at Perugia and
perhaps made there i7th-6th cent. B.C.). On the left, 46. Upper
part of a statue of a warrior, in sandstone, an archaic Greek work
(late 7th'cent. B.C.); *47. Apollo of Tenea, an archaic Greek tomb-
figure of Parian marble (ca. 600 B.C.), found near Corinth, on the

Cinpire; 1600-
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site of the ancient Tenea; 47a. Figure of a youth resemhling the

Apollo of Tenjea (ca. 550 B.C.); 51. Spes, 56. Head of Eros(?), Roman
copies of early Greek originals (head of No. 51 antique, but not

belonging to it); 53, 54. Etruscan cinerary urns (3rd cent. B.C.);

between these, 53a. Aphrodite (hermes), perhaps after a work by

Phidias ; *55. Head of a youth, a marble copy of an early Greek bronze

original; 57. Bearded Bacchus, head modern; 49. Tyche (Fortuna)

with the cornucopia, an archaistic Roman reproduction; 60. Trian-

gular base of a censer (thymiaterion), in bronze, a fine Etruscan

work of the 6th cent. B.C.,' found at Perugia along with Nos. 67-73.

IV. .**^GixETAN Hall. Two pediment-groups from a Doric

temple of Aphaia in the island of ^gina, erected at the beginning

of the 5th cent. B.C. These sculptures in Parian marble, which

are of great importance in the history of art, were found in 1811,

purchased by Crown-Prince Louis in 1812, and restored fwrongly

in part) by Thorvaldsen. They commemorate the exploits of ^Egine-

tan heroes in the war against the Trojans. The only figure that can

be identified with certainty is the Hercules. The first group (on

the right, the E. pediment) consists now of five figures only; the

other (on the left, the W. pediment) has ten, executed in a some-

what severer manner. The figures are thick-set, with mask-like

heads and open mouths. On the wall opposite the window are

coloured reproductions (one-fifth natural size) of the temple facades.

Group on the right: 86. Advancing spearman (head modern), 87.

Fallen warrior (head modern), 88. Youth bending forwards, *85.

Fallen warrior, *84. Hercules as bowman. Group on the left: 74.

Pallas Athena (left arm not belonging to this statue), *75. Fallen

warrior, 76. Advancing spearman (head modern), 77. Bowman (head

modern), 78. Crouching spearman, 79. Fallen warrior, 80. Ad-

vancing spearman, 81. Bowman in Scythian costume, 82. Crouching

spearman (head modern), 83. Fallen warrior (head modern). By the

long walls, under glass, are smaller fragments.

Y. Hall of Apollo. 208. Draped statue of a Roman lady of

the time of Claudius (head ancient, but not belonging to this sta-

tue); *210. Girl's head, an admirable original of the Attic school

(4th cent. B.C.): *211. Colossal statue of Apollo Citharoedus

(Winckelmann's 'Barberini Muse'), found at Tivoli, a Roman copy

of a statue of the school of Phidias; 212. Head of Mars; *213.

Colossal bust of Athena, a Roman copy of a bronze original of the

time of Pericles; 213a. Dancing Muse(?), in the style of the 4th

cent. B.C.; *214. Statue of Diana, Roman, perhaps after a Greek

original of the late 5th cent. B.C.; 197. Roman lady as Ceres; 60a.

Head of a youth, after an original of the time of Phidias; 206a.

Statuette of a goddess, of the period of Hadrian; 206. "Worship of

a hero, Greek votive relief (subsequent to Alexander the Great);

207. Athena (head older than body),
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VI. Hall of Bac(iiis. Iu the centre: **218. Sleeping satyr,

the 'Barberiui Faun', a Greek original (3rd cent. B.C.; partly

restored). On the left: 219. Eirene and Plutus (Peace and Wealth),

a copy of the bronze original by Cephisodotus the Elder, an elder

contemporary of Praxiteles (early 4th cent. B.C.); 221. Silenus;

222. Head of a young centaur, after a bronze original of the 2nd-

1st cent. B.C.; 223. Bacchic sarcophagus; *225. Head of Jupiter

Amnion; 226. Apollo (with the head of Bacchus, not belonging to

this statue); 227. Artemis-Tyche, with the cornucopia, head restored

by Thorvaldsen; *228, 229. Satyrs reposing, probably after Praxi-

teles; 231. Bacchus, late- Roman; 232. Young satyr with a wine-

skin; *238. Silenus with the young Bacchus, freely restored. By
the wall to the left, 239. Niiptials of Neptune and Amphitrite, an

altar-relief of the 1st cent. B.C.

VII. PIall of the Niobids. In the doorway, 245. Head of the

youthful Hercules, perhaps after Lysippus. On the left: 246. Girl's

head, Hellenistic; 248, 253. Two fine women's heads; between tiiem,

250. Isis and Harpocrates; 250a. Small head (Eros?) of the Hellen-

istic-Roman period; 251. Rustic scene, a relief of the Augustan

period; above, *252. Head of Medusa ("Medusa Rondaniui'), a

Roman copy of a Greek original of the late 5th cent. B.C.; *258.

Venus in the style of the Cuidiau Venus of Praxiteles; 261. Head
of the young Pan, with horns ('Winckelmann's Faun'); 263. Head
of Paris (or Ganymede); 264. Decoration of a hermes, relief; 266.

Draped figure, restored by Thorvaldsen as a Muse. In the centre:

268. Boy with a goose, a Roman copy of the bronze original of

Boethns; 269. Dying Niobid; "270. Torso of a youth, copy of a

Greek work of the time of Praxiteles (4th cent. B.C.), known as

Ilioueus, a son of Niobe.

VIII. Hall of the Gods. This and the next two rooms are

adorned with frescoes by Peter von Cornelius (1S20-30): in R. VIII

the Abode of the Gods, iu R. IX the Legend of Promethens, in R. X
the Trojan AVar. — On the left: Attic tomb-relief of Plangon, a little

girl (4th cent. B.C.); 209. Attic sepulchral vase with relief (ca.

400 B.C.); 209a. Similar relief (4th cent. B.C.); 27 le. Fragment of

an Attic tomb-relief (head of an old woman; 4th cent. B.C.); 27 If.

Monument of Mnesarete, of admirable execution; 271. Head of Her-

cules(V); 272. Head of Mars, replica of the Mars Ludovisi at Rome;
274a. Pantheress, a tomb-iigure; niche to the right, 273. Head of

the blind Homer, after an original of the 5th cent. B.C.

IX. Small Vestibule. Roman busts (276. Marcus Aurelius).

X. Hall of the Trojans. In the niches to the right: 283.

Statuette of Hercules, after an original of the school of Lysippus;

284. Statuette of a dancer (Attic; 1st cent. B.C.I Modern sculp-

tures: 489 a. Wrba, Diana and the hind; 507. IhuHer, Mower shar-

pening his scythe; 505. Stuck, Athlete; 491a. Meunier, Puddler.

Baedeker's S. Germany. 12th Edit. 17
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XI. Hall OF THE Heroes. In the entrance, 292. Head of Demos-
thenes. On the left: *295. Statue of a god (Vulcan?) or hero, after

an early Argive bronze (ca. 460 B.C.); 297. Chrysippus(?); *298.

Alexander the Great, Roman copy of a contemporary work (arms

and right leg restored); 299. Head of a Greek general of the time

of Pericles; 300. Hermes; 301. Head of a Greek general of the

time of the Peloponnesian war; *302. Athlete anointing himself

with oil, a copy of an original in the style of Myron; 304. Diomedes
carrying off the Palladium, after a Greek original in bronze (the

Victory not part of the original); beside it, 304a. Hand with part

of the Palladium, from a replica; 291. Head of Socrates. In the

centre, *287. Hermes, after a bronze original of Lysippus (head

not belonging to the statue).

XII. Hall of the Romaxs ^in three sections), with a valuable

collection of busts, chiefly of the Empire. By the doors: 305, 306,

and (at the end) 371, 372. Caryatides. First section: to the left,

*309. So-called Sulla (breast restored); 311. Roman lady of the

time of Claudius. Busts: 314. Tiberius; 316. The younger Agrip-

pina; *317. Augustus; *319. So-called Marius, 320. Old Roman,
both of the Republican period; *321.]S'ero; 324. So-called Maecenas.

Over the busts, 328. Roman sarcophagus-relief with Lnna and En-
dymion; below, 326. Sarcophagus with the Muses, Apollo, and
Athena. On the window-side: 413. Portrait-head (late Republican
period); *417. Son of Constantine the Great. — Second section.

On the left, 331. Statue with the head of Septimius Severus. Busts:

334. Apollodorus, probably Trajan's architect of that name; *335,

336. Trajan; *337. Antoninus Pius; 338. Titus; 339. Portrait-head

of the Antonine period. Over the busts, 348. Frieze, with Victories

sacrificing; below, 345. Sarcophagus -relief with the Death of the

Niobids; upon it, 338a. Portrait-head of an infant; to the left and

right, 346, 347. Two pulvinaria (seats of the gods), with appropriate

attributes. In the middle, several candelabra. On the other side

are less important busts: 399. Lucius Verus; 400. Antinous. By
the pillars adjoining the next section: 350. Portrait-statue with

head of Augustus; 394. Statue of Nero(?). In the middle, 437.

Drunken woman (after a Pergamenian bronze). — Third section.

On the left, 353. Septimius Severus; 354. Julia Domna, wife of

Severus; 356. Otacilia Severa, wife of Philippns Arabs; 357. Sep-

timius Severus; 358. Commodus; 360. Philip the Younger; 362.

Portrait of the 3rd cent. A.D. Over the busts, 365. Sarcophagus-

relief with Bacchic procession; below, 363. Sarcophagus-relief with

Orestes and Iphigenia in Tauris. On the window-side, less inter-

esting busts. At the end of the room: on the left, 367. Statue of

Livia Drusilla, wife of Augustus; on the right, 375. Bust of Lucius

Verus; 377. Statue of Matidia (?), niece of Trajan, as Ceres. In the

centre: 439. Sacrificial altar, with Mercury; 440. Sepulchral urn.
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XIII. Hall of the Coloured Sculptures. In the centre, Roman
mosaic; upon it, 447. Archaic candelabrum. To the left: 449. God-

dess, in black and white marble, freely restored; *4i>0. Head of a

satyr, in bronze; 453. River-god, in black marble; 455. Good Roman
relief of a rustic scene (Augustan period); 456. Greek votive-relief

fb^licated to Pan (Roman period); *457. Bronze head of a youth,

a Greek work of the 5th cent. B.C.; 458. Athlete, in black marble;

459. Nymph, fountain -figure in black and white marble, a good

Roman work; 448a. Head of a laughing satyr, in green basalt (late-

Hellenistic); 463. Bronze statue of the young Zeus (Etruscan; 3rd-

2nd cent. B.C.); 441. Tripod with a bronze statuette of Silenus

(Etruscan; 5th cent. B.C.); *466. Young satyr, in black marble;

444. Bronze portrait -statue of a lady, a good early-Roman work
(head modern); 448. Head of Socrates, in bronze.

XIV. Hall of the Moderns. On the left: 484. Cat/ova, Paris;

485. R. JSchadoiv, Woman fastening her sandal; 486. Spalla, Bust

of Napoleon (1808); 487. Thorvalclsen , Bust of Louis I. when
crown-prince (1821); 472. Terracotta head, Florentine work of the

15th cent.; 501. Wi^ha, Bust of a woman; 517. W. Ziigel, Ducks;

494. Dittler, Archer; 497. Taschuer, Parzival; 510. Gaul, Goats

resting; 499. Bermann, Bust of F. von Lenbach; 518. Hildebraiid,

The sculptor Flossmann (bronze bead); 476. Flossmann, Mother-

hood, a marble group. Busts: 477. Dannecker, Elector Palatine

Frederick the Victorious; 495. Ranch, Admiral Tromp; 475.

Schadoiv , Iffland. 482. Tenerani, Vesta, marble statue; 508.

Hildehrand, Bust of a girl; 483. Thorvaldsen, Statue of Adonis.

In the centre: 470. Rumann, Ludovica, Duchess of Bavaria, tonib-

fignre; 469. A. J. Carles, Dead Abel.

In the Luisen-Str. (No. 33), near the Propylsea, is the Villa

Lenbach (PI. E, 4; //), built in the Italian Renaissance style by

G. von Seidl (1887). Inside the building to the left is the Lenbach

gallery, with numerous original works, straight on are the dwelling-'

rooms (adm. 2-5, Nov.-April 2-4, Sun. 10-12; 1 ^). A little to the

N. is the School of Industrial Art. — To the W. of the Propylaea,

at Brienner-Str. 20, is the old Palace of Count Schack, built by

Gedon in 1872-4, and now containing the art collections of the Berlin

artist Franz Naager. Schack Gallery, see p. 297.

f. N.W. Quarters. Old and New Pinakothek.

The Bkienner-Strasse (PI. E, F, 5; //) leads W. from the

Odeons-Platz (p. 259) to the Karolinen-Platz. The Wittelsbacher

Platz (PI. F, 5; II), on the right, is adorned with the equestrian

Statue of Elector Maximilian I. (d. 1651), victor at the Weisser

Berg near Prague in 1620, by Thorvaldsen (1839). — The Palace of

Count Arco-Zinneberg, Wittelsbacher Platz 1, contains a rare

17*
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and interesting Collection of Antlers (open on week-days, 9-11 and

2-4; gratuity to attendant). — Farther on, to the left, is a statue of

Schiller byVidnmann (1863). To the right is the red Wittels-
bach Palace (PI. F 5, //; no adm.), in the medieeval English

pointed style, built in 1843-50 by Gartner, the residence of Louis I.

after his abdication and occupied at present by King Louis III.

Opposite, in the Turkeii-Str.. is the Tonhalle rformerly \.\\e Kaim-
Saal), built by Diilfer in 1895, with concert-rooms (fine hall), club-rooms,
etc. — In the Gabelsberger-Str., a little N.E., is the Protestant iHfa/'te/s-

Kirche (PI. F, 5 ; II), erected by Gottgetreu in the Gothic style in 1873-7.

In the Karolixex-Platz (PL E, 5; II) rises a bronze Obelisk,

105 ft. in height, erected by Louis I. in 1833 to the memory of the

30,000 BaA^arians who perished in the Russian war of 1812 ('They

too died to liberate their country'). — At No. 3, Karoliuen-Platz,

in the garden-building, to the right, is Baron von Lotzbeek's
Collection of Paintings (open Tues. and Fri. 9-3, gratuity;

catalogue 30 pf.).

Ce^tkal Hall. Sculptures: 1. Halbig , King Louis I.; 2. Tho?'-

vaJdsen, Venus ; 3. Iloyer, Psyche ; 7-10. Troschel, Four reliefs. Paint-
ings : 11. Riedel, Sakuntala ; A)'y Scheffer, 16. Faust and Gretchen,
17. Walpurgis-Nacht ; B. and F. Adam, 21. Stable, 2-1. Hunt; 25. Gail,
Storming of a Spanish monastery. — Left Wing. Modern pictures:
30. Manuel, Baron C. L. von Lotzbeck; Rottmann, 37. Untersberg,
38. Perugia; BiirTcel, 41. Village smithy, 49. Mountain - pasture ; 45-48.

Kunz, Cattle. Old pictures: 97. Antonello da. Messina, Portrait of a
man ; 8. Lor. Lotto (?), Rest on the Flight into Egj'pt ; 99. Ang. Bronzino (?),

Portrait of a woman; 101. Jac. Bassano. Portrait of a woman. — Right
WisG. Modern pictures: 60. Riedel, Medea; 61. Morgenstern, Near
Rorschach; 64. A. Adam, Arabian horses; 68. Diaz, Girl in a landscape;.
79. P. von Hess, Scene on the Loire. Old pictures : 89. Cologne School (ca.

1530), Portrait of a man: 94. Lievens, Portrait of a boy; 95. Teniers the
Younger, Peasant with a hare ; 96. School of Giotto (ca. 1360), St. Peter.

The Barer-Str. leads N. to the —
**01d Pinakothek (PI. E 4, //; adm., see .p. 241 ; entr. Barer-

Str. 27; tramways Xos. 2, 6, and 16), 500 ft. long, 90 ft. wide,

and 90 ft. high, erected in 1826-36 by Klenze in the Renais-

sance style. On the S. side, on the attic above, are twenty-four

statues of celebrated painters from sketches by Schwauthaler. The
gallery contains over 1000 pictures, arranged by periods aud

schools, in thirteen rooms and twenty-three cabinets. Each picture

is labelled. Catalogue (1913) 1 ^, or bound with 200 illustrations

(1911) 41/2 <J(. The cabinets should be visited immediately after

the rooms to which they belong, in order to preserve the historical

sequence.
As early as the 16th aud 17th centuries the Bavarian princes were

noted for their love of art. Elector Maximilian I. in particular was an
admirer of Diirer, and secured at Nuremberg several of that master's
works. In 1805 this collection was enriched bj- the removal to Munich
of the celebrated Diisseldorf gallery , founded by the Electors of the
Palatinate. The numerous Xetherlandish works of the 17tli cent. , in-

cluding the fine examples of Rubens, formed part of the Diisseldorf Gal-
lery. The third constituent part of the Pinakothek is the Boisseree
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collection , being works of the Lower Rhenish school rescued by the
brothers Sulpiz and Melchior Boisseree and their friend Bertram from
churches and convents suppressed at Cologne in 1805-10. Purchases in

the Netherlands added some important works of the Van Eyck school.
The addition of this valuable collection to the Pinakothek in 1827 placed
it in the foremost rank as a gallery for the study of northern art. Under
King Louis I. the gallery was considerably extended by purcliases in

Italy and by the addition of tlie Wallerstein collection in 1828.

The pre-Raphaelite Italian schools are scantily represented in

Munich; the most important examples are the Annunciation by Fra
Filippo Lippi (Room VIII, No. 1005); Sandro Botticelli's Pietii

(Room YIII, 1010); an altar-piece by Ghirlandaio (R. VIII, 1011-

1013); the Madonna by Signorelli (R. VIII, 1561); Cima da
Conegliano's Madonna (Cabinet XX, 1033); Francia's Madonna
(R. VIII, 1039j; and Perugino's Vision of St. Bernard (R. VIII,

No. 1034). The finest of the works by Raphael is undoubtedly the

Madonna of the Tempi family (Cabinet XIX, 1050), painted in his

Florentine period; the contemporary Holy Family of the Cauigiani

family (R. VIII, 1049) has suffered from cleaning, the angels at the

top having entirely vanished. There exist several replicas of the

Madonna della Teuda (Cabinet XIX, 1051 ; Roman period) at Turin

and elsewhere, but the Munich example is considered the best.

Not one of the Avorks ascribed to Correggio is authenticated. The

best of the many examples of the Venetian school are Titian's

Charles V. (R. IX, 1112), his Christ crowned with thorns (R. IX,

1114), andPalma Fecc^io'sPortrait of himself (Cabinet XX, 1107).

Murillo's exquisite Beggar -boys (R. XI) are sure of attention.

Early Flemish paintiug is seen to the greatest advantage in Rogier
van "der Weyden's Triptych (R. II, 101-103) and St. Luke (R. II,

100), Memling's Seven Joys of Mary (R. I, 116), and the altar-

pieces and triptych by Dierick Bouts (R. I, 107-111). The Cologne

works of the 15th and 16th centuries will chiefly attract the pro-

fessional eye, but several works of the Svrabiau and Franconian

schools are of general interest and high artistic importance. Pro-

minent among these stands Holbein the Elder s altar-piece with

St. Sebastian (Room of the Altar-pieces, 209-211). Diirer's Four

Apostles, or the 'Four Temperaments' (R. Ill, 247, 248\ the pain-

ter's 'testament as artist, as man, as patriot, and as Protestant',

deserve the closest study, especially the magnificent St. Paul in the

famous white robe, unrivalled in its plastic modelling. Other im-

portant works bv Diirer are his Portrait of himself (Cabinet III,

239), the Portrait of 0. Krell (Cabinet III, 236), and the Paum-
gartner altar-piece (R. Ill, 240-242). The Battle of Arbela

(Cabinet V, 290) bv Alhrecht Altdorfer, the Crucifixion (Cabinet III.

267) by Barthel Beham (d. 1540), the Portrait of Count Palatine

Philip'(Cabinet III, 286) by Hans Baldung Gricn, and the SS. Eras-

mus and Maurice (R. Ill, '281) by Matthias Grilnewald arc also

deserving of notice.
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Next to Antwerp aud Vienna, Muuicli best shows the versatility

of Ruhens. Among the seventy-four pictures catalogued here under

his name are several school -pieces and much mediocre work, but

they include also several of his finest creations. The vast range of

his genius may be estimated by glancing from the stupendous Last

Judgment to the Lion-hunt, from the Battle of the Amazons to the

Children Avith festoons of fruit, from the sketches for the Medici

pictures in the Louvre to the Bacchanalian scenes. Rubens's best

pupil Van Dyck is also well represented by several portraits

(R.VII and Cabinet XIII). The Descent from the Cross (Cabinet VIII,

326) is the finest of the eleven examples of Remhrandt. The can-

vases of Adrian Brouwer (Cabinet XV) , notable for their rarity,

the genre-pieces of Terburg and Metsu, aud the humorous subjects

of Jan jSteen also deserve attention. Of the works of the Italian

painters of the 17th aud 18th cent. G. B. Tiepolo's large Adoration

of the Magi (R. X, 1271) should not be missed. The Pieta of

N. Poussin (R, X, 1321) is a work of great beauty.

From the entrance we ascend the staircase to the left. On the

landing at the top are portraits of the founders and enrichers of

the gallery from Elector Maximilian I. (d. 1651) to King Louis I.

(d. 1868). We pass straight into the —
Room of the Altar-pieces of the German schools of the

15th-16th centuries. First section: *298, 298a and b. M. Packer,

Altar of the four church-fathers, with scenes from the legend of

St. Wolfgang on the wings; Westphalian School (ca. 1450-60),

1511. Nativity, 1512. Adoration of the Magi; between these, 1472.

Hans Fries, Portions of an altar-piece; above, 1533. Ja7i Pollacl',

Death of St, Corbinian; to the right of the door, 1578. Hans Traut,

Madonna of the protecting mantle; *1590. Ulr. Apt, Triptych, in

the middle SS. Narcissus and Matthew in a landscape, on the wings

Madonna and Child with St. John; above, 1532. Jan Pollack,

St. Corbinian's beast of burden. — Second section: M. Reichlich,

1543, 1543 a and b. Altar of SS. James and Stephen, 1545, 1546.

Four scenes from the life of the Virgin; 1576. Ty^'olese (ca. 1470),

Archduke Sigismund; 996. Tyrolese (ca. 1490), Portrait of a man;
*214-217. M. Schaffner, Wettenhausen Altar, NatiAity and Adora-

tion of the Magi (wood-carving), on the right and left Christ taking

leave, and on the front of the wings (third section) the Annunciation,

Presentation, Descent of the Holv Ghost, and Death of the Virgin. —
Third section: 209, *210, *21L H. Holbein the Elder, Triptych,

in the centre Martyrdom of St. Sebastian, on the wings (by Sigmund
Holbein ?) SS. Barbara and Elizabeth (on the back of the wings the

Annunciation).
This work may be styled the artist's masterpiece, and far transcends

any of his previous efforts. Without excessive or violent motion, the

picture is full of dramatic power. The head of the saint is well in-
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dividualized and expressive of a high degree of patient suflfering, while
the nude body shows careful observation of nature. See ^Holbein und
seine Zeit\ by Professor Alfred Woltmann.

175, 176. B. Zeifblom, SS. Margaret and Ursula; lo42. Ratisbon
School, Mau of iSorrows ; 1497. Gabr. Mdlesskircher, Crucifixion. —
On the long wall; to the left, 110-121. Pierre des Mare.s, Triptych,

Crucifixion, on the wings the Trinity and the Madonna on the cres-

cent inoon; 43-45. Master of the Holy Kiitshij), Triptych, Circum-

cision and saints: above (on either side of the door), 9-18, School

of Stejjhan Lochner, Wings of an altar from Heisterbach, with

saints and scenes from tlie Annunciation to the Deatli of tlie Virgin.

Early Netherlandish and Lower Rhenish Schools. —
Room I. On the left (W. wall): 112, *1449, 113. Dierick Bouts,

Altar-piece, Arrest of Christ, Resurrection, and St. John the Evan-
gelist. — X. wall: 125, 126. School of Memlinrj, Diptych, Madonna

in a hedge of roses, St. George and donor; 1454. Master of the

Death of the Virgin (Joos van Cleve ?), Portrait of a woman; *116.

//. Memling, The seven joys of the Virgin.
'We feel at once, in looking at this picture, the absence of linear

perspective and atmosphere
;
yet the episodes are so complete in them-

selves, and so cleverly arranged and executed, that they produce a deep
impression; and the colours are so bright, so clear, and so admirably
contrasted, that we necessarily yield to a grateful sense of rest.' — ('. <£ C.

60-62. Antwerp Master, Triptych; 115. H. Memling, John

the Baptist; 1505. Master of Moulins, Cardinal Charles II. of

Bourbon; 133. B.van Orley, The chancellor Carondolet. — S. wall:

Dierick Bouts, *111, *110. Wings of the Last Supper in St-Pierre

at Louvain, Gathering manna in the desert, Abraham and Melchise-

dech, *107-109 (between these). Triptych, in the centre the Adora-

tion of the Magi, on the wings SS. John the Baptist and Christopher;

1468. Corn. Engelbrechtsen, Pieta,

Room II. On. the left (S. wall): *55-57. Master of the Death

of the Virgin, Triptych, in the centre the Death of the Virgin, on

the wings the donors with their patron-saints; 1455, 1456. Colin

de Coter, Fragments of a Last Judgment; between these, 1446.

J. BuecTcelaer, The fishmongers. — W. wall: 157. B. van Orley,
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St. Xorbert confuting the heretic Trachellius; 1469. C. Engel-

hrechtsei), SS. Constantine and Helena; between these, 134. Willem
Key, Pieta. — X. wall: 118. G. David, Adoration of the Magi;

97, 98. M. van Coxie, Virgin and John the Baptist (copies of Hubert

van Eyck's altar-piece at Ghent); between these, *100. Bogie?' van
der Weyden, St. Luke drawing the Virgin's portrait; *101-103.

i?. van derWeyden, Altar of the Magi, in the centre the Adoration

of the Magi, on the wings the Annunciation and Presentation.
'J^o picture of the master is more imbued with religious feeling;

none is more happily arranged and carried out.' Croice & Cavalcasellc.

Above, 41. Master ofSt.Severin, Christ on the Mount of Olives.

— E. wall: 1509. 'Meister des Haiisbuchs\ X^ativity; 63. V. and

H. Diinwegge, Crucitixion. — S. wall: *48-50. Master of the Altar

ofSt. Bartholomew, Triptych, in the centre SS. Bartholomew, Ag-
nes, and Cecilia, on the wings St. John the Evangelist and SS. Mar-
garet, Christina, and James; 136. School of Matsys, Two tax-

gatherers; l^S. Marinus van Roymersicaele (after Matsys), The
money-changer and his wife. — We retrace our steps and pass

through R. Ill und Cabinet II into —
Cabinet I. On the right (W. walli. 4, 3. Stephan Lochner,

Saints; between these, 29. School of the Master of the Life of
the Virgin, Coronation of the Virgin. — S. wall: *24, *27, *23.

Master of the Life of the Virgin, Presentation of the Virgin in

the Temple, Visitation, Xativity of the Virgin; above, 124. Cologne
School (ca. 1500i, Legend of SS. Anthonv and Paul the hermits;

52. B. Bruyn, Bearing of the Cross. — E^ wall: *28, *25. Master
of the Life of the Virgin, Assumption, Marriage of the Virgin

;

219. Master of Liesborn, Portrait of an architect: *1. Meister
Wilhelm of Cologne, St. Veronica wdth the napkin; 2. Style of
Stephan Lochner, Madonna and saints; 5. Stephan Lochner, The
Virgin in a hedge of roses; 1524. Style of Stephan Lochner,
St. Jerome; *26, *22. Master of the Life of the Virgin, Annuncia-
tion, SS. Joachim and Anne.

Cabinet II. E. wall: 146. Herri met de Bles, Adoration of

the Magi; 660. Joos van Cleve the Younger, Portrait of a man;
91. Lower Bhenish Scliool (ca. 1495), Portrait of Hans von Melem

;

150. Stuart van Groeningen, Preaching of John the Baptist; 90.

Barth. Briiyn, Portrait of a man ; 145. Herri met de Bles, An-
nunciation. — S. wall: 1477, 1478. Jan Gossaert (f). Portraits of

a man and woman; 155. Jan Gossaert, Madonna; 144. Style of
Patinir, Landscape with St. Hubert; 1315. Fr. Clouet, Claudia,

daughter of Henri II. of France. — 'W. wall: 151. Adriaen Isen-

hrant. Rest on the Flight into Egypt; 1316. Ant. Caron, A young
noblewoman; 149, 148. Lucas van Leyden, Annunciation (centre

restored), Virgin with Mary Magdalene and the donor as St. Joseph;
French School (ca. 1520;, 94. Portrait of a man, 1470. Denise
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Fournicr; above, 117. Gerard David, INEarriagc of 8t. Catharino;

156. Jan Gossaerf, Danac.

S. German Schools. — Room III. E. wall: Hans Burf/kmair,

*1451a-e. Altar of the Crucifixion from the Salvator-Kirche at

Augsburg (1519), Christ and the two thieves on the Cross, on the

outer wings Emperor Henry II. and St. George, *222a-e (on the

left), Altar of St. John, in the centre St. John in Patmos, on the

wings SS. Erasmus and Nicholas, on the outer wings John the

Baptist and St. John the Evangelist; above, 198-200. H. Holbew
the Elder, Outer wings of the Kaisheim Altar (comp. below), with

the Passion. — S. wall: 271. L. Cranach the Elder, Lucretia; 232.

231. M. Wohlgeraut, Deposition, Crucifixion; 188, 189. B. Strif/el,

Conrad Rehlingen, the Augsburg patrician, and his children; be-

tween these, *281. AI. Griinewald, Disputation between SS. Mau-
rice and Erasmus: 229, 230. M. Wohlyemut, Resurrection, Christ

on the Mount of Olives; 1462. L. Cranach the Younger, Yenus

and Cupid; above, H.Schdufelein, 263, 1552, 260, 261. Scenes from

the life of the Virgin, 1551. Liberation of St. Peter, 'I'o'I. St. Peter

walking on the sea. — W. wall: 254, 255. Hans von Knlmhach,
Saints ; between these, *1604. Loiver Franconian Master {ca. 1500),

Altar-piece, in the centre the Adoration of the Shepherds, on the

wings St. John in Patmos and St. Jerome ; *240, '^241, *242. A. Dilrer,

The Paumgartner Altar (ca. 1498), in the centre the Nativity, on

the wings the donors as'SS. George and Eustace (on the back of

No. 241 the Virgin, in grey and white); on either side, 1584, 1585.

Master of Messkirch (Jorg Ziegler), Saints; above (on either side

of the door), 201-208. H. Holbein the Elder, Inner wings of the

Kaisheim Altar (comp. above), with scenes from the life of the Virgin.

— N. wall: **247, **248. A. Dilrer, SS. Peter and John the Evan-

gelist, SS. Paul and Mark (see p. 269; completed in 1526).
The four Apostles are at tlie same time prototypes of tlie four

'Complexions', St. Jolin representing tlie melancholic, St. Peter tlie

phlegmatic. St. Paul the choleric, and St. Mark the sanguine temperament.
The panel with SS. Paul and Mark is the finer of the two. St. Paul is

one of the most majestic figures ever conceived by the master, and
appears as if just on the point of battling for his "faith with word w
blow. A great deal more labour in the details has been bestowed upon
St. Paul than upon the otlier figures, and it is also the best preserved.

The white mantle is a marvel of plastic painting and is adn\irably

shaded. — 'Dilrer', by Frof. Moritz Tha using.

Between these, 233. Hans Pleydcnwurff, Crucifixion; 1516.

Hans Maltscher, Man of Sorrows i studio-piece); A. Dilrer. 238.

Pieta, 244. Lucretia; 1527. M. Pacher, Coronation of the Virgin;

256, 257. //. von Knlmhach, Saints; above (on either side of the

door), 263 a, 261a, 262 a," 1554, 260a, 1553. H Schiinfelein, Scenes

from the Passion.

Cabinet III. E. wall: **239. A. Dilrer, Portrait of hinisflf

(1500); 1443. Jatopo de Barbari, Slill-lile UJ^-^j; -1- DUrer,
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*236. Oswolt Krell (1499), *249. Jacob Fugger the Rich; 267.

B. Beham, Finding of the Cross. — S. wall: 269. L. Refiyu/er,

Self-sacrifice of Marcus Ciirtius; 295. M. Feselen, The town ol'

Alesia besieged by Julius C<3esar; between these, 1442. H. Balduny
Grien, Nativity. — W. wall: H. Baldinuj Grien, 286. Count Pa-

latine Philip the Warlike, * 1441. Allegory of Music; 245. A.Dui'er,

8S. Joachim and Joseph (from the Jabach Altar); *1486. Matthias
Griliiewaldj blocking of Christ; A, Dilrer, 246. 88. Simeon and

Lazarus (from the Jabach Altar), *237. Portrait of a young man
(Hans Diirer?); above, *1440. H. Balduny Grien, Allegory of

Wisdom (?); above, 1583. Barth. ZeitHom, St. Anne, Madonna, and

Cliild; 287. H. Baldung Grien, Margrave Christopher of Baden.

Cabinet IV. E, wall: 174. M. Schongauer, Xativity; H. Hol-

bein the Younger, *212. Derich Born (1533), 213. Sir Bryan Tukc

(school-piece; Death added later); 1460. L. Cranarh the Elder,

Crucifixion, with Cardinal Albert of Brandenburg; 1490. H. Holbein
the Younger, Derick Berck (school-piece); 272. L. Cranach the

Elder, ^mdll round Madonna. — S.wall: B.Strigel, 1592. Madonna,

190. Herr Haller, 183. David with the head of Goliath; 192. Hans
Maler(f), HerrRonner; 1438. Chr. Amberger (f). Madonna; 218.

M. Schaffner, Count von Getting; above, L. Cranach the Elder,

1609. Destruction of Pharaoh, 1610. Lucretia, 1608. Sacrifice of

Abraham. — W. wall: L. Cranach the Elder, 280. Crucifixion,

270. Madonna, 1461. Margrave Joachim of Brandenburg, *1457.

Crucifixion (1503), 279. St. Anne, Madonna, and Child, 1458. Duke
George the Bearded of Saxony, 1459 (above), Hans Melber.

Cabinet V. E. wall: *288. A. Altdorfer, Wooded landscape

(St. George and the Dragons ; 1526. M. Ostendorfer, The napkin

of Christ; A. Altdorfer, *290. Battle of Arbela, *293. Mountain

landscape, 291. Glorification of the Virgin; 1612. M. Ostendorfer,

Crucifixion. — S.wall: 223. Hans Wertinger, Duke William IV.

of Bavaria; H. Muelich, 1514. St. Jerome, 1515. Duke Albert V.

of Bavaria; 251. Hans Weiditz, Holy Family; 224. H. Wertinger,

Duchess Maria of Bavaria ; 1541. L. Refinger (f), Storv of Susanna.
— AV. wall: 1582. Hans Wechtlin, Pieta; A. Altdorfer, *1437.

Nativity of the Virgin, 289. Susanna.

Dutch School. — Room IV. On the left (E. wall): 315, 316.

Barth. van der Heist, Portraits of a man and woman; between

these, *629. A. van Beyeren, Still-life. — S. wall: 341, 342. Rem-
brandt, Portraits of a man and woman (copies); between these,

647. M. d'Hondecoeter, Cock-fight; 307. Abr. Bloemaert,'RaLismg

of Lazarus; *359. Frans Hals(f), Large family portrait; 363, 364.

Nic. Maes, Portraits of a man and woman; between these, 611.

Lieve Verschuier, Canal scene; 349. G. van den Eeckhout, Ex-
pulsion of Hagar. — W. wall: 319, 320. J. van Ravesteyn, Por-

traits of a man and woman; between these, 487. A. van der Velde,
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Evening scene with cows; 338, 339. F. Bol. The painter Govert

Flinck(y; and his wife; between these, 355, Aert de G'elder, Jewish

bride. — N. wall: Jaii Weoiix, 640. Animals and fruit, 638.

Hunting scene; -324. Retnhrandt, Holy Family (1631); 547. Jac.

van Ruysdaelj Landscape with waterfall; *812. Corn. deVos, The
Ilutten family; 1467. (r. van den Eeckhout, Alexander and the

women of Darius; 566. A. van Everdimjen, Northern landscape with

waterfall; 332. Bembt'andt, Sacritice of Abraham; Jan Weeni.v,

()37. Hunting scene, 641. Dead birds. — E. wall: 649. Jac. Victor,

Poultry yard; 639. Jari Weenix, Dead game; *579. Jan Wynanfs,
Morning scene, with figures by A. van de Velde.

Cabixet VI. E. wall: 535. J. von Goyen, Landscape; 313. Jan
van Ravesteyn (not Mierevelt), Portrait of a man; 622. J. D. de
//ee?/*, 8till-life; Simon de Vlieyer. Calm sea; *537. J. van Goyeii,

View of Leydeu; 322. A. de Vi'ies, Portrait of a woman. — S. wall:

530. Es. van de Velde, Merry-making on the ice; "367. ./. Duel-,

Camp-scene; 541. S.vanRuysdael, River-bank; 536. J.vanGoyen,
Fishing-boats; 368. J. Duel:, Officers playing cards; *475. A. Cuyp,
Landscape; 540. S. van Ruysdael, Landscape. — W. wall: 543.

S.vanRnysdael,ljiin(\HCA\)(' witli watch-tower; 318. Janssens van
Cetden, Portrait; 353. Sal. Koninck, Jesus teaching in the Temple;
361. Th. de Kayser, Man and wife; *545. Jac. van Rmjsdael,
Forest landscape; 314. M. J. van Mierevelt, Portrait.

Cabinet VII. E. wall: *544. Jac. van Ruysdael, Sandy road

(1667); 1453. P. Claesz, Still-life; 478. K. du Jardin, The sick

goat; 548. Jac. i'a?i Z?«?/sfZ«eZ. Marshy forest; 1489. W. C.Heda,
Still-life. — S. wall: 634. J.B.Weenix, Sleeping tambourine-player;

659. H. van der Myn, Flowers; 379. Is. van Ostade, Peasants

outside a village tavern. — W. wall: 551. Jac. van Ruysdael,
Group of oaks and a torrent; 390. M. Siveerts (not Terburg), Tavern

scene; *542. Sal. van Ruysdael, River landscape.

Cabinet VIII. E. wall: *330. Rembrandt, Entombment (1639).
This remarkable series of scenes from the history of Christ (Xos. 326-

331) was executed in 1633-39 for Prince Frederick Henry, Stadtholder of
the Netherlands. The finest of the series is the Entombment, which is

painted with a broad and vigorous touch, and is of ample, dry, and granu-
lated impasto. The colouring in general is sombre, and in the back-
ground and tlie figures in the foreground there are shades of brown which
recall the Spanish colourists. A powerful effect is produced by the group
on which tlie high light falls, where the colours have been laid on with
great freedom. — 'Rembrandt; sa Vie et ses (Euvres\ by C. Vosjn<ier.

Rembrandt, 333. Portrait of himself (1655; copy), *328. As-

cension (1636); 588. J. Both, Italian autumn scene, — S. wall:

*326, Rembrandt, Deposition: 405. G. Don, Maidservant emptying

a jug; Rembrandt, David before Saul (on loan): 1498. P. Last-

man, Philip and the Ethiopian eunuch; 404. (t. Dou, Old woman
combing a boy's hair; *327. Rembrandt , Raising of the Cross
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(1633). — W. wall: Rembrandt, *329. Resurrection, 325. Man in

Turkish costume (1633), *331. Adoration of the Shepherds (1646).

Cabinet IX. E. wall: *389. Terhurg , Boy with a dog; 373,

372. A. van Ostade, Merry peasants; between these, 426. P.

Janssens, "Woman reading; 472. Paul Potter, Cattle; above, 345.

Eembrandt (f), Portrait of a young man; 619. W. C. Heda, Still-

life; 356. Aert de Gelder, Portrait-study. — S. wall: 497. Ph.
Womverman, Dune landscape; 348. G. van den Eeckhout, Jesus

teaching in the Temple; *582. J. Wynants, LRndsca])e ; above, 550.

J. van Ruysdael, Landscape with waterfall; 648. M. d' Honde-
coeter, Poultry yard. — W. wall: 546. Jac. van Ruysdael, Forest

landscape with marsh; 403. G. Duu, Old woman saying grace; 650.

S. Verelst, Still-life; *392. Jan Steen, Love-sick woman; *409.

Ft. van Mieris the Elder, Woman eating oysters; 570. M. Hoh-
bema, Landscape; 620. W. van Aelst, Partridges.

Cabinet X. E. wall: J. van der Heyden, *615. Old palace

at Brussels, '^614. Town square; 652, 653. J. van Huysum, Fruit

and flowers; between these, *1488. Frans Hals, Willem Croes;

above, 618. W. C. Heda, Still-life. — S. wall: A. van Ostade,

370. Merry peasants, 371. Peasants quarrelling; between these,

*388. Terburg, Trumpeter bringing a love-letter ; A. van der Neer,

1518. Sunset, 1517. Winter scene. — W. wall : 1586, 1587. Terburg,

Portraits of a man and woman; between these, 398. G. Dou, Woman
peeling apples; *628. A. van Beyeren, Still-life; 425. G. Metsu,
The cook; above, *1562. Jan Steen, Champion debater.

Cabinet XI. E. wall: *423. Fr. van Mieris the Elder, Lady
at her mirror; 1563. B. Cuyp, Groom with horse; *424. G. Metsu,
Twelfth Night; *651. J. van Huysum, Fruit; *474. A. Cuyp,
Officer with a white horse ; *420. Fr. van Mieris the Elder, Sleep-

ing officer. — S. wall: *417. Fr. van Mieris the Elder, The love-

sick woman; Ph. Wouwerman, 508. Huntsmen resting, 505. Scene

on the ice; between these, 407. G.Dou, Lady at her dressing-table.

— W. wall: *397. G. Don, Portrait of himself; 415. Fr. van
Mieris the Elder , Lute-player; *391. J. Steen, Quarrel over cards;

*394. G.Dou, Cheapjack; 414. Fr. van Mieris the Elder, Lady
with a parrot; 435. E. van der Neer, Lady with a lute.

Flemish School. — Room V. On the left (E. wall): 664, 665.

NeufchaJel , Portraits of a man and woman; between these, *813.

J. Jordaens, Satyr and countryman; above, 956. Frans Snyders,

Lioness killing a wild boar. — S. wall: J. Fyt, 1475. Dead game,

963. Deer pursued by dogs; Rubens, *782. Portrait of himself

and his first wife Isabella Brant, **737. Fall of the Damned, *794.

Portrait of Helena Fourment, the artist's second wife, 781. Boar-

hunt (the animals by Snijdersf); 1474. Jan Fyt, Dead game. —
W. wall: *746. Rubens, Christ and the repentant sinners; 1606.

Sir Anthony More, St. Sebastian; Rubens, 791. Franciscan, *759.
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Pastoral scene, 790. Cardinal Ferdinand of Spain. — N. wall:

Ruhens, *728. Seven children with a festoon of fruit, 799. Jan

Brant, the father of the artist's first wife, **757. Massacre of the

Innocents, *800. Dr. van Thulden; *955. Snyders, Kitchen; above,

J. Jo7-daenSj 814. As the old cock crows the young one learns, 815.

Jesus teaching in the Temple. — E. wall: 1563. A. van Dyck,
Study of an apostle; *729. Ruhens and J. Brueghel, Madonna in a

garland of flowers; above, 957. Snyders, Two young lions pursuing

a roebuck; 743. Rubens, Two satyrs.

Room VI, with the adjoining Cabinet XII, contains exclusively

works by Rubens or from his studio. On the left (E.), above the

entrance, 750. S^. Peter and Paul. — S. wall: 749. Trinity; **734.

Lion-hunt; *735. Last Judgment (the large picture); 784. Earl and

Countess of Arundel. — W. wall: 727. Rape of the daughters of Leucip-

pus by Castor and Polll^x (studio-piece); above, 755. War andPeace;

726. Martyrdom of St. Lawrence; **754. Drunken Silenus; 753. Re-

conciliation of the Romans and Sabines. — N. wall: *797. Helena

Fourment, the artist's second wife, with her son; 787.Philip IV. of

Spain; 739. Woman of the Apocalypse; Bath of Diana (on loan);

788. Elizabeth of Bourbon, wife of Philip IV. of Spain; *752.

Meleager and Atalanta; 736. Fall of the angels; 724. Dying Seneca.

Cabinet XII, divided into three sections. First section: E. wall,

Rubens, 783. Portrait; *738. Last Judgment (the small picture).

'Very happily and with a proper feeling of his own powers, Rubens
has here given only a corner in the background to the Blessed, whose
heavenly calm and ethereal existence he was incapable of expressing;
and he has devoted the whole of the remaining space to the fall of the

Damned, his true sphere. . . . The whole produces an admirable efifect

by the broad manner in which the light is managed. The colouring is

powerful, but not extravagant; the treatment particularly easy and
clever'. — 'Life of Rubens'', by Prof. Waagcn.

785. Portrait (H. Grotius?); S. wall, 733. Conversion of Saul:

760. Landscape with cows ; W. wall, Boar-hunt, copy by E. Delacroix

of the painting at Dresden; *761. Landscape with rainbow; 762.

St. Christopher. — Second section: E. wall, ^•795. Helena Four-

ment; W. wall, *796. Helena Fourment. — Third section: E. wall.

792. Old woman (the artist's servant?); 798. Rubens and HeI«Mia

Fourment in a garden; *793. Half-length portrait of a girl; S. wall,

*780. Funerarobsequies of Decius Mus; 732. Destruction of Sen-

nacherib's army; *745. Susanna at the bath; AV. wall. 763. The

plague-stricken calling to St. Francis of Paola for help (sketch':

**742. Battle of the Amazons.
'The admirable effect of the whole is increased by a decided and

masterly arrangement of tlie light; the colouring is forcible without

being overcharged, and the execution of the principal parts must be called

careful for Rubens. In the whole range of modern art there exists no

other historical battle-piece worthy of being compared with Raphael's

Battle of Constantine: and in fact it has the advantage over the latter

in the well-planned concentration of interest, aiul in tlie contrast afforded

by the male and female figures.' — Waayen.
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786. Portrait of a man, after J. van Clcve. Also * 764-7 79.

Sketches for the pictures of events in the life of Maria de' Medici,

painted for the Luxemhourg at Paris in 1622-5 and now in the

Lonvre (No. 776, the Banishment of the queen to Blois, is missing

from the series at Paris).

Room Nil. On the left (E.): A. van DycJc, 848. The organist

Liherti of Antwerp, *827. Rest on the Flight into Kgypt. — S. wall,

A. van Dyck, 824. St. Sebastian, 842. Portrait (Duchess G enevieve

of Cro)'?); A. van Dycl' and P. Snayers, Victory of Henri lY. over

the League at Martin-l'Eglise; A. van Dyck. *841. Portrait (Duke

Charles Alexander of Croy?), 823. St. Sebastian; above, 958. Sny-
ders, Boar-hunt. — W. wall : 868. Sh^ G. Kneller (after Van Dyck?),

Queen Henrietta Maria of England; A. van Dyck, *846. The
painter Jan de Wael and his wife, 849, Mary Ruthven, the artist's

wife; A. van Dyck, 847. The engraver Malery, *830. Pieta, 835.

Marchese Mirabella. — N. wall: A. van Dyck, 843. Portrait of

a man, 828. Virgin and St. John with the body of Christ, *839, 840.

Sebastian Leerse, the Antwerp merchant, and his second wife, *822.

Susanna at the bath, *837. Duke Wolfgang William of the Palati-

nate; above, 954. Snyders, Fruit-seller. — E. wall: A. van Dyck,
*844, *845. The sculptor Colyn de Nole and his wife, *826 (between

these). Madonna.
Cabinet XIII. E. wall: *730. Rubens and Jan Brueghel the

Elder, Sleeping Diana espied by satyrs; *748. Ruhens, Crucifixion;

863. A. van Dyck, Heads of children. — S. wall: 811. Ruhens,
Forest scene; 95. Fr. Floris, Portrait; 851. A. van Dyck, Maria
de' Medici (sketch) ; 705. J. Brueghel the Elder and Ruhens, Flora

;

852. A. van Dyck, Princess Thomas of Carignan; 1594. Paid Bril,

Landscape; 900. D. Teniers the Elder, Rocky ravine. — W. wall:

A. van Dyck, 853. Princess Margaret of Lorraine, 829. Pieta (copy),

860. The painter Lucas van Uden, 825. Crucifixion, 859. The painter

Palamedesz, 850. The painter Snayers, 858. Abbot Caesar Alexander
Scaglio; 677. J. de Momper, Landscape.

Cabixet XIV. On the left (E.): 682. Jan Brueghel the Elder,

Seaport with Christ preaching from a boat; 704. Jan Brueghel the

Elder and Pieter van Avont, Holy Family; 1598. Pieter Brueghel
the Younger, John the Baptist preaching; Jan Brueghel the Elder,

689. Continence of Scipio, 687. Landscape with windmill. — S. wall:

Jan Brueghel the Elder, 699. Destruction of Sodom, 701. Landscape,

1602. Bouquet, 697. High-road, 1600. Landing-place. — W. wall:

Jan Brueghel the Elder, *i601. Wooded landscape with St. Jerome,

698. Landscape with St. Hubert; P. Brueghel the Younger, Village

fair; Jan Brueghel the Elder, Prophecy of Isaiah; *1595. Pieter

Brueghel the Elder, Head of an old woman.
Cabij^et XV. On the left (E.): 889. Adr. Brouiver, Peasants

quarrelling; 625. C. de Heem, Still-life; Brouiver, 892. Peasants
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at a tavern, 894. Tippler singing, 885. Village surgeon; 626. C. de
Heem, Fruit; 890. Broiiwer, Drinking-scene; above, 834. A. van
Dyrk, The Augsburg sculptor Petel; 1473. J. Fyt, Fruit and apes.

— S. wall: Brouwerj *898. Soldiers playing dice, 891. Peasants

playing cards ; 916. D. Teuiers the Yoiinyer, Guard-room ; Brontver,

882. Quarrel, *879. Card-players quarrelling. — W. wall : Brt/uiver,

895. Peasants round a fire, *880. Village barber, *896. Drinking-

scene, 884. Merry party, 888. Card-players, 887. Peasants at a

tavern; above, A. van Dyck, 861. The painter J. Brueghel, *833.

Portrait of himself.

Cabinet XVI. On the left (E.): D. Teniers the Younger, 902.

Flemish tavern scene, 903. Dance at a tavern; between these, *945.

FraiiS Millet, Italian landscape. — S. wall : D. Teniers the Yonnger,
918. The prodigal son, *909. Peasant playing the violin, 905. Village

wedding, 917. Lot and liis daughters, 907, 904. Tavern scenes. —
W. wall : Teniers, 912. Rural concert, 901. Vagabond ; 960. Snyders,
Still-life; 952. P. Keeffs the Elder, Church interior.

Italian School. — Room VIII. On the left (E.): 1008. Filippino

Lippi, Christ appears to His Mother. — S. wall : Dom. Ghirlandaio,
*1013. St. Catharine, 1011. Madonna, 1012. St. Lawrence; 1010.

Sandro Botticelli, Pieta; 1026. Marco Palrnezzano, Madonna with

saints; 1080. Benv. Garofalo, Pieta. — W. wall: 1017. Lor. di

Credi, Holy Family; 1495. Liberate da Verona, Pieta; *1561.

Luca Signorelli, Madonna; *1066. A. del Sarto, Holy Family;
1095. Correygio(f), Madonna with SS. Ildefonso and Jerome. —
N. wall: Perngino, **1034. Virgin appearing to St. Bernard, 1035.

Virgin adoring the Child Jesus; *1049. Raphael, Holy Family of

the Canigiani family; 1060. Innocenzo da Imola, Madonna with

saints; *1039. Franc. Prawcm, Madonna in a hedge of roses; 1009.

Raffaellino del Garho, Pietci. — E. wall: *1005. Fra Filippo
Lippi, Annunciation.

Room IX (mostly Venetian works). On the left (E.): *1083.

Lnr. Lotto, Marriage of St. Catharine; 1444. J. Bassano, Madonna
with SS. John the Baptist and Rochus; 1108. Palma Vecchio,

Madonna with SS. Rochus and Mary Magdalene.
'The flesh tints are flayed, and there is some retouching in this little

picture, but the figures and action are still attractive by their grace ; and
the colours almost equal those of Titian in richness and power.' V. & V.

S. wall: 1135. Paolo Veronese, Venetian lady in a brown silk

dress; El Greco, Laocoon (on loan); 1134. Veronese, Cupid leading

two dogs; *1112. Titian, Emperor Charles V. (1548); above, 1593.

Veronese, Rest on the Flight into Egypt; 1116. Titian, Venus
initiating a girl into the Bacchic mysteries; *1575. Tintoretto,

Crucifixion: 1452. Stephan von Calcar , Lute-player. — "\V. wall:

1121. Paris Bordone, Jeweller and ladv; Titian, 1113. Madonna
(spoiled*, *1111. Portrait of a man; *il23. Moretto (Moroni?),
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Ecclesiastic; 1574. Tintoretto^ Jesus at the house of Martha aud

Mary; *1110. Titian, Vanity (early work). — N. wall: 1137.

Veronese, Holy Family (copy?;; *1485. El Greco, Disrobing of

Christ; 1146. Veronese, Lady with a boy; *1114. Titian, Christ

crowned with thorns (late work).
'It is impossible to conceive better arrangement, greater harmony of

lines, or more boldness of movement. Truth in the reproduction of na-
ture in momentary action is combined with fine contrasts of light and
shade, and an inimitable richness of tone, in pigment kneaded, grained,
and varied in surface beyond anything that we know of this time.' C & C.

*1109. Titian, Madonna with John the Baptist and a donor

(school-piece?).

'The head and foot of St. John, and the head of tlie Virgin are

damaged by abrasion and retouching; yet the picture is still a lovely
one of Titian, and the landscape to the right, with blue mountains and
nearer ranges dotted with church and campanile, is beautifully painted.' —
'Titian'', by Crowe and Cavalcaselle.

1115. Titian (Tintoretto f), Venetian nobleman. — E. wall:

1120. P. Bordone(f), Portrait of a man; 1150. J. Bassano, Ma-
donna with saints; *1127. Tintoretto , A wood-carver. — In the

upper row, all round the room: 1565-72. Tintoretto, Scenes from
the history of the Gonzaga family.

Cabixet XVII. E. wall: 1023. Ferrarese School (ca. 1480),

Madonna and four saints; *1611. Baldassare Estense, Family
portrait (ca. 1480-85); 1024^. Loci. Mazzolini, Holy Family. —
S. wall: Tuscan School (ca. 1450), St. Sebastian; 1022. Franc.
di Gioi^gio, Miracle of St. Anthony; 1019. Florentine School (ca.

1420), Madonna. — W. wall: *989-992. Fra Angelico, Legend of

SS. Cosmas and Damian, Man of Sorrows (predella); *1006. Fra
Filijjpo Lippi, Madonna; above, Sehast. Mainardi, 1015. SS.

G-eorge and Sebastian, 1014. Madonna enthroned; 1589. Antonello
da Saliha, Christ mourned by angels ; 1007. School ofFra Filippo
Lippi, Annunciation.

Cabinet XVIII. On the left (E.), 986. Lip)po Memmi, Assump-
tion. — S. wall: 982. Giotto, Christ in Hades (studio-piece); 983.

Giotto (f), Last Supper; 988a-d. N. Italian School (ca. 1350),

Life of St. Augustine. — W. wall: 981. Giotto, Crucifixion (school-

piece); above, 1499-1594. School ofMantegna, The six triumphs of

Petrarch (Love, Chastity, Death, Fame, Time, Eternity).

Cabixet XIX. On^he left (E.). 1059. Girol. del Pacchia,
St. Bernardine; 1052. Giidio Romano, Portrait (Bindo Altoviti ?);

*"10bO. Raphael, Madonna Tempi (from theCasa Tempi atFlorence,

where it was purchased by Louis I. in 1828).
Both in tone and execution this beautiful work is closely allied to

the celebrated Madonna of the House of Orleans. The colours are laid

on thinly, with a somewhat fuller impasto in the whitish light. It is

a true touch of nature which makes the mother accompany the close
embrace with a look of tender affection, while the child receives Ifie

caress more mechanically and gazes straight out of tlie picture. —
'Raffael and Miclielangelo\ by Prof. Anton Springer.
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1058. Facchia, Madonna with angels. — S. wall : 1045. Milanese
School (ca. 1520), St. Catharine; 1588. Ant. da Messina, Madonna:
1493. Leonardo da Vinci, Madonna and Child; 1078. Ferrarese-
Bolognese School (ca. 1510), Portrait of a young man; 1073. Sodo-
ma, Holy Family. — W. wall: 1016a. Lor. di Credi, Madonna and

Child with an angel (early work); 1037, 1038. School of Ferngino,
Baptism and Resurrection of (Christ; between these, *10bl.Baphael,
Madonna della Tenda (so named from the green curtain); 1040.

F. Francia, Madonna and Child with two angels.

Cabinet XX. On the left (E.): *1107. Falma Vecchio (not

Giorgione), Portrait of himself.
•A noble portrait by Palma Vecchio', probably of the painter himself.

'Whoever he may be, the man is of strong and energetic mould; tlic

glance of his eye is so rapid, open, and expressive as to convey the best
impression of nature's instant action; there is a breadth of modelling
and a variety of toning beyond measure telling and truthful ; and the
play of the features is admirable.' C. <& C.

*1033. Cima da Conegliano, Madonna with SS. Mary Magda-
lene and Jerome. — S. wall: 1573. Tintoretto, Sketch for a Cru-

cifixion; 1445. Girol. BedoU, Madonna and St. Bruno ;*1 148. Giac.

Bassano, St. Jerome; 1094. Falma Vecchio, Satyr playing the

flute; *1145. Veronese, Adoration of the Magi (studio-piece). —
W. wall: 1152. Franc. Bassano the Younger, Jesus at the house

of Martha and Mary; *1133. Veronese (Titian f), Jupiter and
Antiope; 1149. Giac. Bassano, The Israelites and the miraculous

stream of water.

Room X. Italian and French Schools. — E. wall To the

right of the door: *1211. G. C. Frocaccini , Holy Family; 305.

Sicilian Master (ca. 1620), Jesus teaching in the Temple. To the

left of the door : 1358. J. Vivien, Elector Max Emmanuel of Bavaria

;

1336. Le Briin, St. John in Patmos. — S. wall: 1104. Fed.
Baroccio, Christ and Mary Magdalene; *1271. G. B. Tiepolo,

Adoration of the Magi. — First (S.) partition: *1487. Franc.
Gnardi, Venetian concert; at the back, Fr. Goya, 1483. Execution
of a witch, 1484. Monk preaching, 1482. The wounded man (un-

completed), 1481. The duel, *1479. The plucked turkey; 1291.

Zurharan, St. Francis of Assisi. — Second partition: A. Fesne,

1531. Portrait of himself, 1366. Girl with a straw hat; between
these, 1362. Le Moine, Huntsmen resting; at the back, 1506.

G. de Maries, The artist and his daughter; 1330. Le Sueur, Christ

at the house of Martha and Mary." — Third partition: 1346. J. B.
Monnoyer, Flowers; 1357. J. Vivien, Portrait of himself; at the

back, *1324, *1325. Claude Lorrain, Morning and evening scenes.

— Fourth partition : 1340. Fh. de Champaigne, Turenne (?); *1321.

Nic. Foussin, Entombment; at the back, 1322. Foussin, Midas and

Bacchus; 1356. ,/. Vivien, Archbishop Fenelon. — On the X. wall,

the Carstanjen collection (p. 283).

Baedeker's S. Germany. 12th Edit. 18
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Cabinet XXI. French School. E.wall: *1326, *1327. Claude
Lorrain, Landscapes; between these, 1448. Fr. Boucher, Girl

resting; 1354. H. Rigaud. Duke Christian III. of Zweibriicken. —
S. wall: J. Vernet, 1369. Roman landscape, 1370. Seaport in the

morning; between these. 1577. L. Tocque, Michael, Count Palatinate

of Zweibriicken; 1361. P. SuUeyras, A bishop. — W. wall: 1377.

Greuzej Portrait of a girl; 1365. N. Largilliere, Portrait of a

lady; 1339. Le Nain, The portrait-painter; -1376. J. B. S. Char-
din, Maidservant peeling turnips.

Cabinet XXII. Gerraan School of the 16th- 18th centuries.

E. wall: 1392. Ad. Elsheimer, John the Baptist preaching; above,

1431. i?. Mengs, Portrait of himself; *1391. Elsheimer, Moon-
light scene with the Flight into Egypt; 1384. Rottenharamer, Last

Judgment; 1390. Elsheimer, Burning of Troy. — S. wall: 1435,

1436. J. G. Edlinger , The artist and his wife; between these,

C. Netscher, 1402. Pastoral scene, 1398. Musical party. — "W".

wall: 441, 442. Adr. van der Werff. Elector John William and

his wife; between these, C. Netscher, 1400. Bathsheba at the bath,

1399. Lady wfth a parrot; between these, 1388. Rottenharnmer,
"Wedding at Cana; above, 1403. L/ingelbach, Hay-makers; J. G.
Edlinger, 1434. Count Rumford (p. 299;, 1466. Portrait of a girl.

Cabinet XXIII. Mostlv works of the English School. On the

left (E.): 1548. Reynolds] Sir Hanbury Williams; 1465. J. G.
Edlinger, The bookseller Strobel and his two children; 1433. Ant.

Graff, Portrait of himself. — S. wall: 1525. Opie, Portrait of a

lady: 1476. Gainshorough, Portrait of a man; 1492. Laivrence,

Lord Mulgrave. — W. wall: 1537. Raehurn, Lord Douglas Gor-

don Haliburton; 1513. G. Moi^land, Coast landscape; 1432. Ang.

Kauff'mann, Portrait of herself.

Room XL Mostly works of the Spanish School. On the left

(N.) : *1480. Fr. Goija, Queen Maria Louisa of Spain ; 1 508. J. B. del

Mazo (not Velazquez ), Duke of Olivares. — E. wall: 1280. L. Gior-
dano (not Ribera), Body of St. Andrew removed from the cross;

1312. A. Rodriguez, An admiral; 1303. Murillo, St. Thomas of

Yillanueva healing a lame man; 1549. Ribera, St. Sebastian; 1281.

L. Giordano (not Ribera), Death of Seneca. — S. wall: Mmnllo,
*1307. The little fruit-seller, *1308. Old woman cleansing a boy's

head;^ between these, 1302. Juan Carreiio, Douna Maria Anna de

Austria; 1309. Claudio Coelld, St. Peter of Alcantara walking
on the water. — W. wall: 1439. Jose Antolinez. The poor painter;

Murillo, *1306. Beggar-boys playing dice, **1304. Two beggar-

boys eating grapes and melons. — X. wall: 1282. Seville School
(ca. 1640), The hunchbacked woman; -1305. Murillo, Two beggar-

boys eating a pie; *1293. Velazquez, Portrait of a young man
(unfinished).
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The.^K wall of R. X and the whole of R. XII are occupied by

the Carstanjen Collection (on loan), consisting of 49 paintings,

mostly Dutch.

Room X (conip. p. 281;. N. wall: Remhrandt , The preacher

Sylvius; Van Dyck, Portrait; M. Hohhema, Wooded landscape.

Room XII. On the left (S.): G. Camphuysen, Cottage; N. Maes,
Portrait of a woman; Murillo, Old woman with boys; A. van de

Velde, Landscape. — "\V. wall: Q. Matsys, Altar-piece; Master of
the Holy Kinship, Mary Queen of Heaven. — X. wall: Frans Hals,
Fisher-girl: Bembrandt, Christ scourged at the pillar; Frans Hals,
Portraits of a man and woman; between these, A. Cuyp, Landscape
with shepherds; Remhrandt, Portrait of himself in his old age. —
E. wall: G. Don, Old woman with a candle; Ant. da Canale,
Canal Grande in Venice; Rihera, St. Paul as a hermit. — S. wall:

Th. de Keyser , Family portrait; Teniers, Rustic scene, Park
scene; G. van Honthorst, Portrait of a woman.

On the S, side of the building are the Loggie, an arcade in

twenty-five sections, with frescoes by Cornelius, illustrating the

history of painting, the first thirteen relating to Italian art, the

remaining twelve to Germany, the Netherlands, Spain, and France.

On the N. side of the ground-floor of the Old Pinakothek is the

Cabinet of Dra-wrngs and Engravings (adm., see p. 240), con-

taining over 200.000 engravings (Dutch^ early-German, and modern
masters well represented) and about 40,000 drawings, including

examples of Raphael, Fra Bartolomeo, Rembrandt, Diirer, Holbein,

Boucher, Karl and Leopold Rottmaun, Feuerbacli, Menzel,and Lugo.

Room I contains an exhibition of modern engravings, changed from

time to time; Room II shows the development of the art of engrav-

ing and its branches down to the present day.

The Cabinet of Vases (adm., see p. 241), occupying five

rooms in the W. wing of the ground-floor of the Old Pinakothek,

comprises about 3000 specimens, obtained mainly by Louis I. from

the Candelori, Canino, Panettieri, and Lipona collections, but in-

cluding many later acquisitions. Catalogue (1912) 1 ,JC.

Room I. Table 1, in the centre (large black or red figured Attic
*Amphor8e of the 2nd half of the 6th and early 5th cent. B.C.): 2305 (in

tlie middle), Departure of a youtiiful warrior; to the left. 2306. Hercules
and Cerberus; 2307, 2308. Youthful hero arming liimself (painted by
Euthymides); 2309. Theseus carrying off a girl; on the right, 230J. Assem-
bly 'of the Gods; 2.301. Hercules' and Athena at a banquet; at tlie back,
1415. Peleus struggling with Thetis. Left wall (hydriae of the 6th and
early 5th cent. B.C. ; black figures): on the left. 1712. Ajax witli the body
of Achilles: 1690 and 1693 (above)'and 171.^ (below, in the I'entre), Water-
bearers; farther on, ten vases with the Labours of Hercules; in the row
above, Chariot-scenes. At the right end of the lowest row are six red-

figured hydriae, the best of which are Nos. 2423. Amazons, and 2421.

A lessonon the lyre, by Hyphsis and Phintias. — Right wall, black-
figured Attic amphorae of the 2nd half of the 6tli cent. B.C. Those in

IS*
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the lower row represent the Labours of Hercules. Gigantomachia, and
Assemblies of the Gods; to the left, in the corner, 15i9. Sisyphus; 1554.

Perseus after slaying the Gorgon.

Room II. Stand 1, on the right (continuation of the black-figured
Attic amphorae, older than those in R. I): 1471. Runners; 1493. Sisyphus
(red-figured). — Stand 2. on the left (Attic amphorse in the earlier stvle):

1428, 1433. Hercules killing Xessns ; 1435, 1436. Achilles lying in wait
for Troilus. — On the small table to the right of the entrance (Stand 3):

1382. Birth of Athena. Small table to the left (Stand 4; amphorae in an
affected st\'le): 1441. Sacrificial procession; 1443. Xessus and Dejanira.
By the pillar is a Roman mosaic with birds. — Room III, on the right,

is reserved for students.

Room IV (to the left of R. II) contains chiefly red -figured vases.

Near the pillars: 1451-1456. Athenian prize amphorae, the pattern of
which was imported into Italy in oil-jars, with representations of Athena
and various games. By the windows, wire-cages with small vessels, some
of very handsome shape. Table 10, near the entrance: 2375. Boreas pur-
suing Orithyia. Table 12 (in a line with Xo. 10): *3268. Scenes from
the Argonautic expedition ; 3300. Lycurgus and Dionysus, beautifully
ornamented, Apulian ; *3296. Large coloured amphorae from Canosa in

Apulia (Vengeance of Medea, Death of Creusa in the poisoned garment,
Medea slavs her children and departs in the chariot drawn bv dragons). —
Table 4, at the side: 3267. Peleus pursuing Thetis. — Table 13: *2416
(flower-pot or wine-cooler?), Alcaeus and Sappho : 2361. Drunken Hephaestus,
surrounded by Bacchantes; *3297. Large amphora, companion -vase to

No. 3296 and "like it found at Canosa: *2417. Contest between Idas and
Apollo for Marpessa.

Room V. Stand 1 : Old Etrurian vessels in black clay with stamped
figures ; Etruscan ware with red painting. — Stand 2 : below, Mycenaean
and Boeotian vessels: above, Corinthian and Corinthian-Italic vessels. —
Stand 3: Black-figured Etruscan vessels, under Attic influence. — Stand 4:

Etruscan-Ionic and Italic-Ionic ware (596. Chalcidian hydria with Peleus
and Atalanta ; 594. Chalcidian amphora with four-horse chariot). — Stand 5 :

Black-figured Attic bowls (2244. Large bowl with chariot -races): Attic
drinking-vessels and lecythi. — Stands 6-8 : Black-figured Attic bowls and
jugs. — On the floor, a large antique *Mosaic (Gaea, goddess of the earth,
surrounded by the Seasons, and Helius in the zodiac) found in the Romagna.

The *New Pinakothek (PI. E 4, /; entr. Barer-Str. 29 ; adm.,

see p. 241 ; tramways Nos. 2, 6, and 16), erected by Voit in 1846-53,

contains exclusively paintings of the 19th and 20th cent., largely

by Munich masters (about 1000 works, in thirteen rooms and

fourteen cabinets on the first floor and four rooms on the ground-

floor). The frescoes on the exterior, which have suffered from ex-

posure on the W. and S. sides, were executed by Xilson and Earth

from Kaulbach's designs (in Cabinets 3 and 4; p. 287). Catalogue

(1914) 1 ^, illus. 2 c^. The rooms are not heated in winter. —
In the entrance -hall is the model of Wagner's Quadriga on- the

Sieges-Tor (p. 261). Behind it, to the left, is the entrance to the

Antiquarium (p. 288).

We ascend the staircase to the large rooms on the Upper Floor.

Room I. W. von Kaitlbach, 427. King Louis I., 426. King
Max II. — Opposite, 1072. Alb. Zimmermann, Mountain land-

scape. — Entrance-wall, 502. J. B. von Laiiger. Crown-Princess
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Theresa. In the centre is a bust of Prince -Regent Luitpold, by
H. Wader^.

Room II. Opposite the entrance, 403. W. von Kaulhach, De-
struction of Jerusalem (which suggested the series of frescoes in the

NewMuseum at Berlin i. — Left, 717. K. vouPiloty, Thusnelda in the
triumphal procession of Germanicus. — Opposite, 888. K. Schorn,
The Deluge (unfinished;. — Entrance-wall: 716. Piloty, Seni before

the corpse of Wallenstein. We return to R. I and enter —
Room III. Opposite the entrance, from right taleft: W. Leibl,

512. Portrait of a lady, 513. The painter Sattler and his dog; 902.

Schiich^ Still -life; 142. G. Courhet. Runaway horse; 991. Trilh-

rter, In the studio; 906. Schuch, Landscape; 515. Leibl, Portrait

of a lady. — Left of the entrance: 140. Courbef, Landscape; 509.

Leibl, Baron vonPerfall; 141. Courbet, Em. Ollivier. — Entrance-

wall: 929. Sperl, Leibl and Sperl shooting; Trilbner, 994. The

Upper Floor.
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sculptor Thicle, 993. Christ in tlie Sepulchre, 992. Dog. -- Exit-

wall: 514. Leibl, The painter Schuch; 349. Hirth dn Frenes, The
painter Schuch; 508. Leibl, Cottage interior.

Room IV. Right: A. von Kelle?; 444. Transferring the remains
of La Tour d'Auvergne, 445. The artist's wife, 432. Chopin. —
Left: W. von Diez, 150. His Excellency travelling, 162. St. George,
163. Croats.

Room V. Right: 1002. F. von Uhde, Moorish king; 275. H. von,

Habermann, The artist's mother; 1000. Uhde, Chanteuse; 277.
Habermann, Portrait of a lady; 212. W. Firle, Lord's Prayer. —
I>eft: 996. Uhde, Weary travellers; 276. Habermann, Portrait of

a lady; 997. U/ide, Noli me tangere. — Above the entrance-door,

715. Piylhein, Blind girl.

Room VI. Right, 208. A. Feuerbach, Titans. — Left: 978.

J I. Thoma. Tauiius landscape; 549. IT. von Lindenschmif, Studies

of heads; 74. A. Bockiin, vSport of the waves; 207. Fcuerbach,
Medea; 75. Bocklin, Pan among the reeds. — Right of the door:

980. Thoma, The painter Frolioher.

Room VII. Paintings by 77. von Marces. Opposite the entrance:
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601. Hesperides, 610. Portrait of himself, 608. Rape of Helen. —
Right wall: 605. St. Martin, 606. St. Hubert, 607. St. George, 593.

Diana reposing, 594. Marees and Lenbach. — Left wall: 591. The
artist's father, 611. Courtship, 613. Rape of Ganymede. — En-

trance-wall: 603, 604. The golden age. "We return through R. YI
and enter —

Room VIII. Right: 833. A. Samberger, The sculptor Bradl;

926. M. Slevogf, Leisure hour; M. Liehermann, 537. Old woman
with goats, 539. Dutch landscape; 614. J. Maris, Dutch land-

scape. — Left: 1088. H. von Ziigel, Sheep; 831. Samberger, The
artist's father.

Room IX. Right: 554. L. von Loefftz. Interior; F. A. von

Kaulbach, 400. The artist's father, 395. Portrait. — Left, 396.

F. A. von Kaulbach, Prince-Regent Luitpold.

RoomX. Entrance-wall, 623. G. von Max, Catharine Emmerich
in an ecstasy. — Above the door: 51. H. von Bartels, Full speed

ahead ; 972. F. von Stuck^ Sin. — Left wall : 152. F. von Defregger,

Council of war in 1809; 522. F. von Lenbach, Portrait; 150.

Defregger, Storming of the Roter Turm by the peasants in 1705;
526. Lenbach, Emperor William I. ; 318. L. Herterich, Knight. —
Opposite the entrance: Lenbach, 517. Pope Leo XIII. ; 521. Daugh-
ter of Herodias, 518. Prince-Regent Luitpold; 519. Bismarck. —
Exit-wall: 519. Defregger, Visit; 520. Lenbach, Portrait; 1007.

B. Vautier, Country dinner; 699. A. Oberlander, Resignation.

Room XL Right : H. von Bartels, Moonlight on the Zuider Zee

;

1055. J. Wenglein, Women collecting limestone in the bed of the

Isar near Tolz. — Opposite the entrance: 1043. A. Weisgerber,

Somali woman; 913. G. Seganiini, Ploughing; 722. W. Piittner,

Soldiers. — Left: 973. Stuck, War; 553. Loefftz, Orpheus and

Eurydice; 202. J. Exter, Good Friday. — Entrance-wall: 678.

A. Miinzer, Lady in a birch-wood; 516. W. Leistikotv, Thuringian

valley; 316. L.^Herterich, St. George; 1041. B. Weise, Family
portrait; 385. R. Kaiser, Lake of Constance; 723. Leo Putz, Picnic.

We pass through the door in the left wall to —
Room XIII. 797-819. K. Bottmann, Twenty- three encaustic

paintings of Greek landscapes (1845 - 50). We return through

R. XI to —
Room XIT. Right : 329. P. von Hess, King Otho entering Nauplia

in 1833; 587. H^Makart, Abundantia (Gifts of Water); 714. Pigl-

hein. Entombment; 392. F. A. von Kaulbach, Entombment; 551.

Loefftz, Dead Christ. — Opposite the entrance: 853. E. Schleich

the Elder, The Isar near Munich; 428. Keller, Raising of Jairus's

daughter. —Left: 744. W. Rauber, Conversion of St. Hubert; 1078.

E. Zimmermann, Adoration of the shepherds; 330. P. von Hess,

King Otho entering Athens in 1855 ; 586. Makart, Abundantia (Gifts

of Earth;. We return to R. XI and pass through Cabinet 13 to —
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Cabinet 14. Opposite the entrance, 263. E. Griltzner, Silesian

toper and the devil. — Entrance-wall: E. Harburger, 291. Beaux
restes, 292. Wine-dealer.

. Cabinet 13. Left, 725. Leo Putz, Girl in a garden. — Right,

724. Putz, Girl among the trees; 347. H. von Heyden, Poultry yard.

Cabinet 12. Left, 284. L. von Hagn, In the barn. — Right,

1 59. J. Diez, St. George.

Cabinet 11. Left: 106. W. Busch, Woman and child; 629.

K. Mayr-Graz, Woman and grandchild; 104. W. Busch, Portrait

of himself. — Right: 103. W. Busch, Portrait of an artist; 264.

E. Griltzner, Don Quixote. — Exit-wall: W. Busch, 105. Donkey
in a stable, 108. Landscape.

Cabinet 10. Left: 480. G.Kuehl, Sunday afternoon in Holland;

386. L. von Kalchreuth, Rainbow. — Right, 358. A. Holzel, Pea-

sant woman saying her prayers. — Exit-wall: 482. G. Kuehl, The
Viskulenhof at Liineburg; 367. U. Hilbner, Town in sunshine.

Cabinet 9. Left: A. von Menzel, 648. Interior of a church at

Innsbruck, 642. Portrait of an old man, 645. Concert. — Right:

Menzel, 655. Adam and Eve, 647. Votive picture near Salzburg,

654. Mayence Cathedral. — Exit-wall: 245. E. von Gehhardt,
Crucifixion.

Cabinet 8. Left: 132-134. Constable, Landscapes; 1058. Sir
D. Wilkie, Opening the will. — Right: 635. Meissonier, Bravoes;

219. Fortuny, Duet. — Exit-wall: 136. G. Courhet, Summer land-

scape; 131. Constable, Landscape with distant view.

Cabinet 7. Left, 3. A. Achenhach. Autumn morning in the

Pontine marshes. — Right: 749. jP. von Rayski, Count Einsiedel;

1037. F. WaldmiiUer, Portrait of a lady.

Cabinet 6. Left: K. Spitzweg, 933. Hermits, 931. The poor

poet; 864. E. Schleich, Landscape; Spitzweg, 938. The raven, 936.

The writer, 932. In the attic. — Right: 98. H. BiirkeL Shower at

Partenkirchen; 940. Spitzweg, Picnic. — Exit-wall: 99. H. Bilrkel,

Roman Campagna; 845. F. Schelver, Horse-dealers.

Cabinet 5. Right: 335. P. von Hess, Wallachs catching horses;

790. K. Rottmann, Taormina and Mt. Etna; 326. H. von Hess,

Thorvaldsen; 795. K. Ruttmann, Corfu. — Exit-wall: 13. A.Adam,
Stable.

Cabinet 4. Left: M. von Schwind, 911. At the artist's house,

910. Symphony. — Right: 435. W. von Kaulbach, Sketch for a

portrait of Louis I.; 115. F. Catel, Crown-Prince Louis at Rome;
337. P. von Hess, King Otho of Greece bidding farewell to his

family. — Above, W.von Kaulbach. Designs in oils for the frescoes

on the exterior of the New Pinakothek (p. 284).

Cabinet 3. Viesvs of Munich, mostly by D. Quaglio. Above,
continuation of Kaulbach's frescoes.

Cabinet 2. Left: J. G. Edlinger, 193. Portrait of a girl, 189.
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Count Rumford (p. 299). — Right: Edlinger, 190. Portrait of him-

self, 191. The artist's wife.

Cabinet 1. Right : 469. J. A. Koch, Heroic landscape ; 390. Ang.
Kaufmann, Louis I. as crown-prince; 965. J. K. Stieler, Goethe.

We next descend to the Ground Floor and, to the left of the

Quadriga (p. 284), enter the —
Room of the French Masters. Middle section : right, Cezanne,

126. Still-life, 127. Portrait of himself; left, 765. A. Renoir,
Portrait of a lady; 125. Cezanne, Railway cutting; 986. H. de

Toulouse-Lautrec, Portrait. — Left (E.) section : 148. H. Daumier,
Drama; E. Manet, 589. Luncheon in the studio. 590. The boat;

667. CI. Monet, Bridge of Argenteuil; 149. H. Daumier, Don
Quixote; 252. Th. GericauU, Bringing up the guns. — Right (W.)

section: 718. C. Pissarro, Road: 242. F. Gauguin, Scene in Tahiti

;

F. Hodler, 352. Portrait of himself, 354. Lake of Thun; V. van
Gogh, 258. Sunflowers, 257. View of Aries.

The following room contains Paintings on Porcelain, copies

of the best pictures in the Old Piuakothek and the Gallery of Beauty

in the Palace.

The'threeN". rooms on the ground-floor, to the right of the Quad-
riga (p. 284), contain pictures by K. Stieler, J. von Schraudolph,
E. von Heuss, E. Schleich, Bilrkel, F. Adam, etc.

The Antiquarium, on the ground-floor of theXew Pinakothek

(p. 284), contains the smaller Greek and Roman and a few Egyptian
antiquities, including fine terracottas and bronzes (adni., see p. 240;
catalogue of 1907, 60 pf.).

Room I. Work» in Gold and Silvei\mid. Terracottas. In the round
case in tlie middle: Shelf 1, opposite tlie window. *Golden wieath from
a Greek tomb at Armento in S. Italy (.5tli cent. B.C.); to the left. Shelves.
2 and 3, Etruscan gold ornaments "of the 7th cent., incl. a large fibula
on shelf 2 : Shelf 5. Silverware ; Shelf 6. Hellenistic and Roman orna-
ments and rings: Shelf 7. Ornaments of an Ethiopian queen from the
great pj-ramid of Meroe. On the top of the case is an early-Ionic bronze
*Cratera with volutes. — By the wall arc terracottas. Case 9, to the
left of the entrance, Ancient Greek terracottas, incl. the figure of a

centaur. — Case 11, Portrait-busts from Bceotia. — Case 12, Heads of

girls. — Wall-case 13. Greek terracottas in the best style. — Wall-
case 14, A goddess in a frame indicating a temple. — Case 15, Images. —
Cases 16 and 17, by the window. Fragments of Aretiue ware. — On a

pedestal between Cases 15 and 16, *Head of Jupiter from Rome, painted
red (1st or 2nd cent. B.C.V — Case 18. Small group of a youth and
girl at table. — Case 20. in the middle. Votive relief in a severe style.
— Case 21, Eros with a lamp. — Cases 21 and 25, Fragments of Roman
reliefs. — Case 28, Bearded head from Tarentum. — Case 29, above,
*Head of Charon, Etruscan god of the dead (A\\\ cent. B.C.). — By tlie

window. Case 31. Clay moulds witli modern casts. — Adjacent, on a

pedestal, Head of a youthful Roman (ca. -ith cent. B.C.). •— Above wall-
case 33, Nike, freely restored. — Case 34, in the middle, Aphrodite. —
Cases 36-38, Italic terracottas.

Room II (to the right of R. I). Glass. Cases 1 and 2, Objects found
at Troy. — Cases 6-9, Roman glass. In the middle shelf of Case 9, to
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the right, is a perforated *Goblet from a sarcophagus at Cologne. —
Case 10, Smaller marble sculptures. — Cases 11 and 12, by the window:
Fragments of a figure in the Millefiori style; in Case 11, to the left,

Egyptian *Goblet with the name of Thutmosis III. (ca. 1500 B.C.). —
On pedestals, Etruscan cinerary urns.

Room III. Cork Models of Ancient Biiildingn and Terracotta Lamps.
Cases 1-3. Lamps. — Near Case 11, Attic votive relief (ith cent. B.C.). —
Cases 12, 13, 1.5, and 16, Terracotta lamps, chiefly from Rome.

Room IY. Objects in Bronze. To the left of tlie entrance. Wall-
case 1, Bronzes, mostly of Etruscan origin. — In the middle. Case 8,

Roman military diploma of the Emperor Trajan. — By the Avindow. Cases
12 and 13, Mirrors. ^ Upper cases 18-21 (on Cases 11-17), Good bronze
statuettes; in the middle of Case lit. below. Hercules: in Case 21, above
on the right. Venus drying her hair; on the right of Case 21, *Bronze
statue of a girl preparing for a bath (school of Polycletus: ca. 400 B.C.);
on the left of Case 21, *Statuette of Zeus, of the Augustan age. — Case 24,

Greek bronze mirrors. — On Case 25, Italic armour — Adjacent, on a
pedestal, Heads of *Emperor Maximinus (left) and of a youth (right). —
Upper cases 31 and 32, Etruscan bronzes. — Upper case 33, Work in

silver. — Upper case 34, Early-Greek standing mirror. — To the right,

on a bracket, Fine lamp of the later imperial period. — By the window.
Case 35, Ivory pins from Yulci. — Near Case 46 is an early-Etruscan
censer (6th cent. B.C.).

Room V (to tiie left of R. I). Egyptian Antiquities. Sarcophagi,
mummies, tombs, etc.

In the Schelling-Str. fPl. E, F, 3, 4, I: Nos. 83-93), near the

NewPinakotbek, are the Filrstenhdiiser, a row of private residences

elaborately adorned with frescoes by Ferd. Wagner; in the court of

No. 87 is the kiosk froni the old winter -garden of Louis II. In

the Arcis-Str., opposite the W. side of the Old Piuakothek, rises the

Technical Academy (Technische Hoclischule : PL E 4, /),

250 yds. long, built Ijy Neureuther in 1865-8 in the Italian Renais-

sance style. The cornice is adorned with seventy-two medallion-

portraits of architects, mathematicians, and naturalists. The stair-

case is worthy of inspection. In front of the left wing is a seated

hgure of the physicist (t. >S'. Ohm (d. 1854), by Riimaun (1895).

T\\Q BroDze Foundry {YjryAy\('?<^K'\'{^\\ PL D 4, 7), Flrzgiesscrci-

Slr. 14, founded in 1825, obtained a high reputation under tlie

management, of J. B. Stiglmaier (d. 1844) and Ferd. von Miller (d.

1887), and now belongs to the son of the latter (adm. on week-

days 2-6; 40 pf.). — A few paces N.W., in the Ferdinand-Miller-

Platz, is the modern-Iionianesqne /SY. Betmo-Kirche (PL D, 4; 1 ).

In front of it stands the Menin) Culumii. with a figure of tlie

jiatron-saint of Munich.

To the N.W. of the Ferdinand-Millcr-Plal/ lie the Militanj
Ilo.spital, the Ma.vimiliun II. Barracks, the Artil/cnj Work-
.shops, etc. Other military buildings have recently been erected in

the Marsfeld, W, of the Stiglmaier -Platz. Among these arc the

buildings of the Cadet Corps (PL D 4, 5, I : fa(;ade 250 yds, long\

ill the Mars-Plalz; the Military Academy (PL D, 4; /), in the

Pappenheimer 8tr. ; and the JMUiiary School V\. I>, 4; /), in the

Blutenburff-btr.



290 Route 33. MUNICH. National Museum.

g. National Museum. Schack Gallery. English Garden.

To the N. of the Hof-G-arten (p. 258) begins the Prixzregentex-

Strasse (PI. F, G, 5; //), which leads to the Isar, skirting the S.

margin of the English G-arden (p. 299) and passing handsome new
buildings. On the N. side of the street (No. 1) is the National Museum.

The *Bavarian National Museum (PI. Gr 5, II; tramways

Nos. 2 and 30), founded by King Max II. in 1854 and formerly

housed in the Maximilian -Str. fp. 251), was transferred in 1900

to the present extensive buildings, erected from the designs of

Gabriel von Seidl. The imposing exterior, by a skilful blending

of forms characteristic of the various stages in the development of

German architecture, suggests the nature of the museum. In the

historical section each room reflects in its fitting up the period to

which its contents belong, while the special collections are exhibited

in well-lighted rooms in a modern style. The various original ceil-

ings deserve special attention. Adm., see p. 240; the courtyards are

open May-Sept. only. Good guide (1911), 50 pf., with illustrations

2 cA ; also sectional catalogues. The briefest visit to the museum
takes three hours.

The 63 rooms of the Gtrocnd Floor contain chronologically arranged
collections illustrating the art-history of Bavaria. On the First Floor
(33 rooms) are the special collections. On the Second Floor is the

collection of 'creches'. On the left side of the Basement are the
torture -room, the pewter coffins from the Lauingen vault, and cottage
interiors. To the right is a Refreshment Room. The books of the ex-
tensive technical library and the engravings are shown to students and
artists on application in the reading and copying rooms on the first

floor. The Courts to the right of the vestibule contain sculptures and
architectural fragments, mostly Roman and mediaeval, incl. the so-called

Huns' Column of Miltenberg (p. 112: Court I). In Court IV, to the left

of the vestibule, are works of the Renaissance, incl. a colossal bronze
group (Mars, Venus and Cupid) by Hubert Gerhard (1589). Court VII,
entered from the vestibule or from R. 32, contains rococo works.

Ground Floor. Collections of Historical Art. From the vesti-

bule we enter a hall containing numerous sepulchral monuments.

To the left is the stone monument of a Count of Haag (d. 1566),

-with a recumbent figure. Behind is the tombstone of the composer

Orlando di Lasso (p. 250). We ascend the staircase.

Room 1 (on the right) contains the Prehistoric Antiquities.,

chiefly from tumuli in diff'erent parts of Franconia. "Weapons, uten-

sils, and ornaments of the stone age (before 2000 B.C.), the older

and later bronze periods (ca. 2000-1000 B.C.), the earlier iron age

(Hallstatt period, ca. 1000-500 B.C.), and the later iron age (La

Tene period, from ca. 600 B.C. to the Roman period; Celtic anti-

quities). To the right, on pedestal 7, are the 'Golden Hat' of

Schifferstadt and a bronze helmet of the Hallstatt period found in

Lower Bavaria. In table-case 9 is a chronologically arranged series

of buckles and clasps (fibulae). — Room 2, separated by a row of
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columns from R. 1, contains Roman Antiquities, including altars,

milestones, tombstones, tiles, vases, utensils, and ornaments. In

the middle are a large mosaic pavement from Westerhofen near

Ingolstadt, an altar fromEheinzabern, and forge-tools from Grun-

wald near Munich.

Rooms 3-19 contain Works of Mediccval Art, from the early-

Christian period to the beginning of the 16th century. Room 3:

Objects of the Merovingian period (5th-8th cent. A.D.), incl. (^in

the central case) an ivory carving of the three Maries at the Tomb
and the Ascension (4th -5th cent.) and antiquities from Wittis-

lingen (near Lauingen on the Danube; ca. 700 A.D. ). The stained-

glass windows are from the Minorite church of Ratisbon (ca. 1400;

others in R. 4 and 5). — Rooms 4 and 5. Small Romanesque works

of art and sculptures. In the glass cases in R. 4 are ecclesiastical

objects, crosses, book-covers, aquamanilia, goblets; in the 4th case

on the left, embroidered dalmatic of Emperor Henry II. (d. 1024);

in the 1st case, enamelled work from Limoges (reliquaries) and the

jewel-box of St. Kunigunde (from Bamberg Cathedral). The finest

of the Romanesque sculptures in R. 5 are the stone carvings from

Wessobrunn (p. 306; ca. 1250; main wall), the wooden crucifixes

above, and the Madonnas. — From the apse we enter Rooms 6-19,

devoted to the Gothic section. Room 6 contains the earliest specimens

of Gothic art. Altar-piece from Rosenheim (to the left, No. 5), the

earliest Bavarian panel-painting (early 14th cent.). No. 4 is a

mural painting from the monastery of Rebdorf near Eichstatt

(ca. 1300). — Room 7. Sculptures of the time of Emperor Louis

the Bavarian (p. 243).

Between R. 7 and 8 are a corridor and staircase leading to the

basement (opened by the attendant). Rooms 7a and 7b contain

tombstones and parts of the choir-stalls in the old abbey-church

at Berchtesgaden. These rooms are also to contain Gothic works.

— In Rooms 7c-71 are casts of Bavarian works of art. "We ascend

the stairs again.

Room 8 (Bamberg Room) contains Gothic paintings and sculp-

tures from 1350 to 1450. To the left, 1. Large triple altar from

the Franciscan church at Bamberg (1429); 3. Winged altar from

Pahl near Weilheim, a tempera (ca. 1400); 12. Votive picture of the

nun Gerhaus Ferin of Bamberg (1443). By the exit-wall, 25. Oaken

figures of Christ, the Virgin, and the Apostles, from Mfillu near

Liibeck (first half of the 15th cent.), originally coloured. In the

case to the right of the exit, early -Gothic carvings and combs.

Stained glass from Seligental near Landshut (ca. 1300). In the

middle, 23. St. George, a carved wooden figure of ca. 1430; in

Case 26, opposite the window, richly carved domestic altar. —
Room 9. Ceiling and panelling from the old AVeber-Haus at Augs-

burg (1457); coffers, cabinets, late-Gothic carvings in wood and
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alabaster; stained glass of 1472. — Room 10. Rich Grothic ceiling

in lime-wood from Schloss Oberhaus near Passau (ca. 1490); to the

left, tapestry of 1500 (St. Lawrence); tester bedstead of 1470; sculp-

tures, carved furniture, pictures, and stained glass from the late

15th and early 16th century. — Room 11, with a vaulted Gothic

timber ceiling, contains similar objects; also paintings of the Ma-
donna and the Circumcision (I^os. 11 and 12, by the exit) by Fr.

Herlin. — Room 12. Staircase and gallery from Altotting (1508);

altar of the Virgin from Weissenburg (ca. 1500); model (No. 7,

by the window) for the tomb of Duke Louis the Bearded of

Bayern-Ingolstadt (d. 1447), by Hans Multscher ('?); Gothic caskets

in wood. — Room 13. On the S. and N. walls are six paintings of

scenes from the lives of SS. Peter and Paul, by Jan Pollack of

Munich (ca. 1500); large piece of Flemish tapestry representing the

Nativity and Adoration of the Magi (ca. 1500); coffers, models,

carvings. Stained glass from Upper Bavaria (1462). — Room 14,

with mural paintings (14 ancestral portraits; ca. 1470) from the

Alter Hof (p. 251). — Room 15 (Kircheu-Saal). In the elevated

vestibule: to the left, man with a bone for striking the hours, from

the Abbey of Heilsbronn (1513); tombs, banners, crucifix of 1520.

Section 1 (on the right): Gothic church-vessels of metal (15th cent.).

Section 2 (opposite): Choir-stalls (early 15th cent.). Sections 3 and

4: Monuments of ca. 1490 and 1482; wooden ass used on Palm
Sunday (16th cent.). Sections 7 and 8: Tomb of Bishop Simpert

from St. Ulrich's at Augsburg (1492); church-benches of 1513 with

procession-poles of the fishermen's guild of Ingolstadt (1509); by

the 4th pillar to the left, wooden figure of St. AYillibald, from Eich-

statt (early 16th cent.); in Section 7, winged altar (No. 18) from

Tramin, with paintings of the school of Michael Pacher (ca. 1510/.

h\ tlie apse, high-altar (No. 25) from the former Franciscan church

at Munich (1492; by Jan Pollack). — To the right is Room 16,

containing a coloured winged altar from Gerolzhofen (No. 3, on

the left), the Twelve Apostles in lime-wood from theMarieu-Kapelle

at Wiirzburg (1490; No. 4), and other wood -carvings by Tilman
Riemenschneider (p. 118). — Room 17. To the left, fine Gothic

gate; behind, oaken altar from the Lower Rhine (early 16th cent.;

No. 2); on either side of the exit, twelve busts in oak (No. 6; Swabian
school of ca. 1480); works in leather (Cases 12 and 13). — Room 18.

No. 1 (to the left of the entrance), Death of the Virgin, group in

carved wood from Ingolstadt (ca. 1500); carvings in mother-of-pearl

(Case 8). Here and in Room 19, Franconian sculptures and paintings.

"Room 20 (Waffen-Halle). To the left of the entrance, 15. Small

breech-loading cannon of Gustavus Adolphus; to the right, 3, 4.

Models of tournament and field armour. By the wall, halberds; in

the glass case at the window, ornamented dagger-sheaths. By the

central pillar, two suits of armour for man and horse, the gilded
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suit by Piccinino of Milan (ca. 1600). Above, targes (cavalry shields

with a hole for the lance), cross-bows, and saddles. On the X. wall,

armour of 1470-1640, beginning on the right with a Gothic suit

and including a fluted suit of 'Maximilian' armour. By the N. wall,

blunderbusses (right) and case with swords (left; 14r)0-1660). By
the exit-wall, two-handed swords (1580-1660) and muskets. On
the left wall, powder-horns aud pieces of armour. Case 19 contains

rapiers; above are helmets. In Case 6 are cross-bows; in and above

Case 1 are armour, helmets, shields, and quivers. On the upper

part of the walls, weapons, hatchments, aud banners. — Room 20 a

(temporary arrangement). Bavarian painting and sculpture from the

late middle ages onwards; Renaissance altar from the abbey-church

of St. Zeno near Reichenhall (ca. 1630). — Room 21, with arms and

armour from the old Munich arsenal. Models of cannon, prepared

in 1631 for Gustavus Adolphus. To the left, in Case 6, state sword

of Elector Maximilian I.; the other cases contain dress rapiers and

swords; in Case 10, on the left, are finely wrought blades and the

sword worn by Napoleon at the battle of Ulm; in Case 11, pre-

sentation swords.

Rooms 22-48 contain Works of the Renaissance and Modern
Times. Ceilings from castles and Renaissance houses at Dachau,

Neuburg, DonauwOrth, and Nuremberg, and from the Frauen-Kirche

and the Royal Palace at Munich. The walls are hung with tapestry

from Brussels, Lauingen, Munich, and Paris. — Room 22. Gold-

thread tapestry after Heemskerk and objects of the first half of

the 16th century. To the left (No. 1) are two bronze statues by

Peter Vischer (kneeling man and yeoman). The figure of a youth

and the relief of Christ and the Canaanitish woman (1543; No. 2,

by the staircase) are probably by his son Hans Vischer. The case

in the centre contains six reliefs in wood representing the ten com-

mandments, by Veit Stoss (?; 1524); draughtsmen with portrait-

medallions and an inlaid chess-board (Case 5, on the right). Ou the

cornice is a Milanese coat -of -arms from Schloss Oberhaus near

Passau (ca. 1520). — *Room 23 (Italian Room). Ceiling and chimney-

piece from N. Italy; Italian faience, fragments of mosaic, small

sculptures; to the left of the entrance, bridal chest of Duchess

Jacoba?a, with beautiful Italian intarsia; carved chests and chairs. —
Room 24. 1. Bed of Countess Palatine Susanna; 2. Table of Kel-

heini stone, engraved with portraits, arms, and perpetual calendar

(1597). In the caseby the window, miniature portraits on copper, wax,

mother-of-pearl, and stone. — Rooms 24 a, b, and c are to contain

ecclesiastical objects of the late 16th and 17th cent. (R. 24a), incl. a

domestic altar with carvings by Bockschiitz (1560), Renaissance

bronzes (R. 24b), and small Renaissance objects (R. 24 c\ R. 24b
and c and R. 25 contain Lauingen tapestry of 1541 (Pilgrimage of

Otho Henry to the Holy Sepulchre. 1521). — Room 27 is the boudoir,
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riclily carved, of a Couutess Fugger, from the Schloss at Donau-

worth (1546). — Eoom 26. lutarsia work aud carvings. — Room 25.

Carved furniture, inlaid work, etchings on lithographic stone.

Cases 9 and 10 contain knives, forks, and spoons from the Gothic

period to the present day. — Room 28. Period of Elector Maxi-

milian I. (1597-1651). The gold-thread Brussels tapestry represents

the planets. Furniture: 1 and 2. *Cabinets of ivory, silver, enamel,

and lapis lazuli, by Chr. Angermair of Weilheim. Ivory carvings

by Elector Maximilian I. Bedsteads and cabinets with carved and

inlaid work; clocks, tables inlaid with metal aud mother-of-pearl.

The cases contain vessels of rock-crystal set in gold and enamel;

vessels in Limoges enamel, incl. eight by P. Reymoud; an elaborate

reliquary; in Case 4, the gold goblet of the Augsburg butchers'

guild, drinking-vessels, and a silver-gilt hammer designed for Pope
Julius III. at the opening of the Jubilee Festival of 1550. —
Rooms 29 and 30. Period of Elector Ferdinand Maria (1651-79).

Gilded ceilings from the palace at Munich. In R. 29 : Cabinets in-

laid with tortoise-shell and mother-of-pearl; large silver clocks

from Augsburg; Buhl furniture; Italian bronzes; to the right of

the exit, portrait of Electress Adelaide (d. 1676), ascribed to Kneller.

In R. 30: Bronze model of the statue of Louis XIV. by Desjardins

(destroyed in 1792), on an inlaid table; carved furniture; works

in amber and semi -precious stones. — To the right is Room 31

(antechapel), with votive objects and pictures, 'Totenbretter'

(p. 358), etc. — Room 32 is a chapel in the baroque style, with

rococo fittings; to the left, a reduced copy of Michael Angelo's Last

Judgment by H. Muelich (d. 1573) and paintings by P. Candid

(d. 1628). A flight of steps descends hence to the rococo court

(p. 290). — We return to R. 30 and pass straight into Rooms 33

and 34 (time of Max Emmanuel, 1679-1726), with utensils and

furniture belonging to the Elector. In R. 34 (raised) are Oriental

weapons, saddles, and a tent, captured by Max Emmanuel at Belgrade

(1688). — Room 35. Miniature portraits in enamel on ivory, parch-

ment, paper, and copper; crayon drawings. — *Rooms 36 and 37 (time

of Elector Charles Albert, 1726-45), with handsome rococo furniture

and decorations from a Munich palace. In R. 36 are early-Dresden

and Nymphenburg porcelain and carvings in ivory. In R. 37 are

paintings of Bavarian palaces aud of the state-galley Bucentaurus;

collection of intaglio -portraits of Bavarian rulers; Japanese and

Chinese porcelain of the 15th-18th centuries. — Room 38 (time of

Elector Max Joseph III., 1745-77), with the old bookcases of the

Academy (1759) aud a collection of old scientific instruments, con-

tinued in Room 39 (opened on request). — Room 40. Rococo room*

from Landshut, with chessmen. — Room 41. Ivory carvings, several

by Ignaz Elhafen (ca. 1720) and Simon Troger (d. 1769). No. 1 on

the window-side is a *Cabinet for coins by Angermair of Weilheim
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(1624). — Room 42. Models of towns, fortresses, and churches, five

of Bavarian towns executed in the 16th cent. (incl. Munich on a

scale of 1:750, by J. Sandinrr, 1570; in the tower-room to the

right, a model of Munich in 1868); ship -models of the 16th-

1 9th cent.
;
plans and views of towns. — Koom 43. Schiller's writing-

table, a lottery-wheel, an early velocipede, and other curiosities. —
Rooms 44 and 45 (time of Charles Theodore, 1777-99), with late-

rococo fittings and ornaments. — Room 46, in the Empire style,

contains two pieces of Gobelins tapestry and personal relics of

Max I. (1799-1825). — Room 47, also in the Empire style, contains

souvenirs of Kings Max I., Louis I. (1825-48), and Max II. (1848-64).

— Room 48. State bed from Schloss Linderhof, prayer-book illus-

trated in colours in 1867 by Seitz and Lossow, and other souvenirs

of King Louis II. (1864-86). — The ceiling and panelling of the

staircase ascending to the first floor are from the castles of Dachau
and Donauworth.

First Floor. Special Collections. — Room 49 (to the right).

Ironwork from the 15th cent, onwards, incl. a superb iron grille

from the Dominican church at Ratisbon (1724). — Room 50. Seals

of German sovereigns, from Charlemagne onwards. Heraldic paint-

ings. — Rooms 51 and 52. Works in the precious metals, copper,

lead, bronze, brass, and pewter. Case 9 (to the right in R. 5 1) contains

pewter ware of the 16th-17th centuries. In R. 52 are clocks, watches,

and brazier's work from Nuremberg. — Room 53. Metal -work.

Brussels *Tapestry, with the battles of Hannibal after Giulio

Romano (similar tapestry in R. 58). — Rooms 54-56. Wood-carvings

for decorations and furniture. In R. 56 are moulds for wallpaper

and calico printing, pastry, and objects in wax, wooden blocks for

playing-cards and book -illustrations; Cases 3-5 contain examples

of Nuremberg bismuth-painting. — Room 57. Musical instruments

of 1450-1800.

Rooms 58-69 contain the Textile Collections. — Rooms 58-60.

Lace and embroideries. — Rooms 61 and 62. Egypto-Roman, Coptic

(5th-8th cent.), Byzantine, Oriental, and Occidental patterns. —
Room 63. Embroideries and leathern wall-hangings. — Room 64.

Old costumes. Case 1 (right), municipal robes of the 17th cent.;

Case 2 (left), wedding-mantle of Duke William V. of Bavaria (1568);

Cases 4 and 5 (by the 1st window), articles of dress and jewellery,

chiefly from the vault of the Counts Palatine of Neuburg at Lauiugen

;

Case 6 (by the 2nd window), silver ornaments of patrician ladies

(16th-17th cent.); Cases 7-10, shoes from theRoman period onwards;

under glass (No. 11), copper-gilt necklace of ca. 1520. — Room 65.

Costumes of the 17th-18th cent, and fans. Cases 9-13, clothes of

kings and queens of Bavaria; Case 12, coronation-robes and regalia

of King Otho of Greece; Cases 2 and 3, Bavarian national costumes.

— Through the passage (66) and past the staircase we reach (right)
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Room 67 (embroideries) and Rooms 68 and 69, coutaiuiug vest-

ments from the lltli cent, onwards. — Room 70 is a reproduction

of the liall in the castle of Trausnitz, near Landshut (middle of

16th cent.). This room and Room 71 (right) contain recent ac-

quisitions. — Room 72. Brussels tapestry after Raphael (Story of

the Creation). Cases 1-6, toys of the 16th-19th cent.; Cases 9-11,

objects used in the Jewish ritual; Case 7, Munich marionettes;

Case 8, curiosities. — Room 73. Writing, printing, and illustration.

Case 2 (to the left of the entrance), four MSS, of the 13th-15th cent.;

Cases 4-11, incunabula; Case 15, two prayer-books with paintings

by Flemish artists of the early 16th cent., etc.; Cases 17-19,

examples of the development in the art of writing and engr^sing

documents. — Room 74. Book- bindings and playing-cards, —
Room 75, Trophies of the chase; ornamental guns, hunting-knives,

and other objects connected with hunting. We ascend the staircase.

Room 76. * Collection of Creches or Presej^es (representatioufi

of the IvTativity exhibited in churches at Christmas-tide). Cabinet I

(to the right of the entrance), Examples from Tyrol; Cabinet II,

Model of a large town (Christmas Eve ; from Botzen) ; Cabinets III-YI,

Creches from Munich, with the carvings belonging to them ; Cabinets

A"II-XII, Creches and creche-figures from Naples and Sicily, often

with beautiful landscapes, — We return to the first floor.

Rooms 77 and 79, Ceramic Collection. By the walls are stoves

and stove -tiles. R. 77 contains faience and stoneware; in Case 1,

tiles; Case 9, in the tower-room, 'Hirschvogel faience' (fine pots

and jugs; mostly made by the Breuning family at jSTuremberg,

16th cent.). — Room 78 (adjoining). Guild-room, with insignia,

goblets, and tools of the Munich guilds. We return through R. 77

and 79. — Rooms 80-82. Porcelain collection, the most interesting

part of which is the Bavarian section, incl. the Nymphenburg ware

in R, 82, — Room 83, Glass, Case 1, Roman and early-Christian

glass; Case 4, Venetian glass.

Basement. — Rooms 84-92 (to the left of the entrance). Early

rooms from peasants' cottages, — From R. 92 we enter Room 96,

with copies of paintings on cottage-exteriors. — Room 95. Ancient

dug-outs from the Chiem-See and Starnberger See. — Room 94.

Pewter cofiius from the princely burial-vault at Lauingen, —
Room 93. Instruments of torture and punishment.

The Students' Building contains (temporarily) the Peruvian Anti-
quiiies from the Ethnographical Museum fp, 258), incl, textiles and pottery
(open on Thurs. 3-5, Oct.-March 2-4, and on Sat, 10-12).

In front of the National Museum is the Huhertus-Brunnen
(PL G, 5, 77), a fine fountain-temple with a bronze figure of a stag,

by A. von Hildebrand (1907). Close by is an equestrian statue of

Prince-Reyent Luitpold, also by Hildebrand (1913).
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A little to the E., at Prinzregenten-Str. 9, is the Prussian Em-
bassy (PL G, 5; //), built by Heilmann & Littmann in 1908, It

contains the *Schack Gallery (adni., see p. 241), bequeathed by
the poet Count Adolf von Schack kI. 1894) to the German Emperor.
It comprises choice works of modern German masters, such as Feuer-

bach, Schwind, Kocklin, Spitzweg, Lenbach, and Genelli, and forms
a valuable complement to the Xew Pinakothek. Catalogue of) pf.

Ground Floor. In the vostibule to the b'ft is a marl)le hust of

Count Schack. h\ Seehock (1894 1. — Room I (to the right). 46.

J. von Fuhrich, Introduction of Christianity; 185. ..4. Zimmer-
mann, Brocken scene from Goethe's Faust (figures by iSchwind);

103. Piloti/, Columbus discovering the New World. — We turn to

the right into Room II. Sfeinle, 175. Lorelei, 174. Water-colour
sketch for No. 175; 114. A'. Boffmann, The Hinter-See nearBerch-
tesgaden; 31. Dreher, Sappho by the sea. — We return to R. I and
enter Room III. 176. Steinle, Adam and Eve; 2. Fr. Bamberger,
View of Toledo; 108. K. Bahl, Study of a head. — Room IT. 7, 5.

Bamberger, Spanish landscapes; 10. L. Bode, Alpine bride; 122.

Ed. Schleich, Venice by night. — V. First Genelli Room. Genelli,

51. Abraham hears of Isaac's birth, 49. Rape of Europa, 53.

Bacchus and the Muses. Also 66. L. von Klenze^ Interior of a

Saracen palace at Amalfi; 62. H. von Hess, Thorvaldsen, — VI.

Second Genelli Roojr. Genelli, 50. Hercules and Omphale, 52.

Lycurgus fighting with Bacchus and Bacchantes, 53a. Composition

foi' the curtain of a theatre, 48, Vision of Ezechiel, — Room VII.

100. Neureidher , Scene from Goethe's Hermann and Dorothea;
184. A. Zimmennann,Golgotha at the time of the Crucifixiou. —
Room VIII. Bamberger, 1. View of Gibraltar, 6. ^^ear Granada:
121, E. Schleich, The Starnberger See; Steinle, 173. Tart in i

playing the violin on a tower in Padua, 172. Watchman on a tower.

— IX. First Schwind Room. Schicind , 160. Hero and Leander,

149. Hermit watering the horses of his guest. 139. The wedding-
journey, 143. Forest- chapel, 135. Nymphs watering a stag, 129.

Count Gleichen returning from the Crusades (1864), 151. Riibezahl

('Number Nip"), 152. St. Wolfgang constraining the devil to bring

stones for building a church, 158. The captive's dream, 156.

Virgin. — X. Second Schwind Room. Schwind, 147. Duel by
night, 141. Youth on his travels, 131. Midday, 140. Morning, 130.

Morn, 144. Dance of the elves, 161. Hermit in a grotto, 132.

Evening, 137. Erl-King, 133. Night, 136. The boy's magic horn,

150. Wieland, the smith.

First Floor. I. The Lenbach Room (lighted from above) con-

tains copies of the great Italian, Spanish, and Flemish masters

of the 16th and 17th cent, by Lenbach. On the window-wall are

original works by Lenbach: to the left, 72. Portrait of a lady

(1867), 79. Count Schack, 76. The Tocador de la Reina at the Al-

Baedekek's S. Germany. 12tli Edit. 19
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hambra, 71 (to the riglit), Shepherd -boy (1860), 73. Portrait of

himself (1865), 75. Alhambra. — II (left). First Bockxin Koom.
Bocklin, 12. Ideal landscape, 18. Mm-derer pursued by the Furies

(1870), 14. Pan frightening a shepherd, 25. Autumn landscape with

Death on horseback, 13. Anchorite, 22. Ideal landscape with

the journey to Enimaus. — III. Secoxd Bocklix Room. Bocklin,

21. Ideal landscape in spring, 26. Italian villa in spring, 20.

Shepherdess, 19. The dragon's cave (1870), 15. Villa by the sea,

16. Same subject (1865), 17. Shepherd's complaint (1865), 27.

Nereid and Triton, — IV. Spitzweg Room. Spitzweg, 163. Sere-

nade from the 'Barber of Seville', 166. Turkish cafe, 167. Hermit,

168. Alpine dairymaids, 165. Taking leave, 164. Hypochondriac.

Also 84. Hans von Maries, Watering horses (1864); 78. Len-
bach, Count Schack (1870); 104. Fr. Preller , Ulysses and Leu-

cothea (1863); 24. Bocklin, Roman tavern in spring; above the

exit, 28. Boheim, Satyrs chasing a hare in the Roman Campagna. —
Room V (lighted from above). Copies by A. Wolf, after the 16th

cent, Venetians and Andrea del Sarto. — VI. Rottmaxx Room.
K. Rottmann, 117, 115. Greek landscapes; 113. The Kochel-See,

Also 67, J. A. Koch, Hut near Olevano; 126. Scknorr von Carols-

feld, Erl-King; 33. Feuerhach, Roman woman (1863); 30, P. von
Cornelius, Flight into Egypt (of his first Roman period, with a

background by /. A. Koch); 34. Feuerhach, Pieta (1863). — VII.

Feuerbach Room. Feuerhach, 32. Ariosto's garden (1863), 37.

Children bathing, 42. Idyll from Tivoli, 35. Paolo and Francesca

(1864), 40. Hafiz at the well (1866), 41. Mother and children at a

well (1866), 36. Nymph listening to childi^en playing music (1864),

39. Laura at mass in Avignon watched by Petrarch. Also 116.

K. Rottmann, Creek landscape. — On the landing, 11. L. Bode,

The legend of Pepin and Bertha.

Second Floor. Rooms I and II. Copies by A. Wolf, etc., after

the Venetians (15th- 16th cent.), masters of the Brescia school

(16th cent.), and Correggio. — Room III. Copies after Michael

Angelo by K. Schwarzer, etc.

The Luitpold-BrUcke (PI. a, 5; II), rebuilt by Th. Fischer in

1899 after its destruction by a flood, consists of a single stone arch

with a span of 210 ft. At the W. end of the bridge are recumbent

figures of Bavaria and the Palatinate, at the E. end Francouia and

Swabia, — On the right bank of the Isar flights of steps and in-

clined slopes ascend to the Peace Monument (PI. G, 5 ; //), a column

with the Genius of Peace, by Petzold, Diill, and Heilmaier, erected

in 1898 to commemorate the peace of 1871. On either side of the

monument extend the pretty Maximilians-Aulagen (p. 254). From
the monument the Aussere Priuzregenteu-Str. continues past the

villa of the painter and sculptor Fr. von Stuck (right; PI. H 5, fl)
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to the Prinzregenten-Theater (PI. H, 5, 6, /; p. 238), aii im-

posing and finely articulated edifice, erected by Heilmann & Litt-

inann in 1901 in an antique style. The auditorium, in a severe

Renaissance style, is shown at 3 p.m. on Tues., Thurs., and Fri. from

Oct. to June (porter, Niger-Str. ; 50 pf.). In front of the theatre is a

marble statue of Bichanl Wagner, by H. Wadere (1913i.

The *English Garden (PI. G, H, 3, 4; /), a park of 600

acres, with fine old trees, watered by two arms of the Isar, affords

delightful walks in summer. It was originally laid out at the in-

stigation of Count Rumford (Benjamin Thompson, b. 1753 in

Massachusetts). From the corner of the I'rinzregenten-Str. and

Konigin-Str. (PI. F, 5; //) a walk leads along the river to an arti-

fical cascade beside the Brunnhaus (PI. G, 5; 77). Farther on we
reach the Monopteros (PI. Cr, 4; 7), a small temple designed by

Klenze in 1833, and then the Chinese Toiver (Tl. G 4, 7; cafe;

military band, see p. 239), built in 1791. Farther on is the (^'2 hr.;

Kleinhesseloher See (restaurant), an artificial lake used for boating

and skating. To the E. of this is the Milchhausl (PI. H, 3; 7i, a

garden-restaurant. The English Garden is adjoined on the X. by

the wooded Hirschaa (PI. H, 2, 1; 7), through which we may walk

to the (^4 hr.) Aumehfer isee Map. p. 303), a forester's house with

a popular restaurant.

From the P^nglish Garden we follow the Tivoli-8tr. E., passing

near the Restaurant Tivoli (left; PI. G 4, 7), to the Ma.r-Joaepli-

Briicke (PI. G, H, 4; 7;, which is adorned with animal-reliefs and

groups of the Elements. It leads across the Isar to the suburb of

Boyenhausen, with the hydropathic of Bad Brunntal (TI. H,4; 7),

at the N. end of the Maximilians-Anlagen (p. 254), and the Ohser-

vatorij (Sternwarte; PI. H 5, I ; tramway No. 9), open on Tues. and

Fri. 2-4 (50 pf.).

h. "W., S., and E. Quarters. Nymphenburg.
From the Karls-Platz (p. 245) the wide and shady Souuen-Str.

(PI. E, 6; 77) leads 8. to the Sendlingertor-Platz. — At No. G in

the Schwanthalcr-Str., a side-street on the W., is the Schwanfhaler
Museum (PI. E, 6; 77), containing plaster models of the sculptor's

works (open daily 9-2; free on Mon., Wed., and Fri., on other days

35 pf.). — In the Mathilden-Str. is the St. EUsahethen-Kirche,
with three low domes, built in 1757-60 and restored in 1912.

In the Sexdlixgektor-Platz (PI. E, 6; 77) is a bust of Aloys

Senefelder (p. 224), by Zumbusch (1877). Seudliuger Tor and Send-

linger Str., see p. 249. The Thalkirchuer Str. ^tramway No. 10)

leads S. to the Sud-Friedhof {\^. 302) and the Snd-Bahnhu/\P\.
D 8, I; p. 233). Beyond the railway is the new tiross-MarJ:fhal/e

19*
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(PI. D 8, /; tramways Nos. 26 and 36 also), built by Scbachner

(1912), a little S.E. of wbicb is tbe harfal-Bahnhof (p. 233; tram-

ways ISTos. 10 and 30). — Tbe Lindwnrm-Str., wbicb continues the

Sendlinger Str., leads to tbe S.W. suburb of Sendling (tramways

Nos. 6, 16, 26, and 36). At tbe end of tlie Liudwurju-Str., opposite

tbe old eburcb (PI. C, 8; 7), is a monument to tbe Smith of Kochel
(comp. p. 327), byEbbingbaus (1911), consisting of a fountain and
a statue of a S. Bavarian peasant (1911).

To tbe W. of tbe Seudlingertor-Platz is the Allgemeines Kran-
kenhaus CPl. E, 6 ; //), a bospital built in 1813. In tbis district are

various Medical litatitntes belonging to tbe University. Tbe Ana-
tomical BnikUng (PI. E, 6; //), Pettenkofer-Str. 11, erected in

1905-7 by Heilmann &Littmann, contains important anatomical

and pathological collections (adm., see j). 240), — At Eeetboven-

Platz 1 is BrakVs Kvnsthaiis fp. 242), built by E. von Seidl

(1913). — In tbe Kaiser -Ludvvig-Platz (PI. D, 6, 7; II) is an
equestrian statue of Emperor Louis the Bavarian (p. 243), by
F. von Miller (1905).

To tbe W. extends tbe Theresien-Wiese (PI. D, 6, 7; 7), tbe

scene of tbe October Festival (p. 239). It is surrounded by new
streets witb bandsome buildings in tbe German baroque style. On
tbe N.E. side is tbe modern Grotbic Paids-Kirche (PI. D, 6; 7), by
Hauberrisser (1892-1906).

On a beigbt on tbe AV. side of tbe Tberesien-AViese, in front of

tbe Rubmes- Halle and 25 min. S.W. of tbe Karls-Tor (tramway
Xo. 19), rises a colossal bronze statue of *Bavaria (PI. D, 7; 7),

designed by Scbwautbaler and cast by F. von Miller (1850). It

measures 60 ft. to tbe top of tbe wreatb (or, including tbe pedestal,

100 ft.). Tbe ascent is best made early in tbe morning, before tbe

metal has been beated by tbe sun (adm., see p. 240). Tbe base of tbe

figure is reached by 66 steps, and an iron spiral staircase of 60 steps

more ascends within it to tbe bead, wbicb lias room for five persons.

In clear weather we obtain an extensive panorama of tbe distant

Alps. — Tbe Bnhmes-HaUe^ a Doric colonnade l)uilt by Klenze in

1843-53, contains eigbty busts of eminent Bavarians. — To tbe W.
of the Bavaria is tbe Ausstellungs-Park (open till midnigbt),

witb exhibition-balls, restaurants (bands daily), and tbe Kilnstler-

Theater (p. 239), built by Littmann and interesting for the sim-

plified arrangement of its stage.

Nymphenburg. — Eestaurants. Zum Kontrolor {V\. a. 3; I);

Volksgarten (PI. A, 3; /), a large popular resort with a view-tower,
band, etc.; Hirschgarten (JPl. A, 4 ; /). — Tramway No. 1 (p. 237) runs
from the Haupt-Bahnhof to Nymphenburg in 20 min. (15 pf .) ; the ter-

minus is 8 min. from the Schloss. — The Araalienburg, Badenl)urg, and
Pagodenburg are open on week-days 1-6, Oct.-March 1-4 (tickets, .50 pf..

at the Araalienburg). The Schloss is closed to the public, but the park
is open during the day.
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Nymphenhiirg , on the W. side of the city, and incorporated

with it in 1900, deserves a visit for the sake of the Anialieuburg

and the park.

The Schloss (PI. A, 3; /;, an extensive gronp of buildings with

a facade 660 yds. in length, was erected in 1668-1728. The central

structure, with its five stories, was built by Barelli, while Viscardi

added the arcades in 1702, and Etlner the wings in 1718. The
large hall was tastefully decorated in the German rococo style by
J. B. Zimniermaun (1756). The houses forming a crescent on the

E., and enclosing gardens and a pond with a fountain, date from

the time of Elector Hax Joseph III.

To the W. of the Schloss is a large *Park (comp. inset-map,

p. 233), laid out partly in the French, partly in the English style.

Behind the central building is a large flower-bed by Fr. Girard. To

the N. of this are fine green-houses, in which the Brazilian plants

arc noteworthy. Behind these is the Magdalenen- Kapelle '^gra-

tuity), built by Effner in 1725 as a hermitage for Max Emmanuel.
To the S. of the flower-bed is the '^Amalienharg, a small hunting-

lodge by Cuvillies (1734-9), the interior decoration of which is one

of the best efforts of the rococo period. In the remoter part of the

park are two large lakes. On the S. is the Badenburg, by Efther

(1718), Avith stucco decoration and a ceiling -painting; on the N.

is the Pagodenbitrg, also by Eflfner (1716). At the W. end of the

canal is a marble cascade.

In the N.E. part of the crescent is the royal Porcelaia Factory,
founded at Ncndcck in 1717, transferred to Nyinphcnhinir in 1758. and
now in private hands. It is open on Mon.-Fri. 8-12 and 1.30-6, on Sat.

8-12; adni. 1 Ji. Depot in the city, see p. 212.

The Kemnaten-Str. /PI. A, 2; 7) leads to the ncAv Botanical

Gardens (open Sun. 10-1, Mon.-Fri. 2-6; 50 pf.), with large hot-

houses and a restaurant. — To the S. of the Schloss lies the Hirsch-

Garten (restaurant), containing tame deer. — About ^'2 ^*'- E- ^^

the Schloss, at the end of the canal, is the new Orphanage (Waisen-

haus; PI. B 3, /), built by Grassel in the baroque style.

To the S. of the Yiktualien-Markt (p. 248) lies the Gartxer-
Platz (PI. F, 6, 7 ; 77), with statues of Gartner (d. 1847) and Klenze

(d. 1864), the architects, and the Theatre (p. 238).

From the Cavalry Barracks (p. 253) the Ladwigs-Brilcke iPl. G,

6, 7; 77), remodelled in 1891-4 and furnished with figures of

industry, trade, fishing, and art, leads across the Museums-Insel

(new building of the German Museum, see p. 254) to the quarter of

llaidhausen. Immediately to the left is the imposing '^St&dt-

isches Volkshad(V\. G 6, 77; p. 236). endowed by Karl Muller, the

engineer, and erected in 1901 by Hocheder in the baroque style.

About 10 niin. E. is the St. Johanniti-Iurche{Fl G, H, 6; 77), built
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iu the Gothic style by Bcro;er in 1852-74. A little N.W. is the

Maximilianeum (p. 254).

About Va lir. E. of the Ost-Bahuliof (PI. H, 7; /) lies Berg am Laim,
on the Grrafing line (called at by suburban, trains), with the St. Michaeh-
Hofkirche, built by J. M. Fischer in 1737-51; the charming rococo interior

deserves a visit.

At the S. end of the Museums-Insel is the Cornelius-BrUcke

(PI. F, 7 ; 7), built by F. von Thiersch. It is adorned with a bronze

statue of King Louis II. as a boy, by F. von Miiller (1910).

Farther S.W. is the Beichenbach-Briicke (PI. F, 7; /), with

reliefs of water-nymphs and sprites by Dasio and Gedon. — The
Maximilians-Kirche (PI. F, 7; /) was built by H, von Schmidt in

the Italian Romanesque style in 1895-1908. — On the S. side of

the WittehhacJier-BrUc'ke (PI. E, 8; 7) is a massive equestrian

statue of Otho of Wittelsbach, by "Wrba.

In the hilly part of the suburb of Aa, on the right bank of the

Isar, are numerous 'Bierkeller' (PI. Gr, F, 7, 8; p. 235). Below is

the Mariahilf-Kirche (PI. F, 7; 7), built in the early Grothic style

by Ohlmiiller in 1831-9, and containing stained glass by Schraudolph

Fischer, etc. (adm., see p. 241). — Farther S., in the suburb of

Giesing, is the high -lying Giesinger Kirche (PI. F, 9; 7), built

by Dollraann in the Gothic style in 1865-84, and commanding a

view of the city and the mountains. In the Agilolfinger-Platz and

at Columbus -Str. 13 (PI. E. 9 and F, 8; 7) are interesting schools

built by Hocheder and Griissel.

To the S. of Giesiug, near Harlaching (tramway Xo. 25 to the E.

entrance) and opposite Thalkirchen (tramway Xo. 26, or Xo. 36 to

the Thalkirchner Briicke. over which we walk to the W. entrance),

lies the *Tierpark Hellabrunn (adm., see p. 241), zoological

gardens laid out in 1911 by E. von Seidl (illus. guide 40 pf.). Fine
view from the restaurant at the end of the park (open till 11 p.m.;

band on Sun.. AVed.. and Sat. afternoons). — Isar-Auen, see p. 304.

Cemeteries. Besides the Alter Nord-Friedhof (PL E, 3, 4; 7)

and the Alter and Neuer Sitrl - Friedhof (PI. E, 7. 7: tramway
Xo. 10), both of which have fine monuments. Munich possesses

four cemeteries laid out in 1894-1907. and the Israelite Cemetery
(in the Ungerer-Str., a little X. of the Xeuer Xord-Friedhof). The
newer cemeteries and their chapels were all designed bv Hans
Grassel. The Ost-Friedhof (PI. G 8, I: tramways Xos. 7, i2, and

25) has several fine chapels, in the centre of which is a rotunda

65 ft. broad, with a painting of Christ as Judge bv J. Guntermann
(1900). The Neuer Nord-Friedhof IP\. HI, I; tramway Xo. 13)

has a fine chapel with a dome 45 ft. wide; good monuments in the

central walk and on the S. and E. walls. The West - Friedhof
(V\. B 1, 7; tramway Xo. 4) has interesting chapels also. To the
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S.W. of the town, at Holzapfelkrcuth, is the impressive Wald-
Friedhof (comp. the map; tramway No. 18 or 16), with an artistic

arrangement of graves. — A 'Park-Friedhof with underground

vaults is to be laid out at Schwabing after the designs of A. Tiersch.

i. Environs of Munich.

*Schleissheiin, situated to the N. of Munich on the Ratisbon

line (p. 233; IV/^M.. in ^2 li^'-J 1 '^ O'' ^0 pf.), consists of three

palaces. About 5 min. E. of the station (1590 ft.) is the Altes

Schloss, begun in 1597 under William V., and now the estate-office

and a cavalry remount depot (restaurant). Beyond, to the E., is the

Neues Schloss, and 20 min. farther on is the Lustheim.

The Neues Schloss (custodian in the left wing), with a facade

360 yds. long, was erected for Elector Max Emmanuel in 1701-4 by
E. Zuccali in a style recalling the Palace of Versailles. The interior

was admirably fitted up by EfFuer in 1715-22, and illustrates the

transition from the baroque to the German rococo style. Most of

the ceiling-paintings are by Amigoni, the stucco embellishments of

the fine staircase by Dubut.
The Schlo.ss contains a Picture Gallery, with 1400 works. It is

open free daily, cxeept Mon., from Easter till Oct. 31st (ground-floor 10-12,

upper floor 2-6, both open 10-12 and 2-6 on Sun.), and from Nov. to Easter
on application to the attendants. Catalogue (1913), 1 JC. Rooms I-XT
(left), on the ground-floor, contain the early Netherlandish and German
schools, while R. XIII-XYIII (right) are devoted to the Italian schools.

On the upper floor are the later German, Dutch, and Flemish works,
portraits, and the Wittelsbach ancestral gallery. The S. pavilion contains
the modern works.

Behind the palace are fountains and gardens extending to Lust-

heim, a small Schloss built by Zuccali in 1685-90, and containing

pictures (key kept by the forester in the park, to the right).

About 5 M. to the W. of Schleissheim, on the railway to In-

golstadt (p. 227; 11 M., in V., hr.; 95 or 40 pf.), lies Dachau
(1590 ft.; Hot. Ziegler, with veranda affording a good view ; Moor-

had Dachau, P. from 6 c^), a town Avith 5800 inhab. on the Amper.
Dachau is the head-quarters of a colony of landscape-painters, who

draw their inspiration mainlv from the Dachauer Moos (p. 227).

About V^br. W. of the station are the loftily situated Church (1624)

and the district-offices, whence we reach the Schloss in 2 min. by

ascending to the left. The latter contains the district -museum,

a museum of popular art, and a gallery of modern paintings (adm.

daily 9-5; 30 pf.). Behind the Schloss is the Hof- Garten, com-

manding a fine view of Dachau, Munich, the surrounding plain,

and the distant mountains.

Pasing (Hot. zur Eisenbahn; pop. 9400 1,
to the W. of Munich,

the first station on the Starnberg, Augsburg, and Lindau lines

(pp. 305, 228, 308; 4V ., M.. in 11-16 min.: 40 or 20 pf.\ and also
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reached from the Karls-Platz by tramway No. 29 (p. 238;, is the

starting-point for a visit to the churches of Pipping and Bluten-

burg, which possess considerable artistic interest. Local railway

from Pasing to Herrsching, see p. 307.

The small church of Pipping, 10 min. N. of Pasing, was built

in 1478-9. The interior has remained unchanged, and, with its old

stained glass, altars, and carved ceiling and galleries, affords a

charming picture of a late-Gothic country-church of the 15th century.

About 1/4 hr. N. of Pipping lies the old hunting-lodge of Bluten-
burg, now a convent-school. The chajjel (gratuity 50 pf.) in the N.

wall, built in 1488 under Duke Sigismund, contains a high -altar

and two side-altars of 1491, with paintings of the Munich school;

fine wooden ^Figures of the Apostles, the Virgin, and the Eisen

Christ, of the same period; and stained glass of 1497 with scenes

from the Passion and arms of the Wittelsbach family.

On the right bank of the Isar, above the Reichenbach bridge

(PI. F7, /;p. 302), begin the pretty Isar- Auen, through which

paths lead up the river past the Wittelsbach bridge (PI. E, 8; /)

and under the railway (fine view of Thalkirchen, p. 325). Farther on

we pass the Tierpark Hellabrunn Qd. 302), at the end of which, on

the left, lies the Marienklaase I'exit only from the Tierpark). AVe

ascend the steps and follow the bank, skirting fine woods, past the

restaurant 'Zum Franziskaner* to the (IY2 lir-) ^^^terschwaige and

Gfrosshesselohe (see below).

Pleasant excursion also in the Valley of the Isar, to the S.

of Munich, by either the state railway (p. 328 ; 22-30 min.) or the Isar-

Tal railway (p. 325; 14-16 min.) to Grosshesselohe (50 or 25 pf.).

From the station of the state railway (8 min. from the station of the

Isar-Tal railway) we walk E. across the bridge (view; p. 329) to

(20 min.) the Menterschvjaixje (restaurant), which is not far from

the terminus of tramway No. 25. — Or from the state railway station

we may ascend the path on the left bank to (10 min.) the Restaurant
Grosshesselohe, which is 10 min. also from the station of the Isar-

Tal railway, "^"e now walk through the wood, past the Schlosschen

Schwaneck, erected by Schwanthaler (no adm.), to (25 min.) Pullach

(p. 325). We next descend to the left to (8 min.) Bad Pullach (restau-

rant), on the Isar. We may return by the lower path along the river

(not advisable in wet weather), traversing fine beech-woods and

ascending to the left to the station near the Grosshesselohe bridge

(^4 hr.). Or from Bad Pullach we may ascend the Isar to (20 min.)

the Restaurant Hollriegelsgreuth (station, see p. 325), cross the

bridge (5 pf.) to the (20 min.) old ducal hunting-lodge of Grunicald
(1915 ft.; Restaurant Schlosswirt, with view from the tower, 10 pf.:

Romerschanze, Lindenwirt). Thence we may either walk along the

right bank to (1 hr.) the Grosshesselohe bridge (see above), or we
may return to Munich by tramway No. 25.
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34. The Starnberger See and Ammer-See.
The Hoher Peissenberg.

Railway from Munich to Starnberg (IT'/j M.) in 32-5'J min. (2JC20,
1 J^ 40, 90 or 60 pf.); to Weilheim (33 M.) in I1/4-2 hrs. (!./(( 20, 2 J6 70,

1 ^« 75 pf.) ; to Peissenberg (381/.. M.) in lVa-2V-2 hrs. (3 .# 10, 1 JC 9b pf.j.

— Steamer (restaurantj from Starnberg to Sccshaupt in I'/rl'/a ^i'- ; there
and back (round the whole lake; two breaks of journey allowed) in 2V2 hrs.

(3 vA^, 1 cA; 65 pf.). Steamer- tickets may be purchased at the Starnberger
Bahnhof in Munich as well as on board.

Munich (Starnberger Bahnhof), see p. 233. AVe follow the Lindau
line (p. 308) as far as (4^/.^ M.) Pasiiig (p. 303), and then diverge to

the S. — 87., M. Flanegg (Schlosswirt, with garden). — 12 M,
Gauting (Bahnhofs-Hotel, Post). — li> M. Muhlthal.

'

\1^J2 M. Starnberg. — Hotels. Baycrischer Hof , R. 21/2- 4,

B. IV4, D. 3, P. from 8 .#. Bellevue, R. 2-31/2. B. 1 a 20 pf., both to the
left of the station; Deutscher Kaiser, R. 2-3, P. 5-7 ^./C : Seehof, near
the station, with restaurant; Pellet- 3fai/er, 5 min. from the station, R.

2V-2-5 Ji, Tidzinger Hof, both away from the lake. — Dr. Flange's Sana-
iorinm. P. 8-12 JC. — See-Restaurant, by the Undosa-Bad, good. — Baths.
U'ldosa-Bad, with artificial waves. — Rowing Boat 1/2"! <-* V^^ hour.

Starnberg (1925 ft.), a pleasant village of 3600 inhab. at the

X. end of the Starnberger See, dominated by its old castle, is much
frequented as a summer resort. Local museum.

The *Starnberger See or Wiirm-See (1915 ft.), 13 M. long.

1^4-3 M. in width, and 400 ft. deep, is enclosed by banks of moderate

height, which are covered with country-houses and parks. The
principal charm of the scenery is the view of the mountains to the

S. The following are the chief peaks, from E. to W. : Wendelstein,

Brecherspitze, Kirchstein, Benediktenwand, Karwendel-Gebirgc,

Jochberg, Herzogstand, Heimgarten, Krottenkopf,"\^^etterstein range

with the Zugspitze, and Ettaler Maundl.

Steamer Journey. On the hill to the right, beyond Starnberg,

is the villa of Count Almeida. On the bank are pretty country-

houses and the steamer-pier of Niederpdcl'ing

.

The first steamer-pier on the E. bank is Schloss Berg (See-

Hutel, with veranda and garden on the lake, E. 2^ 2"^ <^^) Hot.

Schloss Berg, 5 min. from the lake, both good). About 5 min. from

the pier is Schloss Berg (adni. daily in summer, 8-11 and 12-6:

50 pf.), a royal summer residence. A chapel (20 min.) in the park

marks the spot where King Louis XL and Dr. von Gudden perished

in the lake on June 13th, 1886. To Ebenhausen or to "Wolfrats-

hausen, see p. 326.

On the E. bank is the church of Aufkirchen. The steamer

next calls at Leoni (*Hot. Leoni, R. l*/.,-2'/o ,JC ; Hot.-Pens. Bay-

risches Haus, \ ., hr. S.). A cable-railway (30, down 10 pf.) ascends

in 7-8 min. to the hotel and sanatorium on the Bottmanns-Hohe
(2165 ft.). About 10 min. farther S. is a Bismarck Toiver (2230 ft.;
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*Yie'\v of the lake and Alps). From Leoni to Wolfratshausen, see

p. 326. — Ou the E. bank, betweenLeoni and Ammerland (see below),

are Schloss Allmannshausen and tSchloss Seehurg.

P"^ On the"N^^. bank, opposite Leoni, lies the steamer-pier ofPossen-
hofen (Hot. Schauer), with a Schloss of Dnke Louis William of

Bavaria, 10 min. E. of the station (see below). Pleasant walk through

woods (finger-posts) to (25 min.) Feldafing (see beloM^). To the S.

of Possenhofen lies the-Bosen-Insel, a wooded island with a royal

country-house (reached by boat in 10 min. ; Aisiters admitted). From
Possenhofen parks and gardens extend on the bank of the lake to

(3 M.) Garaishauseih with a small Schloss of Prince Thurn and

Taxis. About IV^ M. farther is the steamer -pier of Tutzing
(*Hot. Simson, near the station. 7 min. from the lake, R. 21/2-5 ^6

;

Seehof, with garden on the lake, R. 1^ 2-3V2 ^^)i '^itbi a large con-

vent. Station, see below. The Johannishilgel, V4 lii'- S., commands
a charming view ; a still finer one is enjoyed ifrom the *Ilka-Hdhe

(2390 ft.; inn 10 min. from the top), ^,4 hr. S.W., near Obei'zeis-

mering. — Opposite Tutzing, on the E. bank, is the steamor-piin-

of Ammerland, with a Schloss of Count Pocci. To Wolfratshausen,

see p. 326.

On the TV. bank, farther on, is the steamer -pier of Bernried,
1 4 hr. from the station Q). 327), with a Schloss and a fine park

(beer on summer afternoons). Opposite is the steamer-pier of Am-
hach. The banks become flatter and the Alps more conspicuous. —
At the S. end of the lake lies the steamer-pier of Seeshaapt (Hot.

Post, Seeshaupt), ^ 4 hr. from the station ('p. 327). To Hohenleiten

and Beuerberg, see p. 326.

Railway Journey. 20^., M. Possenhofen (see above). — 22 M.

Feldafing ^*Kaiserin Elisabeth, R. 3-6, P. 8-12 ^6 ; *Xeuschwan-
steinj, 25 min. from the lake (see above). — Before (25 M.) Tutzing
(rail, restaurant; see above) we obtain a view of the lake and moun-

tains to the left. — Farther on the Kochel line (p. 327) diverges

to the left. Our line turns to the S.W. — 33 M. T^eilheim (1845 ft.

;

Rail. Restaurant; *Hot. Brauwastl, R. 1 Jl 20-1 Jl 60 pf.; Post),

a small town of 5200 inhab. on the Ammer. To Garmisch-Parten-

kirchen, see pp. 319, 320; to the Ammer-See andlMering, see p. 228.

About 2i/<jlirs. W. of Wcilheim is the secularized Benedictine monas-
tery of 'Wessobrunn, founded by Duke Thassilo ca. 753. The con-

A-ent-church was razed in 1810. The rococo jjarish-church (1757) contains
a large painted wooden crucifix of the second half of the 13th century.
The conventual buildings, erected in 1680-1700, now form the Schloss
of Baron von Cramer -Klett. The upper floor has interesting stucco
ornamentation of the early 18th century. Near Paterzell, to the S.E.
of "Wessobrunn, is a wood of yew-trees, 125 acres in area.

331/2 M. Peissenberg (1940 ft.). About 5 min. to the left of the

station is the *Hotel Bad Eohenmdz (2020 ft.; P. 41/2-6 ^\ with

mineral springs, hydropathic, restaurant, and shady walks.
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The Hoher Pcissenberg is ascended in 1^ , l*'"- ty the easy and
partly shaded path (blue and white marks) which diverges to the

left from the road beyond the restaurant and leads via the Sulzer-

bach waterfall, the Quellenhaus, the 'Schone Aussicht', and the

Hubertushof (rfmts.). Or we may ascend in 1^/^ hr. by the steeper

path (red and white marks) which diverges to the right beyond
the restaurant and passes the Eberlbauer and Schwabheis. Omn.
from Peissenberg station twice daily in l^/.^hr. to Hetten (2525 ft.),

at the AV. foot of the hill, whence the top is reached in 40 min.

(path shaded in the forenoon). The *Hoher Peissenberg ''3240 ft.)

affords a remarkably extensive panorama owing to its position oppo-
site the centre of the Bavarian Alps. On the summit are a pil-

grimage-church, a school (with an observatorv on the roof; adm.
20 pf.), and an inn (E. 1 U^, 20-1 -Jl 50 pf.).

*ViEw. The principal mouutains visible are, from E. to W., the
"Weudelsteiu, Benodiktenwaud, Jochberg (beyond which in the extreme
distance peeps the snowy Vcncdiger), Herzogstand, Heimgarten (in front
of which lies the Staffel-See), Karwendel-G-ebirge, Kistenkopf, Krotten-
kopf, Dreitorspitze, "VVetterstein range (with the Zugspitze), Daniel,
Hochplatte, Hohe Bleiche, Gabelschroffen. Sauling, the Loisach mountains.
Griinten. and Stuiben. To the N. we have an extensive survey of the
plain, embracing the Aramer-See, Starnbcrger See, Munich, Augsburg,
and innumerable towns and villages beyond them.

^Ve may descend S.E. across the ridge, with a fine view of the

mountains, to the Weinhauer (2430 ft.; also bedrooms), and follow

the good path to the left, skirting the woods, to the Quellenhaus

(see above) and Peissenberg station. A toboggan-run descends also

from the Peissenberg to Bad Hohensulz.
The continuation of the railway (to be opened in the autumn of 1914'i

skirts the Peissenberg to (1 M.) Uohcnpeissenherg (ascent to the summit
in 3/4 hr.). and then goes on via (7 M.) PeitingXo (91/2 M.) Schongau (p. 309).

From Peissexbekg to Saulgrub. 141/2M.. carriage-road (omn. daily
to Rottenbuch in 21/4 hrs.). We cross the Ammer to" the S. to (51/2 M.)
Bobing. — 8 M. Rottenbuch (2505 ft. ; Klosterbrau), picturesquely "situ-

ated on the left side of the Ammer- Tal. The abbey -church, rebuilt
ca. 1472 and remodelled in the baroque style in 1738-57, contains a figure
of the Virgin , carved late in the 15th cent, (last altar on N. side). —
Thence past (12 M.) Bayersoien, near the little Soicn-er See (2590 ft.),

to (Ui/., M.) Saulgnih rp. 323\

The Ammer-See (1750 ft.\ 10 M. long, 3^ ^ M. broad, and
270 ft. deep, with low. wooded banks, commands, like the Starn-

bcrger Sec, a fine view of the Alps from the"\Vatzmann to the Algau
mountains, with the Zugspitze group in the middle.

Railway from Munich to Herrsching, 23V, M., in ^ 4-IV4 hr.

(1 ^/^ 90, 1 J^ 25 pf.). — At (41
'., M.) Pasin(/'(p. 303 we diverge

S.W. from the Lindau line (p. 308). — 16 M.' Wcssliug (1930 ftO,

on a small lake. — 18^'., M. Steinebach, a village 10 min. "SV., on
the pale-green Worth-See (1840 ft.). — 20' M. Seefeld-Hechen-
dorf. AVe then skirt the \^x^i\y Pilse 11-See (1750 ft.l — 23' M.
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Herrsching (Balinhofb-Hotel), on the Ammer-See, 3 min. from

the steamer-pier.
From Herrsching a road leads through the gorge of the Kienha.ch

to (11/4 hr.) the 'holy hill' of Andechs (2330 ft. ; Hot. Wastian). a Bene-
dictine monastery with a favourite pilgrimage-church. The latter, dat-

ing from ca. 1150, was lavishly decorated in 1754 and possesses gold-

smith's work of ca. 1500 (in the treasury).

Steamer (circular trip 2 ^S 10 or 1 -^/l 50 pf.) from Herrsching

in 72-^/4 ^1'- (5^ 01' -^^ P^O to Diessen, or Bayerdiessen (Hot. ^N'eue

Post, Klosterbrau, Gattiuger; pop. 1600), at the S.AN". end of the

lake, -v\ith a handsome abbey-church hj J.M.Fischer (1739). Station,

see p. 228. — The steamer from Herrsching to Stegen (l-l^g^^'-i

90 or 55 pf.) crosses the lake to Utting, prettily situated on the

W. bank (station, see p. 228). "VTe cross the lake to Breithrunn,

then back again to Schondorf (Hot. Steininger, Am See), near

Greifenberg station (p. 228j, with a Romanesque church of the 12th

century. The Amper emerges from the lake near Stegen (Schrey-

egg's inn), at the X. end. A motor-boat plies on the Amper (^ 2 ^'^'•\

40 pf.) to Grafrath, - 3 M. from the station (sec below;.

35. From Munich to Lindau.
1371/2 M. Express in 33/4-41/4 hrs. (19 ^(C 10, 12 JC AQ. 1 JC 90 pf.); ordi-

nary train in 8-81/.. hrs. (17 .4C 10, 10 .ti, 40, 6 c^ 90 pf.). Views to the left.

Munich, see p. 233. Soon after leaving the station we see on

the right the park of Xymphenburg (p. 301). — 4^. ^ M. Basing
(p. 303), junction for Augsburg (p. 228), Starnberg (p. 305). and

Herrsching (p. 307). — "We cross the Wilrm. — Beyond (7 M.)

Aubingvi^e enter the Dachauer Moos (p. 227).— 14\'2 M. Piirsten-
feldbruck (Hot. Post), pleasantly situated on the Amper, with a

small museum of antiquities. To the right, beside the railway, is

the old Cistercian abbey oi FUrstenfeld, now a school for non-com-

missioned officers, with a church built by Yiscardi in 1718-36. —
Then across the Amper to (20 M.) Grafrath, station for the Ammer-
See (see above). — 26 M. Geltendorf, junction for Mering and AVeil-

heim (p. 228). — The train crosses the Lech to (35 IM.) Kaufering
(1935 ft,), junction of a branch-line crossing the Leclifeld (p. 309;

manoeuvre-ground on the right) to (141/2 ^^^O Bobiugen (p. 309).

From Kaufekixg to Scho>gau, 21 M., railway in li/o hr. — 3 M.
Landsberg (1905-2075 ft.; Hot. Zederbrau. in the market-place, D.
11/0 ^«; G-oggl. Hcrkomer-Str.. E. li/.^-3 c.«, B. 80 pf.. well spoken' of),

a quaint littTe town with 7300 inhab., on the right bank of the Lech. From
the station: we turn to the right and then to the left, and before reaching
the bridge over the Lech turn again to the left and reach the (7 min.)

Mutter- Tunn, erected in 1888 in honour of his mother by Sir Hubert von
Herkomer (d. 1914), who was born in Waal, 2 hrs. S.W. of Landsberg
(view; open 1-3 p.m., 20 pf.). "We return to the bridge, near which is a

weir 10 ft. high, and bevond it follow th^ Herkomer-Str. to (5 min.) the
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market-place. To the left stands the Rathaus, erected in 1699. with a

stucco facade of 1720. On the second floor is the council-chamber, with
two paintings by Herkonier ; on the third floor is a room containing four
mural paintings by Piloty and Schwoiscr. A little E. is the lAehfrauen-
Kirche. a Gothic brick edifice of the 15th cent., with a high-altar of

IfiSO. Proceeding S. from the' Rathaus through the SchmaJz-Tnrm and
across the Berg-Str., we reach the (6 min.) Bayer-Tor, a gate-tower of
1 125. 120 ft. in height, with sandstone reliefs on the E. side (view from
the top). A little to the E. is the old Jesuit Church [MbA). — 21 M.
Schongau (2330 ft.; Hot. Post), picturesquely situated on a hill on the

left bank of the Lech, has well-preserved town-walls. The old Ballen-
haus now contains a museum. Railway to Peissenberg, see p. 307.

421/2 M. Buchloe (2030 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Hirscb).

From Buchloe to Augsburg, 25 M.. railway in 1 /..-l lir. (from Lindau
tu Augsburg in S'/g-' V2 J""^-)- — We cross the Gennach twice, and then
the SinJcel. — IOV2 M. Schicabmuncfien (Hot. Post), a manufacturing
place. — I'i^V-i ^I- Bohingen. Branch-line to Kaufering. see p. .S08. •

—

The line then traverses the Lechfeld, the plain between the Wertach
and Lech, where Otho I. defeated the Hungarians in 955 (comp. p. 196).

— 25 M. Augsburg (p. 195).

From Buchloe to Memmingen, 'IS^IoM., railway in l'/^ hr. — Beyond
(2i/o M.) Wifidergeltiugeu we cross the Wertach. — 5 M. Tiirkheim
(1995 ft. ; Hot. Krone), on the Wertach. Branch-line (3rd cl. only) to

(20 M.) [Gessertshausen (p. 228). Electric railway from Tiirkheim in

!/ hr. to (3 M.) Worishofen (20.55 ft. ; Hot. Gary, Pens. Weiss, both
at the station. Krcuzer. Bellcviie. Yiktoria, Pens. Geromillcr, all with
baths; Luitpold; numerous lodgings; visitors' tax 4-12 ^M, first week
free), a clean village of 3100 inhab. on the Wettbach. noted for the hydro-
pathic system founded by Sebastian Kneipp (d. 1897). For lodgings

apply to the Kur-Yerein at the Casino. Opposite the Casino is the

Kurhaus Sebastianeum. conducted by monks; to the S. of it stands a

bronze statue of Kneipp 1>*03\ and to the W. lies the Kneippiauum
hospital. — 12 M. Mindelheim (1970 ft.; Hot. Post, Mohren). an old

town of 4500 inhab. on tlio Mindcl, situated among woods and frequented
in summer. The Oberos Tor, a relic of the old fortifications, has a

tower 90 ft. high (1380). In the church is the fine red marble tomb of

Duke Ulrich of Teck (d. It32) and his wife Ursula (d. U29). By the

IJnteres Tor is the old Jesuit church (1625), with a late-Gothic choir

and late-baroque decoration (1720). . Near Mindelheim are the Maijen-Bad,
with a mineral spring, and the Mindelburg, once the seat of Georg von
Frundsberg (1473-1528). A railway runs from Mindelheim via (6 M.)
Pfaffenhauscn (branch-line to Kirchheim in Swabia, 41/2 M.) and (17V> M.)
Krumbach. with a pretty rococo church, to (35 M.) Gilnzburg (p. 227). —
23V2 ^I- I'ngerhausen. Branch-line to Ottobeuren, see below. — 28V2 ^•
Memmiugen (p. 19).

From Ungerhausen a brancli-line runs to (7 M.) Ottobeuren Hut.

Post. Hirscb; pop. 2400), with, a Benedictine Abbey (7 miii. from the

station) founded in the 8th century. The *Church, built by J. M. Fischer
in 1737-66. with two towers and a dome over the crossing, is the most
important rococo building of S. Germany. In the interior the frescoes

in the cupola, the large high-altar, the choir-stalls with gilded reliefs,

and the organs should be noticed. The outer sacristy contains fine vest-

ment-cupboards (1547-58); in the treasury is a Romanesque chalice. The
conventual buildings (1711-31), comprising cloisters, Kaiser-Saal. with
sixteen gilded statues of the Hapsburgs, fine library, etc., are magnifi-

cently fitted up.

Tlie train enters tlie broad valley of the Wertach. — 49' o ^^^

rforzeii. The Zugspitze, Hochplatte, and Sauling are conspicuous

in the backojround.
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541,2 ^I- Kaiifbeuren (22-40 ft.; Hot. Soune, E. 1 ^ 60-2 ^
20 pf.; Hirsch, E. I1/2-2 ^/), an old town with 9100 iuhab., the W.
side of which is still enclosed by walls with lofty towers. From
the station we proceed to the left and after a few paces to the right

across the Jordan-Anlagen. After 5 niin. we turn to the right

and follow the Bahuhof-Str. and Eing-Weg to (5 min.) the Rat-
haus, built by Hauberrisser in 1888 and containing a museum (on

the groimd-floor, to the left}. Farther on we follow the wide Kaiser-

Max-Str. to the left and the Kirchen-Giisschen to the right to (2 min. >

the Catholic parish-church of >S7. Martw. renewed in the Gothic

style in 1438-43 and restored in 1893-9. Opposite is the house

where the poet Lndwig Garighofer was born in 1855. A little

to the W., in the Kaiser- Gasschen, is the Museum of Popular
Art, with cottage-interiors from the Allgau (20 pf.). High up in

the N.W. angle of the town is the late-Gothic /S7. Blasius-Kirche

(15th cent.), with a round tower and a fine high-altar. Branch-line

to Fiissen, see p. 314.

The line now winds between densely wooded hills. — 58^2 ^^•

Biessenhofen (2295 ft.; Hot. Post), where the Fiissen line diverges

(p. 314). "VTe cross the watershed between the "NVertach and lUer.

— 691,2 M. Gilnzach ('2630 ft.). — 1V\, M. Betziyau. The lUer

is crossed.

81 1/2 ^- Kempten. — Raihcay Restaurant. — Hotels. Krone
(PI. a; A, 1), Kleiner Koruliaus-Platz, R. 2-5, B. 1, D. 21/2 -«; Post (PI.

b; A, 1), corner of Post-Str. and Salz-Str., R. l',V2i/., .« ; Bahnhof-Hotel
(PI. c; B, 3), R. from I1/2 -10, Kaiserhof (PI. f: B, ?,) , Algauer Hof
(PI. d; B, 3), with garden, all three near the station: Hasen (PI. e; B, 2),

Fischer-Str., D. l^/^ ^^. — Beer Restaurants. Stift-^halh' . Kornhaiis-
Platz (PI. A, 1); Staclt Hamburg. Fi.scher-Str. (PL B. 2). — Wi.ne Rooms.
Gohlenes Fdssle, near the Real-Schule (PI. B. 2j: Schiff. Rathaus-Platz
(PI. B, 2); Schmid, Entenmoos (beyond PI. A. 1,. — General Post
Office (PI. B, 3), near the station. .

Kempten (2280 ft. ), the capital of the Algau, with 21,000 inhab.,

is picturesquely situated on the left bank of the Rler. It consists

of two parts, the Altstadt, by the river, and the Xeustadt on the

high ground, with the station (PI. B, 3). We descend thence to the

right through the Bahnhof-Str., whence the 'Freudenberg* diverges

on the right to the (^/^ hr.) Burghalde (p. 311). We continue

straight on by the Fischer-Str., which leads to the Eesidenz-Platz

(p. 311), and diverge after 5 rain, to the right by the Fischersteig

and Eathaus-Str. to the Rathaus (PI. B, 2), built in 1474 and

renewed in the Eenaissance style in the 16th century. In front, to

the E., is the pretty Rathaus-Brunnen (PI. 2; B, 2), by Hans
Krumper (1601). A little S.E. is the Protestant St. Mang-Kirche
(PI. C, 2), a late-Gothic church with a choir of 1427. The interior

was altered in the baroque style in 1767. In the St. Mang-Platz

is the pretty St. Mang-Brunnen (PI. 3; C, 2j, with St. Magnus
and four boys riding on prehistoric animals, l>y Wrba (1905). —
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III the Residenz-Platz (p. 310) is the extensive Sehloss of the

princely abbots (PI. A, B, 1), built in 1651-74 in the baroque style,

now law-courts and barracks. In the interior (entr. on the W. side;

apply to the attendant) the chapter-house on the second floor and

the Fiirsten-Saal (now the chapel of the Old Catholics) should be

noticed. The Schloss is adjoined on the W. by the old abbey-church

of St. Lorenz (PL A, 1), a handsome building with a dome (1651-66).

In front is the Hildegard-Brunnen (PI. 1, A 1; 18-47u with a
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statue of the Empress Hildegard, wife of Charlemagne and foundress

of the abbey. A little W. is the Kovnhaus (PI. A, 1), containing

the Historical Museum, with antiquities excavated at the old

Roman town of Canibodunnni on the Lindenberg, E. of Kempten
(adm. free; apply at the Rathaus or the Hot. Krone). — The Burfj-

halcle (PI. C, 3; approach, see p. 310), with gardens and a restau-

rant, on the site of an old castle, affords a splendid *View of the

Alps from the Zugspitze to the Stuiben (indicator at the S. end).

Good view of the Alps from the Mariaberg (2770 ft. ; inn), I'/o hr.

W., reached via Feilberg and Eggen. A still finer view is obtainable
from the Blender (3515 ft.; rfmts.}, l^Vi Jir. farther W., ascended from
Ermen^erst station (p. 312).
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From Kempten to Isny, 231/2 M., railway in 21/4 his. (3rd cl. only). —
"We ascend rapidly, crossing the Bottach three times. — 51/2 M. Enneyi-
(/erst (2670 ft.). To (50 min.) the Blender, see p. 311. — We next skirt

"the S.W. slopes of the Blender, with fine views of the Allgau Alps. —
7 M. K/irnach, 8 M. Buchenberg, starting-points for the ascent of the
Schwarzer Grat (p. 86). — Short of (11 M.) Hellengerst we cross the
watershed (3080 ft.) between the Danube and Rhine. We then descend the
Weitnaiier Tal, skirting the steep S. slopes of the Sonneneck (3495 ft.). —
151/2 il- Weitnaii. The line turns N. and descends the narrow valley
of the Arqen. — Near (19 M.) Klciniceiler-Hofen we enter Wurtemberg.
On the right rises the Schwarzer Grat (p. 86). — 231/0 M. IsmJ (p. 86).

From Kemptex to Eeutte (Partenkirchen), 30 M., railway in 21/2 hrs.
— The line diferges to the right from the Buchloe line beyond the
bridge over the Iller. and ascends rapidly via the iodine baths of (5 M.)
Sidzbrunn (2685 ft. ; Hot. Reichsadler) to" (11 M.) Oij (2980 ft.). —Beyond
(131/2 M.) Maria -Rain the Wertach is crossed. — 15 M. Nessehvang
(284.5 ft. ; Rail. Restaurant ; Hot. Bar, Post, Krone), a pleasant summer
resort at the base of the Edelsberg (5330 ft. ; 2 hrs. ; superb view). — 17 M.
Kappel, belonging to the parisb of Pfronten, which consists of thirteen
villages. — 18 M. Pfronten-Weissback (Hot. Haf, Rossle). — 191/2 M.
Pfronten - Ried (2870 ft.; Bahn-Hotel zum Falkenstein). pleasantly
situated on the left bank of the Yils. Comp. the Map, p. 318. With the
adjoining villages of He itlem (Hot. Adler), Dorf (Hot. Krone), Steinach
(Hot. Dampfross, L6we\ and Berg (Hot. Engel) it is visited as a summer
resort. The ascent of the ^Falkenstein (4165 ft.), with a ruined castle,

hotel, and fine view, may be made by road in I1/2 hr. via Meilingen.
Descent via the Salober-Alp (view) and the Alat-See (rfmts.) to (3 hrs.)

Fiissen (p. 314). — The train follows the valley of the Vils and beyond

(20^l2'^-) Pfronten-Steiuach (see above) crosses the Austrian frontier.

—

22 M. Schonbichl (Hot. Huber), at the base of the Falkenstein (see above).
— 231/2 M. Vils (pop. 600). — 25 M. Ulrichsbrilcke (hotel). Motor-omn. to

Fiissen, see p. 314. — The railway now follows the left bank of the Lech
to (26 M.) Musau (p. 317), beyond which it crosses the river. — 281/2 M.
Pflach. Ascent of the (31/2 hrs.) Sauling, see p. 317. — 30 M. Reutte, and
thence to Lermoos (Partenkirchen, Innsbruck), see p. 318.

From Kempten to Ulm, see~pp. 50, 49.

Beyond Kempten we follow the left bank of the Iller. — Beyond
(85 M.) WaUenhofeii the Niedersonthofner Seen (2310 ft.) are seen

on the right, at the foot of the Stoffelherg (3485 ft.). — 91 ^ 2 M.

JSeifen. To the left is the green and sharp-edged G-runten (see below).

95 M. Immenstadt (2400 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Bayr-

ischer Hof, R. 1^/4-4 c^; Post; Hirsch; Friedrichsbad Sauatoriiim,

P. 6-7 \/ 2 t.//), a town of 5000 inhab., with a large string-factory, lies

picturesquely on both banks of the Steigbach , at the foot of the

Immenstddter Horn (4880 ft.).

Fine view from the Kalvarienherg. 20 min. ^s. — The ascent of the
*Stuibeii (5740 ft.; 31/2 hrs., guide unnecessary) is recommended. We
ascend the Steigbach -Tal to the (I1/2 hr.) Almagmach inn, whence a

good footpath leads to the (I1/2 hr.) Stuiben-Haus (5205 ft. ; inn), 1/2 hr.

from the summit, which commands a splendid view.

From Immenstadt to Oberstdorf. 131/2 M., railway in 1 hr. through
the valley of the Iller. — 5 M. Sonthofen (2445 ft. ; Hot. Deutsches Hans,
at the station; Engel, Hirsch, Ochse), with 4200 inhab., pleasantly sit-

uated in the broad valley. To Reutte, see p. 313. The *Grunteii (5700 ft.)

may be ascended hence via (3/^ hr.) Burgberg (2465 ft. : Hot. Kreuz), at the
S.W. base of the mountain. The path thence (way-marks) is easily found
(2 hrs.). About 1/., hr. below the summit is the GrUnten-Haus (5040 ft.

;
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beds). The view of the Alps extends from the Zugspitze to the Sentis

;

on the extreme right is the Lake of Constance.
131/2 M. Oberstdorf (2765 ft.; *Park- Hotel Luitpold , E. 3-5 JC

;

*Wittelsbacher Hof, *Lowe , *Rubihaus, Bergkranz , Mohren, Sonne,
Hirsch; visitors' tax 20 pf. per day; pop. 2800), a favourite summer resort,
visited also for winter sports, is beautifully situated in the midst of the
Algau Alps. The church and the Nikolaus-Kapelle, W. of the station,
contain altar-pieces by J. von Schraudolph (1808-79), a native of Oberst-
dorf. About '/a hr. below the town tlio I Her is joined by the Breitach,
Stillach, and Trettach , the valleys of wliich afford a great variety of
excursions. To the Falte)ibach - Fall , 25 min. E. — Via the three "pil-

grimage-chapels of St. Loretto to the Hoff'mannsrtihe (2970 ft. ; Alpen-
rose inn), 1/2 br.

;
panorama from the pavilion. — To ^Wasach iMayer's

inn), 1 hr. From the Immenstadt road we ascend to the left 6 min.
beyond the second bridge; a shorter route diverges to the left im-
mediately beyond the bridge, then ascends to the right. Beautiful view
(best by evening-light). We may return in IV4 hr. via Bad Tiefenhach
(good inn), with a cold sulphur-spring, and Reutte. — To the Walser-
schanz hy road, IV2 hr. ; the footpath (IV4 hr.) runs "VV. across the Stillach,

and then follows the road across the ridge. The Hot. Walsersclianz
('Schanzle') lies beyond the Austrian frontier, in the valley of the Brei-
tach or Kleines Walser-Tal. About 8 min. before it is reached, a path
leads to the right to the Zicingsteg , an iron bridge 200 ft. above the
Breitach. Hence we either descend to the left through the deep *Breitach-
Klamm (adm. 50 pf.)'to ('Vi hr.) an inn; or we cross the bridge, ascend, and
(10 min.) descend to the right to the C/* hr.) inn. Thence to Oberstdorf,
1'/^ hr. (omn. twice daily, 1 t^*). — To the *Freiberg-See, 1 hr. Beyond
Loretto (see above) a path diverges to the right through meadows, crosses
the Stillach, and ascends to the dark-green lake (3050 ft. : restaurant). —
To Sj) Ielman nsou (Trettach-Tal), 2 hrs. About Vi hr. beyond Loretto (see

above) the road diverges to the left, skirting the foot of the Himmel-
schrofen, to (la/^ hr.) the hamlet of Spielmannsau (3250 ft. ; inn), amid
grand scenery (Trettachspitze, Kratzer). — To the *HoUtobel waterfall,
in the Dietersbach valley (a side-valley of the Spielmannsau), 1>/., hr. —
Interesting excursion to" the Oy-Tal (to the Stuihen Fall 3 hrs.)"; road
to the inn, about half-way. — To Birgsau (Stillach -Tal), interesting.
Road to (2 hrs.) the hamlet of Birgsau (Hot. Adler); then on foot to

(35 min.) EinodsbacJi [inn) , at the mouth of the Bacher Lock, a huge
gorge on the W. side of the Miidelegabel ('/.^ l"'- to the waterfall). —
For fuller details, mountain-ascents (Xebelhor)i, Hochtogel. MadelegabeL
Hohes Liclit, etc.), and the passes to the Sc^^-dV-Avj? and Xha Lech Valley,
see Baedeker's Eastern Alps.

From Sonthofen to Rectte, 301/., ^f., motor-omn. ^;express) twice
daily in 31/4 hrs. 1^8 K 10 fi). — The road follows the valley of the Ostrach
to (41/., M.) Hindelang (2705 ft.; Hot. Adler-Post, Sonne; pop. 2600),
whence it ascends in curves to the (81/2 M.) Vorderjoch (3770 ft.). It then
traverses a monotonous plateau to the (11 M.) Hinterjorh (3870 ft.l and
descends to (12i/.j M.) Vilsrein, the Austrian custom-house, in the upper
valley of the Yils, 5 min. from Sckattwald (3515 ft.; Hot. Traube), with
sulphur-baths. We next reach (15 M.) Tannheim (,3600 ft. ; Hot. Post),

the chief place in the valley, whence we proceed past the Halden - See
to (20 M.) Xesselicungle (3695 ft. ; Hot. Kreuz). Comp. the Map, p. 318.

We descend through the Pass Gacht, the finely wooded gorge of the
Weissenbach, to ^25 M.) Weissenbach, in the Lech -Tal, and (30',.., M.)
Reutte (p. 318). — Pedestrians should take the path from Hindelang to

(3 M.) Hinterstein (Hot. Steinadler), and thence via the Vordere Schaf-
wanne (6750 ft.) and the Vilsalp-See to (6 hrs.^ Tannheim.

We turu ^y. iuto the valley of the Ach. Xear Biihl we approach

the Alp-See (2380 ft.; 2 M. Toug). We then follow the Konstauzer
Tal to 1 1021 .^ M.) Thalkirchdorf (2480 ft.). Beyond a tunnel
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we obtain a surprising view to the left of the deep Weissach-Tal,

with the Bregenz mountains and the Sentis range beyond. —
105 M. Oherstaufen (2600 ft.; Hot. Biittner, Kurhaus Aichele),

on the watershed between the Danube and Rhine. — Before (113 M.)

Rofhenhach (2310 ft.) we cross the Rentershofener Danim, an em-
bankment 650 yds. long and 175 ft. high.

Railway to (31/2 M.) Weiler f2070 ft.; Hot. Post, good; Lamm), a

summer resort in the Rotach-Tal. through which a road leads to (21/2 hrs.)

Langen: thence via Fluh to Bregenz, (p. 96\ 2'/4 hrs. — Another branch-
line runs from Rothenbach via (41/2 M.) Li)ide}\herg (2500 ft. ; Hot. "NYald-

kurhaus. Krone; pop. 4.')00), a health-resort Anth mud-baths, to (6 M.)
Scheidegg (2640 ft. ; Rail. Restaurant, with rooms; Hot. Posti. a summer
resort amid fine scenery. Fine walk hence, with views of the .Sentis and
Lake of Constance, via Moggers and Trogen to the {?>^i> hrs.) Hot. -Pens.
PfdmUr and Bvegen~. see p. 96.

123 M. Hergafz (1820 ft.). Branch-line to Kisslegg, see p. 86.

— 1327.3 M. Oberreitnau (1530 ft.). The line skirts the Hoier-

berg (p. 95), then turns S.E,, and crosses the embankment (p. 98)

to (137^/2 ^^) Lhidau (rail, restaurant; p. 95).

36. From Munich to Fiissen (Hohen-
schwangau) and via the Pern Pass to Imst.

From ^luuioli to Kaufbeuren. 54i;.2 ^L, Railway in I'.j-.j'/o hrs.

;

from Kaufbeuren to Fiissen , 261/2 ^I- 5 local railway in 2 hrs. From
Fiissen to UJrichshriicle station. 23/^ M.. Motor Omxibus in 20 min.
(50 pf.). From Ulrichsbriicke to Beutte, 5 M.. Railway in 20 min. ; thence
to Linderhof, Oberammergau, and Partenkirehen, see R. 38. From Reutte
to Lermoos, 12 M., Electric Railway (Ausserfern-Bahn ; to Parten-
kirehen, see p. 321) in 3/^ hr. From Reutte via Lermoos to Imst station

(361/2 M. by road, 13 M. to Lermoos. 35 M. to Imst villaare i . Motor
Omsibus in 4-41/2 hrs. (12 or 8^) or omn. in 71/2 brs. (8 K SO^hj.'— From
Fiissen to Hohenschicangan , Motor OM:yiBus in 1/4 hr. (1 JC). From
Hohenschwangau (Hot. Liesl) via Fiissen and Ulrichsbriicke to Beutte
(Hot. Hirsch). 11 M.. Motor Omxibus from June to Sept. 5 times daily
in 1 hr. (3 J, 60 pf.i.

Carriage from Fiissen to Hohenschwangau 4, with two horses 6 JC,

there and back with 1 hr.'s stay 5 or 8 JC; to Neuschwanstein 6 or 9 Ji.

there and back 8 or 12 J^.; to Reutte 8 or 12 Ji; to the Plan-See 12 or
18 Ji: to Lermoos 20 or 30 .S: to Linderhof 20 or 35 JC: to Oberau 36
or 50..^; to Imst station 50 or 70 Ji. Driver's fee 10% of the fare.

A more detailed description of the Bavarian and Austrian Alps is

contained in Baedel'er''s Eastern Alps.

From Munich to (541/2 M.) Kaufbeuren. see pp. 308-310. —
58 V2 M. Biessenhofen{^. 310). — 62 M. Markt Oberdorf [2390 ft.

;

Hot. Alte Post, Xeue Post), with a roval Schloss, Branch-line to

(I31/2 M.) Lechbrucl\ — 76 M. Weizeryi-Hopferau. To the left

appears the Hopfen-See.

8IY2 ^^- Fiissen. — The Statio>- lies a short distance from the

town, 8 min. from the bridge over the Lech. — Hotels. *Bayrischer
Hof, at the station, R. 2-5. B. 1 JC: *Hirsch, R. 2-4.^; Alte Post, B.
2-4 Ji, well spoken of; Xeue Post: Molir : Sonn^. — Visitors* Tax (after

4 days) 2 .S.
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Fiissen (2580 ft.), a small towu of 5100 iuhab., with a large

rope-factory, pleasantly situated ou the left bank of the Lech, is

a frequented summer resort. It is dominated by a castle erected

by the Bishops of Augsburg late in the 15th cent., restored under

King Louis I., and now occupied by the district-court. Below it

are the abbey-church of St. Magnus, erected in 1701-17, with an

early-Romanesque crypt beneath the E. choir, and the Benedictine

abbey of St. Mang, founded in 629 (now private property). About
3 min. from the gate in the town-wall between the castle and the

church is a point commanding a fine view. — About 10 min. W.
of Fussen is the small sulphur bath of Fanlenhach.

On the right hank of the Lech, a few hundred paces above the
bridge, a path with Stations of the Gross ascends from the church to

(1/2 111"-) the *Kalvarienberg (3130 ft.), commanding a beautiful view.
A path leads hence past the Schwan-See direct to (1 hr.) Hohenschivan-gau.
— From Fussen to the (3'/o hrs.) Falkenstein, sec p. 812.

The Road from Fijssex to Hohexschwangau (3 M. ; motor-

omu., see p. 314j crosses the Lech, turns to the left, and descends

the right bank of the Lech. At the fork it keeps to the right, pass-

ing the (1 2 111'-) Cafe Rupprecht and the Hotel Alterschrofen,

and leads through the park, skirting the Schlossberg, to (\,2 li^'-)

Hohenschwangau. — Pedestkiaxs (1^ ^hr.) follow the road to Reutte

(p. 317), to the right beyond the bridge, for 5 min., then ascend

the path to the left on the slope of the Kalvarienberg, which leads

past the (7 min.) view-point 'Kanzel', and passes through woods to

(6 min.) the 'Kunig-Strasse' (vehicles forbidden). "VVe now descend

gently to the left (straight on to the Alpeuroseu-Weg, see below).

After 18 min. we pass through a deer-fence and obtain our first

glimpse of the Schwan-See, with Hohenschwangau to the right and

Neuschwanstein to the left. Before reaching the Schwan-See
(2590 ft.) we follow the path to the right to the (25 min.) col, where

the Alpenrosen-Weg joins us on tlie right, and to the (12 min.) village

of Hohenschwangau. — A shadier route (1' 2 li^"-) is the Alpen-

rusen-Weg, which winds along the wooded slope of the Schwarzen-
herg. commanding beautiful views. This route may be joined from

the Schwarz-Briicke (p. 317; to the left, 10 min.) or from the Konig-

Strasse (see above).

Hohenschwangau. — Hotels. *//o^-Pt'»^^ Schicansee, 10 min.

from the Alp-See, outside the park, R. l^j-.-i, D. •i^l-.JC, llot.-Vois. Alpeu-
rOfie, beautifully situated on the Alp-See, K. 2V-.-1, B. 2 c€. both open
in summer only"; Liesl, R. 2-1, B. 1 c«. good; Pe)is. MiiUer. P. «?-H> .*.

The castles of Hohenschwangau and Neuschwanstein are open from
May 10th to Oct. 15th, week-days 9-12 and 2-5, Sun. and holidays 10-12

and' 2-5; closed on June 13th, the anniversary of Louis II. 's death. Adin.
to Schloss Hohenschwangau 50 pjf. ; to Neuschwanstein 3, Sun. IV2 ^•

Hohenschicangau (2690 ft.), a small village at the foot of a

wooded hill crowned by the castle of the same name, is a pleasant

summer resort amid splendid scenery. It lies near the beautiful

Baedeker's S. Germany. 12th Edit. 20
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bluisli-grecn *Alp-See, which is girdled with fiue woods, while the

steep crags of the Pilgerschrofen rise above its S. end. Good paths

make the circuit of the lake (1^4 hr.). Opposite the Alpenrose

begins the 'Fiirsten-Strasse' (p. 317), from which the road to Schloss

Hohenschwangau diverges to the right after 3 min. The footpath

to the Schloss ascends opposite the Hotel Liesl (5 min.).

*Schloss Hohenschwangau (2840 ft.; adm., see p. 315;

visit lasts about 40 min.), formerly called Schwanstein, originally

belonged to the house of Guelph, but in 1567 passed to the Dukes
of Bavaria. It was sold for a trifling sum in 1820, and in 1832 was
purchased by King Max II. of Bavaria, then crown -prince, who
caused the ruin to be reconstructed and decorated in the interior

with frescoes from German legend and history by Schwind, Linden-

schmit, etc. The castle commands charming views of the plain,

Neuschwanstein, and the Alp-See. It was the favourite residence

of King Louis II.

Opposite the ascent to Hohenschwangau, near the Hotel Liesl,

begins the road to (Y2 ^^') Neuschwanstein, from which (5 min.)

the road to the Blockenau (p. 317) diverges to the right; 6 min.

farther on (opposite the path from the Hotel Schwansee) a steep

footpath ascends on the right to the Jugend; and 12 min. farther

on a bridle-path diverges to the right, near a stall on the left side

of the road, to the Jugend and the Marieu-Briicke (p. 317). The
road next passes the Schloss-Restauration and in 8 min. reaches —

*Schloss Neuschwanstein (3165 ft.), built by King Louis II.

in 1869-86 on the site of the ruins of Vorder-Hohenschwangau, and

beautifully situated on a precipitous rock. The castle, built of marble

in the Romanesque style by Dollmann, Riedel, and Hofraann after

the designs of Chr. Plank, is planned after the style of the Wart-
burg, but on a much larger scale. Adm., see p. 315; the visit takes

1 hr. The castle is splendidly fitted up, and its windows command
beautiful views of Hohenschwangau and the Alp-See to the W., and

of the profound gorge of the Pollat and its waterfall, spanned by

the Marien-Briicke, to the S.

The imposing Palas, to the right of tlie forecourt, has four stories

:

the ground -floor contains the offices, the first floor is occupied by the

attendants, the second is unfinished, and the royal apartments are on
the third. Visitors ascend to the third floor by a staircase of 96 steps

in the main tower, 195 ft. high. The landing at the top is adorned with
frescoes by Hauschild (Legend of Sigurd). To the left we pass through
the AdjutanVs Roo^n to the King-s Study, with scenes from the story
of Tannhauser bj'' Aigner; and thence through the stalactite grotto to

the Winter Garden, a balcony commanding a view of the plain. Xext
follow the Sitting Room, with pictures from the Lohengrin legend by
Hauschild; the Dressing Room, with^scenes from the lives of Walter
von der Vogelweide and Hans Sachs by Ille ; the Gothic Bedchamber,
with the story of Tristan and Isolde by Spiess ; the Oratory, with
scenes from the life of St. Louis by Hauschild (fine view of the Pollat

valley from the balcony). The Dining Hall is embellished with scenes
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from the Wartburg under the Landgrave Hermann, by F. Piloty. The
antechamber leads back to the landing, whence we enter the Throne
Room, with pictures by Hauschild, and an open loggia. — Hauschild has
also adorned the landing at the top of the staircase on the fourth floor

with 12 paintings from the story of Gudrun. On this floor is the Fest-
Saal or Sanger- Saal , 'JO ft. long, with pictures from "Wolfram vou
Eschenbach's Parzival by Spiess. Munsch. and Piloty.

A footpath, divergiug to the left from the road at the X. angle

of the castle, leads W. round tlie castle to the bridle-path men-
tioned on p. 316. [Before the latter is reached (4 min.), a footpath

descend.s to the left into the Pollat-Schlm-lit ^ where we have a

good view of the castle and of the Pdllat-Fall 180 ft. high).] We
ascend by the bridle-path and in 5 min. reach a point whence two
footpaths diverge; one, to the right, leading down to the (1 min.)

*Juge}td (2950 ft.), a clearing in the wood commanding a charming
view of Hoheuschwangau and the Alp-8ee; the other, to the left,

ascends to the (4 min.) ^Marien-Briiclie., 140 ft. long, spanning
the gorge of the Pollat at a height of 295 ft. above the waterfall

and affording the best view of Xeuschwanstein. Eetnrning from
the bridge, we take the path to the left, which brings us in 2 min.

to the BlOckeiian road , at which also the bridle-path ends (to the

village of Hohenschwangau by this road, *'o hr.).

From Hohenschwangau an attractive route leads viii the Blockenau
and SchiUzenateig to (S'/^ hrs.) tlie Hotel Ammerwald (p. 324). Thence
to lAnderliof, see p. 324.

The *Sauling (6715 ft.) may be ascended without difficulty from
Holiensohwangau in 4 hrs. (guide advisable, 8V2 ^)- Splendid view
from the AY. peak. Descent by a marked path to {2^1., hrs.; S^l-i-i hrs.
up) Pflach (p. 312 .

Walkers from Hohenschwangau to Eeutte (2^/^ hrs.) follow either the
'Fiirsten-Strasse' (p. 316; carr. and bicycles forbidden) high above the N".

bank of the Alp-See, or the paths leading past tlie 'Pindar-Platz' (a rocky
projection with a view of the lake), to the W. end of tlie lake, and then
return to the road. We next pass the (3/4 hr.) 'Cordonisten-Haus' on the
Austrian frontier and descend in windings (short-cuts) to the (V4 hr.)

Hotel ziim SchluA-en (well spoken of), on the road from LTuter-Pinswang
to Pflach, which we follow to the left to (1 hr.) Pflach (p. 312).

The Road from FOssex to Reutte (11 M. , to the Ulrichs-

Briicke, 2^/^ M.) leads up the right bank of the Lech to (7 min.) a

narrow ravine (on the left bank a bust of King Max II.. on the right

a war-monument). From the iron Konig-Max-Stei/ a fine view of"

tlie fall is obtained. We then cross the (5 min.) tSc/nrarz-Briiche

and reach the Austrian frontier short of the (10 min.) Weisshaus
(good inn). The main road then crosses the Lech by the (35 min.)

UlrichS'BrUcle (station, see p. 312), passes Musau ip. 312) and

RossHchlUy J and recrosses the river to (I'' 4 hr.) Pflach (p. 312>.

AVe now cross the Archhach and follow the broad Lech-Tal to

(•V4 hr.) Reutte.

Pedestrians will find it better to diverge to the left before tlie

Ulrichs-Briicke, and proceed via Unter-Biusicang and the Kniepas^
(2980 ft.), a rocky barrier narrowly confining the Lech, to (IV hr.) Pflach.

20*
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Reutte (2790 ft.; Hot. Post, R. 2-5 K; Hirscli, R. 2-310 K;
Tiroler Hof, at the station; Rose, Moliren), with 1800 inhab., lies

in the middle of a basin intersected by the Lech and surrounded

by lofty mountains: N. the Sanlino; and Diirrenberg, E. the Zwiesel-

berg and Tanern, S, the Axljoch, Thaneller, and Schlossberg, AV.

the Gachtspitze, Gehrenspitze, and Gimpel.
The church at Breitenicnng, 10 uiiii. E.. contains a memorial for Em-

peror Lothaire II.. who died here in 1137 on his way hark from Italy.

To the *Stuiben Falls, 2-21/2 hrs. there and back. The cart-track

crosses the Archhach above Miihl and returns to the left bank at (1/2 hr.)

the electricity works. The Hermannsteig ascends thence to the (V2 hr-)

*Loicer SUiiben Fall, 100 ft. in height, finely framed with trees. At the

finger-post a path ascends friglit) to the Eeutte road, by which we may
return (1 hr.). Those bound for the Plan -See ascend along the Archbach
to the (V4 hr.) Upper Fall (GO ft. high), and turning to the right regain

(4 miu.) the road, i/^ hr. from the Kleiner Plan-See (p. 324).

From Reutte to Kempten, see p. 312; to Sonthofen, see p. 313; to

Linderhof, Oherammergau, and Partenkirclien, see R. 38.

The Electric Railway from Reutte to Lermoos (Ausserfern-

Bahn; p. 314) ascends rapidly, skirting the broad basin of Breiten-

wang in a wide cnrvo. To the right, on the pine-clad Schlossberg,

rise the extensive ruins of Ehreuberg, destroyed by .the French in

1800. In the background rises the Thaneller (see below). The line

penetrates the Ehrenberger Klause (inn) by a tunnel and then turns

S.E. into the Hintertoren-Tal. — 5^ , ^I- Heitericang (Hot. Post,

Hirsch). About 20 min. X.E. is the Heiterivanger See, connected

with the Plan-See (p. 324) by a short canal. — We next cross the

high-road to (8 M.) Bichlbach (3525 ft.; Hot. Hirsch, Traube).

Thence we may ascend via (1 hr.) Berivang (4385 ft.; Hot. Kreuz,

Rose) to the (3 hrs.) Thaneller (7685 ft.), with a superb view. —
10 M. Lahn. The line reaches the infant Loisach.

12 M. Lermoos (3265 ft.; Hot. Drei Mohren, Post, both good),

situated in a wide valley, from which on the E. rise the rocky walls

of the Wetterstein mountains, culminating in the Zugspitze. The
electric railway goes on to Partenkirchen (p. 321). — At the base

of the Wetterstein, 1 2 hr. E., lies the village of Ehrivald (3260 ft.

;

Hot. Grtiner Baum, Stern, Schwarzer Adler), with a station on the

Partenkirchen line (p. 321). Ascent of the Zugspitze (p. 321), 6 hrs.

(guide 14 7t).

The Road from Lermoos over the Ferx Pass (to Nassereit

4^ 4 hrs.; carr. 12, with two horses 20 iv) is the finest mountain-

pass between Bavaria and Tyrol. — l^V^f- Biberwier (Hot. Lowe).

"We then ascend, Avith a fine view of the Wettersteiu Mts. behind us,

past the Weissen-See (left) and the beautiful Blind-See (right) to

the (5^2 M.) Fern Pass (3970 ft.; Hot. Ferupass). The old road

past Schloss Fernstein is blocked half-way by a wall. The new
road ('fine views) makes a long bend to the E. (short-cut, with way-
marks, descendinji: to the riffht 20 min. from the inn, beyond tele-
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graph-pole No. 181), and tlien descends on the W. side of the valley

below the old road. Above, on the right, lies the picturesque Sohloss
Fernstein; at its base is (S^/g M.) the Hotel Fernstein (3305 ft. .

To the left, in the deep wooded valley, is the dark-green Fernstein-

See, with the ruin of fSieginundsburf/, the old hunting- lodge of

Duke Sicgniund of Tyrol (1427-90). The road crosses the outlet of

the lake.

12 M. Nassereit (:2745 ft.; Hot. Post, R. 1 A'60-2 ii'.jO A ;

Crrimer I]auni). Here the road divides, the left branch leading via

Obsteig and Oberniieming to (17^ ^ M. from Xassereit) Telfs (omn.

thrice daily in summer), while the right branch leads through

the broad and shadelcss Giirglcr Fed vi.i Farrenz and Schloss
Starkeuberg to —

22 M. I'mst, 2 M. to the N. of the station (see Baedeker's
Eastern Alps).

37. From Munich via Partenkirchen to
Innsbruck.

Conip. also the Map. p. 305.

105 M. From Munich to Garmisch- Partenkirchen. 62 M., Railway
in li/o-S'^/ihrs. (8 ..« 20, b .H,, 3 .« 30 pf.). From (iarmisch-Partenkirchcn
to Innsbruck, 1.3 M., Electkic Railway (Karwcndcl-Bahn) in 2'/r-V4 '""s.

From Munich to Inn^il)ruck in ^i/o-T'/^ hrs. (17 c# 10, 11 JC 80, 7 .(C HO pf.}.

From Munich to (33 M.) Weil/ieim, see pp. 305, 306. AVe

follow the wide Ammer-Fal. On the right rises the Hoher Peissen-

berg (p. 307). — 351/2 ^I- Foiling, with a fine Augustinian churcli,

originally Gothic, but rebuilt in the 17th-lSth centuries. — 43 I\r.

Vffing. The line runs near the E. bank of the Staffel-^^ec (2125 ft.i,

with its islands, jjassing the villages of Bieden and Seehansen.

46V2 M. Murnau (2265 ft.; Hot. -Rest. Bahnhof; Kurhaus

Staffelse'e, R. 2-3, P. 6-71/2 ^/^, by the lake, 10 min. from the station

;

Hot. Seerose; lake-baths), near the S.E. end of the Staft"el-8ce.

About 1/4 hr. S.E. of the station (omn. 25 pf.) and the lake is the

prettily situated village (2255 ft.; Hot. Post, Pantlbriiu, Griesbriiu,

Zacherlbri'iu, AngerbriiuV Some of the houses are painted from

suggestions by E. von Seidl. The parish -church is a handsome
building of 1717-27. The Vier Linden, to the AV., and the Asaiu.^-

Hohe, to the E. (with a tower), command a fine view (E. the Heim-

garten, Kistenkopf, and Krottenkopf; W. the Ettaler Mann<ll: S.,

beyond the Loisach-Tal, the Wetterstein range). Electric railway

to Oberammergau, see p. 322; motor- omn. to Kochel, see p. 327.

The railway skirts the AV. side of Murnau and descends in a

wide curve, with a view of the Loisach-Tal and the mountains. --

48V2M. Hechendorf [204:0 ft.). AVe cross the Loisach. — Beyond

(5OV2 M.) Ohlstadf we recross the Loisach and enter the moun-

tains. — 531 ., M. Eschcnlohc (Hot. Altwirt, Briickenwirt '. with a
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sulphurous spring. — From (57 M.) Oherau (2160 ft.; Hot. Post)

a road leads to the right via Ettal to (7 M.) Oberammergau and

(11 M.) Linderhof (R. 38b).

Beyond (59^ 2 ^0 Farchant the broad basin of Partenkirchen

opens to the S. On the left is the Kahflaclit. a gorge with water-

falls, descending from the Holier Friclcn. Fine view of the Wetter-

stein range. — 62 M. Garmisch-Partenkirchen (2290 ft.; Rail.

Restaurant: Bahnhof -Hotel, near the station), between the two

villages. To Reutte, see p. 321.

Partenkirchen (2350 ft.; *Hot. Gibson, R. from 4, B. 1 ^/l

20 pf.: "Bellevue, R. 3i,2-5c^; *Post, Groldener Stern, Baum-

gartner. Zum Rassen, Melber, "NVerdenfelser Hof: numerous pen-

sions, with 3400 inhab., a favourite resort in summer mid fre-

quented also for winter-sports, is beautifully situated at the base

of the Eckenherg, 10 min. E. of the station. It possesses a small

English church (services in summer) and a school of carving and

designing (adm. free). The Villa Orient, above the village, has a

pretiy garden and contains various collections (adm. 1 t^).

Beautiful view (indicator) from the monument to King Louis II. in

the lower St. Anions-AnJage, '/j l^-. from the village. A little higher

up is the pilgrimage-church of St. Anton (2405 ft. ; cafe).

Garmisch (2295 ft.; *Park-Hotel Alpenhof, R. 4-10, B. liyoi

D. ^Ji: *Xeu-AVerdenfels, R. 273-4 ^-^ ; Husar; Post, good: Drei

Mohren. Kainzenfranz, Zur Zugspitze, Lamm: *Gr. -Hot. Sonnen-

bichl, finely situated 20 min. X., R. 3-10 <^//!^; numerous pensions),

situated on the Loisach to the W. of the station, is another favourite

summer and winter resort. Xcw Kurhaus in the market-place.

About 35 min. S. of Garmisch, near Eissersee station (p. 321), is the

pretty little Risser-See (2565 ft.). Xear it is the Hot.-Pens. Rissersee

(R. 2-4 ^4t. good). To the Kreuzeck. see below.

ExccRsioNs. To the *Partnach-KIamin and Vorder-Graseck,
3 hrs. there and back (omu. from the station to the Hot. Partnachklamm
several times daily in 40 min.. 80 pf. return). From Partenkirchen we
follow the Mittenwald road , taking the road to the right at the finger-

post. Xear the i,V2 ^'^•) bridge we are joined by a shady footpath from
the station (1/2 br. also). The road ends at the (i2 mlu.) Hotel Partnach-
klamm (R. 1^1.2-2.^12 ^fC)- We cross the bridge, and either go to the left

direct to (20 min.) the forester's house of Vorclcr- Graseck (2925 ft.

;

restaurant), with a fine view uf the Wetterstein range, or follow the

beautiful gorge straight on for 1/2 l»r. About 4 min. from its upper end
is a guide-post (straight on to the Reintal-Hospiz. p. 321), where we as-

cend to the left to (20 min.) Yorder-Graseck (see above). — Just short of

the first tunnel in the gorge, 6 min. from the lower entrance, a path as-

cends to the left, crosses the bridge, and ascends again to the (12 min.)
iron *Bridge, 223 ft. above the foaming Partnach, and on to (10 min.)

Yorder-Grraseck.

The finest and most accessible view-point among the foot-hills is the

*Kreuzeck (5420 ft. ; 31/2 brs.
;
guide 5^#, not essential). From the (35 min.)

Risser-See (see above) we ascend to the (21/2 hrs.) KreuzecTc-Alp (5215 ft.),

then W. to the (V2 br.) Kreuzeck (good inn), with a superb view. About
1/2 hr. farther is the Hockalm (5595 ft.; rfmts.), with a fine view of the
"Wetterstein Mts.
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To the *H611ental-Klamm, 21/2-3 hrs. from Garmisch. We follow

a pleasant path throiigli iiicarlows (omn. also in 3/4 hr.. 1 JC) to (1 hr.)

Hammersbach (2535 ft. ; Hans Madl), or take the railway to Obergrain<ni
station (see below) and walk to Hammersbach in 1/4 I'l'- We then ascend
on the left bank of the Hammersbach to the (1 hr.) HoUentalklamm-HUtte
(3430 ft. ; rfmts.), at the lower end of the gorge (adm. 50 pf.). The path
ascends through the gorge through tunnels and over bridges (waterproof
desirable). The finest point is below the iron bridge (2.50 ft. above the
brook). From the (V2 l"*-) upper end of the gorge it is 50 min.'s walk to

the HSUental-Hutte (rfmts.), which affords a splendid view of the Hollen-
talferner (see below). — The upper path along the gorge, whicli crosses

the iron bridge, should only be attempted by those free from giddiness.

Another favourite excursion is to the Bader-See and the Eib-See, 5

and 7 M. from the station. AVe either take the railway to Untergrainau
station (see below) and follow the road via (20 min."i the village of Unter-
grainau to the (.Vi hr.) Bader-See, diverging to the left 10 min. from the

village; or we maj' take the motor-omn. direct in 23 min. {1 JC). The
*Bader-See (2510 ft. ; adm. 50 pf.

;
good hotel) is a transparent, pale-

green lake. 1 M. in circumference and 60 ft. deep (row on the lake re-

commended). Forest-paths lead thence to the (1 hr.) *Eib-See (3185 ft. ;

inn), a dark lake */5 sq. M. in area, framed with trees and dominated by
the precipices of the Zugspitze. It may be reached direct by omn. or

motor-omn. from Partenkirchen.

The *Zugspitze (9720ft.), the highest mountain in Germany, is

climbed from T'arteukirchen in 10-11 hrs. (guide 15 v#). Ascent laborious,

but not difficult for mountaineers and persons free from giddiness. We
ascend through the Partnach-Klamm (p. 320) into the BeUi-Tal. [After I'/ohr.

a finger-post indicates the path to the right to the (V2 hr.) FeintaJ-JRospiz

(fine view).] We go on via the Anger-Hiltte and the (7 hrs.) Knorr-JIilttc

(6730 ft.) to the (3-31/2 hi"S.) W. summit, with the Mioichner Hans and a

meteorological station. Magnificent panorama. Shorter ascent from the

Eib-See (see above; 61/2-7 hrs.). via the Wiener-Nevstddter HiUte (QS95 ft .''

.

The ascent from Garmisch via the Hollental (see abovel and the HoUental-
fcrucr (9-10 hrs.) is advisable onlv for climbers quite free from giddiness

(guide 20 c<i. Descent to Ehrwald (p. 318), 5-6 hrs.

Motor-omn. fiom Garmisch-Partenkirehen daily in summer via Oherau
(p. 320) to (121/2 M.) Oberammergau (p. 323) in 1 hr. 20 min. (2 Ji;

comp. also p. 324).

From Garmisch -Parteskirchen to Reutte, 26 M., electric railway

(Ausserfern-Bahn) in l'/* hr. (to Lermoos, 141/2 M., in 1 hr.). — To the

left rises the Zugspitze group. — IV^ M. Fissersee (p. 320). — 3 M. Ober-

grainau (see above). — 3i/.. M. Untergrainau (see above). — We continue

to ascend the wooded valfey of W\&^LoUach. — Beyond (8 M.I Gr'usen
(Bavarian custom-house; rfmts.) we cross the Austrian frontier. To the

Plan-See, see p. 324. — 12i/., M. Ehrwald, 141/0 M. Lermoos, and thence

to Reutte, see p. 318,

Beyond Garmiscli-Partenkirchen the Karwendel-Bahx (p. 319;

views "^to Ihc right) passes (63i/._, M.) Kainzenhad (2415 ft.), with

alkaline and iodine springs and a sanatorium, and ascends througli

the gorge of the Ranker. — 67^2 M. Kaltenhrunn (2890 ft.). —
691/2 M. Klais (Schottl's inn). To Kriin, see p. 328. — We cross

the watershed (3175 ft.); on the right is the marshy Schmal-See.

We then descend into the Isar-Tal, with views of the Karivendel-

Gebirge, to the left and straight ahead.

72 M. Mittenwald (3000 ft.; Hot. Post; Traube, well spoken

of; Wetterstcin, Stern), the last Bavarian village (custom-house)
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with quaint old houses, is overshadowed by the precipitous Kar-
wendel-Spitze (7820 ft.). The manufacture of violins, guitars, and

zithers forms the main occupation of the inhabitants. In front of

the church is a bronze statue of Michael Klotz (d. 1743), who in-

troduced the violin -industry. Grood view from the (8 min.) Kal-

varienberg.
Excursions. To the *Lauter-^ee (3365 ft.), ^U hr., and the lonely

Ferchen-See (3475 ft.), Vi It- farther on ; to the *Kranzberg (4585 ft.
;

inn; splendid view), IV2 tr. ; to the Leutasch-Klamm, 3/^ hr. there and
back; etc. — Motor-omn. to Kochel, see p. 327.

The line crosses the Isar and follows its right bank as far as

the Scharnitz Pass (3140 ft.), the boundary between Bavaria and

Tvrol, formerly protected by a strong fortress which was destroyed

by the French "in 1805. — 76 M. Scharnitz (3160 ft.; Hot. Adler,

good; Traube, Neuwirt), with the Austrian custom-house. — We
again cross the Isar, which here issues from the Hinterau-Tal, in

which it rises. — Farther on the line ascends through woods to

(85 M.) Seefeld (3860 ft. ; Hot. Post, Klosterbriiu), a summer resort

with a Gothic church. — "We leave on the right the small marshy

Wild -See and reach the highest point of the line (3885 ft.). —
871/2 M. Eeith (3690 ft.; Hot. Schune Aussicht, Weisses Rossi),

whence the Eeither-Spitze (7790 ft.; rfmts.; beautiful view) may be

easily ascended in 3^ 9 ^^'^' — ^^e now descend rapidly through

numerous tunnels. Splendid views of the Inn valley and the Tyrolcse

Alps. — Beyond (891/2 M.) iezY^ie/? (3310 ft.) the^line makes' a long

bend to the N. through a tunnel, crosses the Schlosshach-Grahen by

a viaduct 180 ft. high, and returns through five tunnels and over a

viaduct to (93 M.) Hoclizirl (3025 ft.), 985 ft. above the village of

Zirl. — We then penetrate the Martinswand (3650 ft.) by a tunnel

over 1 M. long and descend rapidly through several tunnels. — Beyond

(103 M.) Hotting we cross the Inn. — 105 M. Innshruck (see

Baedeker's Eastern Alps or Austria).

38. From Munich via Linderhof to Fussen.

a. Via Oberammergau.
*

94 M. From Munich to 3Iitruau, 46i/vjM., railway in 13/4-3 hrs. {& JC 10,

3 ^k, 60, 2 c^ 40 pf. ; express 6 c^ 60, 4 ^^ 10, 2 ^ 65 pf.). From Murnau
to Oberammergau, 15 M. , electric railway in 1 hr. 10 min. (1 t.« 50.

95 pf.). From Oberammergau via Linderhof to Fussen, 321/2 M. , omn.
2 or 3 times daily in summer in 8V4-IO hrs. (7 JC 40 pf.j, waiting either

IV2 br. at midday or the whole night at Linderhof.

From Munich to (46 Y2 ^^^O Murnau, see p. 319. The line thence

to Oberammergau describes a wide curve to the W. and skirts

the ridge that divides the Staflfel-See from the plain of the Loisach.

To the S. opens a fine mountain view. — 49\ 2 ^I- Grafenaschau
(2255 ft.). — Beyond a wood and an embankment we reach (53 M.)
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Jdgerhaus. The line now runs along the mountain-slope. — 54 M.
Kohlgruh (2715 ft.; Kail. Restaurant; Oberwirt), a picturesquely

situated village.

541/2 M. Bad Kohlgrub (2820 ft.). About 8 niin. S., at the

base of the Hornic, arc the prettily situated chalybeate and peat

baths (2955 ft.; *Kurliaus. R. 1^2-^^/^/ *Hot. Lindenschlosschen,

with gardcni, frequented also as a mountain health-resort.

The Olga-Hohe and the Falleralm (>/•> hr. : rfmts.) command fine

vie-\vs to the X. of the hills and lakes of Upper Bavaria. — The attractive

a.scent of the Ho rule (5080 ft.; refuge-hut; splendid view) may be made
in 2 hrs.

From (55Y2 ^•) Saulgrub a road leads to the right to Rotten-

buch (p. 307). — After reaching its highest point (2870 ft.), the

line (Jescends into the Ammer-Tal. — 57 M. Altenau (2750 ft.;

Hot. Limmer), charmingly situated at the AY. base of the Hornic

(see above), Avith the electric power-station of the railway. — 59 M.
Unterammergau (2745 ft.; ^chuhwirt). — We cross the Ammer.

6IV2 M- bberammergau (2745 ft.; Hot. Wittelsbacher Hof,

R. 11/4-5 JC, good: Hot. Bahnhof, Alte Post, Osterbichl), a village

with 1870inhab., celebrated for the Passion Plays performed here

every ten years (last in 1910). AVood and ivory carving is the chief

occupation of the inhabitants. The Lang museum of Obcrammergau
antiquities and the school of carving arc interesting. Xear the

station is the theatre (4500 seats), with an open-air stage. Pretty

parish -church of 1736-42. To the W., at the base of the Kofel
(4405 ft.), stands a colossal group of the Crucifixion in sandstone,

executed by Halbig and presented by King Louis II. Motor-omn. via

Oberau to Partenkirchen, see p. 321 (to Oberau, see also p. 324).

The Road from Oi?er.\mmerc4au to Reutte (to Linderhof 2^ g-

3 hrs.' walk) ascends the broad Ammer-Tal and after % hr. joins

the road from Oberau (p. 325). — 31', M. Graswaug' {2S85 ft.).

We ascend through the (J raswang-Tal, or upper valley of the Ammer.
To the left opens the wide Elmaiier Gries, above which peeps the

Zugspitze. — 7 M. Linderhof, a forester's house with restaurant

and beds. We soon pass the Bavarian custom-house (right) and cross

the Ammer.
71/2 M. *Schloss Linderhof, erected in the rococo style by

Dollmann for King Louis II. in 1869-78. with beautiful gardens

(open from May 10th to Oct. 15th daily, 9-12 and 1.30-5; adm.

3 c^, Sun. 11/2 1^, incl. grotto and kiosk; closed on June 13th).

To the left are the ticket-office and the Schloss-Hotel Linderhof (R.

The vestibule of the Schloss (adm. in parties of 12) contains a bronze
equestrian statuette of Louis XIY. of France, after Bosio. On the first

iloor is a series of finely fitted up rooms with portraits of French celeb-
rities in the time of Louis XIV. and Louis XV.

In the gardens in front of tlie Scliloss is a pond with a gilded figure

of Flora and a fountain 120 ft. hiirh. Terraces lead thence to the Xixen-
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Brunnen, in front of which is a statue of Louis II. by E. Ney, and to the

Monopteros , a small temple with a figure of Venus (good view). Behind
the palace are the cascades and the Xeptune fountain, which play at noon
and 6 p.m. Up the hill. 5 min. X.E., is the entrance to the Grotto, with
a small lake and waterfall, illuminated with electric light upon the

purchase of at least 10 tickets. Xear the grotto is the KiosTi% in the
Moorish style, with stalactite vaulting, enamelled bronze peacocks, etc.

The Reutte road ascend the finely wooded Ammer-Tal to the

(11 M.) Grenz-Briicke, or frontier bridge (3545 ft.). About 10 min.

to the left (onin. waits 72 ^^•) is the Hunding-Hutte, a copy of the

old German log-hut in Wagner's 'Walkiire' (adm. 50 pf. ; rfmts.). —
We then skirt the N. slope of the Geiej-kopf (109 o ft.), traversing

the thickly -^'oodedAjninerwald-Tal, and reach (I4V2M.) UieAljjen-

Hofel Ammerivald (3550 ft.; Austrian custom-house), whence the

'Schiitzensteig' diverges to the right to (3Y2ln'S-) Hohenschwangau

(p. 315). — About 1 hr. farther on the road leaves the woods and

near (IT^/g M.) a monument to King Max II. reaches the dark-green

*Plan-See (3200 ft.; Plansee-Hot^l Forelle), 3 M. long, 2/3 M.
broad, and 250 ft. deep, enclosed by wooded mountains. Steamer

via Seespitze to Heiterwang (p. 318).

The road to (51/2 brs.) Partenkirchen (p. 320: omn. to Griesen, 11/2--^)

leads through the wooded Neidernach-Tal to the (21/4 hrs.) custom-house
of Griesen (station, see p. 321), and thence through the Luisach-Tdl.

The Reutte road (shadeless in the forenoon) skirts the N". bank

of the lake, passing the Kaiser - Brunnen. At the W. end of the

lake is the (2OV2 M.) Hot.-Pens. Seespitze (R. V/^-S^^K). Farther

on we skirt the Kleiner Plan-See, cross the Archbach, and reach

(211/2 M.) a chapel, near a spring.

A footpath descends 5 min. farther on to the right, through a wood,
to the Upper and (20 min.) Lower Stuiben Fall (p. 318). Thence we
may ascend to the left and join the road again (10 min.), or we may
follow the Arch to (1 hr.) Bcutte (comp. p. 318).

The road crosses the Rossrilcken (3295 ft.), affording a fine

view, with the Klimmspitze and Hochvogel in the background. We
descend the slope of the Tauern, where the path from tlie lower

Stuiben Fall (see above) joins the road at a stone with an inscription.-

The road proceeds past the small baths of Kreklmoos to (24 M.)

Reidte (p. 318). Thence to (32^ '2 M.) Fussen, see p. 317.

b. Via Oberaii.

93 M. From Munich to Oberau, 57 M., Railway in 2-81/2 hrs. (7 ^^ 60, ij(.

60 pf., 8 Ji; express 8 c^ 60, 5 .^ 60. 3 ^^ 50 pf.). From Oberau to Linderhof,
11 M., Omnibus 2 or 3 times daily in summer in 21/2-8 hrs. (21/2 <^)- Thence
to Flissen (36 M. from Oberau) by the omn. from Oberammergau (p. 322)

or Partenkirchen. — From G-armisch-Partenkirchen (p. 320) to Fiissen, via

Oberau, Linderhof, and Eeutte, omn. daily (6.45 a.m.) in June-Sept, in

13 hrs. [S^j^JC), connecting with Oberau station; from Fiissen to Hohen-
schwangau, see p. 314. Another omn. runs daily (7 a.m.) in June-Sept, from
Partenkirchen via Fussen to Hohenschwangau in 18 hrs. (9 c^ 20 pf.); to

Linderhof, where it waits 8 hrs., in 33/^ hrs. (2 JO 70, there and back 4 ^^
80 pf.). — From Oberau to Oberammergau, 7 M., Motor Omkibus in '/4hr.
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(1 c^ 10 pf
.

; from Garmisch-Partenkirchen, see jj. 321). — Cakkiage from
Oberau to Obcrammcrgau 10, with two horses liJi; to Linderhof 18 and 30,
to Reuttc 30 and 40, to Hohensehwangau 36 and bO^M. Driver's fee 10%. —
The road from Ettal to Linderhof and Reuttc is prohibited for motorists.

From Munich to (57 M.) Obermi, see pp. 319, 320. The road
leads W., passing the ('V3 M.) Hotel Untermherg, and ascends, at

first in a wide sweep to tlie right (short-cut), along the K side of

the wooded gorge of the Giessenhach. At the bottom of the valley

runs the old road. The gorge is closed by the Ettaler Berrf, round
which the road curves to the left.

41 2 M. Ettal (2875 ft.; Kloster-Wirtschaft, R. from IJC), a

Benedictine monastery founded by Emperor Louis in 1330, was
rebuilt after a fire in 1744. The church, with a dome 236 ft. high
and a facade by Zuccali, was remodelled in the baroque style;

it contains six fine side-altars by J. B. Straub (1757-61); on the

high-altar is a celebrated marble figifre of the Madonna (Italian;

14th cent.). The ascent of the Ettaler Manndl (5360 ft.) takes

21/2-3 hrs.

About 1,0 M. farther on the road forks, the right branch lead-

ing to (21/2 M.) Ohei^ammergaii (p. 323). The road to Linderhof
(driving preferable to walking) unites 1^ 4 M. farther on with the

road coming from Oberammergau. — 7I/2M. Graswang, and thence

to (11 M.) Linde )-hof rikI (36 M.) Filssen, see pp. 323, 324.

39. From Munich via Kochel to Mitten-
wald. Walchen-See.

a. Isar-Tal Railway from Munich to Kochel.
From Munich to Kochel, 36V2 M. in 2-2'/., hrs. (6 ,.« 40. 3 J6 80. 1 ^M

60 pf.).

Munich, see p. 233. The trains start from the Isartal-Bahnhof
(rail, restaurant). — IV4M. Thalkirchen (1755ft.; Hot. Deutsche
Eiche, with garden), a prettily situated suburb, with a sanatorium. —
Beyond (2^2 M.) Maria-Einsiedel the line ascends to (3 M.) Prinz-
Ludivigs-Hohe, with its villas and Avooded environs, and crosses the

state-railway (p. 328). — 3VoM. Grosshesselohe (1870 ft. : p. 304). —
Farther on we traverse woods and pass the Schlossrhen Schwaneck
(left; p. 304).

41/2 M. PuUach (1905 ft.; Hot. Kabenwirt; Kestaurant Biirger-

bniu), with a Gothic church, prettily situated on the high left bank
of the Isar. Bad Pullach, see p. 304.

51/2 M. Hollriegelsgreidh-Grilnwald (1955 ft.; Restaurant
Forsthaus). A road descends from the station to the left to the

Restaurant Hollriegelsgreuth (to Griinwald, see p. 304V — 8 M.
Baierbrunn (2035 ft.; Hot. zur Post). About 10 min. N. is the
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Hotel Konradsliohe (view). — lO^/g M. Hohenschdftlarn (2145 ft.;

rail, restaurant), a high-lying village to the right.

At (12 M.) Ebenhausen-Schaftlarn (2170 ft. ; Hot. zur Post

;

Restaurant Hubertusi the railway reaches its highest point. About
20 min. X.AV., beyond Zell, is the Roscheiiauer Hohe (2295 ft.),

with the Ebenhausen Sanatorium and a view of the Alps.
Forest-patbs (good toboo-gan-run in -winter) descend from Ebenhausen

in Vj lir- (fi"oni Hohenschaftlarn in 20 min.) to Kloster Schaftlarn
(1830 ft.; Kloster-Wirtschaft), a Benedictine abbey with a church built

in the rococo style by Cuvillies and Gunezrhainer in 1732-64. Picturesque
paths through the woods to Baierbruun (IV2 hr.), Icking (1 hr.), etc. —
From Ebenhausen a marked path loads to (21/2 hrs.) ScJiloss Berg, on the
Starnberger See (p. 305).

Fine view farther on of the Isar valley and the mountains. —
From (I31 31.) /c/.-% (2135 ft.) we may visit (i

4 hr.) the Hotel

zur Schonen Aussicht (2310 ft.), above Walchsfadt, with a view-

tower (55 ft. high; 10 pf.). — We descend through deep cuttings

and along the slope of the ^Schletterleitei}, with a view of the wide
valley of the Isar, with its sandy islets. We cross the Loisach near

its confluence with the Isar.

1 6 M. "Wolfratshausen (1890 ft. ; rail, restaurant, with rooms),

10 min. E. of the prettily situated village (Hot. Kronmlihle, R. l^j-

2^/c^ cA • Haderbriiu. Humplbrau; pop. 2100). On the Kalvarien-

berg are shady walks aflfording charming views.
The Starnberger Sec may be reached hence by pleasant paths : via

Miinsing (2185 ft.; inn) to (2 hrs.) Ammerland (p. 306); via Dorfen,
Hohenrain, Aufhausen, and Aufkirchen to (2i/o lirs.) Schloss Berq or
Leoni (p. 305); or from the Kalvarienberg via 'jSnchsee to the (2 hrs).

RottmannS'Hohe (p. 305).

The railway crosses the winding Loisach again to (18 M.) Deg-
erndorf (Restaurant Bruckmaier) and follows the left bank to

(191/2 M.) Bulzicang (1900 ft.). The Hochbreife (2365 ft.; V2 ^y-

W.) and the Degerndorfer Hohe (2350 ft. ; 1/2 hr. farther) command
fine views. — 207-2 ^^- Eurashurg , with a handsome Schloss on
a wooded hill (V4 hr. ; tavern and chapel with view).

23 M. Beuerberg <2015 ft.; Hot. Post), a prettily situated vil-

lage with a convent-school for girls.

Road W. via St. Heinrich tu (2 hrs.) Seeshaupt (p. 306). To the S.

of the road, ^Vi-l hr. from Beuerberg (via Bnch and 3[aierivald),etre the
view-points of Hohenlcitcn (2180 ft. : restaurant and batlis) and Odhaucr
(attractive walk via Hohenleiten to Seeshaupt in i'^j., hrs.).

Short of (26 M.) Fletzen we cross to the right bank of the

Loisach. The mountains (Benediktenwand, Jochberg, Herzogstand,
Heimgarten) approach nearer to the line. — Beyond an extensive

swampy district we reach (30 M.) Bad Hdlhrunn (rail, restaurant),

11/4 M. to the W. of the baths (oniu. 30 pf.
; p. 330). — At (31i

/o m!)

Bichl the Isartal-Bahn unites with the state -railway. Thence to

(36V'2 M.) Kochd, see p. 327.
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b. From Munich via Tutzing to Kochel and Mittenwald.

State Railway to (JG'/a M.) Kochel in 2-21/4 lirs. (6 .H, 40, 3 JC 80,

2 c/K 50 pf.)- ~ Motor Omnibus from Kocliel via Walchensee to (20'/2 M.)

Mittemcald 10 times daily in summer in 21/4 lirs. (3'/a .^) ; express in

I'/o hr. (,') a 10 pf.).

From Municli to (25 M.) Tntziny, see pp. 30,j, 306. — 29 M.

Bernried (p. 306), 31 1/2 M. Seeshaiipt (p. 306), both ^;^ br. from the

railway. AVe traverse an uniuteresting district, passiu*;: uumerous

marshy lakes. On the right lies the Oster-See. — 35^ 9 ^f- 'SVaZ-

fach. — 38^2 M- Neu-Penzherg, station for the village of.Penz-

berg (19S0 ft.; Hot. Bernrieder Hof), with a coal-mine. — Beyond

40\2^f-) Schdnmiihle we cross the Loisach. — 42^2 ^J- Bichl

(Hot. Lowe, Griiner Hut), junction ftfr the Isartal-Bahn (p. 326).

Motor-omn. to Bad Tolz, see p. 32S.

42 M. Benediktbeuern (2025 ft. ; Rail. Restanrant; Hot. Bene-

diktenwand, Post). On the right lies the old monastery, founded in

740, now a remount depot and a military convalescent home. To the

E. rises tlie Benediktemcand (5910 ft.; 4^2 brs. by a red-marked

path; guide 8 =7/, dispensable). — The railway skirts an extensive

marsh and leads via Ried and Orf along the Ruhr-See (now drained).

461/2 M. Kochel (Hot. Prinz Ludwig, R. 2-3^/; Stoger), the

terminus of the railway, separated by a hill from the lake. A bronze

statue in the village commemorates Bcdthasar Maier, the 'Smith

of Kochel', who fell in the Battle of Sendlingen fighting against the

Anstrians (1705; comp. p. 300). Near the lake (12 min. from the

station) is the Kur- Hotel Bad Kochel (open in summer only:

R. l\.,-4,^//), with a spring and a large garden by the lake. The

Koehel-See (1970 ft.), 3-^ 4 M. long, 2^ o M. broad, and 215 ft.

deep, is fed by the Loisach, and is bounded on the S. by the Joch-

berg, Herzogstand, and Heimgarten. Fine walks round the lake.

The pavilion on the hill near Bad Kochel affords a good view.

Opposite Kochel, at the X.W. oiul of the lake (1 hr. ; motor-omn. in

20 min.. .')0 pf. : motor-boat in y.jhv., t>0 pf.), lies the pleasant village of

Schlehdorf (20i.'3 ft. ; Kloster-Brauerei, Heimgarten). The Herzogstand

(p. 328) mav be ascended hence in 4 hrs. Tihe motor-omn. goes on to

Mnrnau (p. 319), lOi/j M. from Kochel (in (iS min. ; 1 .« 70 pf.). Tlie shorter

route via Kleiniceil and Hagn is preferable for pedestrians.

From Kochel to Bad Tolz (motor-omn.), see pp. 330, 32it.

The Road from Kochkl to Mittexwald (motor-omn., see

p. 328) approaches the lake at the (1^4 M.) Hotel iSeehof and

skirts it, passing the Hotel zum Grauen Barcn, to the (2 M.) Hotel

Kesselberg (10 min. S^Y. of which lies the Hotel Altjoch). We
next ascend the fine *Kesselberg road in easy windings (shorter by

the old road). To the right are the falls of the Kesselbarh, along

which a path cutting off an angle of the road ascends. AVe then

reach the (5 M.) top of the Kesselberg (2825 ft.), where the bridle-

path to the Herzogstand diverges to the right (good toboggan- run
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in winter). To tlie S. appear the Karwendel and Wettersteiu ranges,

while below us lies the deep-blue *Walchen-See (2630 ft.), 41/2 M.

long, 3 M. broad, and 640 ft. deep, surrounded by wooded mountains.

At the (51/2 M.) N. end is the hamlet of Urfeld (Hot. Post & Jager

am See, Fischer am See).

The *Herzogstand (5680 ft.) presents an easy ascent of 21/2-3 hrs.

(guide nunecessaiy). From Urfeld a footpath ascends to the (2 hrs.)

Herzoi/sfand-Hauser (5165 ft. ; bed 3 Jl), V2 hr. below the .summit, which
commands an admirable view of the mountains as far as the Tauern,

and of the plain. Beyond the Herzogstand-Hauser a narrow path to the

right, affording at first a view of the Walchen-See and the mountains,

descends to the hamlet of Walchensee in 2 hrs. Descent to Schlehdorf,

see p. .827. — A narrow arete, advisable for persons with steady heads

only, connects the Herzogstand with the Heimgarten (5875 ft.), s/^ hr. W.,
which commands a beautiful view also.

From Urfeld to the Jochberg (5140 ft. ; excellent view), 21/2 hrs.

From Urfeld thi-ough the Jachenau to Bad Tolz, see p. 330.

The road skirts the W. bank of the lake to (1 hr.) the hamlet of

Walchensee. It is, however, preferable to proceed from Urfeld

across the lake direct to (V^ hr.) Obernach (fares for 1, 2, 3, and

4 pars. 2 ^l 50, 3 ^^ 50, 4 J/l 80, 5 ^^' 30 pf.). From the middle

of the lake a fine panoramic view is enjoyed.

8^/2 M. Walchensee (Hot. Post), on a bay of tbe lake. On the

opposite bank are the school and parsonage of Klosterl.

The road passes the (10\, 2 M.) Hotel Einsiedl, at the S. end of

the lake; near it is the foresters house of Obernach. Then through

a lonely pine-clad valley. — I^ear (I41/2 M.) Walgau (Hot. Xeuner)

the broad Isar-Tal is reached (toYorderriss, see p. 330). — 15\ 2 ^I«

Kriia (Hot. Post).

From Kriin a road leads past the picturesquely situated Barm- See

to (3/^ hr.) Klais (p. 321).

On the S. the precipitous Karwendel Mts. are conspicuous; to

the S.W. rise the VYetterstein Mts. We cross the Isar twice.

201/., M. Mittenwald (p. 321).

40. Prom Munich to Bad Tolz and
Mittenwald.

71 M. From Munich to Bad Tolz, 36 M., Railway in 11/4-2'/* lii"S. (4:c4( 50,

2 .^ 90. 1 ^ 85 pf.). — From Bad Tolz to Lenggries, 7 M., Motor OMmscs
5-8 times daily in summer in 35 min. (70 pf.). — From Lenggries to

Vorderriss, 15 M., Omnibus dailv in 31/.2 hrs. ; thence io Hinterriss (Hot.

Alpenhof; p. 330). 71/2 M., Omxibus (3 seats) in 23/^ hrs. — The Motor
Omsibus from Bad Tolz to Mittenwald runs via Kochel and Walchensee

(p. 329): to Kochel, 141/2 M., 4-S times" daily in summer in I'V+hr., or

express in 3/4 hr. (1 JC 40 or 2 JC m pf. ; to Bichl, 8V2 M. in 1 hr., 90 pf.)

:

from Kochel via Walchensee to Mittenwald, see p. 327.

Munich, see p. 233. Soon after leaving the Haupt-Bahnhof

the train curves towards the S. — 4^ 2 M. Mittersendling. — Just

beyond (7 M.) Grosshesselohe (p. 325) the Isar is crossed by an
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iron bridge 295 yds. long and 100 ft. high (used by pedestrians

also, see p. 304); to the left we obtain a view of the deep bed of the

river, with Munich in the distance. Then through woods. — 221/2 M.

Holzkirchen (2240 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Oberbrau), junction

for Rosenheim (p. 335) and Schliersee (p. 333).

29 M. Schaftlach. Branch-line to Tegernsce, sec p. 331. —
32V2 M. Reichersbeuerfi, with a Schloss.

36 M. Bad Tolz. — Hotels. On the right bank: Bellevue, at

the station, with view. K. 1V2--V-2 ^^/ Kolberbrdu, with garden, Klammer-
brdii, Post, all three in the Markt-Str. — On the left bank (some closed

in winter): *Ku)--Hotel, Ludwig-Str., R. 3-8, board 5 .S; *Kaiserhof,
Herder-Str., R. from 2'/,, P. from 7 ^; Park-Hotel, Buchener Str.. new;
Sedlmair, Buchener Str", with baths, R. 2'/2-iV2, P- 8-12 ^^ ; Bruck-
brdii, with garden, near the bridge; Hot. -Pens. Germania , corner of

Herder-Str. and Schlitzen-Str. ; Alpen-Hotel Kogel, Zollhaus, see below.
—- Beer Restaurant. Kolber- Garten, with a view -terrace. — Wise
Room. SchicaUjhofer, Markt-Str.

Post & Telegraph Office, Bahnhof-Str. — Cabs. From the station

to the town IV2, with two horses 2 JC; to the baths quarter 2 or 3 v#.

Per drive of 1/2 ^^- IV2 or 21/2 <^, for each i/i hr. more 1/2 or \ JC. —
Visitors' Tax (1st week free). For 1 pers. 10, 2 pers. 15, 3 or more pers.

18 c^. — Inquiry Office, Ludwig-Str. 7. — Motor Omnibus to Tegernsee,

see p. 331.

Bad Tolz (2220 ft. at the station), a town of 5500 inhab.,

(jrettily situated on the Isar at the point where it issues from the

mountains, consists of the old town on the right bank, with many
frescoed houses, and of the batbs quarter on the left bank. The

springs contain iodine, soda, and sulphur, and are used both for

bathing and drinking; they were discovered in 1846 on the slope of

the Blomberg and are conducted to the town in pipes. — From the

station we follow the Bahnhof-Str. to (10 min.) the broad Markt-Str.,

the chief street of the old town. In front of the Rathaus is a war

monument (1887). The Rathaus contains the Historical Museum,
open on Mon., Wed., and Fri. 4-6 (20 pf.; at other times 50 pf.).

To the S. of the Markt-Str. is the Parish Church, a handsome Gothic

building of the late 15th cent., restored in 1906. To the N. of the

Markt-Str. rises the Kalvarienherg (2325 ft.), with a pilgrimage-

church and the Leonhardi-Kapelle (festival on Nov. 6th). It affords

a fine view of the Isar valley, with the long Benediktenwand and

the conical Kirchstein forming the background to the S.W.

The baths quarter, formerly called Krankenheil, with its hand-

some gardens, contains the chief hotels, the Kurhaus (under con-

struction), the Badehaus, the Kur-Garten, the Kouversations-Haus,

and the Wandelbahn. — To the W., on the Kocliel road, is the

Zollhaus (inn, with baths); on a hill to the left stands the Alpen-

Hotel Kogel, with a view. — Bad Tolz is adjoined by extensive

woods, affording pleasant walks.

From Bad Tolz to the Walchen-See there are two roads. (1) Via
KocHKL (20 M., 7 hrs.' walk; motor-omn., see p. 328). The road leads

W. past the Blockhaus, whence we may ascend the (li/^hr.) Blombery
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(4100 ft.: inn; charming view). The road goes on via Stallau and (6 M.)
Bad Heilbrimn (Kurhaus ; Hot. Bellevue), with the Adelheids-Quelle,
containing iodine, 11/4 M. to the W. of Heilbrunn station on the Isar-

Tal railway (p. 326). "We then pass Unterstcinbach and reach (81/2 M.)
Bichl. whence the road follows the railwav via Benediktbeuern and
Ried to (141/2 M.) Kochel (comp. p. 327). — (2) Yia Jachenac (231/2 M.,
8i;._, hrs." walk). Road to (7 M.) Lenggrles. see below. Here we cross

the' Isar io {S^l.2 1^.) Wegscheid. We then turn to the right into the

Jacheuau. a secluded valley 12 M. in length. Beyond (18 M.) the village

of Jachenau (2590 ft.; Hot. Post) the road ascends, and then descends
through woods to (22 M.) Sachenbach, on the Walchen-See, and (231/2 M.)
Urfcid (p. 328).

From Bad Tolz via Yorderriss to Mittenvtald, 36 M. (motor-

omu. to Leiiggries aud omn. to Yorderriss, see p. 328). The road

follows the right bank of the Isar to (7 M.) Lenggries (Kot. Post,

Altwirt), where the Jachenau road branches to the right (see above).

About 20 min. S. is Schloss Huhenburg, belonging to the Grand-

Duchess of Luxemburg. The road continues to follov\' the right

bank of the Isar via Anger and Fleck to (10 M.) Winkel. The valley

contracts. The road crosses the Walchen or Achen, on the right

bank of which a road leads to (3hrs.) Achenwald (p. 332), — 15V .2M.

Fall (2430 ft.; Hot. Fallerhof). — 21 M. Vorderriss (2656"ft.;

Hot. zur Post), a royal forester's house and hunting -lodge, sur-

rounded by pines, at the confluence of the Biss with the Isar.

Throuou the Riss-Tal to the Achex-See, 10 hrs., attractive (comp.
the adjoining Map). The road (omn., see p. 328) ascends past tlie Osicald-

Hiitte to (71/2 ^I-) Hinterriss (3055 ft.), a shooting-lodge of the Duke
of Coburg, in a finely wooded valley. Lower down is the Hot. Klosterl,

while 20 min. farther on is the Hot! Alpenhof. From Hinterriss to the

(2 hrs.) Hagel-Hiitte (3575ft.) the road is still available for carriages;

Taeyond that it ascends to the (210 hrs.) Plumser Joch (5415 ft. ; view),

an'd then descends through the wo'oded Gern-Tal to (21/^ hrs.) Pertisau

(p. 332).

The Mittenwald road crosses the Isar and follows the left side

of the lonely valley to (30i;o M.) Walgau (p. 328), on the road from

the Walchen-8ee t"o (36 M.j Mittenivald (p. 321).

41. From Munich via Tegernsee and the
Achen-See to Jenbach (Lnisbruchj.

Railway to (371/2 M.) Tegernsee in l^U-'l^l-i hrs. (5 JC 30, 3 .# 40,

2 ^* 20 pf. ; beyond Gmund best views to the right). Motor Omsibus
from Tegernsee to (23 M.) Scholastika (Achen-See) 5-7 times daily in

summer in 21/4 hrs., or by express in 13/^ hr. (4or6c^); from Tegernsee
to (71/2 M.) Bad Kretdh 4-8 times daily in 50 min. (1 ^fC 30 pf.). — Steamer
on the Achen-See from Scholastika via Pertisau to Seespits, 8 times daily

in summer in 50 min. (1 it 80. IK 30 h). — Railway from Seespitz to

(4 M.) Jenbach (rack-and-pinion from Eben on), connecting with the

steamer in summer only, 7 times daily in
•''/i

hr. (2 K, up 3, there and
back 4 K). — CarriacTe from Tegernsee to Bad Kreuth 7, with two
horses 12 c^, to Scholastika 16 or 24 c^; from Scholastika -to Bad Krenth
14 or 22 A", to Tegernsee 20 or 30 K (tolls included 1.

For fuller details, see Baedeker's Eastern Alps.
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From Munich to (29 M.) Schaftlach, see pp. 328, 329. Our line

diverges S.E. from the liue to Bad TOlz (on the right, the Bene-
diktenwand) and reaches the lovely *Tegern-See (2380 ft.), 32/4 M.
loug, IV4 M. broad, and 240 ft. deep. — 331/2 M. Gmund (Bahn-
bof-Hotel, Oberstoger, Herzog Maximilian), where the Mangfall
issues from the lake.

Best survey of the lake from Kaltenbrunn (rfmts.), a ducal farm
20 min. W. of Gmund (motor -boat from Tegernsce in V" hr. ; rowing-
boat in 1 hr., IJ^ 40 pf.).

The line now runs along the E. bank. — 35^2 ^^- iSt. Quirin,

37^/2 M. Tegernsee. — Hotels. *Serben-Hotel, closed in winter,

R. 21/2-6 JC; Gr.-Hot. Post, under construction; Steinmetz, R. 21/2-8, B.
1 JC 20 pf. ; Guggemos, on the lake, R. 2-ZJC; Bahnhof-Hotel ; Tegern-
seer Hof. — Lodgings plentiful. — Quarters also at Rottach (Hot. See-
rose, Plendl) and Egern (Hot. Bachmair, Zur Uberfahrt), both at the S.E.
end of the lake. — Beer at the Brdustuhl, in the Schloss ; SommerJceller,
with veranda, near the '^'"hloss. — Wiener Cafe am See.

Tegernsee (2390 ft.), a charmingly situated village of 1900
inhab., with many villas, is a favourite summer and winter resort.

The Schloss, a Benedictine abbey from 719 to 1803, belongs to

Duke Louis William of Bavaria; the N. wing contains a brewery.

Above the portal of the church is a marble relief (1457) represent-

ing the princely founders of the abbey.
About 8 min. from the S.E. corner of the Schloss we may ascend

the steps on the left, passing the monument of the poet Carl Stieler
(1842-85), to the (20 min.) Grosses Parapluie (2625 ft.), which commands
a beautiful view of the upper lake.

On the W. bank, opposite Tegernsee, lies Wiessee, with iodine and
sulphur baths.

Motor Omnibdses. (1) To St. Quirin (2 M. ; see above), Gmund
(3 M. ; see above), Reichersbeuerti (91/2 M. : p. 329), and Bad Tolz (13 M.

;

p. 329) 5-6 times daily in summer in 1 hr. 10 min., or by express in

oO min. (1 c^ 70 or 2 ^ 10 pf.). — (2) To St. Quirin, Ostin, Hausham
(8V2 M.

; p. 333), and Schliersee (10 M.
; p. 333) 5-8 times daily in summer

in 50 min. (1 Ji 60 pf.).

The Road to the Achen-See passes the sulphur - baths of

Schwaighof and crosses the Rottach to (2 IVf.) Rottach (see above).

About V/\ M. farther on we cross the Weissach, the valley of

which we now ascend to (5 M.) Scharling. The valley contracts

near the village of (6 M.) Krenth (2580 ft.; Hot. Post), to the right

of which rises the conical Leonhardstein (4765 ft.). On the left

is (\/4 hr.) the prettily situated Hotel Rainer Alpe, about 12 min,

beyond which a road to the left diverges to (10 min.) —
71/2 M. Bad Kreuth (2700 ft.; ^Kurhaus, R. 2-25, D. 3^8c^),

the property of Duke Louis William of Bavaria, situated amid
woods. The springs, containing salt and sulphur, have been known
since 1500. Fine grounds.

Pretty view from the Hohlemtein (3850 ft.), 1 hr. E. The SchiiuJler

(5930 ft.). 51/2 brs. E., commands a superb panorama (descent to Falepj),

p. 333, in 2"hrs.). The Wallberg (5650 ft.: inn 3/4 hr. from the top),

31/2 hrs. X.E. of Kreuth village, also commands a good view,

Baedeker's S. Germany. 12th Edit. 21



332 'Route 41. ACHEN-SEE.

From Bad Kreuth we cross the Weissach to the W. and rejoin

the main road. The latter gradually ascends along the wooded
Weissach-Tal, passing the (10 V2 ^) Hotel Bayerwald and the

(I2V2 M.) hamlet of Glashiitte (2925 ft.; inn), with the Bavarian

custom-house oiStuben. Beyond the [1?,^j^'M.) Stuben-Alp{^Q^b ft.)

the road descends through profound ravines, and in the once forti-

fied Achen Pass (2875 ft.) crosses the Tyrolese frontier. On the

right diverges the road to Fall in the Isar valley (p. 330). — The
Austrian custom-house is just short of the (17 M.) village of Achen-

wald (2695 ft.; Hot. Traube). The road then ascends along the

Achen or Walchen, the outlet of the Achen -See. To the left rise

the rocky peak of the Gufjfert (7205 ft.) and, adjoining it, the long

ridge of the Unniitz (see below). — 2OV2 M. Achenkirch (3030 ft.;

Hot. Kern, Adler; Post, with baths), a straggling village extending

almost to the Achen-See.

The *Achen-See (3025 ft.), 51/2 M. long, 2/3 M. broad, and

430 ft. deep in places, dark-blue in colour, is the finest and largest

lake in N^. Tyrol. At the 'N. end of the lake are Mayer's Hotel

(1 K 60 ^-3 K) and the (23 M.) Hotel Seholastika (burned down
in 1913), the terminus of the motor-omnibus. About 25 niin. farther

on is the Hotel Achenseehof. From each of these three hotels the

Unniitz (6815 ft.; superb view) may be ascended without difficulty

in 3 hrs. The road continues along the E. bank of the Achen-See

to (2872 M.) Buchau, at the S.E. end of the lake, V/^ M. from

Maurach station (see below). — It is preferable, however, to cross

the lake by boat (steamer, see p. 330; rowing-boat from Seholastika

to Pertisau in 1 hr.). The Pertisau (*Hot. Fiirstenhaus, belonging

to the Benedictine abbey of Fiecht, R. 1 ^6 20-2 JC 70 pf., D.

2Y2 "^^j Hot.-Pens. Alpenhof, *Stephanie, with baths. Post, all on

the lake), a green promontory on the W. bank, is much frequented

as a summer resort. Charming view of the lake; to the S. rise the

mountains of the Inn-Tal and lower Ziller-Tal. Road to Hiuterriss

and Vorderriss, see p. 330. From the Pertisau another road leads

to the (^4 hr.) Hotel Seespitz, at the S. end of the lake.

From Seespitz we take the, railway (p. 330) through the Kas-
hach-Tal via Maurach and the pilgrimage resort of Ehen to (4 M.)

Jenbach (1740 ft.; Hot. Toleranz, at the station; Alte Toleranz,

Brauhaus, Post), at the junction of the Inn-Tal and Ziller-Tal.

Railway thence to (22 M.) Innsbruck, see Baedeker's Eastern Alps
or Austria.
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42. Prom Munich via Schliersee to
Bayrisch-Zell and Kufstein.

69 M. Railway to (38 M.) Schliersee in li/2-3 hrs. (i Ji 80, 3 Ji, IJC
95 pf.); thence to (lOVa M.) Bayrisch-Zell in ^Vi hr. (1 J6 80, 90, 65 pf.).

Road from Bayrisch-Zell to (2OV2 M.) Kufstein.

From Munich to (221/2 ^^O Holzkirchen, where we change trains,

see pp. 328, 329. We diverge to the left from the Bad Tolz line and at

(26V2 M.) Darching (2175 ft.) enter the Mangfall-Tal. Opposite

is the monastery of Wetjarn, now a school. — 30 M. Thalham.
The train crosses the Mangfall and follows the wooded Schlierach-

Tal. — 331/2 M. Miesbach (2250 ft.; Hot. Waitzinger, R. 1^ o-

3 c^; Miesbacher Hof, Wendelstein, Post, Greiderer), a prettily

situated summer resort. — We cross the Schlierach twice. On the

right is Agatharied, with a Gothic church. — 36Y2 ^- Hausham,
with coal-mines. Motor-omn. to Tegernsee, see p. 331.

38 M. Schliersee (2570 ft.; Hot. Seebad, »Seehaus, Wittels-

bach, Seerose, all good; Wendelstein, Messner, Koglstein; Pens.

Freudeuberg), pleasantly situated on the Schlier-See {2 M. long;

2550 ft.; motor-boat to Fischhausen in 10 min., 20 pf.), is much
frequented in summer and for winter-sports also. Peasants' theatre

on Sun., Wed., and Sat. in summer at 7 p.m., in the Seehaus garden.

The (5 min.) Weinberg - Kapelle, above the parish-church, affords

the best survey of the lake. Motor-omn. to Tegernsee, see p. 331.

The line to Bayrisch-Zell skirts the W. bank of the lake. —
41 M. Fischhausen -Nenhaus. About 8 min. N.W., at the S. end

of the lake, lies Fischhausen (Hot. Finsterlin). About 5 min. S.E.

of the station is the summer resort of Neuhaus (2640 ft.; Hot.

zur Post), whence a road leads S. past the Spitzivg-See (3550 ft.)

to (31/4 hrs.) Falepp (2925 ft.; rfmts. at the foresters house).

From Falepp up the Schinder (p. 331), 31/2 hrs. — 44 M. Fisch-

bachau (24:60 it), whence a road leads N.E. to (21/2 M.) Birkensteiii

(2955 ft.; Kramerwirt, Hot. -Pens. Daheim), with a pilgrimage-

church, prettily situated at the foot of the Wendelstein ^see

below; 2V2 hrs., easy). — 46 M. Geitau.

48 V2 M. Bayrisch-Zell (2625 ft. ; Hot. Alpenn.sc, Wendelstein,

Post), prettily situated in a narrow valley enclosed by the Wendel-

stein, Seeberg, and Traithen.

The Wendelstein (6025 ft.
;
guide unnecessary) is ascended hence

in 3 hrs. (Wendelstein-Bahu, see p. 335). From the school we cross the

meadows to the N. to the forest, and follow the bridle-path via the (IV2 hr.)

Ohere WemUlstein-Alp to the (3/^ hr.) Bahnhof-Hotel (p. 335). Or we
may go N.W. via the Tanner -Miihlc to (1/2 hr.) Hochkreut (32-10 ft.)

and the (IV2 hr.) Obere Wendelstein-Alp (see above).

From Bayrisch-Zell a marked path leads via the Tanncr-Alp and
the Gh-afenherherg-Alp to the Auer-BrUc'ke, and through the Av^rbnch-
Tal to the (2V2 hrs.) Hotel Tatzelwurm (2510 ft.), near a fine fall of the

21*
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Auerbach. Thence we descend either on the left side of the profound
Auerbach-Tal past Rechenau to (2 hrs.) Oberaudorf (p. 335), or via the
Easier- Alp (2565 ft.) and through the Forchenhach-Tal to (21/2 hrs.)

Brannenburg (p. 335).

The Road from Baybisch-Zell to Kufsteln^ (20 ^/s M.) follows

the finely wooded Urspring-Tal. Beyond the (5 M.) Bdclcer-Alp

(2790 ft.) we cross the Austrian frontier. — 51/2 M. Urspring Inn
(2745 ft.; good wine). We descend, with numerous views of the

Kaiser-Gebirge to (8V2 -^^O Landl (2255 ft.; inn), in the Tiersec-

Tal, with a hunting -lodge of Archduke Louis Victor. — Aboit
Vg M. farther on the route forks. The road to the left descends the

valley of the Tierseer Ache to the (15 M.) Seewnrt. The footpath

to the right (preferable) ascends to the (V4 hr.) Hinter - Tiersee

(2840 ft.; Hot. Grasshof), and then descends via the (40 min.)

Forever -Tz'ersee (2575 ft. ; Pfarrwirt; Passion Plays in 1915) to

the (^'2 lir.) Seewirt (bed IK)^ near the Tier - See or Schrock-

See (2020 ft.). Thence the road leads over the Marhlinger Hohe
to (201/2 M.) Kufstein (p. 335).

43. Prom Munich via Rosenheim to
Kufstein.

Comp. the 3Iaps, pp. 327, 336.

eiVz M. Express in I1/2 hr. (7 J6 80, 4 .*; 70. 3 J^ 10 pf .) ; ordinary
train in 31/2 hrs. (8 Ji 80, 5 .M. 70, 3 ^M 60 pf.). — Best views to the right.

For fuller details, see Baedeker's Eastern Alps.

Munich, see p. 233. The line coincides with the Muhldorf line

(R. 44b) as far as (6 M.) MUnchen- Osthahnhof, w^here it diverges

to the right. We traverse a flat district , with a view of the Alps
in the distance. — 231/2 M. Grafing (1780 ft.). Branch-lines S. to

(7 M.) Glonn, and E. via {1\U M.) MarH Grafing and (31/2 M.)

Ebersherg (fine tomb of 1500 in the church) to (18 M.) Wasser-
burg (p. 354). — Between (28 M.) Assling and (32i'.2 M.) Oster-

iiiuncheyi the broad dale of the Attel is traversed. To the right,

straight ahead, rises the Wendelstein, to the left the Kaiser-

Gebirge, in the distance the Grross-Venediger.

401/2 M. 'Roserih.QUn.. — Railway Restaurant. — B-OT-Ei.s. Kaiser-

had, Kaiser -Str. 42, 20 min. from the station, with large garden and
sanatorium, R. 2-3 c«. Deutscher Kaiser, Prinzregenteu-Str. 3, with gar-
den. Renter's Hotel Wendelstein, Bahuhof-Str. 6, all three good ; Konln
Otto, Max-Joseph-Platz 1, with garden. — Wise Restaurant. Fortner,
Max-Joseph-Platz 20. — Beer Restaurants. Pernlohner- Keller, with
view-tower, and others in the Rossacker; Hofbrdii- Keller, Ebersberger
Str., with view. — Cabs. For 1/4 hr. 50 (3 pers. 60) pf. ; with two horses
I JC. — Post Office near the station. — Baths (mineral, etc.) at the
Kaiserbad (see above), EUsenbad, and Dianabad.

Rosenheim (1475 ft.), junction of the lines to Salzburg (R. 44a),

Miibldorf (R. 49), and Holzkirchen (p. 335), is a busy town of
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16,000 inhab, situated ou the left bank of the Imi, at its confluence

with the Mangfall. From the station we follow the Bahnhof-Str,

straight on, then turn to the right into the Miinchener Str., which
passes near the Royal Salt Works. "We then traverse the Max-
Joseph-Platz to (Y4 hr.) the Mitter-Tor, which contains a museum
of folk-lore (open free on Sun. 10-12 and Thurs. 1-3, Nor. -April

on Thurs. 10-12 also). To the right is the Ludwigs-Platz, on the

S. side of which stands the Parish Church, erected in the 15th

cent, but remodelled in 1881. Thence the Inn-Str. leads E. across

the Mangfall and the Inn to the {^j^ hr.) Schlossherg (restaurant),

commanding a pretty view.

From Munich to Rosenheim viA Holzkirchen, 46 M., railway in

21/2-^^/4 hrs. —To (221/2 M.) Holzkirchen, see pp. 328, 329.— The line curves
to the N.E. and descends the Teufels-Crrabeu, a dry ravine soon joined
by the Mangfall (p. 331). — 40 M. Bad Aibling '(1575 ft. ; Hot. Lud-
•\vlgsbad, good; Duschl, Sclinhhrau, Wittelshach, Johannishad, Theresien-
bad, Wilhelmsbad), with salt and mud baths. Electric railway in V2 hr.

(45 pf.) to (71/2 M.) Feihibach (1770 ft.; Hot. Bad Wendelsteln , Ober-
maier), at the N. base of the Wendelstein (see below ; 4 hrs.; easy path with
red marks). — On the right appears the Kaiser-Gebirge. — Beyond (43 M.)
Kolbermoor, with a large cotton-factory, the Gross-Venediger is visible

on the right. — 46 M. Rosenheim (p. 334).

The line turns S. and follows the left bank of the Inn. —
451/0 M. Baubling. Beyond the bridge lies Keuheuern , with a

Schloss of Baron von Wendelstadt (IY4 hr. up the valley is Niiss-

dorf, with a mineral spring).

48V2 M. Brannenburg (1550 ft. ; Bahnhof-Hotel). The village

(Hot. zum Schloss, Bad Wendelstein), with a Schloss, lies 20 min.

W. To Bayrisch-Zell, see pp. 334, 333.

Electric rack-and-pinion railway up the *"Wendel8tein (6025 ft.),

6 M. in IV4 hr. (maximum gradient 1 : 231/2! fare 5 or 31/2 ^ down 3 or 2,

there and back 6V2 or 41/2 ^^). Near tlio upper terminus (5670 ft.) is the
Balinhof-Hotel (larger hotel being built); thence 20 niin. to the summit,
which commands a superb panorama. Descent to Bayrisch-Zell or Birken-
stein, sec p. 333; to Feilnbach, sec above.

On the right, near (51 JNI.) Fischbach, is the castle of Falken-

sfein, with a restored tower, above which rises the pilgrimage-

church on tlie Petersberg (2780 ft.). — 56 M. Oberaudorfi I'^SO ft.

;

Hot. Briinnstein). To Bayrisch-Zell, see pp. 334, 333. — Beyond

(59 M.) Kiefersfelden, near the KOnig-Otto-Kapello, we cross the

Tyrolese frontier in the Klause, a narrow pass.

6IV0 M. Kufstein (1590 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; *Hot. Egger,

R. 2^/2-QK; *Auracher; Post, by the Inn; Gisela, at the station),

a town of 7000 inhab., frequented in summer and for winter-sports.

Above it rises the old fortress of Geroldsecl: (1990 ft.; adm. 30 h).

Fine views from the Kalvarioiberg, 20 min. from the station, and

the Tierberg (2455 ft.), 1 hr. N. To Bayrisch-Zell via Landl, see

p. 334. — Railway from Kufstein to (45^/0 M.) Innsbruck, see

Baedeker^s Eastern Alps or Austria.
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44. Prom Munich to Salzburg and
Reichenhall.
a. Via, Kosenheim.

To Salzburg, 95 M., express in 21/2 hrs. (14 .,^ 50, 9 ^ 40, b JC

80 pf.), ordinary train in 51/2 hrs. (12 .^50, 7 ^ 40 , 4. JC 80 pf.); to

Reichenhall, 100 M., express in 3V2 hrs. (15 .^, 9 c^ 70 pf., 6 ,S}, ordi-

nary train in 4-6V4 l^^'S- Best views to the right.

For fuller details, see Baedeker's Eastern Alps.

From Munich to (40Y2 ^I-) Rosenheim, see p. 334. The train

crosses the Inn, and beyond (44 M.) Stephanskirchen reaches^ the

pretty Sim-See (1540 ft.; 33/4 M. long). — 5OV2 M. Endorf
(1720 ft.; Hot. zur Post). Branch-line to (12 M.) OUng, 27, M. to

the N.W. of Seeon (p. 337). — 56 M. Prien (1745 ft.; Hot. Chiem-

see, at the station, E. 2-4 ^; Bayrischer Hof ; Kampenwand, 2 min.

from the station, on the local railway to Stock), a favourite summer
resort in the smiling Prien-Tal, 20 min. from the "W. bank of the

Chiem-See.
Branch-line from Prien through the richly wooded Prien-Tal, in 1/2 hr.,

to (6 M.) Nieder-Aschau (2020 ft. ; Hot. Kaiupenwand, Rest), a charmingly
situated summer resort. About 20 uiin. S. is Schloss Hohenaschatt,
partly rebuilt, belonging to the Cramer -Klett family (at the foot the
Hot. zur Burg).

Local railway from Prien in 8 min. to (1^/4 M. ; 20 rain.'s walk)

Stock (*Strand-Hotel & Chiemsee-Sanatorium, with baths, R. 4-6,

B. 1 c^ 20 pf., D. 4 c^; Scerose), the landing-place of the steamer

on the Chiem-See, which plies ten times daily in !«;ummer to (^ '4 hr.)

the Herren-Insel (return-ticket from Prien 2 t^ 40 or 1 ^{ 80 pf.)

and eight times daily to the (25 min.) Frauen-Insel.

The Chiem-See (1705 ft.), 7 M. long, l^'^M. broad, and

240 ft. deep, with low banks, is much exposed to storms. It con-

tains three islands, the Herren-Insel, the Frauen-Insel, and the

uninhabited Kraut-Insel. On the Frauen-Insel (22 acres; steamer

to Feldwies, see p. 337) are a large Benedictine convent (now a

girls' school), a fishing-village, and a good inn. On the Herren-
Insel (500 acres) rises the large —

*Schloss Herren-Chiemsee, built by Dollmann and Hoff-

mann for King Louis II. after the model of Versailles in 1878-85,

but not completed (open daily from May 10th to Oct. 18th, 9-5;

adm. 3 ^, Sun. 1 Yg ^^Z closed on June 13th). A visit takes 2 hrs.,

incl. the walk to and from the steamer. About 2 min. from the

pier is the Schloss-Hotel, with a terrace. Thence we proceed through

the grounds of the Old Palace, once a Benedictine monastery, and
then through a wood to (10 min.) the New Palace, built on three

sides of a square (open on the E.), with a W. front 115 yds. long.

The fountains are now without water.
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The Vestibule, adorned with a beautiful enamelled group of peacocks,

opens on a court, paved with marble, on the right side of which is the

Staircase, richly adorned with marble, stucco, and paintings. On the

first floor, to the right, are the Salle cles Gardes ('Hartschier-Saal'); Pre-
miere Antichambre (lilac); Salon de V CEil de Bceiif (green) , with an
equestrian statue of Louis XIV., by Perron; *C'hambre de Parade,
adorned with purple and gold and containing a lavishly gilded bed;
Salle du Conseil (light-blue); Galerie des Glaces, 245 -ft. long and illu-

minated with 35 lustres and 32 candelabra (2500 candles); and the Salles

de la Guerre and de la Paix, opening on the right and left of the

Galerie. In the N. wing are the royal Bedchamber, Study, and Sitting

Room, the Porcelain or Oval Room, the Dining Room, and the Small
Gallery. On the ground-floor are the Bath and Dressing Rooms.

The circular trip on the lake (four times daily in summer in

2^2 Ill's.) affords a complete view of the Alps from the Gaisberg

to the Wendelstein, Seebruck and Feldwies, see below.

63Vi) M. Uhersee. On the Chiem-See, 2 M. to the X., lies Feld-

wies., whence a steamer plies three times daily to the Frauen-Insel

(p. 336). Branch-line from Ubersee up the Achen-Tal to (5 M.)

Marquartstein (Hofwirt, good), at the foot of the Hochgern
(5720 ft.; view of the Tauern). — 69 M. Bergen, ^ 4 hr. S.E. of

which are the baths of Adelholzen.

731/2 ^I- Traunstein (1940 ft.; Hot. Traunsteiner Hof, Bahn-

hof- Hotel zur Krone, AVispauer, Post), a thriving summer resort

with 7700 inhab. on the Traun. It possesses monuments to King

Max II. and Prince-Regent Luitpold (1905), the Luitpold Fountain

(1894), the Liendl Fountain (1526), an historical museum, and salt-

works. Baths at the Kurhaus Traunstein and the Marienbad.
Branch-line S. up the Traun-Tal to (31/2^1-'' Siegsdoi'f (see below) and

(8 M., in 3/^ hr.) Ruhpolding (2265 ft.; Hot. Wittelsbach). — Another
branch-line runs N.E. to (8 M., in 40 min.) Waging (1525 ft.; Hot. zur

Post), a summer resort near the Waginger See.

From Traunstein to Garchijtg. 21 M., railway in 11/2-1^/4 hr- — Wc
descend the pretty Traun-Tal via (2 M.) the h&ths ot Empflna to (10 M.)

Stein (Briiuhaus), a pleasantly situated village with an old castle. —
11 M. Altenmarkt, at the confluence of the Traun and Alz, with the old

Augustinian monastery of Banmburg (interesting tombs). About IV2 lir.

S.W. is Seeon , with an old Benedictine monastery, the Romanesque
church of which contains noteworthy monuments, incl. that of Count
Palatine Aribo (1400). From Seeon we may walk S. to (1 hr.1 Seebruck
(Hot. zur Post, good), where the Alz leaves the Chiem-See. From Seeon
to Obing, see p. 336. — The line then descends along the Alz. — 13 M.
Trostberg (1590 ft. ; Hot. Alte Post, Grassl), a prettily situated town
of 2100 inhab., with a church of 1489. In the main street is a row of

late -Gothic houses (16th cent."). View of the Alps from the (V* hr.)

Siegerts-Hohe. — 191/2 M. Wiesmilhl an der Alz. — 21 M. Garching (p. 339).

From Traunstein to Reichenhall, 21V2M., bv road (motor-omn. to

Mauthiiusl 6 times daily in 1 hr. 20 min., IV2 t^)- — Railway to (31/2 M.)

Siegsdorf, see above. "Thence a tine road leads via (7 M.i Inzcll (2275 ft.

;

Hot. zur Post) and through the profound Weissbach-Tal to the (12 M.)

Maiithdusl. Thence past the Thum-Sce to (17'/., M.) Reichenhall, seep. 341.

We cross the Traun. On the S. rises the Teiseuberg; then the

Hochstaufen, Untersberg, and Watzmann. — On the right is the ruin
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of Raschenherg, 2/4 lir. W. of the summer resort of (84 M.) Teisen-

dorf (1650 ft. ; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Wieniuger, Post). — 9OV2 M.
Freilassing (1380 ft.; Hot. Foeckerer, Sclimiedhausl, both good;

Krone), a summer resort, junction of the lines S. to Reichenhall and

N. to Miihldorf (p. 339). Conip. the Map, p. 341. — AYe cross the

Saalach (the Austrian frontier). To the right is Schloss Klesheim,

to the left the church of Maria-Plain. The Salzach is then crossed.

95 M. Salzburg ('see Baedeker's Eastern Alps or Austria).

b. Via Miihldorf.

To Salzburg, 98 M., express in 2V2, ordinary train in 5 lirs. Fares
as by Route a.

Soon after leaving the Haupt-Bahnhof (p. 233) we diverge to

the left from the Holzkirchen line (R. 40) and skirt the city, leaving

the Theresien-Wiese and Bavaria (p. 300) on the left, to the (3 M.)

Sud-Bahnhof. We then cross the Isar to the (6 M.) Ost-Bahnhof,
where the Rosenheim line diverges on the left (p. 334). In the

distance, to the right, appear the Alps, with the "Wendelstein.

Farther on we traverse a flat district. — 191/0 M. Schwaben.
Branch-line to (8y2 M.) Erding (1515 ft.; Hot. Haggenmiller,

Post), a town of 3800 inhab. with a Grothic church, an old gate (the

Oster-Tor), and a museum. Omn. thence A'ia (9^2 M.) Wartenberg
(late-Grothic altar-piece in the Grottesacker-Kirche) to (15 M.) Moos-
burg (p. 232). — 30 M. Thann-Matzbach. Branch-line to (11 M.)

Haag (ruined castle with well-preserved keep) via {4^1^ M.) Isen,

with an old Benedictine church, built late in the 12th cent, and
afterwards remodelled. — 35 Vg M. Dorfen. Branch-line to (13 JVI.)

Velden, on the Grosse Vils. — At (47 M.) Ampfing Emperor
Louis the Bavarian defeated his rival Frederick of Austria aud took

him prisoner (1322;.

52 M. Miihldorf (1350 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Schwan, with

an arcaded court; Bahn-Hotel), an old town on the Ijin, with 4500 in-

hab., lies below the level of the line, from which its towers only

are visible.

From Muhldorf to Bgrghausen. I81/2 M., railway in I'/g hr.— 21/2 M.
Miihldorf-Ehring , 41/2 M. Tiisslimj, see p. 339.

—
' 8V2 M. Altotting

(1320 ft. ; Hot. zur Post), a famous pilgrim resort with 5-100 inhabitants.
In the market-place is the Heilige Kapelle, an early-Romanesque structure,
on the altar of which is a silver tabernacle containing a miraculous black
wooden image of the Virgin (early 14th cent.). The silver urns opposite
contain the hearts of nineteen Bavarian princes. The Stifts-Kirche, built
in 1228-45 and remodelled in 1499-1511, has three carved wooden doors
(1513-20) and contains the tomb of Tilly (p. 215). Among the numerous
valuables in the treasury is the *'Groldenes Rossel', an admirable piece
of French goldsmith's work with translucent enamel (ca. 1400). Steam-
tramway to Neuotting, see p. 345. — The train runs S.E. through the
Kastler Wald to (12 M.) Kastl and crosses the Alz to (131/2 M.) BurgTcirchen
and (151/2 M.) PiracJi. — At (171/2 M.) Raitenhaslach we reach the W. verge
of the deep Salzach- Tal. — I8V2 M. Burghausen (1275 ft; Hot. zur
Post), a quaint town with 3300 inhab., picturesquely situated on the
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Salzach. It is dominated by a ducal castle of the 13th-15tb cent., the

fortifications of which are over 2/3 M. long. The Schloss proper contains

a collection of antiquities and a royal picture-gallery. Charming view
from the platform. Boating and bathing in the neighbouring Wohr-See.

From Miihldorf to Rosenheim and to Flattling, see R. 49; to Simbach
and Liuz, see R. 46.

The train crosses the Inn to (54^2 M.) Muhldorf-Ehring, a

prettily situated village. — oG'/g M. Tussling, with a Schloss of

1583, junction for Burghaiisen (p. 338). — We now turn S. and

cross the Alz at (63 M.) Garching. Line to Trauustein, see p. 337.

Straight ahead appear the Alps (Untersberg, Hoher Goll, Hoch-

konig, Watzmann, Sonntagshorn). — 67^/2 M. Kirchweidach, with

a fine church of 1770-74. — Near (72 M.) Lanzing we traverse the

swampy Salinger-Moos. — 74^/2 M. Wiesmiihl.
Branch-line to (31/2 M.) the little town of TitUnoning (Hot. zur Posti.

the mediaeval walls of which are well preserved in part. The Allerheiligen-

Kirche contains a superb high-altar of 1686. In the conventual buildings

are three Roman mosaic pavements. The Schloss dates from the loth and
17th cent.; the Rathaus has a fagade of 1681.

86 Yo M. Laufen (1370 ft.), a town of 2500 inhab. on the Salzach.

The parish-church (ca. 1335) is the oldest Clothic church of its type

in S. Germany. The cloisters contain numerous tombs and epitaphs

of the 14th-i9th centuries. — At (94 M.) Freilassing (p. 338) our

line unites with that from Roseulieim. Thence to (98 M.) Salzburg.

see p. 338.

The Reichenhall Line (corap. the Map, p. 341) diverges S. at

Freilassing (p. 338) and ascends the left bank of the Saalach. On
the left rise the Gaisberg and Untersberg. — 97^ '2 M. (fi'om Munich)

Piding. On the right is Schloss Staufeneck.

100 M. Bad Reichenhall. — Hotels. *Kiirhaus A.vclman)i-

stein (PI. a; C, 3). with large garden and colonnades, open Mav-Oct..
R. .5-16, B. 1 ^ 40 pf., D. 5 JC ; *G-):-IIdt. Burkert (PI. b; C,'3), ad-

joining the Kur-Garten, R. 3-10. B. l'/2, D. 41/9 ^#; *Ghr.-Hdt. Panorama
(PI. c; C, 3). R. 31/2-10, B. IVo. D. 4 .«; ^Astoria (PI. d; A. 2), R. 2-5 .«;
*Deutscher Kaiser (PI. e; B, S). open May-Oct., R. 3-6 ^«, with garden-
restaurant and dependance Goldener Lowe (open in winter also), R. 2-3 c*;
*Luisenbad (PI. f; B, 3), R. 3-8, B. 1 .4 20 pf. ; Mirahell (PI. h; C, 2). R.
3-.T.,^." TivoU, above the Kur-Garten, with cafe -restaurant and garden;
LUienhad (PI. i; D, 1), at St. Zeno, R. S'/j-i -^; Post-Krone (PI. k: A, 4),

R. 2-4^; Habsbnrg (PI. 1; C, 2), near the station, R. 2V2-5.*,- Deutsches
Hans (PI. m ; B, 4\'R. from IV2 -^Z Hot- Bahnhof (PI. n ; C, 2^ ; Russischer
Hof (PI. 0; B, 4). — Restacrants. Knrhaiis; Luisenbad (see above\
D. 1 .* 70 and 2 c* 20 pf

.
; Thalfried (PI. B, 2), Bahhhof-Str. 13; TivoU

(see above).
YisiTORs' Tax (after the first week) 15 JiC. Music daily in the Kur-

Park, at the Axelmannsfein, and at Kirchberg. Theatre at the Kurhaus.

Bad Reichenhall (1540 ft.), with 6400 inhab., superbly sitnatod

in the broad Saalach-Tal, is surrounded by fine mountains, tbe

Untersberg (6470 ft.), Latten-Gebirge (5695 ft.), MiUlnerhorn
(4500 ft.), and Hochstaufen (5810 ft.). Reichenhall is resorted to

by patients suffering from general debility, chronic rheumatism.
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pulmouary affections, etc., who find relief in tlie mild and highly

ozonized air, as well as from the salt-baths, saline and pine-needle

inhalation, etc.

The chief rendezvous of visitors (16,000 annually) is the Kur-
Garte/i (PL B, C, 2, 3), with the Kurhaus, the evaporating -works,

and the covered promenade with the Trinkhalle. The monument to

Prince -Regent Luitpold is by F. von Miller (1912). To the S.W.

is the Protestant church (PI. B, 3), adjoined by a Bismarck fountain.

— In the Turner- Str. is the small Museum (PI. B, 4; open week-

days 9-12 and 2-5, Sun. 10-12 and 3-5; adm. 30 pf.), containing

prehistoric and mediaeval antiquities and a natural science collection.

Close by is the late-Grothic Agidien-Kirche (PI. B, 4). In the Wittels-

bacher-Platz are the Rathaus (PI. A, B, 4) and the Wittelsbacher-

Brunnen (1905).

In the Salinen-Str. are the large Salinen-Gehdude (PI. B, 4, 5),

or saltworks, consisting of the Haupt-Brunnhaus (pump house) and

Quellenbau (spring house), with four Sudhauser (boiling-houses) to

the right and left.

The Quellenbau (shown every half-hour from 9 to 12 and 3 to 6 ; fee

80 pf.) contains, at the bottom of a flight of 72 steps, three fresh-water
springs and sixteen salt springs, the two strongest of which (231/2 "/o) are

used for the production of salt (48 tons daily). The water of the weaker
springs is conducted to the evaporating-house (see above) and used for

inhaling. — On the second floor is a Chapel in the Byzantine style,

with stained-glass windows. In the court are two fountains, with statues

of SS. Virgilius and Eupert.

The Romanesque parish-church of St. Nikolaus (PL A, 5), built

in the 12th cent, and lately restored, is adorned with frescoes by

M. von Schwind.

The Luitpold-Briicke (PL A, 5) leads to the (10 min.) Kur-Hotel
Bad KircKberg (open May -Sept, good; R. 2-5 c^), with a shady

garden (station, see p. 341). — Turning to the left beyond the bridge,

we may descend to the right to the (10 min.) Restauration am
Schroffen (pretty view).

About 8 min. E. of the station lies St. Zeno (PL D, 1 ; Hofwirt,

with garden), formerly an Augustinian monastery founded by Arch-

bishop Conrad I. of Salzburg (d. 1147), suppressed in 1803, and

fitted up as a convent -school in 1853. The Romanesque Church,

dating from the 12th cent., was altered in the late-Gothic style in

1512-20. The interestingW. portal shows traces of Italian influence

(early 13th cent.). The early-Renaissance pulpit of red marble, the

carved wooden lid of the late-Grothic font, and the choir-stalls (1520

et seq.) are interesting. By one of the window pillars of the W.
walk of the Romanesque cloisters is a relief of Emperor Frederick

Barbarossa or Charlemagne. — The KQnigs-Weg begins behind the

convent and ascends to (V 2 lii'-) the Klosterhof (1135 ft.; rfmts.).

The direct walk back to the town takes 20 min.

About 20 min. E. of Reichenhall lies the viW'A Schone Aussicht
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(beyoud PI. D, 3; cafe), reached also by a cable-railway from the

Riiick-Str. iu 3 min. (30, down 20 pf.).

About 40 min. E. lies Grossgmain (1710 ft. ; Hot. zum Untersberg;
Eestaurant Kaiser Karl), a much frequented Austrian hamlet at the foot
of the Untersberg. Farther on is the (25 min.) ruined castle of Plain,
with a view-tower. About 10 min. S.W. of Grossgrnain, 25 min. from
Reichenhall, lies Bat/risch- G-main (see below). — Nonn (1590 ft.;
Hot. Fuchs; Restaurant Hohenstaufen), 1/2 hr. N.W. of Reichenhall, has
an old church with a fine winged altar of 1513. Thence we mav make the
attractive ascent of the (^/^ hrO Fadinger Alps (2170 ft.; rfmts.), with a
charming view. — About 21/2 hrs. "VV. of Reichenhall, beyond the Thum-
See (1730 ft.

;
good fishing), is the ^MautkiiKsl (2075 ft. ; inn), picturesquely

situated above the deep gorge of the Weissbach. Motor -omn. thence to
Traunstein, see p. 337. — About 4 hrs. N.W. of Reichenhall rises the
*Zwiesel (58io it.), the highest summit of the Staiifen- Gebirge, with "a

superb view.
From Reichenhall to Berchteagaden by railway, see below; by road

via the Schwarzbachwacht and Ramsau, see pp. 345, 344.

45. Prom Reichenhall to Berchtesgaden.
Konigs-See.

12 M. Railway in 1 hr. (1 ^S 90, 1 ^ 30, 90 pf.). Express trains from
Munich (via Rosenheim; 112 M., in 41/.2 hrs.) without change of carriage.
— Carriage from Reichenhall via Hallthurm to Berchtesgaden in 3 hrs.,

with one horse 13V21 'with two horses 22'/.> .S : via the Hinter-See and
Ramsau (p. 344) 141/2 or 21i;.^ .S. Gratuity li/o or 21/2 Ji.

Reichenhall (1545 ft.), see p. 339. The train passes (1 M.)

Reichenhall-Kirchherg (p. 340), and then ascends to the left into

the valley of the Weissbach (gradient 1 : 25). — 2 M. Gmain,
station for Bayrisch-Gmain (*Hot.-Pens. am Forst) and Gross-

gmain (see above). — We then cross the ravine of the AVeiss-

bach to (41/2 M.) Hallthurm (2330 ft. ; *Hot. Fuchs, R. from 2 JC),

a summer resort. — We next descend (1 : 50) through a wide green

valley (in front, to the right, the Hochkalter, to the left the SVatz-

mann) and skirt the Bischofsivieser Ache. — Beyoud (8^ ., M.)

Bischofsiviesen the line leads through the Tristram -Schlucht

(tuunel). — 11 M. Gmundbriicke.

12 M, Berchtesgaden. — Hotels. * Graiid-Botel d- KurTiaus,

open Mav-Sept., R. 4-15, B. IV2. D. 4-5 JC. — *BeUevue, R. 2V2-IO, B.

IV2, D- 31/2 -«; *Wittelsbach, R. 2-15, B. 1 .# 20 pf. ; *rrinzregent, R.
21/4-5 .^; *Post zii.m Leuthaus, R. 2-5, B. 1 J^;*Vicr Jahreszeiten, R. 2-6,

B. 1 c# 20 pf. ; *Deutsches Bans. R. 3-6 JC; Hot. Bahnhof. R. 2i/.> JC,

good; Schicabenwirt, near the station, R. li/o-2.,«,- Hot. -Fens. Eldorado,
R. li/._.-3 J^; Watzmann; Stifts-KtUer, R. 2V2-"5 c«, good, Krone. R. 2-4 c«,

well spoken of, Bayrischer Hof, *Bavaria, all four in the Bahnhof-Str.

;

Neuhaus; Bar : Hirsch ; Triembacher. —Cafes. Forstner; Gixissl. Maxi-
milian-Str., with view: Wenig, near the Rathaus. — Munich Beer at

For8tner''s and the Vier Jahreszeiten.
Visitors' Tax 25 pf. daily, for a family 50. for more than 4 pers.

75 pf. (maximum 5, 10, and 15 J^). — Batus. Wilhelmsbad, Giselabad,
Maximilian-Str. ; at the Aschauer Weiher. 40 min. N."W.

Carved Wares, for which Berchtesgaden is famous, are kept by S.

and P. Zechmeister, Kasercr, Walch <& Siifine. Wenig, and Grassl.
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Carriages. Within the town-limits per V* hr, 70 pf., with two horses
lJi20 pf. ; each i/i hr. more 50 pf. or 1 JC. To the Konigs-See and back,
with stay of 3 hrs., 8 Jl, with two horses 12 JC (each hr. more IJC or IJC
70 pf.); to Ramsau and back 13 or 20 JC; to the Hinter-See 10 or 16 c^,

there and back 13 or 22 JC; to Reichenhall via Schwarzbachwacht 15 or 23 JC,

with return via Hallthurm 18 or 27 JC. Gratuities included, but tolls extra.

Electric Railway to the Konigs-See, see below; local railway to

Salzburg, see p. 345. — Motor Omnibus to the (8V2 M.) Hinter-See (Hot.

Post) 10 times dailv in summer in 65 min., or by express in 40 min.
(1 JC bO ox 2 JC 30 pf. ; to Ilsank 50, Wimbach-Klamm 80, Ramsau 90 pf.).

English Church Service in summer.

Berchtesgaden (1865 ft.), with 2900 inbab., is a cbarmingly

situated summer resort, visited also for wiuter-sports. Down to

1803 it was tbe seat of a small ecclesiastical priucipality (founded

in 1108). Tbe bandsome old abbey is now a royal Schloss. Tbe
Stifts-Kirche bas a Romanesque W. end and an elegant Gotbic

cboir dating from after 1283; tbe nave was remodelled at tbe end

of tbe 15tb cent, and tbe towers were renewed in 1865. Tbe cboir-

stalls are Gotbic; tbe sacristy contains a Romanesque boly-water

basin adorned witb reliefs; in tbe late-Romanesque cloisters are in-

teresting tombstones. In tbe centre of tbe village is tbe Post-Parl',

witb a reading-room (relief-map of tbe Bercbtesgaden district). Tbe
Luifpoldhain, in front of tbe Royal Villa to tbe S. of tbe town,

contains a bronze statue of Prince-Regent Luitpold, by F. von Miller

(1893). Fine view: to tbe left tbe Scbwarzort, Hober Goll, Hobes
Brett, and Jenner; in tbe background tbe Stubl-Gebirge and ScbOn-

feldspitze; to tbe rigbt tbe Watzmann and Hocbkalter. N"ear tbe

station are tbe Royal Salt Works. Tbe Schnitzer-Museum contains

furniture and carvings (open 8-1 ajid 2.30-7 ; 30 pf.) and an historical

collection (30 pf.).

The Salt Mine (1730 ft.) is reached from the market-place in 20 min.
by descending the Bergwerks-Str. to the Breitwiesen-Briicke across the
Ache, and then following the right bank (local railway in fi min., see

p. 345). The visit to the mine takes I-IV4 hr. Visitors are admitted
daily from May 1st to Oct. 15th, 8.30-11.30 and 2.30-5.30 (2 JC each).
Parties up to 12 pers. are admitted at any time from 7 to 6 for an extra
payment of 3 JC. The mine is lighted by electricity. The temperature
is low (54° Fahr.), so that warm clothing should "be worn. The most
interesting parts of the visit are the trip across the 'Salz-See' and the
toboggan-slide into the deserted works of the Kaiser Franz mine. It

ends with the 'Apotheosis of Salt Mining'. — Visitors may return by
the (5 min.) Golleubach bridge, whence the Salzburg road ascends through
the straggling suburb of Xonntal to (20 min.) Berchtesgaden.

The *Lockstei.7i (2240 ft. ; 1/2 ln'- ; rfmts.) commands an admirable
view, especially by evening-light. We turn to the right by the abbey-
church and ascend the Doktorberg; short of (10 min.) the former hospital
we turn to the right, again keeping to the right beyond the 'Weinfeld-
lehen', and proceeding through woods. — About 3/^ hr. S. of Berchtes-
gaden, on the Schonau, an undulating plateau between the Konigsseer
Ache and Ramsauer Ache, is the Hot. -Pens. Panorama (2065 ft.), with
a caf^-restaurant and a fine view.

Tbe Electric Railway to the Konigs-See (20 times daily in

16 min.; 50 or 80 pf.) starts about 2 rain, from the state railway
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station. It leads on the left, then on the right bank of the KOnigs-

seer Ache via (2 M.) Unterstein (see below) to (3 M.) KOnigssee.
The Road (I1/4 hr. ; carr., see p. 342), starting from the station,

flosses the Ache by the Adelgunden-Brilcke, then skirts the Wemholr..
After 20 niin. it forks. The branch to the left continues on the sanae level,

that to the right crosses the SchuSb-BrucJce and leads via Unterstein (inn),

with an estate of Count Arco. The two roads reunite 8 min. from the lake.

The clear, dark-green **K6nigs-See or St.Bartholomaus-See
(1975 ft.), 5 M. long, Vs^^^U ^^- broad, and 630 ft. deep in places,

is the gem of the Berchtesgaden district and one of the most beau-

tiful lakes in the Alps. Some of the surrounding mountains, which

rise almost perpendicularly from the water, are 6500 ft. in height

above the lake. At the N. end lies the village of Konigssee (Hot.

Schiffmeister, R. 2-5 ^ ; Grosswang; Altes See-Wirtshaus, plain).

Motor-boats ply 13 times daily to the Sallet-Alp in 50 min. (there

and back 2 ^^ 60 pf.). — Rowing-boats (preferable; IV2 hr. to the Sallet-

Alp) are obtained from the 'Schiffmeister'. For 1-4 pers., with two
rowers, to St. Bartholoma 41/2, to the Sallet-Alp I'^j^JC; for 5-7 pers.,

with three rowers, 71/2 and 12 Ji. Gratuity extra.

To the left as the boat leaves the village, on a promontory,

is the Villa Beiist; in the lake lies the islet of Christlieger, with

a statue of St. John Nepomuk. "We pass the Falkenstein (on the

right), a rock with a cross commemorating the wreck of a boat

with a party of pilgrims in 1742. The lake now becomes visible

in its entire extent; in the background rise the SagerecJcivatid, the

Griinsee-Tauern, and the Funtensee-Tauern (8460 ft.), and ad-

joining them on the right the Schonfeldspitze (8700 ft.). On the

E. bank the Konigshach falls over a red cliff (2625 ft.) into the

lake. A little farther on, at the deepest part of the lake, a re-

verberating echo is awakened by a pistol fired in the direction of

the Brentemcand (50 pf.). In the vicinity, on the E. bank, not far

from the Kessel, is a cavern on a level with the water, called the

Kiichler Loch, from which a streamlet enters the lake. From the

Kessel (see below), near a promontory on the E. bank, a path

ascends to the (10 min.) Kessel-Fall. The boat proceeds S.W. to

St. Bartholoma, a green promontory with a chapel and a shoot-

ing-lodge (inn; salmon-trout). On the S.W. bank the Schrainbach
falls into the lake from a rocky gorge. The boat lands at the Sallet-

Alp, an isthmus formed by a landslide, separating the Konigs-See

from the (10 min.) Ober-See. Close by is a villa of the Duke of

Meiningen.
From the Kessel (see above) a marked bridle-path ascends to tlie

(31/2 hrs.) *Gotzenalm (5530 ft. ; rfmts. at the Spriiu/clkaser). Superb
view, especially from the Warteck (5710 ft.), 10 min. N.W. "We return
in 2 hrs. to the Kessel, where the boat should be ordered to be in waiting
for the return-journey (6-7 hrs. later).

Road from Konigssee via SchSiiaii to IJsank (p. 344), IV2 hr-

The lonely *Ober-See (2010 ft.), IV4 M. long, is enclosed on

three sides by lofty precipices. To the left rises the sheer Tal-
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wand; beyond it tower the Teufelshorney^ (7745 ft.), from which

a brook descends over the Rotwand from a height of 1600 ft. —
Fine view of the Watzmann on the return to the landing-place.

From Berchtesgadex through the Ramsau to Reichenhall,

17 M. (7 hrs.; preferable to the road via Hallthurm, p. 341; carr.,

see p. 342). From the station the road follows the left bank of the

Ache to (2/3 M.) Gmundhrilcke (p. 341), where we cross the Bischofs-

w^ieser Ache and ascend the narrow wooded valley of the Ramsauer
Ache. — 2V2 M. Esank (1910 ft.; Hot. Watzmann, R. I-I1/2 ^)-
About 5 min. farther is the Brunnhaus Ilsank, with a pumping
machine by which the salt-water from the mines is forced up to the

Soldenkopfl, 1245 ft. higher, whence it is conveyed by pipes to

Reichenhall, a distance of 18^ 2 ^I- The road now runs along the

left bank of the foaming Ache through the gorge of the Kniepass.

To the left we have a grand view of the Watzmann; before us rises

the broad Steinberg. On the left is (41/2 M.) a finger-post pointing

to the Wimbach-Klamm and Jagdschloss.

A path crossing the bridge (restaurant) to the left, and ascending to

the right by the 'Trinkhalle', leads to the ('/i hr.) *'Wiinbach-Klamm,
which is about V3 M. in length. The bluish-white water forms beautiful

falls in its narrow ravine, into which brooks descend on all sides. About
10 min. from the upper end of the ravine a view is disclosed of the

romantic Wimbach-Tal.
The ascent of the *^Watzmann (8900 ft. ; 6 hrs. from Ilsank to the

Hocheck; guide unnecessary) is not difficult. The route leads via the

(4 hrs.) Watzmann-Haus on the Falzkopfl (6330 ft.; bed bcS), which may
be reached also by a red-marked path from Konigssee (p. 343) in 51/2 hrs.

We go on to the (2 hrs.) Hocheck (8705 ft.). Thence to the Central Peak
(8900 ft.) V2tir., for those free from giddiness only; the passage across

the arete to the (IV4 hr.) ,S'. Peak or SchUnfeldspitze (8900 ft.) is for

experts only, with guide.

On the road, 12 min. from the finger-post, is the Hotel Wim-
hachklamm, and 8 min. farther on is the Hotel zum Hochkalter.

Then (1/4 hr.; 51/2 M.) Ramsau (2190 ft.; Oberes Gasthaus). About

^/^ hr. farther on the road divides. The Oberweissbach road (left)

crosses the Ache and at {^1^ hr.) the Hinterseeklause reaches the

Hinter-See (2590 ft.), about ^/^ M. long, where we summon the

ferryman by ringing the bell (ferry 10 pf.). About ^4 tir. farther

on are the forester's house of Hintersee and the Bavarian custom-

house, opposite Auzinger^s Hotel.
The road goes on hence via the (2 hrs.) Hirschbiihel (3785 ft. ; inn),

with the Austrian custom-house, and crosses the pass (3760 ft.); it then
descends past the *Seisenherg-Klamm to (2 hrs.) Obei'iveissbach (2140 ft.

;

Hot. Auvogl), on the road from Lofer to (4 hrs.) Saalfelden. Comp.
Baedeker^s Eastern Alps.

The Reichenhall road ascends straight on (right) from the bifur-

cation, past the small TaubenSee, to the (^/^ hr.) Schwarzbach-
waeht (2905 ft.), a pump-house on the summit of the pass. About

5 min. farther on is the Wirtshaus zur Schwat'zbachwacht (plain).
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The road then descends into the deep Schwarzbach-Tal. After

1 hr, 20 min, we pass the Jettenherg pump -house (rfmts.). We
cross the Schwarzbach, which forms the fine Stauh-Fall. The road

then skirts the right bank of the Saalach to {V^ hr.) Beichen-
hall (p. 339).

From Berchtesgaden to Salzburg, 17 M., local railway in summer
in 1-11/2 hr. (2 ^ 30 or 1 .^ 25 pf.). — The line descends the left bank
of the Ache via (IV4 M.) Bergwerk, opposite the salt-mine (p. 342). —
it then crosses the Ache to (3 M.) Au and (4 M.) Almbachklamm (restau-
rant), to the W. of which opens the *Almbach- Klamm, a picturesque
gorge (adm. 80 pf. ; to the TheresienJclause IV4 hr.). — We cross the
Ache twice and reach (6 M.) Schellenberg (1570 ft. ; Hot. Forelle,
Untersberg), the last Bavarian station. Thence to (17 M.) Salzburg,
see BaedeJcer''s Eastei'n Alps.

46. Prom Munich via Simbach to Linz.
148 M. Railway in 8-10 hrs. (11 ^ 20, 6 ^ 80 pf.).

From Munich to (52 M.) Milhldorf, see R. 44b. — 60^ 2 ^- ^€a-
otting. The little town (Hot. zur Post), with 3200 inhab., lies Y2 ^i'-

S., on the right bank of the Inn. The Gothic parish -church of

St. Mkolaus, begun in 1410 by Hans Stethaimer, was not com-
pleted until the 17th century. Steam -tramway from the station

through the town to (3 M.) Altotting (p. 338). — The line approaches
the Inn; to the left are wooded hills. — 64 M. Per«r7?, prettily

situated on the hill to the left. A long embankment skirting the river

is next traversed. — Near (6872 '^'^•) Marktl the mountains recede

on the left, and the train quits the Inn, into which the Salzach falls

3 M. to the S. — 76V2M. Simbach (1130 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot.

Traube; pop. 4300), the last Bavarian station (luggage examined).

Brancb-line via (I4V2 M.) Rotthalmilnster (1180 ft.; motor-omn. to

Karpfham, see p. 355) to (18 M.) Kosslarri.

The Inn is then crossed. — 78 ^ 2 ^^- Braunau am Inn
(1155 ft.; Hot. Post, Fink), au old-fashioned town with 4100 in-

habitants. The late -Gothic Stephans-Kirche, begun in 1439 (in-

terior modernized in bad taste), has a tower 260 ft. high. In the

Promenaden-Platz, near the Gothic Spital-Kirche, rises a bronze
statue (1866), designed by Knoll, of Johann Palm (p. 175), who is

buried at Braunau. Local museum. Thence via (lOO^'g M.) Ried
to (148 M.) Linz, see Baedeker's Ausfria.

47. Prom Nuremberg to Furth (Prague).
100 M. Railway in 3i/o-53/t hrs. ; express to (221«;2 ^i..) Prague in 7 hrs.

;

Austrian custom-house examination at Furth.

Nuremberg, see p. 163. The line ascends the left bank of the
Pegnitz (on the right bank runs the line to Eger, R. 26). — 2^2 M,
NUrnherg-Mogeldorf (^e^iiiwxmizwx Ostbahu). About 1/^ hr. from
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the station is the Schmausenbuck (p. 188). — On the right, beyond

(TYa '^^) Rothenhach, rises the conspicuous Moritzherg (1960 ft.;

view- tower), ascended by a shady path in l^/^ hr., via Rocken-
hrunn. — IO1/2 M. Lauf, left bank station (comp. p. 190; Ortel's

Restaurant, at the station). — 15 Y2 ^- Henfeiifeld, with a small

Schloss. — 17^2 ^Jf- Hersbruck, on the left bank of the Pegnitz.

This station is 12 min. from the town, and ^l^^r. from the station

(p. 190) on the right bank of the Pegnitz, which lies to the N.W.
of the town.

We leave the Pegnitz -Tal, which here turns N., and continue

E. through a hilly district. — 20 M. Pommelsbrimn (1170 ft.;

Hot. Schone Aussicht, at the station, R. l^j^ ^ ; Paulus, Vogel), a

frequented summer resort, beautifully situated at the N. base of

the Hohbilrg (2035 ft.). — 26 V2 M. Etzelwang. To the N.E. lie

Schloss Rupprechtstein , now a hotel, and the well-preserved

/Schloss Neidstein.

28 M. Neukirchen (1475 ft.; rail, restaurant), on the watershed

between the Main and Danube.
A road leads N., passing Schloss Holnstehi , to the (1 hr.) Stein-

hach-Eohle, with fine stalactites (guide at the entrance).

From Neukirchen to "Weiden, 321/2 M., railway in 13/4 hr. — 121/2M.
Vilseck (1325 ft. ; hotel), an old town on the Vils, with an interesting
late-Romanesque chapel beneath the keep of the Schloss. — Near (26 M.)
Weiherhammer we cross the Haidenaab. — 321/2 M. Weiden (p. 229).

34 M. Sidzhach (1305 ft.; Hot. Goldene Krone, R. 1-1 V2 ^/
pop. 5500), with an old Schloss of the Dukes Palatine of Keubiirg-

Sulzbach, now a penitentiary. — 36 M. Rosenberg (1280 ft.), with

the blast-furnaces and rolling-mill of the Maxhiitte. To the right

is the Erzberg, with its iron-mines and blast-furnaces.

41 Va M. Amberg (1260 ft.; Hot. Pfalzer Hof, Mayerhofer, both

at the station; Lowe, Georgen-Str.), a town of 25,200 inhab. on

both banks of the Vils, with busy factories (small arms, enamelled

iron-ware), has a well-preserved wall and moat, and is encircled by
fine avenues. The old gates, especially the Nabburger Tor, are

picturesque. The Prinzregenten-Str. leads direct from the station

to (5 min.) the market-place, to the right in which stands the Rat-

haus, of the late 15th cent., with a balcony of 1552. The small

council-chamber has panelling and a wooden ceiling in the Renais-

sance style. On the S. side of the market-place is the late-Gothic

parish-church of >S'^. Martin, begun in 1421, with a tower 320 ft,

high. Behind the high-altar is the tomb of Count Palatine Rupert

(d. 1390). The Georgen-Str. leads "W. to (6 min.) the large Jesuit

College, now occupied by a boys' school, a seminary, and a brewery.

On the Mainahilfherg (1620 ft.), 72 ^^- ^- of t^e station, is a

pilgrimage-church commanding an extensive view (inn).

Branch-line S. through the Yils valley to (15 M.) Schmidmt'lhlen, via
(ili/.^ M.' T!)7sdorf, with a Benedictine church containing frescoes and
stucco work by the brothers Asam (1714) and a fine sacris r+y (1743).
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46 M. Hiltersdorf. On the right lies the Haidweiher, a lake

1 M. long. — 55' 2 ^^- In-enlohe (rail, restaurant), where we join

the Hof line (p. 229). — We cross the Naab.
58'/2 M. Schwandorf (p. 229), junction of the line from Hof

to Ratisbon (R. 32). — We now traverse woods and pass several

large ponds. — 71 M. Bodenivohr.
Bianch-liue N. to (7 M.) Neimburg vorin Wald (1245 ft. ; Hot. Post,

Posthorn) , a pretty summer resort of 2300 inhab. on the Schtvarzach.
The parish-church (15th cent., disfigured later) contains a Crucifixion of

the late 15th cent, on the high -altar and a latc-Grothic Madonna of ca.

1500 on the N". altar. The St. Jakobs-Kirche is Romanesque (ca. 1100). On
the Kalvarienberg is a Mount of Olives (16th cent.).

81 M. Boding, V/^ M. to the S. — We now ascend the valley

of the Regen.

88 M. Cham (1225 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. Alte Post, good;

Grress), with 4600 inhab., on the K margin of the Bayrischer Wald
(p. 358), is the old capital of the Chamberich. It was largely re-

built after the fires of 1873 and 1877. Several late-Gothic build-

ings have been preserved, including the Rathaus; adjoining it is

the. parish-church, with rococo decoration.
Good views from the (20 min.) Kalvarienberg and (more extensive)

from the (1/2 hr.) Lidtpold - Hohe (1675 ft.; view-tower). — The church
of Chammtinster , 1/2 hi"- E. of the town, is a 15th cent, building on
early-Gothic foundations. About 1/4 hr. farther on is the Odenturin, a

relic of the castle of C'hameregg. Thence we may ascend the Lamberg
(1975 ft.; view), 1/2 li^- S.E.; descent to (V2 hr-) Chameraic (p. 359) or
back to (1 hr.) Cham by a red-marked path.

Branch-line N. from Cham to (131/2 M.) Waldmilnchen (1600 ft. ; Hot.
y.nv Post), with 2900 inhab., 2 hrs. E. of which (red and blue way-marks)
is the Schwarzkoppe (p. 348).

From Cham to Straubing, see p. 349 ; to Lara, see p. 359.

We now ascend the deep Chamh-Tal. Comp. the Map. p. 359.

— 97 M. Arnschtvang (1275 ft.; Mtihlbauer's Brauhaus), with a

ruined water-tower.
To the S.E. rises the finely shaped Hoher Bogen (highest point

the Schivarziiegel, 3515 ft.). AVc ascend from Arnschwang (wav-marks
red, white, and red) to the (2 hrs.) Dienst-HUtte (2955 ft. ; rfmts. ;

"6 beds)*
which is reached from Furth (see below; way-marks white, red, and
wliite) in 3 hrs. via the WutzmRhle (inn), Grasmannsdorf, Grnh, and
Madersdorf, where we take the forest-road to the left past the Tenfels-
baner. From the Dienst-Hiitte we ascend in 1/2 hr. to the Burgstall
(3205 ft.), the W. summit of the Hoher Bogen, which commands a fine

survey of the Regcn valley and of a great part of Bohemia and the Upper
Palatinate. From tlie Dienst-Hiitte we proceed via the Teufelsbauer (see

above) to (50 min.) the hamlet of Lichtcneck, where we obtain the key
of the (1/4 hr.) ruin of that name (2320 ft.), the keep of which commands
a good view. Descent from the village to (l^/^ hr.) Kotzting (p. 359). —
From the Dienst-Hiitte we may descend either S. to (1 hr.) Watzelsteg
(p. 359), or E. to (IV2 hr. ; red way -marks) Xciikirchen beim Heiligeii
Bint (p. 348); or we may follow the ridge to the (IV2 hr. ; red way-
marks) Sautrift, proceed thence via HdUhohe to Kolmstein (view), and
follow the road to (21/2 hrs.) Lam (p. 359).

100 M. Furth (1335 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hotel zum Hohrn-
bogcn, at the station, R. IV2-2V2 ^^^ l^ost, in the town, R. 1-1^ 2 ^//T?

Baedeker's S. Germany, 12th Edit, 22
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botli good; "Waschinger, Scherbauer), a town of 6000 inhab. with

a ruined castle. On the second Sun. in August the popular festival

of the 'Drachenstich' is held here.

Fine views from the Apfl^tkv.ppe (Hot. Maximilianshohe) , V4 br.

iST.W. of Furth, and from VoWienherg (restaurant), sy^ hr. farther on
(white -marked forest -path). — Another marked path (red cross) leads
T^. from Furth via Bohmisch-Brunnen to (3 hrs.) the top of the Schicarz-
Tcoppe (Bohemian Czerkoic : 3410 ft.), with a view-tower and a shelter-

hut of the Bohemian Forest Cluh. We may descend "W. to Waldmiinchoi
(p. 347) in 13/^ hr. — From Furth to the "Hoher Bogen, see p. 347.

From Furth an omn. runs daily in 4 hrs. to (141/2 M.) La7n (p. 359).

The road leads via (31/2 ^I-) Eschlkam (1585 ft. : Hot. Xeumaier), a pret-

tily situated village, and (8 M.) Neulcirchen beim Heiligen Blut (1610 ft.

;

Hot. zur Post), at the iST.E. base of the Hoher Bogen, with a pilgrimage-
church. From Xeukirchen to (la/^ hr.) the Dienst-Eutte, see p. 347; to

(3 hrs.) the Osser, see p. 360.

From Furth to Prague, see Baedeker's Austria.

48. Prom Ratisbon to Passau.
731/2 M. Railway in 13/^-31/2 hrs. — Comp. the Map, p. 359.

From Ratisbon to (5 M.) Ohertrauhling, see p. 229. — 15^2 ^•

Sunching. We cross the Gh'osse Laher. — 19 V, ^I- Radldorf,
junction for Xeufahrn (p. 230). The Kleine Laher is crossed.

251/2 ^- Straubing (1070 ft.; Rail. Restaurant; Hot. N'eu-

niayer; ROhrl, R. 2-3 JC, B. 80 pf. ; wine at Hochgrassl's; Cafe

Liist), an ancient town of 22,000 inhab. on the right bank of the

Danube, lies in a broad, fertile plain, the granary of Bavaria.

Straubing contains numerous houses with crow -stepped gables.

Turning to the left from the station and then to the right, we follow

the Eisenbahn-Str. and the Steiner-Gasse to the (10 min.) Gothic

Stadt-Turm (225 ft.), with its four corner-turrets, begun in 1316.

Behind, to the X., is the Gothic Rathaus (14th cent.). To the right

is the Ludwigs-Platz, with baroque and rococo houses and a foun-

^tain of 1644; to the left lies the Theresien-Platz , with a similar

fountain and a Trinity column erected in 1709, Thence we proceed

N. to the St. Jakobs-Kirche, a large late-Gothic church with an

ambulatory and radiating chapels, begun ca. 1430 by Hans Stet-

haimer (?) and completed in 1512. It contains a fine carved altar of

ca. 1500 and stained glass of 1442 and 1503.

The Fraunhofer-Str., ISTo. 305 in which is the Historical Mu-
seum (20 pf.), and the Flirsten-Gasse lead N. from the Ludwigs-

Platz to the Gothic Schloss (barracks down to 1906). On the S.

side is a relief-portrait of Fraunhofer (b. 1787 in Straubing). The

Schloss was once occupied by Duke Albert III. with his wife Agnes

Bernauer (p. 196), whose father-in-law Duke Ernest, exasperated

by his son's mesalliance, caused her to be condemned to death for

witchcraft and thrown into the Danube (1435). The bridge com-

mands a view of the towers of the church of St. Peter. 10 min, E.,
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in the cemetery on the lofty bank of the Danube, a Romanesque
basilica (12th cent.; modernized in the interior) on the site of the

Roman Serviodurum. Adjacent is a mortuary chapel with an 18th

cent, 'Dance of Death'. The cemetery contains also the Agnes-Ber-
nauer-Kapelle (1436), with the tombstone of Agnes Bernauer (of

later date; her burial-place unknown).

From the Schloss-Platz the Burg-Gasse leads back to the Lud-
wigs-Platz. To the right in it is the Gothic Karmeliter - Kirche,
completed in 1430 by Stethaimer; the choir contains the fine mon-
ument of Duke Albert II. (d. 1397).

From Stracbing to Cham, 40 M., railway in 23/^ hrs. The line
leads N.E. across the Danube to (6 M.) Boyen (1050 ft.; Hot. Post,
Farber), a pleasant village at the foot of tlie Bogenberg (1415 ft. ; view),
once the seat of the powerful Counts of Bogen , with a Gothic pilgrim-
age-church. — The line enters the Baijrischer Wald (p. 858). — 21 M.
Konzell (1465 ft.). The village (1935 'ft. ; Hot. Ettl, Dietl) is pictur-
esquely situated 3/^ hr. N'. of the station. Extensive views from the Gall-
mrherg (2295 ft.), IV2 hr. S.W., and from the Zeller Hohe (2790 ft.), 1 hr.

E., whence we may go on via Prackenhach to (2i/^ hrs.) Viechtach (p. 357'.

— 231/0 M. Streifenau, with a Schloss of the Counts of Bogen. — 301/.2 M.
Miltach. Thence to (40 M.) Cham, see p. 359.

Branch-line from Straubing S.W. to (221/2 M.) Neufahrn (p. 230).

33 M. StrassJcirchen, 4\4 M. to the S.W. of which (omn. twice

daily) are the mineral baths oi Miinch slidfen. — ^l^j^^i. Stephans-
posching. To the N.E. rises the Natternberg (p. 355). — 40^/, M.
Plattling (1055 ft.: Rail. Restaurant; Hot. zur Post), an old town
of 5100 inhab. on the /sar, junction for Mllhldorf and Eisenstein

(p. 355). The Gothic St. Jakobs-Kirche has a Romanesque nave, a

relic of the original church.

The Isar is crossed. — 50 \ .2 M. Osterhofen, with a Premon-
stratensian church rebuilt ca. 1740 and decorated by the brothers

Asam. — 53^2 ^^- Girching. A little K are the iodine baths of

Kiinzing (Kur-Hotel), the Roman Quintains. — 56 M. Pleinting.

The line nears the Danube and follows it to Passau. On the left

bank is the well-preserved ruin of Hilgartsherg.

591/2 M. Vilshofen (1025 ft.; Hot. Bayrischer Hof, Ochse:

pop. 3700), the Roman Castra Quinfana, lies at the confluence of

the Vils and Danube. Branch-lines S. to (7 M.) Orfenburg ; S.W.
to (8 M.) Aidenbach via (6 M.) Aldersbach, with a Cistercian church

in the baroque style, decorated under French influence by the

brothers Asam. — 64 M. Sandbach. On a rock to the left, farther

on, is a recumbent lion erected.to the memory of King Maximilian I..

the founder of the road, which from here to Passau is at many
places hewn in the rock.

70 M. Heining. The towers of Passau, the fortress of Oberhaus.
and the charming environs of the town now come into view. —
7372^- Passau (Austrian and Bavarian custom-house revision;

rail, restaurant).
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Passau.
Hotels. Bayrischer Hof (PI. a; C, 3), Ludwig-Str., R. from 2, B. 1,

D. 2-3 Ji, omQ. 60 pf. ; Passaner Wolf (PI. h ; B, 3), Bahnhof-Str.. R. 2-3 .«,

B. 80 pf., D. lt^40pf., good; Zur Eisenbahn (PI. d; A, 3), Bahnhof-Str.;
aoldene Somie (PI. c; C, 3), Unterer Sand; Weisser Hase (PI. g; B, 3),

Schwarzei' Ochsc (PI. f; B, 3), R. 1-11/2-^. both in the Ludwig-Str.

Wine Rooms. Rathaus-Keller, at the Rathaus (p. 351), D. 1V2<-^) well
spoken of; 3ruhlbatier, Ludwig-Str. (PI. C. 3); Heiliggeist-Stiftsschsnke

(p. 351). — Cafes - Restaurants. Theater - Restaurant , Bismarck - Str.

(PI. C, 3); Stadt Wien, Cafe Wittelsbach, both in the Ludwigs -Platz

(PI. B, 3). — Beer Restaurants. Milhldorfer, Schuster-G-asse. near the

Residenz-Platz (PI. D, E, 3); Stockbauer - Garten (PI. E, 2, 3),
' near the

steamer-pier, with view of the Danube; Pesch-Keller{V\. A, 3). SchmeroM-
Keller, Hell Keller (PL A, 4), all bevond the drill-ground; Inn stadt-Keller
(PI. E,'4), in the Innstadt.

Post & Telegraph Offices at the station (PI. A, 3 ;
poste restante)

and in the Dom-Platz (PI. D, 3). — Motor Omnibus from the station
thrice daily in 21/2 hrs. via Tittling to (24 M.) Schonberg (p. 363 ; 1 ..«

00 pf.); also thrice dailv in li,'., hr. via Hutthurm to (12 M.) Biichlberg

(p. 365; 85 pf.).

Baths. Stddtische Badeanstalt (warm baths), Heilige-Creist-Gasse
'PI. B, C, 3); river-baths in the Danube (PL B, 2) and in the Ilz (PL F, 2

;

warmer).
Chief Sights (1/2 day) : Cathedral, Mariahilf-Kirehe, Rathaus, Oberhaus.

Passau (995 ft.), a Bavarian town and episcopal see with 21,000
inhab., lies mainly on a rocky tongue of land formed by the con-

tinence of the Inn (315 yds. wide) with the Danube (only 260 yds.

wide), which is here joined also on theN". by the Ilz. Numerous houses

dating from after the fires of 1662 and 1680, on the banks of the

rivers, especially on the Inn, give the town an imposing appearance.

Xearly all the churches were restored between 1840 and 1870. The
picturesque situation of Passau and the variety of views commanded
by the neighbouring heights will amply repay a short visit,

Passau originated in the Celtic settlement of Boioduriim, the site of
which is now occupied by the Innstadt (p. 352). Where the cathedral now
stands, the Romans erected ca. 250 A.D. a fortified camp, called Castra
Batavia or Batavis after its garrison, the 9th Batavian cohort. The portion
of the town-walls known as the 'Romer-Wehr' (PL C, 3) is is reality a relic

of the mediaeval fortifications. The importance of the town increased after

the foundation of the bishopric by St. Boniface in 731. Bishop Pilgrim
(970-991) is mentioned in the 'Xibelungen-Lied'. The bishops acquired
princely rank in 1217. In the middle ages Passau was an important trading
place, owing to its situation at the junction of several great trade-routes.

The Treaty of Passau, concluded in 1552 between the Emperor Charles V.
and Elector Maurice of Saxony, established religious toleration. The
bisliopric was suppressed in 1803, but restored in 1827.

From the station (PI. A, 3) the Bahnhof-Str. leads E. to the

Ludwigs-Platz (PL B, 3), and thence, somewhat to the left, to the

Neumarkt or Ludwig-Strasse, which, with its continuation the

Rindermarkt, is the busiest part of the town. To the right, at the

corner of the Heilige-Geist-Grasse, is the aisleless Votiv-Kirche
(PI. B, 3), completed in 1619 and ruined by restoration in the

Romanesque style in 1851-61. Adjacent, on the right, is the Heilig-
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geist-Spital, with a Gothic church (1422), stained glass (1513), and
the Heiliggeist-Stiftsschenke 'p. 350). — Farther on, on the left

side of the Rixdekmarkt, is the aS'^ Johannes- Spitalkirche (V\.

C, 2), dating from the early 13th cent., rebuilt in 1512, and restored

in 1860-64, when numerous tombstones and wood-carvings were
brought hither from other churches. To the right, higher uj), is

the parish-church of St. Paul (PI. C, 2), rebuilt in 1678.

Passing through the Paulus-Eogen, adjoining the church on the

left, we asceud the Post-Gasse to the right to the Dom-Platz or

1'arade-Platz (P1.C,D,3), in which stands a statue of King Max I.

('1824). On the W. side is the old Kanonikalhof (now a seminary
;

PI. C, 3), where the Treaty of Passau (p. 350j was concluded. Tlie

jtresent building dates from 1724. On the E, side rises the —
*Cathedral ('S'^ Sfeplian ; PI. D, 3), a basilica with aisles,

transept, a dome over the crossing, and two A\'. towers, founded

perhaps as early as the 5th cent., and rebuilt early in the 12th cent,

and again after a fire in 1181 in the Gothic style. In 1407 the choir,

transept, and dome were restored in the late -Gothic style. The
whole building was remodelled in a florid baroque style by Carlo

I.arago after the fire of 1662, and is now one of the finest 17th cent,

churches in Germany. The rich stucco decoration of the interior is

by .T. B. Carlone (1686). The towers were completed in 1895-7.
Ou the X. side is the Domhof, with interesting restored chapels

and numerous gravestones. The Kapelle des Missions- Kreuzt'S (W. sidej.

with gilded carvings, dates from 1710. The Dreifaltigkeits- Kapellf
(ea. 1570; W. side) has pointed vaulting; in the centre is the monument
of the founder, Prince-Bishop Trenbach (d. 1598). The Kreuzweg KapeUf
(late 14th cent.; E. side) has four slender octagonal pillars,_and interest-
ing tombstones of red marble on the walls. The adjacent Olherg-KapeUe
or Sixtus-KapeUe (1288) contains a marble tomb of Count Henry 111.

of Ortenburg and his wife Agnes of Bavaria, erected in 13G0.

To the E. of the cathedral is the Residenz-Platz (PI. D, 3), with

the Wittelshach Fountain (1906); on the S. side rises the Bishop's

Palace, a fine baroque edifice of 1730-72, with bronze figures abovt^

the two N. portals and a rococo staircase on the right.

A street descends hence to the S. to the Ludwigs-Briicke (p. 352).

To the N.E. the Schrott-Gasse leads to the Rathaus-Platz, with the

steamer-pier and the Gothic Rathaus (P1.E,3), completed in 1405,

restored in the interior after the fire of 1662, and enlarged and pro-

vided with a tower (225 ft. high) in 1888-93. On the first floor (entr.

Schrott-Gasse) are the Municipal Museum (adm. 20 pf.) and the

Council Chambers, the walls and ceilings of which are painted by

F. Wagner (adm. 20 pf.). Below is the Rathaus-Keller (p. 350). -

We now proceed E., turning to the right and again E. through the

Rrau-Gasse into the Jesuiten-Gasse, where stands the Kirche zum
Heiligen Kreuz (PL E, 3), belonging to the old Benedictine nunnery

of Niedernburg, now a convent-school. The church is a basilica

erected in the second half of the 12th cent, in the transitional stvle
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and subsequently restored. Tlie Maria Pay^z Chapel, on the S,

side, contains a miraculous image and the tomb of the Abbess G-isela,

Queen of Hungary and sister of Emperor Henry II. ~ The pro-

montory at the E. end of the town affords a fine view of the broad

expanse formed by the confluence of the rivers, whose diflfereut

coloured waters seem to strive for the mastery (comp. p. 353j.

The iron Ludwigs-Bvilclve, 270 yds. in length, crosses the Inn

to the Innstadt (PI. C-E, 4), rebuilt since its destruction by fire in

the war of 1809. On the side of the hill the city-wall is still stand-

ing. The aisleless St. Severins-Kirche (PI. C, 4), at the W. end of

the Innstadt, dates from the Romanesque period, but was rebuilt in

the Gothic style in 1476. On the X. side of the church the oratory

of St. Severinus, the apostle of the district (d. 488), is shown. Follow-

ing the Mariahilf-Gasse from the bridge and then ascending to the

right, outside the town-gate, by the road leading to the Waldschloss

.'see below), we reach (1/4 hr.) the pilgrimage-church of *Mariahilf
(1175 ft.; PI. E, 4), rebuilt in 1662. Both on the way to the church

and above it we obtain charming views of the town, the confluence

of the Inn and Danube, and the fortress of Oberha^^s. In the arcaded

court are modern Stations of the Cross. The miraculous picture is

;i copy (ca. 1620) of a Madonna by Oranach the Elder at Innsbruck.

On the left of the entrance a flight of 164 steps, with numerous

votive tablets, descends to the Innstadt. — In Austrian territory,

Vghr. from the Mariahilf, is the Hotel-Pension Waldschloss (P.

4 ^), prettily situated on the margin of a wood.

The Stadt-Park fPl. A, 2), on the slopes of the left bank

of the Danube, 10 min. \s . of the Maximilians -Briicke (p. 353),

affords pleasant shady walks. On its X. margin stands the ejjiscopal

villa oi Freudenliain (Pl.A, 1; 1790-92), now a convent -school

and training-college for teachers. Adjacent is the Restaurant

Freudenhain. To the N". of the Stadt-Park, on the road to Ries

(beyond PI. A, 1), is the hamlet of Plantage (1175 ft.; garden-

restaurant), Y2 ^1'- f''0"^ the Maximilians -Briicke. Thence to Ries

(p. 353), 1/2 ^r-

The fortress of *Oberhaus (1340 ft.; PL E, 2), built by Bishop

Ulrich II. in 1219, enlarged in the 14th cent., and now a military

prison, crowns the steep, wooded slope of the Georgsherg, on the left

bank of the Danube, opposite Passau. It is connected by a rampart

and walls with the old fortress of Niederhaus (PI. F, 2 ; now private

property), on the tongue of land between the Hz and the Danube.

The easiest approach to the Oberhaus is a footpath from the Anger-

Str. (PI. D, E, 2). The road leads from the lower part of the town
across the Prinzregent- Luitpold-Briic'ke (PI. E, 2; fine view;

1910-11), turning to the right beyond it. A few paces farther on

the Prinz-Ludwig-Steig ascends to the left to the fortress, afford-

ing fine views. The road continues through a rocky arch and follows
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the Ilz to the left, passing the Grothic Salvator-Kirche (PI. E, 2),

a curious three -storied edifice with groined vaulting, radiating

chapels, and no aisles, erected in 1479-84 on the site of a synagogue
and restored in 1861. "We continue past the bridge over the Ilz (see

below), and then ascend to the left to the lower gate of the fortress,

and through it to the (V^ hr.) * View Tower (1400 ft.) on the Katz
battery (adm. 50, Sun. 20 pf.), which affords a beautiful view (best

in the evening) of the town, the valleys of the Ilz, Danube, and Inn,

enclosed by dark wooded heights, and the hills of the Bohmer and
Bayrischer Wald to the N. (indicator). A red flag on the fortress

indicates that the Alps are visible. The tower contains a Museum
of objects made in the Bayrischer Wald, a relief-map of the moun-
tains, etc. TVe retrace our steps from the upper gate of the fortress

and after a few paces turn to the left, cross the Oberhauserleite,

and descend the stone steps to the (Y4 hr.) Maximilians-Briicke
(PI. B, C, 2). AVe cither return across it to the town, or turn to

the left at the end of the steps and follow the Anger-Str. (partly

hewn in the rock) along the left bank of the Danube back to the

Prinzregenten-Luitpold-Brlicke.
From the upper gate of the fortress we may proceed over the hill,

passing the old powder-magazine, to (25 min.) Ries (1405 ft.; Hot.
Spetzinger; Eestaurant Urzinger, with view-tower, 20 pf.), a station of
the Schonberg motor-oran. (p. 3.50). Thence those pressed for time may
descend by a marked path to (1/2 hr.) the Durchbruch (see below) and
follow it to Hals and back to Passaii (2 hrs. in all). It is preferable to take
the footpath (fine views), which descends near the first house of Ries to
the right of the road from Oberhaus, to (V4 hr.) Hals (965 ft. ; Hot. Nieder-
mayer or Hofwirt, good), a village charmingly situated in the valley of
the Ilz, and commanded by a ruin. River-baths and hydropathic (Bavaria-
Bad). There is an old pillory by the Rathaus (IGli). About 9 min. above
the village we cross the Ilz and ascend the left bank by a path provided
with seats and guide-posts to the (6 min.) Durchbruch. a tunnel 150 yds.
long and 13 ft. wide, hewn in the rock in 1827-9, through which an arm of
the Ilz flows. On the wooded hill above the tunnel is the ruin of Reschen-
stein. A footway, protected by a railing, leads through the tunnel. At
the farther end there is a barrier, 190 yds. long, to intercept the
floating timber as it descends from the Bayrischer Wald. A foot-bridge
crosses from the upper end of the tunnel to the Triftmcister (rfmts.).
"We now follow the right bank to (V4 hr.) Untcr-Ilzmiihle (ferry 3 pf.)
and (5 min.) Ober-Ilzmuhle (inn); then return on the left bank, follow-
ing a path througli the woods high above the Ilz (good views), to

(V2 hr.) Hals.

N'ear the mouth of the Ilz a bridge crosses to the Ilzstadt (PI. F,

1, 2), at the base of the Nonnberg, inhabited by boatmen and rafts-

men. Above it rises the (20 min.) *Klosterberg or Xonnengiitl
(PI. F, 2; visitors generally admitted on application), a small Schloss
with a charming view (best from the S. side, outside the parapet)

of the confluence of the grey Inn, the pale-green Danube, and the

dark-brown Ilz. After receiving the waters of the Inn, the Danube
becomes a noble stream.

From Passau to Neumarkt an der Rott, see p. 355 ; to Waldkirchen,
Freyung. and Haidmuhic (Bayrischer Wald), see pp. 365-367.
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From Passau to Thyrnau, 6 M. The road crosses the Ilz-Briicke
aud descends along the left bank of the Danube to the (1 hr.) prettily-

situated Ldicen-3Iuhle. Hence it ascends to the left via Nieder-Satzhach
and Ober-Satzbach to (21/4 hrs.) Thyrnau (1335 ft.; Hot. Abel, Edel-
furtner), a finely situated village Avith an episcopal Schloss of the
18th cent, (now a Cistercian convent). Return via Grubweg, see below.
About 1 hr. S.E. of Thyrnau are the chalybeate baths of Kellberg
(1475 ft.), with a view. From Kellberg we "may walk to the (3/^ hr.)

station (see below) and take the train back to Passau.

From Passau to Breitenberg, railway in IV2 hr. to (15Vo M.)
Hauzenberg, and omn. thence in 21/2 hrs. — The railway crosses an" iron
bridge over the Danube. — 31/2 M. Grubiveg. Omn. twice daily" in 50 min.
to Thyrnau (see above). — 51/2 M. Kellberg (see above). — 10 M. Erlmi.
Branch-line (partly rack-and-pinion) via Obernzell to (13 M.) Wegscheid.— 131/2 M. Ober - Diendorf. — 151/2 M. Hauzenberg (1795 ft.; Hot.
Post, Kollcr), a pleasant village. To Liehtenau (p. 366^, 13/^ hr. (yellow
way -marks); to Oberfrauenwald (p. 366), IV2 hr. (blue and red' way-
marks). — The road (omn., see above) passes the Freuden-See, with an
old Schloss, Rassreut, Krinuing (better route for pedestrians from the
Freuden-See via Oberneto'etitk , and the finely situated So)nien (2675 ft.

;

Hot. Post, Andorfer: to Oberfrauenwald, p. 366, I1/2 hr.'i. — IOV2 M.
Breitenberg (2315 ft. ; Hot. zur Post, with view). Omn. X.W. to (13/^ hr.)

Xeu-Reichenau (p. 366), and S.E. through the valley of the Grosse Miihl
tu (I1/2 hr.l Ulrichsberg (p. 367) and (23/^ hrs.) Aigen (p. 367). — The
*Dreisesselfels (p. 366) may be ascended from iJreitenberg' in 3 hrs.
The route runs N. as far as (3/^ hr.) Klafferstrass (2045 ft.): at the bend
it ascends to the right via Lackenhdiiser to the (1 hr.) Rosenberger
(2665 ft. ; unpretending inn; to the Dreiecksmark, see p. 367), often visited
by Adalbert Stifter (p. 367). A good path (red and green way-marks)
ascends thence to the left to the (IV4 hr.) summit.

From Passau to Linz, by railway (66 M.) or by steamer (twice daily
in summer), see Baedeker's Austria.

49. Prom Rosenheim via Miihldorf and
Plattling to Eisenstein (Pllsen).

133 M. Railway in 81/2-91/2 hrs. (17 JC, 10 c^ 30, 4. JC 40 pf.). Best
views to the left. — This line intersects the Bayrischer Wald (R. 50).

Rosenheim, see p. 334. The train soon diverges to tlie right

from the Munich line (R. 43) and runs N". across the plain of the

Inn. — 10 M. Bott (1445 ft.), with a large old Benedictine abbey,

founded in 1086, on a hill to the left. The church, a masterpiece

of the Bavarian rococo style, was built in 1759 by J. M. Fischer. —
We cross the valley of the Attel by a lofty embankment, passing

on the right the old Benedictine abbey of Attel. with the tomb of

its founder by W. Leeb (1509). AVe now ascend to the top of a

lofty plateau on the left bank of the Inn.

16 M. "Wasserburg(1575ft.). A branch-line runs E. in 13 min.

to the (21/2 M.) town (1400 ft.; Hot. Krone, at the station; Neue
Post; pop. 4000), picturesquely situated on a peninsula formed
by the Inn. The brick Gothic parish -church, begun in 1410 by
Hans Stethaimer, contains numerous tombstones. The old Schloss

dates from the early 16th century. The Rathaus contains a hall
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with a wooden ceiling of 1564. Several old arcaded houses. Branch-

line to Grrafing, see p. 334.

The train passes the Soyener-See or Kitz-See (ir)40 ft. ; left). —
1972 ^f- Soyeri. — We skirt the steep slopes of the Nasenhach and

reach the lofty W. bank of the Inn, which we cross at Konigstvart

by a viaduct 160 ft. high. — We next descend on the right bank to

(25 K) Gars (1445 ft.). On the lofty left bank of the Inn, 1/2 ^^
from the station, lies the village, with an old Augustine canonry,

the church of which was rebuilt by Zuccali in 1661-90. •— Beyond

(29 M.) Jettenhach (1360 ft.), with a Schloss of Count Torring, the

river is again crossed. — Ou the wooded tableland of the Muhl-
dorfer Hart lies the station of (32^/2 M.) Kraihvrg (1415 ft.). —
The train quits the forest, passes the church and lunatic asylum of

Ecksherg on the right, and near (38 1/0 M.) Miihldorf (p. 338)

joins the Munich railway.

The train now runs N". (to the right the railway to Simbach,

K. 46), and crosses the Isen. — Beyond (42 M.) Rohrhach (1360 ft.)

we cross the watershed between the Inn and Rett. — 48 M. Neu-
markt an der Rott (1465 ft.; rail, restaurant), a quaint village

of 1600 inhab., with a late-Gothic church (15th cent..

From Neumarkt an der Rott to Passatt, 6OV2 ^^-^ railway in Ihrs. —
The line skirts the left bank of the Rott. — 121/2 M. Eggenfelden. —
Beyond (21 M.) Pfarrkirchen (1230 ft.) we cross the Rott. — 331/2 M.
Karpfham. Motor- omn. to (41/2 5J-) Rotthalmihister (p. 345). — 39 M.
Pocking (1055 ft.), in the broad valley of the Inn. — 48V2 M. Bad Hdhen-
stadt (1085 ft. ; Kurhaus), with sulphur-baths and hydropathic. — 6OV3 M.
Passatc (p. 350).

From Ncuniarkt to Landshut, see p. 232.

Leaving the Eott-Tal 2 M. beyond Neumarkt, the train runs

N. through a hilly district to (54^2 M.) GangJcofen (1470 ft.), on

the Bina. — At (581/2 M.) Trennbach (1580 ft.) we cross the

watershed between the Rott and Vils and descend in a wide curve

to the Vils-Tal. — 64 M. Frontenhausen (1340 ft.). The village

lies IV^^^- to the W. (omn. five times daily). We cross the Vils,

ascend the opposite slope, cross the profound Seegrahen by a lofty

viaduct, and reach the watershed between the Vils and Isar. —
Beyond (72^2 M-) Mamming (1210 ft.) we cross the Isar and skirt

the left bank. — 75 M. Pilsting (1125 ft.; p. 232).

771/2 M- Landau an der Isar (1110 ft.; rail, restaurant).

The town, with 3400 inhab., lies 20 min, S., on the right bank of the

Isar. Branch-line via (3 M.) Landau-Stadt to (15^2 M.) Arnstorf.

To Landshut (Munich), see p. 232. — Beyond Landau the train enters

the broad plain of the Danube. Fine view of the foot-hills of the

Bayrischer Wald, with the distant Arber (p. 361).

88 M. Plattling, junction for the Ratisbon and Passau line

(p. 349). Corap. the Map, p. 359. — We next pass the Natternbej-g,

with a castle-ruin (1265 ft.; 1 hr. from Beggendorf), on the left, and

Baedekbr's S. Germany. 12th Edit. 23
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cross the Danube by a bridge 440 yds. long. — 90y2 M- Pankofen
(1045 ft.). On the left is the sanatorium of Mainkofen.

941/2 M. Deggendorf (1065 ft.; Hot. Drei Mohren, R. 1 ^ 20-

2 Jl 50, B. 80 pf ., D. 1 ^S 60 , omn. 50 pf. ; Schwarzer Adler), a

pleasant old town of 7500 inhab., with a late-Gothic Rathaus (1535).

In the lower Stadt-Platz is the Grrab-Kirche or Grnaden-Kirche, a pil-

grimage-church of 1337, much frequented about Michaelmas; farther

S. stands the handsome parish-church (1655). About 10 min. N. rises

the Gaisberg, with the Pension and Restaurant Wittelsbach (view).

The Geiersberg (1245 ft.), V4 hr. to the E., with a pilgrimage-church
and shady grounds , commands a fine view of the Danube valley ; that
from the Kanzel (2320 ft.), IV2 hr. E., is more extensive. — The Ulrichs-
berg (see below) rises IV^hr. N. of Deggendorf. A path (yellow way-marks)
leads thence N.E. in 2 hrs. to the Geisriegel (3445 ft. ; views). Descent via
Loderhart to (2 hrs.) Gotteszell (see below; blue way-marks). — Pleasant
excursion from Deggendorf to the Eusel (2555 ft.), a beautifully situated
inn, either by a pretty road through the Hollbach-Tal (3 hrs.), or by a

marked path via the (IV2 tn"-) Kanzel and the (I1/2 hr.) Hausstein (3010 ft.),

1/4 hr. from the Eusel, and commanding a magnificent view of the plain
of the Danube and the distant Alps. The road goes on through the valley
of the Ohe via Hochbruck (2065 ft.

;
plain inn), or (short of Hochbruck)

to the left via Bischofsmais (p. 357), to (3 hrs.) Regent (p. 357).

Local railway from Deggendorf to (3 M.; Metten (1050 ft. ; Hot. Post,
Grrabmaier), with an old Benedictine abbey, the church of which, rebuilt
in 1720-29, contains an altar-piece by CD. Asam. Schloss Egg (1245 ft.),

the seat of Count Hohenthal (12th cent.), 2/4 hr. N., has been restored in

the mediaeval style by Voltz (no adm.). We may return via (1/2 hr.) Berg
(1425 ft.

;
good inn) and the ancient little church of Uttobrunn (restored

in 1911 ; a little to the right) to (1 hr.) Deggendorf.
Branch-line under construction from Deggendorf via Hcngersberg to

Kalteneck (p. 365).

The railway enters the Bayrischer Wald, ascends the W. slope of

the Kohlbach-Tal, and crosses the valley in a wide curve by a lofty

embankment. — We then ascend S. to (IOO1/2 M.) Ulrichsherg

(1390 ft.), 1/2 lir. above which is the hill of that name (2085 ft.;

inn), with a pilgrimage -church and a fine view. Thence to the

Geisriegel, see above. — The train then describes a wide curve

round the Kuhherg (to the right a magnificent view of the Danube
plain, bounded by the Alps), passes through a curved tunnel, and as-

cends the Graflinger Tal along the slope of theUIrichsberg. — Then
through another tunnel to (108V'2 M.)" Gotteszell (1810 ft.; rail.

restaurant). The village (Briiuhaus), with a Cistercian abbey, lies

V4 hr. W., in the Teisnach-Tal.
Interesting excursion from Gotteszell via AchslacJi (road ; 23/^ hi-s.),

or (better; 31/4 hrs.) via the Hotel Vogelsang (3340 ft.) and the Regens-
burger Stein (3115 ft. ; view), to the Rirschenstein (3580 ft.), with a view-
tower (extensive view). About 1/4 hr. N. of the summit is the forester's
house of Odwies (good quarters, 5 beds). About IV2 l""- farther N.W.,
picturesquely situated on the Predigtstuhl (3360 ft.)," lies the village of
Eyiglmar (2640 ft.; Hot. Echinger). Hence to Viechtach, see p. 357.

Over the Geisriegel to Deggendorf, see above.
From Gotteszell, to Viechtach, 15'/2 M., local railway in IV4 hr. —

The line runs through the Teisnach-Tal via the (21/2 M.) beautifully situated
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village of Ruhumnmfelden (1645 ft.) and (41/2 M.) Pateradorf to (6 M.)
Tcisnach (1470 ft.; Brauhaus), at the confluence of the Tcisnach with the

Schivarzer Regent. Oran. thence iu 2 hrs. to (6 M.) Bodenmais (p. 362). —
The train now follows the valley of tlie Regcn, passing {^M..) Bohrach,
(91/2 M.) Gnmpenried, and (11 M.) Schonau. — I.51/2 M. Viechtach
(1350 ft.; Hot. Ncue Post; Schraau.s, It. 1^30-2^; Giuber), a pleasant
village with 2300 inhabitants. View from the Pfahl-Kirche (1675 ft.),

built in 1626, ^U hr. S. Attractive excursion (blue way -marks) from
Viechtach E. via Blossersberg and Bcirndorf to the (IV2 It.) Neunuss-
berg (2313 ft. ; inn), with a fine view from the ruined tower. — From
Viechtach we may walk S. to (1 lix.) Kollnhzirg (2150 ft. ; Brauhaus), with
a picturesque ruined castle , now used as a church. Thence we may
follow a marked path througli the woods, passing Markbuchen (2880 ft.

;

inn; '/a hr., above lies Englmar, p. 356), to (21/2 hrs.) the forester's

house of Odwies and the Hirschcnstein (p. 356). — A road leads N.
from Viechtach via Pirka and Wettzell to (8V2 M.) Kotzting (p. 359

;

omn. daily in 2 hrs.). — From Viechtach W. via the Zeller Hohc to

Konsell, see p. 349.

113 M. Triefenvied (2025 ft.). The line skirts the wooded
slope of the Teufelstisch (see below), crosses the Ohe by a bridge

(160 ft. high; comp. below), and descends on the left bank of the

Schivarzer Begen. — 118 M. Regen (1800 ft.)- The village (Hot.

Neue Post, Liebl; Brauhaus, R. I-I72 ^/), with 2800 inhab., lies

on the opposite bank.
From Regen the 'Rittersteig' (blue way-marks) leads S. to (1 hr.) the

ruined castle of Weissenstein, on the highest point of the Pfahl 1,2485 ft.),

with a restored W. tower (20 pf.) commanding a fine view; the lower
part of the castle is now the Hotel Vogel (plain but good). — The
Pfahl is a broad seam of quartz running from S.E. to N.W. for a

distance of 90 M. ; it may be conveniently examined in the railway-
cutting near the bridge over the Ohe (see above).

About 13/4 hr. S.W. of Regen (omn. in 21/4 hrs.) is the pleasantly
situated village of Bischofsmais (2245 ft. ; Hot. zur Post). Attractive
excursions thence W. to (1 hr.) Ober-Breitenaii, N.W. to the (^/^ hr.)

Teufelstisch (2960 ft.), N.E. to (2 hrs.) Weissetistein (see above), and S.

to the (IV2 tr.) Riisel (p. 356).

Omn. from Regcn in 21/4 hrs. N. to (8 M.) Bodenmais (p. 362).

We cross the Regen, recross it near Schxceinhiltt (above to the

right), and regain the right bank near Zwiesel.

12472 M. Zwiesel (p. 362). Line to Grafenau, see p. 363.

Above Zwiesel the train again crosses the Regen. — 128 M.
Ludwigsthal (2075 ft.), with glass-works. To the Zwiesler \Yald-

haus and the Grosser Falkenstein, see p. 361; to the Arber, see

p. 363. — The line ascends the left bank of the Regen, running
parallel with the road to Bohemia (glimpses to the left of the Arber,

p. 361), and passes many glass-works and smelting-houses.

133 M. Eisenstein (2375 ft.; rail, restaurant, with rooms),

the Bavarian and Boh'^mian frontier-station (luggage examined).

Immediately W. of the station lies the frontier- settlement of

Bayrisch-Eisenstein (Hot. Obcrst, with garden, R. 1 ^^l 20-1 c//

40 pf.; Botschafter, R. 1-2 Jl\ while 1/4 ^r- N.W. is the village

of that name (2625 ft.; Brauhaus), also known as 'Bayrisch-

Hausel'. Thence the high-road leads across the Bohemian border

23*
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and past the glass-works of Elisental to (40 min.) Bohmisch-Eisen-
stein (p. 360).

ExcuRSioKS FROM Bayrisch-Eisenstein. To tbe Lndiciys-Hohe (bel-

vedere), 1/4 hr. E., and thence by footpaths along the slopes of the Hoch-
berg (3085 ft.) ; to the Grosse Tanne (p. 361), 1/2 hr. X.E. ; to the Schivell-

Jidusl (2215 ft. ; rfmts.), 1 hr. S. ; via the saddle between the Hochbcrg
and Drahberg to the Ziciesler Waldhaits, see p. 361; to the Grosser
Arber-See and the Arber, see p. 361 ; via the Scheiben-Sattel or the
Brennes-Sattel to Lohberg, see p. 359; via the Seewand or the Teufels-
See to the Schwarzer See and the Osser, see p. 360.

From Batrisch-Eisenstein to Pilsen, 69V.2 M., Austrian state rail-

way in 3 hrs. — We cross the Regen and skirt the village of (31/2 M.)
Bohmisch- Eisenstein (p. 360), the station for which lies 10 min. N. —
7 M. Spitzberg (2735 ft.), at the S. end of the Spitzberg Tunnel (1 M.
long), the starting-point for the Schwarzer See (p. 360). — 141/2 M. Havi-
mern-Eisenstrass{2ilO ft.; Hot. Peller), at the E. base of the (3 hrs.)

Osser (p. 360). To Lambach (p. 359), 2 hrs. — 3OV2 M. Neuern. — 35 M.
Janoioitz. — 40 M. Klattau. — 69V2 M. PiUen. Comp. Baedeker''s Austria.

50. TheBayrischerWald and the Adj oining
Part of the Bohmer-Wald.

The Bayrischer "Wald, or Bavarian Forest, is the S.W. portion of
the extensive Bohmeruald-Gebirge and includes the highest peaks in

the range (Arber 4780 ft., Rachel 4765 ft.). Nearly half of this mountain-
region, Avhich is over 1900 sq. M. in area and lies between the Danube
and the Bohemian frontier, extending from Cham and Furth on the N.
to below Passau on the S., is covered with pine and beech forest, much
of which, especially in the less frequented parts (Rachel, Falkenstein,
etc.), is still in a primfeval condition. The geological formation of the

Bayrischer Wald consists of granite, gneiss, and mica-slate, intersected-

by the Pfahl (p. 357), a broad seam of quartz. — The timber-trade and
cattle-breeding are the chief resources of the inhabitants, but quarrying
and the manufacture of wooden objects are also important industries.

The roads are frequently flanked with 'Totenbretter', memorial tablets

with inscriptions and paintings.
The Paths are good almost without exception; the Isns, though

unpretentious, are generally clean (average charges: R. 1-1V2! D. I-IV2 «-^,

board 1 J6 80 pf. -3 JC). — Bohmisch-Eisenstein, Bayrisch-Eisenstein,
Lambach, Rabenstein, Bodenmais, Spiegelau, Klingenbrunn, St. Osioald,

Mauth, etc., are frequented as summer resorts. The Bayrischer Wald-
Yerein is employed in opening up the mountains.

Plan of Tour. The forest is conveniently approached by the rail-

way. The following tour touches at the chief stations and may be
begun from any one of them. 1st Day. From Lam (p. 359) or Hammem-
Eisenstrass (see above) ascend the Osser (21/^-3 hi's.) and go on to the

Schwarzer See (2^U ti^s.) and Bohmisch-Eisetistein (21/2 hrs.). — 2nd Day.
Bayrisch-Eisenstein ^/^hr., Arber-See IV2 hr-, Grosser Arber IV2-2 trs.,

Bodenmais 21/4 hrs. — 3rd Day. Rabenstein 3 hrs., Regenhiltte 1 hr.,

Ludnngsthal 1/2 hr., Zwiesler Waldhaus 1 hr. — 4th Day. Grosser Falken-
stein 2 hrs., Scheuereck 2 hrs.-, Ztoiesel 2 hrs. ; thence by train to Klingen-
brunn or Spiegelau (p. 363; engage rooms beforehand). — 5th Day.
Rachel 31/4 or 33/^ hrs., Rachel-See ^U hr., Dienst-HUtte ^U hr., Wald-
hduser IV2 hr. — 6th Day. Lusen 2 hrs. ; via (31/4 hrs.) Mauth or (21/2 hrs.)

Buchwald to (31/2 or 3 hrs.) Kuschwardu. — 7th Day. Eleonorenhain
IV2 hr., to the Lucken-Urwald and back 3 hrs.; then by train or on
foot via Bohmisch-Rohren to Neutal 3 hrs. — 8th Day. Eirschbergen
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l'/2 hr., Blockenstein-See 2 his., Di-eiecksmark and DreisesselfeU 2 his.

;

descent to Fraiienberg or Neit-Eeichenau IV4 or 2 hrs., and by train to

Fassau. — The finest points arc in the environs of Eisenstein.

I. Western Portion: Osser, Bohmisch-Eisenstein,
Arber.

The Hoher Bogen and the environs of Cham and Furth are described

on pp. 347, .348. For the environs of Fegen, ViecMach, Gotteazell, and
Deggendorf, see pp. 3.56, 357.

From Cham to Lam, 25 M., l)raiicli-liue in 2^4 ln-.s.

Cham, see p. 347. The line ascends the winding valley of the

Beyen. — 3V2 M. Bunding (1225 ft.).

Pleasant excursion (blue way-marks) via the (3/4 lir.) ruin of Kundiug-

(1770 ft.) to the (lV4hr.)i7fl/(7s^et<? (2440 ft.; inn), with apilgrimage-churcli

and the ruins of a castle. Descent via the (IV4 hr.) village of Ried, with
a lime-tree 50 ft. in circumference, to (3/^ hr.) KotzUng (see below).

5^2 M. Chamerau. To the Lamberg, see p. 347. — 9^2 M.

JSnitach (p. 349). — Above (11 M.) Blaihach is the confluence of

the Weisser Begen and Schwarzer Begen. We follow the valley

of the former.

131/2 M. Kotzting (1295 ft.; Hot. Post, Lemberger, Decker,

Aniberger), an industrial village at the foot of the steep Keitersberg.

Excursions. To the Ludwigs-Tnrm {IQiij ft. : restaurant and view).

'/4 lir. S. — Ascent of the Keitersberg (culminating in the Kreuzfelsen.
3280 ft.) in 21/4 hrs., via Reitenberg (inn) and the Heigl-Hohle; fine view
from the summit (thence to the Arber, 8 hrs., see p. 3(;2). — Ascent of

the Hoher Bogen, see p. 347 ; over the Haidstein to Ritnding, see above. —
From Kotzting roads lead S. to ViecMach (see p. 357) and S.E. to (15V..M.)

Bodenmais (p. 3(52; omn. daily in i^j., hrs.).

15 M. ZeUerthal — 18 M. WatzeUteg. To the (IV2 br.) Hohoi-

Bogen, see p. 347. — 20 M. Holiemcarth. — 23 M. Arrach. To

Kck, see p. 362.

25 M. Lam (station 1710 ft., church 1885 ft.; Hot. Post, R. 1-

1^2 ^^' ,' StOberl, Brandl), prettily situated on the Weisser Regen.

the valley of which ('Lamer Winkel') is closed on the W. by the

Hoher Bogen (p. 347). About V2 ^^'- ^-E- lies the pilgrimage-church

of Mariahilf (2680 ft.), built in 1752.
Lambach (2345 ft.; Hot. Ascherl, H. 1 Ji), a. small village witli

glass-works, situated in the forest 3/4 hr. N. (omn.), is well adapted for

a long stay. To the Osser (p. 360), 13/4 hr. (yellow way - marks) ; to

Hammern-Eisenstrass (p. 358), 2 hrs.

From Lam to Scharreben (p. 362), 3 hrs. ; red way-marks. — From
Lam via Neukirchen beim HeiUgen Blut to Furth, see p. 348.

The village of Lohberg (2135 ft.; Hot. Brfiuhaus), li/ohr. S.E.

of Lam (early omn. in 1\ j hr.), is a good centre for excursions.

Excursions. Ascent of the Osser (p. 360), 2 hrs., blue way-marks:
via the Sesselplatz (3695 ft.) to the Schwarzer See (p. 300), 3 hrs., brown
way-marks; via the Brennes - Sattel (p. 361; white way-marks) or tlie

Scheiben - Sattel (green way-marks) to Bayrisch- Eisenstein (p. 357),

3 or 31/2 hrs. ; via (V2 hr.) Sommerau (2200 ft. ; two inns) and the Brennes-
Sattel (p. 361) to the Arber (p. 361), 31/2 hrs.; via the Reischfleck-Sattel

- ii) Scharreben (p. 362), 21/2 hrs. (red way-marks).
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From Lam or from Lohberg via the Osser to Eisexstein,

8 hrs., veiy attractive. Paths, steep at places (from Lam via Maria-

liilf, p. 359, with yellow and red way-marks; from Lohberg with

blue way-marks), ascend in 2 hrs. to the Osser-Sattel. Thence the

Kleiner or Bayrischer Osser (4175 ft.; good view of the Arber
chain and the Eegen-Tal), on the left, may be ascended in 20 min.,

and the -Grosser or Bohmischer Osser (4240 ft.), on the right,

in 10 min. The latter (numerous garnets; inn in summer, with 8 beds
at 1 tJl) commands an superb panorama. From the Osser we descend

E. to (2Y2 lirs.) Haimnern-Eisenstrass (p. 358), or N.W. via Ritt-

steig to (2^/2 ^rs.) Neukirchen heim Heiligen Blut (p. 348; white

and blue way-marks). — From the saddle we follow a bridle-path

(direction -boards) E. to the (^/^ hr.) Giitelplatz (3120 ft.; rfmts.),

and thence proceed through the forest either direct to the Seetvand
(see below) or (preferable) to the (1^/^ hr.) *Scliwarzer or Bist-
ritzer See (3305 ft.; rowing-boats; echo), a lonely lake 90 acres in

area and 140 ft. deep, situated amidst grand scenery at the foot of

the Seewand. Rfmts. in summer, but no beds.

We may now either ascend on the N.W. bank of the lake to the

(\ hr.) Seewand (4405 ft. ; fine view), and thence descend to (1^2 ^^0
Bohmisch-Eisenstein (see below), or we may follow the Pichel-

bach-Tal to (1^2 ^'^'•) Bayrisch-Eisenstein (p. 357). — Or we may
ascend (preferable) from the outlet of the Schwarzer See to the saddle

between the Seewand and Spitzberg (3805 ft.; watershed between
the Elbe and Danube); thence we skirt the (1 hr.) gloomy, low-

lying Teufels-See (3380 ft.; 57 acres in area, 110 ft. deep), leaving

on the left the Girglhof (R. 1 /i 20 /i), and descend either to (1Y2 ^^•)

Bohmisch-Eisenstein (see below) or via Elisental (p. 358) to the

(P/^ hr.) frontier-station (p. 357). — The path to the left at the

outlet of the Schwarzer See leads to (1^2 ^I'O Hammern-Eise7i-

strass station (p. 358); the road to the right crosses the (2/4 hr.)

Spitzberg-Sattel (3280 ft.; *Hot.-Pens. Rixi, R. 2-4, board 4-6^;
beautiful view) to the (Y4 hr. ; omn. 60 h) station ot Spitzberg (p. 358),
^ '4 hr. by rail from the frontier-station.

Railway from PlattlixCt to Bohmisch-Eisexsteix, see R. 49.

BohrQisch-Eisenstein. — Hotels. Seidl zum Osser, with two
dependances and garden, E. 1 jK" 20-1 ^ 60 7i; Furstenhof; Kelnhofer;
Post; Arher; Bohmerwalcl; Kuffner. Vi hr. N". ; Waldheimat Hydropathic,

V4 hr. S. of the village. — Lodgings iu abundance. — Cakrl4.ge (two
horses) to the Grosser Arber-See (p. 361) 12 K, to the Schwarzer See
(see above) 8 K.

Bohmisch-Eisenstein (2540 ft.), a village with 3600 inhab.,

prettily situated at the confluence of the Regen and the Eisenbach,
with a fine view of the Arber, is frequented in summer and for

winter-sports also.

Excursions. To the Hilitenherg or Kalvarienberg, V2 ^i'. N., with
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a fine panorama (still more extensive from the Panzer, 3780 ft., lV2hr.
farther on). — To the Riegelbach-Schlucht, '/a hr. E. — To Schloss
Deffernik, V2 hr- S., and the Grosse Tanne (a fir 160 ft. high and 16 ft.

in circumference), returning to (Vj hr.) the frontier-station (p. 357). —
By railway to Spitzberg or Hammern-Eisenstrass station (p. 358), and
thence back via the Schwarzer See and Teufels-See (p. 360), 3V2-4 hrs.

;

or from Hammern-Eisenstrass up the Osser (p. 360), 3 hrs. — Via the

Seewand or Teufels-See to the Schwarzer See and Osser (p. 360), 6 hrs.

— Direct to Lohberg (p.- 359), 3-31/2 hrs.

To the S. a road leads via the village of Deffernik and (50 min.)

Ferdinandsthal to the (40 min.) Zwiesler Waldhaus (2285 ft.;

inn, R. 1-1 V4: ^- 1 ^^ 40 pf., P. 4-4\ 9 <^^)- Abont 5 min. beyond the

inn is the lAidivigs-Tanne, a fir 170 ft. high and 19 ft. in circum-

lV;rence. From the Waldhans a path (red way-marks) ascends to the

(2 hrs.) Grosser Falkenstein (4315 ft.; attractive view). The
descent is made on the S.E. side by a steep path (green way-marks)

through WiQ Hollhachgsjjreng to the (1^/4 hr. ) Hollbachschivelle and

(•^4 hr.) Dienfit-Hiltte Seheuereck (rfmts.; no beds). Thence we
may proceed to (IY2 ^'^'O Lndwigsthal (p. 357) or via Lindherg to

(2 hrs.) Zwiesel (p. 362). To those who wish to return to the Wald-
haus the descent (1^/4 hr.; red way-marks) via the Kleiner Falken-
stein (3965 ft.) is recommended. — From the Waldhaus we may
either return to a (4 min.) forester's house and thence proceed to the

left (]^.W.) through fine woods via the saddle between the Hochberg
and Drahberg to the (1^4 hr.) frontier-station (p. 357), or we may
walk S. to (1 hr.) Ludwigsthal station (p. 357;.

From the FRoyTiER Station (p. 357) to the Grosser Arber,
3-3^/2 hrs., two attractive routes. (1) We follow the Zwiesel road

for 1/4 hr., then turn to the right via the Arher-Hiltte (inn, bed

1 Jl) to the (1% hr.) '-"'Grosser Arher-See (3065 ft.), with a good

inn (bed 1 ^/l 20 pf.) and rowing-boats (50 pf. for \,2 hr.; triple

echo). The lake, 64 acres in area and 110 ft. deep (a walk round

takes 1 hr.), is picturesquely situated in the forest and dominated

by the Grosser Arber. There is a road also to the lake (carr., see

p. 360). From the lake to Zwiesel, see p. 363; to Schoneben, see

p. 362. From the N. bank of the lake we ascend to the summit 01

the Arber in Vj^ hr. The path ascending along the Geigenbach

from the S. bank is preferable, but 1/2 hr.~longer. — (2) We follow

a fine forest-road via Bayrisch-Hiiusel (p. 357) to the (l^o ^^'O

Brennes-Sattel (3380 ft.; views; inn, R. 1 Ji 20 pf.; to Lohberg,

p. 359, 2 hrs.) and to the (1\ 4 hr.) summit.

From the ^Grosser Arber (4780 ft.),' the 'king of the forest',

a superb view is obtained: E. of a great part of Bohemia; N.W. as

far as the Fichtel-Gebirge and Erz-Gebirge; S., in clear weather,

the Alps; on the E., far below, lies the sombre Grosser Arber-See.

Panorama by Pascher (1 ^^). A walk round the plateau takes 1 hr.

On the top stands a chapel built in 1816; 10 min. below it is the
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Arher-Schutzliaus {'ioTo ft,; iun in summer, with 17 beds at l^j^^Jl

and 15 mattresses at 1 ,Ji, clean).

From the Arber to Lohberg, see p. 359. — From the Arber a fatiguing

marked path leads via the (21/2 hrs.) forester's hut of Scharreben (3280 ft.

;

rfmts. and quarters for 4 pers. ; to Lohberg and Lam, see p. 359 ; to Boden-
mais, see below), Eclc (2 hrs. ; 3165 ft. ; inn, with quarters for 6 pers.

;

to Arrach, p. 359, 1 hr.), the Riedelstein (3720 ft.), and the Kreuzfelsen
(Keitersberg; p. 359) to {^^li\ixs.) Beitenberg ami (1 hr.) Kotzting (9 hrs.

in all; p. 3.59).

Descext via Bodexmais to Zwiesel, 6 hrs., attractive. Tlie

path leads through the Biesloch, a ravine with small waterfalls.

About 1/4 111'- fi'oui the upper end are the Rechensoldenfelsen,

with a view of the valley and Bodenmais. We next reach (2^/^ hrs.)

Bodenmais (2270 ft.; Hot. Post, R. 1 ../I 20 pf.-2, B. 1/2, P. 4 ^/l

;

Briiuhaus), a village of 1600 iuhab., pleasantly situated on a hill.

Opposite rises the reddish Silher'berg, with an indented peak called

the Bischofshauhe ('mitre'; 3135ft.; ^ji)iv.\ to Schonebeu, see

below). The old silver-mines now yield magnetic pyrites.

Omn. from Bodenmais daily in 21/2 hrs. via Langdorf to Ziviesel

(see below; 91/2 M. to the S.E'.). Omn. to Begen, see p. 357; to I'eis-

tiach, see p. 357; to Kotzting, see p. 359. — A forest-road leads N.W.
from Bodenmais via the Schonbachet'-Hiltte to Scharreben (see above)
in 3 hrs. (yellow waj'-marks).

We next reach (1 hr.) Schonehen (3060 ft.), where paths diverge

to the right to the (Y2 hr.) Bischofshauhe (see above) and to the left

to the (l^/o hr.) Clrosser Arber-See (p. 361; blue and white way-

marks). AVe then pass a (1 hr.) quartz - quarry with a small sub-

terranean lake (at the entrance, beautiful rose-coloured quartz and

other rare minerals), near which is the Hennerkohel (3115 ft.).

In 1 hr. more we reach the village of Rahenstein (2220 ft.; Hot.

Waldschlossl, Liude, Hochwald). To Regenhiitte (p. 363), 1 hr.

From Rahenstein a shadeless road leads to (^ 4 hr.) Ziviesel (see

below; omn. twice daily).

II. Eastern Portion: Rachel, Lusen, Dreisessel.

Railway from Ratisbon or Passau to Plattling, see R. 48; from Platt-

liiig to Zwiesel, see pp. 355-357 ; from Passau to Haidniiihle, see p. 3(5.').

Zwiesel (station 1900 ft.; Hot. Post, R. 1 c./^ 20 pf.-2 ^/L

Deutscher Rhein, R. 80 pf.-2 V, ^, both good, Brauerei Pfefler,

Rock, with wine -room, all four in the market-place; Bayrischer

"Wald, Bahnhof-Str.), with a station (10 min.; omn. 40 pf.) on the

railway from Deggendqrf to Eiseusteiu (p. 357), is a clean village

of 4000 inhab., with a school of .glass-making. It lies in a broad

basin at the confluence of the Kleiner and Grosser Regen, which

unite to form the Scliwarzer Regen , and is a favourite resort for

winter -sports. Near it are glass-works and saw -mills. — The

Zicieselberg (2250 ft.), a hill strewn with blocks of granite, ^ 2 ^^'

S.W., aflfords a panorama.
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From Zwiesel via Bodenmais to the Arber, see p. 362. — The Arber
is more easily reached from Zwiesel via Ludicigsfhal (station, see p. 357).

We follow the shady Prinzensteig past (40 min.) ReyenhUtte (2145 ft.

;

Hot. Bauer, bed 1 Ji), with a bottle-glass JFactory, then through beautiful
woods (passing the Luitpold-Tanne , a fir 185 ft. high) to the (I'/i hr.)

Grosser Arber-See. Thence to the (IV2 hr.) summit, see p. 361. — An
equally attractive route leads from Zwiesel via (^/^ hr.) Rabenstein and
(1 hr.) Regenhutte (see p. 362).

Fkom Zwiesel to Grapenau, 20 M., branch-line in V/^-'^ hrs.

(best views to the left). — The line describes a wide curve round ^

the town and follows at first the Kleiner Reg-en. — 4^/2 ^I- Zwie-
selau (1945 ft.). — 51/2 M. Frauenau (2020 ft.), station for Unter-

i\aue7iau{2120(t.: Hot. Schinabeck, plain) and for 05er-i^rawe/2a<*

(2360 ft.), 1/2 lir. KE., with an imposing Schloss (bridle-path to the

Rachel, see p. 364).

Farther on we ascend the narrow wooded valley of the Flanitz. —
10 M. Klingenhrunn (2480 ft.). Ascent of the Rachel, see below. The
village (2695 ft. ; Hot. Ludwigstein, R. 1 .// 20 pf.-1 1/2, P- 3 V2-4\'2^ /

Stangl) lies V^ hr. S. About ^j^ hr. W. of the village is the Luclwig-
stein (2960 ft.; view); ^/^ hr. E. lies Spiegelau station (see below).

We now descend into the valley of the Grosse Ohe. On the

left rises the Rachel. — I2V2 M. Spiegelau (2215 ft.; Hot. Post,

R. 1-1 V2 «^/ Stangl), a summer resort.

Ascent of the Rachel, see below; E. to the Waldhduser (p. 361),

21/2 hrs. ; S.E. via Reichenberg to St. Osicald (p. 364), IV4 hr. ; W. to

KU)ig('nbruun (see above), omn. twice daily in 10 min. — Fine panorama
from Oberkrenzberg (2555 ft.; view -tower near tlie cliurch) , ^/^ hr. S.

(omn. twice daily); we may return (1 hr.) \'va X\\q Stcin-Klamm, through
which the Grosse Ohe flows.

As the train leaves Spiegelau we obtain a view to the right of

the Stein-Klanini. and then of Oberkreuzberg.

20 M. Grafenau (station 1895 ft., church 2005 ft.; Hot.

Setzer, R. 1 Jl-1 ../I 20 pf., B. 1/2 ^Z Schloss-Brauerei, Zur Eisen-

bahn, Stadt Grafenau), an old town with 1340 inhabitants. Fine
view from the Schwaimherg (2310 ft.), Y4 hr. N. About Y^ hr.

S.W. of the station is the BCirnsteiner - Leite, a wooded ravine of

the Kleine Ohe, above which rises the ruin of Bdnistein (2150 ft.;

inn), Y2 111'- fi'oni the station.

Roa'ds lead from Grafenau X.E. to (3V_. M.) St. Oswald (p. 364); E.
to (QM.) Hohenaii (p. 367; omn.); S.W. through the Barnsteiner-Lcito to

(5 M. ; motor-omn. 4 times daily in 3/^ hr.) Schonberg (1855 ft.; Hot.
Pleintinger; Post, R. 70 pf.-l .« .50, D. 1 .4 20 pf. : Lorenz). a village
prettily situated at the base of the Kadernbcrg (2225 ft. ; 20 min. ; view).
From Schonberg we may go on (motor-omn., see p. 350) past the castles of
Saldcnburg (1870 ft. ; Brauhaus), Fiirstcnstein, and Engelburg (1910 ft.

;

Hot. Nicdermayer) to (10 M.) TittUng (1740 ft. ; Hot. zur Post), a pleasant
village Avith a late-Romanesque chiirch, and via Ries (p. 353) to (241/2 M.)
Fassau (p. 350).

The Ascent of the Rachel is best made from Klingenbninn
station (see above; blue way-marks; 2^/2 ^rs.). Other routes ascend

from Spiegelau (sec above) in 31/2 hrs,, either direct or via the
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(I3/4 hr.) Dienst-HUtte (quarters for 6 pers.) and the (^4 tr.) Eachel-

See. A bridle-path (rather steep) ascends also from Ober-Frauenau

(p 363) in 3 hrs.' (red way-marks).

The barren granite summit of the *Rachel (4765 ft.; shelter-

hut; rfmts. and plain night-quarters) commands an extensive view

of the Bohmer-'\l\''ald and the plain of the Danube, reaching in clear

weather to the distant Alps. A refuge ('Waldschmidt-Haus') is being

built. The Rachel-Haus (3850 ft. ; rfmts. and 3 beds) lies 1
1/2 l^r- to

the N.E. of the summit, on the path to (31/2 hrs.) Mader (3235 ft.;

inn) in Bohemia. On the S.E. side of the mountain lies the dark

forest-girt *Rachel-See (3445 ft.), 45 acres in area and 60 ft. deep

at places.

Descending to the {^j^ hr.) lake (blue way-marks) and passing the

(3/4 hr.) Dienst-Hiitte (see above), we proceed via Guglod and Siehen-

ellen to (2 hrs.) St. Oswald (see below); or from the Dienst-Hiitte

we may 'reach the (l^/g hr.) Waldhduser (see below) and ascend

thence to the (2 hrs.) Lusen (see below). Another path (white way-
marks) leads E. from the Eachel, past the chapel half-way up the

hillside above the lake (view), and diverges to the right (red and
blue way-marks; fatiguing) through the wood, crossing the Zwolfer-

linie, to the (5 hrs.) Lusen.

About IY2 hr. N.E. of Grrafenau (omn. in 1 hr.) and 1^/4 hr. E, of

Spiegelau lies St. Os-wald (2625 ft.; Hot. Schreiner's Brauhaus,

Simmet), a beautifully situated old monastery. Ascent of the Kachcl,

see above; to Hohenau, see p. 368.

From St. Oswald we may ascend N.E. via the (iVg hr.) Wald-
hduser (3030 ft.; modest inn, bed 1 Jl 20 pf.; to the Dienst-Hutte,

see above; to Spiegelau, see p. 363) to the (2 hrs.) *Lusen.(4495 ft.),

the summit of which, formed of blocks of granite, commands a

superb view extending to the Alps. On the S. side is a plain shel-

ter-hut (no rfm.ts.).

From the Lusen to the (5 hrs.) Rachel, see above. To (5-6 hrs.)

Freyung (p. 367) via Hohenau, see p. 368; via Mauth, see below.

FROir THE LusEX TO KuscHWARDA. One route (7 hrs.) descends

S.E. (blue way-marks) to the (1 hr.) Tummelplatz (beer; no quar-

ters; to Hohenau, 2 hrs., see p. 368), whence we proceed, either

direct or via the Kanzel (3315 ft.; view), to (2^/4 hrs.) Mauth
(2695 ft.; Hot. Post, E. 1 Jl ; Ferstl; to the S. to Freyung, see

p. 367). Thence we walk E. (white and yellow way -marks) past

the (IV, hr.) forester's house of Aim (3700 ft.; rfmts. and 2 beds;

view) to (2 hrs.) Kuschwarda. — Another route (5 1/2 hrs.) descends

N.E. from the Lusen to (21/2 hrs.) Buchwald (3810 ft.; Hot. zum
Tiroler, E. I-IV2 K)i tlie highest village in Bohemia. The detour,

taking 1 hr. more , via the Source of the Moldau (3845 ft.) and

Siehenstein (4105 ft.; view) is recommended. From Buchwald we
proceed via Filrstenhut to (3 hrs.) Kuschwarda,
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Kuschwarda (2735 ft.; Hot. Reif, R. 80 A-1 K20h; Paulik,

R. lOh-l K20h; carr. to the Urwald 6 K, with two horses

10 K), a Bohemian village at the foot of the Schlosslherg (3650 ft.),

with the (2/4 hr.) Kunzwarte, is frequented as a summer resort,

Omn. S.W. to Freyung, see p. 367.

About 1^/2 hr. E. of Kuschwarda lies the village of Eleonoren-
hain (2380 ft. ; Kralik's Touristenhaus, at the station, R. 1 ^ 80 ^-

2 K; Hot. zum Bohmerwald, in the village, plain), a station on the

railway from "Wallern to Winterberg, with glass-works (visitors

admitted).
Fine forest -paths fvora Eleonorenhain or Kuschwarda via (IV2 br.)

Bohmisch-Rdhren (3060 ft. ; Hot. zum Bohmerwald) and (IV2 hr.) Neutcd
(p. 366) to the (2 hrs.) Dixisessel (p. 366); railway also from Eleonorenhain
via Sch\s-arzes Kreuz to Xeutal.

A carriage - road runs ^. from Eleonorenhain via (^g hr.)

Schattawa (plain inn; the station of the Wallern and Winterberg
line lies ^2 ^^'- to the X. of the village) into the forest. The
Urwald {i.e. primaeval forest) begins to the right of this road,

about 3/^ hr. beyond Schattawa. We may follow the road skirting

it for about V2 ^^^

Luckeyi-Unoald is the name given to the tract of forest-land (215
acres; closed in Sept. and Oct.) on the S. slope of the Ktibani, which has
been left in its primaeval condition hj the proprietor Prince Schwarzen-
berg. Huge tree-trunks, over-grown with underwood, lie confusedly in

all directions, forming a strange chaos.

Following the road for another ^'2 ^^-i we reach the 'Kreuz-

fichte', a granite column. Thence a path ascends to the left to (^/^ hr.)

the Kuhani (4470 ft.; view intercepted by trees). We descend to

(1 hr.) Kiibohiitten station (3260 ft.), and proceed by railway or on

foot via (1 hr.) Obermoldan (262 ft.; Hot. Macho; station 20 min.

from the village) back to (IY2 lii"-) Eleonorenhain. Or we may take

the train from Kubohutten (1 hr.) to Winterberg (2280 ft. ; Hot.

Habsburg; pop. 5200), with a Schloss of Prince Schwarzeuberg.
See Baedeker's Austria.

From Passau to Haidmuhle, 39 M., bfanch-line in about 4 hrs.

(3 ^ 70, 1 ^l 65 pf.).

Fassan, see p. 350. We cross the Danube 2 M. above Passau. —
2^2 M- Stelzlhof, on the left bank. — We next ascend through
wooded valleys to (SVgM.) Tiefenbach (1295 ft.), and then wind
down to the prettv valley of the Ilz, reaching its left bank bevoud
(91/2 M.) Fischhatts.

I2V2M. Kalteneck (1090 ft.; Hot. Gunder). A branch-line is

under construction thence viii Tittling (p. 363) and Hengcrsberg to

Deggendorf (p. 356).

Road to (3 M.) Btichlberg (1610 ft. ; Hot. Pangcrl). Motor-omn. from
Passau via Hutthurm, see p. 350. From Biichlberg we may go on to
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(IV2 hi'- ; blue and green way-inarks) Lichtenau (2380 ft. ; Hot. fjtemplinger,
R. 80 pf.-l <.^ 20 pf.), a summer resort ^vith fine views. Thence to Hatizen-
berg (p. 354; carr. 3, with two horses 6 JC), IV2 hr. ; to Waldkirchoi
(see below), 2 hrs.

Beyond a short tnnuel we see to the left, above, the finely

.situated Schloss Fursteneck (1595 ft.; now an inn and brewery).

Below it, at the confluence of the Schonberger and AVolfsteiner Ilz,

lies the Aumiihle, a good inn (R. 1-1 V21 P- ^Va"^ '^)i V4 ^^'- fi*'^"^

(I51/2 M.) Fursteneck station (1170 ft.). — The line then follows the

valley of the Osterhach via (17^2^-) ^eiihaiismuhle to (IQi/g M.)

Ptohriibach (1305 ft.; Hot. zur Post, R. 1 ^ 20-1 J6 50 pf.), a

prettily situated village.

231/2 M. Waldkirehen (1885 ft. ; Hot. Post, R. 1-2 ^; Fritz

Meindl; Setzer), a village with 1510 inhab., junction for the branch-

line to Freyung (]). 367). A tine view may be obtained from the

village of Oberfrauenwald (2920 ft. ; Hot. Kohl), 1^/^ hr. to the

S.E. Thence to Hauzeuberg (p. 354; blue and red way-marks),

ly^hr. ; to Sonnen (p. 354), 1^ , ^n'- From AValdkirchen to Lichtenau,

see above.

26 M. Erlau-Zwiesel. — 27^2 ^I- Wollaberg, on the right,

above. — 28^/2 ^i- Jandelshrunn. — 32^2 M. Neu-Reichenau
(2300 ft. ; Hot. Dreisessel. Hilttennieister). Omn. to Breitenberg

(p. 354), Ascent in 21/0 hrs. to the refuge on the Dreisessel ("see below

;

white and green way -marks), or in 3 hrs. to the Dreiecksmark

(p. 367; red and blue way-marks). — Beyond (35 M.)J.Z^i?e?c/<e«a?t

(2625 ft.; Hot. Schmidhuberi the line reaches its highest point

(3145 ft.). — 36V2 M. Fraaenberfj (2810 ft.; inn). Shortest ascent

hence to the Hochstein and Dreisessel refuge (see below; 1^ ., hr.;

white and red way-marksi.

39 M. Haidmiihle (2665 ft.; Hot. Bayerwald, R. 1 ^), the

Bavarian frontier-village. Excursions may be made hence to the

KW. to the (1 hr,; omn. twice daily) village of Bischofsreat

(3280 ft.; Hot. Sirtl, Madl), and to the S. through the forest to

the Hochstein and (2 hrs.) Dreisessel refuge (see below; white and

yellow way-marks).
From Haidmuhle to Schwarzes Kreuz, 7 M., Austrian state railway

in V-, hr. — We cross the Austrian frontier and descend into the vallev
of the Kalte Molclau. — 2 M. Neutal (2805 ft. ; Hot. Jungbauer). To the
Dreisessel refuge (see below), 2 hrs. ; to the Dreiecksmark or the Stifter

monument, see p. 367; to Eleonoreuhain and Kuschwarda, see p. 365;
along the Schwemm- Kanal to Hirschhergen (p. 367), 11/2 hr. — 4i/q M.
Tiisset (inn). To the X.. on the TussetfeJsen (,3150 ft.), is the (^/I'hr.)

Tusset-Kapelle. — 7 M. Sch-warzes Kreuz (inn), junction for lines N.
to (31/., M.) Wallern, and S.E. via fSV'.j M.l Sahiau (p. 367) to (541/2 M.)
Budiceis. See Baedeker's Austria.

The *Dreisesselfels (4305 ft.; approaches, see above), with

a new^ refuge ^40 beds at 1 ^i 30-1 -_// 50 pf,), is the most visited of

the peaks of the Dreisesselberg, The summit, consisting of piled-

up blocks of granite, commands an admirable view of the Bohmer-
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Wald and the Alps; still finer towards the N. and E. from the

Hochstein (4365 ft.), 10 min. distant.

Descent from the Dreisesselfels via the Eosenherger to Breitenherg

and Passau, see p. 354.

From the Dreisesselfels a path follows the arete past the

(1 hr.) Bayrischer Blockenstein (4470 ft.; fine view) to the (1/4 hr.)

Dreiecksmark (4330 ft.) , where the boundaries of Bavaria, Bohemia,

and Austria meet.
From the Dreiecksmark we may descend S. (red and blue way-marks)

to the Steinernes Meei\ and thence (red and green way -marks) to the

Hosenberger (p. 354), 1 hr. ; S.W. to Neu-Reichenau (p. 366), 21/2 hrs.
;

or N.W. to Neutal (p. 366), IV2 hr.

Beyond the Dreiecksmark we reach the (^3 l"". ; black and yellow

way-marks) Bohmischer Blockenstein or Seestein (4520 ft.), whence

we descend to the right to the (5 min.; yellow way-marks) Kanzel,

where we suddenly catch sight of the dark, forest -girt '^Blocken-

stein- See (3565 ft.; 77 acres in area, 105 ft. deep; evening light

best) far below. If, instead of turning to the right on the Bohmischer

Blockenstein, we take the main path to the left, we reach (\ 4 hr.;)

the edge of the cliff", 920 ft. above the lake, on which stands the

Monument to Adalbert Stifter (1805-68), who has celebrated this

spot in his tales. A fine view of the lake and the distant Moldau

valley is enjoyed.

From the Stifter monument X.W. to Neutal (p. 366;. 2 hrs. — A
steep path descends also in 1/., hr. to the shelter-hut (quarters for 12 pers.)

on the X. bank of the Blockenstein-See. Thence we may descend either

N. via (1V2 hr.) Eirschbergen (2840 ft.; Hot. Fechter, R. 1 A': Stiny;

along the Schwemm-Kanal to Neutal, see p. 3661, or E. via (li;.> hr.) Xeu-
ofen, to (IV4 or 3/^ hr.) Salnau station (2390 ft.: Hot. Muhr; p. 366). Or
we may descend S. from the shelter-hut via (IV2 hr. ; white and red way-
marks)" i/o/^sc7i7a(/ (rfmts. at the forester's, bed 2 K), and then along the

road via Ulrichsberg \v. 354), to (31/2 hrs.) Aige7i (:i860 ft. ; Hot. Almes-
bcrger; omn. to Breiteuberg, see p. 354), terminus of a railway to (431/2 ^I-

Linz. See Baedeker's Austria.

From Waldkirchex (p. "366) to Freyixg, 7^0 M., branch-line

in Vj hr. — 3'
., M. Karlsbach. — 1^;^ M. Freyung (2085 ft.:

Hot. Post, R. 1 L/<^20pf.; Miirkl , Glockl, Probstl), a village with

1040 inhabitants. About V4 hr. to the N. is Schloss Wolfstein,

built in 1590; ^^ hr. to the S. rises the Geiersberg (2610 ft.; fine

panorama). Road (omn.) K to (7 M.) Mauth (ascent of the Lusen,

see p. 364).
From Frkyunc to Kusohward.\ (p. 365), 15 M., by omu. daily in

4 hrs., or by carr. (from tlic Hotel Post: 8 J^. with two horses 12 ..«).

via (10'/.2 M.) Kleinphnippsreiit (3210 ft.; Hot. Liedl), to which an omu.
plies twice daily.

From Freyung a road runs to the N.\V. via Bierhiltfe to (2 hrs.)

Hohenau (2635 ft.; Hot. Krottenthaler, Moosbauer, Hobels-

berger), which commands beautiful views. i^Omn. from Freyung
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twice daily in 3 hrs. via Hohenau to G-rafenau, p. 363, 12 M.) A
pleasanter route crosses the Sausbach at the church of Freyung

and descends along the right bank of the stream through the Buch-
berger-Leite, a romantic rocky gorge, to (l^/^ hr.) the Buchberg-
Milhle (rfmts.), whence we ascend to the right via Saulorn to

(11/2 111'-) Hohenau.
From Hohenau roads lead W. to (IV2 hr.) Grafenau (p. 363; omn.,

see above), and X.W. to (2 hrs.) St. Osivald (p. 364). — Ascent of the

Lusen (p. 364), N. of Hohenau, via KircM, Schonbrunn, and the Tummel-
platz (p. 364), 31/2 hrs. (blue way-marks).
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Birk 158.

Birkenfeld 24.

Birkenstein 333.

Bischbrunn 116.

Bischofsgriin 156.

Bischofshaube, the 362
Bischofsheim vor der
Rhon 145.

Bischofsmais 857.

Bischofsreut 366.

Bischofswiesen 841.

Bistritzer See, the 860,

Blaibach 359.

Blankenberg 133.

Blankenhorn 27.

Blaubeuren 84.

Blaufelden 36.

Blautopf, the 84.

Blender, the 311.

Blenheim 194.

Blindheim 194.

Blind-See, the 318.

Blockenau 317.

Blockenstein, the Bayri-
scher 367.

— , the Bohmischer 367.

— See. the 367.

Blomberg, the 329.

Blossersberg 357.

Blumeuberg, the 226.

Blutenburg 304.

Bobing 307.

Bobingen 309.

Boblingen 59.

Bbbrach 357.

Booklet 1-44.

Bocksleite, the 154.

Bodelshausen 80.

Bodenlaube 143.

Bodenmais 362.

Boden-See, the 91.

Bodenwohr 347.

Bodman 97.

Bogen 349.

Bogenberg, the 349.

Bohemian Forest 358.

Bohmer-Wald 358.

Bohming 226.

B6hmi.srh-Brunnen 348.

Eisen-stein 360.

Rohren 365.

Bolberg, the 80.

Boll 44.

Bollatfelsen, the 82.

Bolzwang 326.

Bopfingen 41.

Bosler, the 44.

Bottwar-Tal 21.

Boxberg 130.

Brackenheim 27.

Brandholz 156.

Brannenburg 335.

Braunau am Inn 345.

iBraunenberg, the 41.

Bregenz 96.

Breitach-Klamm 313.

Breitbrunn 308.

Breitenberg 354.

Breitengiissbach 136.

Breitenstein, the 70.

Breitenwang 318.

Brendlorenzen 145.

Brennes-Sattel, the 361.

Brentenwand, the 343.

Brenz 41.

Brenzkofer Berg, the 83.

Brenztopf, the 40.

Bretten 18.

Breuberg 111.

Brielhof 78.

Bronnbach 130.

Bronnen, Schloss 87.

Brotzingen 24.

Bruchsal 18.

Bruckberg 232.

Brucken 70.

Briickenau 144.

Bruckerfels, the 71.

Briinnensweiler Hohe,
the 52.

Buch 326.

Buchau (Tyrol) 332.
— (Wurtemberg) 51.

Buchberger-Leite, the
368.

Biichelberg, the 111.

Buchenberg 312.

Biichenbronner Hohe 24.

Buchhalde, the 77.

Buehhaus 158. 228.

Biichlberg 365.

Buchloe 309.

Buchsee 326.

Buchwald 364.

Buckleter Kapf, the 71.

Budweis 366.

Bug 150.

Buhl 313.

Buoch 38.

Burg 35.

Burgau 227.

Burgberg (Algau) 312.
— (Hurbe-Tal) 40.

— , the (nearMaulach) 36.

Burgfarrnbach 128.

Burgfelden 82.

— , Ruin of 86.

Burghalde, the 311.

Burghausen 338.

Burgholz, the 16.

Burgkirchen 338.

Burgkundstadt 134.

Burglengenfeld 229.

Burgsiun 113.
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Burgstadt 112.

Burgstall, the (near

Furth) 347.

— , the (near Rothenburg)
221.

Bnrgstein, the (on the

Altmuhl) 224.

— . the (Fichtel-Gebirge)
159.

— , the (Swabian Alb) 75.

Burkardus-Hohle 113.

Burladingen 81.

Burlafingen 227.

Barren, the 44.

Burrenhof 70.

Bussen, the 85.

Bixsslingen 65.

Buttenhausen 77.

Buxheim 86.

Cadolzburg 189.

Calmbach 25.

Calw 24.

Cannstatt 16.

Castell 127;

Cham 347.

Chamerau 359.

Chammiinster 347.

Charlotten-Hohle 40.

Chiem-See, the 3.B6.

Cleebronn 27.

Clemenshall 31.

Constance 89.

— , Lake of 91.

Crailsheim 36.

Creglingen 221.

Czerkow, the 348.

Dachau 303.

Dachauer Moos, the 227.

Danube, River 86. 213.

— Canal 215.

Dapfen 77.

Darching 333.

Darmstadt 111.

Deffernik 361.

Degerloch 16.

Degerndorf 326.

Deggendorf 356.

Deilingen 82.

Deining 129.

Demansfiirth 128.

Denkendorf 43.

Derendingen 80.

Derneck 77.

Dettelbach 127.

Dettenhausen 59.

Dettingen (near Kirch-
heim) 69.— (on the Main) 108.

— (near Urach) 72.

Dettwang 221.

Diepoldsburg 70.

Diessen 228. 308.

Dietfurt, Ruin of 86.

— im Altmuhl-Tal 129.

Dillberg, the 128.

Dillingen 194.

Dillstein 24.

Dilsberg 130.

Dingolfing 232.

Dinkelsbuhl 193.

Dinkelscherben 227.

Dischingen 40.

Ditzenbach 45.

Dobraberg, the 133.

Dollnstein 224.

Dombiihl 37.

Douauheuncburg 85.

Donau-Moos, the 214.

Donaustauf 210.

Donauworth 193.

Donndorf 154.

Donzdorf 44.

Doos (Franconian
Switzerland) 162.

(near Nuremberg)
128.

Dorf 312.

Dorfen (near Ampfing)
338.

— (near Wolfratshausen)
326.

Dorfprozelten 112.

Dormettingen 81.

Dornigheim 107.

Dornstetten 59.

Dorzbach 126.

Dotternhausen 81.

Drei Briider, the 157.

Dreiecksmark, the 367.

Dreifaltigkeitsberg, the
63.

Dreifiirstcnstein, the 80.

Drei Quellen 161.

Dreisesselfels, the 354,

366.

Dreistclzberg, the 144.

Durlach 24.

Diirnbuch, the 214.

Diirrmenz 20.

Dusslingen 80.

Ebelsbach 141.

Eben 332.

Ebenhausen (near Kis-
singen) 141.— (near Munich) 326.

Ebensfeld 136.

Eberbach 31.

Eberhartsbcrg, the 138.

Ebermannstadt 160.

Ebersberg 334.

— , Schloss 35.

Ebingen 82.

Ebnath 191.

Ebni-See, the 36.

Ebrach 136.

Echaz-Tal 74.

Echterdingen 16.

Echterspfahl 115.

Eck 362.

Eckartshausen 36.

Eckenberg, the 320.

Eckersdorf 154.

Eckfels, the 75.

Ecksberg 355.

Edelsberg, the 312.

Eger 132.

Egern 331.

Egg, Schloss 356.

Eggen 311.

Eggenfelden 355.

Eggmuhl 230.

Eggolsheim 136.

Eglofifstein, Schloss 161.

Ehingen 85.

Ehrenbcrg (near Heins-
heim) 31.

(near Reutte) 318.

Ehrenberger Klause 318.

Ehrenburg, the 160.

Ehrenfcls, Schloss 76.

Ehring 339.

Ehrwald 318.

Eibensbach 27.

Eib-See, the 321.

Eichicht 131.

Eichstatt 225.

Fining 214.

Einkorn, the 35.

Einodsbach 313.

Einsiedel 116.

Eisenstein 357.

Eislingen 44.

Elchingen 41.

Eleonorenhain 365.

Elfershausen 114.

Elisabethenberg 38.

Elisental 358.

Ellingen 139.

EUrichshausen 37.

EUwangen 37.

Elm 113.

Elmauer Gries 323.

Elsenfeld 111.

Elster. Bad 132.

Eltersdorf 138.

Eltmann 141.

Emmingen 24.

Empfine 337.

Emskirchen 128.

Endersbach 88.

24*
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Endorf 336.

Engelburg 363.

Engelhardtsberg 162.

Engelhof TO.

Engelmannsreuth 191.

Engelsberg 111.

Engelsburg, the 221.

Engen 64.

Englinar 356.

Engstlatt 81.

Eningen 73.

Ensdorf 346.

Enteubiihl, the 229.

Entringen 57.

Enzberg 23.

Enzisweiler 95.

Enzklosterle 26.

Enzweihingen 20.

Epfendorf"62.
Eppingeu 29.

Epprechtstein 158.

Erbach (Odenwald) 31.

— fSwabia) 50.

Erbendorf 229.

Erding 338.

Eremitage 154.

Eriskirch 98.

Erkenbrechtsweiler 71.

Erlangen 137.

Erlau 354.
— Zwiesel 366.

Ermeneerst 312.

Ernstthal 112.

Erpfingeu 76.

Eschach 86.

Eschau 115.

Eschenau (Bavaria) 189.
— (Wurtemberg) 33.

Esehenbach (near Ans-
bach) 206.

— (near Goppingen) 44.

— (near Hersbruck) 190.

E.schenlohe 319. .

Eschlkain 348.

Eselsburg 40.

Esels-Hohe. the 116.

Eslarn 229.

Espasingeu 97.

Esselbach 116.

Essingen 40.

Esslingen 42.

Ettal 325.

Ettaler Berg, the 325.
— Manndl, the 325.

Etterzhausen 129.

Etwashausen 127.

Etzelwang 346.

Etzwilen 65.

Eubigheim 130.

Eulbach 32.

Eurasburg 326.

Eutingen 24. 59.

Eyach 58.

Eyachmuhle 26.

Eybach 45.

Fahrenberg, the 229.

Faimingen 194.

Falepp 333.

Falkensteiu (near Kuf-
stein) 335.

(near Sigmaringen)86,

, the (near Pfronten'
312.

, the (Konigs-See) 343,

, the Grosser 361.

. the Kleiner 361.

Falkensteiner Hohle 71.

Fall 330.

Falleralm. the 323.

Falls 134.

Faltenbach-Fall 313.

Falzkopfl, the 344.

Fantaisie 154.

Farchant 320.

Farrenberg, the 80.

Faulbach 112.

Faulenbach 315.

Faurudau 44.

Favorite-Park 22.

Feehenbach 112.

Feder-See, the 51.

Feilberg 311.

Feilnbach 335.

Feldaflng 306.

Feldwies 337.

Fellbach 38.

Ferchen-See, the 322.

Ferdinandsthal 361.

Fern Pass 318.

Fernstein, Schloss 319.

— See, the 319.

Feucht 128.

Feuchtwangen 193.

Feuerbach 22.

Fichtelberg 157.

Ficbtel-G-ebirge, the

155.

Fichtenberg 36.

Filder. the 58.

Filseck, Schloss 44.

Fischbach (Lake of Con
stance) 97.

— (on the Inn) 335.

Fischbachau 333.

Fischburg-Tal 73.

Fischhaus 365.

Fischhausen 333.

Fischingen 62.

Fleck 330.

Fleekl 157.

Flehingen 29.

Fletzen 326.

Flochberg, the 41.

Floriansberg, the 52.

Floss 229.

Flossenburg 229.

Fluh 314.

Fohlenhof 73.

Forbach 26.

Forchheim 136.

Fornsbach 35.

F6rsters-H6hle 163.

Franconian Switzerland
159.

Frankenwald, the 133.

Frankfort 101.

Franzensbad 132.

Frauenau 363.

Frauenberg 366.

Frauen-Insel 336.

Frauenzimniern 27.

Freiberg-See, the 313.

Freilassing 338.

Freising 232.

Fremdingen 192.

Frensdorf 136.

Freudenberg 112.

Freuden-See, the 354.

Freudenstadt 59.

Freystadt 128.

Freyung 367.

Frickenhausen 216.

Frickingen 97.

Fridingen 87.

Friedberg 214.

Friedrichsburg, Schloss
229.

Friedrichshafen 94.

Frommern 82.

Frontenhaiisen 355.

Frundeck 58.

Fuchseck, the 44.

Funtensee-Tauern, the

343.

Fiirstenau, Schloss 32.

Fiirsteneck 366.

Fiirstenfeld 308.

Fiirstenfeldbruck 308.

Fursten-Hcihe, the 82.

Furstenhut 364.

Fiirstenstein, the 156.

— . Schloss 363.

Furth 347.

Fiirth 189.

Fussen 314.

G-acht, Pass 313.

Gaibach 140.

Gailbach 115.

Gaildorf 36.

Gailenkirchen 33.

Gailenreuth 161.
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Gailenreuther Zoolithen-
Hohle 161.

Gaimuhle 31.

Gaisberg, the 356.

Gaisbiihl 77.

Gallnerberg, the 349.

Gamburg 130.

Gammertingen 76.

Gangkofen 355.

Garatshausen 306.

Garching 339.

Garitz 114.

Garmisch 320.

Gars 355.

Gasseldorf 160.

Gau, the 59.

Gausmannsweiler 36.

Gauting 305.

Gebhardsberg 96.

Gefrees 134.

Geierkopf, the 324.

Geiersberg, the (near
Deggcndorf) 354.

— , the (near Freyuug)
367.

Geisenhausen 232.

Geis-Hohe, the 115.

Geislingen an der Steige
45.

Geislinger Steige, the 45
Geisriegel, the 356.

Geitau 333.

Gelber Felscn. the 70.

Geltendorf 228. 308.

Gemiinden 113.

Genkingen 78.

Georgenaii 73.

Georgensgmtind 139.

Gera 131.

Gerbers-Hohle 77.

Gerhausen 84.

Gerlachsheim 129.

Gernsbach 26.

Geroldseck 335.

Geroldsgriin 133.

Gerolzhofeu 127.

Gerstetten 46.

Gessertshausen 228.

Gcyersberg, the 115.

Giech, Schloss 151.

Giengen an der Brenz 40
Giessstcin, the 74.

Gingen an der Fils 45.

Girching 349.

Girgelstein. the 159.

Girglhof 360.

Glashutte 332.

Glashutten 154.

Glonn 334.

Gmain 341.

Gmund 331.
I

Gmund 39.

Gmundbriicke 341.

Gogging 214.

Goggingen 202.

Gohrenberg, the 97.

Goldbach 93.

Goldkronach 156.

Goldmiihl 156.

Goldshofe 37. 41.

Gomadingen 77.

Gondelsheim 18.

Gonningen 77.

Goppingen 44.

Gosbach 45.

Gosheim 63.

Gossenheim 114.

Gossweinstein 161.

Gotteszell 356.

Gottmadingen 65.

Gotzenalm, the 343.

Grabelesberg, the 82.

Grabenstetten 70.

Grafenaschau 322.

Grafenau 363.

Grafenberg 138.

Grafeneck, Schloss 77.

Grafing 334.

Grafrath 308.

Grassemann 157.

Grasmannsdorf 347.

Graswang 323.

Greding 139.

Greifenberg 228.

Greifenstein 75.

Greisselbach 128.

Griesbach 61.

Griesen 321.

Gronenbach 50.

Gronhart 140.

Gronsdorf 213.

Grossengstingen 76.

Grossgartach 29.

Grossgmain 341.

Gros.sgrundlach, Schloss
138.

Grosshesselohe 304. 325.

Grosshenbach 111.

Gross-Krotzenbnrg 107.

Steinhoim 107."

— Umstadt 32.

Grotzingen 24.

Grub 347.

Grubweg 354.

Grunbach 58.

Grundfeld 135.

Griinenberg 44.

Griinenworth 112.

Griiner Felseu. the 73

Griiusee-Tauern, the 343
Griinsfeld 129.

Griinstein 156.

Grunten, the 312.

GrUnwald 304. 325.

Giickhull, the 160.

Guffert, the 332.

Gugel 151.

Giiglingen 27.

Guglod 364.

Gumpenried 357.

Gundelfingcn (Bavaria)
194.

(Swabia) 77.

Gundolshausen 212.

Gundelsheim 31.

Giindlkofen 232.

Giindringen 24.

Giinzach 310.

Gunzburg 227.

Gunzenhausen 191. 224.

Gurgler Tal 319.

Giissenburg 40.

Gussmauns-Hohle 70.

Gutelplatz 360.

Gutenberg 70.

Gutenberger Hohle 70.

Gutenstein 86.

Giiterstein 73.

Guttenberg, Schloss 31.

Haag 338.

Habersteinc, the 159.

Hagelloch 57.

Hagn 327.

Hagnau 93.

Hahnenkamm, the (near
Gunzenhausen) 224.

. the (Spessart) 107.

Haidhof 229.

Haidkapelle 76.

Haidmiihle 366.

Haidstein 359.

Haidweiher, the 347.

Haigerloch 58.

Hailtingen 85.

Haiuberg. the 133.

Haiu-Saulen, the 112.

Haldenhof 97.

Haldon-See, the 313.

Hall 33.

Hallthurm 341.

Hals 353.

Hammelburg 114.

Hammcrn-Eisens trass

358.

Hamraersbach 321.

Hanau 107.

Hanfertal 76.

Hannberg 154.

Hanssrorglberg. the 190.

Harburg 193.

Hardheim 112.

Hartenstein 190.
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Hartsfeld, the 40.

Haselbach 132.

Hasenberg, the 17.

Hasloch 116.

Hasselbach 145.

Hassfurt 141.

Hassmersheim 31.

Hattingen 64.

Hausach 61.

Hansen (near Kissingen;
143.

— (near Lichtenfels) 135,

— im Tal 86.— ob Verena 63.

— Starzeln 81.

Hausener Felsen, the 44
Hausham 333.

Hausstein, the 356.

Hauzenberg 354.

Hayingen 85.

Hechendorf (near Mur
nau^ 319.

— (Pilsen-See) 307.

Hechingen 81.

Heersberg, the 82.

Hegau, the 64.

Hegne 88.

Heidelberg 18. 131.

Heidenfels, the 86.

Heidenheim an der Brenz
40.

Heidenloeher, the 93.

Heidingsfeld 216.

Heigenbriicken 112.

Heigl-Hohle 359.

Heilbronn 27.

Heilbrunn, Bad 326. 330
Heilbrunnen 54.

Heiligenberg 97.

Heilsbronn 37.

Heimbuchenthal 115.

Heimenstein, the 69.

Heimgarten, the 328.

Heining 349,

Heinsheim 31.

Heiterwang 318.

Heitleru 312.

Hellengerst 312.

Hellenstein, Schloss 40
Helmbrechts 133.

Hemigkofen 98.

Hemishofen 65.

Henfenfeld 346.

Hennerkobel. the 362.

Hepsisau 70.

Herbertingen 85.

Herblingen 65.

Herbrechtingen 40.

Hergatz 314.

Hermaringen 40.

Herrenberg 59.

Herren-Chiemsee

,

Schloss 336.
— Insel 336.

Herrieden 87.

Herrlingen 84.

Herrsberg 94.

Herrsching 308.

Hersbruck 190. 346.

Herzogenaurach 138.

Herzogstand. the 328.

Hesselberg. the 191.

Hessental 35.

Hessenthal 115.

Hetten 307.

Hettingen 76.

Hetzbach 31.

Heubach (near (Tiuiind)

40.
— (nearWiebelsbach) 32.

Heuberg. the 63.

Heuneburg 85.

Heunen-Saulen, the 112.

Heutingsheim 20. 22.

Hexenagger 227.

Hienheira 214.

Hilgartsberg 349.

Hilpoltstein 139.

Hiltenburg 45.

Hiltersdorf 347.

Hiramelkron 155.

Himmelschrofeu.the313.
Himmelsfelseu, the 45.

Hindelang 313.

Hinterjoch 313.

Hintermoos 96.

Hinterriss 330.

Hinter-See, the 344.

Hinterstein 313.

Hinter-Tiersee. the 331.

Hirsau 24.

Hirsehberg, Schloss 129.

Hirschbergen 367.

Hirschbiihel 344.

Hirschenstein, the 356.

HirschTiorn 130.

Hobing 139.

Hochalm 320.

Hochalpele, the 96.

Hochberg. the (near
Eisenstein) 348.

—, the (near Urach) 72.

Hochbrcite. the 326.

Hochbruck 356.

Hochdorf 24. 59.

Hochgern. the 337.

Hochhausen 31.

Hochstadt (near Hanau)
107.

— (near Lichtenfels) 134.

Hochstadt an der Aisch
137.

Hochstadt 194.

Hochstaufen, the 339.

Hochstein, the 367.

Hochst im Odenwald 32.

Hochwiese 73.

Hochzirl 322.

Hochzoll 228.

Hodingen 97.

Hodinger Tobel, the 93.

Hof 133.

Hofberg 232.

Hofen 25.

Hoffmannsruhe 313.

Hofheim 141.

Hohbiirg, the 346.

Hohenaschau, Schloss
336.

Hohenasperg 21.

Hohenau 367.

Hohenbaldern, Schloss
41.

Hohenbeilstein 21.

Hohenbregenz 96.

Hohenburg. Schloss 330.

Hoheneck 22.

Hohenentringen 57.

Hohenfels 97.

Hohen-Gerhausen 84.

Hohenheim. Schloss 17.

Hohenhonau 75.

Hohenhowen, the 61.

Hohenkarpfen 68.

Hohenkrahen 65.

Hohenleiten 326.

Hohennagold 24.

Hohenneuffen. the 71.

Hohenpeissenberg 307.

Hohenrain 326.

Hohenrechberg. the 68.

Hohenschaftlarn 326.

Hohenschwangau 315.

Hohenstadt 190.

H(3henstadt, Bad 355.

Hohenstaufen, the 69.

Hohenstein. the(S\v'abia)

45.

— , the (Francouian
Switzerland) 161.

— . Ruin of 190.

Hohenstoffeln. the 61.

Hohensulz. Bad 306.

Hohentwiel, the 64.

Hohenurach 72.

Hohenwarth 359.

Hohenwittlingen 73.

Hohenzollern 78.

Hoher Bogen. the 347.
— Fricken. the 320.
— Peissenberg, the 307.

HoheAVacht, the(Fichtel-

Gebirge) 157.
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Hohe Wacht, the (Franco-
nian Switzerland) 161.

— Warte 115.

Hohgau, the 64.

Hohlenstein, the 331.

Hohler Fels, the 84.

Hohloh, the 26.

Hoierberg, the 95.

Hoiren 95.

Holenbrunn 228.

Holledau, the 213.

Hollen-Tal 133.

HoUental-Klaram 321.

Hollfeld 154.

Hollriegelsgreuth 301.

325.

Holltobel 313.

Holnstein, Schloss 346.

Holzelfingen 75.

Holzen, Schloss 194.

Holzkirchen 329.

Holzschlag 367.

Hombiirg (near Ge-
mlmdeii) 114.

' (near Werthcim) 113.

Honau 74.

Honauer Steigc 75.

Honburg 63.

Hopfen-Sce, the 314.

Hopferau 31,4.

Hopfreben 96.

Horb 61.

Hornberg (on the Jagst)
36.

— (on the Neckar) 31.

Hornegg, Schlos.s 31.

H<3rnle, the (near Kohl-
grub) 323.

— , the (near Metziugen)
52.

Horn-See, the 26.

Hornstein 77.

Hosbach 112.

Hosskirch 88.

Hotting 322.

Hiilben 71.

Hummersteiii, the 160.

Hundelshausen 128.

Hundersingon 77.

Hunding-Hiittc 324.

Hundsriick. the 81.

Hunnenstcin. the 160.

Hiirben 40.

Hutten 77.

Hiittenbarh 190.

Hiittenberg. the 360.

loking 326.

Ilka-Hohe, the 306.

Illertissen 49.

Ilsank 344.

Immendingen 64.

Immenreuth 191.

Immenstaad 94.

Immenstadt 312.

Immenstadter Horn, the
312.

Imnaii 58.

Imst 319.

Indelhausen 77.

Ingolstadt 226.

Innsbruck 322. 332. 335.

Inzell 337.

Inzigkofen 82.

Ipf, the 41.

Iphofen 128.

Irrenlohe 229. 347.

Isar, River 304.

Isareck, Schloss 232.

Isel, the 96.

Isen 338.

Isny 86.

Jachenau 330.

Jagerhaus 323.

Jagersburg loH.

Jagerverein 116.

Jagstfeld 29.

Jagsthausen 126.

Jakobstal 108. 112.

Jandelsbrunn 366.

Janowitz 358.

Jenbach 332.

Jettenbach 355.

Jettenberg 345.

Jochberg. the 328.

.Jochimer Haulc. the 75.

Johanncsberg, tlie 111.

Johannishiigel, the 306.

Jordanbad 51.

Josephslust 87.

.Tosephsruhe 59.

Jossa 113.

Jugend, the 317.

Jungingen 81.

Jungnau 76.

Jusiberg, the 52.

Justingen 77.

Kadernberg, tlic 363.

Kahl 107.

Kahlgrund. the 107.

Kailbach 31.

Kainzenbad 321.

Kiilbermiihle 26.

Kalchreuth 189.

Kallcnberg 87.

Kaltenhronn 26.

Kaltenbrunn (near Par-
tenkirchen) 321.

— (Tegcrnsee) 331.

Kaltenburg 40.

Kalteneck 365.

Kammfels, the 70.

Ranker, the 321.

Kanzel, the 356.

Kapfelberg 212.

Kapfenburg, Schloss 41.

Kappel 312.

Karches 157.

Karlsbach 367.

Karlsburg 114.

Karls-Hohle 76.

Karlslinde 52. 71.

Karlstadt 114.

Karpfham 355.

Karwendel-Gebirge, the

321.

Kasbach-Tal 332.

Kastl 338.

Katzenbuckel, the 31.

Katzenstein 40.

Kaufbeuren 310.

Kaufering 308.

Keitersberg, the 359.

Kelheim 212.

Kellberg .3.54.

Kemnath-Xeustadt 155.

Kcmpten 310.

Kernen, the 42.

Kessel. the 343.

Kcsselberg, the 327.

Kiefersfelden 335.

Killer 81.

Kinding 226.

Kipfenberg 226.

Kirchahorn 154.

Kirchberg 36.

-. Bad 340.

^. Sehloss 94.

Kirchehrenbach 16(t.

Kirchenbirkig 162.

Kirchcnlaibach 155. 191.

Kirchenlamitz 228.

Kirchentellinsfurt 54.

Kirchheim (Lower Fran-
conia) 129.

— (on the Xeckar) 27.

— (Swabia) 309.
— untcr Teck 69.

Kirchl 368.

Kirchleite, the l.')6.

Kirchweidach 339.

Kissing 228.

Kissingen 141.

Kisslau 18.

Kisslegg 86.

Kitzingcn 127.

Kitz-See. the 355.

KlafFcrstrass 354.

Klais 321.

Klamm, the 213.

Klattau 358.
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Klausenberg, the 232

Kleinbrach 143.

Kleinengstingen 76.

Kleinheubach 111.

Klein-Kombiirg 35.

Kleinlangheiin 127.

Kleinlesau 162.

Kleinpbilippsreut 367.

Klein-Steinheim 107.

Kleinweil 327.

Kleinweiler-Hofen 312.

Klesheim, Schlo.ss 338.

Klingenberg 111.

Klingenbrunn 363.

Klingenstein 84.

Klippeneck, the 63.

Klosterberg, the (near
Aschaffenburg) 108.

— , the (near Passau) 353.

Kloster-Reichenbach 61.

Kniebis, the 61.

Kniepass, the (near

Berchtesgaden) 344.

— . the (near Reutte) 317.

Knittlingen 20.

Kochel 327.

— See, the 327.

Kochendorf 29.

Kofel, the 323.

Kohlberg 71.

Kohlgrub 323.

Kolbermoor 335.

Kollenberg 112.

Kollnburg 357.

Kolmstein 347.

Komburg 34.

Kongen 52.

Konig 32.

— Otto-Hohle 129.

Konigsberg 141.

Konigsbronu 40.

Konigsegg 88.

Konigshofen (on the
Tauber) 130.

— an der Kahl 108.

— im G-rabfeld 145.

KSnigssee 343.

Kr3nigs-See, the 343.

Konigswart 355.

Konradfels, the 70.

Konstanz 89.

Konzell 349.

Konzenberg, the 63.

Koppenburg, the 161.

Kornberg 44.

— , the Grosser 228.

Kornbiihl, the 80.

Korntal 22.

Kornwestheim 22.

Koslar-Hohe, the 156.

Kosseine, the 1-59.

Kosslarn 345.

Kotzting 359.

Krahberg, the 31.

Kraiburg 355.

Kranzberg, the 322.

Krauchenwies 88.

Krausenbach 115.

Krautheim 130.

Kraut-Insel 336.

Krebsstein 70.

Kreklmoos 324.

Kressbronn 94.

Kreussen 190.

Kreuth 331.

Bad 331.

Kreiizberg, the 144.

Kreuzeck 320.

Kreuzfelsen, the 359.

Kreuzlingen 91.

Kreuzwertheim 113.

Krinning 354.

Kronach 132.

Kronwinkel, Sehloss 232
Krottensee 190.

Krumbach 309.

Krlin 328.

Kubani, the 365.

Kubohiitten 365.

Kuchalb 45.

Kuchen 45.

Kuchler Loch 343.

Kufstein 335.

Kugelberg. the 77.

Kiihberg. the 356.

Kuhflucht, the 320.

Kuhleberg, the 24.

Kiihlenfels 162.

Kulmbach 134.

Ktilsheim 130.

Kunzelsau 83.

Kiinziug 349.

Kupfer 33.

Kups 132.

Kurnach 311.

Kuschwarda 365.

Lackenhauser 354.

Lahn 318.

Laichingen 46.

Laiz 82.

Lam 359.

Lambach 359.

Lamberg, the 347.

Landau an der Isar 355.

Landl 334.

Landsberg 308.

Landshut 230.

Langdorf 362.

Langen 314.

Langenargen 98.

Langenau 41.

Langenauer Tal 133.

Langenbach 232.

Langenbriicken 18.

Langenbrunn 87.

Langenburg 36.

Langenloh 163.

Langenprozelten 113.

Langenteilen 191.

Laugert, the 40.

Lanzing 339.

Latten-Gebirge, the 339.

Lauchheim 41.

Lauda 129.

Laudenbach (near Karl-
stadt) 114.

— (near Klingenberg 111.

— (nearMergentheim) 36.

Lauenstein 131.

Lauf 190. 346.

Laufach 112.

Laiifen (nearFreilassing)
339.

— , Sehloss 66.

— an der Eyach 82.

Laufenmiihle 77.

Lauffen 27.

Lauingen 194.

Laupheim 50.

Lauterach 77.

Lantern 84.

Lauter-See, the 322.

Lautlingen 82.

Lechbruck 314.

Lechfeld, the 309.

Lehesten 131.

Leipheim 227.

Leithen 322.

Lemberg, the 62.

Lengfurt 113.

Lenggries 330.

Lenninger Tal 69.

Leonberg 22.

Leonbronn 27.

Leonhardstein 331.

Leoni 305.

Lermoos 318.

Lcuchtenberg 229.

Leustetten 97.

Leutasch-Klamm 322.

Leutershausen 37.

Leutkirch 86.

Lichtenau (Bayr. Wald)
366.— (Spessart) 116.

Lichtenberg 133.

— , Castle of 21.

Lichteneck 347.

Lichtenfels 135.

Lichtenstein, Sehloss 75.

— (near Xeufra) 81.

Lichtenstcrn 33.
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Li.^lj.^nzell. Bad 24.

Limburg, the 69.

Limes Romaniis 39. 214.

Limpurg M.
Lindau 9.5.

Lindberg HGl.

Liiidenberg ;^1J.

Liiideiifurt IKi.

Lindenhardt 190.

Linderliof. Schloss :i2:'>.

Liudifb, Sehloss 81.

Linkenbolds-Hohle 82.

Linsenbiihl 74.

Linz Uo. 3.54. ;i67.

Lochau 96.

Lochenhornle, the 82.

Lochenstcin, the 81.

Lochlegruiid 157.

Lockstein, the 342.

Loderhart 356.

LofFelstelz 20.

Lohberg 8.59.

Lohr 113.

Lohrbach 130.

Lohrerstrasse 116.

Lorch 38.

Lossburg 61.

Lowenstein 33.

Luchsburg 159.

Ldcken-Urwald. the 365.

Ludwig.sburg 21.

Ludwigshafen 97.

Ludwigshall 29.

Ludwigshohe 190.

Ludwigs-Kanal 146.

Ludwigs-Quelle 157.

Ludwigsstadt 131.

Ludwigsstein, the 363.

Ludwigstal 87.

laidwigsthal 357.

Luhe 229.

Luisenburg, the 159.

Lupfen, the 63.

Lusen, the 364.

Liistheim, Schlo.ss 303.

Lustnau 54.

Madchenfels, the 7.'i.

Mader 364.

Madersdorf 347.

Magdeberg. -the 64.

Magerkingen 76.

Maidbronn 126.

Maierswald 326.

Maihingen 192.

Mainau 92.

Mainberg, Schloss 141.

Mainburg 227. 232.

Mainkofen 356.

Mainkur 107.

Mainleus 134.

Maisenburg 77.

Maitis 67.

Maraming 35.").

Mantler Wald 15.-).

Manzell 94.

Marbach (on the Lautt-r)

(on the Neckar) 20.

Marblinger Hiihe, the
334.

Mariaberg 76.

— , the 311.

Maria-Einsiodel 325.

Mariahilfberg, tlic (near
Amberg) 346.

— (near Xeuuiaikt) 128.

Maria-Rain 312.

Mariazell 79.

Markbuchen 357.

Markelfingen 88.

Markelsheim 36.

Markdorf 97.

Markt, Schloss 194.

Marktbibart 128.

Marktbreit 216.

Markt Erlbach 128.
— Grafiiig 334.

Marktheidenfeld 113.

Marktl 345.

Marktlenthen 228.

Markt Oberdorf 314.

Marktoffingen 192.

Markt-Redwitz 191.
— Schnaittaeh 190.

Marktschorgast 134.

Marktzeuln 134.

Marquartstein 337.

Martinsberg, the 81.

Martinswand. the 322.

Matzbach 338.

Matze, the 159.

Maubach 35.

Maulach 36.

Maulbronn 18.

Maurach 332.

Mauth 364.

Mauthansl 341.

Maximilians-Grotte 190.

Meckenbeiuen 52.

Meckesheim 31.

Meersburg 92.

Mehltheuer 132.

Mehrstetten 77.

Meierhalde. the 45.

Meilingeu 312.

Meiningcn 145.

Meitingen 194.

Memmingen 49.

Mengen 86.

Mensengesass 107.

Menterschwaige 304

iMorgcLstetten 40.

JMergentheim. Bad 36.

•Mering 228.

Merkendorf 224.

Afertingen 194.

Mespelbrunn 115.

Messelstein, the 41.

Mcsskireh 88.

Metlangen (17.

Metten 356.

Metzingen 52.

.Mifhaelsberg, the (near
Cleebroun) 27.

— , the (near Gnndels-
beim) 31.

— , the (near Kelheim)
212.

Michelrieth 116.

Michelsberg, the (near
Hersbruck) 190.

— , the (near Sussen) 44.

Michelstadt 32.

Miesbach 333.

Miltach 359.

Miltenberg 111.

Mimmenhausen 97.

Mindelheim 309.

Miuneburg 31.

Mi.stelgau 154.

Mittelzell 88.

Mitten 95.

Mittcuwald 321.

Mittersendling 328.

Mitterteich 132.

Moekmuhl 126.

Modishofen 227.

Mogeldorf .345.

Moggers 314.

Mohringen (near Stutt-
gart) 16.

— (near Tutlingen) 64.

Moldau, Source of the

364.

Mombris 107.

Momlingen 111.

Monohberg 115.

Moudmilch-Hohle 70.

Monsberg 77.

Montfort, Schloss 98.

Moosburg 232.

Moritzberg, the 346.

Morlesau 114.

Mosbach 130.

Miissingcn 80.

^[udau 130.

Muggendorf 161.

Miihl 318.

Miihlacker 20.

Muhlberg, the 83.

Miihldorf 338.

MiihldorferHart, the 355.
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Muhlhausen 64.

Muhlheim (ou the Da
nube) 87.

— (on the Main) 107.

Miihlingen 88.

Miihlthal 305.

Miihriugen 58.

Miillnerhorn, the 339.

Mumling-Tal 31, 111.

Miluchaurach 138.

Miinchberg 133.

Miinchen 243.

Mlinchshofen 349..

Miinchsmiinster 214.

Munderkingen 85.

Munich 233.

Academy of Art 261
— of Science 246.

Alpine Museum 252.

Alter Hof 251.

Amalienhurg 301.

Anatomical Building
300.

Autiquarium 288.

Archives. Military 258
— , National 260.'

Arco-Zinneberg Pal-

ace 267.

Army Museum 258.

Art Exhibitions 242.

261. 262.

Au 302.

Aumeister 299.

Ausstelluners-Park 300.

Bahnhof-Pfatz 245.

Barracks of the Heavv
Cavalry 253.

Bayr. Hypotheken- und
Wechsel-Bank 250.

Benno Column 289.

Berg am Laim 302.

Bernheimer-Haus 249.

Blind Asylum 260.

Bogenhausen 299.

Botanical Gardens 301.

, Old 261.

Brienner-Strasse 267.

Brakl's KunsthausSOO.
Bronze Foundry 289.

Brunntal, Bad 299.

Burgersaal 246.

Cadet Corps 289.

Cemeteries 302.

Churches

:

Allerheiligen-Hof-
kirche 257.

Asam-Kirchlein 249.

Basilica of St. Boni-
face 262.

Dreifaltigkeits-
Kirche 250.

MtTincH.
Churches

:

English 242. 249.

Erloser-Kirche 261.

Frauen-Kirche 246.

GiesingerKirche 302.

Greek 250.

Heilige Geist-Kirche
248.

Ludwigs-Kirche 260.

Mariahilf-Kirohe
302.

Markus-Kirche 268.

Matthaus-Kirche
245.

Maximilians-Kirohe
302.

Pauls-Kirche 300.

Peters-Kirche 248.

Reiche Kapelle 256.

St.Anna-Kirche253.
; Alte 253.

St. Benno-Kirche
289.

St. Cajetans-Hof-
kirche 257.

St. Elisabethen-
Kirche 299.

St. Johannes - Nepo-
muk-Kirche 249.

St. Johannis - Kirche
301.

St.Lukas-Kirche253.
St. Michaels -Hof-

kirche 302.

St. Ursula-Kirch

e

261.

Theatiner Hofkirche
257.

Coach Houses, Royal
257.

Coins, Cabinet of 246.

Cornelius-Briicke 302.

Courts of Justice 245.
— — . New 245.

DarmstadterBank 249.

Deutsche Bank 249.

Diener-Strasse 248.

Drawings and Engrav-
ings 283.

English Garden 299.

Ethnographical Mu-
seum 258.

Feldherrn-Halle 257.

Festsaal-Bau 255.

Fountains

:

Fisch-Brunnen 247.

Fortuna 248.

Gasteiger 245.

Germanen - Brunnen

MuwiCH.
Fountains:
Harvester 253.

Hubertus 296.

Jonas 261.

Xornen 245.

Wittelsbach 249.

Fiirstenhauser 289.

Giirtner-Platz 301.

Gasteig-Anlagen 254.

Georgiauum 260.

Giesing 302.

Glas-Palast 261.

Glyptothek 262.

Gross-Markthalle 299.

Haidhausen 301.

Haus fiir Handel und
Gewerbe 250.

Herzog-Karl-Palais
259.

— Max-Burg 250.

Hirschau 299.

HistoricrtMuseum 249.

Hofbrauhaus 251.

Hof-Garten 258.
— Theater 256.

Industrial Art, School
of 267.

Isar-Auen 304.
— Tor 248.

Justiz-Palast 245.

Karls-Platz 245.
— Tor 245.

Karolinen-Platz 268.

Kaufinger Strasse 245.

Konigs-Bau 256.
^- Platz 262.

Kriegs-Ministerium
259.

Kunstausstellungs-
Gebaude 262.

Kunstgewerbe-Haus
' 250.

Kiinstlerhaus 249.

Eiinstler-Theater 300.

Kunst-Yerein 2.58.

Landtags-Gebaude250.
Lenbach, Yilla 267.

— Platz 249.

Leuchtenberg-Palais
259. •

Library, Military 258.

— , Royal 259.

— , University 260.

Lotzbeck Collection
268.'

Ludwigs-Briicke 301.

Ludwig-Strasse 259.

Luitpold-Brucke 298.

Marien-Platz 247.

Mathaser Brewery 245.
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MUWICH.
Maximilianeum 254.

Maximilians-Anlagen
2.54.

— Briicke 254.
— Platz 249.

Maximilian-Strasse
251.

Max-Joseph-Briicke
299.

Girls' School 260.
— — Platz 250.

MilitaryMuseum.Luit-
pold 248.

Mint 251.

Monuments

:

Bavaria 300.

Count Rumford 251.

Effner 250.

Elector Max Em-
manuel 250.

— Maximilian I. 267

.

Emp. Louis the Ba-
varian 300.

Fraunhofer 251.

Gahelsberger 261.

Gartner 301.

General Deroy 251.

Gluck 250.

Goethe 249.

King Louis I. 259.
— — II. 302.
— Max I. Joseph 250.— Maximilanll. 251.

Klenze 301.

Kreittmayr 250.

Liebig 250.

Marien-Saule 247.

Orlando di Lasso 250.

Otho ofWittelsbarh
258. 302.

Pettenkofer 250.

Prince-Regent Luit-
pold 296.

Schelling 251.

Schiller 268.

Schwind 254.

Senefelder 299.

Smith of Kochel 300.

Wagner 299.

Westenrieder 2.')0.

Miinchner Neueste
Nachrichten 249.

Museums-Gesellscliaft
250.

— Insel 254.

National Museum 290.

Natural History Col-
lections 246.

Xeuhauser Strasse 245.

Nymphenburg 300.

MuJflCH.
Obelisk 268.

Oberpollinger, Kauf-
haus 246.

Observatory 299.

Odeon 2.59.

Odeons-Platz 2.59.

Orphanage 301.

Palace, Arcliiepiscopal

250.

— , Royal 2.54.

— , Wittelsbach 268.
— of Count Arco-
Zinneberg 267.

— of Count Schack 267.
— of Prince Leopold

261.

Peace Monument 298.

Peruvian Antiquities
296.

Pfandhaus-Strasse 250.

Pinakothek, New 284.
— Old 268.

Plaster Casts, Museum
of 258.

Police Offices 246.

Porcelain Cabinet 256.

— Factorv 301.

Post Office 238. 250.

Preysing-Palaia 257.

Priests' Seminary 260.

Prinz-Luitpold-Park
261.

Prinzregenten-Strasse
290.

— Theater 299.

Promenade-Platz 250.

Propylsea 262.

Railway Stations 233.

245. 299. 300.

Rathaus, New 247.

— , Old 248.

Regierungs-Gebiinde
251.

Reichenbach-Briicke
302.

Residenz 254.

— , Alte 255.
-- Theater 257.

Ruhmes-Halle 300.

Schack Gallery 297.

Schauspielhaus 251.

Schrannen-Halle 248.

Schwabing 261.

Schwanthaler Museum
299.

Sendliug 300.

Sendlinger Strasse 249.
-- Tor 249.

Sendlingertor-Platz
299.

Munich.
Sieges-Tor 261.

Stuck, Villa 298.

Synagogue 249.

Tal 248.

Technical Academv
289.

Theatre Museum 2.59.

Theatres 238.

Theresien -Wiesc 300.

Tierpark Hellabrunn
302.

Tietz, "Warenhaus 245.

Tonhalle 268.

Treasury 256.

Turnierhof 251.

University 260.

Vases. Cabinet of 283.

Verkehrs-Ministerium
245.

Viktualien-Markt 248.

Volksbad 301.

Wein-Strasse 248.

Wittelsbacher-Briicke
302.

Wittelsbach Palace
268.

Workmen's Museum
253.

Miinnerstadt 145.

Munsing 326.

Miinsingen 77.

Miinster 88.

Murnau 319.

Murrhardt 35.

Murrhardter Wald 35.

Musau 312. 317.

Nabburg 229.

Nagold 24.

Naila 133.

Nasenbach, the 355.

Nassereit 319.

Natternberg, the 355.

Xaumburg 131.

Nebcl-Hohle 76.

Neckar, SoiU'ce of the tl3.

Neckarelz 130.

Neckargemiind 131.

Neckargerach 31.

Neckarhausen 62.

Neckarsteinach 131.

Neckarsulm 29.

Neckartailfingen 52.

Neideck 160.

Neidingen 86.

Neidlingen 69.

Neidlinger Tal 69.

Neidstein 346.

Neipperg 27.
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Nelleuburg 88.

Xellmersbach S.'i.

Xendiugen 87.

Xeresheini 40.

Xesselwang 312.

Nesselwangle S13.

Xeubaii 157.

Xeubeiiem 33;").

Neuburg (on tbe Neckar
130.

-, Abbey of 131.
— an der Douau 21.'j.

Neudorf 115.

Neuenbilrg 24.

Neueumarkt 134.

Xeuenreuth 190.

Xeuenstadt am Koeher
29.

Xeuenstein 33.

Xeuern 358.

Xeu-Essing 213.

Xeufahrn 230.

Xeuffen 71.

Xeufra (near Herber-
tingen) 85.— (Prim-Tal) 63.

— (Vehla-Tall 81.

Xeufrach 97.

Xeuhaus (near Scblier-

see) 333.
— . Bad 145.— an der Pegnitz 190.

Xeuhausen (Filder) 16.

— (on the Rhine) 65.

— (Swabian Alb) 71.

Xeuhausmiihle 366.

Xeuhowen. the 64.

Xeu-Kelheira 213.

Xeukirchen 346.
— beim Heiligen Blut

348.

Xeumarkt an der Eott
355. «— in der Oberpfalz 128.

Xeu-Muhle 163.

Xeunburg vorm "SVald

347.

Xeunussberg 357.

Xeuofen 367.

Xeu-Offingen 227.

Xeuottiug 345.

Xeu-Penzberg 327.
— Reichenau 366.

Xeuschwanstein 316.

Xeusorg 191.

Xeustadt (near Stutt-
gart) 35.

— am Main 113.
— an der Aisch 128.
— an der Donau 214.
— an der Saale 145.

Neufitadt an der Wald
naab 229.

— im Odenwald 111.

Xeustensslinge)!. Schloss

Xeutal 366.

Xeu-Ulm 46. 49. 227.

Xieder-Aschau 336.

jXiederbiegen 7)1.

jXiedernau, Bad 58.

jXiederpocking 305.

j

Xieder.sonthofner Seen,

I

the 312.

iXiederstetteu 36.

Xieder.stotzingen 41.

Xilkheim 111.

Xonn 341.

Xonnenbach 98.

Xonnengiitl 353.

Xonnenhorn 98.

Xordendorf 194.

Xordlingen 191.

Xordstetton 62.

Xossert, the 157.

Nuremberg 163.

Adler-Strasse 180.

Albrecht-Diirer-Verein
168.

Amts-Gebaude 172.

Archives 175.

Art Collection, Muni-
cipal 168.

Behaim's House 171.

Bratwurst-Glocklein
175.

Bronze Foundry 187.

Burgberg 175.

Burggrafenburg 176.

Burg-Strasse 175.

Churches

:

Egidien-Kirche 177.

Elisabeth-Kirchel80.
Heilia-geist-Kirche

178.'

Heiligkreuz-Kapelle
187.

Holy Sepulchre 179.

Johannis-Kirche 188.

Katharinen-Kirche
179.

Klara-Kirehe 169.

Liebfrauen-Kirche
171.

St. Jakobs-Kirche
180.

St. Lorenz-Kirche
169.

St. Moritz-Kirche
175.

St. Sebaldus-Kirche
172.

Nuremberg.
Corn Magazines 180.

Derrer-Brikke 180.

Deutsches Haus 180.

Dominican Monastery
175.

Diirer's House 175.

Dutzendteich 18«.

Egidien-Platz 177.

Fembo-Haus 175.

Fleisch-Briicke 170.

Fountains

:

Bagpiper 178.

Gansemanucheu 171.

Griibel 178.

Hansel 179.

Minnesanger 187.

Xeptune 171.

SchonerBruanen 171.

Triton 180.

Tugend 170.

Frauen-Tor 168. 186.

Grermanic Museum 181.

Haller Tor 186.

Handels-Vorstand 172.

Harbour 187.

Haupt-Markt 170.

Haus zum Goldenen
Schilde 177.

Henkersteg 180.

Heu-Brucke 179.

Hirschel-Gasse 177.

Hirschvogel House 177.

Hospital 179.

IndustrialMuseum 179.

Industrie- und Kultur-
Verein 187.

Jakobs-Platz 180.

Johannis-Kirchhof 187.
— Strasse 187.

Kaiserburg 176.

Karoliuen-Strasse 179.

Kettensteg 180.

Koberger's House 178.

Konig-Strasse 169.

Krafft's House 178.

— Stations 187.

Kiinstlerhaus 168.

Laudauer Briider-

Kloster 177.

Landes-Grewerbe-
anstalt 179.

Lauferschlag-Turm
177.

Laufer-Tor 186.

Law Courts 175.

Library, Municipal
175.

Lorenzer Platz 169.

Ludwig-Strasse 179.

Luitpoldhain 188.
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Nuremberg.
Luitpold-Haus 179.

Mannerschuld-Turm
179.

Mauthalle 169.

Max-Briicke 180.

— Tor 177.

Mohren-Apotheke 169.

Monuments:
Behaim 178.

Bismarck 187.

Diirer 175.

Emp. William I.

178.

Henlein 179.

King Louis II. 188.

Melanchthon 178.

Prince-Regent Luit-

pold 168.

Sachs 178.

Schiller 188.

Museums-Briicke 170.

Nassauer Haus 170.

Natural History Col-

lection 179.

Neu-Tor 186.

Palm's House 175.

Paniers-Platz 177.

Peller-Haus 178.

Pirkheimer's House
171.

Plarrer 187.

Platnersberg 188.

Post Offices 165. 179.

Railway Stations 163.

168.
'

Rathaus 172.

— Platz 172.

Rosenau 187.

Sachs's House 178.

St. Rochus-Kirchhof
187.

Scheurl's House 175.

Schutt, Island of 179.

Sebalder Pfarrhof 174.

Sicben Zeilen 177.

Spital-Briicke 179.

Spittler Tor 186.

Stadt-Park 188.

— Wage 175.

Synagogue 179.

Theatres 165. 187.

Theresien-Platz 178.

Tiergarten 188.

Tiergartner Tor 186.

Topier-Haus 177.

Town Walls 186.

Tucher Landhaus 177.

— Strasse 178.

Unschlitt-Haus 180.

Yerkehrs Museum 179.

NuREIliBERG.
Vestner Tor 186.

Vischer's House 179.

Weisser Turm 179.

Weizen-Gebaude 180.

Wohlgemut's House
175.

Wohrder Tor 186.

Xiirtingen 52.

Nussdorf (on the Inn)
335.

— (near Cberlingen) 97.

Nusshardt, the 157.

Xusshausen 213.

Nymphenburg 300.

Ober-Ailsfeld 163.

Oberammergau 323.

Oberau (Altmilhl-Tal)
213.

— (near Partenkirchen)
320.

Oberaudorf 335.

Oberbach 145.

Oberbohringen 44.

Ober-Breitenau 357.

Oberdachstetten 221.

Ober-Diendorf 354.

Oberdorf, Markt 314.

Ober-Drackenstein 45.

— Eichstatt 224.

— Frauenau 363.

Oberfrauenwald 366.

Obergrainau 321.

Oberhaid 141.

Oberhausen (near Augs-
burg) 194.

— (Swabian Alb) 74.

Ober-Herrlingen, Schloss
84.

— Heutal 77.

Oberhohenberg, the 63.

Obcr-Kirchberg 49.

Oberkochcn 40.

Oberkotzau 133. 228.

Oberkreuzberg 363.

Oberlenningen 70.

Obermarchtal 85.

Obermieming 319.

Obermoldau 365.

Obcrnach 328.

Obernburg 111.

Oberndorf (on the Da-
nube) 212.

— (on the Neckar) 62.

Oberneureuth 354.

Obernsees 154.

Obernzell 354.

Oberpfalzer Wald 229.

Obcrrad 107.

Oberreitnau 314.

Oberschefflenz 130.

Oberschmeien 82.

Ober-See, the 343.

Oberstaufcn 314.

Oberstdorf 313.

Oberstenfeld 21.

Obertheres 141.

Obertraubling 229.

Obertiirkheim 42.

Oberuhldingen 97.

Oberviechtach 229.

Oberwaiz 154.

Oberwappenost 191.

Oberweckerstell 45.

Oberweissbach 344.

Oberzeismcring 306.

Oberzell(ontheMain)114.— (Reichenau) 88.

Obing 336.

Obsteig 319.

Ochenbruck 128.

Ochsenfurt 216.

Ochsenhausen 51.

Ochsenkopf, the 156.

Ochsenwang 70.

Odbauer 326.

Odwies 356.

Offenau 31.

Offenbach 107.

Offenhausen 77.

Offingen (on the Bussen)
85.

— (near Giinzburg) 227.

Ohlstadt 319.

Ohringen 33.

Ohrnberg 29.

01ching''228.

Olga-Hohe, the 323.

— Hohle 74.

Onstmettingen 82.

Oppenweiler 35.

Ort 327.

Ortenburg 349.

Oschingen 80.

Osser/the 360.

Ossweil 21.

Osterburken 130.

Osterhofen 349.

Ostermiinchen 33^4.

Oster-See, the 327.

Oswalds-Hohle 161.

Otlingen 69.

Otting 194.

Ottingen 191.

Ottmaring 129.

Ottobeuren 309.

Owen 69.

Owingen 58.

Ov 312.
— Tal 313.
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Padinger Alpe 341.

Pankofen 356.

Panzer, the 361.

Pappenheim 224.

Parkstein 155.

— , the 229.

Parksteiner "Wald 155.

Parksteinhiitten 155.

Parsberg 129.

Partenkirchen 320.

Partnach-Klamm 320.

Pasing 303. 308.

Passau 350.

Patersdorf 357.

Paterzell 306.

Pegnitz 190.

Peissenberg 306.

Peiting 307.

Penzberg 327.

Perach 345.

Pertisau 332.

Petersberg, the (Frails

conia) 221.

— , the (on the Inn) 335.

Petershausen fnear
Constance) 89.

— fnear Munich) 227.

Peteis-Hohle-87.
Peulendorf 151.

Pfaffenhausen 309.

Pfaffenhofen 227.

Pfaflfenstein, the 161.

Pfahl, the 357.

Pfahl-Graben 214.

Pfander, the 96.

Pfarrkirchen 355.

Pflach 312.

Pflaumloch 41.

Pflurainern 85.

Pforzen 309.

Pforzheim 23.

Pfreimd 229.

Pfronten 312.

Pfulb, the 70.

Pfullendorf 88.

Pfullingen 74.

Pfunz 226.

Piding 339.

Pilsen 358.
-- See, the 307.

Pilsting 355.

Pinzberg 160.

Pipping 304.

Pirach 338.

Pirka 357.

Pirken.see. iSchluss 229.

Planegg 305.

Plankenfels 154.

Plan-See, the 324.
— — , the Kleiner 324.

Plassenburg 134.

Plattling 349.

Plauen 132.

Pleinfeld 139. 191.

Pleinting 349.

Plettenberg, the 81.

Pleystoin 229.

Plochingen 44.

Plosberg 133.

Plumser Joch. the 330.

Pocking 355.

Pollat-Schlucht 317.

Polling 319.

Pomnielsbrunn 346.

Pommersfeldcn 136.

Ponholz 229.

Possenhofen 306.

Postbauer 128.

Pottensteiu 162.

Prackenbach 349.

Predigtstuhl, the 356.

Premicli 144.

Pretzfeld 160.

Prichsenstadt 127.

Prion 336.

Prinz-Ludwigs-Hohe 325.

Probstzella 131.

Priifening 129.

Pruun, Schlo.ss 213.

Pullach 325.

— , Bad 304.

Piinzendorf 151.

Quackenschloss, thel62.

Rabeneck, Burg 162.

Rabenfels, the 86.

Rabcnstein (on the Alt-
miihl) 227.

— (Bayr. Wald) ^62.
—. Burg 162.
— Hohle 163.

Eachel, the 364.

See, the 364.

Radldorf 348.

Radolfzell 88.

Raichberg, the 80.

Rain 215.

Raitenha.slach 338.

Raitheberg. tlie 89.

Ramsau 344.

Randcek 213.

Randeckcr Maar 70.

Rangendingen o8.

Rappenau 30.

Raschenberg 338.

Rassreut 354.

Eatibor, Schloss 139.

Ratisbon 202.

Ratshau.sen 82.

Rauber 70.

[— Hohle 129.

Eaubling 335.

Rauher Kulm, the 155.

Ravensburg 51.

Ravenstein 45.

Rechberg 68.

Rechberghausen 67.

Rechenau 334.

Rechensoldenfelsen, the
361.

Rechtenstein 85.

Regen 357.

Regenhiitte 363.

Regensburg 203.

Regen.sburger Stein, the

356.

Regenstauf 229.

Rehau 133.

Reh-Gebirge, the 68.

Reichelsburg 216.

Eeichel.sdorf 138.

Reicheuau 88.

Reichenberg (Bayr.
Wald) 363.

— (Lower Francouia) 129.
— . Schloss 35.

Reichenhall. Bad 339.

Reichenschwand 190.

Reicheustein 77.

Reichersbeuern 329.

Reicholzheim 130.

Reisohfieck-Sattel 359.

Reisensburg,Scliloss 227.

Reistenhausen 112.

Reitenberg 359.

Reith 322.

Reither-Spitze, the 322.

Renustieg. the 131.

Reutershofer Damm 291.

Rentwertshausen 145.

Reschenstcin 353,

Reuudorf 135.

Reussenstein 69.

Reuth (Bavaria) 229.
— (Saxony) 132.

Reutin 98.

Reutlingen 52.

Reutte 318.

Rhine. Falls of the 66.

Rhon. the 144.

Ried Austria) 345.
— (Bavr. Wald) 359.

(Kochel-See) 327.

(on the Vils) 312.

Riedelstein. the 362.

Rieden 319.

Riedenburg 227.

Riedlingen 85.

Riegelbach-Schlucht 361.

IRielasingen 65.

iRies S53.

1— , the 193.
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Riesenburg. the 162.

Riesloch, the 362.

Rigi, the Kleiner 91.

Riglasreuth 191.

Rimpar 126.

Rimlasgrund, the 156.

Ringberg, the 212.

Rippoldsau, Bad 61.

Risser-See, the 320.

Riss-Tal (Swabia) 51.

— 'Upper Bavaria) 330.

Risstissen 50.

Ritschenhauseii 115.

Kittsteig 360.

Rockenbrunn 316.

Rodenzenreuth 150.

Roding 347.

Rodt 61.

Roggen-Tal 45.

Rohr 214.

Rohrbach 355.

Rohrbrunn 116.

Rohrmoos 227.

Rohrnbach 366.

Rohr-yee. tlie 327.

Rollbach 111.

ROmerstein. the 70.

Romershag- 145.

Roschenauer Hohe, the
326.

Roseck, Sohlos.s 57.

Rosenberg 346.

Rosenberger 354.

Rosenburg, Sfhloss 227.

Rosenheim 334.

Rosen-Insel 306.

Rosenmiiller.s-Holile 161.

Rosenstein, the (near
Aalen) 40.

— , Sfhloss (near Stutt-

gart) 15.

Roslau 228.

Rossberg 86.

— , the 78.

— , the Dettingcr 72.

Rossriicken. the 324.

Rossschlag 317.

Rossstall 38.

Rot am See 36.

Rotenberg. the 41.

Roth am Sand 139.

Rothcnbach (Algiiu) 314.
— (near Xuremberg) .346.

— (Swabia) 24.

Rothenbiich 116.

Rothenburg ob der
Taubor 217.

Rothenfels 113.

Rothenkirchen 131.

Rott 354.

Rottach 331.

Rottenberg 190.

Rottenbuch 307.

Rottenburg (on the
Neckar) 57.

— an der Grossen Laber
232.

Rottendorf 127.

Rottershausen 145.

Rotthalmiinster 345.

Rottingen [near Bop-
fingen) 41.

- ('near Weiker.slieim)
216.

Rottmanns-Hohe. tlie

305.

Rottweil 62.

Riiekersdorf 190.

Rudolfstein, the 157.

Ruhmannsfelden 357.

Ruhpoldiug 337.

Rumpenheim 107.

Runder Berg, the 72.

Runding 359.

Rupprechtstegeu 190.

Rnpprechtstein, Sohloss
346.

Rusel 356.

Rusenschloss 84.

Rutschenfel.sen, tlie 73.

Saal 212.

Saale; Source of the 133.

Saaleck 114.

Saalfeld 131.

Saalfelden 344.

Sachenbach 330.

Saclisenliausen 103.

Sagercckwand. the 343.

St. Anton 320.'

St. Bartholoma 343.

St. Bartholomau.s-See.
the 343.

St. Georgen 153.

St. Heinrich 326.

St. Johaun 73.

St. Loretto 313.

St. Mauru.s im Felde 87.

St. Oswald 364.

St. Qulrin 331.

St. Zeno 340.

Saldenburg 363.

Salem 97.

Sallet-Alp 343.

Salmendingcn 80.

Salnau 367.

Salober-Alp 312.

Salzburg (Franoonia) 145.
— (Swabian Alb) 70.

— (Tyrol) 338. 345.

Salzgrund 29.

Sandbach 349.

iSandberg 144.

jSandersdorf 227.

jSandsee, Schloss 139.

Sattelbogen, the 70.

Saulgau 85.

Saulgrub 323.

Sauling, the 317.

Saulorn 368.

Schachen 95.

Schafberg. the 81.

Schafifhausen 65.

SchafhauKen 22.

Schaftlach 329.

Schaftlarn 326.

Schalksburg 82.

Schambach-Tal 227.

Scharfenberg 44.

Seharling 331.

Scharnhausen 17.

Scharnitz 322.

Scharreben 362.

Schattawa 365.

Schattwald 313.

Schaubeek. Schloss 21.

Schaufelsen, the 86.

Scheer 86.

Scheiben-Sattel 359.

Scheidegg 314.

Scheinberg, the 141.

Schelklingen 84.

Schellenberg 345.

Schellneck 213.

Schenkenburg 61.

Schcnkenzell 61.

Siherenburg 113.

Srhertels-Hohle 45.

Si'hesslitz 151.

Si'heuereck 361.

Scheuerlehof 87.

Schiller-Hohle 73.

Schillingsfiirst 221.

Schiltach 61.

Sohinder, the 331.

Schirenhof 39.

Schirndiug 191.

Schlath 41.

Schlattstall 71.

Schlohdorf 327.

Schleis.'ihcim 303.

Schletterleiten. the 326.

Schlierbach 131.

Schliersee 333.

Schlier-See, the 333.

Schlossfelsen. the 82.

Schlosslberg. the 365.

Schliisselfeld 136.

Schluxen 317.

Schmal-See. the 321.

Schraausenbuck, the 188.

Schmidmiihlen 346.

Schmicchen 77.
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Scbmiecher See, the 85. iSchwarzbachwacht 344.

Schnabelwaid 190.

Schnaith 38.

Schnaittach 190.

Schneeberg, the 157.

Scholastika 332.

Schollenbach 31.

Schollkrippen 108.

Schomberg 82.

Schonau (on the Kegen
357.

— (on the Saale) 114.

— , the 342.

Schonberg 363.

— , the 74.

Schonbichl 312.

Schonbrunn 368.

Schonbiich, the 58.

Schonbusch 111.

Schondorf 228. 308.

Schoneben 362.

Schcjnenberg, the 37.

Schonfeldspitze, the 343

Schongau 309.

Schonhof 162.

Schonmiihle 327.

Schontal 126.

Schonungen 141.

Schopfeln 88.

Schoppernau 96.

Schorndorf 38.

Schottenhof 213.

Schotters-Muhle 162.

Schramberg 61.

Schrobenhausen 214.

Schrocke, Grosse 71.

Schrocken, the 96.

Schrock-See. the 334.

Schroflfelfels, the 70.

Schrozberg 36.

Schullerloch, the 213.

Schiilzburg 77.

Schurwald 38.

Schussenried 51.

Schiitters-Miihle 162.

Schiitzensteig 317.

Schwabach 138.

Schwabelweis 210.

Schwaben 338.

Schwabisch-Grmiind 39.

— Hall 33.

Schwabmiinchen 309.

Schwackenreute 88.

Schwaigern 29.

Schwaighof 331.

vSchwaimberg, the 363.

Schwanberg, the 128.

Schwandorf 229.

Schwaneck, Schlosschen
304.

Schwan-See. the 315

Schwarzer Grat, the
Schwarzenbach 155.

am Walde 133.

Schwarzenberg 96.

— , Schloss 128.

the 315.

Scliwarzenbronn 221.

Schwarzenbriick 128.

Schwarzenfels 144.

Schwarzer See, the 360.

Schwarzes Kreuz 366.

Schwarzkopf, the 112.

Schwarzkoppe, the 348.

Schwarzriegel, the 347.

Schweinau 38.

Schweinfurt 140.

Schweinheim 115.

Schweinhutt 357.

Schweinsberg, the 29.

Schwendi 50.

Schwenningen 63.

Sebastiansweiler 80.

Seckach 130.

Seebruck 337.

Seeburg 73.

Schloss 306.

Seeburger Tal 73.

Seefeld (Bavaria) 307.
— (Tyrol) 322.

Seegraben, the 355.

Seehausen 319.

Seelohe; the 157.

Seeon 337.

Seeshaupt 306. 327.

Seespitz 332.

Seestein, the 367.

Seewand, the 360.

Seifen 312.

Seisenberg-Klamm 344.

Selb 133.

Seligenstadt (on the
Main) 32.

— (near Wurzburg) 140.

Senden 49.

Sennfeld 128.

Sesselplatz 359.

Seubelsdorf 135.

Seubersdorf 129.

Sibyllen-Hohle 69.

Sicher,sreuth 159.

Sickingen 29.

Sieben'ellen 364.

Siebenstein 364.

Siegelsdorf 128.

Siegmundsburg 319.

Siegsdorf 337.

Sigmaringen 83.

Sigmaringendorf 86.

Silberberg, the 362.

Silberhiitte 229.

Simbach 345.

Simmelsdorf 190.

Sim-See, the 336.

Singen 64.

Sinnberg, the 144.

Sinntalhof 145.

Sinsheim 30.

Sinzing 211.

Sipplingen 97.

Sirgenstein, the 84.

Sodenberg 114.

Sodental, Bad 111.

Soflingen 84.

Soiener See, the 307.

Soldenkopfl, the 344.

Solitude, the 18.

Solnhofen 224.

Sommerau (Bayr. Wald)
859.

(Spessart) 115.

Sommerhausen 216.

Sondelfingen 52.

Sondernach 77.

Sonnen 354.

Sonneneck, the 312.

Sonnenfels, the 72.

Sontheim (near Am-
stetten) 46.

— (Brenz-Tal) 41.

— (near Heilbronn) 21.

Sontheimer Hohle 46.

Sonthofen 312.

Sophien-Hohle 163.

Soyen 355.

Soyener See, the 355.

Spaichingen 63.

Spalt 139.

Sperberseck 70.

Spessart. the 115.

Spetzgart, Schloss 93.

Spickel 202.

Spiegelau 363.

Spielmannsau 313.

Spitzberg 358.

— Sattel 360.

Spitzenberg, the 44.

Spitzing-See, the 333.

Staad 92.

Stadtamhof 210.

Stadtlauringen 145.

Stadtprozelten 112.

Stadtsteinach 134.

Staffelberg, the 135.

Staffel-See, the 319.

Staffelstein 136.

Stahleck, the 75.

Stahringen 88. 97.

Stallau 330.

Staltach 327.

Stammbach 134.

Stamm.berg, the 151.
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Starkenberg,Schlo9S 319.

Starnberg 305.

Starnberger See, the 305.

Starzeln 81.

Staub-Fall 345.

Stauf 210.

Staufeneck (near
Reichenhall) 339.

— (near Siissen) 44.

Staufen-Gebirge,the 341.

Stauffenberg 61.

Steben, Bad 133.

Steckelburg 113.

Stegen 308.

Steigerwald, the 127.

Steigkoppe, the 108.

Stein (Fichtel-aebirge)
156.

— an der Rednitz 38.

— an der Traun 337.

Steinach (Franconia) 216.
— (near Pfronten) 312.

Steinbaeh (near Hall) 34.

— (near Michelstadt) 32.

— Hohle 346.

Steinberg, the 126.

Steinebach 307.

Steinernes Meer, the 367.

Steinhausen 51.

Steinheim (near Heiden-
heim) 40.

— an der Murr 21.

Stein-Klanim, the 36;^.

Steinsberg 30.

Stein.sfiirt 30.

Steintor 116.

Steinwoll, the 46.

Stelzlhof 365.

Stempfer-Miihle 161.

Stephanskirchen 336.

Stephansposching 349.

Steppach 136.

Steppberg, Schloss 21.").

Sternberg, the 77.

Stetten(Gnaden-Tal)81.
— (near Haigerloch) .58.

— (Rems-Tal) 42.
— am Kalten Markt 86.

Stock 336.

Stockach 88.

Stockheim 131.

Stocksberg, Schl(.s.s 27.

Stockstadt 111.

Stofifelberg, the 312.

Stoffelberg, the 77.

Stolzeneck 31.

Strassberg 82. -

Straasdorf 67.

Strasskirchen 349.

Straubing 348.

Streit 111.

Streitberg 160.

Stromberg, the 27.

Strullendorf 136.

Stuben 332.

Stuiben, the 312.

— Falls 318.

Stuifen, the 68.

Stuppach 126.

Stuttgart 2.

Academy of Art 11.

Akademie 7.

Altes Schlos.s 6.

Anlagen, Konigl. 11.

Antiqnities, Collec-

tion of 8.

Archives, State 7.

Baugewerk-Schule 12.

Berg 15.

— , Villa bei 15.

Bismarck-Eiche 17.

Bopser-Anlage 14.

— Wald 14.

Buchenliof 17.

Biirger-Hospital 13.

Burgholz 16.

Cannstatt 16.

Cemeteries 12. 13.

Churches

:

Elisabeth-Kirche 11.

English 4. 7.

Frieden^-Kirche 11.

Garrison 12.

Hospital-Kirche 13;

Johannes-Kirche 14.

Marien-Kirche 14.

Markus-Kirche 14.

Nikolaiis-Kirche 11.

Paulus-Kirche 14.

St. Leonhard 7.

Stifts-Kirche 6.

Coins, Cabinet of 8.

Degefloch 16.

Doggenburg 14.

Engravings, Collec-
tion of 11.

Feuerbacher Heide 14.

Feuer-See 14.

Fountains

:

Gansepeter 14.

Hans im Gliick 6.

Paulinen 14.

Relenberg 14.

Wachter 7.

Gais-Eiche 17.

Gewerbe-Halle 12.

Gustav-Siegle-Haus 7,

Hasenberg, the 17.

Hohenheim, Schloss 17,

Industrial Museum 13.

JSgerhaus 17.

Justiz-Gebaude 8,

Stuttgart.
Kanzlei, Old 6.

Karls-Hcihe 17.

Konigin-Olga-Bau 5.

Konigs-Bau 5.

Konig-Strasse 6.

Kriegsberg 13.

Kronprinzen-Palais 5.

Kunst-Gebaude 5.

Kunstgewerbe-Schule
13.

— Verein 13.

Landes-Gewerbe-
museum 13.

Lapidarium 8.

Law Courts 8.

Library, Public 14.

— , Roval 7.

Liederhalle 13.

Linden Museum 12.

Lusthaus 11.

Markt-Platz 6.

Monuments:
Bismarck 7.

— Columm 15.

Burckhardt 12.

Count Eberhard iiu

Bart 6.

Dannecker 5.

Duke Christopher .'».

— Eugene of
Wurtemberg 11.

Emp. William I. 6.

Gerok 6.

Jubilee Columm .'..

King Charles and
Queen Olga 11.

— William I. 9.

List 14.

Liszt 11.

Mayer 12.

Moitke 7.

Morike 14.

Prince Hermann i.f

Saxe -Weimar ll.

St. Urban 11.

Schiller 6. 9.

Vischer 12.

Museum of Art 9.

N^atural History Col-

lection 7.

Xeckar-Insel 15.

— Strasse 7.

Olga Sanatorium 14.

Orans:erv 11.

Palace. Old 6.

— , Royal 5.

Picture Gallery 9.

Porcelain and Silver
Room 6.

Postdorfie 13.
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Stuttgart.
Post Office 3.

Prinzeu-Bau 6.

Railway Stations 2.

Eapp House 6.

Rathaus 6.

Reichs-Bank 12.

Reinsburg-Hiigel 17.

Residenz-Schloss 5.

Rosenstein 15.

St. Leonhards-Platz 7.

Savings Bank, Muni-
cipal 6.

— —, "Wurtemberg 12.

Scharnhausen 17.

Schiller-Hohe 14.

Schloss-Garten 11.— Platz 5.

Schwimm-Bad 13.

Siegle, Villa 14.

Silberbnrg-Garten 13.

Solitude 18.

Stables, Royal 5.

Stadt-aarten 12.

Standehaus 13.

Stuttgarter Lebensver-
sieherungs-Bank 14.

Technical Academy 12.

Theatres 4. 8.

Uhlands-Hohe 14.

Yolks-Bibliothek 14.

Waldhaus 17.

AYeil 17.

Weinsteise, Xeue 14.

Weissenh'of 18.

Wilhelma 15.

Wilhelms-Bau 14.— Palast 7.

Wiirttembergischer
Kredit-Verein 12.

"Wiirttembergische
Vereins-Bank 12.

Sulchen-Kapelle 58.

Sulz am Neckar 62.

Sulzbach (near Amberg)
346.

— (near Aschaffenburg)
111.

— an der Murr 35.

Sulzbrunn 312.

Sulzdorf 36.

Sulzfeld 127.

Siinching 348.

Siissen 44.

Siissenmiihle 97.

Swabian Alb 66.

Tabor, the 91.

Tachenstein 227.

Tailfingen 82.

Talfingen 41.

Talhausen 62.

Talheim (near Crails-

heim^ 36.

— (Steinlach-Tal) 80.

— (near Tuttlingen) 63

Talhof 85.

Talmiihle (Baden) 64.

(Wurtemberg) 24.

Talsteusslingen 77.

Tannhausen 192.

Tannheim 313.

Tarrenz 319.

Tatzelwurm 333.

Tauben-See, the 344.

Tauberbischofsheim 129.

Tauberscheckenbach221.
Tauern, the 324.

Teck. the 69.

Tegelstein 95.

Tes-ernheim 210.

Tes-ernsee 331.

Tes-ern-See, the 331.

Teinach. Bad 24.

Teisendorf 338.

Teisnach 357.

Telfs 319.

Tettnang 52.

Teufelsfelsen, the 212.

Teufels-Graben 335.

Teufels-HoMe 162.

Teufelshorner, the 344.

Teufels-Kiiche, the 87.

— See, the 360.

Teufelstisch, the 357.

Thain?en 65.

Thaldorf 213.

Thalham 333.

Thalkirchdorf 313.

Thalkirchen 325.

Thaneller, the 318.

Thann 338.

Thannhausen 227.

Theres, Sehloss 141.

Theusser Bad 33.

Thum-See, the 341.

Thiingen 114.

Thiirino-er Wald 131.

Thurnau 134.

Thvrnau 354.

Tiefenbach (Bayr. Wald)
365.

. Bad (Algau) 313.

Tiefenbronn 23.

Tierberg. the (near Kuf-
stein) 335.

, the (Swabia) 82.

Tiergarten 86.

Tiergartenberg, the 72.

Tirsehenreuth 228.

Tier-See, the 334.

Titting 226.

Tittling 363.

Tittmoning 839.

Tolz. Bad 329.

Toos 162.

Traifelbergfelsen, the
75.

Trailfingen 73.

Trappen-See, the 29.

Traut, the 80.

Traunstein 337.

Trausnitz 229.

— , Burg 231.

Trebgast 151.

Treffelhausen 45.

Trennbach 355.

Trenufeld 113.

Treuchtlingen 140. 224.

Triefenried 357.

Triefenstein, Sehloss
113.

Triesdorf 224.

Tristram-Schlucht 341.

Trochteltingen 76.

Triigen 314.

Trossingen 63.

Trostberg 337.

Tubinsen 55.

Tuchersfeld 162.

Tummelplatz 364.

Tiirkheim 309.

Tusset 366.

Tussling 339.

Tuttlingen 63.

Tutzing 306.

Tyrolsberg, the 128.

Uberkingen 45.

Cberlingen 93.

Cberlinger See, the 92.

Cbersee 337.

Uffenheim 216.

Uffing 319.

Chenfels, Sehloss 73.

Uhingen 44.

Uhlbach 42.

Uhlberg. the 16.

tJhlfeld 128.

Ulm 46.

Ulrichsberg 356.

Ulrichsbriicke 312. 317.

Ummendorf 51.

Ungerhausen 309.

Unlingen 85.

Unnersdorf 185.

Unntitz, the 332.

Unter-Ailsfeld 163.

Unterammergau 323.

Unterbobingen 39.

Unterboihingen 52.

Unter-Drakenstein 45.
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Unter-Durrbach 126.
— Elchingen 41.

— Frauenau 363.

Untergraiaau 321.

TJntergroningen 36.

Unterhausen (Bavaria)
215.

— (Swabia) 74'.

Unterkochen 40.

Unterleinleiter 160.

Unterlenningen 70.

Unteimarehtal 85.

TJnterneuses 136.

Unter-Pinswang 317.

Untersberg, the 339.

Unter-See, the 88.

Unterstein 343.

Untersteinach 13 i.

Untersteinbach 330.

Untertiirkheim 41.

Unteruhldingen 97.

Unterwilzingen 77.

Unterzeil 86.

Unterzell 89.

Upflainor 85.

Urach 72.

— Waterfall 73.

Uracher Bleiche 72.

— Tal 71.

Urbach 38.

Urfeld 328.

Urspring 84.

— Tal 334.

Urwald, the 365.

Utting 228. 308.

Uttobrunn 356.

Vach 138.

Yaihingen(on the Enz)20.
— (near Stuttgart) 16. 58.

Veitsberg, the 136.

Veitsburg, the 51.

Yeitshochheim 114.

Velburg 129.

Velden (on the Pegnitz)
190.

— (on the Vils) 338.

Yeldenstein 190.

Vellberg 36.

Veringen 76.

Yiechtach 357.

Yierzehnheiligen 135.

Yillingen 63.

Yils 312.

Yilsalp-See, the 313.

Yilsbiburg 232.

Yilseck 346.

Yilshofen 349.

Yilsrein 313.

Yogelsang 356.

Yogelsburg 140.

Yogtland, the 132.

Yohburg 214.

Yohenstrauss 229.

Yoitersreuth 1.32.

Yoithenberg 348.

Yolkach 140.

Yolkersberg, Kloster
144.

Yolkmarsberg, the 40.

Yollmerz 113.

Yolsbach 154.

Yordere Schafwanne, the
313.

Yorder-Graseck 320.

Yorderjoch 313.

Yorderriss 330.

Yorder-Tiersee, the 334.

Yormwald 108.

Yorra 190.

Wackerstein, the 74.

Waging 337.

Waiblingen 38.

Waigolshausen 114. 140.

Waischenfeld 163.

Walberla, the 160.

Walchensee 328.

Walchen-See, the 328.

Walchstadt 326.

Waldberg 144.

Waldburg (Franconia)
141.

— (Swabia) 51.

Waldeck 24.

Waldenburg 33.

Waldershof 191.

Waldhausen 38.

— Glashiitte 40.

Waldhiiuser 364.

Waldhaushof, the 81.

Waldkirchen 366.

Waldmiinchcn 347.

Waldsassen 132.

Waldsee 85.

Waldstein, the Grosser
158.

Waldthurn 229.

Walgau 328.

Walhalla, the 210.
— Strasse 210. 229.

Wallberg, the 331.

Walldurn 112.

Wallern 366.

Wallcrstein 192.

Walserschanze 313.

Waltenhofcn 312.

Wangen im Allgau 86
Waunbach 160.

Wanue, the 74.

Wanneutal 82.

Wannenberg, the 112.

Warmensteinach 157.

Wartberg, the 29.

Warteck, the 343.

Wartenberg 338.

Warthausen 50.

Wartstein 77.

Wasach 313.

Wasehenbeuren 67.

Wascherschlossle 68.

Wasseralfingen 41.

Wasserberg, the 44.

Wasserburg (Lake of
Constance) 95.

— (on the Inn) 354.

Wasserfall 72.

Wasserstetten 77.

Wassertrudingen 191.

Watzelsteg 359.

Watzmann, the 344.

Wegscheid (Bayr. Wald)
354.

— (Isar-Tal) 330.

Wehrstein 62.

Weibersbrunn 116.

Weibertreu 33.

Weiden 229.

Weidenberg 154.

Weidmannsgesees 162.

Weihenstephan 233.

Weiherhammer 346.

Weikersheim 36.

Weil (near Stuttgartl 17.

— im Schonbuch 59.

Weildei'stadt 22.

Weiler (nearBlaubeuren)
84.

— (near Geislingen) 45.
— (Lauter-Tal) 7 7.

— (Rotaeh-Tal) 314.
— (near Rottenburg) 58.

Weilerburg, the 58.

Weiler-Kirohe 58.

Weilheim (Bavaria) 206.
— (Swabian Alb) 69.

— (near Trench tlingen)

194.

Weiltingen 192.

Weiubauer 307.

Weingarten (Franconia)
151.

— (Swabia) 52.

Weinsberg 32.

Weissach 22.

Weissbach 312.

Weissenbach 313.

Weissenburg am Sand
139.

Weissen-See, the 318.

Weissenstadt 157.

Weissenstein (,on the
Pfahl) 357.
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Weissenstein (near
Pforzheim) 24.

— (near Siissen) 44.

— , Schloss 136.

Weisser Main, Source of

the 157.

Weisshaus 317.

"Weissmainfelsen, the
157.

"Weitenhurg, Schloss 58.

Weitnau 312.

Weizern 314.

Wellendingen 63.

Welschingen 64.

Weltenburg, Abbey of

213.

Welzheim 38.

Welzheimer Wald 38.

Wemding 192.

Wendelstein 128.

— , the 333. 335.

Werenwag, Schloss 86.

Wernberg 229.

Werneek 140.

Wernfeld 114.

Wertheim 113.

Wertingen 194.

Wessling 307.

Wessobrunn 306.

Wetterau, the 107.

Wettzell 357.

Weyarn 3.33.

Wiblingen 49.

Wichsenstein 161.

Wicklersgreuth 37.

Wiebelsbach 32.

Wiedergeltingen 309.

Wiedersbach 37.

Wielandsteine, the 70.

Wiesau 228.

Wiesensteig 45.

Wiesenthau 160.

Wiesentheid 127.

Wiesloch 18.

Wiesmiihl (nearTittmon-
ing) 339.

— an der Alz 337.

Wiessee 331.

Wilburgstetten 192.

Wildbad 25.

Wildberg 24.

Wildenau 229.

Wildenburg 112.

Wildeufels 112.

Wildenstein (on the

Danube) 87.

— (Spessart) 115.

Wildflecken 145.

Wild-See, the (Black
Forest) 26.

, the (Tyrol) 322.

Wilferdingen 24.

Wilfingen 63.

Wilhelmsbad 107.

Wilheliusfelsen, the 71.

Wilhelmshall 62.

Wilhelmsheim 35.

Wilhelms-Hohe. the 86.

Willibaldsburg 225.

Willsbach 33.

Wimbach-Klannn 344.

Wimpfen 29.

WimsenerHohle 85.

Windisch-Eschenbach
229.

— Gailenreuth 161.

Windsbach 37.

Windsheim 216.

Wingersdorf 136.

Winkel 330.

Winnenden 35.

Winnental, Schloss 35.

Winterberg 365.

Winterhausen 216.

Wintersbach 115.

Wirsberg 134.

Wittelsbach 214.

Witthoh, the 64.

Wittighausen 129.

Wittlinger Schlucht 73.

Witzen-Hohle 161.

Wohr-See, the 339.

Wolchingen 130.

Wolfach 61.

Wolfegg 86.

Wolfert, the 85.

"Wolfratshausen 326.

Wolfs-Schlucht 31.

Wolfstein (near Frey-
ung) 367.

— (near Landshut) 231.

AT

Wollaberg 366.

Wolnzach 227.

Wolsendorf 229.

Worishofen 309.

Worth 111.
— See, the 307.

Wulzburg 139.

Wunders-Hohle 161.

Wunnenstein, the 21.

Wuusiedel 158.

Wurmlingeu 63.

Wurnilinger Kapelle 56.

Wiirm-See, the 305.

Wiirttemberg. the 41.

Wurzach 86.

Wiirzburg 117.

Wutzmiihle 347.

Zabelstein 128.

Zauppenberg 162.

Zavelstein 24.

Zeil 141.

— , Schloss 86.

Zell (near Ebenhausen
326.— (on the Main) 114.

— in Oberfranken 133.

Zeller Hoho, the 349.

Zellerhorn, the 80.

Zeller See, the 86.

Zellerthal 359.

Zeugplatte, the 115.

Ziegelhausen 131.

Zielfingen 87.

Zillhausen 82.

Zirl 322.

Zirndorf 189.

Zollern 81.

Zuffenhausen 22.

Zugspitze, the 321.

Zuttlingen 126.

Zwiefalten 85.

Zwiefalteudorf 85.

Zwiesel 362.

— , the 341.

Zwieselau 363.

Zwieselbeig 61.

— , the 362.

Zwiesler Waldhaus 361.

Zwingenberg 31.
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